
1 

 

Agenda 
City Council Regular Meeting 
City Council Chambers | 50 Natoma Street, Folsom CA  95630 
February 23, 2021 
6:30 PM 

Welcome to Your City Council Meeting 

We welcome your interest and involvement in the city’s legislative process. This agenda includes 

information about topics coming before the City Council and the action recommended by city staff. You 

can read about each topic in the staff reports, which are available on the city website and in the Office 

of the City Clerk. The City Clerk is also available to answer any questions you have about City Council 

meeting procedures. 

Participation 

If you would like to provide comments to the City Council, please: 

 Fill out a blue speaker request form, located at the back table. 

 Submit the form to the City Clerk before the item begins. 

 When it’s your turn, the City Clerk will call your name and invite you to the podium. 

 Speakers have three minutes, unless the presiding officer (usually the mayor) changes that 

time. 

Reasonable Accommodations 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must 

be made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

How to Watch 

The City of Folsom provides three ways to watch a City Council meeting: 

In Person Online On TV 

 

  
City Council meetings take place at 

City Hall, 50 Natoma Street 
Watch the livestream and replay past 

meetings on the city website, 
www.folsom.ca.us 

Watch live and replays of meetings on 
Sac Metro Cable TV, Channel 14 

 
More information about City Council meetings is available at the end of this agenda 

 
 

 

Page 1

file:///C:/Users/ELobbato/Downloads/CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us
http://www.folsom.ca.us/


2 

 

 

 

City Council Regular Meeting 
 

Folsom City Council Chambers 
50 Natoma Street, Folsom, CA 

 

 www.folsom.ca.us   

Tuesday, February 23, 2021 6:30 PM 
 

Mike Kozlowski, Mayor 

 

Sarah Aquino, Vice Mayor YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember 
Kerri Howell, Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez, Councilmember 

 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

Pursuant to Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20, members of the Folsom City Council and 
staff may participate in this meeting via teleconference.  

Due to the coronavirus (COVID-19) public health emergency, the City of Folsom is allowing for remote 
public input during City Council meetings.  Members of the public are encouraged to participate by 
emailing comments to CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us.  Emailed comments must be received no later 

than thirty minutes before the meeting and will be read aloud at the meeting during the agenda 
item.   Please make your comments brief. Written comments submitted and read into the public record 
must adhere to the principles of the three-minute speaking time permitted for in-person public comment 

at City Council meetings.  Members of the public wishing to participate in this meeting via 
teleconference may email CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us no later than thirty minutes before the meeting 
to obtain call-in information.  Each meeting may have different call-in information.  Verbal comments via 
teleconference must adhere to the principles of the three-minute speaking time permitted for in-person 

public comment at City Council meetings.  

Members of the public may continue to participate in the meeting in person at 
Folsom City Hall, 50 Natoma Street, Folsom, CA while maintaining appropriate social distancing and 

wearing face coverings. 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL: 

Councilmembers:     Aquino, Chalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez, Kozlowski 

The City Council has adopted a policy that no new item will begin after 10:30 p.m.  Therefore, if you are 
here for an item that has not been heard by 10:30 p.m., you may leave, as the item will be continued to 
a future Council Meeting. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Page 2

http://www.folsom.ca.us/


3 

AGENDA UPDATE 

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR: 

Members of the public are entitled to address the City Council concerning any item within the Folsom 
City Council's subject matter jurisdiction.  Public comments are limited to no more than three 
minutes.  Except for certain specific exceptions, the City Council is prohibited from discussing or taking 
action on any item not appearing on the posted agenda. 

SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS: 

1. County of Sacramento Alternatives to 911 for Mental Health and Quality of Life/Pilot Call Center 
and Mental Health Response Team Proposal 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and may be approved by one 
motion.  City Councilmembers may pull an item for discussion. 

2. Approval of January 26, 2021 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes 

3. Approval of the February 9, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes 

4. Resolution No. 10589 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to add Two Senior 
Environmental Specialists Positions to the Solid Waste Recycling Division and Appropriation of 
Funds 

5. Resolution No. 10590 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the Second 
Amendment to the Joint Powers Agreement between the City of Elk Grove, City of Folsom, City 
of Rancho Cordova, City of Sacramento, and the County of Sacramento Creating the 
Sacramento Central Groundwater Authority  

6. Resolution No. 10591 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Amended and 
Restated Master Interagency Agreement Between Sacramento Regional County Sanitation 
District and Its Contributing Agencies   

7. Resolution No. 10594 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Contract with 
Madsen Roofing & Waterproofing Inc. for the Folsom Community Center Roof Repair Project 

8. Resolution No. 10595 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement 
with Western Truck Parts and Equipment Company LLC to Purchase One Solid Waste 
Collection Vehicle 

PUBLIC HEARING: 

9. Alder Creek Apartments – Southeast Corner of Alder Creek Parkway and Westwood Drive in the 
Folsom Plan Area (PN 18-222) 

i. Resolution No. 10596 - A Resolution to Adopt an Addendum to the Folsom Plan Area Specific 
Plan EIR/EIS and Approve a General Plan Amendment, Specific Plan Amendment, and Planned 
Development Permit for the Alder Creek Apartments Project 

NEW BUSINESS: 

10. Appointment of At-Large Members to the Folsom Historic District Commission 

11. Appointment of At Large Members to the Landscaping and Lighting District Advisory Committee 

CITY MANAGER REPORTS: 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

Page 3



4 

ADJOURNMENT 

The City Council's next regular meeting is scheduled for March 9, 2021. 

 
 

NOTICE:  Members of the public are entitled to directly address the City Council concerning any item 

that is described in the notice of this meeting, before or during consideration of that item.  If you wish to 

address Council on an issue, which is on this agenda, please complete a blue speaker request card, and 

deliver it to a staff member at the table on the left side of the Council Chambers prior to discussion of the 

item.  When your name is called, stand to be recognized by the Mayor and then proceed to the podium.  If 

you wish to address the City Council on any other item of interest to the public, when the Mayor asks if 

there is any “Business from the Floor,” follow the same procedure described above.  Please limit your 

comments to three minutes or less. 

 

NOTICE REGARDING CHALLENGES TO DECISIONS:   Pursuant to all applicable laws and regulations, 

including without limitation, California Government Code Section 65009 and or California Public 

Resources Code Section 21177, if you wish to challenge in court any of the above decisions (regarding 

planning, zoning and/or environmental decisions), you may be limited to raising only those issues you or 

someone else raised at the public hearing(s) described in this notice/agenda, or in written 

correspondence delivered to the City at, or prior to, the public hearing. 

As presiding officer, the Mayor has the authority to preserve order at all City Council meetings, to remove 

or cause the removal of any person from any such meeting for disorderly conduct, or for making personal, 

impertinent, or slanderous remarks, using profanity, or becoming boisterous, threatening or personally 

abusive while addressing said Council, and to enforce the rules of the Council. 

PERSONS INTERESTED IN PROPOSING AN ITEM FOR THE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA SHOULD 

CONTACT A MEMBER OF THE CITY COUNCIL. 

The meeting of the Folsom City Council is being telecast on Metro Cable TV, Channel 14, the 

Government Affairs Channel, and will be shown in its entirety on the Friday and Saturday following the 

meeting, both at 9 a.m.  The City does not control scheduling of this telecast and persons interested in 

watching the televised meeting should confirm this schedule with Metro Cable TV, Channel 14. The City 

of Folsom provides live and archived webcasts of regular City Council meetings.  The webcasts can be 

found on the online services page of the City's website www.folsom.ca.us. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a person with a disability and you need 

a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact the City 

Clerk’s Office at (916) 461-6035, (916) 355-7328 (fax) or CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us.  Requests must 

be made as early as possible and at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. 

Any documents produced by the City and distributed to the City Council regarding any item on this agenda 

will be made available at the City Clerk’s Counter at City Hall located at 50 Natoma Street, Folsom, 

California and at the Folsom Public Library located at 411 Stafford Street, Folsom, California during 

normal business hours. 

Page 4

http://www.folsom.ca.us/
https://municode.sharepoint.com/sites/WebMeetingsTeam/Shared%20Documents/_Customers/California/Folsom%20California/Meetings%20Project/Templates/CityClerkDept@folsom.ca.us


ffi
_tr'd-lx,f']{*}i+L
l' tlrlCtr{1 &i )rltr'rt

Folsom City Council
Staff ort

Sacramento Deputy County Executive Bruce Wagstaff will make a presentation on

Alternatives to 911 for Mental Health and Quality of Life and the County of Sacramento's

Pilot Call Center and Mental Health Response Team Proposal that will be heard before the

County of Sacramento Board of Supervisors at their February 24,2021 meeting. City
executive staff will be available for questions as to the possible impacts of this program on

City of Folsom residents and operations.

ATTACHMENTS

Sacramento County Alternatives to 911 for Mental Health and Quality of Life Community

Report-Back, Sacramento County Department of Health Services, February 2021

Submitted,

Elaine Andersen, City Manager

I

MEETING DATE: 2t2312021

AGENDA SECTION: Scheduled Presentations

SUBJECT: County of Sacramento Alternatives to 911 for Mental Health and

Qualrty of Life/Pilot Call Center and Mental Health Response

Team Proposal

FROM: City Manager's Office

Page 5

02/23/2021 Item No.1.



AC ENTO
UNTY

Alternatives to 911 for Mental
Health and Quality of Life
Community Report-Back

Sacramento County Department of Health Services

Februa ry 2O2I

Jim Hunt, DHS Director

Ryan Quist PhD, BHS Director

Jenine Spotnitz, Program Planner

Page 6

02/23/2021 Item No.1.



Agenda

ff Housekeeping & lntroductory Remarks

Findings from Community Listening Sessions &

Survey

Behavioral Health Services Proposal for Board of
Supervisors Meeting on 2/24/2L

rr Q&A

I

2 February2o21 Sacramento County Department of Health Services - Alt to 911 s^g4t'{tt*Tg

Page 7

02/23/2021 Item No.1.



Housekeeping
a Presentation format, Q&A VI a chat
. lf you would like to access a requested

interpretation service, please type it in the
chat:
L. Real Time CaPtioning (RTC)

2. Hmong

3. Russian
o Please select the language via the

globe on your computer here:

3 February2021 Sacramento County Departnent of Health Services - Alt to 911 J{54tttuTg

Page 8

02/23/2021 Item No.1.



lntroductory
Remarks

4 February2021 Sacramenb County Departnent of Health Services - Alt to 911 -sA$4t'ttryTg

Page 9

02/23/2021 Item No.1.



Findings from CommunitY

Listening Sessions & Survey

5 February2021 Sacramento County Department of Health Services - Alt to 911 S5t;'1qry1n

Page 10

02/23/2021 Item No.1.



a

Overview of CommunitY Listening
Sessions & Survey

Questions
1. What do you think the goals for a Mental Health and

Quality of Life ResPonse should be?

2. What types of crisis situations would you want this team
to respond to?

3. How would you like to access this response?

4. What do people experiencing these types of crises need?
. What qualities and skills are important for the response team to

have?
. Who should be on the response team?

5. What services should the response team be able to
provide?

6. What type of follow up support would you like to see?

6 February 2021 Sacramento County Department of Health Services- Alt to 911 qACRAMENTO
\=,,-coulrv

Page 11

02/23/2021 Item No.1.



o

a

Participants
568 individuals participated in a Listening Session event or

the Community lnput SurveY

Participant backgrounds related to Mental Health and

Homelessness

- 57% Friends or family members of someone who has

experienced a mental health crisis

- 28% Friends or family members of someone who has

experienced homelessness

- 25% People who have experienced a mental health

crisis

- 20% Behavioral health (BH) provider or staff

- 3% People who have experienced homelessness

7 February2A2l Sacramento County Deparbnent of Health Seruices - Alt to 911 -W3qqtryTg

Page 12

02/23/2021 Item No.1.



Goals for a Mental Health and Quality of Life Response

' Safely de-escalate crises
. Provide linkages to accessible and affordable mental

health resources to decrease repeat crises and
emergency depa rtment visits

o Offer a response team that does not include law
enforcement staffing

o Ensure the model is community-based
o Decrease criminalization of mental health and

homelessness
Participant quote: "Respect and kindness from q responder with
primary expertise in mental health; not a first responder with
primary expertise in criminal activity."

8 February2021 Sacramento County Departnent of Health Seruices - Alt to 911 X$r,XEryTg

Page 13

02/23/2021 Item No.1.



ldeas for the Types of Crises the
Response Should Address

. Mental health/psychiatric

. Su bsta nce use

o Domestic violence and sexual assault

o People experiencing homelessness

. Other crises (e.9., w€lfare checkS, child

and vulnerable people protectioh, €lder
a buse)

9 February 202'l Sacramento County Deparhnent of Health Services - Alt to 911 -qlAJltXTg

Page 14

02/23/2021 Item No.1.



L Requested Access to the
Response Team

. New 3-digit emergency phone number that is

independent from 911 to dispatch the mental
health response

o "No wrong door approach" to access the
response team through existing service phone

numbers (e.9., ZLL,3LL, and 911)

o lnclude language interpretation and ability to
access via a website

lo February2o21 Sacramento County Departnent of Health Services- Alt to 911 (ncnnue uro
^:,'cou{rY

Page 15

02/23/2021 Item No.1.



o*.raYr Team Composition
Suggested Response

o Mental health clinicians
o Peers with lived experience
. Social workers
o Medical clinicians

Participant quote: "lt's incredibly important that the people who

sfiow up on these calls, look like normol people and talk like

normol people. Having thqt peer support person with lived

expe rien ce is im portant."

ll February 2o2'l Sacramento County DeparUnent of Health Seruices - Alt to 911 X5{l3tXT9

Page 16

02/23/2021 Item No.1.



Requested Response Team Skills &
Expertise

o De-escalation
o Trauma-informed
o Background in behavioral health
. Responsive to rac€, culture, gender &

d isa bility
Participant quote: "someone who is colm, approschable,

knowledgeable about MH crises and empathetic. I worked in one

of the most intensive outpatient settings in Sac County snd

deescqloted everytl'ring under the sun with no harm done."

12 February2021 Sacramento County Department of Health Seruices - Alt to 911 S54Uqry19

Page 17

02/23/2021 Item No.1.



\l I
\ -

Requested Crisis Services

o Housing & shelter
o Mental health assessment & services

o Food, water & other survival needs

. Medical care & medication
o Crisis stabilization & respite centers

Participant quote: "We need rnore affordable housing,

employment training progroms, ond robust mentql heqlth and

substance abuse programs. The lack of inventory of housing ond

services qvailable is whqt leads to the rssues needing

alternatives to calls to 971."

13 February 2021 Sacramento County Deparlrnent of Health Seruices - Alt to 911 _sAg43lttlTg

Page 18

02/23/2021 Item No.1.



Suggested Follow Up SuPPort

. Ongoing follow up & case management
to connect individuals to services and

social support
o Transportation & financial assistance

. Wraparound services; including family &
loved ones in the follow up planning

o Needs assessments for people

expe rienci ng homel essness

14 February2021 Sacramento County Department of Health Seruices - Alt to 911 XSlll[NTP

Page 19

02/23/2021 Item No.1.



Pilot Call Center and Mental Health
Response Team Proposal - Purpose

o Purpose:

-Test the concept, Etccumulate data, assess

operating issues and measure outcomes

-Guide efforts to implement a fully
operationa,24 hou r,7 days a week program

15 February 2021 Sacramento County Department of Health Seruices - Alt to 911 -€$JStXTg

Page 20

02/23/2021 Item No.1.



Pilot Call Center and Mental Health
Response Team ProPosal - Services

a Services

- Crisis intervention and de-escalation

-Assess needs and risks

-Create safety plans (including identifying
and leveraging individual strengths and

natural supports; coordinating with
existing health providers; and linking

consumers to ongoing services)

16 Februaryl02l Sacramento County Department of Health Services - Alt to 911 X$l'3tryTq

Page 21

02/23/2021 Item No.1.



Pilot Call Center and Mental Health
Response Team Proposal - Staff

o 16 staff
o Provide Countywide coverage during peak

times in calls for service, Monday through
Friday from
9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.

. Full year cost of 51,650,901

. Anticipated operations by July 1, 202L

17 February 2021 Sacnmento County Department of Health Services- Alt to 911 qACRAMENTO
€coUNtY

Page 22

02/23/2021 Item No.1.



Proposed Pilot Call Center Details

o Staffed by mental health professionals who
would:

-Triage consumers' level of need

- Review behavioral health records

- Conduct mental health assessments to
determine the appropriate response

l8 February2o2l Sacramento County Department of Health Selvices - Alt to 911 {5nqa"ry1n

Page 23

02/23/2021 Item No.1.



Proposed Pilot Call Center Details cont.

. Potential responses include:

- Providing crisis intervention and de-escalation

services over the phone

- Dispatching a Mental Health Response Team

- Connecting current clients to their existing

behavioral health service providers

- Referring clients to the Mental Health Urgent

Care Clinic, Crisis Center Respite, and ongoing

mental health and substance use services

19 February 2021 Sacramento County Depaftment of Health Seruices - At to 911 X$t'3tXTg

Page 24

02/23/2021 Item No.1.



Proposed Pilot Call Center Details cont.

o Access to Call Center

-A separate, non-law enforcement 7-digit
n u mber

-All phone numbers in the X11 series of
numbers are in use

20 February2021 Sacramento County Department of Health Seruices - Alt to 911 {54t99ry19

Page 25

02/23/2021 Item No.1.



a C MENTO
COUNTY

= Community Link

= Local Government - Service lnformation

= Directory Assistance

= CalTrans lnformation

= Phone assistance

= Telecommunication Relay Service

= Call Before You Die

o 9LL = Emergency

. zLL
o 3L1
O 4LL
o 5L1
O 6LL
O 7LL
o 8L1

2r February2021 Sacramento County Department of Health Seruices - Alt to 911 -qAgqr'atryTg

Page 26

02/23/2021 Item No.1.



o

a

Proposed Pilot Mental Health Response
Team Details
4 Mental Health Response Teams with Sr. Mental Health

Counselors and Sr. Behavioral Health Peer Specialists

Functions would include:

- Provide in-person crisis intervention and de-escalation

services

- Assess needs and risks

- Create safety plans (including identifying and leveraging

individual strengths and natural supports; coordinating with
existing health providers; and linking consumers to ongoing

services)

- Accessing Mobile Crisis Support Teams or other
emergency responders if necessary

22 February2l21 Sacramento County Departnent of Health Selices - Alt to 911 -q^g\A.tat\T9

Page 27

02/23/2021 Item No.1.



Possible Future Full lmplementation Plan

. Additional Mental Health Response Teams

with Senior Mental Health Counselors and

Senior Behavioral Health Peer Specialists

. Functions and outcomes will be the same;

expanded to 24/7 coverage countywide

23 February2l?1 Sacramento County Departnent of Health Services - Alt to 911 S5,rgXry1n

Page 28

02/23/2021 Item No.1.



Next Steps

Sacra mento County Board

of Supervisors to review

and vote on the proposal

on February 24,202L
at 2:30 p.m.

24 February2021 Sacramento County Departnrent of Health Seruices - Alt to 911 S5qt'f Xry19

Page 29

02/23/2021 Item No.1.



o&A

Please type any
questions in the chat

Thank you !

25 February2021 Sacnmento County Department of Health Servies - Alt to 911 Jg4r'{t\Tg

Page 30

02/23/2021 Item No.1.



Book 76 Page 11

Folsom City Council
January 26,2021

City Gouncil Special Meeting

MINUTES

Tuesday, January 26,2021 5:30 PM

Pursuant to Governor Newsom's Executive Order N-29-20, members of the Folsom City
Council and staff may participate in this meeting via teleconference.

GALL TO ORDER

The special City Council meeting was called to order at 5:30 p,m. in City Council Chambers, 50
Natoma Street, Folsom, California, with Mayor Mike Kozlowski presiding.

ROLL CALL:

Councilmembers Present: Sarah Aquino, Vice Mayor
YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember
Kerri Howell, Councilmember
Rosario Rodriguez, Councilmember
Mike Kozlowski, Mayor

Councilmembers Absent:

Participating Staff:

None

City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steve Wang
City Clerk Christa Freemantle

ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION FOR THE FOLLOWING PURPOSES:

1. Conference with Legal Counsel - Existing Litigation - Pursuant to Government Code
Section 54956.9(d)(1): Hari Shetty, Kavita Sood, Neighborhood Elections Now v. City of
Folsom, Sacramento County Superior Court Case No. 34-2020-00291639

2. Conference with Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation - Significant Exposure to Litigation
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2): Pinhole leaks

City Clerk Christa Freemantle read comment letters regarding item number 1 from Cheryl Davis
and Hari Shetty. Speaker Scott Rafferty addressed the City Council regarding item number 1

via teleconference.

Motion by Gouncilmember Kerri Howell, second by Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez to
adjourn to closed session for the above referenced items. Motion carried with the
following roll call vote:

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Aquino, Ghalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez, Kozlowski

DRAFT - Not ffidal antil approued fut the Citl Coancil. Page 31

02/23/2021 Item No.2.



Book 76 Page 12
Folsom City Council

January 26,2021

NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Gouncilmember(s): None
Councilmember(s): None
Councilmember(s): None

RECONVENE

City Attorney Steve Wang announced that no final action was taken during Closed Session

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Folsom City Council, the meeting was
adjourned at 6:30 p.m.

SUBMITTED BY:

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

ATTEST:

Mike Kozlowski, Mayor

DRAFT - Not ffidal antil approued fui the Ciry Council.
Page 32

02/23/2021 Item No.2.



Book 76 Page 13
Folsom City Council

January 26,2021

Gity Gouncil Regular Meeting

MINUTES

Tuesdayn January 26,2021 6:30 PM

Pursuant to Governor Newsom's Executive Order N-29-20, members of the Folsom City
Council and staff may participate in this meeting via teleconference.

CALL TO ORDER

The regular City Council meeting was called to order at 6:30
Natoma Street, Folsom, California, with Mayor Mike Kozlows

. in City Council Chambers, 50
residing.

p.m
ki p

ROLL GALL:

Councilmembers Present Sarah Aquino, Vice Mayor
YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember
Kerri Howell, Councilmember
Rosario Rodriguez, Councilmember
Mike Kozlowski, Mayor

Councilmembers Absent: None

Participating Staff: City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steve Wang
City Clerk Christa Freemantle
Community Development Director Pam Johns
City Engineer Steve Krahn
Finance Director/Chief Financial Officer Stacey Tamagni
Senior Planner Stephanie Henry
Public Works Director Dave Nugen

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited

AGENDA UPDATE

City Clerk Christa Freemantle advised that there were no agenda updates.

Mayor Mike Kozlowski announced that ltem No. 1 will be taken up before Business from the Floor

DRAFT - Not ffidal antil approued b1 the Citlt Council. Page 33

02/23/2021 Item No.2.



Book 76 Page 14
Folsom City Council

January 26,2021
SCHEDU LED PRESENTATIONS :

1. Mayor Kozlowski to Administer the California Attorney Oath to Spencer Hodson Following
His Successful Passing of the California Bar Examination

Mayor Mike Kozlowski administered the Attorney Oath to Spencer Hodson.

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR:

The following speakers addressed the City Council via teleconference

1. Muriel Brounstein regarding district-based elections
2. Bhaskar Vempati regarding lndian Association of Sacramento (lAS) and their events

City Clerk Christa Freemantle read into the record emails regarding district-based elections from
the following individuals:

1. Robert Dresser
2. Dolly Sood

Janine-Analise Ferrer addressed the City Council regarding obeying traffic lights and stop signs

SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS:

1. Mayor Kozlowski to Administer the California Attorney Oath to Spencer Hodson Following
His Successful Passing of the California Bar Examination

Item taken out of order, prior to Business From the Floor.

2. Folsom Plan Area Quarterly Update

Community Development Director Pam Johns made a presentation and responded to questions
from the City Council. City Engineer Steve Krahn continued the presentation and responded to
questions from the City Council.

3. Economic and Budget Overview Presentation

Finance Director/Chief Financial Officer Stacey Tamagni made a presentation and responded to
questions from the City Council.

CONSENT CALENDAR:

4. Approval of January 12,2021 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes

5. Resolution No. 10581 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a
Consultant Agreement with WLC Architects for Architectural Services for the Folsom
Police Station Rehabilitation Project

DRAFT - Not fficial until approued fui the Cifl Coandl.
Page 34

02/23/2021 Item No.2.



,",:ffi1'J[r'sff#
January 26,2021

6. Resolution No. 10582 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an
Agreement with HDR Engineering lnc. for Design Services for the Water Treatment Plant
Backwash and Recycled Water Capacity Project

Motion by Gouncilmember Kerri Howell, second by Vice Mayor Sarah Aquino to approve
the Consent Calendar.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Aquino, Chalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez, Kozlowski
NOES: Councilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s): None

OLD BUSINESS:

7 . Presentation Regarding the lmpacts of Organics Recycling Mandated by SB1383 and
Direction to Staff

Public Works Director Dave Nugen made a presentation and responded to questions from the
City Council.

Council direction to staff was to "go forth" and proceed with bringing back a resolution to add the
two requested employees and to begin the rate study process.

NEW BUSINESS:

8. Affordable Housing Fund Requests and Direction to Staff

a. Resolution No, 10583 - A Resolution of the City of Folsom Approving an Affordable
Housing Loan in the Amount of $3,500,000 from the City's Housing Fund to USA
Properties Fund, lnc. and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Loan Agreement
and Related Documents for the Construction of 1 10 Affordable Senior Housing Units at
the Sage at Folsom Multifamily Affordable Housing Development Project, and
Appropriation of Funds

b. Resolution No. 10584 - A Resolution of the City of Folsom Approving an Affordable
Housing Loan in an Amount of $4,500,000 from the City's Housing Fund to USA
Properties Fund, lnc. and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Loan Agreement
And Related Documents and Authorizing the City's Allocation of $800,000 ln Home
Funds Received Through Participation in the SHRA HOME Consortium for the
Construction of 110 Affordable Senior Housing Units at the Sage at Folsom Multifamily
Affordable Housing Development Project, and Appropriation of Funds

Senior Planner Stephanie Henry made a presentation and responded to questions from the City
Council. City Attorney Steve Wang provided additional information,

The following speakers addressed the City Council:
Steve Gall, USA Properties
Ardie Zahedani, St. Anton's

DRAFT - Not fficial until approued @ the Ci4t Coancil.
Page 35

02/23/2021 Item No.2.



Book 76 Page 16
Folsom City Council

January 26,2021
Motion by Councilmember Kerri Howell, second by Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez
to approve Resolution No. 10583 and Resolution No. 10584.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Aquino, Ghalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez, Kozlowski
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Councilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s): None

9. Appointment of City Council Representatives to Regional Commissions

City Clerk Christa Freemantle made a presentation

Motion by Gouncilmember Kerri Howell, second by Gouncilmember Rosario Rodriguez
to approve the recommended regional commission appointments.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s): Aquino, Chalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez, Kozlowski
NOES: Councilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s): None

10. Mayor's Appointment and Confirmation by the City Council of Planning Commissioners to
Serve on the Historic District Commission

City Clerk Christa Freemantle made a presentation

Motion by Gouncilmember Kerri Howell, second by Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez
to approve the appointments of Kevin Duewel and DanielWest as the Planning
Commission representatives to the Historic District Gommission.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s): Aquino, Ghalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez, Kozlowski
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s): None

CITY MANAGER REPORTS:

City Manager Elaine Andersen spoke of Mayor Mike Kozlowski's upcoming virtual annual State
of the City address which will include a discussion with health experts. She announced the
dedication of the City's outdoor amphitheater and the naming of it as the Zittel Family
Amphitheater. She mentioned the application window for selling safe and sane fireworks, the
Housing Element of the General Plan public review and concluded with condolences to the
family of Sacramento County Deputy Sheriff Adam Gibson who died in the line of duty.

DRAFT - Not ffidal until approued fui the Ci4t Council.
Page 36

02/23/2021 Item No.2.



Book 76 Page 17
Folsom City Council

January 26,2021

COUNCIL GOMMENTS:

Vice Mayor Sarah Aquino talked about touring homeless shelters with Councilmember YK
Chalamcherla, provided an update regarding the Association of California Cities Allied with
Public Safety in which she was appointed as president and mentioned that she was also
appointed chair of the Citizen's Advisory Committee for State Prisons.

Councilmember YK Chalamcherla commented on the tour of homeless shelters and the League
of California Cities grants for homelessness. He thanked his colleagues and staff.

Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez discussed her experience doing a ride along with the Police
Department and discussed homelessness in Folsom. She mentioned that the ice-skating rink in
the Historic District is open during Valentine's Day, that she enjoyed the Parks and Recreation
Commission presentation, and reminded everyone that free hand sanitizer is still available from
the City. She commented that there are vacant City owned buildings and stated that she is
interested in receiving a list of buildings and exploring opportunities to use them for revenue.
She concluded by congratulating Spencer Hodson for passing the bar exam.

Councilmember Kerri Howell provided an update from Regional Transit and mentioned an
upcoming Southeast Connector JPA meeting. She concurred with the earlier business from the
floor comments from Janine Ferrer regarding traffic issues.

Mayor Mike Kozlowski provided an update regarding SACOG meetings

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Folsom City Council, Mayor Mike Kozlowski
adjourned the meeting at 9:06 p.m.

SUBMITTED BY

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

ATTEST

Mike Kozlowski, Mayor

DRAFT - Not ffic'ial antil approued fui the Ciry Coundl.
Page 37

02/23/2021 Item No.2.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 38

02/23/2021 Item No.2.



Book 76 Page 18
Folsom City Council

February 9,2021

Gity Council Regular Meeting

MINUTES

Tuesday, February 9,2021 6:30 PM

Pursuant to Governor Newsom's Executive Order N-29-20, members of the Folsom City
Council and staff may participate in this meeting via teleconference,

CALL TO ORDER

The regular City Council meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m. in City Council Chambers, 50
Natoma Street, Folsom, California, with Mayor Mike Kozlowski presiding,

ROLL CALL:

Councilmembers Present: Sarah Aquino, Vice Mayor
YK Chalamcherla, Councilmember
Kerri Howell, Councilmember
Rosario Rodriguez, Councilmember
Mike Kozlowski, Mayor

Councilmembers Absent: None

Participating Staff: City Manager Elaine Andersen
City Attorney Steve Wang
City Clerk Christa Freemantle
Finance Director/Chief Financial Officer Stacey Tamagni
Community Development Director Pam Johns
Public Works Director Dave Nugen

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited

AGENDA UPDATE

City Clerk Christa Freemantle advised that there was additional information for ltem No. 6

BUSINESS FROM THE FLOOR:

There were no speakers.

DRAFT - Not ffidal until approued fui the Ciry Coancil.
Page 39

02/23/2021 Item No.3.



Book 76 Page 19
Folsom City Council

February 9,2021

SCHEDULED PRESENTATIONS:

1. City Manager's Financial Report lncluding CAFR Findings for Fiscal Year2020 and the
Fiscal Year 2020-21 Second Quarter Financial Report

Finance Director/Chief Financial Officer Stacey Tamagni made a presentation and responded to
questions from the City Council.

2. Follow Up on 908 Bidwell Street ResidentialAddition and Remodel

Community Development Director Pam Johns made a presentation and responded to questions
from the City Council. City Attorney Steve Wang provided additional clarification.

The following speaker addressed the City Council via teleconference:

. Beth Kelly, Heritage Preservation League Board President

City Clerk Christa Freemantle read into the record an email from Bob Delp.

CONSENT CALENDAR:

3. pulled for discussion

4. Resolution No. 10586 - A Resolution Approving the Allocation of City Match Funding for
Proposition 68 Per Capita Grant Program and Appropriation of Funds

5. Resolution No. 10587 - A Resolution Approving the Application for Grant Funds from the
Caltrans Sustainable Transportation Planning Grant Program for the Folsom Boulevard
Trail Overcrossing Feasibility Study Project

Motion by Gouncilmember Rosario Rodriguez, second by Gouncilmember Kerri Howellto
approve ltems No. 4 and 5 of the Gonsent Calendar.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES: Gouncilmember(s): Aquino, Chalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez, Kozlowski
NOES: Gouncilmember(s): None
ABSENT: Councilmember(s): None
ABSTAIN: Gouncilmember(s): None

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM PULLED FOR DISCUSSION:

3. Resolution No. 10585 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute
Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement (Contract No 173-21 20-011) with Black & Veatch
Corporation for Professional Services for the Risk and Resilience Assessment and
Emergency Response Plan and Appropriation of Funds

DRAFT - Not fficial until approued fui the Ci4t Cound/.
Page 40

02/23/2021 Item No.3.



Book 76 Page 20
Folsom City Council

February 9,2021
Councilmember Kerri Howell pulled ltem No. 3 to recuse because Black & Veatch is a client of
hers.

Motion by Gouncilmember Rosario Rodriguez, second by Vice Mayor Sarah Aquino to
approve Resolution No. 10585.

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Gouncilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Gouncilmember(s):
Gouncilmember(s):

Councilmember(s): Aquino, Ghalamcherla, Rodriguez, Kozlowski
Councilmember(s): None
Gouncilmember(s): Howell (recused)
Councilmember(s): None

PUBLIC HEARING

6. Housing Element Study Session and Resolution No. 10588 - A Resolution Authorizing
the Community Development Director to Submit the Draft Housing Element Update for
2021-2029 to the Department of Housing and Community Development for Review

Community Development Director Pam Johns introduced the item and thanked staff for their
work. She introduced consultant Chelsea Payne, Director of Urban Design and Planning, who
made a presentation and responded to questions from the City Council. The City Council
discussed modifications to the draft housing element update.

Mayor Mike Kozlowski opened the public hearing at 8:16 p.m. Hearing no speakers, the public
hearing was closed.

Motion by Gouncilmember Kerri Howell, second by Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez to
approve Resolution No. 10588 with the following modifications, as considered during the
Gity Council's discussion:

1. Revise Goal H-3 to include the underline: To facilitate affordable housing opportunities to
serye the needs of people at all income levels who live and work in the community.

2. Remove Policy H-7.3 Solar on Multifamily Housing
3. Provide more details/specifics in Program H-5 ADU lncentives
4. Provide more details/specifics in Program H-6 Track and Monitor Multi-Gen Units
5. Clarify Program H-10 Raise Community Awareness About Affordable Housing, to define

measurable actions for the City
6. Revise Program H-16 to explore the feasibility and appropriateness of using housing

trust fund money to purchase land
7. Remove Program H-29 Homeless Services
8. Remove Program H-31 Affirmative Marketing Plan - Change "require" to "encourage"

Motion carried with the following roll call vote:

Aquino, Chalamcherla, Howell, Rodriguez, Kozlowski
None
None
None

DRAFT - Not ofidal until approued fot the Ci4t Council.
Page 41

02/23/2021 Item No.3.



Book 76 Page 21
Folsom City Council

February 9,2021

OLD BUSINESS:

7. Presentation Regarding Mandatory Commercial Organics Recycling Compliance Plan
underAB1826 and Direction to Staff

Public Works Director Dave Nugen made a presentation and responded to questions from the
City Council.

The City Council directed staff to move fonryard with the preparation of an ordinance including
an enforcement mechanism to address the requirements of AB 1826 as well as SB 1383. They
further directed staff to investigate the two operational options of 1) continuation of the existing
contract services, and 2) the City providing the services for Commercial Organics Recycling.
The City Council expressed that they were not interested in exploring any franchise agreements
for the Commercial Organics Recycling or commercial trash.

CITY MANAGER REPORTS:

City Manager Elaine Andersen encouraged all to shop locally and to support local businesses.
She mentioned COVID-19 vaccinations from Sacramento County. Ms. Andersen reminded
everyone that the City offers residential and business assistance programs designed to help
during difficult times, adding that SMUD is also offering assistance with relief programs. She
concluded with information describing an upcoming virtual community meeting for the Highway
50 Empire Ranch lnterchange Project.

COUNCIL COMMENTS:

Councilmember Kerri Howell gave her usual suggestion to avoid wearing all black at night when
walking as well as to be careful and follow traffic laws. She mentioned that there are upcoming
Regional Sanitation, South East Connector JPA and Regional Transit meetings.

Vice Mayor Sarah Aquino reported on the Air Quality Management District activities and
congratulated Mayor Mike Kozlowski on his delivery of the State of the City address.

Councilmember YK Chalamcherla thanked staff for their clean-up efforts from the recent storm,
congratulated Terrie Frey on her retirement with concurrence from City Manager Elaine
Andersen and thanked his colleagues and city staff for mentoring him.

Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez spoke of attending the Greater Sacramento Economic
Council Champion program event and shared some accolades received for our region. She
commended City Manager Elaine Andersen for her efforts toward homelessness issues and
praised the Police and Community Development Departments.

Mayor Mike Kozlowski gave suggestions for Community Service Day, thanked Communications
Director Christine Brainerd and staff at the Chamber of Commerce for helping with the State of
the City address and congratulated those who participated in the virtual event after his speech
concluded. He announced that the Sacramento Transportation Agency meeting was canceled,
reported on the most recent SACOG meeting and said he would like discussion of governance
guidelines (as proposed last year) on an upcoming agenda.

DBAFT - Not ffidal until approued fui the Citlt Coundl.
Page 42

02/23/2021 Item No.3.



Book 76 Page22
Folsom City Council

February 9,2021

ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Folsom City Council, Mayor Mike Kozlowski
adjourned the meeting at 9:08 p.m.

SUBMITTED BY:

Christa Freemantle, City Clerk

ATTEST

Mike Kozlowski, Mayor

DRAFT - Not offcial antil approued b1 the Ciry Council.
Page 43

02/23/2021 Item No.3.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 44

02/23/2021 Item No.3.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

MEETING DATE: 212312021

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10589 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to add Two (2) Senior Environmental Specialists
Positions to the Solid Waste Recycling Division and
Appropriation of Funds

F'ROM: Public Works Department

RECOMMENDATION / COIINCII, ACTION

The Public Works Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution
No. 10589 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to add Two (2) Senior Environmental
Specialists Positions to the Solid Waste Recycling Division and Appropriation of Funds.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Recycling Division is currently being impacted by multiple unfunded mandates by the
State of California. Two of the most notable and resource intensive are Assembly Bill 1826
(AB 1826) Madatory Commercial Organics Recycling and Senate Bill 1383 (SB 1383) Short-
Lived Climate Pollutants (SLCP): Organic Waste Methane Emissions Reductions. Both are

intented to achieve California's agrressive goals to reduce green house gas emissions. Under
AB l826,nearly all Folsom businesses must recycle their organic waste. The City is mandated
to provide and manage a successful program, defined as I00% of catured businesses
participating. Staff also must provide education and outreach, monitoring and trackings, and
compliance reporting. The City has been notified that we are not in compliance with AB 1826
and has been directed to submit and implement a plan to become compliant in order to avoid
further enforcement action.

In addition to commercial organics recycling, SB 1383 will require all residents to separate

and recycle all organics. This law is extremely prescriptive and will require multiple
operational changes and new progrirms. This includes weekly collection of organics, an edible
food recovering program, mandated procurement of recycled organics, an enforceable

I

Page 45

02/23/2021 Item No.4.



ordinance and specific labeling of all waste and recycling containers. The enforcement is also

very prescriptive in nature requiring a specific level of monitoring and issuing of fines.

The Recycling Division does not have adequate staff to complete planning or ongoing
management of these mandates.

POLICY / RULE

Folsom Municipal Code Section 2.110rc states that "Pursuant to the Folsom City Charter, the
city manager shall recommend and the city council shall by ordinance create, reorganize and
abolish departments and divisions thereof as necessary for the effective management of the
city's affairs. Within the framework established by the Folsom City Charter and this chapter,

the city manager shall be responsible for determining the administrative functions and duties
of the various departments and in establishing divisions thereof as may be necessary or
appropriate. (Ord. 994 $ 2 (part),2003)"

ANALYSIS

The Solid Waste Division (SWD) is funded solely through an Enterprise Fund; the funding is
generated through residential and commercial ratepayers that subscribe to the services
provided by the Division. In 2018 the SWD undertook a ratestudy to address projected revenue

shortfalls due to the crash of the recycling market, increases in operating costs associated with
vehicles, personnel, and disposal, the increased staffing demands associated with AB 1826,

and the forecast of implementing the requirements under SB 1383. During that process, staff
was able to identifu some of the costs associated with SB 1383; however, the regulations were
not yet adopted and many of the cost impacts were still unknown and therefor not included in
the study.

SB 1383 is mandated to be enacted January 1,2022. The regulations associated with SB 1383

were finalizedinNovember 2020, which places an extraordinary burden on local agencies that
provide these services to plan, adopt policies, education/outreach to every customer, adjust
rates, revise operations, and implement the changes in thirteen (13) months. In order to
accomplish the required planning, policy adoptions, and education/outreach staff has identified
the immediate need for two (2) Sr. Environmental Specialist positions. The 2018 ratestudy
anticipated at least one position to address program needs related to AB 1826. In order to
address this need, staff is proposing to repurpose one vacant position currently in the budget
and add one additional position in Solid Waste for a total of 48.6 position.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The Sr. Environmental Specialist position already exists and is represented by the Folsom
Miscellaneous Employees (IUOE, Local 39). Each position salary is in the M-55 range with a
top-end salary of $86,969. The recommended City Council action will have no financial
impact upon the City General Fund. The addition of the Sr. Environmental Specialist position
will add approximately $43,000 to the Solid Waste (Fund 540). This will add the position for

2

Page 46

02/23/2021 Item No.4.



the last 4 months of the current fiscal year and both positions would then be included in the
Solid Waste Budget for Fiscal Year 2021-22.

To add this position, an additional appropriation in the amount of $43,000 will need to be

added in the Solid Waste Fund (Fund 540) and the position count would be increased from
47 .6 to 48.6

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action is exempt from environmental review under the California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA).

ATTACHMENT

1. Resolution No. 10589 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to add Two (2)
Senior Environmental Specialists Positions to the Solid Waste Recycling Division and
Appropriation of Funds

Submitted,

Dave Nugen, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

a
J

Page 47

02/23/2021 Item No.4.



RESOLUTION NO. 10589

A RESOLUTTON AUTHORTZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ADD TWO (2) SENIOR
ENVIRONMENTAL SPECIALISTS POSITIONS TO THE SOLID WASTE

RECYCLING DIVISION AND APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom Public Works Department Solid Waste Division
anticipates has been planning for the implementation of Senate Bill 1383, commonly referred to
as the Residential Organics Recycling Law; and

WHEREAS, the demands of ongoing un-funded State mandates such as Assembly Bill
1826 and Senate Bill 1383 have created increase demands on the Solid Waste Recycling
Division staffing to plan, implement, and provide the data tracking to be deemed in compliance
of these laws; and

WHEREAS, the growing community places additional demands on Solid Waste staff by
constantly adding additional customers and perform the necessary education and outreach
required under these laws; and

WHEREAS, Solid Waste Enterprise funds support the personnel costs for the
recommended addition of these one (1) Sr. Environmental Specialist position and the
repurposing of another vacant position to to address the requirements under AB 1826 and SB
1383; and

WHEREAS, the specialized knowledge of the solid waste industry and recycling laws,
accounting, reporting, and administration of the necessary recordkeeping require a Senior level
staffing to meet the requirements necessary to implement SB 1383; and

WHEREAS, the City Charter requires that any change to the annual budget, including
the addition of personnel positions, requires City Council approval; and

WHEREAS, an additional appropriation in the amount of $43,000 will be required, as

well as an increase to the position count ftom 47 .6 to 48.6 in the Solid Waste Fund (Fund 540):

NOW, THEREFORE' BE IT RESOLVED' that the City Council of the City of Folsom
hereby authorizes the addition of one(l), and the repurposing of another, Sr. Environmental
Specialist position in the Solid Waste Division of the Public Works Department, thereby
increasing the approved position count form 47.6 to 48.6.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Finance Director is hereby authorized to add
an additional appropriation in the amount of $34,000 to the Solid Waste Fund (Fund 540) in
Fiscal Year2020-21.

Resolution No. 10589
Page I of2

Page 48

02/23/2021 Item No.4.



PASSED AND ADOPTED this 23'd day of February 202l,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Council Member(s):

Council Member(s):

Council Member(s):

Council Member(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR
ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10589
Page2 of2 Page 49

02/23/2021 Item No.4.



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 50

02/23/2021 Item No.4.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends that the City Council pass

and adopt Resolution No. 10590 - A Resolution Authorizingthe City Manager to Execute the
Second Amendment to the Joint Powers Agreement between the City of Elk Grove, City of
Folsom, City of Rancho Cordova, City of Sacramento, and the County of Sacramento Creating
the Sacramento Central Groundwater Authority.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

On April 25,2006, the City Council approved Resolution No. 7786, a resolution endorsing the
concept of a Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) between the Cities of Elk Grove, Folsom,
Sacramento, and Rancho Cordova, and the County of Sacramento that would create the Central
Sacramento County Groundwater Management Authority, known as the Sacramento Central
Groundwater Authority (SCGA).

The City of Folsom has been directly involved in the development of the Central Sacramento
Groundwater Management Plan and the governance structure for the implementation of this
Management Plan. This activity was pursued as part of the City's participation under the Water
Forum Agreement (WFA), and this element of the WFA provided for the formation of a

groundwater management authority for the South American Subbasin (SASb) called the

1

MEETING DATE: 21231202r

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10590 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute the Second Amendment to the Joint Powers
Agreement between the City of Elk Grove, City of Folsom, City
of Rancho Cordova, City of Sacramento, and the County of
Sacramento Creating the Sacramento Central Groundwater
Authority

F'ROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

Page 51

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



Sacramento Central Groundwater Authority (SCGA). SASb is within arr area south of the

American River within the County of Sacramento.

The SCGA was established on August 29, 2006 pursuant to the Joint Exercise of Powers Act
by agreement of the Cities of Elk Grove, Folsom, Rancho Cordova, and Sacramento, and the

County of Sacramento to regulate groundwater by a collaborative process composed of
stakeholders in the Central Sacramento County Groundwater Basin ("Central Basin") and to

develop and implement a groundwater management plan; to promote the use of groundwater

resources within the Central Basin for agriculture and municipal and industrial uses in the

public interest and for the common benefit of all water users within the County of Sacramento.

POLICY / RULE

As a signatory to a JPA Agreement for the formation of the SCGA, it is necessary for the City
Council to approve by resolution authority for the Mayor to execute the JPA Agreement.

ANALYSIS

The JPA Agreement identifies SCGA's governing body as a Board of Directors of sixteen (16)

members representing various public agencies and interests.

The JPA was first amended in20l7 to allow the Florin Resources Conservation DistricVElk
Grove Water Service, the Omochumne-Hartnell Water District, and the Rancho Murieta
Community Services District to appoint a designated employee to the SCGA Governing Board.

ln2014, the state signed into law the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA).
SGMA aims for local and regional agencies to develop and implement Groundwater
Sustainability Plans (GSP). The formation of a GSP required coordination with all of the
individual Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAs) within SASb. Through this
coordination, a memorandum of understanding (MOU) was developed between all GSA that

ultimately resulted in a need for the SCGA JPA to be amended.

SCGA desires to amend the JPA for the second time to incorporate adjustment of SCGA's
boundaries, change in governing board membership based on the boundary adjustments,

modifr its governing board membership eligibility criteria, and update technical definitions.
The SCGA Board took formal action on August 12,2020 recommending approval of the
Second Amendment to the Agreement. Any amendment of the JPA requires the affirmative
vote of all governing bodies of the five signatory agencies. Adoption of this resolution will
avthoize the City Council to approve the second JPA amendment.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

2

There is no significant financial impact.

Page 52

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



1

2

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action is exempt from environmental review under Section 15320 of the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) as the project consists of changes in the organization of
local govemmental agencies. A Notice of Exemption will be filed with the County Clerk after
the City Council adopts the resolution authorizing the execution of the JPA.

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No. 10590 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the
Second Amendment to the Joint Powers Agreement between the City of Elk Grove,
City of Folsom, City of Rancho Cordova, City of Sacramento, and the County of
Sacramento Creating the Sacramento Central Groundwater Authority

SCGA Board of Directors Approval of JPA Amendments to Signatory Agencies
August 12,2020 Agenda Item#7.

3. SCGA JPA 2nd Amendment Proposed Revisions - CLEAN version.

Submitted,

Marcus Yasutake, Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

J
Page 53

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



AfiACHMENT 1

Page 54

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



RESOLUTION NO. 10590

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE
SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE
CITY OF ELK GROVE, CITY OF FOLSOM' CITY OF RANCHO CORDOVA, CITY

OF SACRAMENTO, AND THE COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO CREATING THE
SACRAMENTO CENTRAL GROUNDWATER AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, the Sacramento Central Groundwater Authority ("SCGA") was established

on August 29,2006 pursuant to the Joint Exercise of Powers Act (Chapter 5 (commencing with
Section 6500) of Division 7 of Title I of the California Government Code) by agreement of the

County of Sacramento and the cities of Elk Grove, Folsom, Rancho Cordova, and Sacramento

("Parties") to regulate groundwater by a collaborative process composed of stakeholders in the

Central Sacramento County Groundwater Basin ("Central Basin") and to develop and implement
a Groundwater Sustainability Plan ("GSP") to promote the use of groundwater resources within
the Central Basin for agricultural and municipal and industrial uses in the public interest and for
the common benefit of all water users within the County of Sacramento ("Agreement"); and

WHEREAS, the Agreement identifies SCGA's governing body representing various
public agencies and interests, sets the boundaries managed by SCGA, ffid sets membership
criteria; and

WHEREAS' SCGA desires to amend the Agreement for the second time to incorporate
adjustment of SCGA's boundaries, change in governing board membership based on the boundary

adjustments, modiff its governing board membership eligibility criteria, and update technical
definitions; and

WHEREAS, SCGA's Board took formal action on August 12, 2020 recommending

approval of the Second Amendment to the Agreement; and

WHEREAS any amendment of the Agreement requires the affirmative vote of all
governing bodies of the Parties;

NOW, THEREFORE' BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

authorizes the City Manager to Execute the Second Amendment to the Joint Powers Agreement

between the City of Elk Grove, City of Folsom, City of Rancho Cordova, City of Sacramento, and

the County of Sacramento creating the Sacramento Central Groundwater Authority.

Resolution No. 10590
Page I of2 Page 55

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



PASSED AND ADOPTED this 23'd day of February 202l,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES: Councilmember(s):

NOES: Councilmember(s):

ABSENT: Councilmember(s):

ABSTAIN: Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10590
Page2 of2 Page 56

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 57

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



APPROVED
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

,,oWbbrlwiloq4,
Clerk of the Board

AGENDA ITEM 7: AMENDMENTS TO SCGA JOINT POWERS
AGREEMENT

BACKGROUNDI

With the passage of the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA),
a number of public agencies within the South American Subbasin elected to
become Groundwater Sustainability Agencies. These included SCGA,
Omochumne-Haftnell Water District (OHWD), Sloughhouse Resource
Conservation District (SRCD), and a number of Reclamation Districts in the
southwestern (Delta) portion of the Subbasin. Where there were
overlapping jurisdictions, Depaftment of Water Resources could not
recognize an exclusive Groundwater Sustainability Agency as required under
SGMA.

The overlapping areas were resolved through a Memorandum of
Understanding among five parties, resulting in a reduction of the area
administered by SCGA under SGMA. The proposed amendments to the Joint
Powers Agreement (JPA) reflect these boundary changes and other related
modifications, which include removing the areas overlain by OHWD (with the
exception of the Kiefer Landfill), Rancho Murieta Community Services
District, and a portion of SRCD, with corresponding changes to the
composition of the SCGA Board of Directors. Additionally, the nominating
language for the Conservation Landowner representative is changed to
reflect some land in OHWD being outside the modified SCGA boundary.
Following approval by the SCGA Board of Directors, the JPA amendments will
be forwarded to the JPA Signatories (County of Sacramento, Cities of
Folsom, Rancho Cordova, Elk Grove and Sacramento) for action.

STAFF RECOM M EN DATIO-N :

Recommend adoption of JPA amendmenfs to signatory agencies.

Page 58

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



Kev ro SCGA JPA Proposed Revisions Summary For August 12,2020 Meeting

The below table lists the proposed revisions to the JPA based on adjustments to SCGA's
boundaries and impacts to membership based on those adjustments. Sections
highlighted in yellow in the attached draft JPA include added language or changes to
existing language. Redline indicates that section is completely deleted. The language in
blue on Page 7, Section 5(b), reflects the revision incorporated from the First Amendment
to the JPA adopted in 2017. The revisions also include technical updates to the
identification of the subbasin.

Pages 1-3, WHEREAS Section
Language added:

. Added a WHEREAS
acknowledging the previous
amendment.

. Added a WHEREAS stating the
reason for this amendment, the
scope of the changes, and impact
on membership.

. Revised several WHEREAS
sections updating the technical
description of the subbasin.

. Added a WHEREAS to include
SCGA becominq a GSA.

Pages 4-5, Section 2
Section (c), revised to reflect
"Central Basin" is now within SASb
and corrected throughout
definitions section and the
agreement.
Section (e), revised conservation
landowner fee or easement
interests to 1500 acres or more
(reduced from 2500).

a

Page 6, Section 4
Original language describing the SCGA
boundary deleted and new boundary
language added.

Page 7, Section 5
Due to the boundary adjustment, the
number of Board members reduced to '14

Page 7, Section 5(b)
Omochumne Hartnell Water District and
Rancho Murieta Community Services
District deleted as no longer within
SCGA's boundaries; EG Service changed
to District.

L

Page 59

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



Page 10, Section 7(a)(ix)4.
Language revised to change conservation
landowner fee or easement interests to
1500 acres or more (reduced from 2500).

Pages 10-11, Sections 7(aXix)s. and 7.
Omochumne Hartnell Water District and
Rancho Murieta Community Services
District deleted as no longer within
SCGA's boundaries,

Page 12, Section B (c)
Because the Board membership is
reduced to 14, the voting requirements for
changes in annualcontributions need to
be adiusted to 10 out of 14.

2

Page 60

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE JOINT PO1VERS AGREENIENT
BET1VEEN THE CITY OF ELK GROVE, THE CITY OF FOLSOM, THE
CITY OF RANCHO CORDOVAT THE CITY OF SACRAIVIENTO AND
THE COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO CREATING THE SACRAMENTO

CENTRAL GROUNDWATER AUTHORITY

This Second Amendment to the Joint Powers Agreement ("Second

Amendment") is made and entered into this _ day of 20N6,by
and between the City of Elk Grove, a municipal corporation, the City of Folsom, a

municipal corporation, the City of Rancho Cordova, a municipal corporation, the

City of Sacramento, a municipal corpomtion, and the County of Sacramento, a

poiitical subdivision of the State of Califomia.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, each of the parties to this Agreement is a local government

entity functioning within the County of Sacramento; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Joint Exercise of Powers Act (Chapter 5

(commencing'vvith Section 6500) of Division 7 of Title I of the Califomia

Government Code), two or more public agencies nray by agreenent jointly

exercise any power held in common by the agencies entering into such an

agrccment; and

WHEREAS. the Parties approved and fully executed the First Amendment

to this Joint Powers Aereement on April2l. 2017 allowine non-elected staffof

three Authority member entities to be nominated and appointed as Authority Board

members:

WHEREAS. the Parties desire to further amend the Joint Powers Agreement

to incorporate adjustrnent of the Authoritv's boundaries. chanee in goveming

board membership based on the boundarv adjustments. modification to govemine

board membership elieibiliw criteria. and updated technical definitions:

Page 61

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



IVHEREAS, each of the parties hereto has under its police power the

authority to regulate groundwater; and

WHEREAS, the parties are cognizant of the process commonly refered to

as the Sacramento Area Water Forum (Water Fonrm) and of the Water Forum

Agreement (WFA); and

WHEREAS, the WFA provided for the creation of a collaborative process

composed of stakeholders in the Cen8al Sacramento County Groundwater BasirU

then known as the South Basin h$-AgIujdg4!fi9d-as the Sacramento Valle.v -

South American Subbasin (State Department of Water Resources Groundwater

Basin ID 5-021.65). also abbreviated herein as SASb. to develop a groundwater

management plan (GMP) for the basin and make recommendations on how and by

whom the basin should be managed and the GMP implemented; and

WHEREAS, in accordance r,vith the provisions of the WFA, the Sacramento

Area Water Fonun Successor Efforl convened such a collaborative process, known

as the Central Sacramento County Groundwater Forum (CSCGF); and

WHEREAS, the CSCGF has completed its work on the GMP and

recommended the establishment of a joint powers authority to manage the basin

and implement the plan; and

WHEREAS, the parties hereto find that it is to their muhral advantage and

benefit, and in the public interest, to establish such an authority pursuant to this

Agreement in order to implement the GMP developed by the CSCGF; and

IVHEREAS, the parties hereto find and declare that the conservation of

groundwater resources within the SASb Cen*al€asi*-for agricultural and

2

Page 62

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



municipal and industrial uses is in the public interest and for the common benefit

of all lvater users within the County of Sacramento; and

WHEREAS, one of the primary purposes of the joint powers authority

established pursuant to this Agreement is to maintain the sustainable yield of the

C€n*rat+€3insAsh as set fofth in the GMP; and

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the parties hereto to use the gronndrvater

management powers r,vhich they have in cotnmon that are necessary and

appropriate to further the purposes for rvhich the joint powers authority is being

established; and

WHEREAS. to accomplish the above stated goals and pur@ses. the

sacramento central Groundwater Authoritv (scGA) elected. by Resolution 2016-

06. to become the Groundwater Sustainabilitv Aeencv (GSA) pursuant to the

Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (.SGMA) for a portion of the

eroundwater subbasin overlyine the Countv of Sacramento within the SASb and

fudher identified as SCGA GSA. graphicallLdepicted in Exhibit A and

incorporated herein to this Asreement.

WHEREAS, the parties hereto may amend this Agreernent in the future to

incorporate changes that may be the result of discussions with other public

agencies both inside and otttside the County of Sacramento lvhich have a specific

and relevant interest in the SASt€en*ralBasin.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises, tenns, conditions,

and covenants contained herein, the City of Elk Grove, the City of Folsom, the

City of Rancho Cordova, and the City of Sacramento and the Counry of
Sacrarnento hereby agree as follows:

Page 63

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



1. Incornoration ofRecitals. The foregoing recitals are hereby

incorporated by reference.

2. Definitions. As used in this Agreement, the follorving words and

phrases shall have the meanings set forth below unless the context clearly indicates

othenvise.

(a) "Authority" shall mean the Sacramento Central Groundwater

Authority that is established pursuant to the Joint Polvers Act and this

Agreement.

(b) "Conjunctive use" shall mean the planned management and use of

both groundwater and surface rvater in order to maintain the sustainable

yield of the Sns-Ugenmfes3in.

(c) 'QlSbGen*al9srh" shall mean Sacramento Vallev - South

American Subbasin (State Departnent of Water Resources Groundwater

Basin ID 5-021.65

@.
(d) "Sustainable yield" shall mean the amount of groundwater lvhich can

be safely extracted from the gen*at+a*inSASb on an estimated average

annual basis while maintaining gronndwater elevations and groundlvater

quality at acceptable levels as set forth in the Gror.rndwater Management

Plan. Sustainable yield requires a balance between extraction and basin

recharge and is expressed as the number ofacre feet ofgroundlvater per year

which can be extracted from the Ces@SASb on an average annual

basis as set forth in the GMP.

4

Page 64

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



(e) "Conservation land ownet''shall mean a non-profit land trust holding

a fee or easement interest in onee*e thousand five hundred (13500) acres or

more of land located within the boundaries of the Authority, as defined in

Section 4 below.

(0 "Annual pumping" for purposes of determining assessments, fees or

charges for management and operations of the Authority shall mean the total

amount of groundwater produced within the boundaries of the Authority by

each retail provider, by agricultural interests, by agricultural-residential

gronndrvater users, by commercial/industrial self-supplied groundwater

users and by public agency self-supplied groundwater users, for use within

the boundaries of the Authority and other areas-approved by the Authority's

Board of Directors excluding the first five thousand (5000) acre-feet of

groundwater pumping by each such user.

(g) "GMP" means the Central Sacramento Groundwater Management

Plan produced by the Central Sacramento County Groundlvater Forum and

dated February 2006.

3. Purpose. This Agreement is being entered into in order to establish a

joint porvers authoriry for the following purposes:

(a) to maintain the long-terrn sustainable yield of the SASt€er#alBesin;

(b) to ensurc implementation of the Basin Management Objectives that

are prescribed by the GMP;

(c) to oversee the operation of any Well Protection Program that may be

prescribed by the GMP;

5

Page 65

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



(d) to manage the use of groundrvater within the boundaries of the

Authority €entrgl+€sin and facilitate implernentation of an appropriate

conjunctive use program by lvater purveyors;

(e) to coordinate efforts among those entities represented on the

governing body of the joint powers authority to devise and implement

strategies to safeguard groundwater quality; and

(D to rvork collaboratively lvith other entities, including the Sacramento

Groundwater Authority, the Southeast Sacramento County Agriculture

Water Authority and other groundwater management authorities that may be

formed in the County of Sacramento and adjacent political jurisdictions, in

order to promote coordination of policies and activities throughout the

region.

4. Establishment Of The Authoritv. There is hereby established

prlrsuant to the Joint Exercise of Powers Act a joint polvers authority r.vhich shall

be a public entity separate from the parties to this Agreement. The name of such

entity shall be the Sacramento Central Groundrvater Authority. The boundaries of

the Authority shall be as follorvs: That oortion of the Sacramento Valley South

American Subbasin (Easin 5-21.65) bounded on the north by the American River:

bounded on the south by the Cosumnes River to the intersection with State

Hishway 99. Grantline Road to the intersection with Jackson Hiehwav. and the

southern boundary of Kiefer Landfill: on the west by the Sacramento River and

Interstate 5. and on the east bv the Sacramento Countv Urban Services Boundarv.

as further and more orecisely depicted in the boundary map. attached hereto and

incorporated herein as Exhibit A.

6

Page 66

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



west by the Saeremente River and Interstate 5 and en the east by the Saerarente

5. Membership Of The Governins Board. The governing body of the

Authority shall be a Board of Directors of fourteeue&rtees (1{6) members

consisting of the follorving representatives who shall be appointed in the manner

set forth in Section 7 of this Agreement:

(a) An elected member of the goveming board or designated employee of each

of the following public agencies: the City of Elk Grove, the City of Folsom, the

City of Rancho Cordova, the City of Sacramento, the County of Sacramento and

the Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District.

(b) An elected member of the governing board es€h

@iesitheFlorinResourceConservationDistrict/Elk
Grove Water SeffissDiskict.r the gme€humns Hafte

(c) A member of the board of directors, or designee thereof, of each of the

follor,ving private lvater purveyors or investor owned utilities the Califomia-

American Water Company, and the Golden State Water Company.

(d) One representative of agricultural interests within the boundaries of the

Authority.

Commented [SJl]: Just a note, this
language was added by the First JPA
Amendment.

7

Page 67

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



(e) One representative of agriculture-residential groundwater users within the

boundaries of the Authority.

(0 One representative of commercialiindustrial self-supplied groundwater users

within the boundaries of the Authority.

(g) One representative of conservation landowners within the boundaries of the

Authority.

(h) One representative of public agencies that are self-supplied groundwater

users within the boundaries of the Authority.

6. Adiustment Tq Comnosition Of Governing Board. Should

circumstances change in the future, any person or entity may petition the parties

hereto to amend this Agreement so as to add or delete representatives to the

goveming board to accurately reflect grourdwater procluction within the

boundaries of the Arilhority.

7. Apnointment Of Members Of Governins Board.

(a) The members of the governing board of the Authority shall be

appointed as follows:

(i) The City of Elk Grove representative shall be appointed by the

Elk Grove City Council,

(i0 Tho City of Folsom representative shall be appointed by the

Folsom City Coruioil.

(iir) The City of Rancho Cordova representative shall be appointed

by the Rancho Cordova City Cowrcil.

(1v) The City of Sacramento representative shall be appointed by the

Sacramento City Council.

8

Page 68

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



(v) The Counly of Sacramento representative shall be appointed by

the Sacramento County Board of Supervisors ("Board").

(vi) The Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water

Service representative shall be appointed by the Elk Grove Cify

Council.

(vii) The Golden State Water Company representative shall be

appointed by the Rancho Cordova City Council.

(viii) TheCalifornia-AmericanWaterCompanyrepresentative

shall be appointed by the Sacramento County Board of Supervisors.

(ix) In addition to the representative of the County of
Sacramento provided for in Section 7 (a)(v), the following

representatives shall be appointed by the Board:

1. Agricultural interests. After considering the nomination

by the Saclamento County Farm Bureau, as required by

sub-section (b) of this Section, the Board shall appoint

the representative of agricultural interests.

2. Agriculture-residentialgroundlvaterusers.After

considering the nomination by the Vineyard Commr"rnity

Advisory Council in consultation with adjacent Councils

within the SAStr€enealSasin, as required by sub-section

(b) of this Section, the Board shall appoint the

representative of agricultural/ residential groundr.vater

users.

9

Page 69

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



3. Commercial/industrial self-supplied groundwater users.

After eonsidering the joint nomination by the Sacramertto

Metopolitan Chamber of Commerce and the Building

Industry Association in consultation with

commerciaUindustrial self-supplied groundwater users

ard business organizations that are signatories to the

Water Forum Agreement, as required by sub-section (b)

of this Section, the Board shall appoint the representative

of commerciaUindustrial self-supplied g[oundwaler users.

iag

l0

4.

5.

Page 70

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



6. Public agencies that are self-supplied groundwater users.

After considering the nomination by the Southgate

Recreation and Park District in consultation with other

public agencies which are self-supplied groundwater

users, as required by sub-section (b) ofthis Section, the

Board shall appoint the representative ofpublic agencies

that are self-supplied gronndlvater users,

7. ean*e ltlurieta genun**ry Sery

ien

Se*ieesDistdet

8. Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District. After

considering the nomination by the Sacramento Regional

County Sanitation District, as required by sub-section (b)

of this Section, the Board shall appoint the representative

of the Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District.

(b) Prior to the appointment of the representatives of the entities

described in subsections (a)(vi) through (a)(ix) above, those entities shall

submit a recommended appointment for their respective representatives to

the appointing authority identified in subsections (a)(vi) through (a)(ix) of

this Section 7. The appointing authority shall give consideration to such

recornmendations, but shall retain the absolute discretion to appoint any

ll

Page 71

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



person satisfying the criteria for appointment set forth in Section 5 of this

Agreement.

8. Governing Board Voting Requirements.

(a) Each member of the governing board of the Authority shall have one

vote. With the exception of fiscal items as set forth in subsections (b) and

(c) below, an affirmative vote by a majority of all members of the governing

board is required to approve any item related to implementation of the

Groundwater Management Plan.

(b) Fiscal items, including, but not limited to, approval of the annual

budget of the Authority and any expenditures, shall require an affirmative

vote by a majority of all the members of the governing board that includes

affirmative votes by all of the representatives of the Cities of Elk Grove,

Folsom, Rancho Cordova and Sacramento and the County of Sacramento.

(c) Any change in annual contributions necessary to support the lvork of

the Authority as set forth in subsection (d) below, shall require an

affirmative vo0e oflggelsven of tte fourteem#€€e-_members of the

governing board that includes affirmative votes by all of the representatives

of the Cities of Elk Grove, Folsom, Rancho Cordova and Sacramento and

the County of Sacramento.

(d) The Authority shall initially be funded as follows:

(i) An annual contribution by the Cities of Elk Grove, Folsom,

Rancho Cordova and Sacramento and the County of

Sacmmento in the arnount of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00)

each. (These entities shall not be required to pay any additional

l2

Page 72

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



fee or assessrnent, such as that described in subsection (d)(ii)

below.)

(ii) An annual contribution by each of those water purveyors

represented on the Governing Board, other than the entities

listecl in subsection (d)(i) above, that purvey surface water in

the amount of six thousand dollars ($6,000.00).

(iir) An annual contribution by each of those water purveyors

represented on the Governing Board, other than the entities

listed in subsection (d)(i) above, that utilize groundwater,

calculated at the rate of two dollars and seven cents ($2.07) per

acre foot ofgroundwater pumped from the basin, averaged over

the three previous years and excluding the fnst fi.ve thousand

(5000) acre feet pumped in each ofthose years,

(rg An annual contribution by agriculture computed at twenty five

percent Q5%) of the estimated annual pumping (as deterrninod

by the Sacramento County Water Agency) at the rate of two

dollars and seven cents

($2.07) per acre foot and paicl out of SCWA Zone l3 firncls.

(v) An annual contribution by agriculture/residential groundwater

users computed at twenty five percent (25%) of the estimated

annual pumping (as determined by the Sacramento County

Water Agency) at the rate of two dollars and seven cents

($2.07) psr acre foot andpaid out of SCWA Zone 13 flrnds.

13

Page 73

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



(vr) All annual funds shall be paid by July 1 of each year,

commencing on July I , 2006. The annual fee for the first year

after the effective date of this Agreement shall be prorated from

. the date ofthe last signatory approval establishing the

Authority.

(") The goveming board of the Authority may, at its cliscretion, adjust

the funding contributions set forth in sub-section (d) above, subject to compliance

with the voting requirements prescribed in sub-section (c) above.

9. Ouorum. A majority of the members of the governing board shall

constitute a quonrm for purposes oftransacting business, except less than a quorum

may vote to adjourn a meeting.

10. Terms Of Office. With the exception of the initial term of the

representatives appointed by the County of Sacramento as described in Section 7

(aXi"), the term of office of each member of the goveming board the Authority

shall be for a period of four (4) years, For the purpose ofproviding staggered

terms of office, the term of the initial representatives appointed by the County of

Sacramento as described in Section 7 (a)(ix) shall be for a period of two (2) years.

Thereafter, the term of office of each representative appointecl by the County of

Sacramento as described in Section 7 (a)(ix) shall be for a period of four (4) years.

Each member of the goveming board shall serve at the pleasure of the appointing

body and may be removed as a member of the goveming board by the appointing

body at any time, \f al any time a vacancy occurs on the governing board, a

replacement shall be appointed to fiIl the unexpired term of the previous

14

Page 74

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



representative pursuant to the provisions of Section 7 of this Agreement within

ninety (90) days of the date that such position beoomes vacant.

11. Alternates. The City of Elk Grove, the City of Folsom, the City of

Rancho Cordov4 the City of Sacramento and the County of Sacramento, in

addition to their regular appointments, shall appoint one or more persons with the

required qualifications to serve as alternate members of the governing board of the

Authority. The other entities describsd in Section 7 (a) (vi) through (a) (ix), which

may nominate their respective representatives, may also nominate one or more

peruons with the required qualifications to serve as alternate members of the

governing board of the Authority and such alternates shall be appointed pursuant to

the procedure for regular appointments set forth in Section 7(b) of this Agreement.

Any such alternates who are appointed as altemates by the appointing authorities

specified in Section 7(a)(vi) through (a)(ix) shall be empowered to cast votes in the

absence of the regular members or, in the event of a conflict of interest preventing

the regular member from voting, to vote because of such a conflict of interest.

12. Orsanization Of The Authoritv. The governing board of the

Authority shall elect achait, a vice chair and such other officers as the goveming

board shall find appropriate. Such officers shall serve for a term of one (1) year

unless sooner tenninated at the pleasure ofthe governing board.

13. Treasurer. Controller. -Cjerkgnd Leqql Counsel.

(a) The County of Sacramento Director of Finance shall act as treasruer and

controller for the Authority, The controller of the Authority shall cause an

independent annual audit of the Authority's finances to be made by a certified

public accountant in compliance with Government Code Section 6505. The

t5

Page 75

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



treasurer of the Authority shall be the depositor and shall have custody of all

money of the Authority from whatever source. The controller of the Authority

shall draw warrants to pay demands against the Authority when the demands have

been approved.by the Authority or by its authorized representative pursuant to any

delegation of authority adopted by the Authority. The treasurer and controller shall

comply shictly with the provisions of statutes relatiug to their duties found in

Chapter 5 (commencing with Section 6500) of Division 7 of Title 1 of the

Govemment Code.

(b) The goveming board of the Authority shall appoint a clerk and legal counsel

as it deems appropriate.

t4. Executivelirector. The governing board of the Authority, with the

concunence of the Sacramento County Water Agency, shall appoint an Executive

Director who shall be responsibie to the goveming board for the proper and

efficient adminisfiation of the Authority as directecl by the governing board

pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement or of any ordinance, resolution or

order of the governing board, In addition to any other duties which may be

assigned, the Executive Director shall have the following authority:
\(a) under the policy direction ofthe governing board, to plan, organize

and direct all Authority activities;

(b) to authorize expendihres within the designations and limitations of
the budget approved by the goveming board;

(c) to make recommendations to and requests of the governing board

concerning any matter which is to be performed, done or carried out by the

governing boarcl;

t6

Page 76

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



(d) to have the authority to appoint, discipline, assign and otherwise

supervise and control the activities of any employees or contractors rvhich

may be hired or retained by the Authority; and

(e) to have charge of, handle and have access to any property ofthe

Authority.

15. Meetinqs. The Authority shall provide for regular and special

meetings in accordance with the Ralph M. Brolvn Act (Chapter 9 (commencing

with Section 54950) of Part I of Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code) or

u,ith any successor provision.

16. Minutes. The clerk appointed by the goveming body of the Authority

shall cause to be kept minutes of all meetings of the governing board, and shall

cause a copy of such minutes to be forwarded to each member of the governing

board and to the chief administrative officer of each of the signatory agencies.

17. Porvers and Functions.

(a) The Authority shall have no power to regulate land use or to engage in

the retail sale of water.

(b) Subject to the limitations set forth in subsection (a), the Authority

shall have any and allpowers commonly held by the parties hereto necessary

or appropriate to regulate groundwater within the boundaries of the

Authority including, but not limited to, the following powers:

(D Collect and monitor data on the extraction of groundr.vater

from, and the quality of groundwater in, the SASb€easalAasin;

t7

Page 77

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



(ii) Facilitate any Conjunctive Use program the purpose of which is

to maintain the Sustainable yields in the SASb€sn#al€eeh

consistent with the_GMP;

(iiD Distribute water in exchange for ceasing or reducing

groundwater extractions ;

(iv) Spread, sink and inject water into the $A$lGontreBasia;

(v) Store, transport, recapture, recycle, purifl, treat or otherwise

manage and control water for the beneficial use of persons and

property within the Authority;

(vi) Snrdy and plan ways and means to implement any or all of the

foregoing polvers.

(c) For purposes ofexercising the authority set forth in subsection (b),

and subject to the limitations set forth in subsection (a), the Authority shall

have the follolving corporate and political polvers:

(i) To sue and be sued in all actions and proceedings in all courts

and tribunals.

(it To adopt a seal and alter it at its discretion.

(iii) For the common benefit of the Authority, to store water in

underground water basins or reservoirs within and outside the

Authorify, to appropriate tvater and acquire water rights within or

outside the Authority, to impofi rvater into the Authority, and to

consere, or cause the conservation of, water within or outside the

Authority.

l8

Page 78

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



(iv) To act jointly, or cooperate, with the Federal government or any

agency thereof, the state, or any county or agency thereof, or any

political subdivision or district therein, including flood control

districts, private and public corporations, and any person, so that the

powers of the Authority may be fully and economically exercised.

(v) To cause taxes, assessments, fees or charges to be levied in

accordance with applicable State law, and in a manner consistent with

the GMP to accomplish the purposes of the Authority,

(vi) To require the permitting of groundrvater extraction facilities

within the boundaries of the Authority, to maintain a record of
extraction with respect to any such facilities, and to require the

installation of meters on groundwater extraction facilities for the

pulpose of determining the amount of groundwater being extracted

from the SA$besaftl-B,a$h.

(vii) To make contracts, employ labor and to do all acts necessary

for the full exercise of the Authority's powers.

(viii) To cany on technical and other investigations of all kincls

necessary to ftirther the purposes of the Authority.

(ix) To fix rates at which water acquired by the Authority shall be

sold for replenishment purposes, and to establish different rates for

different classes of service or conditions of service, provided that the

rates shall be uniform for like classes and conditions of service.

(x) To participate in any contract under which producers may

voluntarily agree to use surface water in lieu of groturdwater, and to

l9

Page 79

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



that end the Authority may become a party to the contract and pay

from Authority ftlnds that portion of the cost of the surface water as

will encourage the purchase and use of that water in lieu of pumping

so long as persons or property within the boundaries of the Authority

are directly or indirectly benefitted by the resulting replenishment of
the SASb€en*el4asin.

(xi) To apply for, accept and receive state, federal or local licenses,

permits, grants, loans or other aid from any agency of the United

States, the State of California, or other public or private entity

necessary or appropriate for the Authority's full exercise of its

polvers.

18. Budgets. Within ninety (90) days after the first meeting of the

governing board of the Authority, and thereafter prior to the commencement of
each fiscal year (defined as July 1 through June 30), the governing board shall

adopt a budget for the Authority for the ensuing fiscal year.

19. Adoption of the Central Sacramento Countv Groundrvater

Manasement Plan. Within sixty (60) days after the first meeting of the goveming

board of the Atrthority, the goveming board shall consider for adoption the central

sacramento county Groundwater Management Plan (cscGMP) negotiated by the

Central Sacramento County Groundwater Fomm and dated February, 2006. The

goverring board of the Arilhorify may revise the CSCGMP subsequent to its

adoption as it deems appropriate.

20, Implementation of the Well Protection Program. In order to

facilitate the implementation of the well Protection Program described in the

20

Page 80

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



Central Sacramento County Groundwater Management Plan, within sixty (60) days

after the first meeting of the governing board of the Authority, the governing board

shall submit to each of the entities who are signatories to this Agreement, and who

have land use authority for areas within the boundaries of the Authority where new

development will or may be served by groundwater, a draft Well Protection Plan

ordinance to consider for adoption.

2I. Termination. This Agreement shall remain in effect until terminated

by one of the parties hereto pursuant to this section. This Agreement may be

terminated by any of the parties hereto at any time and for any reason by providing

ninety (90) days written notice of termination to the other parties,

22. Disposition Of Authoritv Assets Upon Termination.

(a) In the event of the termination of the Authority where there will be a

successor public entity which will carry on the functions of the Authoriiy

and assume its assets, the assets of the Authority shall be transferred to the

successor public entity.

(b) If there is no successor public entity which will cany on the functions

of the Authority and assume its assets, the assets shall be rehrmed to the

parties hereto in proporfion to the contribution of each party during the term

of this Agreement.

(c) If there is a successor public entity which will carry on some of the

functions of the Authority and assume somo of its assets, the assets of the

Authority shall be allocated by the governing board of the Authority

between the successor public entity and the parties hereto.

2t

Page 81

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



23. Liabilities. The debts, liabilities and obligations of the Authority

shall be the debts, liabilities and obligations of the Authority alone, and not of the

parties to this Agreement.

24. Rules. The governing board of the Authority may adopt from time to

time such rules and regulations for the concluct of its affairs as it deems necessary

and appropriate.

25, Effective Date. This agreement and the Authority createdunder it
shall become effective when the governjng bodies of all of the parties shall have

authorizecl its execution.

26. Amendments. This Agreement may only be amended by the

afiirmative vote of the governing bodies of all of the parties hereto.

28. Liberal Construction. The provisions of this Agreement shall be

liberally construed as necessary or reasonably convenient to achieve the purposes

of the Authority.

, 29. Liabilitv of Board. Officers and Emplovees.

(a) The members of the Board, officers, and employees of the Authority

shall use ordinary care and reasonable diligence in the exercise oftheir

powers, and in the performance of their duties pursuant to this Agreement.

They shall not be liable to the parties to this Agreement for of any mistake of
judgment or other action made, taken, or omittecl by them in good faith, nor

for any action made, taken, or omitted by any agent, employee, or

independent contractor selected with reasonable care, nor for loss incurred

through the investment of the Authority's funds, or failure to invest the

same.

22

Page 82

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



&) To the extent authorized by California law, no member of the Board,

officer, or employee of the Authority shall be responsible for any action

made, taken, or omitted by any other member of the Board, officer, or

employee. No member of the Board, officer, or employee of the Authority

shall be required to give a bond or other secruity to guarantee the faithfrrl

performance of his or her duties pursuant to this Agreement.

(c) The funds of the Authority shall be used to defend, inclemnify, and

hold hanniess the Authority and any member of the Board, officor, or

employee of the Authority for actions taken in good faith and within the

scope of his or her authority. Nothing herein shall limit the right of the

Authority to purchase insurance or to create a self-insurance mechanism to

provide coverage for the foregoing indemnity.

30, Notice{. Any notices to the parties required by this Agreement shall

be delivered or mailed, United States Mail first class, postage prepaid, addressed as

follows:

flnsert Each Party's and Counsel's Name]

Notices given uncler this Agreement shall be deemed to have been received

at the earlier of actual receipt, or the second. business day following deposit in the

united States mail, as requirecl above. Any party may amend its address for notice

by noti$ring the other parties pursuant to this Section.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto execute this Agreement on
the date first

r,vritten above.

23

Page 83

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



lsrcNATr_rRE PAGEFOR CITIES OF ELK GROVE, FOLSOM,
RANCHO CORDOVA, AND SACRAMENTO, AND COIINTY OF
SACRAMENTOI

24

Page 84

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



Exhibit A

Exhibit A - South American Subbasin
Groundwater Sustainability Agency
(CSAI Boundaries
(DRAFT-August 4 20201

Legend

i: j South-American-su bbasin

USB_transform

KieferJranform

Fran kl ln_Drain age_District_GSA

ffi Reclamation-District-No.-1 002-GSA

ffi Reclamation-Dlstrlct-No.-2 1 1 0

ffi Reclamation-District-No.-869-GSA

ffi Reclamation-District-No.-551-GSA

ffi Reclamation-District-No.-74,4-GSA

ffi Reclamation-District-No.-755-GSA

ffi Rectamation-District-No.-8 1 3-GSA

m scGA-soAm

I oHWD-soAm

SRCD_SoAm

i I saccoedit

I

Page 85

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



ATTACHMENT 3

Page 86

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE
cITy oF ELK GROVE, THE CrrY OF FOLSOM, THE CITY OF RANCHO

coRDovAr THE CITY OF SACRAMENTO AND THE COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO
CREATING THE SACRAMENTO CENTRAL GROUNDWATER AUTHORITY

This Second Amendment to the Joint Powers Agreement ("Second Amendment") is

made and entered into this _ day of 2020,by and between the City of Elk

Grove, a municipal corporation, the City of Folsom, a municipal corporation, the City of Rancho

Cordova, a municipal corporation, the City of Sacramento, a municipal corporation, and the

County of Sacramento, a political subdivision of the State of California.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, each of the parties to this Agreement is a local government entity

functioning within the County of Sacramento; and

WHEREAS' pursuant to the Joint Exercise of Powers Act (Chapter 5 (commencing with

Section 6500) of Division 7 of Title 1 of the California Govemment Code), two or more public

agencies may by agreement jointly exercise any power held in common by the agencies entering

into such an agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Parties approved and fully executed the First Amendment to this Joint

Powers Agreement on April 2I,2017 allowing non-elected staff of three Authority member

entities to be nominated and appointed as Authority Board members;

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to further amend the Joint Powers Agreement to

incorporate adjustment of the Authority's boundaries, change in governing board membership

based on the boundary adjustments, modification to goveming board membership eligibility

criteria, and updated technical definitions;

WHEREAS, each of the parties hereto has under its police power the authority to

regulate groundwater; and

WHEREAS, the parties arc cognizantof the process commonly refened to as the

Sacramento Area Water Forum (Water Forum) and of the Water Forum Agreement (WFA); and

WHEREAS, the WFA provided for the creation of a collaborative process composed of

stakeholders in the Central Sacramento County Groundwater Basin, then known as the South

Page 87

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



Basin, but now identified as the Sacramento Valley - South American Subbasin (State

Department of Water Resources Groundwater Basin ID 5-021.65), also abbreviated herein as

SASb, to develop a groundwater management plan (GMP) for the basin and make

recommendations on how and by whom the basin should be managed and the GMP

implemented; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the provisions of the WFA, the Sacramento Area Water

Forum Successor Effort convened such a collaborative process, known as the Central

Sacramento County Groundwater Forum (CSCGF); and

WHEREAS, the CSCGF has completed its work on the GMP and recommended the

establishment of a joint powers authority to manage the basin and implement the plan; and

WHEREAS, the parties hereto find that it is to their mutual advantage and benefit, and in

the public interest, to establish such an authority pursuant to this Agreement in order to

implement the GMP developed by the CSCGF; and

WHEREAS, the parties hereto find and declare that the conservation of groundwater

resources within the SASb for agricultural and municipal and industrial uses is in the public

interest and for the common benefit of all water users within the County of Sacramento; and

WHEREAS, one of the primary purposes of the joint powers authority established

pursuant to this Agreement is to maintain the sustainable yield of the SASb as set forth in the

GMP;and

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the parties hereto to use the groundwater management

powers which they have in common that are necessary and appropriate to further the purposes

for which the joint powers authority is being established; and

WHEREAS, to accomplish the above stated goals and purposes, the Sacramento Central

Groundwater Authority (SCGA) elected, by Resolution 2016-06, to become the Groundwater

2

Page 88

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



Sustainability Agency (GSA) pursuant to the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act

(SGMA) for a portion of the groundwater subbasin overlying the County of Sacramento within

the SASb and further identified as SCGA GSA, graphically depicted in Exhibit A and

incorporated herein to this Agreement.

WHEREAS, the parties hereto may amend this Agreement in the future to incorporate

changes that may be the result of discussions with other public agencies both inside and outside

the County of Sacramento which have a specific and relevant interest in the SASb,

NOW' THERBFORE, in consideration of the promises, terms, conditions, and

covenants contained herein, the City of Elk Grove, the City of Folsom, the City of Rancho

Cordova, and the City of Sacramento and the County of Sacramento hereby agree as follows:

1. Incorporation of Recitals. The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated by

reference.

2. Definitions. As used in this Agreement, the following words and phrases shall

have the meanings set forth below unless the context clearly indicates otherwise.

(a) "Authority'' shall mean the Sacramento Central Groundwater Authority that is

established pursuant to the Joint Powers Act and this Agreement.

(b) "Conjunctive use" shall mean the planned management and use of both

groundwater and surface watff in order to maintain the sustainable yield of the SASb.

(c) "SASb" shall mean Sacramento Valley - South American Subbasin (State

Department of Water Resources Groundwater Basin ID 5-021.65).

(d) "sustainable yield" shall mean the amount of groundwater which can be safely

extracted from the SASb on an estimated average annual basis while maintaining

groundwater elevations and groundwater quality at acceptable levels as set forth in the

Groundwater Management Plan. Sustainable yield requires a balance between extraction

aJ

Page 89

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



and basin recharge and is expressed as the number of acre feet of groundwater per year

which can be extracted from the SASb on an average annual basis as set forth in the

GMP.

(e) "Conservation land owner" shall mean a non-profit land trust holding a fee or

easement interest in one thousand five hundred ( 1 500) acres or more of land located

within the boundaries of the Authority, as defined in Section 4 below.

(D "Annual pumping" for purposes of determining assessments, fees or charges for

management and operations of the Authority shall mean the total amount of groundwater

produced within the boundaries of the Authority by each retail provider, by agricultural

interests, by agricultural-residential groundwater users, by commerciaVindustrial self-

supplied groundwater users and by public agency self-supplied groundwater users, for

use within the boundaries of the Authority and other areas-approved by the Authority's

Board of Directors excluding the frst five thousand (5000) acre-feet of groundwater

pumping by each such user.

(g) "GMP" means the Central Sacramento Groundwater Management Plan produced

by the Central Sacramento County Groundwater Forum and dated February 2006.

3. Purpose. This Agreement is being entered into in order to establish a joint

powers authority for the following pulposes:

(a) to maintain the long-term sustainable yield of the SASb;

(b) to ensure implementation of the Basin Management Objectives that are prescribed

bythe GMP;

(c) to oversee the operation of any Well Protection Program that may be prescribed

bythe GMP;

4

Page 90

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



(d) to manage the use of groundwater within the boundaries of the Authority and

facilitate implementation of an appropriate conjunctive use progpm by water purueyors;

(e) to coordinate efforts among those entities represented on the governing body of

the joint powers authority to devise and implement strategies to safeguard gtoundwater

quality;and

(0 to work collaboratively with other entities, including the Sacramento

Groundwater Authority, the Southeast Sacramento County Agriculture Water Authority

and other groundwater management authorities that may be formed in the County of

Sacramento and adjacent political jurisdictions, in order to promote coordination of

policies and activities throughout the region.

4. Establishment Of The Authoritv. There is hereby established pursuant to the

Joint Exercise of Powers Act a joint powers authority which shall be a public entity separate

from the parties to this Agreement. The name of such entity shall be the Sacramento Central

Groundwater Authority. The boundaries of the Authority shall be as follows: That portion of the

Sacramento Valley South American Subbasin (Basin 5-21.65) bounded on the north by the

American River; bounded on the south by the Cosumnes River to the intersection with State

Highway 99, Grart Line Road to the intersection with Jackson Highway, and the southern

boundary of Kiefer Landfill; on the west by the Sacramento River and Interstate 5, and on the

east by the Sacramento County Urban Services Boundary, as further and more precisely depicted

in the boundary map, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A'

5. Membership Of The Governing Board. The governing body of the Authority

shall be a Board of Directors of fourteen (14) members consisting of the following

representatives who shall be appointed in the manner set forth in Section 7 of this Agreement:

5

Page 91

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



(a) An elected member of the governing board or designated employee of each of the

following public agencies: the City of Elk Grove, the City of Folsom, the City of Rancho

Cordova, the City of Sacramento, the County of Sacramento and the Sacramento

Regional County Sanitation District.

(b) An elected member of the goveming board or designated employee of the Florin

Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water District.

(c) A member of the board of directors, or designee thereof of each of the following

private water purveyors or investor owned utilities the California-American Water

Company, and the Golden State Water Company.

(d) One representative of agricultural interests within the boundaries of the Authority.

(e) One representative of agriculture-residential groundwater users within the

boundaries of the Authority.

(0 One representative of commerciaVindustrial self-supplied groundwater users

within the boundaries of the Authority.

(g) One representative of conservation landowners within the boundaries of the

Authority.

(h) One representative of public agencies that are self-supplied groundwater users

within the boundaries of the Authority.

6, Adiustment To Composition Of Governine Board. Should circumstances

change in the future, any person or entity may petition the parties hereto to amend this

Agreement so as to add or delete representatives to the governing board to accurately reflect

groundwater production within the boundaries of the Authority.

6

Page 92

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



7, Appointment Of Members Of Governins Board.

(a) The members of the governing board of the Authority shall be appointed as

follows:

(r) The City of Elk Grove representative shall be appointed by the Elk Grove

City Council.

(it) The City of Folsom representative shall be appointed by the Folsom City

Council.

(iii) The City of Rancho Cordova representative shall be appointed by the

Rancho Cordova City Council.

(iv) The City of Sacramento representative shall be appointed by the

Sacramento City Council.

(v) The County of Sacramento representative shall be appointed by the

Sacramento County Board of Supervisors ("Board").

("i) The Florin Resource Conservation District/Elk Grove Water Service

representative shall be appointed by the Elk Grove City Council.

(vii) The Golden State Water Company representative shall be appointed by the

Rancho Cordova City Council.

(viii) The California-American Water Company representative shall be

appointed by the Sacramento County Board of Supervisors.

(lx) In addition to the representative of the County of Sacramento provided for

in Section 7 (a)(v), the following representatives shall be appointed by the

Board:

1. Agricultural interests. After considering the nomination by the

Sacramento County Farm Bureau, as required by sub-section (b) of

7

Page 93

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



2.

this Section, the Board shall appoint the representative of

agricultural interests.

Agriculture-residential gtoundwater users. After considering the

nomination by the Vineyard Community Advisory Council in

consultation with adjacent Councils within the SASb, as required

by sub-section (b) of this Section, the Board shall appoint the

representative o f agricukur aU res idential gtoundwater users,

CommerciaVindustrial self-supplied groundwater users. Aft er

considering the joint nomination by the Sacramento Metropolitan

Chamber of Commerce and the Building Industry Association in

consultation with commerciaUindustrial self- supplied groundwater

users and business organizations that are signatories to the Water

Forum Agreement, as required by sub-section (b) of this Section,

the Board shall appoint the representative of commerciaVindustrial

self-supplied groundwater users.

Conservation landowners. After considering the nomination by

conservation landowners holding a fee or easement interest in one

thousand five hundred (1500) acres or more within the boundaries

of the Authority in consultation with environmental and

community organizations that are signatories to the Water Forum

Agreement, as required by sub-section (b) of this Section, the

Board shall appoint the representative of conservation land owners.

Public agencies that are self-supplied groundwater users. After

considering the nomination by the Southgate Recreation and Park

aJ

4.

5

8

Page 94

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



District in consultation with other public agencies which are self-

supplied groundwater users, as required by sub-section (b) of this

Section, the Board shall appoint the representative ofpublic

agencies that are self-supplied groundwater users.

6. Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District. After considering

the nomination by the Sacramento Regional County Sanitation

District, as required by sub-section (b) of this Section, the Board

shall appoint the representative of the Sacramento Regional

County Sanitation District.

(b) Prior to the appointment of the representatives of the entities described in

subsections (a)(vi) through (a)(ix) above, those entities shall submit a recommended

appointment for their respective representatives to the appointing authority identified in

subsections (a)(vi) through (aXi") of this Section 7. The appointing authority shall give

consideration to such recommendations, but shall retain the absolute discretion to appoint

any person satisfying the criteria for appointment set forth in Section 5 of this

Agreement.

8. Governing Board Voting Requirements.

(a) Each member of the goveming board of the Authority shall have one vote. With

the exception of fiscal items as set forth in subsections (b) and (c) below, an affirmative

vote by a majority of all members of the governing board is required to approve any item

related to implementation of the Groundwater Management Plan.

(b) Fiscal items, including, but not limited to, approval of the annual budget of the

Authority and any expenditures, shall require an affirmative vote by a majority of all the

members of the governing board that includes affirmative votes by all of the

9

Page 95

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



representatives of the Cities of Elk Grove, Folsom, Rancho Cordova and Sacramento and

the County of Sacramento.

(c) Any change in annual contributions necessary to support the work of the

Authority as set forth in subsection (d) below, shall require an affirmative vote of ten of

the fourteen members ofthe governing board that includes affrmative votes by all of the

representatives of the Cities of Elk Grove, Folsom, Rancho Cordova and Sacramento and

the County of Sacramento.

(d) The Authority shall initially be funded as follows:

(i) An annual cortribution by the Cities of Elk Grove, Folsonl Rancho

Cordova and Sacramento and the County of Sacramento in the amount of

ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) each. (These entities shall not be

required to pay any additional fee or assessment, such as that described in

subsection (dxii) below.)

(i1) An annual contribution by each of those water purveyors represented on

the Governing Board, other than the entities listed in subsection (d)(i)

above, that purvey surface water in the amount of six thousand dollars

($6,ooo.o0).

(iii) An annual contribution by each of those water purveyors represented on

the Governing Board, other than the entities listed in subsection (d)(i)

above, that utilize gtoundwater, calculated at the rate of two dollars and

seven cents ($2.07) per acre foot of groundwater pumped from the basin,

averaged over the three previous years and excluding the first five

thousand (5000) acre feet pumped in each ofthose years.

t0

Page 96

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



(tv) An annual contribution by agriculture computed at twenty five percent

(25%) of the estimated annual pumping (as determined by the Sacramento

County Water Agency) at the rate of two dollars and seven cents

($2.07) per acre foot and paid out of SCWA Zone 13 funds.

(v) An annual contribution by agriculture/residential groundwater users

computed at twenty five percent (25%) of the estimated annual pumping

(as determined by the Sacramento County Water Agency) at the rate of

two dollars and seven cents ($2.07) per acre foot and paid out of SCWA

Zone 13 funds.

(vi) All annual funds shall be paid by July 1 of each year, commencing on July

I,2006. The annual fee for the first year after the effective date of this

Agreement shall be prorated from the date of the last signatory approval

establishing the Authority.

(e) The goveming board of the Authority may, at its discretion, adjust the funding

contributions set forth in sub-section (d) above, subject to compliance with the voting

requirements prescribed in sub-section (c) above.

9, Ouorum. A majority of the members of the goveming board shall constitute a

quorum for purposes of transacting business, except less than a quorum may vote to adjourn a

meeting.

10. Terms Of Office. With the exception of the initial term of the representatives

appointed by the County of Sacramento as described in Section 7 (a)(ix), the term of office of

each member of the governing board the Authority shall be for a period of four (4) years. For the

purpose of providing staggered terms of office, the term of the initial representatives appointed

by the County of Sacramento as described in Section 7 (a)(ix) shall be for a period of two (2)

11

Page 97

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



years. Thereafter, the term ofoffice ofeach representative appointed by the County of

Sacramento as described in Section 7 (a)(ix) shall be for a period of four (4) years. Each

member of the governing board shall serve at the pleasure of the appointing body and may be

removed as a member of the governing board by the appointing body at any time. If at any time

avacancy occurs on the goveming board, a replacement shall be appointed to fill the unexpired

term of the previous representative pursuant to the provisions of SectionT of this Agreement

within ninety (90) days of the date that such position becomes vacant.

11. Alternates. The City of Elk Grove, the City of Folsom, the City of Rancho

Cordova, the City of Sacramento and the County of Sacramento, in addition to their regular

appointments, shall appoint one or more persons with the required qualifications to serve as

altemate members of the governing board of the Authority. The other entities described in

Section 7 (a) (vi) through (a) (ix), which may nominate their respective representatives, may also

nominate one or more persons with the required qualifications to serye as altemate members of

the goveming board of the Authority and such alternates shall be appointed pursuant to the

procedure for regular appointments set forth in Section 7(b) of this Agreement. Any such

alternates who are appointed as alternates by the appointing authorities specified in Section

7(a)(vi) through (aXix) shall be empowered to cast votes in the absence of the regular members

or, in the event of a conflict of interest preventing the regular member from voting, to vote

because of such a conflict of interest.

12. Organization Of The Authoritv. The governing board of the Authority shall

elect a chatr, avice chair and such other officers as the governing board shall find appropriate.

Such officers shall serve for a term of one (1) year unless sooner terminated at the pleasure of the

governing board.

t2

Page 98

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



13. Treasurer" Controller" Clerk and Lesal Counsel.

(a) The County of Sacramento Director of Finance shall act as treasurer and

controller for the Authority. The controller of the Authority shall cause an independent

annual audit of the Authority's finances to be made by a certified public accountant in

compliance with Government Code Section 6505. The treasurer of the Authority shall be

the depositor and shall have custody of all money of the Authority from whatever source.

The controller of the Authority shall draw warrants to pay demands against the Authority

when the demands have been approved by the Authority or by its authorized

representative pursuant to any delegation of authority adopted by the Authority. The

treasurer and controller shall comply strictly with the provisions of statutes relating to

their duties found in Chapter 5 (commencing with Section 6500) of Division 7 of Title 1

of the Government Code.

(b) The governing board of the Authority shall appoint a clerk and legal counsel as it

deems appropriate.

14. Executive Director. The governing board of the Authority, with the concrurence

of the Sacramento County Water Agency, shall appoint an Executive Director who shall be

responsible to the governing board for the proper and efficient administration of the Authority as

directed by the governing board pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement or of any

ordinance, resolution or order of the goveming board. In addition to any other duties which may

be assigned, the Executive Director shall have the following authority:

(a) under the policy direction of the governing board, to plan, organize and direct all

Authority activities;

(b) to authorize expenditures within the designations and limitations of the budget

approved by the governing board;

13

Page 99

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



(c) to make recommendations to and requests of the governing board concerning any

matter which is to be performed, done or canied out by the governing board;

(d) to have the authority to appoint, discipline, assign and otherwise supervise and

control the activities of any employees or contractors which may be hired or retained by

the Authority; and

(e) to have charge of, handle and have access to any property of the Authority.

15. Meetinss. The Authority shall provide for regular and special meetings in

accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act (Chapter 9 (commencing with Section 54950) of Part I

of Division 2 of Title 5 of the Government Code) or with any successor provision.

16. Minutes. The clerk appointed by the governing body of the Authority shall cause

to be kept minutes of all meetings of the governing board, and shall cause a copy of such minutes

to be forwarded to each member of the governing board and to the chief administrative officer of

each ofthe signatory agencies.

17. Powers and Functions.

(a) The Authority shall have no power to regulate land use or to engage in the retail

sale of water.

(b) Subject to the limitations set forth in subsection (a), the Authority shall have any

and all powers commonly held by the parties hereto necessary or appropriate to regulate

groundwater within the boundaries of the Authority including, but not limited to, the

following powers:

(i) Collect and monitor data on the extraction of groundwater from, and the

quality of groundwater in, the SASb;

(it) Facilitate any Conjunctive Use program the purpose of which is to

maintain the Sustainable yields in the SASb consistent with the GMP;

l4

Page 100

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



(iii) Distribute water in exchange for ceasing or reducing groundwater

extractions;

(iv) Spread, sink and inject water into the SASb;

(v) Store, transport, recapture, recycle, purify, treat or otherwise manage and

control water for the beneficial use of persons and property within the Authority;

(vi) Study and plan ways and means to implement any or all of the foregoing

powers.

(c) For purposes ofexercising the authority set forth in subsection (b), and subject to

the limitations set forth in subsection (a), the Authority shall have the following corporate

and political powers:

(l) To sue and be sued in all actions and proceedings in all courts and

tribunals.

(it) To adopt a seal and alter it at its discretion.

(iii) For the common benefit of the Authority, to store water in underground

water basins or reservoirs within and outside the Authority, to appropriate water

and acquire water rights within or outside the Authority, to import water into the

Authority, and to conserve, or cause the conservation of, water within or outside

the Authority.

(tv) To act jointly, or cooperate, with the Federal government or any agency

thereo{ the state, or any county or agency thereof, or any political subdivision or

district therein, including flood control districts, private and public corporations,

and any person, so that the powers of the Authority may be fully and

economically exercised.

15

Page 101

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



(v) To cause taxes, assessments, fees or charges to be levied in accordance

with applicable State law, and in a manner consistent with the GMP to accomplish

the purposes of the Authority.

(vi) To require the permitting of groundwater extraction facilities within the

boundaries of the Authority, to maintain a record of extraction with respect to any

such facilities, and to require the installation of meters on groundwater extraction

facilities for the purpose of determining the amount of groundwater being

extracted from the SASb.

(vii) To make contracts, employ labor and to do all acts necessary for the full

exercise of the Authority's powers.

(viii) To carry on technical and other investigations of all kinds necessary to

further the purposes of the Authority.

(i") To fix rates at which water acquired by the Authority shall be sold for

replenishment purposes, and to establish different rates for different classes of

service or conditions of service, provided that the rates shall be uniform for like

classes and conditions of service.

(x) To participate in any contract under which producers may voluntarily

agree to use surface water in lieu of groundwater, and to that end the Authority

may become aparty to the contract and pay from Authority funds that portion of

the cost of the surface water as will encourage the purchase and use of that water

in lieu of pumping so long as persons or property within the boundaries of the

Authority are directly or indirectly benefitted by the resulting replenishment of

the SASb.

r6

Page 102

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



(xi) To apply for, accept and receive state, federal or local licenses, permits,

grants, loans or other aid from any agency of the United States, the State of

California, or other public or private entity necessary or appropriate for the

Authority's full exercise of its powers.

18. Budeets. Within ninety (90) days after the first meeting of the governing board

of the Authority, and thereafter prior to the commencement of each fiscal year (defined as July 1

through June 30), the governing board shall adopt a budget for the Authority for the ensuing

fiscal year.

19. Adoption of the Central Sacramento Countv Groundwater Manasement

Plan. Within sixty (60) days after the first meeting of the governing board of the Authority, the

governing board shall consider for adoption the Central Sacramento County Groundwater

Management Plan (CSCGMP) negotiated by the Central Sacramento County Groundwater

Forum and dated February, 2006. The goveming board of the Authority may revise the

CSCGMP subsequent to its adoption as it deems appropriate.

20. Implementation of the Well Protection Prosram. In order to facilitate the

implementation of the Well Protection Program described in the Central Sacramento County

Groundwater Management Plan, within sixty (60) days after the first meeting of the governing

board of the Authority, the goveming board shall submit to each of the entities who are

signatories to this Agreement, and who have land use authority for areas within the boundaries of

the Authority where new development will or may be served by groundwater, a draft Well

Protection Plan ordinance to consider for adoption.

21. Termination. This Agreement shall remain in effect until terminated by one of

the parties hereto pursuant to this section. This Agreement may be terminated by any of the

T7

Page 103

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



parties hereto at any time and for any reason by providing ninety (90) days written notice of

termination to the other parties.

22. Disposition Of Authoritv Assets Unon Termination.

(a) In the event of the termination of the Authority where there will be a successor

public entity which will carry on the functions of the Authority and assume its assets, the

assets of the Authority shall be transferred to the successor public entity.

(b) If there is no successor public entity which will carry on the functions of the

Authority and assume its assets, the assets shall be retumed to the parties hereto in

proportion to the contribution of each party during the term of this Agreement.

(c) If there is a successor public entity which will carry on some of the functions of

the Authority and assume some of its assets, the assets of the Authority shall be allocated

by the governing board of the Authority between the successor public entity and the

parties hereto.

23. Liabilities. The debts, liabilities and obligations of the Authority shall be the

debts, liabilities and obligations of the Authority alone, and not of the parties to this Agreement.

24. Rules. The governing board of the Authority may adopt from time to time such

rules and regulations for the conduct of its affairs as it deems necessary and appropriate.

25, Effective Date. This agreement and the Authority created under it shall become

effective when the governing bodies of all of the parties shall have authorized its execution.

26. Amendments. This Agreement may only be amended by the affirmative vote of

the governing bodies of all of the parties hereto.

27. Liberal Construction. The provisions of this Agreement shall be liberally

construed as necessary or reasonably convenient to achieve the purposes of the Authority.

28. Liabilitv of Board. Officers and Emplovees.

18

Page 104

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



(a) The members of the Board, officers, and employees of the Authority shall use

ordinary care and reasonable diligence in the exercise of their powers, and in the

performance of their duties pursuant to this Agreement. They shall not be liable to the

parties to this Agreement for of any mistake ofjudgment or other action made, taken, or

omitted by them in good faith, nor for any action madeo taken, or omitted by any agent,

employee, or independent contractor selected with reasonable care, nor for loss incurred

through the investment of the Authority's funds, or failure to invest the same.

(b) To the extent authorized by California law, no member of the Board, officer, or

employee of the Authority shall be responsible for any action made, taken, or omitted, by

any other member of the Board, officer, or employee. No member of the Board, officer,

or employee of the Authority shall be required to give a bond or other security to

guarantee the faithful performance of his or her duties pursuant to this Agreement.

(c) The funds of the Authority shall be used to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless

the Authority and any member of the Board, officer, or employee of the Authority for

actions taken in good faith and within the scope of his or her authority. Nothing herein

shall limit the right of the Authority to purchase insurance or to create a self-insurance

mechanism to provide coverage for the foregoing indemnity.

t9

Page 105

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



29, Notices. Any notices to the parties required by this Agreement shall be delivered

or mailed, United States Mail fust class, postage prepaid, addressed as follows:

CITY OF ELK GROVE
8380 Laguna Palms Way
Elk Grove, CA 95758
Attn: City Engineer

CITY OF RANCHO CORDOVA
2729 Prospect Park Drive
Rancho Cordova, CA 95670
Attn: Public Works Director

CITY OF FOLSOM
50 Natoma Street
Folsom, CA 95630
Attn: Director of Utilities

CITY OF SACRAMENTO
1395 35th Ave
Sacramento, C495822
Attn: Director, Department of Utilities

COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO
827 7th Street, Rm 301

Sacramento, CA 95814
Attn: Director, Department of Water Resources

Notices given under this Agreement shall be deemed to have been received at the earlier

of actual receipt, or the second business day following deposit in the United States mail, as

required above. Any party may amend its address for notice by notifying the other parties

pursuant to this Section.

20

Page 106

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto execute this Second Amendment onthe
date first written above.

CITY OF ELK GROVE

Dated:
Mayor

Attest Approved As To Form:

City Clerk City Attorney

CITY OF FOLSOM

Dated:
Mayor

Attest: Approved As To Form:

City Clerk City Attorney

CITY OF RANCHO CORDOVA

Dated:
Mayor

Attest: Approved As To Form:

City Clerk City Attorney

By

By

By

2l

Page 107

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



Dated:

Attest:

By

CITY OF SACRAMENTO

Mayor

Approved As To Form:

City Attorney

COI.JNTY OF SACRAMENTO

Chairperson, Board of Supervisors

Approved As To Form:

County Counsel

City Clerk

Dated:

Attest:

By

Clerk of the Board

2001621

22

Page 108

02/23/2021 Item No.5.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re rt

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Environmental and Water Resources Department recommends the City Council pass and
adopt Resolution No. 10591 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an
Amended and Restated Master Interagency Agreement Between Sacramento Regional County
Sanitation District and Its Contributing Agencies.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

In November 1974, the Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District (SRCSD) Board
executedthe Master Interagency Agreement (MIA) with agencies receiving wastewater service
from SRCSD. In a subsequent amendment, the MIA identified SASD (then County Sanitation
District No. 1), the City of Sacramento, and the City of Folsom as contributing agencies. The
primary pqpose of the MIA is to specifu the responsibilities between Regional San and its
Contributing Agencies (SASD, City of Sacramento, and City of Folsom) on the financing,
maintenance and operation of wastewater collection, conveyance, and treatment facilities and
collection of sewer rates and sewer impact fees.

The current MIA, last amended in December 1996, will expire on June 30,2024. Since that
time, the City of West Sacramento was annexed to the Regional San service area in 2007.
Service to West Sacramento is governed by a separate wastewater services agreement, which
indicates that West Sacramento will be included as a contributing agency when the MIA is
amended. Even though the County is not a contributing agency, it became a signatory because

I

MEETING DATE: 21231202t

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10591 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute an Amended and Restated Master
Interagency Agreement Between Sacramento Regional County
Sanitation District and Its Contributing Agencies

FROM: Environmental and Water Resources Department

Page 109

02/23/2021 Item No.6.



the MIA has a provision for staffing relationship between the County and Regional San. While
Regional San and SASD are independent entities, the districts are staffed by County staff.

On October 9,2019, the SRCSD Board established a subcommittee to review the current MIA
and identiff any proposed changes and present these to the full Board. On October 28,2020,
the District Engineer provided a sunmary of the proposed amendments to the MIA to the
subcommittee.

POLICY / RULE

In accordance with Chapter 2.36 ofthe Folsom Municipal Code. supplies, equipment, services,

and construction with a value of $62,657 or greater shall be awarded by City Council.

ANALYSIS

In 2018, Regional San began meeting with key stakeholders from the Contributing Agencies,
as well as the City of West Sacramento, to identifu and develop amendments to the MIA.
Multiple meetings have taken place over the last two years to work through key issues related
to the billing and collection of Regional San's rates and fees, collaboration on a study to
address infiltration/inflow corrective measures and removing outdated information.

The amended MIA will incorporate the City of West Sacramento as a Contributing Agency for
the first time. Regional San will pay for the cost of collecting its revenues and will assume

responsibility for uncollected revenues. In addition, staffing provision in the MIA will sunset

on June 30,2024 and any future staffing relationship between Regional San and the County,
beyond June2024,needs to be covered through a separate agreement. Accordingly, the County
will sunset as a signatory to the MIA on June 30, 2024. A summary of the proposed changes
is summarized below.

The City of West Sacramento will be incorporated into the agreement as a contributing
agency. The City of West Sacramento joined the Regional San service area in 2007

and, thus, was not previously a party to the MIA. The City is currently being served

through a Wastewater Services Agreement, which contemplates the City becoming a
contributing agency with the renewal of the MIA.

The previous MIA terms were based on Regional San's debt obligation durations, and

the amended MIA will have a 50-year term, which is the legally allowed maximum
term. However, the MIA will be reviewed every 5 years to determine any need for
amendments.

a

o

a Regional San will be responsible for the collection of its sewer rates. The current
agreement requires the Contributing Agencies to collect sewer rates on behalf of
Regional San. In the future, Regional San will either bill its customers directly or
reimburse a Contributing Agency for the billing and collection of sewer rates if agreed

to by both parties. The current agreement also requires each Contributing Agency to

2Page 110

02/23/2021 Item No.6.



absorb the costs of any bad debt. In the future, Regional San will absorb these costs.

Regional San will incur approximately $1 million in additional costs annually, and the

contributing agencies, collectively, will see their costs reduced by this amount.

o The Infiltration/Inflow (I/I) conective measures section will be revised to require
Regional San and each Contributing Agency to collaborate and conduct a study
focusing on identifuing cost-effective corrective measures to eliminate excessive I/I.

a The section specifuing the personnel relationship between Regional San and the County
of Sacramento will be amended to specifu a sunset date of no later than June 30, 2024.
Any continuing personnel relationship between the two agencies would need to be

established in a separate agreement.

a The MIA will be revised to allow a few specific sections of the MIA to be amended in
writing at the executive management level, rather than at the Board or City Council
level. Specifically, the Regional San and SASD District Engineer and specified
positions for each Contributing Agency, such as their utility manager/director could
amend certain provisions that are administrative or technical in nature.

Sections that are no longer applicable will be deleted, such as the Folsom Interceptor
section.

For the City of Folsom, the proposed changes do not have any impact on City operations or
City customers. The City will continue to bill and collect Regional San rates through an
agreement that specifies the City's responsibility for billing and collection and a future
agreement will include Regional San's reimbursement requirements to the City for the avoided
cost of billing.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

This amended and restated Mater Interagency Agreement does not have any financial impacts
to the City. A future agreement will be brought before the Council to establish the
responsibilities and reimbursement for the City to bill and collect Regional San rates on behalf
of Regional San. The Finance Director estimates that the City will receive approximately
$100,000 per year from Regional San.

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

Execution of this agreement is not considered a project and therefore not subject to CEQA

ATTACHMENTS

1. Resolution No. 10591 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an

Amended and Restated Master Interagency Agreement Between Sacramento Regional
County Sanitation District and Its Contributing Agencies

a

JPage 111

02/23/2021 Item No.6.



2. Amended and Restated Master Interagency Agreement

Submitted,

Marcus Yasutake, Director
ENVIRONMENTAL AND WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

4Page 112

02/23/2021 Item No.6.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 113

02/23/2021 Item No.6.



RESOLUTION NO. 10591

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AMENDED AND RESTATED MASTER INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT BETWEEN

SACRAMENTO REGIONAL COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT AND ITS
CONTRIBUTING AGENCIES

WHEREAS, in November 1974, the Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District
(SRCSD) executed the Master lnteragency Agreement (MlA) with agencies receiving wastewater

service from the SRCSD, and in a subsequent Amendment, identified the City of Folsom as a

contributing agency; and

WHEREAS, the MIA specifies the responsibilities between Regional San and its
Contributing Agencies on the financing, maintenance and operation of wastewater collection,

conveyance, and treatment facilities and collection of sewer rates and sewer impact fees; and

WHEREAS, the current MIA will expire June 30, 2024; and

WHEREAS, the Regional San Board established a subcommittee to review the current

MIA and identifr any proposed changes; and

WHEREAS, the District Engineer of Regional San presented the proposed changes to the

Regional San Board on October 28,2020 and January 13,2021; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW, THEREFORE' BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom

authorizes the City Manager to Execute an Amended and Restated Master Interagency Agreement
Between Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District and Its Contributing Agencies.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 23'd day of February 202l,by the following roll-call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10591
Page I of I Page 114

02/23/2021 Item No.6.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 115

02/23/2021 Item No.6.



DCS Contract No. 50000210

AMENDED AND RESTATED

SACRAMENTO REGIONAL WASTEWATER

MANAGEMENT PROGRAM

MASTER INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT

April14,2021

Page 116

02/23/2021 Item No.6.



DCS Contract No. 50000210

AMENDED AND RESTATED

SACRAMENTO RBGIONAL WASTEWATER

MANAGEMENT PROGRAM

MASTER INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and entered into

on and among the following public entities:

(a) SACRAMENTO REGIONAL COLTNTY SANITATION DISTRICT, a political
subdivision of the State of California

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(0

CITY OF FOLSOM, a municipal corporation

CITY OF SACRAMENTO, a municipal corporation

COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO, a political subdivision of the State of California

SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State of
California

CITY OF WEST SACRAMENTO, a municipal corporation

R.ECITALS

A. Each of the parties to this Agreement is a local governmental entity functioning within the

Sacramento Metropolitan Area.

B. Each of the Contributing Agencies that are parties to this Agreement presently maintains

and operates facilities for the collection and conveyance of wastewater to Sacramento

Regional County Sanitation facilities.

C. Each of the parties to this Agreement through official acts of its legislative body has

recognized the need for coordinated regional planning of wastewater management within
the Sacramento Metropolitan Area and has either been added as a party to this Agreement
and/or joined with or participated in the formation of the Sacramento Regional County
Sanitation District, a county sanitation district formed under provisions of the Health and

Safety Code to provide regional wastewater services within the Sacramento Metropolitan
Area (hereinafter referred to as Regional San).

2lPage

Page 117

02/23/2021 Item No.6.



DCS Contract No. 50000210

D. With the exception of the City of West Sacramento, the parties hereto have previously
entered into a Sacramento Regional Wastewater Management Program Master Interagency
AgreementdatedNovemberl, lgT4,andamendedtwiceonApril23, 1981,andonceeach
onJune 26,1983,Jamary28,I986,February 28,l989,April 13, 1993,andDecember 11,

1996 (collectively referred to as the 1974MIA). With the execution of this amended and

restated agreement, the City of West Sacramento will be added as a Contributing Agency
and the previously entered Wastewater Services agreement between the City of West
Sacramento and Regional San, dated March 31,2004, will be terminated. This Agreement
amends and supersedes the lg74lli/J{, continues in effect, as herein amended, all of the

continuing operative provisions thereof, and deletes from the current text those provisions

of the 1974MIA, which have been fully executed or are no longer operative

AGREEMENTS

The parties agree as follows:

Section L. Definitions.

Unless the context otherwise requires, the terms defined in this Section 1 shall for all purposes of
this Agreement have the meanings hereinafter specified:

AVOIDED COST: The estimated cost per account Regional San would have incurred to collect
sewer rates in the portions of Regional San service area, which pursuant to a separate billing and

collection agreement are collected by another billing agency/contributing agency.

COLLECTOR SEWER: Any publicly operated sanitary sewer including pumping and in-line
treatment facilities appurtenant thereto, whose primary pulpose is the collection of wastewaters

within a Contributing Agency.

COMBINED FLOW: Storm drainage, sanitary sewage, or industrial waste intentionally
combined in a single conduit for purposes of collection, treatment, or discharge.

COMMERCIAL USER: Any nonresidential user that the District Engineer determines does not
meet the definition of an industrial user as set forth in the Regional San's Consolidated Ordinance.

CONSOLIDATED ORDINANCE: An ordinance, originally adopted by Regional Sanon

February 10, 2010 as Ordinance #SRSD-0109, and as subsequently amended, regulating the use

of the Regional System and providing the authority to set and collect sewer rates and sewer impact
fees.

CONTRACTING AGENCY: Any public agency (including an agency of the state or federal
government) that is not a party to this Agreement and has a separate contract that allows the

contribution of wastewater from its system to the Regional System for conveyance, treatment, and

discharge. Contracting agencies need not be annexed to Regional San or be a Contributing Agency.

3lPage

Page 118

02/23/2021 Item No.6.



DCS Contract No. 50000210

CONTRIBUTING AGENCY: Any public entity other than the County of Sacramento that is a
party to this Agreement and contributes wastewater from its system to the Regional System.

DISTRICT ENGINEER: The chief executive of the Sacramento Regional County Sanitation

District and the Sacramento Area Sewer District.

INDUSTRIAL USER: Any person who discharges or causes a discharge of industrial wastewater

directly or indirectly to the Regional System, as categorized in the Consolidated Ordinance. This

term specifically includes any categorical users connected to the Regional System, whether or not
they discharge process wastewater.

INDUSTRIAL WASTEWATER: Any water-carried wastes and wastewaters, excluding

domestic wastewater, derived from any producing, manufacturing, processing, institutional,
agricultural, or other operation.

INFILTRATION: Any water entering a collector, trunk, or interceptor sewer or servrce

connections thereto from the ground through such means as, but not limited to, defective pipes,

pipe joints, connections, or manhole walls.

INFLOW: Any water discharged into collector, trunk, or interceptor sewer or service connections

thereto from such sources as, but not limited to roof leaders, cellars, yard and area drains,

foundation drains, cooling water discharges, drains from springs and swampy ateas, manhole

covers, cross-connections from storm sewers and combined sewers, catchbasins, storm waters,

surface runoff, street wash waters or drainage.

INTERCEPTOR SEWER: Any sewer and in-line treatment facilities appurtenant thereto

including pumping facilities as shown and described on Exhibit A, which is hereby made a part of
this Agreement, and any future sanitary sewers constructed after the date of this Agreement, which
meet either of the following criteria:

(a) Any sanitary sewer designed to carry a peak wet weather flow of 10 MGD or greater from
new development; or,

(b) Any sanitary sewer that has its upstream and downstream ends are adjacent and connected

to an existing Interceptor Sewer shown in Exhibit A of this Agreement.

LOCAL SERVICES: All services within a Contributing Agency that are necessary for the

collection, conveyance, treatment, and transfer to the Regional System of wastewater originating
within that Agency that are not to be performed by Regional San pursuant to this Agreement.

LOCAL SERVICE AREA: That area in which a Contributing Agency has the exclusive

authority to perform local services.

MGD: Million gallons per day.

MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION COSTS: The reasonable and necessary costs of

4lPage

Page 119

02/23/2021 Item No.6.



DCS Contract No. 50000210

maintaining and operating a system calculated on sound accounting principles, including (among

other things) the reasonable expenses of management, operation, repair and other expenses

necessary to maintain and preserve the system in good repair and working order, and reasonable

amounts for administration overhead, insurance, taxes (if any) and other similar costs.

NON-INDUSTRIAL USER: Any person discharging wastewater to a system that is not
classified as an Industrial User in the Consolidated Ordinance.

OPERATING AGREEMENTS: All agreements between Regional San and any Contributing
Agency for the operation and maintenance of wastewater facilities.

OUTFALL SEWER: Any sewer the primary purpose of which is to transfer wastewater from a
treatment plant or its effluent pumping station to a point of discharge. The term includes any
structure or facilities located at the point of discharge for discharge or diffusion of the wastewater.

REGIONAL SAN: The Sacramento Regional County Sanitation Dishict.

REGIONAL SAN SERVICES: All services required for the collection, conveyance, treatment,
and discharge of wastewater thatare to be performed by Regional San pursuant to this Agreement.

REGIONAL SYSTEM: All facilities for the conveyance, treatment, and discharge of wastewater
that are owned or operated by Regional San.

RJSIDENTIAL USER: A user whose premises are used solely for nontransient human

habitation.

SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT (SASD): The Sacramento Area Sewer District,
formerly known as County Sanitation District No. 1.

SANITARY SEWAGE: All water-carried waste from residences, business buildings,
institutions, or other similar establishments, excluding storm waters, combined flow, and industrial
waste.

SRWTP: The Sacramento Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant.

SUMP NO. 1/1A: That pumping station operated by the City of Sacramento located at Front and

U Street.

SUMP NO. 2: That pumping station operated by the City of Sacramento located at 3530 Riverside
Blvd.

SYSTEM: All facilities for the collection, conveyance, treatment, and discharge of wastewater
owned or operated by Regional San, a Contributing Agency, or a Contracting Agency, as indicated
by the context in which it is used.

SYSTEM USERS: Industrial, non-industrial, and commercial users of Regional San, a

Contributing Agency, or a Contracting Agency, as indicated by the context in which it is used.

5lPage

Page 120

02/23/2021 Item No.6.



DCS Contract No. 50000210

TERRITORIAL JURISDICTION: That area of land encompassed within the boundaries of
Regional San or a Contributing Agency's service area as referenced in the Consolidated

Ordinance.

TRUNK SEWER: Any collector sewer designated as a trunk sewer by the Contributing Agency
operating said sewer.

WASTEWATER: The liquid and water-carried industrial or domestic wastes from dwellings,
commercial buildings, industrial facilities, and institutions, whether treated or untreated, which is
contributed into or permitted to enter the Regional San's facilities. This also includes infiltration,
inflow, and combined flow.

Section 2. Term of Agreement.

This Agreement shall become effective as of the date hereof and shall continue in full force and

effect for a period of time beginning on the date of this Agreement and including and ending on

June 30, 2071, or until sooner terminated by agreement of all the parties hereto, or by operation of
law.

Section 3. General Scope of Services Performed by Regional San.

Except as otherwise provided herein, Regional San shall:

(a) Finance, construct, reconstruct, operate, and maintain all facilities for the treatment and

disposal of sanitary sewage and industrial waste delivered to it and originating from within
the local service area of each Contributing Agency;

(b) Finance, construct and reconstruct Sumps 2A,55, and 1 19 and related Regional San-owned

piping as shown in the Operating Agreement between Regional San and the City of
Sacramento.

(c) Finance, construct, reconstruct, operate, and maintain all Interceptor Sewers for
conveyance of wastewater from a Contributing Agency or a major portion of a Contributing
Agency to the SRWTP.

Section 4. General Scope of Services of Contributing Agencies.

Except as otherwise provided herein, each Contributing Agency shall provide the following local
services:

(a) Finance, construct, reconstruct, operate, and maintain all collector and trunk sewers for
wastewater originating within its local service area.

(b) Dispose of all wastewater originating within its local service areaby delivery of same to
the Regional System.

6lPage

Page 121

02/23/2021 Item No.6.



DCS Contract No. 50000210

Section 5. Local Service Area of Contributing Agencies.

Each Contributing Agency shall have the duty of providing local services to such portion of its
local servic e area that is within its territorial jurisdiction.

Subject to such conditions, limitations or restrictions as it deems necessary or desirable, each

Contributing Agency may agree to provide local services to an area within its local service area

that is not within its territorial jurisdiction. If an area is not within the territorial jurisdiction of
Regional San, no local service shall be provided to that areaby a Contributing Agency until its

annexation to Regional San has been effected. Upon request of the applicable Contributing
Agency, Regional San shall undertake and accomplish such acts as are required of it by law to

accomplish any such annexation.

An area within the local service area of a Conhibuting Agency that is not within its territorial
jurisdiction shall not be provided local service by any other Contributing Agency without the prior
consent of both Regional San and the Contributing Agency in whose local service areathe subject

area is situated.

Section 6. Enlargement of Local Service Area.

A Contributing Agency may enlarge its local service area with the prior consent of Regional San;

provided however, Regional San shall not consent to any such enlargement if the probable effect

of said enlargement would materially affect the ability of any other Contributing Agency to make

reasonable use offacilities ofRegional San to provide local service to its present system users or
reasonably anticipated future users.

Section 7. Uniform Charge for Regional San Services.

It is the intent of all parties to the Agreement that:

(a) Except as otherwise provided herein, the present and future costs of providing Regional

San Services to users within Contributing Agencies shall be uniformly and equitably

allocated among all users of Regional San treatment, conveyance, and disposal facilities
without regard to their geographic location within Regional San; and

(b) The present and future costs of providing Regional San Services shall be primarily
recovered through the levy and collection offair and reasonable user service charges, taxes,

and fees for connection to the system all based upon rates determined and established by
Regional San; and

(c) User service charges collected for Regional San shall be expended only for the acquisition,

construction, reconstruction, maintenance and operation of facilities needed to provide
Regional San Services, to repay principal and interest on bonds issued for the construction,

reconstruction or expansion of such facilities (including reasonable allowance for reserves

necessary to comply with requirements associated with bond sales), loans or advances, or

TlPage

Page 122

02/23/2021 Item No.6.



DCS Contract No. 50000210

to repay other loans or advances made to Regional San for the construction, reconstruction
or expansion of such facilities, or requirements associated with State and Federal grants;

and

(d) User service charges collected by Regional San shall not be used for the acquisition,
construction, repair or maintenance of collector sewers or trunk sewers as distinguished
from interceptor sewers or the SRWTP Outfall Sewer.

(e) Regional Sewer Impact Fees may be waived through the adoption of an ordinance by
Regional San providing for Sewer Impact Fee waivers. Sewer Impact Fee waivers are

adopted and described in the Consolidated Ordinance.

Section 8. Establishment of Service Rates and Procedures for the Collection of Sewer
Rates and Delinquent Charges.

Regional San has in accordance with law and the intent expressed in the provisions of Section 7
of this Agreement formulated and adopted a schedule of user service charges for Regional San

Services speciffing the classes or categories of system users and providing a rate or rates for each

such class or category ofuser.

Rates, classifications, and schedules adopted by Regional San for users of the Regional System
may be amended from time to time in accordance with law, and to accomplish the intent of this
Agreement but, the effective date of any such amendment shall be not less than 30 days from the
date upon which said action is taken.

Subsequent to the execution of this Agreement, Regional San will either (a) enter into an agreement

with each Contributing Agency or (b) amend an Operating Agreement, to specify the Contributing
Agency's responsibilities for the billing, collection, assessment, as well as, documentation
requirements.

Pursuant to such agreements, Regional San may agree to allow a Contributing Agency to assume

the responsibility of billing and collection of Regional San's rates and fees. There are two options
for Contributing Agencies to remit rates to Regional San.

For Contributing Agencies that remit only the rates successfully collected, Regional San

will reimburse the Avoided Cost of billing based on an average annual cost per account
for Regional San to bill sewer rates.

For Contributing Agencies that remit rate charges due for all accounts, Regional San will
reimburse for the Avoided Cost of billing. At end of year, Contributing Agencies may bill
Regional San for any rates that have been determined to be ultimately unrecoverable.

Contributing Agencies that bill and collect Regional San rates must provide documentation for
unrecoverable sewer rates to Regional San.

Until either a billing and collection agreement is entered into or an Operating Agreement is
modified to add billing and collection terms, a Contributing Agency must continue to collect

o

a

8lPage

Page 123

02/23/2021 Item No.6.



DCS Contract No. 50000210

Regional San rates and charges as the Contributing Agency was doing prior to the execution of
this amended MIA.

Unless there is either a new billing and collection agreement or an amended Operating Agreement

with billing and collection terms between that Contributing Agency and Regional San, a
Contributing Agency shall establish and maintain a billing system for the collection of user service

charges for Regional San Services that conforms to the classification and categorizationof regional
user rates established and adopted by Regional San. In conjunction with the maintenance of the

billing system for regional user service charges, each Contributing Agency shall establish,
produce, and maintain adequate reports from its billing system to allow Regional San to ascertain

that the billing and transfers of billed amounts are representative of the customer base being
provided services.

Transition Period

The transition period is the period from execution of this Agreement to the effective date of the

individual Contributing Agencies' billing and collection services agreements or amendment of
existing Operating Agreements to include a section on billing and collection services. During the

transition period, Contributing Agencies will continue to conduct billing and collection and remit
fees under the current process (as stated above).

Regional San will reimburse the Contributing Agencies for the Avoided Cost of billing based on

an average annual cost per account for Regional San to bill sewer rates.

Regional San will reimburse the Contributing Agencies for Avoided Costs for the duration of the
transition period. The reimbursement payment will be made within 60 days of the effective date

of the billing and collection agreement or a revised Operating Agreement that includes a section
on the billing and collection of sewer rates.

Section 9. Collection of Regional San Charges.

Unless there is a billing and collection agreement, or a revised Operating Agreement that includes
a section on the billing and collection of sewer rates, between that Conhibuting Agency and

Regional San, a Contributing Agency shall periodically levy, bill, and use reasonable efforts to
collect from each of its residential and commercial system users a charge for Regional San Services

that conforms to the schedule of user rates adopted by Regional San that is in effect upon the date

of billing.

In respect to industrial users, Regional San shall be responsible for:

(a) Collecting all information needed to compute user charges,

(b) The computation of such charges, and

(c) Periodically billing the computed Regional San charges directly to the industrial user

without regard to the user's location within the tenitorial jurisdiction of Regional San.

9lPage

Page 124

02/23/2021 Item No.6.



DCS Contract No. 50000210

By mutual agreement, the charge for Regional San Services may be collected with the rates, tolls,
and charges for local services or other utility services.

If Regional San charges are collected with the rates, tolls, and charges of another utility, the
Regional San charge shall be shown on the billing as such and shall not be combined with any

other rate, toll, or charge appearing on the billing.

Adequate records shall be maintained by all Contributing Agencies to permit ready, separate

identification of Regional San Services and of local service charges, amounts received, and
payments made to Regional San.

Nothing herein shall prevent Regional San from levying, billing, and collecting charges for
Regional San Services from any or all residential and commercial system users when the District
Engineer determines charges are not being collected consistent with the Consolidated Ordinance.

Section 10. Payment of Charges to Regional San.

This section applies to a Contributing Agency unless there is a billing and collection agreement or
a revised Operating Agreement that includes a section on the billing and collection of sewer rates,

between a Contributing Agency and Regional San. Not later than 60 days following the date of
each regular periodic billing of a Contributing Agency, that agency shall pay to Regional San a

sum that equals the total of all charges for Regional San Services that were collected in said billing.
Payments shall be accompanied with a sunmary identification by billing categories. Detailed
account identification may remain with the Conhibuting Agency. A periodic report shall be

submitted to Regional San reconciling billings with payments.

The Contributing Agencies agree to make reasonable efforts to collect all delinquent charges and

remit collected delinquent charges within 60 days following receipt of delinquent revenue by the
Contributing Agency, while absorbing the cost of collecting such charges. The Contributing
Agencies shall provide Regional San details of uncollected delinquent charges.

Each Contributing Agency agrees to absorb:

(a) Administrative costs incidental to collection and transmittal of regional service charges;

and

(b) Costs associated with collecting delinquent charges; and

(c) Costs attributable to unbilled regional service charges that should reasonably have been
billed.

Contributing Agencies shall not bill Regional San for such costs, nor deduct such costs from
service charges due Regional San. The sole source of reimbursement to Contributing Agencies for
such costs is provided for in Section 8.

l0 lPage

Page 125

02/23/2021 Item No.6.



DCS Contract No. 50000210

Section 11. Sewer Impact tr'ees.

Regional San shall, in accordance with law and the intent expressed in the provisions of Section

12 of this Agreement, adopt a Consolidated Ordinance to establish Sewer Impact Fees for the
privilege of connecting a sewer service to any sanitary sewer within the territorial jurisdiction of
Regional San. Fees adopted by Regional San may be amended from time to time in accordance

with law and to accomplish the intent of this Agreement. Procedures for payment, collection, and

documentation of Sewer Impact Fees shall be prescribed by Regional San and each Contributing
Agency shall provide such services as are necessary for collection, documentation, and transfer of
such fees without cost to Regional San. All Sewer Impact Fees collected pursuant to this
Agreement shall be remitted no less than quarterly to Regional San. However, Sewer Impact Fees

for commercial, indushial, and multiple-family residential (except duplex) users will be computed
and collected by Regional San, unless otherwise authorized or approved by Regional San and the
Contributing Agency affected.

Section 12. Method of Computing Sewer Impact Fees for Users.

All new users connecting to a sanitary sewer owned by Regional San or one of its Contributing
Agencies shall pay an appropriate amount for their share of the capital investment in the Regional
System in accordance with the Consolidated Ordinance. The Consolidated Ordinance requires all
new users within the territorial jurisdiction of Regional San, or having applied for annexation
thereto, to pay a Sewer Impact Fee calculated to finance planning, design, construction, inspection,
administrative, debt service, debt covenant, and other related costs for wastewater conveyance,

treatment, and disposal facilities for Regional System expansion.

Sewer Impact Fees are established in the Consolidated Ordinance

Sections 13-19. Deleted.

Section 20. Annexation to Regional San.

An area within the territorial jurisdiction of a Contributing Agency may be annexed to Regional
San at the request of and with the consent of that Contributing Agency and in the manner
prescribed by law. Annexation to Regional San and a Contributing Agency may occur
simultaneously. Fees assessed by the Sacramento Local Agency Formation Commission for
processing annexations and conducting environmental reviews related to such annexations shall
be paid by the petitioners as indicated in the Consolidated Ordinance.

Any area outside the territorial jurisdiction of the Contributing Agencies may be annexed to
Regional San provided it has been designated for those classes of urban uses generally requiring
public utility services in the adopted Sacramento County General Plan or an adopted General Plan

of any other Contributing Agency as it exists at the time the annexation occurs, and if the area

simultaneously annexes to a Contributing Agency.

11 lPage

Page 126

02/23/2021 Item No.6.



DCS Contract No. 50000210

Section 21. Service to Contracting Agencies.

Regional San may enter into agreements to provide services to Contracting Agencies; provided,
however, Regional San shall not enter into an agreement to provide Regional San Services to a
Contracting Agency if the probable effect of providing such service would materially affect the
ability of any Contributing Agency to make reasonable use of the Regional System to provide local
service to its present system users or reasonably anticipated future users.

Fees chargeable for Regional San Services provided to Contracting Agencies shall be fixed by
Regional San. Said fees shall provide Regional San with full reimbursement for all costs of
whatever nature incuned by it in providing such service.

Section 22. New Contributing Agencies.

A public entity that operates its own sewage collection system may become a Contributing Agency
under this Agreement by appropriate amendment thereof and by consenting to the annexation to
Regional San of such areas of land within its territorial jurisdiction as are to be served by Regional
San. Said entity's status as a Contributing Agency shall not be effective until the annexation to
Regional San is legally consummated.

Sections 23-24. Deleted.

Section 25. Easements - Joint Usage with Regional San.

At the request of Regional San, each Conhibuting Agency and the County of Sacramento shall
permit Regional San to make reasonable joint usage of those sanitary sewer easements, rights of
way, or Public Utility Easements for which the Contributing Agency or County of Sacramento has

a right ofusage unless suchjoint usage is precluded by law or contract. Ifan easement or right of
way is situated in a public street or highway, the laws of the State of California shall govern its
joint usage by Regional San in the absence of a specific agreement relating thereto between
Regional San and the party that is the owner of the easement or right of way.

This section will sunset as to the County of Sacramento only on June 30,2024. Regional San and

the County of Sacramento may, by mutual agreement, sunset this section prior to the
aforementioned sunset date.

Section 26. Operation of Regional System.

Subject to the exceptions and limitations set forth in this Agreement, Regional San has assumed
the sole responsibility to finance, construct, reconstruct, operate, and maintain the Regional
System in compliance with all applicable regulatory requirements.

Section 27-28. Deleted.

12 lPage

Page 127

02/23/2021 Item No.6.



DCS Contract No. 50000210

Section 29. Operation of the City of Sacramento's Combined Flow Facilities.

The City of Sacramento shall operate and maintain at its sole expense all facilities required for the
collection, storage, conveyance, treatment, and discharge of combined flow originating within its
service area, including but not limited to those facilities constructed by Regional San. Provided,
however, the City of Sacramento may at no additional expense to itself make use of maximum
available capacity (not to exceed 60 MGD without the prior consent of Regional San) in the
treatment facilities constructed by Regional San at the Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant Site
for the treatment of the City of Sacramento's combined flow. The City of Sacramento may use the
available treatment capacity prior to diversion of a portion of its combined flow into storage and
treatment facilities constructed by Regional San and operated by the City of Sacramento for the
primary purpose of storing and treating combined flow or prior to the direct discharge of said flow
in untreated or partially treated form into the Sacramento River from Sump No. 1 or Sump No. 2.

Section 30-35. Deleted.

Section 36. Regional San Personnel; Local Personnel.

The County of Sacramento shall provide all personnel required for the administration, operation,
and maintenance of the Regional System. Regional San shall reimburse the County of Sacramento
for the reasonable actual costs incurred by the County of Sacramento in providing personnel for
Regional San pursuant to this section. This section will sunset on June 30,2024. Regional San and
the County of Sacramento may, by mutual agreement, sunset this section prior to the
aforementioned sunset date.

Section 37. Deleted.

Section 3S. Infiltration/Inflow - Corrective Repairs.

Each Contributing Agency will complete such corrective measures to eliminate excessive inflow
and infiltration as are reasonably demonstrated to be cost effective by studies conducted and
funded by Regional San. Regional San and the Contributing Agencies will cooperate in the studies'
design and implementation.

Sections 39-40. Deleted.

Section 41. Rules and Regulations Concerning Use of Sewers.

Regional San has adopted an ordinance regulating the use of public sewers known as the
Consolidated Ordinance and may amend the same from time to time. Each party to this Agreement
shall adopt and enforce ordinances, resolutions, rules, and regulations consistent with and
complementary to the Consolidated Ordinance to regulate the discharge into the sewers under its
control of wastewater that would be detrimental to the Regional System. Each party to this
Agreement shall also comply with the applicable statutes, rules, and regulations of Regional San

and of agencies of the United States of America, and of the State of California.

13 lPage

Page 128

02/23/2021 Item No.6.



DCS Contract No. 50000210

Section 42. Notice.

Notices required or permitted under this Agreement shall be sufficiently given to a party if in
writing and if either served personally upon or mailed by registered or certified mail to the clerk
of its goveming body.

Section 43. Time of the Essence.

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.

Section 44. Modilication of Agreement.

Regional San and the Contributing Agencies will review this Agreement every 5 years, or sooner,
to evaluate if amendments are necessary.

No term, provision, or condition of this Agreement shall be altered, amended, or departed from or
be held or construed to have been waived except by the unanimous agreement and consent of all
parties to this Agreement as evidenced by resolutions adopted by their respective governing bodies
specifically authorizing the amendatory agreement, except as provided below.

Sections 8,29,38, and Exhibit A of this Agreement may be amended if approved in writing by all
of the following parties: the District Engineer for Regional San and SASD; Director of Utilities
for the City of Sacramento; Director of Environmental and Water Resources for the City of
Folsom, and the Director of Public Works for the City of West Sacramento. Sections 25 and 36
will sunset as to the County of Sacramento on or before June 30, 2024, as specified in those
sections.

Section45. Severability.

If any parugraph, subparagraph, sentence, clause, phrase, or word of this Agreement, or the
application thereof, to any party, or to any other person or circumstance is for any reason held
invalid, it shall be deemed severable and the validity of the remainder of the Agreement or the
application of such provision to the other parties, or to any other persons or circumstance shall not
be affected thereby. Each party hereby declares that it would have entered into this Agreement and
each paragraph, subparagraph, sentence, clause, phrase, and word thereofirrespective ofthe fact
that one or more paragraphs, subparagraphs, sentences, clauses, phrases, or words, or the
application thereof to any party or any other person or circumstance, be held invalid.

Section46. Arbitration.

Any controversy or claim between any two or more parties to this Agreement, in respect to
Regional San's operations, a Contributing Agency's operations, or to any claims, disputes,
demands, differences, controversies, inequities or misunderstandings arising under, out of, or in
relation to this Agreement, (or any subsidiary agreement executed pursuant to this Agreement), or
any breach thereof, shall be submitted to and determined by arbitration. To the extent not
inconsistent herewith, the rules of the American Arbitration Association shall apply. The party

14lPage

Page 129

02/23/2021 Item No.6.



DCS Contract No. 50000210

desiring to initiate arbitration shall give notice of its intention to arbitrate to every other party to

this Agreement. Such notice shall designate as "respondents" such other parties as the initiating
party intends to have bound by any award made therein. Any party not so designated that desires

to join in the arbitration may, within ten days of service upon it of such notice, file a response

indicating its intention to join in and to be bound by the results of the arbitration, and fuither
designating any other party or parties it wishes to name as a respondent. Within fwenty (20) days

of the service of the initial demand for arbitration, the American Arbitration Association,

hereinafter referred to as "AAA" shall submit simultaneously to the initiating party and to all
parties named as respondents or filing a response therein, an identical list of names of persons

chosen from the AAA National Panel of Arbitrators which persons shall be, to the extent possible,

persons first in the field of wastewater disposal and reclamation as well as public law. Each party

to the dispute shall have seven days from the mailing date in which to cross off any names to which
it objects, number the remaining names indicating the order of its preference, and return the list to

shall be deemed acceptable. From among the persons who have been approved on both lists, in
accordance with the designated order of mutual preference, the AAA shall invite the acceptance

of an arbitrator to serve. If the parties fail to agree upon one of the persons named, or if an

acceptable arbitrator is unable to act, or if for any other reason the appointment cannot be made

from the submitted list, the AJAA shall have the power to make the appointment of the arbitrator
from other members of the panel without the submission of any additional list.

The arbitrator shall determine the rights of the parties in accordance with the law, and the award

shall be subject to review as to the arbitrator's application of the law by any court having
jurisdiction thereof, whether or not any mistake of law shall appear upon the face of the award. As

to all questions of facts, however, the determination of the arbitrator shall be binding upon all
parties and shall be final. Any party shall be entitled to written findings of fact and conclusions of
law as to all issues determined by the award. Subject to the above limitations, the award shall be

binding upon all parties to the arbitration and judgment upon the award rendered by the arbitrator
may be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

The arbitrator may, in his or her discretion, as part of the arbitration award, impose upon any one

party or allocate among two or more of the parties, the liability for the arbitration fees and

expenses. Such allocable fees may include the initial administration fees, fees for second and

subsequent hearings, postponement fees, and overtime fees. Allocable expenses may include the

expenses ofproducing witnesses, the cost ofstenographic records, the cost ofany transcripts, travel

expenses of the arbitrator and tribunal administrator, the expenses of any witnesses, the costs of
any proofs produced at the direct request ofthe arbitrator, and any other expenses relating directly
to the arbitration. In the event of the failure of the arbitrator to provide for the allocation of such

fees and expenses, the arbihation fees shall be divided equally between the parties and the expenses

shall be borne by the party incurring them.

Section 47. Deleted.

Section 48. Auditing Records.

Regional San shall have the authority to appoint such auditors as it deems necessary for the

15 lPage

Page 130

02/23/2021 Item No.6.



DCS Contract No. 50000210

examination of financial records of Contributing Agencies to determine compliance with this
Agreement. Contributing Agencies shall make available to such auditors all requested records and

will assist and cooperate with the auditors in their efforts. Specific records requirements will be

detailed in the billing and collection agreements. Examples of required documentation may include
reasonable efforts to collect delinquent charges; details of uncollectable charges; and account

billing information by parcel.

Section 49. Delayed Payments.

Whenever any pafi to this Agreement shall have failed to make any payment required of it by the
provisions of this Agreement on or before the date provided for such payment, such party shall
pay, in addition to said payment, interest thereon at the rate of seven percent (7%) per annum for
and during the period of such delay. Nothing herein contained, however, shall be deemed to
authorize or condone any delay in making any such payments.

Section 50. Failure of Regional System to Properly Treat Wastewater.

It is understood and agreed that Regional San, in granting to Contributing Agencies the rights
herein specified to discharge wastewater into the Regional System and to have such wastewater
conveyed, treated and disposed of in said system, is not warranting or guaranteeing that the

Regional System will be able to satisfactorily treat such wastewater. In the event the Regional
System should for any reason be incapable of satisfactorily conveying, treating, or disposing of
wastewater discharged into the same by Contributing Agencies and by all other parties now or
hereafter authorized to discharge wastewater therein, Regional San shall in no way be liable to
Contributing Agencies for any damages arising or resulting from or suffered because of the failure
of the Regional System to satisfactorily receive, hold, fieat, or otherwise dispose of wastewater,
provided, however, that Regional San shall not knowingly permit to be discharged into Regional
System any wastewater at rates of flow, strength or other characteristics inconsistent with those

for which the Regional System is designed to handle or has been shown capable of handling by
prior experience.

Section 51. Successors and Assigns.

It is mutually agreed by all the parties hereto that the agreements, covenants, conditions,
limitations, restrictions, and undertakings herein contained shall apply to and bind the successors

and assigns of the respective parties hereto as if they were in all cases named.

Section 52. Termination of Existing Agreements.

Concurrent with the execution of this Agreement, the 1974 MIA is hereby superseded by this
Agreement. Additionally, the Wastewater Services Agreement between the City of West
Sacramento and the Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District, Contract No. 70241, dated

March 3I,2004, will terminate upon execution of this Agreement.

Section53. Mutuallndemnification.

16 lPage

Page 131

02/23/2021 Item No.6.



DCS Contract No. 50000210

No party to this Agreement nor any officer or employee thereof shall be responsible for any

damage or liability occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be done by any other party
to this Agreement under or in connection with any work, authority or jurisdiction delegated to said

other party under this Agreement. It is also understood and agreed that, pursuant to California
Government Code Section895.4, each party to this Agreement shall fully indemnify and hold each

other party to this Agreement harmless from any liability imposed for injury (as defined by
California Government Code Section 810.8) occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to
be done by said indemnifyingparty under or in connection with any work, authority or jurisdiction
delegated to said party under this Agreement.

Section 54. Removal of County of Sacramento as a Party.

Effective June 30, 2024 when Sections 25 and 36 sunset (or sooner if Regional San and County of
Sacramento mutually agree), the County of Sacramento will no longer be a party to this
Agreement.

Section 55. Document Precedence

In the event of a conflict between any of the agreements or ordinances listed below, the following
sequence govems, with each agreement or ordinance superior to the agreement or ordinance listed
thereafter.

1. This Master Interagency Agreement

2. Regional San Consolidated Ordinance

3. Operating Agreements

4. Other agreements between Regional San and a Contributing Agency

lTlPage

Page 132

02/23/2021 Item No.6.



ATTEST:

DCS Contract No. 50000210
SACRAMENTO REGIONAL COUNTY
SANITATION DISTRICT, a political
subdivision of the State of California

By
District Engineer

CITY OF FOLSOM, a municipal corporation

By
City Manager

CITY OF SACRAMENTO, a municipal
corporation

By
Mayor

CITY OF WEST SACRAMENTO, a municipal
corporation

By
Mayor

Clerk

ATTEST:

City Clerk

ATTEST:

City Clerk

ATTEST:

Clerk
18 lPage

Page 133

02/23/2021 Item No.6.



ATTEST:

Clerk

ATTEST:

Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

City Attorney, City of Folsom

APPROVED AS TO FORM

City Attorney, City of Sacramento

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

City Attorney, City of West Sacramento

APPROVED AS TO FORM

County Counsel, for County of Sacramento,
Regional San and SASD

DCS Contract No. 50000210

COLINTY OF SACRAMENTO, apolitical
subdivision of the State of California

By
Chair

SACRAMENTO AREA SEWER DISTRICT,
a political subdivision of the State of California

By
District Engineer

19 lPage

Page 134

02/23/2021 Item No.6.



'lt
Uy

REGIONAT5AN
ffi

N

A

Exhibit "A"

Regional San lnterceptor
Sewer System

DCS Contract No. 50000210

Old Natomas
Force Main

I

12lH

Force Main

I
JTTH trVE

ELDER CREE( RO

GEREER RI,IJEADCWVJE\{ FO
iIACK RD

N

'?/
'ro

F

9ROAOIVAY

€L!D

.-d City
lnterceptor

I
o\

oa6
RD

P.
c

Central
lnterceptor

1 414

IOGE 11D

AV€

-

c
o*

"o

u

h'EL cAtitNo AVE

w Elr/ERiA RD UpperNorthwest ELVERTi RO

..! a,,rtaopr no

rt
Qt

c
=

^€ ^..!s 
Sr

$F . g/D4€//
_Sf

-o

6 lnterceptor
Sections

ot
z
a
d

'o

OAK A!'E

Northwest
lnterceptor
Sectlon I caerrercx.$

Dry Creek
lnterceptor

Van Maren
Force lUains

Natomas
lnterceptor

T€L PASo RD

IIqDISON AVE

!
s

<;

_J:

C!

z
l

z I

gLUE

., r("
+F-

oo
ci
TO

courtr !I

^,rno 
trtuBi

-':, i

c
z

s' a lron Point
Force Mains

+i ?

ui22,
KE3 uqacoltavE

o
d

o
2
o 69

EL CAtitfto AvF jF
o

o!

lnterceptor

,lilDEN ri,!\ z
Jr'HftE ROCT RO

New Natomas
Force Mains

?Fte 
-

.jr
Arden .1,

z
'g,

Mains

€s Northeast
lnterceptor Bradshaw

lnterceptor
Aerojet

lnterceptor

€
RIJER RD @

d
o
t
t
c

Southport
Gravity

, 'SASD Forc. Maln

'SASD Pump St tlon
st32

Sewer 6
Ns0

o

a

+a

.."6
JFLORIN RD

ec I
o

+c .%
T

J
q"

s(.

s'
e\r

RD

4Y
South River
Force Mains CAL'/II!E PD

nor,^,"4 
oa

"'ryt Rr)

cLaat<sE,rRG ts!9

L"g::;?
lnterceptor

SHELDON RD ^s

o o

zcc

o

o
z

3

Jd
Q*

z
o

1,.

*L
4t

BONO RO

ELK 6RCVE BLVO

R ._.

io
at o"

3.j
.J

cV

! il

6
rE' f,'HtTEl oaK PKy{t

BILBi RD

Legend

- 

Interceptor Sewers

I Pumping Stations (Regional San)

@ SacramentoRegionalWastewaterTreatmentPlant

*SASD ass6t (shown for r€f€rence only)

See attached ref€r6nco table for Regional San
int€rceptorand pump station assel names and numbers.

KAI-IUEF.EP RD

."{
o

ESCHINGEP RD

,.,.^'%1,

'1"

i4tlA.

File:10099861

HOOD

{i'",
A.

0 1.25 2.5 5
Miles

Page 135

02/23/2021 Item No.6.



DCS Contract No. 50000210

Regional San lnterceptor
Sewer System lndex

^i\
\*

REGIONALSAN
ffi,m

lnterceptors & Pumping Stations

Dry Creek lnterceptor

Arden Sewage Pumping Station & Force Mains

Central lnterceptor

Folsom lnterceptor

Northeast lnterceptor

City lnterceptor

Sump 55 Sewage Pumping Station & Force Mains

Sump 119 Sewage PumpingStation & Force Main

Sump 24 Sewage Pumping Station & Force Main

Natomas lnterceptor

Mc0lellan lnterceptor

Sump 76 Sewage Pumping Station & Force Main

Folsom East lnterceptor

Bradshaw lnterceptor

Laguna lnterceptor

lron PointSewage PumpingStation & Force Mains

Aerojet lnterceptor

South River Sewage Pumping Station & Force Mains

New Natomas Sewage Pumping Station & Force Mains

Power lnn Sewage Pumping Station & Force Main

Van Maren Sewage Pumping Station & Force Mains

South port G ravity Sewer

Upper Northwest lnterceptor Section 9

Upper Northwest lnterceptor Sections 1-6

County Sanitation District 2 Sewage Pumping Station

Old Natomas Sewage Pumping Station & Force Main

Cordova Sewage PumpingStation & Force Main

N17

N19

N21

N23

N24

N25

N27

N28

N29

N32

N33

N35

N37

N38

N39

N40

N47

N50

N51

N52

N53

N55

N56

N57

s23

s30

s33

Facilty Number Facility Name

ril. l{ii\1,:t'iil I

Page 136

02/23/2021 Item No.6.



Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION
Staff recommends the City Council approve Resolution No. 10594 - A Resolution Authorizing
the City Manager to Execute a Contract with Madsen Roofing & Waterproofing Inc. for the
Folsom Community Center Roof Repair Project.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE
The Community Center Building was built at its current location in 1991 and has served the
community for almost 30 years. However, leaks in the roof appeared during the winter of FY
2018-2019 along the entry and west side of the building. The Community Center was built
concurrently with the Police Department and City Hall, both having recently completed roof
repair projects in FY 2017-2018 and FY 2018-2019, respectively. Those projects discovered
the original configuration of the roof tile was allowing for weather damage to occur to the roof
sheeting, causing leaks throughout the roof system. This project scope anticipates similar
repair requirements to the southem and western sections of the Community Center roof,
comprising of approximately 8,600 square feet.

POLICY / RULE
In accordance with Chapter 236 of the Folsom Municipal Code, Public Works projects costing
$62,657 or greater shall be competitively bid and contracted for by the City Council.

1

MEETING DATE: 21231202r

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10594 - Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute a Contract with Madsen Roofing &
Waterproofing Inc. for the Folsom Community Center Roof
Repair Project

F'ROM: Parks and Recreation Department

Page 137

02/23/2021 Item No.7.



ANALYSIS
The Notice to Contractors for the City of Folsom Community Center Roof Repair Project was
published on January 21,2021with noticing to local and electronic bid boards and Builder's
Exchanges. No pre-bid meeting was held.

The Parks and Recreation Department received four bids on February 3,2021:

Contractor Bid
I Madsen Roofing & Waterproofing, Inc. $196,331.00

2 DK Enterprises Inc. DBA Kings Roofing $218,370.00

J Best Contracting Services, Inc. $307,473.00

4 MCM Roofing Company,Inc s245,250.00

The bid submitted by Madsen Roofing & Waterproofing, Inc. in the amount of $ 196,33 1.00 is
the lowest responsible and responsive bid.

Staff is also requesting a l5%o coftingency of $29,450 for unforeseen conditions. The true roof
underlayment and support system conditions are not known at this time. In anticipation of
conditions similar to the previous Police Department and City Hall roof repair, the bid
documents included 15 separate bid items that comprise numerous details about the roofing
system and repair project. By doing so, staff received unit prices for each item of work,
allowing firm cost control. If certain elements are in worse condition than anticipated, the unit
prices will control the cost of repair, and the contractor will only be authorized to complete
work verified by staff. It is also possible that conditions are not as severe as anticipated. In this
case, the unit bid prices will guide the execution of change order credits back to the city,
lowering the cost of the project.

F'INANCIAL IMPACT
The repairs to the roof were anticipated last year and $150,000 was included for replacement
and repairs in the Fiscal Year 2020-21 Budget. While the bid price was in excess of what was
budgeted, there are available funds in the amount of $75,000 in the General Fund (Fund 010),
Facilities Division . Staff is recommending a fifteen percent (15%) construction contingency
of $29,450. This exceeds the l0%o construction contingency authorized in the Folsom
Municipal Code but is highly recommended due to prior experiences with the other City roof
repair projects. The total project budget with contingency would be in the amount of $224,781.

Project costs:
Total Base Bid
Construction Continsencv

196,331.00
29.450.00

2

Total Project Cost $224,78r.00

Page 138

02/23/2021 Item No.7.



ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW
In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act, the proposed project is
Categorically Exempt per Article 19, 15300.1 - Relation to Ministerial Projects.

ATTACHMENT
1 . Resolution No. 1 0594 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Contract

with Madsen Roofing & Waterproofing, Inc. for the City of Folsom Community Center
Roof Repair Project

Submitted,

Lorraine Poggione, Director
Parks & Recreation Department

JPage 139

02/23/2021 Item No.7.



RESOLUTION NO. 10594

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT
WITH MADSEN ROOF'ING & WATERPROOF'ING,INC. FOR THE CITY OF'FOLSOM

COMMUNITY CENTER ROOF REPAIR PROJECT

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom staff validated the need to repair the roof of the Community
Center; and

WHEREAS, the City of Folsom Community Center Roof Repair Project will not add any new or
significant adverse impacts and is therefore exempt under Article 19 Section 1500.1 of the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA); and

WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Department published a Notice to Contractors for bidding
of the City of Folsom Community Center Repair Project on January 21,2021; and

WHEREAS' bids were opened on February 3,2021, and four responsive and responsible bids
were received; and

WHEREAS, the lowest responsive bid of $196,331 was received from Madsen Roofing &
Waterproofing, Inc.; and

WHEREAS, the project will include a contingency of 75%o or $29,450 for unanticipated building
roof and structural conditions; and

WHEREAS' there is sufficient funding budgeted and available in the Fiscal Year 2020-21
General Fund (Fund 010) budget in the Facilities Division; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes:

1. The City Manager to execute a contract, in a form acceptable to the City Attorney, in the

amount of $196,331.00 with Madsen Roofing & Waterproofing, Inc. for the City of Folsom

Community Center Roof Repair Project.

2. The City Manager, or designee, to approve project change orders not-to-exceed $29,450.00
for work associated with unanticipated building roof and structural conditions.

PASSED AI\D ADOPTED this 23'd day of February 2021by the following roll-call vote

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

ATTEST:

Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):
Councilmember(s):

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10594
Page I of I

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

Page 140

02/23/2021 Item No.7.



Folsom City Council
Staff ort

MEETING DATE: 2t231202t

AGENDA SECTION: Consent Calendar

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 10595 - A Resolution Authorizing the City
Manager to Execute an Agreement with Western Truck Parts and

Equipment Company, LLC. to Purchase One Solid Waste

Collection Vehicle

FROM: Public Works Department

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

The Public Works Department recommends that the City Council pass and adopt Resolution

No. 10595 - A Resolution Authorizngthe City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Westem

Truck Parts and Equipment Company, LLC. to Purchase A Solid Waste Collection Vehicle.

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The Public Works Department must maintain a fleet of collection vehicles that is able to provide

efficient and reliable solid waste collection service. The City's requirement for this collection

vehicle is based on the need to replace its aging fleet (pursuant to the Division's approved

replacement schedule) and to provide the curent level of services. The vehicle being purchased

will replace a vehicle with high maintenance costs, that is nine years of age, and has over 108,000

miles of use.

This resolution will authorize the City Manager to execute an agreement with Western Truck
Parts and Equipment Company, LLC. (Western Truck) for the purchase of one (1) automated

side loader collection vehicle. The total cost for the purchase of this vehicle will not exceed

$355,431.27. Sufficient funds to purchase the replacement vehicles are budgeted and available
in the Fiscal Year 2020-21 Solid Waste Operating Fund (Fund 540).

1

POLICY / RULE

Page 141

02/23/2021 Item No.8.



Section 2.36.120 of the Folsom Municipal Code states, in part, that contracts for supplies,

equipment, services, and construction with an estimated value of $62,657 or greater shall be

awarded by the City Council.

Section 2.36.170 of the Folsom Municipal Code permits cooperative purchasing agreements for
the procurement of any supplies, equipment, service, or construction with one or more public
procurement units in accordance with an agreement entered into or between the participants.

ANALYSIS

Sourcewell, which was previously known as the National Joint Powers Agency, is a national
cooperative purchasing entity of whichthe City of Folsom is amember. The City has purchased

numerous items through Sourcewell.

Western Truck has a current contract with Sourcewell for solid waste collection vehicles at a
price that has been assessed to be fair, reasonable, and competitive.

Sourcewell contract number #081716-PMC will be utilized for the purchase of solid waste

collection vehicles.

o New Way Automated Side Loader with Peterbilt chassis - $355,43I.27 pt vehicle

This price includes taxes, tire fees and delivery.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

One million five hundred thousand dollars has been appropriated within the Solid Waste Fiscal
Year 2020-21 Capital Outlay Budget to purchase vehicles. The Department is requesting that
the new contract be authorized for a not to exceed amount of $355,431.27. Sufficient funds to
purchase the replacement vehicles are budgeted and available in the Fiscal Year 2020-21 Solid
Waste Operating Fund (Fund 540).

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW

This action is exempt from environmental review under the California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA).

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No. 10595 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an

Agreement with Western Truck Parts and Equipment Company, LLC. to Purchase One

Solid Waste Collection Vehicle.

1

2
Page 142

02/23/2021 Item No.8.



Submitted,

Dave Nugen, Public Works Director

JPage 143

02/23/2021 Item No.8.



RESOLUTION NO. 10595

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN
AGREEMENT WITH WESTERN TRUCK PARTS AND EQUIPMENT COMPANY,

LLC. TO PURCHASE ONE SOLID WASTE COLLECTION VEHICLE

WHEREAS, the Public Works Department has validated its need to purchase one
automated side loader solid waste collection vehicle based on an approved replacement and
expansion schedule; and

WHEREAS, this purchase is through Sourcewell, which used its recognized cooperative
purchasing agreement to award Western Truck Parts and Equipment Company, LLC.; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are budgeted and available in the Fiscal Year 2020-21
Solid Waste Fund (Fund 540) Budget which included $1,500,000 for the purchase of vehicles;
and

WHEREAS, staff recommends the execution of a contract with Western Truck Parts and
Equipment Company, LLC. for the purchase of one automated side loader solid waste collection
vehicle; and

WHEREAS, the agreement will be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom
authorizes the City Manager to execute an agreement with Western Truck Parts and Equipment
Company, LLC. to purchase one New Way Automated Side Loader Solid Waste Collection
Vehicles with Peterbilt chassis for the Public Works Department at atotal cost of $355,431.27
including tax and delivery.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 23'd day of February 2021, by the following roll-call
vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):
Council Member(s):

Michael D. Kozlowski, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK

Resolution No. 10595
Page I of I

Page 144

02/23/2021 Item No.8.



MEETING DATE: 

AGENDA SECTION: 

SUBJECT: 

FROM: 

Folsom City Council 
Staff Re ort 

2/23/2021 

Public Hearing 

Alder Creek Apartments - Southeast Corner of Alder Creek 
Parkway and Westwood Drive in the Folsom Plan Area (PN 18-
222) 

I. Resolution No. 10596 - A Resolution to Adopt an 
Addendum to the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan EIR/EIS 
and Approve a General Plan Amendment, Specific Plan 
Amendment, and Planned Development Permit for the 
Alder Creek Apartments Project 

Community Development Department 

RECOMMENDATION/ CITY COUNCIL ACTION 

Move to adopt Resolution No. 10596 - A Resolution to Adopt an Addendum to the Folsom 
Plan Area Specific Plan EIR/EIS and Approve a General Plan Amendment, Specific Plan 
Amendment, and Planned Development Permit for the Alder Creek Apartments Project. 

BACKGROUND/ ISSUE 

The applicant, the Spanos Corporation, is requesting approval of a General Plan Amendment, 
Specific Plan Amendment, Planned Development Permit, and Minor Administrative 
Modification for the development and operation of a 265-unit market rate apartment 
community (Alder Creek Apartments) on a 10.8-acre site located at the southeast corner of the 
intersection of Alder Creek Parkway and Westwood Drive within the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 
portion of the Folsom Plan Area. A vicinity map showing the specific location of the project 
site is shown in Figure 1 on the following page. 

1 

Page 145

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



FIGURE I: VICINITY MAP 

• 11,461 DU 
• 27,965 Population 
• 6.6 du/ac Average Density 

Project Site 

• 2.Bm GSF Commercial 

'i.. 

\ 
4 

' \ 

As noted previously, the applicant is requesting approval of four entitlements to allow for 
development of the proposed apartment community. The first entitlement is a request for 
approval of a General Plan Amendment to change the General Plan land use designation for a 
5.0-acre portion of the project site from MLD (Multi-Family Low Density) to MHD (Multi
Family High Density). The second entitlement is a request for approval of a Specific Plan 
Amendment to change the Specific Plan land use designation for the same 5.0-acre portion of 
the project site from SP-MLD-PD (Specific Plan, Multi-Family Low Density, Planned 
Development District) to SP-MHD-PD (Specific Plan, Multi-Family High Density, Planned 
Development District). 

The third entitlement is a request for approval of a Planned Development Permit to establish 
project-specific development standards, review the project site design, evaluate the 
architectural design of the multi-family apartment buildings and clubhouse, and establish 
signage criteria. The fourth entitlement is a request for approval of a Minor Administrative 
Modification (MAM) for the transfer of development rights to move 62 allocated dwelling 
units from other locations within the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan to the project site and to 
relocate dwelling units among three other parcels located within the Folsom Plan Area. Full 
details regarding the proposed project entitlements and associated analysis are provided in the 
Planning Commission Staff Report which is included as Attachment 2 to this staff report. 

2 
Page 146

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



The proposed project was considered by the Planning Commission at its February 3, 2021 
meeting. The Commission engaged in a thorough review of the proposed project including 
discussions regarding site design, pedestrian circulation, bicycle parking, renewable energy 
features, traffic study methodology, environmental review procedures, transfer of development 
The proposed project was considered by the Planning Commission at its February 3, 2021 
meeting. The Commission engaged in a thorough review of the proposed project including 
discussions regarding site design, pedestrian circulation, bicycle parking, renewable energy 
features, traffic study methodology, environmental review procedures, transfer of development 
rights, and inclusionary housing requirements. 

In relation to pedestrian circulation, the Commission recommended that a condition of 
approval be added (Condition No. 34, last bullet point) that requires the proposed project to 
include an additional pedestrian connection that provides access from the project site to the 
sidewalk along Quail Meadow Way located in the southeast comer of the project site. The 
Commission indicated that the additional pedestrian connection would provide residents of the 
apartment community with better access to a future elementary school site located across Old 
Ranch Way to the south. A detailed discussion of each of the aforementioned topics is included 
within the Planning Commission Staff Report (Attachment 2). No members of the public 
spoke regarding the proposed project. The Planning Commission adopted a motion (7-0-0-0) 
to recommend approval of the proposed project to the City Council. 

POLICY / RULE 

The Folsom Municipal Code (FMC) requires that applications for General Plan Amendments 
and Specific Plan Amendments be forwarded to the City Council for final action, following a 
public hearing and recommendation by the Planning Commission. City Council actions 
regarding General Plan and Specific Plan Amendments are covered under Sections 17.68.080 
and 17.37.090 of the Folsom Municipal Code. 

ANALYSIS 

Detailed analysis for the Alder Creek Apartments project is provided in the Planning 
Commission Staff Report which is included as Attachment 2 to this report. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

This is a private development, not a City project. No financial impact to the FPA Public 
Facilities Financing Plan is anticipated with approval of the Alder Creek Apartments project 
as the proposed development will not result in any change in the total number of residential 
units or total amount of commercial square footage within the Folsom Plan Area. 

3 
Page 147

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

The City, as the lead agency under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), has 
determined that, in accordance with Section 15164 of the State CEQ A Guidelines, the proposed 
land use and density changes, and other changes constitute minor changes to the development 
scenario described in the Final EIR/EIS for the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan, warranting 
the preparation of an Addendum. An Addendum is appropriate where a previously certified 
EIR has been prepared and some changes or revisions to the project are proposed, or the 
circumstances surrounding the project have changed, but none of the changes or revisions 
would result in significant new or substantially more severe environmental impacts, consistent 
with CEQA Section 21166 and State CEQA Guidelines Sections 15162 and 15163. 

An Environmental Checklist and Addendum was prepared in accordance with CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15164 to evaluate whether the proposed project's effects were adequately 
examined in the FP ASP EIR/EIS. The Environmental Checklist and Addendum concluded 
that no changes associated with the proposed project and no changed circumstances trigger 
subsequent or supplemental environmental review. The Environmental Checklist and 
Addendum are included at Attachment 18 to this staff report. In addition, the Mitigation 
Monitoring and Reporting Program are included as Attachment 19 to this staff report. The 
Addendum and associated appendices prepared for the Alder Creek Apartments project are 
also available for viewing on the City's Website at the following link: 
ht1ps://W\vw.folsom.ca.us/commun.ity/planning/current project information.asp 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Resolution No. 10596 - A Resolution to Adopt an Addendum to the Folsom Plan Area 
Specific Plan EIR/EIS and Approve a General Plan Amendment, Specific Plan 
Amendment, and Planned Development Permit for the Alder Creek Apartments Project 

2. Planning Commission Staff Report, dated February 3, 2021 
3. Vicinity Map 
4. General Plan/Specific Plan Amendment Exhibit, dated November 9, 2020 
5. Preliminary Site Plan, dated May 12, 2020 
6. Preliminary Utility Plan, dated May 12, 2020 
7. Preliminary Grading and Drainage Plan, dated May 12, 2020 
8. Preliminary Landscape Plan and Details, dated January 11, 2021 
9. Preliminary Access and Circulation Plan, dated November 23, 2020 
10. Preliminary Wall, Fence, and Sign Exhibit, dated May 8, 2020 
11. Preliminary Lighting Plan and Details, dated December 11, 2019 
12. Building Elevations and Floor Plans, dated December 6, 2019 
13. Color Renderings, dated December 6, 2019 
14. Color and Materials Board, dated December 6, 2019 
15. Building and Parking Summary, dated November 18, 2020 
16. Site Photographs 

4 
Page 148

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



1 7. Transportation Impact Study, dated December 21, 2020 
18. Environmental Checklist and Addendum for the Alder Creek Apartments Project, dated 

January, 2021 
19. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program for the Alder Creek Apartments Project, 

dated January, 2021 
20. Summary of Amendments to the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan, 2011-2020 
21. Folsom Ranch Central District Design Guidelines 
22. City Council PowerPoint Presentation 

Submitted, 

PAM JOHNS 
Community Development Director 

5 
Page 149

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



ATTACHMENT l 

Page 150

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



RESOLUTION NO. 10596 

A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT AN ADDENDUM TO THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA 
SPECIFIC PLAN EIR/EIS AND APPROVE A GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT, 

SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT, AND PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT FOR 
THE ALDER CREEK APARTMENTS PROJECT 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission on February 3, 2021, held a public hearing on the 
proposed General Plan Amendment, considered public comment and determined that the 
development of a market-rate apartment community on the project site is consistent with the goals, 
policies, and objectives of the City of Folsom General Plan and will not result in a net loss of 
residential capacity within the Folsom Plan Area; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission on February 3, 2021, held a public hearing on the 
proposed Specific Plan Amendment, considered public comment and determined that the 
development of a market-rate apartment community on the project site is consistent with the goals, 
policies, and objectives of the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan and the City's General Plan, as 
Amended, and will not result in a net loss ofresidential capacity within the Folsom Plan Area; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission on February 3, 2021 held a public hearing on the 
proposed Planned Development Permit, considered public comment and determined that based 
on the proposed site design, building heights, building setbacks, building coverage, residential 
density, parking, and signage, the project is consistent with the City's General Plan, the Folsom 
Plan Area Specific Plan, and Chapter 17.38 "Planned Development District", of the Folsom 
Municipal Code; and 

WHEREAS, notice has been given at the time and in the manner required by State Law 
and City Code; and 

WHEREAS, an Environmental Checklist and Addendum to the 2011 Folsom Plan Area 
Specific Plan Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Impact Statement (FPASP EIR/EIS) 
has been prepared for the proposed project in accordance with the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Folsom 
hereby Approve and Adopt the Addendum to the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan EIR/EIS for the 
Alder Creek Apartments Project, Amend the General Plan land use designations, Amend the 
Specific Plan land use designations, and Approve a Planned Development Permit for the Alder 
Creek Apartments Project, as set forth in the General Plan and Specific Plan Amendment Exhibit 
attached as Exhibit "A" and as set forth in the conditions of approval attached as Exhibit "B" and 
the following findings: 

Resolution No. 10596 
Page I of25 

Page 151

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



GENERAL FINDINGS 

A. NOTICE OF HEARING HAS BEEN GIVEN AT THE TIME AND IN THE MANNER 
REQUIRED BY STATE LAW AND CITY CODE. 

B. THE PROJECT IS GENERALLY CONSISTENT WITH THE GENERAL PLAN AS 
AMENDED, THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN AS AMENDED, AND 
THE FOLSOM RANCH CENTRAL DISTRICT DESIGN GUIDELINES. 

CEOA FINDINGS 

C. THE CITY, AS LEAD AGENCY, PREVIOUSLY CERTIFIED AN 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT/ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT 
FOR THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN. 

D. AN ADDENDUM TO THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN FINAL 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT/ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT STATEMENT 
WAS CERTIFIED BY THE CITY IN 2015 FOR THE WESTLAND EAGLE SPECIFIC 
PLAN AMENDMENT PROJECT IN ACCORDANCE WITH CEQA. 

E. THE CITY HAS DETERMINED THAT THE ALDER CREEK APARTMENTS 
PROJECT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN AS 
AMENDED BY THE WESTLAND EAGLE SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT AND 
THE AMENDMENT SOUGHT AS A PART OF THIS PROJECT. 

F. THE CITY HAS DETERMINED THAT NONE OF THE CIRCUMSTANCES 
DESCRIBED IN PUBLIC RESOURCES CODE SECTION 21166 OR CEQA 
GUIDELINES SECTION 15162 GENERALLY REQUIRING THE PREPARATION 
OF A SUBSEQUENT EIR EXIST IN THIS CASE. 

G. THE CITY HAS PREPARED AN ADDENDUM TO THE FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL 
IMPACT REPORT FOR THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN AND HAS 
DETERMINED THAT THE PROJECT CREATES NO NEW IMPACTS AND DOES 
NOT REQUIRE ANY MITIGATION MEASURES IN ADDITION TO THOSE IN THE 
FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT AND THE ADDENDUM FOR THE 
WESTLAND EAGLE SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT PROJECT. 

H. THE CITY HAS DETERMINED THAT THE IMPACTS OF THE ALDER CREEK 
APARTMENTS PROJECT ARE ADEQUATELY ADDRESSED BY THE FINAL 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT FOR THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC 
PLAN, THE ADDENDUM FOR THE WESTLAND EAGLE SPECIFIC PLAN 
AMENDMENT PROJECT, AND THE ADDENDUM FOR THE ALDER CREEK 
APARTMENTS PROJECT. 

I. THE CITY COUNCIL HAS CONSIDERED THE ADDENDUM WITH THE FINAL 
EIR BEFORE MAKING A DECISION ON THE PROJECT. 

Resolution No. 10596 
Page 2 of25 Page 152

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT FINDINGS 

J. THE PROPOSED GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE 
GOALS, POLICIES AND OBJECTIVES OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM GENERAL 
PLAN 

K. THE PROPOSED GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE 
OBJECTIVES OF THE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE CITY'S GENERAL PLAN 
AND DEVELOPMENT POLICIES. 

L. THE PROPOSED GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT WILL NOT RESULT IN A NET 
LOSS OF RESIDENTIAL CAPACITY. 

M. THE PROPOSED GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT IS IN THE PUBLIC INTEREST. 

N. PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 65352.3, THE CITY 
CONTACTED ALL CALIFORNIA NATIVE AMERICAN TRIBES ON THE 
CONTACT LIST MAINTAINED BY THE NATIVE AMERICAN HERITAGE 
COMMISSION IN ASSOCIATION WITH THIS PROJECT. THE CITY RECEIVED 
TWO REQUESTS FOR CONSULTATION FROM NATIVE AMERICAN TRIBES, 
BOTH TRIBES LATER FAILED TO PURSUE CONSULTATION WITH THE CITY. 

FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT FINDINGS 

0. THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN 
IS CONSISTENT WITH THE CITY'S GENERAL PLAN (AS AMENDED). 

P. THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE FPASP WILL NOT RESULT IN A NET 
LOSS OF RESIDENTIAL CAPACITY. 

Q. THE PROPOSED SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT IS IN THE PUBLIC INTEREST. 

R. THE PROPOSED SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE 
GOALS, POLICIES, AND OBJECTIVES OF THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC 
PLAN. 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT FINDINGS 

S. THE PROPOSED PROJECT COMPLIES WITH THE INTENT AND PURPOSES OF 
THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN AS AMENDED AND OTHER 
APPLICABLE ORDINANCES OF THE CITY AND THE GENERAL PLAN AS 
AMENDED. 

Resolution No. 10596 
Page 3 of25 

Page 153

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



T. THE PROPOSED PROJECT IS GENERALLY CONSISTENT WITH THE 
OBJECTIVES, POLICIES AND REQUIREMENTS OF THE DEVELOPMENT 
STANDARDS OF THE CITY. THE MINOR MODIFICATION TO THOSE 
STANDARDS PROPOSED AS PART OF THIS PROJECT WILL RESULT IN A 
DEVELOPMENT THAT IS SUPERIOR TO THAT OBTAINED BY THE RIGID 
APPLICATION OF THE STANDARDS. 

U. THE PHYSICAL, FUNCTIONAL AND VISUAL COMPATIBILITY BETWEEN THE 
PROPOSED PROJECT AND EXISTING AND FUTURE ADJACENT USES AND 
AREA CHARACTERISTICS IS ACCEPTABLE. 

V. AS CONDITIONED, THE PROJECT WILL MAKE AVAILABLE NECESSARY 
PUBLIC FACILITIES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, WATER, SEWER 
AND DRAINAGE, AND THE PROJECT WILL ADQUATEL Y PROVIDE FOR THE 
FURNISHING OF SUCH FACILITIES. 

W. THE PROPOSED PROJECT WILL NOT CAUSE ADVERSE ENVIRONMENTAL 
IMPACTS WHICH HAVE NOT BEEN MITIGATED TO AN ACCEPTABLE LEVEL. 

X. THE PROPOSED PROJECT WILL NOT CAUSE UNACCEPTABLE VEHICULAR 
TRAFFIC LEVELS ON SURROUNDING ROADWAYS, AND THE PROPOSED 
PROJECT WILL PROVIDE ADEQUATE INTERNAL CIRCULATION, INCLUDING 
INGRESS AND EGRESS. 

Y. THE PROPOSED PROJECT WILL NOT BE DETRIMENTAL TO THE HEAL TH, 
SAFETY AND GENERAL WELFARE OF THE PERSONS OR PROPERTY WITHIN 
THE VICINITY OF THE PROJECT SITE, AND THE CITY AS A WHOLE. 

Z. ADEQUATE PROVISION IS MADE FOR THE FURNISHING OF SANITATION 
SERVICES AND EMERGENCY PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES TO THE 
DEVELOPMENT. 

Resolution No. 10596 
Page 4 of25 Page 154

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



PASSED AND ADOPTED this 23rd day of February, 2021, by the following roll-call 
vote: 

AYES: Council Member(s): 
NOES: Council Member(s): 
ABSENT: Council Member(s): 
ABSTAIN: Council Member(s): 

ATTEST: 

Christa Freemantle, CITY CLERK 

Resolution No. 10596 
Page 5 of25 

Mike Kozlowski, MAYOR 

Page 155

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Resolution No. 10596 
Page 6 of25 

Exhibit A 

Page 156

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



+ 

Legen~•·••n-:: S." .. "= ~• 

D~• ~~,. t:) c.: ~nc= 
c:J ~rCJ -s~ ::r•rD t::J x ~ t't: 
[:] •,1.~ SI' \.LC D P< ,~ 0>; • 1,,1\.0 ~--- Ul,,II: • 1'17 !,;I' :-::r-
@ Uul! ~"~•~ - n c:•r ......,:-'~~--,--------- - ----------- ---1 c:Ju..1 ~a •.n. t:J ~ ~n-er.; 

N~ ,::t=, ~ lh.1: oz: m, ,-,:,.= 71.·, :,:11':"~ 

, .. e. 

--~•'-" ·-·-
'( .,__. 

- --

Alder Creek A artmenb 
Specific Plan Amendment / 
General Plan Amendment, 

Minor Administrative Amendment & Transfer of Develo 

Resolution No. 10596 
Page 7 of25 

A} 

Page 157

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Resolution No. 10596 
Page 8 of25 

Exhibit B 

Page 158

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Condition 
No. 

l. 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR THE ALDER CREEK APARTMENTS PROJECT (PN 18-222) 
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE INTERSECTION OF ALDER CREEK PARKWAY AND WESTWOOD DRIVE 
GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT, SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT, PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT, AND 

MINOR ADMINISTRATIVE MODIFICATION 
Mitigation 
Measure 

Condition of Approval 

The owner/applicant shall submit final site development plans to the Community 
Development Department that shall substantially conform to the exhibits referenced 
below: 

1. General Plan/Specific Plan Amendment Exhibit, dated November 9, 2020 
2. Preliminary Site Plan, dated May 12, 2020 
3. Preliminary Site Plan, dated May 12, 2020 
4. Preliminary Utility Plan, dated May 12, 2020 
5. Preliminary Grading and Drainage Plan, dated May 12, 2020 
6. Preliminary Landscape Plan and Details, dated December 12, 2019 
7. Preliminary Access and Circulation Plan, dated November 23, 2020 
8. Preliminary Wall, Fence, and Sign Exhibit, dated May 8, 2020 
9. Preliminary Lighting Plan and Details, dated December 11, 2019 
10. Building Elevations and Floor Plans, dated December 6, 2019 
11. Color Renderings, dated December 6, 2019 
12. Color and Materials Board, dated December 6, 2019 
13. Building and Parking Summary, dated November 18, 2020 
14. Transportation Impact Study, dated December 21, 2020 
15. Environmental Checklist and Addendum for the Alder Creek Apartments Project, 

dated January, 2021 
16. Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program for Alder Creek Apartments Project, 

dated January, 2021 
The General Plan Amendment, Specific Plan Amendment, Planned Development 
Permit, and Minor Administrative Modification are approved for the development and 
operation of a 265-unit multi-family residential project (Alder Creek Apartments). 
Implementation of the project shall be consistent with the above referenced items and 
these conditions of annroval. 

When 
Required 

G, I, B 

Resolution No. 10596 
Page 9 of25 

Responsible 
Department 

CD (P)(E) 

Page 159

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



2. 

3. 

4. 

Resolution No. 10596 
Page IO of25 

Building plans, and all civil engineering, improvement, landscape and irrigation plans, 
shall be submitted to the Community Development Department for review and approval 
to ensure conformance with this approval and with relevant codes, policies, standards 
and other requirements of the City of Folsom. 
The project approvals granted under this staff report (Planned Development Permit) 
shall remain in effect for two years from final date of approval (February 23, 2023). 
Failure to obtain the relevant building (or other) permits within this time period, without 
the subsequent extension of this approval, shall result in the termination of this 
approval. The General Plan Amendment and Specific Plan Amendment, which will 
take effect 30 days following City Council approval of the project do not have an 
expiration date. The Minor Administrative Modification (MAM) does not have an 
expiration date. 
The owner/applicant shall protect, defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City and its 
agents, officers and employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City or 
its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void, or annul any approval by the 
City or any of its agencies, departments, commissions, agents, officers, employees, or 
legislative body concerning the project, which claim, action or proceeding is brought 
within the time period provided therefore in Government Code Section 66499.37 or 
other applicable statutes of limitation. The City will promptly notify the 
owner/applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and will cooperate fully in the 
defense. If the City should fail to cooperate fully in the defense, the owner 
owner/applicant shall not thereafter be responsible to defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless the City or its agents, officers, and employees, pursuant to this condition. The 
City may, within its unlimited discretion, participate in the defense of any such claim, 
action or proceeding if both of the following occur: 

• The City bears its own attorney's fees and costs; and 

• The City defends the claim, action or proceeding in good faith 

The owner/applicant shall not be required to pay or perform any settlement of such 
claim, action or proceeding unless the settlement is approved by the owner/applicant. 
The owner/applicant's obligations under this condition shall apply regardless of 
whether a Final Map is ultimately recorded with respect to this project. 

G,l,B CD (P)(E)(B) 

B CD(P) 

OG CD (P)(E)(B) 
PW,PR,FD, 

PD 

Page 160

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



5. 

6. 

✓ 

Resolution No. 10596 
Page 11 of25 

The owner/applicant shall comply with all provisions of Amendments No. I and 2 to 
the First Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development Agreement and any approved B CD(E) 
amendments thereafter by and between the City and the owner/applicant of the project. 

The owner/applicant shall participate in a mitigation monitoring and reporting program 
pursuant to City Council Resolution No. 2634 and Public Resources Code 21081.6. 
The mitigation monitoring and reporting measures identified in the Folsom Plan Area 
Specific Plan FEIR/EIS have been incorporated into these conditions of approval in OG CD(P) 
order to mitigate or avoid significant effects on the environment. These mitigation 
monitoring and reporting measures are identified in the mitigation measure column. 
Applicant shall fund on a Time and Materials basis all mitigation monitoring ( e.g., staff 
and consultant time). 

Page 161

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



7. 

Resolution No. 10596 
Page 12 of25 

The owner/applicant acknowledges that the State adopted amendments to Section 
65850 of the California Government Code (specifically Section 65850(g)), effective 
January 1, 2018, to allow for the implementation of inclusionary housing requirements 
in residential rental units, upon adoption of an ordinance by the City. In the event that 
the City amends its Inclusionary Housing Ordinance (IHO) with respect to inclusionary 
requirements for rental housing units prior to owner/applicant's submittal of a complete 
application for a building permit for the Alder Creek Apartments Project, the 
owner/applicant ( or successor in interest) agrees that FPASP Parcel 82-B 1 shall be 
subject to said rental unit inclusionary requirements, as amended. 

City agrees, however, that FPASP Parcel 82-B 1 shall not be subject to the inclusionary 
requirements of any future amendment of the City's IHO occurring prior to submittal of 
a complete building permit application, if both of the following conditions are met: 

B CD(P) 

a) a deed restriction is recorded on FP ASP Parcel 148 requiring Parcel 148 to be 
developed only with multi-family housing affordable to low-, very-low, and/or 
extremely-low income households (as those terms are specified in Sections 
50079.5, 50093, 50105, and 50106 of the Health and Safety Code), which shall 
remain in place for 55 years from the date ofrecording; and 

b) the foregoing deed restriction on FP ASP Parcel 148 is recorded prior to 
issuance of a building permit for the Alder Creek Apartments Project. 

The form of deed restriction shall be submitted with owner/applicant's application for a 
building permit and will be subject to the City Attorney's approval, which shall not be 
unreasonably withheld. 

Page 162

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



8. 

9. 

10. 

11. 

Resolution No. 10596 
Page 13 of25 

POLICE/SECURITY REQUIREMENT 
The owner/applicant shall consult with the Police Department in order to incorporate all 
reasonable crime prevention measures. The following security/safety measures shall be 
considered: 

• A security guard on-duty at all times at the site or a six-foot security fence shall be 
constructed around the perimeter of construction areas. 

• Security measures for the safety of all construction equipment and unit appliances . 

• Landscaping shall not cover exterior doors or windows, block line-of-sight at 
intersections or screen overhead lighting. 

DEVELOPMENT COSTS AND FEE REQUIREMENTS 
The owner/applicant shall pay all applicable taxes, fees and charges for the project at 
the rate and amount required by the Public Facilities Financing Plan and Amendments 
No. 1 and No. 2 to the Amended and Restated Tier 1 Development A!!reement. 
If applicable, the owner/applicant shall pay off any existing assessments against the 
property, or file necessary segregation request and pay applicable fees. 
The owner/applicant shall be subject to all Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Area 
development impact fees established at the time of approval consistent with the Public 
Facilities Financing Plan (PFFP), Development Agreement and amendments thereto, 
unless exempt by previous agreement. The owner/applicant shall be subject to all 
applicable Folsom Plan Area plan-wide development impact fees in effect at the time of 
approval at the rates in effect when a building permit is issued. These fees may include, 
but are not limited to, the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Fee, Specific Plan 
Infrastructure Fee (SPIF), Solid Waste Fee, Corporation Yard Fee, Transportation 
Management Fee, Transit Fee, Highway 50 Interchange Fee, General Park Equipment 
Fee, Housing Trust Fee, etc. 

Any protest to such for all fees, dedications, reservations or other exactions imposed on 
this project will begin on the date of final approval, or otherwise shall be governed by 
the terms of Amendments No. 1 and 2 to ARDA. The fees shall be calculated at the fee 
rate set forth in the PFFP and the ARDA. 

G,l,B PD 

B CD (P)(E) 

B CD(E) 

B CD (P), PW, PK 

Page 163

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



12. 

13. 

14. 

15. 

16. 

Resolution No. 10596 
Page 14 of25 

The City, at its sole discretion, may utilize the services of outside legal counsel to assist 
in the implementation of this project, including, but not limited to, drafting, reviewing 
and/or revising agreements and/or other documentation for the project. If the City 
utilizes the services of such outside legal counsel, the City shall provide notice to the 
owner/applicant of the outside counsel selected, the scope of work and hourly rates, and 
the owner/applicant shall reimburse the City for all outside legal fees and costs incurred 
and documented by the City for such services. The owner/applicant may be required, at 
the sole discretion of the City Attorney, to submit a deposit to the City for these 
services prior to initiation of the services. The owner/applicant shall be responsible for 
reimbursement to the City for the services regardless of whether a deposit is required. 
If the City utilizes the services of consultants to prepare special studies or provide 
specialized design review or inspection services for the project, the City shall provide 
notice to the owner/applicant of the outside consultant selected, the scope of work and 
hourly rates, and the owner/applicant shall reimburse the City for actual costs incurred 
and documented in utilizing these services, including administrative costs for City 
personnel. A deposit for these services shall be provided prior to initiating review of 
the Grading Plan, Final Map, improvement plans, or beginning inspection, whichever is 
applicable. 

GRADING PERMIT REQUIREMENTS 
The owner/applicant shall locate and remediate all antiquated mine shafts, drifts, open 
cuts, tunnels, and water conveyance or impoundment structures existing on the project 
site, with specific recommendations for the sealing, filling, or removal of each that meet 
all applicable health, safety and engineering standards. Recommendations shall be 
prepared by an appropriately licensed engineer or geologist. All remedial plans shall be 
reviewed and aooroved bv the City prior to approval of grading plans. 
The owner/applicant shall obtain all required State and Federal permits and provide 
evidence that said permits have been obtained, or that the permit is not required, subject 
to staff review prior to approval of any grading or improvement plan. 
The final location, design, height, materials, and colors of the retaining walls, seat 
walls, and fences shall be consistent with the submitted Wall and Fence Exhibit, dated 
May 8, 2020 subject to review and approval by the Community Development 
Department to ensure consistency with the Folsom Ranch Central District Design 
Guidelines. In addition, the four-foot-tall vinyl-coated chain link fencing at the dog 
park shall be replaced with tubular steel fencing or a similar decorative fencing design 
to the satisfaction of the Community Development Department. 

OG CD (P)(E) 

G,l,B CD (P)(E) 

G CD(E) 

G, I CD (P)(E) 

G,l,B CD (P)(E), FD 

Page 164

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



17. 

18. 

19. 

20. 

Resolution No. 10596 
Page 15 of25 

IMPROVEMENT PLAN REQUIREMENTS 
The improvement plans for the required public and private improvements necessary to 
serve the project shall be reviewed and approved by the Community Development 
Department prior to approval of a building permit for the project. 
Public and private improvements, including roadways, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, 
bicycle lanes and trails, streetlights, underground infrastructure and all other 
improvements shall be provided in accordance with the latest edition of the City of 
Folsom Standard Construction S12.ecifications and Details and the Design and 
Procedures Manual and Imvrovement Standards. 
The on-site water and sewer systems shall be privately owned and maintained. The fire 
protection system shall be separate from the domestic water system. The fire system 
shall be constructed to meet the National Fire Protection Association Standard 24. The 
domestic water and irrigation system shall be metered per City of Folsom Standard 
Construction Svecifications. 
The owner/applicant of all project phases shall submit a lighting plan for the project to 
the Community Development Department. The lighting plan shall be consistent with 
the Folsom Ranch Central District Design Guidelines: 

• Shield or screen lighting fixtures to direct the light downward and prevent light spill 
on adjacent properties; 

• Place and shield or screen flood and area lighting needed for construction activities, 
nighttime sporting activities, and/or security so as not to disturb adjacent residential 
areas and passing motorists; 

• For public lighting in residential neighborhoods, prohibit the use of light fixtures 
that are of unusually high intensity or that blink or flash; 

• Use appropriate building materials (such as low-glare glass, low-glare building 
glaze or finish, neutral, earth toned colored paint and roofing materials), shielded or 
screened lighting, and appropriate signage in the office/commercial areas to prevent 
light and glare from adversely affecting motorists on nearby roadways; and 

• Design exterior on-site lighting as an integral part of the building and landscaping 
design in the Specific Plan Area. Lighting fixtures shall be architecturally 
consistent with the overall site design. Lights used on signage should be directed to 
liclit only the sim face with no off-site glare. 

B CD(E) 

I CD (P)(E) 

I CD(E) 

I CD(P) 

Page 165

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



21. 

22. 

23. 

24. 

25. 

26. 

Resolution No. 10596 
Page 16 of25 

The owner/applicant shall coordinate the planning, development and completion of this 
project with the various utility agencies (i.e., SMUD, PG&E, etc.). The 
owner/applicant shall provide the City with written confirmation of public utility 
service prior to annroval of the final map. 
The owner/applicant shall be responsible for replacing any, and all damaged or 
hazardous public sidewalk, curb, and gutter, and/or bicycle trail facilities along the site 
frontage and/or boundaries, including pre-existing conditions and construction damage, 
to the satisfaction of the Community Development Department. 
All future utility lines lower than 69 KV that are to be built within the project shall be 
placed underground within and along the perimeter of the project at the developer's 
cost. The owner/applicant shall dedicate to SMUD all necessary underground 
easements for the electrical facilities that will be necessary to service development of 
the project. 
The owner/applicant shall pay for, furnish, and install all infrastructure associated with 
the water meter fixed network system for any City-owned and maintained water meter 
for the project. 
The owner/applicant shall provide sanitary sewer, water, and storm drainage 
improvements with corresponding easements, as necessary, in accordance with these 
studies and the latest edition of the City of Folsom Standard Construction 
S[2_ecifi_cations and Details. and the Design and Procedures Manual and Imrz.rovement 
Standards. The storm drainage design shall provide for no net increase in run-off under 
post-development conditions. 
The storm drain improvement plans shall provide for "Best Management Practices" that 
meet the requirements of the water quality standards of the City's National Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System Permit issued by the State Regional Water Quality 
Control Board. 

In addition to compliance with City ordinances, the owner/applicant shall prepare a 
Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) and implement Best Management 
Practices (BMPs) that comply with the General Construction Stormwater Permit from 
the Central Valley RWQCB, to reduce water quality effects during construction. 
Detailed information about the SWPPP and BMPs are provided in Chapter 3A.9, 
"Hydrology and Water Quality." 

I CD (P)(E) 

I,OG CD(E) 

I CD(E) 

I CD(E),EWR 

G,I CD(E), EWR, PW 

G, I CD(E) 

Page 166

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



27. 

28. 

Resolution No. 10596 
Page 17 of25 

During Construction, the owner/applicant shall be responsible for litter control and 
sweeping of all paved surfaces in accordance with City standards. All on-site storm 
drains shall be cleaned immediately before the official start of the rainy season 
(October 15). 
The owner/applicant shall dedicate public utility easements for underground facilities 
on properties adjacent to the public streets. A minimum of twelve and one-half-foot 
(12.5') wide Public Utility Easements for underground facilities (i.e., SMUD, Pacific 
Gas and Electric, cable television, telephone) shall be dedicated adjacent to all public 
rights-of-way. The owner/applicant shall dedicate additional width to accommodate 
extraordinary facilities as determined by the City. The width of the public utility 
easements adjacent to public right of way may be reduced with prior approval from 
public utility companies. 

OG CD(E) 

I CD(E) 

Page 167

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



29. 

Resolution No. 10596 
Page 18 of25 

The owner/applicant shall disclose to the renters in the rental lease agreement the 
following items: 

1) Future public parks and public schools are located in relatively close proximity 
to the proposed project site, and that the public parks may include facilities 
(basketball courts, a baseball field, softball fields, soccer fields, and playground 
equipment) that may generate noise impacts during various times, including but 
not limited to evening and nighttime hours. The owner/applicant shall also 
disclose that the existing public parks include nighttime sports lighting that 
may generate lighting impacts during evening and nighttime hours. 

2) Future Fire and Police stations are located in close proximity to the project site 
and may include facilities and equipment that generate noise and light impacts 
during various times, including but not limited to evening and nighttime hours. 0 CD(P)PK 

3) The soil at the project site may contain naturally occurring asbestos and 
naturally occurring arsenic. 

4) The collecting, digging, or removal of any stone, artifact, or other prehistoric or 
historic object located in public or open space areas, and the disturbance of any 
archaeological site or historic property, is prohibited. 

5) The project site is located close to the Mather Airport flight path and overflight 
noise may be present at various times. 

That all properties located within one mile of an on- or off-site area zoned or used for 
agricultural use (including livestock grazing) shall be accompanied by written 
disclosure from the transferor, in a form approved by the City of Folsom, advising the 
owner/applicant and renters of the potential adverse odor impacts from surrounding 
agricultural operations, which disclosure shall direct the transferee to contact the 
County of Sacramento concerning any such property within the County zoned for 
agricultural uses within one mile of the subject property being transferred. 

Page 168

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



30. 

Resolution No. 10596 
Page 19 of25 

FIRE DEPT REQUIREMENTS 
The owner/applicant comply with the following Fire Department requirements: 

• The apartment building(s)/clubhouse shall have illuminated addresses visible from 
the street or drive fronting the property. Size and location of address identification 
shall be reviewed and approved by the Fire Marshal. 

• Prior to the issuance of any improvement plans or building permits, the Community 
Development and Fire Departments shall review and approve all detailed design 
plans for accessibility of emergency fire equipment, fire hydrant flow location, and 
other construction features. 

• All fire protection devices shall be designed to be located on site: fire hydrants, fire G,I,B CD(P),FD 

department connections, post indicator valves, etc. cannot be used to serve the 
building. A water model analysis that proves the minimum fire flow will be required 
before any permits are issued. The fire sprinkler riser location shall be inside a Fire 
Control Room (5' X 7' minimum) with a full-sized 3'-0" door. This room can be a 
shared with other building utilities. The room shall only be accessible from the 
exterior. 

• All-weather emergency access roads and fire hydrants (tested and flushed) shall be 
provided before combustible material or vertical construction is allowed on site. All-
weather access is defined as 6" of compacted AB from May 1 to September 30 and 
2"AC over 6" AB from October 1 to April 30. 

Page 169

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



31. 

32. 

Resolution No. 10596 
Page 20 of25 

LANDSCAPE/fREE PRESERVATION REQUIREMENTS 
Final landscape plans and specifications shall be prepared by a registered landscape 
architect and approved by the City prior to the approval of the first building permit. Said 
plans shall include all on-site landscape specifications and details including a tree 
planting exhibit demonstrating sufficient diversity and appropriate species selection to 
the satisfaction of the Community Development Department. The tree exhibit shall 
include all street trees, accent trees, parking lot shading trees, and mitigation trees 
proposed within the development. Said plans shall comply with all State and local rules, 
regulations, Governor's declarations and restrictions pertaining to water conservation 
and outdoor landscaping. 

Landscaping shall meet shade requirements as outlined in the Folsom Plan Area Specific 
Plan where applicable. The landscape plans shall comply and implement water efficient 
requirements as adopted by the State of California (Assembly Bill 1881) (State Model 
Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance) until such time the City of Folsom adopts its own 
Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance at which time the owner/applicant shall comply 
with any new ordinance. Shade and ornamental trees shall be maintained according to 
the most current American National Standards for Tree Care Operations (ANSI A-300) 
by qualified tree care professionals. Tree topping for height reduction, view protection, 
light clearance or any other purpose shall not be allowed. Specialty-style pruning, such 
as pollarding, shall be specified within the approved landscape plans and shall be 
implemented during a 5-year establishment and training period. The owner/applicant 
shall comply with city-wide landscape rules or regulations on water usage. The 
owner/applicant shall comply with any state or local rules and regulations relating to 
landscape water usage and landscaping requirements necessitated to mitigate for drought 
conditions on all landscaping in the Alder Creek Apartments project. 
The owner/applicant shall be responsible for on-site landscape maintenance throughout 
the life of the project to the satisfaction of the Community Development Department. 
Vegetation or planting shall not be less than that depicted on the final landscape plan, 
unless tree removal is approved by the Community Development Department because 
the spacing between trees will be too close on center as thev mature. 

B CD (P)(E) 

B,OG CD (P)(E) 

Page 170

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



33. 

✓ 

Resolution No. 10596 
Page 21 of25 

TRAFFIC/ACCESS/CIRCULATION/PARKING REQUIREMENTS 
Based on the recommendations of the Transportation Impact Study dated December 21, 
2020 (Attachment 20), the following conditions of approval shall be implemented to the 
satisfaction of the Community Development Department: 

• Eastbound U-Tums on Alder Creek Parkway at Quail Meadow Way shall be 
prohibited. "No U-tum" signs (CA MUTCD R3-4 or similar) shall be installed B CD (E), PW, FD 
facing the eastbound approach, in the median on the near and far side of the 
intersection. 

• Eastbound U-Tums on Alder Creek Parkway at Placerville Road shall be prohibited . 
"No U-tum" signs (CA MUTCD R3-4 or similar) shall be installed facing the 
eastbound approach, in the median on the near and far side of the intersection. 

Page 171

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



34. 

35. 

Resolution No. 10596 
Page 22 of25 

To further ensure safe travel within the project site, the following measures shall be 
implemented to the satisfaction of the Community Development Department: 

• A "stop" sign and appropriate pavement markings shall be installed at the internal 
northbound approach to the project driveway located on Alder Creek Parkway. 

• A "stop" sign and appropriate pavement markings shall be installed at the internal 
southbound approach project driveway located on Old Ranch Way. 

• The vehicle entry gates at the two project driveway locations shall open inward, 
away from Alder Creek Drive and Old Ranch Way respectively. In addition, the 
design of the vehicle entry gates and the vehicle entry gate area shall conform to all 
requirements established by the City of Folsom for gated multi-family residential 
developments. 

• If vehicles are observed backing up into Alder Creek Parkway or Old Ranch Way at 
either of the two gated project entries, City staff will evaluate and require 
appropriate measures to alleviate the traffic congestion including but not limited to 
requiring the two project entry gates to remain open during the AM (7:00 a.m. to 
9:00 a.m.) and PM (4:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m.) peak hours on weekdays. 

• The project driveway on Old Ranch Way shall be restricted for use solely by 
residents of Alder Creek Apartment project. Signage shall be installed that indicates 
the Old Ranch Way project driveway is restricted for use by residents only. In 
addition, signage shall be installed that directs guests and visitors to the Alder Creek 
Parkway project driveway for access to the apartment community. 

• Residents of the Alder Creek Apartments project shall be issued remote transmitters 
to allow them to open the entry gates without needing to stop to enter a code in the 
keypad at either entrance location. 

• An internal pedestrian connection shall be added to provide access from the project 
site to the sidewalk located along the west side of Quail Meadow Way (the 
connection should be located in close proximity to the intersection of Old Ranch 
Way and Quail Meadow Way). 

A minimum of 518 on-site parking spaces shall be provided for the project. 

B CD (E), PW, FD 

I, 0 CD (P)(E) 

Page 172

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



36. 

37. 

38. 

39. 

Resolution No. 10596 
Page 23 of25 

A minimum of 180 on-site bicycle parking spaces shall be provided for the project in 
locations as identified on the preliminary site plan (Attachment 7). 20 additional bicycle 
parking spaces shall be provided at the community clubhouse building (inside or 
outside) to serve residents of the community. 

ARCHITECTURE/SITE DESIGN REQUIREMENTS 
The Alder Creek Apartments project shall comply with the following architecture and 
design requirements: 

1. This approval is for five four-story apartment buildings and a two-story clubhouse 
building associated with the Alder Creek Apartments project. The applicant shall 
submit building plans that comply with this approval and the attached building 
elevations and color renderings dated December 6, 2019. 

2. The design, materials, and colors of the proposed Alder Creek Apartments apartment 
buildings and clubhouse shall be consistent with the submitted building elevations, 
color renderings, materials samples, and color scheme to the satisfaction of the 
Community Development Department. 

3. Brick pavers or another type of colored masonry material (ADA compliant) shall be 
used to designate pedestrian crosswalks on the project site, in addition to where 
pedestrian paths cross drive aisles, and shall be incorporated as a design feature at the 
driveway entrances at Alder Creek Parkway and Old Ranch Way to the satisfaction of 
the Community Development Department. 

4. Roof-mounted mechanical equipment, including satellite dish antennas, shall not 
extend above the height of the parapet walls. Ground-mounted mechanical equipment 
shall be shielded by landscaping or trellis type features. 

5. Utility equipment such as transformers, electric and gas meters, electrical panels, and 
junction boxes shall be screened by walls and or landscaping. 

The final location, design, materials, and colors of the trash/recycling enclosures shall be 
subject to review and approval by the Community Development Department. 
The owner/applicant shall obtain a sign permit prior to installation of the two monument 
signs. 

I, 0 CD (P)(E) 

B CD (P)(B) 

B CD (P) (E) 

B CD(P) 

Page 173

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



40. 

41. 

42. 

43. 

✓ 

Resolution No. 10596 
Page24 of25 

MISCELLANEOUS REQUIREMENTS 
The proposed project shall comply with all State and local rules, regulations, Governor's 
Declarations, and restrictions including but not limited to: Executive Order B-29-15 
issued by the Governor of California on April 1, 2015 relative to water usage and 
conservation, requirements relative to water usage and conservation established by the 
State Water Resources Control Board, and water usage and conservation requirements 
established within the Folsom Municigal Code, (Section 13.26 Water Conservation), or 
amended from time to time. 
The owner/applicant shall update the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Document to 
reflect any textural and graphic changes associated with the proposed project including 
but not limited General Plan Amendment modifications, Specific Plan Amendment 
modifications, and Minor Administrative Modification changes to the satisfaction of the 
Community Development Department. In addition, the owner/applicant shall provide 
the City an electronic copy of the updated FP ASP Document. 
The owner/applicant shall complete and record a Lot Merger that combines the two 
parcels (APN No. 072-3670-011 and 072-3670-012) associated with the proposed 
project into one parcel prior to issuance of the first building permit for the project. 

MITIGATION MEASURES 
Alder Creek Apartments Mitigation Monitoring Reporting Program (MMRP). The 
owner/applicant shall implement all of the applicable mitigation measures from the 
FPASP (May 2011) MMRP, as amended by the Revised Proposed Water Supply Facility 
Alternative (November 2012), the Folsom South of U.S. Highway 50 Backbone 
Infrastructure Mitigated Negative Declaration (December 2014), the Westland Eagle 
Specific Plan Amendment (September 2015), and the Alder Creek Apartments 
Addendum (February 2021). The Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program for the 
Alder Creek Apartments project is included as Attachment 15 to the staff report. 

I,B,OG CD (P)(E) 

B CD(P) 

B CD (E)(P) 

I,G,B,OG 
CD (E)(P), PW, FD, 

EWR,PD,PR 

Page 174

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



CONDITIONS 
See attached tables of conditions for which the following legend applies. 

RESPONSIBLE DEPARTMENT 

CD Community Development Department 
(P) Planning Division 
(E) Engineering Division 
(B) Building Division 
(F) Fire Division 

PW Public Works Department 
PR Park and Recreation Department 
PD Police Department 

Resolution No. 10596 
Page 25 of25 

WHEN REQUIRED 

I Prior to approval of Improvement Plans 
M Prior to approval of Final Map 
B Prior to issuance of first Building Permit 
0 Prior to approval of Occupancy Permit 
G Prior to issuance of Grading Permit 
DC During construction 
OG On-going requirement 

Page 175

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



This page is intentionally left blank. 

Page 176

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Attachment 2 

Planning Commission Staff Report 
Dated February 3, 2021 

Page 177

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



CI TY OF 

F LS M 
01:!ITIHCTIV OV ffATUlt &: 

Project: 

File#: 

Requests: 

Location: 

Staff Contact: 

Property Owner 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1 
Type: Public Hearing 

Date: February 3, 2021 

Planning Commission Staff Report 
50 Natoma Street, Council Chambers 

Folsom, CA 95630 

Alder Creek Apartments 

PN-18-222 

General Plan Amendment 

Specific Plan Amendment 

Planned Development Permit 

Minor Administrative Modification 

The proposed Alder Creek Apartments project is located at the 
southeast corner of the intersection of Alder Creek Parkway and 
Westwood Drive within the Folsom Plan Area 

Steve Banks, Principal Planner, 916-461-6207 
sbanks@folsom.ca.us 

Applicant 
Name: Carpenter East, LLC 
Address: 4370 Town Center Blvd., 
Suite 100 

Name: The Spanos Corporation 
Address: 10100 Trinity Parkway, 
Suite 500 

El Dorado Hills CA 95762 Stockton CA 95219 

Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and upon conclusion recommend 
approval of a General Plan Amendment, Specific Plan Amendment, Planned 
Development Permit, and Minor Administrative Modification for the Alder Creek 
Apartments project, subject to the findings (Findings A-Z) and conditions of approval 
(Conditions 1-43) attached to this report. 

Project Summary: The proposed project includes development of a 265-unit market
rate apartment community on a 10.8-acre site situated at the southeast corner of the 
intersection of Alder Creek Parkway and Westwood Drive within the Mangini Ranch 
Phase 2 portion of the Folsom Plan Area. The following are the specific entitlements 
requested with the proposed project. 

Page 178

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



CI TY OF 

FOL OM 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1 
Type: Public Hearing 

Date: February 3, 2021 

• A General Plan Amendment to change the General Plan land use designation 
for a 5.0-acre portion of the project site from MLD (Multi-Family Low Density) to 
MHD (Multi-Family High Density). 

• A Specific Plan Amendment to change the Specific Plan land use designation 
for a 5.0-acre portion of the project site from SP-MLD-PD (Specific Plan, Multi
Family Low Density, Planned Development District) to SP-MHD-PD (Specific 
Plan, Multi-Family High Density, Planned Development District). 

• A Planned Development Permit which contains detailed development and 
architectural standards for the proposed 265-unit residential apartment community. 

• A Minor Administrative Modification to transfer 62 allocated dwelling units from 
other locations within the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan to the project site and 
to transfer dwelling units among three other parcels located within the Folsom 
Plan Area. 

These proposed actions are described in detail and analyzed later in this report. 

Table of Contents: 

Attachment 1 - Background and Setting 

Attachment 2 - Project Description 

• General Plan Amendment 
• Specific Plan Amendment 
• Planned Development Permit 
• Minor Administrative Modification 

Attachment 3 - Analysis 

• General Plan Amendment 
• Specific Plan Amendment 
• Planned Development Permit 
• Minor Administrative Modification 

Attachment 4 - Conditions of Approval 

Attachment 5 - Vicinity Map 

Attachment 6 - General Plan/Specific Plan Amendment Exhibit, dated November 9, 
2020 

Page 179

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



I 
CITY OF 

M 
D I STINCTIVE BY NATURE 

Attachment 7 - Preliminary Site Plan, dated May 12, 2020 

Attachment 8 - Preliminary Utility Plan, dated May 12, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1 
Type: Public Hearing 

Date: February 3, 2021 

Attachment 9 - Preliminary Grading and Drainage Plan, dated May 12, 2020 

Attachment 10 - Preliminary Landscape Plan and Details, dated January 11, 2021 

Attachment 11 - Preliminary Access and Circulation Plan, dated November 23, 2020 

Attachment 12 - Preliminary Wall, Fence, and Sign Exhibit, dated May 8, 2020 

Attachment 13 - Preliminary Lighting Plan and Details, dated December 11, 2019 

Attachment 14 - Building Elevations and Floor Plans, dated December 6, 2019 

Attachment 15 - Color Renderings, dated December 6, 2019 

Attachment 16 - Color and Materials Board, dated December 6, 2019 

Attachment 17 - Building and Parking Summary, dated November 18, 2020 

Attachment 18 - Alder Creek Apartments Booklet (Separate Bound Document) 

Attachment 19 - Site Photographs 

Attachment 20 - Transportation Impact Study, dated December 21, 2020 

Attachment 21 - Environmental Checklist and Addendum for the Alder Creek 
Apartments Project, dated January, 2021 

Attachment 22 - Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program for the Alder Creek 
Apartments Project, dated January, 2021 

Attachment 23 - Summary of Amendments to the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan, 2011-
2020 

Attachment 24 - Folsom Ranch Central District Design Guidelines 

Attachment 25 - Planning Commission PowerPoint Presentation 

Page 180

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



I 
CI TY OF 

s 
DISTINCTIVE BY NATURE 

Submitted, 

PAM JOHNS 
Community Development Director 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1 
Type: Public Hearing 

Date: February 3, 2021 

Page 181

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

Background: 

ATTACHMENT 1 
BACKGROUND AND SETTING 

The proposed project site is part of the approved Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan 
(FPASP), a comprehensively planned community that proposes new development based 
"Smart Growth" and Transit Oriented Development principles. The FPASP, approved in 
2011, is a development plan for over 3,500 acres of previously undeveloped land located 
south of U.S. Highway 50, north of White Rock Road, east of Prairie City Road, and west 
of the Sacramento County/El Dorado County line in the southeastern portion of the City. 

The FPASP includes a mix of residential, commercial, employment and public uses, 
complemented by recreational amenities including a significant system of parks and open 
space, all within close proximity to one another and interconnected by a network of 
"complete streets", trails and bikeways. The Specific Plan is consistent with the SACOG 
Blueprint Principles and the requirements of SB 375 (Sustainable Communities and 
Climate Protection Act). 

The FPASP includes 11,461 residential units at various densities on approximately 1,630 
acres; 310 acres designated for commercial and industrial use; +/-130 acres designated 
for public/quasi-public uses, elementary/middle school/high schools, and 
community/neighborhood parks; and +/-1 , 110 acres for open-space areas. 

Since FPASP adoption in 2011, the City Council has approved eight amendments to the 
Specific Plan with land use and density refinements (summarized in Attachment 23 to this 
staff report). Overall, the changes to the Specific Plan have reduced the amount of 
commercial development planned for the area and increased the amount of residential 
development: 

Approved 2011 
Commercial: 5, 199,408 SF 
Residential Units: 10,210 Units 

As Amended to Date 
2,788,844 SF (-2,410,564 SF) 
11,461 Units (+1,251 Units) 

Based on the approved changes, the projected population of the FPASP has increased 
from 24,362 (based on approved development in 2010) to 27,965 (as approved to date). 

In addition to the amendments listed in Attachment 23, a number of Minor Administrative 
Modifications have been approved. These minor modifications moved allocated 
residential dwelling units to new locations in the FPASP area, but did not affect the overall 
number of approved residential units. Because they do not increase or decrease 

Page 182

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

residential units, these minor modifications do not affect the ultimate population of the 
FPASP area. 

The Alder Creek Apartments project site is currently comprised of two separate parcels, 
FPASP Parcel 151 and FPASP Parcel 82-B1 as shown in the Folsom Plan Area Specific 
Plan. Parcel 82-B1 is currently designated as Multi-Family Low Density (MLD) which 
provides for development of7 to 12 dwelling units per acre, while Parcel 151 is designated 
at Multi-family High Density (MHD) which allows for development of 20 to 30 units per 
acre. The proposed project includes a request for approval of a General Plan Amendment 
and Specific Plan Amendment which would result in the entire project site being 
designated as MHD. An excerpt from the FPASP Land Use Map is shown below. 

FIGURE 1: FPASP LAND USE MAP EXCERPT 

1sity 
I 

Page 183

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

Physical Setting 

The square-shaped 10.8-acre project site, which is comprised of a 5.8-acre parcel (APN: 
072-3670-012) and a 5.0-acre parcel (APN: 072-3670-011), has been mass graded as 
part of development of the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Subdivision. The project site is 
bounded by Alder Creek Parkway to the north with a future single-family residential 
subdivision beyond, Old Ranch Way to the south with a future park and elementary school 
beyond, Westwood Drive to the west with a future single-family residential subdivision 
beyond, and Quail Meadow Way to the east with a future single-family residential 
subdivision beyond. 

Page 184

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

APPLICANT'S PROPOSAL 

ATTACHMENT 2 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The applicant, the Spanos Corporation, is requesting approval of a General Plan 
Amendment, Specific Plan Amendment, Planned Development Permit, and Minor 
Administrative Modification for the development and operation of a 265-unit market rate 
apartment community (Alder Creek Apartments) on a 10.8-acre site located at the 
southeast corner of the intersection of Alder Creek Parkway and Westwood Drive within 
the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 portion of the Folsom Plan Area. 

As noted above, the applicant is requesting approval of four entitlements to allow for 
development of the proposed apartment community. The first entitlement is a request for 
approval of a General Plan Amendment to change the General Plan land use designation 
for a 5.0-acre portion of the project site from MLD (Multi-Family Low Density) to MHD 
(Multi-Family High Density). The second entitlement is a request for approval of a Specific 
Plan Amendment to change the Specific Plan land use designation for the same 5.0-acre 
portion of the project site from SP-MLD-PD (Specific Plan, Multi-Family Low Density, 
Planned Development District) to SP-MHD-PD (Specific Plan, Multi-Family High Density, 
Planned Development District). The third entitlement is a request for approval of a 
Planned Development Permit to establish project-specific development standards, review 
the project site design, evaluate the architectural design of the multi-family apartment 
buildings and clubhouse, and establish signage criteria. The fourth entitlement is a 
request for approval of a Minor Administrative Modification (MAM) for the transfer of 
development rights to move 62 allocated dwelling units from other locations within the 
Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan to the project site and to relocate dwelling units among 
three other parcels located within the Folsom Plan Area. 

The proposed Alder Creek Apartments project, which includes development of five four
story apartment buildings and a two-story clubhouse building, is comprised of 265 luxury 
apartments within a gated community. The four-story apartment buildings include a total 
of 145 one-bedroom units (571 to 812 square feet), 100 two-bedroom units (964 to 1,158 
square feet), and 20 three-bedroom units (1,343 square feet). All apartment units are 
proposed to be accessible from interior hallways and include a full kitchen, living space, 
storage closets, bedrooms, bathrooms, and an outdoor patio/balcony. The two-story 
clubhouse building features a fitness studio, a yoga studio, offices, a lounge, a game 
room, a media room, a storage room, a mail room, and restroom facilities. Outdoor 
amenities associated with the clubhouse building include a pool, a spa, a lounge area, an 
outdoor kitchen, a bocce ball court, a turf amphitheater, and landscaped open grounds 
for gathering. Other outdoor amenities distributed throughout the project site include a 
dog run, barbeque pavilions, and seating areas. 

Page 185

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

In relation to site design, the five rectangular apartment buildings are distributed evenly 
throughout the project site, with Buildings 1 and 5 being positioned at the northwest and 
southwest corners of the project site respectively, Buildings 3 and 4 being located in the 
central portion of the project site, and Building 2 and the clubhouse building being situated 
in the northeast corner of the project site. With respect to architectural style, the proposed 
project features a contemporary design that utilizes strong articulation of building forms 
and massing to break up the large scale of the apartment buildings. Proposed building 
materials include stucco walls, stone wall tiles, stucco accents, metal awnings, and 
tubular steel balcony and patio railing. The color scheme for the buildings is proposed to 
be generally earth tone, with extensive use of tan and brown colors accented by a mixture 
of lighter and darker colors. 

Primary vehicle access to the project site includes a new driveway located on the south 
side of Alder Creek Parkway and a new driveway located on the north side of Old Ranch 
Way, both of which will have access controlled by a vehicle gate. The project driveway 
located on Alder Creek Parkway will accommodate right-turn in and right-turn out 
movements only, while the project driveway on Old Ranch Way will allow all turning 
movements into and out of the project site. Proposed internal vehicle circulation consists 
of a primary 27-foot-wide north-south drive aisle that connects to a number of other drive 
aisles within the project site. Pedestrian circulation is provided by new sidewalks located 
along the street frontages of Alder Creek Parkway, Old Ranch Way, Westwood Drive, 
and Quail Meadow Way. Internal pedestrian circulation is accommodated by a series of 
new pedestrian pathways that provide connectivity to the apartment buildings, the 
clubhouse building, and the perimeter sidewalks. Additional site improvements include: 
541 parking spaces (includes combination of garage, carport, and uncovered spaces), 
180 bicycle parking spaces, electric vehicle charging stations, underground utilities, 
drainage swales, site lighting, site landscaping, retaining walls, fencing, and project 
identification signs. The proposed site plan is shown in Figure 2 on the following page. 

Page 186

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

FIGURE 2: PROPOSED SITE PLAN 

·-·--- -·- - ·----·-
-··••··,c•-.. J_ .. _~ ... _ .. _ ,-. ..... ~ .. 

·-·- ---, 
:--1--':~;:::--.o=- i 

f1· 

i 

-----'--+·-l- ·- ·-- - ·- ·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·-·- -·-·-·- -·-· 

----. " _________ , I I 
·-·-•-·-·--·-·-·-·J 9l.0RAJ,K;tt~.A! 

Page 187

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

ATTACHMENT 3 
ANALYSIS 

The following sections provide an analysis of the applicant's proposal. Staff's analysis 
includes: 

A. General Plan and Specific Plan Amendment 

B. Planned Development Permit 

• Development Standards 
• Building Architecture and Design 
• Signage 

C. Traffic/Access/Circulation 

D. Parking 

E. Noise Impacts 

F. Walls/Fencing 

G. Site Lighting 

H. Trash/Recycling 

I. Existing and Proposed Landscaping 

J. Frontage Improvements 

K. Lot Merger 

L. Minor Administrative Modification (Transfer of Development Rights) 

M. Conformance with Relevant Folsom General Plan and Folsom Plan Area Specific 
Plan Objectives and Policies 

N. Native American Consultation (SB 18) 

A. General Plan and Specific Plan Amendment 

General Plan and Specific Plan Amendment and Consistency 
The 10.8-acre project site has a General Plan land use designation of Multi-Family Low 
Density (MLD) and Multi-Family High Density (MHD), and a Specific Plan land use 
designation of Specific Plan-Multi-Family Low Density-Planned Development Permit (SP
MLD-PD and Specific Plan-Multi-Family High Density-Planned Development Permit (SP
MHD-PD). The proposed project includes a request for approval of a General Plan 
Amendment to change the General Plan land use designation for a 5.0-acre portion of 
the project site from MLD to MHD and a Specific Plan Amendment to change the Specific 
Plan land use designation for the same 5.0-acre portion of the project site from SP-MLD
PD to SP-MHD-PD. With approval of the proposed amendments, the entire project site 
will have a General Plan land use designation of MHD and a Specific Plan land use 

Page 188

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

designation of SP-MHD-PD. 

The project is consistent with both the General Plan land use designation and the Specific 
Plan land use designation, as multi-family apartments are identified as a permitted land 
use within the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan (FPASP, Table A.1). The proposed 
project, which will be developed with 24.5 dwelling units per acre, is also consistent with 
the allowable density range (20-30 dwelling units per acre) established by the General 
Plan (Table LU-1: Residential Designations). In addition, the proposed project meets the 
development requirements established by the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan (Table A.5) 
with respect to lot area, building height, building setbacks, and parking. Development 
standards for the proposed project are discussed later within the Planned Development 
Permit section of this staff report. 

In reviewing the General Plan Amendment and Specific Plan Amendment, staff also took 
into consideration a number of community benefits that the proposed apartment project 
will provide relative to the supply of new housing units, the addition of a new housing type, 
and potential economic benefits. According to the California Department of Housing and 
Community Development (HUD), the state of California is facing a severe shortage with 
regard to housing supply, with some estimates indicating a shortfall of up to 3.5 million 
housing units. The housing shortage has a number of significant negative effects 
including but not limited to causing housing prices to rise which limits affordability, and 
increasing the homeless population in communities. The benefit of the proposed project 
is that it will increase the City's housing supply by providing 265 new rental units in a 
portion of the City (Folsom Plan Area) that currently has no rental units. 

The Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan includes a number of goals and policies that 
encourage a wide variety of housing types to be constructed in the Plan Area to serve the 
needs of residents. In this particular case, the applicant is proposing development of a 
265-unit luxury apartment community designed for residents with a higher discretionary 
income. State of the art amenities associated with the apartment community include 
elevators, pet washing stations, bicycle cafes, a bocce ball court, a fitness center, a resort
style swimming pool, a movie theater, and concierge services. According to the applicant, 
high-end apartment units are not widely available in Folsom, but are in great demand 
based on their market research. In addition to providing the Folsom residents with an 
upscale rental housing opportunity, the project represents the first multi-family apartment 
project of any type to be developed in the Folsom Plan Area to date. 

Lastly, according to the applicant, the proposed project will provide a boost to the local 
economy by generating approximately 13 million dollars in development impact fee 
revenue, which will help fund local infrastructure improvements, parks, and schools. The 
proposed project will also contribute to three local Community Facilities Districts (CFD's), 

Page 189

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

which will finance future roadway maintenance, common landscaping, parks, and school 
facilities. In addition, the proposed project is expected to generate approximately 1 million 
dollars on an annual basis in property tax, which will benefit the community in various 
ways. 

8. Planned Development Permit 

The purpose of the Planned Development Permit process is to allow greater flexibility in 
the design of integrated developments than otherwise possible through strict application 
of land use regulations. The Planned Development Permit process is also designed to 
encourage creative and efficient uses of land. The following are proposed as part of the 
applicant's Planned Development Permit: 

• Development Standards 

• Building Architecture and Design 

• Signage 

Development Standards 
The applicant's intent with the subject application is to create a set of development 
standards that will comply with the development standards established within the Folsom 
Plan Area Specific Plan for multi-family zoned residential (SP-MHD-PD) properties. The 
table below outlines the existing and proposed development standards for the Alder 
Creek Apartments: 

TABLE 1: DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS TABLE 

Development Standards Table 
Alder Creek Apartments 

Lot Lot Front Yard Rear Yard Side Yard Building 
Area Width Setback Setback Setbacks Height 

SP-MHD-PD 0.5-acres NA 10 feet 15 feet 10 feet 50 feet 
minimum minimum minimum minimum maximum 

Proposed 10.8-acres NA 14 feet to 15 feet plus 10 feet plus 48 feet 
Project 37 feet 

As shown on the development standards table, the proposed project meets or exceeds 
all development standards established for the SP-MHD-PD (Multi-Family High Density) 
zoning district within the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan. However, the proposed project 
is requesting approval to deviate from the signage requirements established within the 
Folsom Municipal Code by having two project identification signs (the FPASP does not 
have specific standards with regard to signage). A detailed discussion of the project 
identification request is contained later on within the Signage section of this report. In 
addition, parking is also addressed separately within the Parking Section of this staff 

Page 190

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

report. 

Building Architecture and Design 
As detailed in the Project Description section of this report, the proposed project includes 
development of five four-story apartment buildings which are strategically clustered 
around the project site to create a walkable community. In addition, the proposed project 
includes a two-story clubhouse building located in the northeast corner of the project site. 
The design concept for the apartment buildings and clubhouse features a modern 
architectural style with strong articulation of building forms and massing, both of which 
are used to break up the significant scale of the apartment buildings. Proposed building 
materials include traditional stucco walls, stone wall tiles, stucco accents, metal awnings, 
and tubular steel balcony and patio railing. The color scheme for the buildings is proposed 
to be rustic in nature with predominant use of tan and brown colors, accented with a 
mixture of lighter and darker colors. Proposed elevations and renderings of the apartment 
buildings and clubhouse are shown below and on the following pages. 

FIGURE 3: FRONT APARTMENT BUILDING ELEVATIONS 

Page 191

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

FIGURE 4: REAR APARTMENT BUILDING ELEVATIONS 

. ,
1 

'.[' --/.:n. ·; ·?_J]]... : 1l.~-:7~1rrr· i' 
.... - •- l!I I~ I _LLl__ .. l. ., 

....... ~ ..-:i . ..,,~ 

FIEAR ELEVATION 

FIGURE 5: RENDERINGS OF APARTMENT BUILDINGS 

(LL&IOU SE FRCf.4 Al.tER CRE£Ji PilRKWA'f 

Page 192

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

FIGURE 6: CLUBHOUSE BUILDING ELEVATIONS 

FIGURE 7: RENDERINGS OF CLUBHOUSE BUILDING 

Page 193

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

The proposed project is subject to the Multi-Family Design Guidelines established within 
the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan (Attachment 24). The purpose of the Design 
Guidelines is to establish parameters which apply to all multi-family land use categories 
in the Folsom Plan Area. The Design Guidelines are also intended to encourage creativity 
in finding solutions to specific design opportunities. The following are general design 
principles identified by the Design Guidelines to ensure a high-quality and aesthetically 
cohesive environment in the Folsom Plan Area: 

• Designs incorporating building types, orientation with site improvements, and 
circulation in a manner to cohesively blend into the existing and planned 
surroundings. 

• Designs highlighting community features for enhanced appearance, safety, 
convenience, and social interaction through circulation connectivity and sitting of 
open space. 

• Designs supporting high-quality of life with appropriate useable private and 
common areas. 

• Designs embodying high-quality design elements and project identity through 
variation in massing, articulation, heights, materials, styles, and creativity. 

In addition to the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Multi-Family Design Guidelines, the 
proposed project is subject to the City's Design Guidelines for Multi-Family Development. 
The Design Guidelines for Multi-Family Development recommend that multi-family 
projects be designed in a manner that compliments the surrounding community. The 
following are some of the specific design recommendations suggested by the Design 
Guidelines: 

• Variety and distinctness in design are desirable 

• Expanses of uninterrupted wall area, unbroken roof forms, and box-like structures 
shall be prohibited. Balconies, porches, bay windows, chimneys, and other design 
elements with projections and varied setbacks shall be used to break up the 
physical characteristics of structures. 

• Separations and changes in the height of roof planes shall be used to visually 
separate the units. Articulation such as roof dormers, hips, gables, balconies, wall 
projections, and porches shall be used to break up the visual massing of building 
facades. 

• The use of a variety and combination of building materials is encouraged. Building 
materials selected for multi-family projects shall be very durable and require low 
maintenance including, but not limited to, stucco, stone, and brick. Building 
materials shall integrate quality design elements consistent with the design of the 
development and the surrounding neighborhood. 

Page 194

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

• Predominant roof materials shall be of high quality, durable material such as, but 
not limited to, clay or concrete roof tiles and asphalt shingles. 

• Exterior building colors shall be compatible with the surrounding neighborhood 
setting and shall not be out of character or in visual competition with the existing 
surrounding design elements. 

• All accessory structures, including carports, garages, and solid waste enclosures, 
shall be designed with materials and in a manner consistent with the architectural 
design characteristics of the development. 

As illustrated on the building elevations and color renderings (Attachments 14 and 15), 
the proposed apartment buildings and clubhouse incorporates many of the key design 
features recommended by the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Multi-Family Design 
Guidelines and the Design Guidelines for Multi-Family Development including the use of 
layered massing to create a sense of depth, use of varied building forms to create visual 
relief, use of staggered building heights to create visual interest, and the inclusion of 
unique design details to reinforce the modern design theme. 

As shown on the color and materials board (Attachment 16), the proposed project utilizes 
a variety of natural building materials to enhance the appearance of the apartment 
buildings and clubhouse. In terms of building materials, traditional stucco is juxtaposed 
with vintage ranch faux wood tile and dark-hued steel accents. Cladding, signage, 
fencing, and other building materials have been incorporated to emulate the local context 
of the surrounding residential neighborhoods, but with a focus on the modern design 
theme. With respect to building colors, the proposed project utilizes earthy brown and 
tan colors which are supplemented by a series of darker and lighter accent colors. 

Based on the aforementioned analysis, staff has determined that the proposed project 
features a high-quality design that is consistent with the design recommendations of the 
Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Multi-Family Design Guidelines and the Design 
Guidelines for Multi-Family Development. As a result, staff recommends approval of the 
applicant's design with the following conditions: 

1. This approval is for five four-story apartment buildings and a two-story clubhouse 
building associated with the Alder Creek Apartments project. The applicant shall 
submit building plans that comply with this approval and the attached building 
elevations and color renderings dated December 6, 2019. 

2. The design, materials, and colors of the proposed Alder Creek Apartments 
apartment buildings and clubhouse shall be consistent with the submitted building 
elevations, color renderings, materials samples, and color scheme to the 
satisfaction of the Community Development Department. 

Page 195

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

3. Brick pavers or another type of colored masonry material (ADA compliant) shall 
be used to designate pedestrian crosswalks on the project site, in addition to 
where pedestrian paths cross drive aisles, and shall be incorporated as a design 
feature at the driveway entrances at Alder Creek Parkway and Old Ranch Way to 
the satisfaction of the Community Development Department. 

4. Roof-mounted mechanical equipment, including satellite dish antennas, shall not 
extend above the height of the parapet walls. Ground-mounted mechanical 
equipment shall be shielded by landscaping or trellis type features. 

5. Utility equipment such as transformers, electric and gas meters, electrical 
panels, and junction boxes shall be screened by walls and or landscaping. 

These recommendations are included in the conditions of approval (Condition No. 37) 
presented for consideration by the Planning Commission. 

Signage 
The proposed project includes two freestanding monument signs which are located 
within a landscaped area at the project entrances on Alder Creek Parkway and Old Ranch 
Way, respectively. The two proposed monument signs, which are approximately 24 
square feet in size, are designed to complement the design of the apartment buildings 
and feature the use of stucco, cast stone, stone cobbles, and tube steel. The two 
monument signs, which are double sided, will feature copy that reads "Alder Creek 
Apartments" as well as the project address. The two monument signs will be indirectly 
illuminated by two inset-up spotlights. Staff has determined that the design of the 
proposed monument identification signs are complementary to the design of the proposed 
Alder Creek Apartments. 

The Folsom Municipal Code (FMC, Section, 17.50.040 D) states that monument 
identification signs are an acceptable form of identification for multi-family residential 
projects. The Folsom Municipal Code also states that multi-family residential projects are 
permitted one freestanding sign that is a maximum of six-feet-tall with a maximum sign 
area of 32 square feet. Through the Planned Development Permit process, the applicant 
is seeking approval for two monument signs to provide identification for the proposed 
project. Staff has determined that two monument signs are appropriate given that the 
project has two unique driveway entrances on different streets, and also based on the 
large physical scale of the apartment community. Staff recommends that the 
owner/applicant obtain a sign permit prior to installation of the two monument signs. 
Condition No. 39 is included to reflect this requirement. 

Page 196

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

C. Traffic/Access/Circulation 

The Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan established a series of plans and policies for the 
circulation system within the entire Plan Area. The FPASP circulation system was 
designed with a sustainable community focus on the movement of people and provides 
a number of mobility alternatives such as walking, cycling, carpooling, and viable forms 
of public transportation in addition to vehicular circulation. The circulation plan evaluated 
regional travel, both in terms of connectivity and capacity as well as local internal 
connections and access. The circulation plan also addressed the concerns of regional 
traffic, including parallel capacity to U.S. Highway 50, and connectivity with surrounding 
jurisdictions while considering community-wide connectivity, alternative modes of travel, 
and the provision of complete streets. 

The 2011 Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Environmental Impact Report/Environmental 
Impact Statement included not only a detailed analysis of traffic-related impacts within the 
Plan Area, but also an evaluation of traffic-related impacts on the surrounding 
communities. In total, there are fifty-five (55) traffic-related mitigation measures 
associated with development of the FPASP which are included as conditions of approval 
for the Alder Creek Apartments project. Many of these mitigation measures are expected 
to reduce traffic impacts to East Bidwell Street. Included among the mitigation measures 
are requirements to; fund and construct roadway improvements within the Plan Area, pay 
a fair-share contribution for construction of improvements north of U.S. Highway 50, 
participate in the City's Transportation System Management Fee Program, and 
Participate in the U.S. Highway 50 Corridor Transportation Management Association. 
The Alder Creek Apartment project is subject to all traffic-related mitigation measures 
required by the 2011 FPASP EIR/EIS (Condition No. 43). 

On May 5, 2015, Fehr & Peers completed a Traffic Impact Analysis for the Westland
Eagle Specific Plan Amendment project (an Addendum to the FPASP EIR/EIS was 
certified in association with the Westland-Eagle Specific Plan Amendment) and 
determined that the traffic impacts associated with that project had been adequately 
addressed in the 2011 Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan EIR/EIS with inclusion of some 
minor adjustments to account for changes that have occurred since the EIR/EIS was 
certified. The adjustments include requiring the project to modify the westbound 
approach to the East Bidwell Street/Iron Point Road intersection to include three left-turn 
lanes, two through lanes, and one right-turn lane. In addition, the project was required to 
pay a fair-share contribution towards improvements to the East Bidwell Street/Alder Creek 
Parkway intersection including the addition of a channelized westbound right-turn lane. 

On December 1, 2017, T.KEAR Transportation Planning & Management completed a 
Transportation Impact Study for the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Subdivision project to ensure 
that no additional impacts would occur that were not previously identified and addressed 
by the 2011 FPASP EIR/EIS and the 2015 Westland-Eagle Specific Plan Addendum to 
the FPASP EIR/EIS. The Study determined that, with planned street and intersection 
improvements, the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Subdivision project would not create any new 

Page 197

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

significant impacts when compared to the FPASP EIR/EIS and the Westland-Eagle 
Specific Plan Amendment Addendum. 

Existing Roadway Network 
The project site is located at the southeast corner of the intersection of Alder Creek 
Parkway and Westwood Drive. Significant roadways in the project vicinity include U.S. 
Highway 50, Alder Creek Parkway, Westwood Drive, Old Ranch Way, and Quail Meadow 
Way. U.S. Highway 50 is a six-lane east-west highway with a 65-mph posted speed limit 
that passes through Folsom and connects the Sacramento region to Lake Tahoe and 
points beyond. Alder Creek Parkway currently exists from East Bidwell Street to 
Placerville Road and beyond into the Russell Ranch Subdivision to the east. Westwood 
Drive between Alder Creek Parkway and Old Ranch Way is currently being constructed 
as part of the Enclave Subdivision project and will be open to traffic prior to completion of 
the proposed project. Old Ranch Way between East Bidwell Street and Westwood Drive 
is currently being constructed as part of the Enclave Subdivision project and will be open 
to traffic prior to completion of the proposed project. Old Ranch Way east of Westwood 
Drive is currently being constructed as part of the Mangini Ranch Villages 4 and 8 
Subdivision project and will be open to traffic prior to completion of the proposed project. 
Quail Meadow Way is currently under construction as part of the Mangini Ranch Villages 
4 and 8 project and will be open before completion of the proposed project. 

On December 21, 2020, Fehr & Peers completed a Transportation Impact Study (included 
as Attachment 20 to this staff report) that evaluated traffic, access, and circulation impacts 
associated with the proposed project. The Study relies, in part, on data and analysis 
contained in the transportation impact studies prepared for the Mangini Phase 2 
Subdivision project and the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Subdivision project. The Study 
analyzed traffic operations at the following 10 study intersections in the vicinity of the 
project site: 

• East Bidwell Street/U.S. Highway 50 Westbound Ramps 
• East Bidwell Street/U.S. Highway 50 Eastbound Ramps 
• East Bidwell Street/Alder Creek Parkway 
• East Bidwell Street/Old Ranch Way 
• East Bidwell Street/Savannah Parkway 
• East Bidwell Street/Mangini Parkway 
• Alder Creek Parkway/Westwood Drive 
• Alder Creek Parkway/Quail Meadow Drive 
• Old Ranch Way/Westwood Drive 
• Old Ranch Way/Quail Meadow Drive 

Two different scenarios were evaluated in reviewing traffic operations at the 10 
aforementioned study intersections including Baseline No Project Conditions (2024) and 
Baseline Plus Project Conditions (2024). The results of the Study are discussed below. 

Page 198

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

The proposed Alder Creek Apartments project is expected to generate a total of 89 
vehicle-trips during the weekday AM peak hour (23 inbound and 66 outbound) and 113 
during the weekday PM peak hour trips (69 inbound and 44 outbound). Overall, the 
proposed project is projected to generate approximately 1,443 daily vehicle trips. Based 
on the expected number of project-related vehicle trips, the Study concluded that the 
proposed project would not have a significant impact on vehicle level of service (LOS) at 
any of the study intersections under Baseline No Project Conditions or Baseline Plus 
Project Conditions. In addition, the Study determined that the proposed project would not 
result in any new traffic-related impacts that were not previously identified and addressed 
by traffic studies and environmental documents associated with the 2011 Folsom Plan 
Area Specific Plan, the 2015 Westland/Eagle Specific Plan Amendment, the 2017 
Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Subdivision, and the 2020 Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch 
Subdivision. 

The Governors' Office of Planning and Research (QPR) has published guidance 
recommending a CEQA threshold for transportation impacts of land use projects of a 15 
percent Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) reduction per capita, relative to either city or 
regional averages, based on the California's Climate Scoping Plan1. Qualitative 
assessment of VMT reduction was determined to be acceptable to screen projects2. 

Under State Law (SB 743), VMT became the only CEQA threshold of significance for 
transportation impacts on July 1, 2020. 

As provided in CEQA Guidelines Section 15007, amendments to the guidelines apply 
prospectively only," and CEQA documents must meet the "content requirements in effect 
when the document was set out for public review," and "shall not need to be revised to 
conform to any new content requirements in guideline amendments taking effect before 
the document is finally approved. The FPASP EIR/EIS was set out for public review in 
2010 and certified in 2011, long before the amendment to the CEQA Guidelines adding 
VMT as the measure of transportation impacts. The FPASP EIR/EIS and all subsequent 
review of projects in the Folsom Plan Area have utilized the LOS threshold of significance 
for traffic related impacts. As directed by CEQA (Section 15007), the FPASP EIR/EIS 
does not need to be revised to conform to the new VMT requirements. 

Nevertheless, the Study determined that the changes proposed by the Alder Creek 
Apartments project will result in a negligible change in VMT when compared to the 
existing FPASP. The proposed project includes a Minor Administrative Modification 
(MAM) that will shift residential units among several parcels in the Folsom Plan Area. 
This transfer of residential units would not create additional dwelling units or change the 
FPASP's total off-site trip generation. A small change in VMT would result from changes 
in travel distance among the effected parcels within the FPASP; however, given the 
relatively short distances between the effected parcels where the shift of dwelling units 

1 OPR (2018) Technical Advisory on Evaluating Transportation Impacts In CEQA, 
http:l/www.opr.ca.gov/docs/20190122-743 Technical Advisory .pdf. 
2 OPR's webinar on SB 743 implementation , 4/16/2020. 

Page 199

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

will occur and the small number of trips being shifted, the change in net VMT generated 
would be negligible compared to the FPASP total VMT of 612,800. 

Project Access and On-Site Circulation 
As shown on the submitted site plan (Attachment 7), access to the project site is provided 
by a new driveway on the south side of Alder Creek Parkway and a new driveway on 
north side of Old Ranch Way. The project driveway located on Alder Creek Parkway, 
which includes a vehicle gate to control access into and out of the project site, will 
accommodate right-turn in and right-turn out movements only. The project driveway 
located on Old Ranch Way, which also includes a vehicle gate, will accommodate all 
turning movements into and out of the project site. Internal circulation is facilitated by 
numerous drive aisles which provide for vehicle circulation throughout the project site. 
Pedestrian circulation is provided by new sidewalks located along the street frontages of 
Alder Creek Parkway, Westwood Drive, Old Ranch Way, and Quail Meadow Way and by 
new internal pedestrian walkways that provide access throughout the project site. 
Pedestrian gates at the two driveway entrances will facilitate access into and out of the 
project site. A Vehicle Access and Circulation Exhibit and Pedestrian Circulation Exhibit 
associated with the proposed project are shown in Figures 8 and 9 on the following pages. 

Page 200

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

FIGURE 8: VEHICLE ACCESS AND CIRCULATION EXHIBIT 

r 

i l 
I 

-- ---·---~-----_J 

Page 201

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

FIGURE 9: PEDESTRIAN CIRCULATION EXHIBIT 

'"'"' 1: ,c~1001 

... 

legend 

,ltP.,,._l~S.~ita. -····lnt.r-.W,ottn.-oy -----C,otn,11• 

The Transportation Impact Study prepared for the proposed project evaluated the 
operation and configuration of the project access system in terms of driveway spacing, 
driveway throat depth, on-site circulation, adjacent street circulation, and deceleration 
lane requirements. The Study determined that the two proposed driveways, located on 
Alder Creek Parkway and Old Ranch Way respectively, provide adequate spacing from 
the nearest street intersections and meet the City's Design Standards for driveways 
located on collector streets. The Study also determined that the two proposed project 
driveways provide sufficient throat depth for inbound and outbound vehicles so as to avoid 
excessive vehicle queuing into the project site and onto adjacent public streets. 

The Study considered on-site circulation and determined that the project features a well
designed parking lot layout which minimizes offset drive aisles and provides adequate 
drive aisle widths of 25 feet or greater. In addition, the Study determined that there are 
abundant pedestrian facilities provided by the project including sidewalks, pedestrian 
walkways, and pedestrian connections which facilitate pedestrian movements in and 
around the project site. 

Page 202

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

In terms of adjacent street circulation, the Study evaluated the adjacent streets and street 
intersections to ensure that adequate vehicle circulation would occur around the project 
site. The Study identified a number of concerns regarding potential turning movements 
that project residents may attempt to perform after exiting the project site. In particular, 
the Study indicated that project residents may exit the Alder Creek Parkway project 
driveway and attempt to make an eastbound LI-turn movement at Quail Meadow Way in 
an attempt to get to East Bidwell Street. The street design of Alder Creek Parkway at 
Quail Meadow Way (consists of eastbound through lane, raised median, and westbound 
through lane) does not provide adequate width (33 feet) for LI-turn movements to be 
performed safely. As a result, the Study recommends that the following measure 
(Condition No. 33) be implemented to restrict LI-turn movements at this location: 

• Eastbound LI-Turns on Alder Creek Parkway at Quail Meadow Way shall be 
prohibited. "No LI-turn" signs (CA MLITCD R3-4 or similar) shall be installed 
facing the eastbound approach, in the median on the near and far side of the 
intersection. 

The Study also indicated that project residents may attempt to reach East Bidwell Street 
by exiting the Alder Creek Parkway project driveway and performing an eastbound LI-turn 
movement at Placerville Road. The street design of Alder Creek Parkway at Placerville 
Road is not designed to safety accommodate LI-turn movements. As a result, the Study 
recommends that the following measure (Condition No. 33) be implemented to restrict LI
turn movements at this location: 

• Eastbound LI-Turns on Alder Creek Parkway at Placerville Road shall be 
prohibited. "No LI-turn" signs (CA MLITCD R3-4 or similar) shall be installed 
facing the eastbound approach, in the median on the near and far side of the 
intersection. 

The Study evaluated the submitted site plan to determine whether the submitted site plan 
met the City's deceleration lane requirements (Section 12.5 of the City of Folsom Design 
Standards) relative to the project driveways on Alder Creek Parkway and Old Ranch Way. 
The Study noted that a right-turn deceleration lane has already been constructed along 
the Alder Creek Parkway project frontage to serve that project driveway. The Study 
determined that a deceleration lane is not required at the project driveway on Old Ranch 
Way as this street is not considered a major or minor arterial street. 

To ensure implementation of the traffic control measures identified on the submitted site 
plan, staff recommends the following recommendations be included as conditions of 
approval for the project (Condition No. 34) 

• A "stop" sign and appropriate pavement markings shall be installed at the 
internal northbound approach to the project driveway located on Alder Creek 
Parkway. 

Page 203

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

• A "stop" sign and appropriate pavement markings shall be installed at the 
internal southbound approach project driveway located on Old Ranch Way. 

• The vehicle entry gates at the two project driveway locations shall open 
inward, away from Alder Creek Drive and Old Ranch Way respectively. In 
addition, the design of the vehicle entry gates and the vehicle entry gate area 
shall conform to all requirements established by the City of Folsom for gated 
multi-family residential developments. 

• If vehicles are observed backing up into Alder Creek Parkway or Old Ranch 
Way at either of the two gated project entries, City staff will evaluate and 
require appropriate measures to alleviate the traffic congestion including but 
not limited to requiring the two project entry gates to remain open during the 
AM (7:00 a.m. to 9:00 a.m.) and PM (4:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m.) peak hours on 
weekdays. 

• The project driveway on Old Ranch Way shall be restricted for use solely by 
residents of Alder Creek Apartment project. Signage shall be installed that 
indicates the Old Ranch Way project driveway is restricted for use by residents 
only. In addition, signage shall be installed that directs guests and visitors to 
the Alder Creek Parkway project driveway for access to the apartment 
community. 

• Residents of the Alder Creek Apartments project shall be issued remote 
transmitters to allow them to open the entry gates without needing to stop to 
enter a code in the keypad at either entrance location. 

D. Parking 

As noted in the Project Description, the proposed project includes a total of 265 
apartment units including 145 one-bedroom units, 100 two-bedroom units, and 20 three
bedroom units. The Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan (Table A.14) requires that apartment 
developments located within a Multi-Family High Density (MHD) designated area provide 
one parking space for each one-bedroom unit, two parking spaces for each two or three
bedroom unit, and 0.5 guest parking spaces for each apartment unit. As shown and 
described on the submitted site plan, the proposed project includes a total of 541 parking 
spaces including 320 covered carport parking spaces, 85 coverage garage parking 
spaces, and 136 uncovered parking spaces. Staff has determined that the proposed 
project meets the parking requirements prescribed by the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan 
by providing 541 parking spaces whereas a minimum of 518 parking spaces are required . 

The Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan (Table A.14) requires that apartment developments 
located within a Multi-Family High Density (MHD) designated area provide one bicycle 
parking space for each apartment unit that does not have a garage. In this case, there 

Page 204

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

are 180 apartment units that do not have their own garage, thus 180 bicycle parking 
spaces would be required. The submitted site plan indicates that the proposed project 
will include a total of 180 bicycle parking spaces including 85 spaces (17 spaces per 
building) located within interior bike storage areas in each apartment building, 50 external 
spaces (10 spaces per building) located outside of each apartment building, and 45 
spaces dispersed evenly around each apartment building. Staff has determined that the 
proposed project meets the bicycle parking requirements dictated by the Folsom Plan 
Area Specific Plan by providing 180 bicycle parking spaces whereas a minimum of 180 
parking spaces are required. However, staff does recommend that 20 additional bicycle 
parking spaces be provided at the community clubhouse building (inside or outside) to 
serve residents of the community. Condition No. 36 is included to reflect this requirement. 

E. Noise Impacts 

Based on the proximity of the project site to U.S. Highway 50, Alder Creek Parkway, 
Westwood Drive, and Placerville Road, acoustical measurements and modeling were 
prepared by J.C. Brennan & Associates on February 13, 2018 to analyze potential noise 
impacts at the proposed Alder Creek Apartments project site. The purpose of the Noise 
Analysis was to quantify existing noise levels associated with traffic on the 
aforementioned roadways and to compare those noise levels against the applicable City 
of Folsom noise standards for acceptable noise exposure at the project site. In addition, 
noise generated by the proposed project including construction activities, on-site 
parking/circulation, and mechanical equipment noise, was also evaluated in the Noise 
Analysis. 

Two aspects of noise impacts were evaluated relative to the proposed apartment 
community, noise directed at the proposed project, and noise caused by the proposed 
project. As noted previously, the predominant existing noise sources in the project vicinity 
that cause an impact to the project site are from vehicles traveling on U.S. Highway 50, 
Alder Creek Parkway, Westwood Drive, and Placerville Road, as well as background 
noises from adjacent nearby residential land uses. Potential noise impacts that might 
result from development of the Alder Creek Apartments project are construction-related 
activities and operational activities. Construction-related noise would have a short-term 
effect, while operational noise would continue throughout the lifetime of the project. 

The Noise Element of the City of Folsom General Plan regulates noise emissions from 
public roadway traffic on new development of residential or other noise sensitive land 
uses. The Noise Element states that noise from traffic on public roadways shall not 
exceed 65 CNEL for outdoor use areas and 45 CNEL for interior use areas. The Noise 
Analysis determined that exterior noise levels at the outdoor use areas on the project site 
would range from 51 CNEL to 61 CNEL, which complies with the City's 65 CNEL outdoor 
use area noise standard. The Noise Analysis also determined that the interior noise levels 
on the project site would range from 26 CNEL to 36 CNEL, which complies with the City's 
45 CNEL interior noise level standard. However, to further ensure the interior noise level 
standard would be satisfied, the Noise Analysis recommended that air conditioning be 

Page 205

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

provided to allow residents to close windows and doors for appropriate acoustical 
isolation. Condition No. 43 is included to reflect this requirement. 
Construction of the Alder Creek Apartments project would temporarily increase noise 
levels in the project vicinity during the construction period, which would take 
approximately 16 to 20 months. Construction activities, including site clearing, 
excavation, grading, building construction, and paving, would be considered an 
intermittent noise impact throughout the construction period of the project. The City's 
Noise Ordinance excludes construction activities from meeting the General Plan Noise 
Element standards, provided that all phases of construction are limited to the hours 
between 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. on weekdays, and between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. on 
Saturdays. To ensure compliance with the City's Noise Control Ordinance and General 
Plan Noise Element, staff recommends that hours of construction operation be limited 
from 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. on weekdays and 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. on Saturdays with 
no construction permitted on Sundays or holidays. In addition, staff recommends that 
construction equipment be muffled and shrouded to minimize noise levels. Condition No. 
43 is included to reflect these requirements. 

Operational noises generated by the proposed project include sounds associated with 
new vehicle trips, vehicle parking, and mechanical equipment associated with the 
apartment community. Persons and activities potentially sensitive to noise in the project 
vicinity include future residents within the Enclave Subdivision (approximately 100 feet) 
across Westwood Drive to the west, future residents within the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 
Subdivision (approximately 50 feet) across Quail Meadow Way to the east, and future 
residents within the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Subdivision (approximately 100 feet) across 
Alder Creek Parkway to the north. Based on residential nature of the proposed project 
and the fact that the project site will be surrounded by residential development in the 
future, staff has determined that potential noise impacts relative to these operational noise 
sources will not be significant. 

F. Walls/Fencing 

As shown on the preliminary wall and fence exhibit (Attachment 12), the proposed project 
includes a combination of retaining walls, gravity walls, seat walls, open-view fencing, and 
vinyl-coated chain link fencing. Split-face CMU retaining walls that range from two to six 
feet in height are proposed at various locations around the perimeter of the site, and also 
along a small stretch of an interior drive aisle. A three-foot-tall interlocking concrete block 
gravity wall is proposed along a small portion of the southern property boundary. Two
foot-tall cast concrete seat walls are proposed are strategic locations throughout the 
project site including within the clubhouse area. Six-foot-tall tube steel open view fencing, 
interspersed with decorative masonry pilasters, is proposed around the perimeter of the 
site and around the clubhouse facility. In some areas around the perimeter of the site, 
the open view fencing is positioned on top of retaining walls. Lastly, four-foot-tall vinyl
coated chain link fencing is proposed at the dog park feature located in the southeast 
corner of the project site. Staff recommends that the four-foot-tall vinyl-coated chain link 
fencing at the dog park be replaced with tubular steel fencing or a similar decorative 

Page 206

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

fencing design to the satisfaction of the Community Development Department. In 
addition, staff recommends that the final location, design, height, materials, and colors of 
the retaining walls, gravity walls, seat walls, and fencing be subject to review and 
approval by the Community Development Department. Condition No. 16 is included to 
reflect this requirement. 

G. Site Lighting 

As shown on the preliminary lighting plan (Attachment 13), the applicant is proposing to 
use a combination of pole-mounted parking lot lighting, carport lighting, building-attached 
lighting, and bollard lights along the walkways on the project site. All lighting would be 
designed to minimize lighVglare impacts to the adjacent properties by ensuring that all 
exterior lighting is shielded and directed downward. Staff recommends that the final 
exterior building and site lighting plans be submitted for review and approval by 
Community Development Department for location, height, aesthetics, level of illumination, 
glare and trespass prior to the issuance of any building permits. In addition, staff 
recommends all lighting is designed to be shielded and directed downward onto the 
project site and away from adjacent properties and public rights-of-way. Condition No. 20 
is included to reflect these requirements. 

H. Trash/Recycling 

The proposed project includes three trash/recycling enclosures that are distributed evenly 
throughout the project site. As part of their concierge service, the Alder Creek Apartments 
maintenance staff will be responsible for transporting trash and recycling items from the 
collection areas within each building outside to one of the three trash/recycling 
enclosures. Staff recommends that the final location, design, materials, and colors of the 
trash/recycling enclosures be subject to review and approval by the Community 
Development Department. Condition No. 38 is included to reflect these requirements. 

I. Existing and Proposed Landscaping 

The square shaped 10.8-acre project site has previously been mass graded as part of 
development of the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Subdivision. There are no trees or other 
significant vegetation are present on the project site. 

The proposed project will include landscaping along the project's four street frontages 
and also landscaping interior to the project site. A landscape buffer (includes sidewalk) 
is proposed along each street frontage including an 18-foot-wide buffer along Alder Creek 
Parkway, a 15-foot-wide landscape buffer along Westwood Drive, and an 18.5-foot-wide 
buffer along Old Ranch Way and Quail Meadow Way. 

As shown on the landscape plans (Attachment 10), the applicant is proposing to install 
landscaping that features California-native and low water-use trees, shrubs, and 

Page 207

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

groundcover selections intended to comply with the requirements of the Model Water 
Efficiency Landscape Ordinance (MWELO). Proposed landscape improvements include 
a variety of drought-tolerant trees, shrubs, and groundcover. Among the proposed trees 
are; Chinese Elm, Cork Oak, Deodar Cedar, Flame Tree, Glory Maple, Japanese Elm, 
Maidenhair Tree, and Southern Magnolia. Proposed shrubs and groundcover include; 
Asian Jasmine, Brittlebrush, Cape Rush, Carolina Cherry, Dwarf Strawberry Tree, Gold 
Dust Plant, Japanese Holly, Mexican Heather, Red Yucca, Russian Olive, St. John's 
Wort, and Yellow Lantana. The preliminary landscape plan meets the City shade 
requirement (50%) by providing 50% shade in the parking lot area within fifteen (15) 
years. Staff recommends that the final landscape plans be reviewed and approved by 
the Community Development Department. Condition No. 31 is included to reflect this 
requirement. 

J. Frontage Improvements 

Existing improvements to Alder Creek Parkway (adjacent to project site) include 
underground utilities, two travel lanes, bicycle lanes, an eastbound right-turn deceleration 
lane, a raised median for landscaping, curbs, and gutters. Existing improvements to 
Westwood Drive include underground utilities, two travel lanes, bicycle lanes, a raised 
median for landscaping, curbs, and gutters. Existing improvements to Old Ranch Way 
include underground utilities, two travel lanes, curbs, and gutters. Existing improvements 
to Quail Meadow Way include underground utilities, two travel lanes, a partial median for 
landscaping, curbs, and gutters. The owner/applicant will be required to install sidewalks, 
landscaping, streetlights, retaining walls, and site fencing along the street frontages of 
Alder Creek Parkway, Westwood Drive, Old Ranch Way, and Quail Meadow Way 
(Condition No. 18). The recommended conditions of approval require the applicant to 
submit detailed plans for all sidewalks, landscaping, streetlights, retaining walls, and site 
fencing prior to construction to ensure compliance with the Folsom Ranch Central District 
Design Guidelines. 

K. Lot Merger 

The 10.8-acre project site currently consists of two separate parcels, FPASP Parcel 151 
(APN No. 072-3670-012) which is approximately 5.8-acres in size, and FPASP Parcel 82-
81 (APN No. 072-3670-011) which is approximately 5.0-acres in size. Since the 
proposed apartment project is an integrated community with shared access, parking, and 
amenities, the applicant is proposing to merge the two parcels together to form a single 
parcel. Staff recommends that the owner/applicant complete and record a Lot Merger 
that combines the two parcels (APN No. 072-3670-011 and 072-3670-012) associated 
with the proposed project into one parcel prior to issuance of the first building permit for 
the project. Condition No. 42 included to reflect this requirement. 

Page 208

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

L. Minor Administrative Modification (Transfer of Development Rights) 

The project site, which consists of two separate parcels (FPASP Parcel 151 and 82-B1 ), 
is designated by the FPASP for the development of a total of 203 residential units, with 
145 units allocated to Parcel 151 and 58 dwelling units allocated to Parcel 82-B1. Based 
on the fact that the applicant is proposing to construct 265 residential units on the project 
site, a Minor Administrative Modification is being requested for the transfer of 
development rights to move 62 allocated dwelling units from other parcels (Parcels 7 4 
and 158) with the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan to the project site. In addition, a Minor 
Administrative Modification is being requested to transfer dwelling units among three 
other parcels situated within the Folsom Plan Area. Specifically, the Minor Administrative 
Modification seeks to relocate 89 residential units from Parcels 74 and 158 and move 
them to Parcel 148. The exhibit shown below contains the existing and proposed 
reallocation of units within the Folsom Plan Area as proposed by the subject Minor 
Administrative Modifications. 

FIGURE 10: MINOR ADMINISTRATIVE MODIFICATION EXHIBIT 

Dwelling Unit Allocation 
Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan o,.......... ,·...:: ... 

IIAaCIIIMPI M.otwJuJ~Tbl?t 
.._. ,..__ -/'.·1 

Page 209

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

The Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan provides for Minor Administrative Modifications, 

" ... that are consistent with and do not substantially change its overall intent, 
such as minor adjustments to the land use locations and parcel boundaries 
shown in Figure 4. 1 - Land Use and Figure 4.4 - Plan Area Parcels and the 
land use acreages shown in Table 4. 1 - Land Use Summary." [FPASP 
Section 13.3) 

Minor administrative modifications can be approved at a staff level, provided the following 
criteria are met: 

• The proposed modification is within the Plan Area. 

• The modification does not reduce the size of the proposed town center. 

• The modification retains compliance with City Charter Article 7.08, previously 
known as Measure W. 

• The general land use pattern remains consistent with the intent and spirit of the 
FPASP 

• The proposed changes do not substantially alter the backbone infrastructure 
network. 

• The proposed modification offers equal or superior improvements to development 
capacity or standards. 

• The proposed modification does not increase environmental impacts beyond those 
identified in the EIR/EIS. 

• Relocated park or school parcels continue to meet the standards for the type of 
park or school proposed. 

• Relocated park or school parcels remain within walking distance of the residents 
they serve. 

As mentioned previously, the proposed project includes a request for approval of a Minor 
Administrative Modification to transfer development rights among one of the subject 
parcels and other residential parcels located in the Folsom Plan Area. The FPASP 
permits flexibility in transferring residential unit allocations to reflect changing market 
demand. The FPASP states that "the City shall approve residential dwelling unit 
allocation transfers or density adjustments between any Plan Area resident land parcel 
or parcels, provided the following conditions are met": 

• The transferor and transferee parcel or parcels are located in the Plan Area and 
are designated for residential use. 

• The transferor and transferee parcel or parcels conform to all applicable 
development standards contained in Appendix A - Development Standards. 

Page 210

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

• The transfer of units does not result in increased impacts beyond those identified 
in the FPASP EIR/EIS 

• The transfer of units does not adversely impact planned infrastructure, roadways, 
schools, or other public facilities; affordable housing agreements; or fee programs 
and assessment districts; unless such impacts are reduced to an acceptable level 
through project-specific mitigation measures. 

Based on staff's review, the proposed reallocation of 62 residential units from other 
parcels within the Folsom Plan Area to the project site, and the relocation of residential 
units among three other parcels within the Folsom Plan Area, meet all of the required 
criteria mentioned above. As a result, staff is able to approve the proposed Minor 
Administrative Modifications and the transfer of development rights as proposed. 

M. Conformance with Relevant General Plan and Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan 
Goals and Policies 

The recently approved City of Folsom 2035 General Plan outlines a number of goals, 
policies, and implementation programs designed to guide the physical, economic, and 
environmental growth of the City. In addition, the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan includes 
goals and policies intended to ensure successful development within the Folsom Plan 
Area. Staff has determined that the proposed project is consistent with both the General 
Plan and Specific Plan goals and policies. The following is a summary analysis of the 
project's consistency with the Folsom General Plan and with key policies of the Folsom 
Plan Area Specific Plan. 

APPLICABLE GENERAL PLAN GOALS AND POLICIES 
GP GOAL LU 1.1 (Land Use/Growth and Change) 
Retain and enhance Folsom's quality of life, unique identity, and sense of community 
while continuing to grow and change. 

GP POLICY LU 1.1.12-1 (Infill Development) 
Respect the local context: New development should improve the character and 
connectivity of the neighborhood in which it occurs. Physical design should respond to 
the scale and features of the surrounding community, while improving critical elements 
such as transparency and permeability. 

Analysis: The proposed project is consistent with this policy in that the project 
features significant site and design improvements which will enhance the overall 
character of the area including introducing new upscale apartment units with a 
contemporary residential design intended to compliment the design of approved 
residential and commercial developments in the vicinity. In addition, the proposed 
project is consistent with the Folsom Ranch Central District Design Guidelines. 

Page 211

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

GP POLICY LU 1.1.15 (SACOG Blueprint Princip les) 
Strive to adhere to the Sacramento Regional Blueprint Growth Principles. 

Analysis: The proposed project is consistent with this policy in that the project has 
been designed to adhere to the primary SACOG Blueprint Principles including 
Compact Development, Housing Choice and Diversity, Use of Existing Assets, and 
Quality Design. Compact Development involves creating environments that are 
more compactly built and use space in an efficient but attractive manner and helps 
to encourage more walking, biking, and transit use and shorter auto trips. Housing 
Choice and Diversity includes providing a variety of places where people can live 
(apartments, townhomes, condominiums, and single-family detached homes) and 
also creating opportunities for the variety of people who need them such as 
families, singles, seniors, and people with special needs. Use of Existing Assets 
entails intensification of the existing use or redevelopment in order to make better 
use of existing public infrastructure, including roads. Quality Design focuses on 
the design details of any land development (such as relationship to the street, 
placement of buildings, sidewalks, street widths, landscaping, etc.), which are all 
factors that influence the attractiveness of living in a compact development and 
facilitate the ease of walking within and in and out of a community. 

GP GOAL H-2 (Removing Barriers to the Production of Housing) 
To minimize governmental constraints on the development of housing for households of 
all income levels. 

GP POLICY H 2.7 
The City shall educate the community on the needs, the realities, and the benefits of 
affordable and high-density housing. 

Analysis: The proposed project is consistent with this policy in that the project will 
result in development of a 265-unit multi-family high density apartment community 
with a residential density of 24.5 units per acre. The project is also the first multi
family apartment community to be proposed within the Folsom Plan Area, 
providing a type of housing (rental apartments) not currently available in this 
portion of the City. 

GP GOAL M 4.1 (Vehicle Traffic and Parking) 
Ensure a safe and efficient network of streets for car and trucks, as well as provide an 
adequate supply of vehicle parking. 

GP POLICY M 4.1.3 (Level of Service) 
Strive to achieve a least traffic Level of Service "D" (or better) for local streets and 
roadways throughout the City. In designing transportation improvements, the City will 
prioritize use of smart technologies and innovative solutions that maximize efficiencies 
and safety while minimizing the physical footprint. During the course of Plan buildout it 
may occur that temporarily higher Levels of Service result where roadway improvements 

Page 212

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

have not been adequately phased as development proceeds. However, this situation will 
be minimized based on annual traffic studies and monitoring programs. Staff will report 
to the City Council at regular intervals via the Capital improvement Program process for 
the Council to prioritize project integral to achieving Level of Service D or better. 

Analysis: The proposed project is consistent with this policy in that the project will 
not result in a change in the level of service (LOS) at any of the ten study 
intersections. In addition, the proposed project, while not technically subject to the 
VMT requirement as discussed earlier within the Traffic/Access/Circulation Section 
of this staff report, will result in a negligible change in VMT when compared to the 
existing FPASP. 

GP GOAL M 4.2 (Vehicle Traffic and Parking) 
Provide and manage a balanced approach to parking that meets economic development 
and sustainability goals. 

GP POLICY M 4.2.4 (Electric Vehicle Charging Stations) 
Encourage the installation of electric vehicle charging stations in parking spaces 
throughout the city, prioritizing installations at multi-family residential units. 

Analysis: The proposed project is consistent with this policy in that the project 
includes electric vehicle charging stations in each of the 85 covered garages and 
in the two "gang" stations positioned in the parking lot area. The number of 
proposed electric vehicle charging station is consistent with the California Green 
Buildings Standards Code's provisions for multi-family residential development. 

GP GOAL LU 6.1 (Residential Neighborhoods) 
Allow for a variety of housing types and mix of uses that provide choices for Folsom 
residents, create complete and livable neighborhoods, and encourage walking and biking. 

GP POLICY LU 6.1.3 (Efficiency through Density) 
Support an overall increase in average residential densities in identified urban centers 
and mixed-use districts. Encourage new housing types to shift from lower-density, large
lot developments to higher-density, small-lot and multifamily developments, as a means 
to increase energy efficiency, conserve water, reduce waste, as well as increase access 
to services and amenities (e.g., open space) through an emphasis of mixed uses in these 
higher-density developments. 

Analysis: The proposed project is consistent with this policy in that the project is 
providing an upscale multi-family residential project developed at a residential 
density of 24.5 units per acre. According to the applicant, upscale luxury 
apartments are considered an underserved segment of the rental housing market 
in Folsom today based on their market research. The proposed project design 
also incorporates sustainable features (mechanical, electrical, plumbing, HVAC 
systems, and rooftop photovoltaic systems) that are consistent with California 

Page 213

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

Green Building Standards Code (CALGreen). In addition, the proposed project 
includes electric vehicle charging stations, and electric vehicle parking spaces, and 
cool surface paving materials consistent with CALGreen. 

GP GOAL LU 9.1 (Land Use/Community Design) 
Encourage community design that results in a distinctive, high-quality built environment 
with a character that creates memorable places and enriches the quality of life of Folsom's 
residents. 
GP POLICY LU 9.1.10 (Renewable and Alternative Energy Generation Systems) 
Require the use of solar, wind, and other on-site renewable energy generation systems 
as part of the design of new planned developments. 

Analysis: The proposed project is consistent with this policy in that the project 
includes the use of solar thermal hot water heaters at the community clubhouse 
building and the apartment buildings will have necessary infrastructure for future 
photovoltaic installation and expansion. The apartment buildings will also be wired 
to accommodate future installation of rooftop photovoltaic systems. In addition, 
while not considered renewable or alternative energy generation systems, electric 
vehicle charging stations are proposed in each of the 85 covered garages as well 
as in two "gang" stations located in the parking lot area. The proposed project also 
includes the use of cool paving materials at the two project driveway entries and 
in the site amenity areas located throughout the project site. 

Conformance with Relevant Specific Plan Goals, Objectives, and Policies 

The Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan identifies a number of goals, objectives, and policies 
designed to guide the physical, economic, and environmental growth of the Specific Plan 
Area. Staff has determined that the proposed project is consistent with the Specific Plan 
goals, objectives, and policies as outlined and discussed below: 

SP OBJECTIVE H-1 (Housing) 
To provide an adequate supply of suitable sites for the development of a range of housing 
types to meet the housing needs of all segments of the population. 

GP and SP POLICY H-1 . 1 
The City shall ensure that sufficient land is designated and zoned in a range of residential 
densities to accommodate the City's regional share of housing. 

Analysis: The City provides residential lands at a variety of residential densities 
as specified in the General Plan and in the Folsom Municipal Code. The Folsom 
Plan Area Specific Plan includes specialized zoning (Specific Plan Designations) 
that are customized to the Plan Area as adopted in 2011 and as Amended over 
time. The FPASP provides residential lands at densities ranging from 1-4 dwelling 
unit per acre (SF), 4-7 dwelling units per acre (SFHD), 7-12 dwelling units per acre 

Page 214

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

(MLD), 12-20 dwelling units per acre (MMD), 20-30 dwelling units per acre (MHD), 
and 9-30 dwelling units per acre (MU). 

With approval of the proposed General Plan Amendment and Specific Plan 
Amendment, the project site will have General Plan land use designation of MHD 
and a Specific Plan land use designation of SP-MHD-PD. In addition, the Alder 
Creek Apartments project will be developed at 24.5-units per acre, which is within 
the allowed density range for the MHD designation. 

SP POLICY 4.1 
Create pedestrian-oriented neighborhoods through the use of a grid system of streets 
where feasible, sidewalks, bike paths and trails. Residential neighborhoods shall be 
linked, where appropriate, to encourage pedestrian and bicycle travel. 

Analysis: The Alder Creek Apartments project proposes a multi-family apartment 
community with a grid system of local streets provided with sidewalks on both sides 
of the street. Bicycle and pedestrian circulation within the project site will be 
accommodated by a series of interconnected walkways that will connect via 
external sidewalks and Class Ill bicycle lanes with nearby neighborhoods, parks, 
schools, and open space trails that have Class I bicycle trails. 

SP POLICY 4.6 
As established by the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan, the total number of dwelling units 
for the Plan Area shall not exceed 11,461. The number of units within individual land use 
parcels may vary, so long as the number of units falls within the allowable density range 
for a particular land use designation. 

Analysis: There have been a number of Specific Plan Amendments approved by 
the City Council within the Folsom Plan Area, which has generally led to an 
increase in residentially zoned land and a decrease in commercially zoned land. 
As a result, the number of residential units within the Plan Area increased from 
10,210 to 11,461. The various Specific Plan Amendment El Rs and Addendums 
analyzed impacts from the conversion of the commercial lands to residential lands; 
impacts and associated mitigations measures can be found in the individual 
project-specific environmental documents. 

While the proposed project will result in an increase in the number of dwelling units 
that were anticipated to be constructed on the project site (increase from 203 to 
265 dwelling units), this is offset by the reallocation of dwelling units among three 
other parcels within the Folsom Plan Area as described in the Minor Administrative 
Modification section of this staff report. The reallocation of units among these 
parcels will not exceed the allowable density for the parcels. In addition, the 
proposed project does not result in any change in total dwelling units (11,461 
dwelling units) in the FPASP. 

Page 215

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

SP OBJECTIVE 7 .1 (Circulation) 
Consistent with the California Complete Streets Act of 2008 and the Sustainable 
Communities and Climate Protection Act (SB 375), create a safe and efficient circulation 
system for all modes of travel. 

SP POLICY 7.1 
The roadway network in the Plan Area shall be organized in a grid-like pattern of streets 
and blocks, except where topography and natural features make it infeasible, for the 
majority of the Plan Area in order to create neighborhoods that encourage walking, biking, 
public transit, and other alternative modes of transportation. 

Analysis: Consistent with the requirements of the California Complete Streets Act, 
the FPASP identified and planned for hierarchy of connect "complete streets" to 
ensure that pedestrian, bike, bus, and automobile modes are travel are designed 
to have direct and continuous connections throughout the Plan Area. Every option, 
from regional connector roadways to arterial and local streets, has been carefully 
planned and designed. Recent California legislation to reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions (AB 32 and SB 375) has resulted in an increased market demand for 
public transit and housing located closer to service needs and employment 
centers. In response to these changes, the FPASP includes a regional transit 
corridor that will provide public transportation links between the major commercial, 
public, and multi-family residential land uses in the Plan Area. 

The Alder Creek Apartments project has been designed with multiple modes of 
transportation options (vehicles, bicycle, walking, access to transit) and internal 
drive aisles organized in a pattern consistent with the approved FPASP circulation 
plan. 

N. Native American Consultation (SB 18) 

Senate Bill (SB) 18 was signed into law in September 2004 and became effective in March 
2005. SB 18 requires city and county governments to consult with California Native 
American tribes early in the planning process with the intent of protecting traditional tribal 
cultural places. In accordance with Government Code 65352.3(a)(2), the City sent project 
notifications to each of listed tribes on March 6, 2020 and afforded them 90 days to 
respond and request consultation. The City received responses from two tribes who 
expressed a desire to consult regarding the proposed project. The City organized 
separate meetings to consult with the two tribes, however, the tribes failed to attend the 
consultation meetings. 

On April 16, 2020, and in accordance with Government Code §65352(a)(11), the City 
mailed the 45-day referral notices to the listed tribes. No tribes provided comment within 
that timeframe. The City will mail specific details of the pending City Council public hearing 
to listed tribes at least 10 days in advance of the meeting, in accordance with Government 
Code §65092. In summary, the City has assumed and concluded consultation 

Page 216

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

responsibilities in accordance with the Tribal Consultation Guidelines: Supplement to 
General Plan Guidelines (November 14, 2005) published by the Governor's Office of 
Planning and Research. 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

The City, as the lead agency under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), has 
determined that, in accordance with Section 15164 of the State CEQA Guidelines, the 
proposed land use and density changes, and other changes constitute minor changes to 
the development scenario described in the Final EIR/EIS for the Folsom Plan Area 
Specific Plan, warranting the preparation of an Addendum. An Addendum is appropriate 
where a previously certified EIR has been prepared and some changes or revisions to 
the project are proposed, or the circumstances surrounding the project have changed, 
but none of the changes or revisions would result in significant new or substantially more 
severe environmental impacts, consistent with CEQA Section 21166 and State CEQA 
Guidelines Sections 15162 and 15163. 

An Environmental Checklist and Addendum was prepared in accordance with CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15164 to evaluate whether the proposed project's effects were 
adequately examined in the FPASP EIR/EIS. The Environmental Checklist and 
Addendum concluded that no changes associated with the proposed project and no 
changed circumstances trigger subsequent or supplemental environmental review. The 
Environmental Checklist and Addendum are included at Attachment 21 to this staff 
report. In addition, the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program are included as 
Attachment 22 to this staff report. 

RECOMMENDATION/PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION 

Move to recommend that the City Council : 

• Adopt an Addendum to the Final Environmental Impact Report for the Folsom Plan 
Area Specific Plan prepared for the Alder Creek Apartments project (PN 18-222) per 
Attachment 21; and 

• Approve a General Plan Amendment to change the General Plan land use designation 
for a 5.0-acre portion (APN No. 072-3670-011) of the Alder Creek Apartments project 
site from MLD (Multi-Family Low Density) to MHD (Multi-Family High Density) per 
Attachment 6; and 

• Approve a Specific Plan Amendment to change the Specific Plan land use designation 
for a 5.0-acre portion (APN No. 072-3670-011) of the Alder Creek Apartments project 
site from SP-MLD-PD (Specific Plan, Multi-Family Low Density, Planned Development 
District) to SP-MHD-PD (Specific Plan, Multi-Family High Density, Planned 
Development District) per Attachment 6; and 

Page 217

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

• Approve a Planned Development Permit to establish detailed development and 
architectural standards for the 265-unit Alder Creek Apartments project; and 

• Approve a Minor Administrative Modification to transfer 62 allocated dwelling units 
from other locations within the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan to the Alder Creek 
Apartments project site and to transfer dwelling units among three other parcels 
located within the Folsom Plan Area per Attachment 6. 

These approvals are subject to the proposed findings below (Findings A-Z) and the 
recommended conditions of approval (Conditions 1-43) attached to this report. 

GENERAL FINDINGS 

A. NOTICE OF HEARING HAS BEEN GIVEN AT THE TIME AND IN THE 
MANNER REQUIRED BY STATE LAW AND CITY CODE. 

B. THE PROJECT IS GENERALLY CONSISTENT WITH THE GENERAL PLAN AS 
AMENDED, THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN AS AMENDED, AND 
THE FOLSOM RANCH CENTRAL DISTRICT DESIGN GUIDELINES. 

CEQA FINDINGS 

C. THE CITY, AS LEAD AGENCY, PREVIOUSLY CERTIFIED AN 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT/ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
STATEMENT FOR THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN. 

D. AN ADDENDUM TO THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN FINAL 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT/ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
STATEMENT WAS CERTIFIED BY THE CITY IN 2015 FOR THE WESTLAND 
EAGLE SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT PROJECT IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
CEQA. 

E. THE CITY HAS DETERMINED THAT THE ALDER CREEK APARTMENTS 
PROJECT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN 
AS AMENDED BY THE WESTLAND EAGLE SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT 
AND THE AMENDMENT SOUGHT AS A PART OF THIS PROJECT. 

F. THE CITY HAS DETERMINED THAT NONE OF THE CIRCUMSTANCES 
DESCRIBED IN PUBLIC RESOURCES CODE SECTION 21166 OR CEQA 
GUIDELINES SECTION 15162 GENERALLY REQUIRING THE PREPARATION 
OF A SUBSEQUENT EIR EXIST IN THIS CASE. 

Page 218

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

G. THE CITY HAS PREPARED AN ADDENDUM TO THE FINAL 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT FOR THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA 
SPECIFIC PLAN AND HAS DETERMINED THAT THE PROJECT CREATES 
NO NEW IMPACTS AND DOES NOT REQUIRE ANY MITIGATION MEASURES 
IN ADDITION TO THOSE IN THE FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT 
AND THE ADDENDUM FOR THE WESTLAND EAGLE SPECIFIC PLAN 
AMENDMENT PROJECT. 

H. THE CITY HAS DETERMINED THAT THE IMPACTS OF THE ALDER CREEK 
APARTMENTS PROJECT ARE ADEQUATELY ADDRESSED BY THE FINAL 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT FOR THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA 
SPECIFIC PLAN, THE ADDENDUM FOR THE WESTLAND EAGLE SPECIFIC 
PLAN AMENDMENT PROJECT, AND THE ADDENDUM FOR THE ALDER 
CREEK APARTMENTS PROJECT. 

I. THE PLANNING COMMISSION HAS CONSIDERED THE ADDENDUM WITH 
THE FINAL EIR BEFORE MAKING A DECISION ON THE PROJECT. 

GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT FINDINGS 

J. THE PROPOSED GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE 
GOALS, POLICIES AND OBJECTIVES OF THE CITY OF FOLSOM GENERAL 
PLAN 

K. THE PROPOSED GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE 
OBJECTIVES OF THE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE CITY'S GENERAL PLAN 
AND DEVELOPMENT POLICIES. 

L. THE PROPOSED GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT WILL NOT RESULT IN A 
NET LOSS OF RESIDENTIAL CAPACITY. 

M. THE PROPOSED GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT IS IN THE PUBLIC 
INTEREST. 

N. PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 65352.3, THE CITY 
CONTACTED ALL CALIFORNIA NATIVE AMERICAN TRIBES ON THE 
CONTACT LIST MAINTAINED BY THE NATIVE AMERICAN HERITAGE 
COMMISSION IN ASSOCIATION WITH THIS PROJECT. THE CITY 
RECEIVED TWO REQUESTS FOR CONSULTATION FROM NATIVE 
AMERICAN TRIBES, BOTH TRIBES LATER FAILED TO PURSUE 
CONSULTATION WITH THE CITY. 

Page 219

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT FINDINGS 

0. THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC 
PLAN IS CONSISTENT WITH THE CITY'S GENERAL PLAN (AS AMENDED). 

P. THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE FPASP WILL NOT RESULT IN A NET 
LOSS OF RESIDENTIAL CAPACITY. 

Q. THE PROPOSED SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT IS IN THE PUBLIC 
INTEREST. 

R. THE PROPOSED SPECIFIC PLAN AMENDMENT IS CONSISTENT WITH THE 
GOALS, POLICIES, AND OBJECTIVES OF THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA 
SPECIFIC PLAN. 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT PERMIT FINDINGS 

S. THE PROPOSED PROJECT COMPLIES WITH THE INTENT AND PURPOSES 
OF THE FOLSOM PLAN AREA SPECIFIC PLAN AS AMENDED AND OTHER 
APPLICABLE ORDINANCES OF THE CITY AND THE GENERAL PLAN AS 
AMENDED. 

T. THE PROPOSED PROJECT IS GENERALLY CONSISTENT WITH THE 
OBJECTIVES, POLICIES AND REQUIREMENTS OF THE DEVELOPMENT 
STANDARDS OF THE CITY. THE MINOR MODIFICATION TO THOSE 
STANDARDS PROPOSED AS PART OF THIS PROJECT WILL RESULT IN A 
DEVELOPMENT THAT IS SUPERIOR TO THAT OBTAINED BY THE RIGID 
APPLICATION OF THE STANDARDS. 

U. THE PHYSICAL, FUNCTIONAL AND VISUAL COMPATIBILITY BETWEEN THE 
PROPOSED PROJECT AND EXISTING AND FUTURE ADJACENT USES AND 
AREA CHARACTERISTICS IS ACCEPTABLE. 

V. AS CONDITIONED, THE PROJECT WILL MAKE AVAILABLE NECESSARY 
PUBLIC FACILITIES, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, WATER, SEWER 
AND DRAINAGE, AND THE PROJECT WILL ADQUATELY PROVIDE FOR THE 
FURNISHING OF SUCH FACILITIES. 

W. THE PROPOSED PROJECT WILL NOT CAUSE ADVERSE ENVIRONMENTAL 
IMPACTS WHICH HAVE NOT BEEN MITIGATED TO AN ACCEPTABLE 
LEVEL. 

Page 220

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Planning Commission 
Alder Creek Apartments (PN 18-222) 
February 3, 2021 

X. THE PROPOSED PROJECT WILL NOT CAUSE UNACCEPTABLE VEHICULAR 
TRAFFIC LEVELS ON SURROUNDING ROADWAYS, AND THE PROPOSED 
PROJECT WILL PROVIDE ADEQUATE INTERNAL CIRCULATION, INCLUDING 
INGRESS AND EGRESS. 

Y. THE PROPOSED PROJECT WILL NOT BE DETRIMENTAL TO THE HEAL TH, 
SAFETY AND GENERAL WELFARE OF THE PERSONS OR PROPERTY 
WITHIN THE VICINITY OF THE PROJECT SITE, AND THE CITY AS A 
WHOLE. 

Z. ADEQUATE PROVISION IS MADE FOR THE FURNISHING OF SANITATION 
SERVICES AND EMERGENCY PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES TO THE 
DEVELOPMENT. 

Page 221

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Attachment 3 

Vicinity Map 

Page 222

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



• 11,461 DU 
• 71,965 Population 
• 8.8 du/ac: Avenge Density 

Project Site 

• 2.8m GSF Commercial 

,_ __ ..,..._ 
,,,.,.. ..... 201, 
............ INIIIIIT-
-~-~2D!5 :.a .. .._,m.,,.__,.,._,_,T _ _, 
~ .... ~201~ 
IXl""lilMal ' !7)1 o,,T.-_ fallo_ 

:~8-re.22.20!5 
-001211u-
__ .,.., __ 
~-;zz20,e -_:_Ou_ 
~•A 
.,,_..,2'.2018 

' 2D180ll
c.r-r..-...,.1111~-
.-.uaa.20,a 
21•,_....,..,. 

-~ .... 211 • .zo,1 
:"'11-. .....-1 UJ GIi T• 

-e-•A 
................ 28.2018 -., .. -

FOLSOM 

..._. ___ _ 
-~ .... 28,2011 
:.Amdl..._/lCDOUT .. n.e-•,_-.--uo,e ,,,.., _ -e-T-: .-A1,1111. 2011 a,., _ _ ......,. __ 
,__ .a.tr 11, 20'7 

:·41>7dl..._ / Q>OUT* ..,.. __ ,_,, __ 
,..,.._,,........13,2018 
:.5'15"" .._ /101 0U T• 
..._._LaloMlhJIT ...... _ 
~....,,13,2018 =--...... 

Page 223

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Attachment 4 

General Plan/Specific Plan Amendment Exhibit 
Dated November 9, 2020 

Page 224

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



MAM/TDR 158 ~u 11.48 150 

MAM/TDR 74 M"II to.oo 132 

MAM/TDR 148 M'U 5.02 61 

OTALS 37.2 546 

Proposed 

N 

+ 
0 1,500 3,000 

11.48 74 9 to 30 0.0 -76 

10.00 57 9 to 30 0.0 -75 Feet 

9 to 30 5.02 150 9 to30 0.0 89 

TOTALS 37.2 546 0.0 0 

148~ 

LegendGeneral Plan land use/ Specilic Plan land use) 

7< 82-81 

Alder Creek Apartments 
Specific Plan Amendment / 
General Plan Amendment / 

148~ 

O cc , sP-cc 
0 GC / SP-GC 

RC / SP-RC 

D POP I SP-POP 

- P / SP-P • os , sP-os 
~ TDR only partols 

l 

Minor Administrative Amendment - Transfer of Development Rights (TDR) 
Page 225

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Attachment 5 

Preliminary Site Plan, dated May 12, 2020 

Page 226

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



'""' 
_j 

") 

---.. 

\~ rl I 
J I f !! , I 
r IL i 

f l!' I 1 ) f 
~8) 

/ 

I 

I 
J 

~ 

Ii 
11 

/ 

,,,, 
/ / ., I 
/ 

______ __.__,,, -i-·----- -- ------· 

- -·- --:;=,,-;nr-l ; ( - -
""""' Mrt::n1K1~,..,lt' 

' I II') 

N 

* 

~ "IIU • .. , • 

- ! 
) 

I 

~ 
I 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

rv,..,t l,'~ ~r ftt ~,ro;,. 

Planned Development Permit 
Preliminary Site Plan 

Page 227

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Attachment 6 

Preliminary Utility Plan, dated May 12, 2020 

Page 228

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



,w 

I• ~ 
( ~- l 

( ; ~ 
·' I 

l flt.t.01 • , ~ 

+ , ., , 
~.-. ..-

> 

fVTUR[ NC:IGhBOR!JOOD PARK 

"' -

~ "'""_,..,_...,.m, 
~-,..,,--m.J-MK:A/1111 
~ ... P111--..11Url<IEJIW£.,..,...., 

. -a,; -

... 

\IIA...C,. -~1, ~, 
fA" lllWl~ ff., tldN't. il A.!!ll n.rruRE ELE~EN"FMY SCl-!00L 

!?Cl?J 

,, ' 

Planned Development Permit 
Preliminary Utility Plan 

l 
• r 

Page 229

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Attachment 7 

Preliminary Grading and Drainage Plan 
Dated May 12, 2020 

Page 230

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



"'" 

--,-

~-·Ir :J;f = sto · 1'· "" 

~ 

I',/ I 

-~ l(~~ lJ 

~ ~ 

' ~~·o'NI lt.l.!t4=:l .,.I".,~ ~ 
IAl"i".-P,\' I).) fl //l TIVr li'Ml 

IV', I 

-- / 
"-
,,.,--

:J 

~ 

~ 

_l_ "l I I1~~- ,..~~~7~~ : _·.:·. I --~i"':00~:.:_)±hn',.. :; __ ... ~ .... ~-~ ~· 1 -f a.1~ .-~ 
__ ..,._ 

..IDl(IJttt I 
I I 

I ' f .,._ '1•'W¥ 

ji-1 

~ lrn1 · ~-rmlfillT~ lfl11~i~fi -· ~ 1 . -~ . - . I I , I ~ ". " .. : n , • m-·n \ I ~ ~ ! ______ [] 

~ h_ .j 

i.ii~ I 
:f 
jI I 

I 

jl 
-J 
-~ 

.,!!!£._ 

\ ... ,, l 

+ ~ 

I 
I 
( 

FUTUlll NEIGHBDRrlllllO PARK 

"' 
" ~'l ll,NICIIJ"tt"'j,( I 

IA~QVfQl ;lL"iTATl'V,: "1o'Jl' • 
I 

1iWII i I --T 

FUTURC: EliMENfAIH SCHOOL 
IPOP) 

........ 

....... 

= ... 
"1 

-:z 
--~ 

Im 

~ 

,..,..,,,,_ 

---· ,· .. r•-"' 

=~= 
... -

... 

Planned Development Permit 
Preliminary Grading and Drainage Plan 

Ir-

l 
:11 

i 
I 
I 
l 

I 
;, 

ri 
l' 

t L 
i" -1 if 

. Alder Creek Agartments . !i 
Folsom, C.lllbmtdl Revised: May 12, 2020 .I 

macKAY & sumps ~=: ,f 
ENGIIIEEU ,U,N- IIIHIYEVDU ,_ .. 

Yion2JI ~t 

Page 231

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Attachment 8 

Preliminary Landscape Plan and Details 
Dated January 11, 2021 

Page 232

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



PROPOSED SHADE TREE LEGEND* 
TOT,t.LSl1 /IDE 

COMMON NAME: INSTAU.. SIZE CANOPY$1ZE 015 YA.S SHADE CALC (60% l"AVING AREA MIN) 

s.msf IS~TO#rOAVIE50':ll!Hla:~.\T 1i
TM1$PI.Nt~58-&F CRIOO-aF~ 

'Olc.'1~f.OIIIIMo:11£Cla.Cll'Ta,IS 

00,U 

lll'W(IWSO"l 

,i,•w(K)SCll'Tl 

,l,'WIM3SQ.l"T.\ 

30'W(10'/IQ.l'T) 

ll'('Da ... ~..,.~~ar.\llJC.~IIGUl"4 
~~f(UOl,l!Wola.:i:-.1:nhEI ..... CWICU.,NCI. 

~111,,S,ll'U~flfilMICa!~lOl~tW.U:.-

-~ t',.."5't 

[Si 
Cl 

Cl 
0 
0 

i 
3' 

OLD RANCH WAY 

SHADE CALCULATIONS PLAN 

ALDER CREEK APARTMENTS, FOLSOM CA 
January 11 , 2021 

Sheet 23 of 24 

D 40 BO 160 

L____Jl___J 
:':r:;ilr:: I" - 40' (011 '.!4x:lCi :"llN:l I 

\orth 

Page 233

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



January 11, 2021 

Mr. Steve Banks 
Principal Planner, City of Folsom 
SO Natoma Street 
Folsom, CA 95630 

Great Valle~J Design, Inc. 
Cahl'ornia 11-17-10 Ncl',itla d989 

W\V\v.grtvoll9•,ct1111 

Lmcl~c;ip~ Ari:hitcrrmc • lrrig.,th"ln \l,rn,1~cmcnr 

Response to Staff Report Info. request. Alder Creek Apartments 

Steve: 

The attached plant list is what I would recommend for shrub, perennial and groundcover planting. The landscape 
exhibits are at 40 scale and I did not think this level of detail would read correctly. 

I break the plant list into- screening and foundation shrubs, flowering accent shrubs, accent shrubs for specific 
places such as building entries, flowering perennials, grasses and grass-like plants for high traffic areas such as 
parking islands, and groundcovers. 

In general, these plants are low to medium water use, predominantly evergreen, plants taken from the Folsom 
Ranch Design Guidelines, or that we feel thrive in Folsom (taken from recent projects we have done there), and 
broken into a hot sunny South-West group and cool shady North-East group. No separate plant list is currently 
proposed for the pool/community clubhouse. No vines are currently proposed. 

Shade screening and foundation shrubs 
Arbutus u. compacta 
Aucuba japonica 
Calycanthus occidentalis 
Euonymus Silver Queen 
llex crenata 
Myrtus communis 
Pittosporum Golf Ball 

Shade flowering shrubs 
Abelia Kaleidoscope 
Hydrangea quercifolia 
Osmanthus fragrans 
Viburnum davidii 

Shade accent shrubs 
Fatsia japonica 
Mahonia Soft Caress 
Nandina Seika 

Dwarf Strawberry tree 
Gold dust plant 
Western spicebush 
Variegated euonymus 
Japanese holly 
Myrtle 
Dwarf Queensland laurel 

Variegated abelia 
Oak-leaf hydrangea 
Sweet osmanthus 
Blue berry viburnum 

Japanese aralia 
Weeping mahonia 
Heavenly bamboo 

Page 234

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Page two 

Shade flowering perennials 
Geranium Johnson's Blue 
Cuphea hyssopifolia 
Agapanthus Tinkerbell 
Hemerocallis Dixieland 

Shade grasses and grass-like plants 
Lomandra platinum 
Lomandra Little Con 
Carex tumicola 

Shade groundcovers 
Trachylospermum asiaticum 
Liriope spicata 
Vinca minor 
Ajuga reptans 

Sun screening and foundation shrubs 
Elaeagnus Olive martini 
Prunus Bright n' Tight 
Leucophyllum fruticosa 
Westringia Smoky 
Olea mantra 
Rhamnus San Bruno 
Grevillea Canberra 

Sun flowering shrubs 
Viburnum Spring Bouquet 
Hypericum Hidcote 
Cistus crispus 
Encelia farinosa 

Sun accent shrubs 
Anigozanthos Bush Baby 
Hesperaloe parviflora 
Chondropetalum tectorum 

Sun flowering perennials 
Lobelia laxa 
Teuchrium chamadrys 
Nepeta Blue Wonder 
Zaucheneria Calistoga 

Sun grasses and grass-like plan ts 
Muhlenbergia capillaris 
Helictotrichon sempervirens 
Anamanthele lessoniana 

Sun groundcovers 
Rosmarinus prostratus 
Lantana New Gold 

Blue crane's bill 
Mexican heather 
Dwarf variegated agapanthus 
Orange striped Daylily 

Variegated mat rush 
Lemon-lime mat rush 
Berkeley sedge 

Asian jasmine 
Giant blue liriope 
Little leaf vinca 
Carpet bugle 

Russian olive 
Carolina cherry 
Texas ranger 
Coast grey rosemary 
Dwarf olive 
Compact coffeeberry 
Pink grevillea 

Pink viburnum 
St. John's wort 
White rockrose 
Brittlebush 

Kangaroo paw 
Red yucca 
Cape rush 

Firecracker plant 
Wall germander 
Cat mint 
California fuchsia 

Cotton candy grass 
Blue Oatgrass 
Pheasant grass 

Creeping rosemary 
Yellow lantana 

Page 235

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Page three 

Myoporum Putah Creek 
Juniperus Blue Chip 

Creeping laurel 
Prostrate juniper 

Also, please see attached shade calculation exhibit. 

To revise it, I found a small area that had been shown as parking and re-categorized that as pedestrian walkway. 
I added two trees and replaced one tree with a larger canopy variety to achieve the 50% requirement. 

Sincerely, for Great Valley Design 

Scott Volmer, California Landscape Architect #4740 

cc: Nicolas Ruhl, Donna Pasquantonio 

Page 236

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



FORMED CONCRETE WALLS AND 
RAISED BEDS TO DEFINE RAMPS/STAIRS 

AND SEPERATE CLUB TB'!RACE FROM POOL 

8 PERSON SPA AND STEEL CABANAS, 
CAST SEATWALL, SPEClAL PAVNG 

. . . 
- ~ · 

11= __ ;.~ • .} 
- ~, .... . - -_:ra--: .. . 

'· 
B80 PAVILION WITH STEEL BEAMS AND 
NATURAL WOOD SIDING, NIGHT LIGiTING 
TO COMPLIMENT CLUB HOUSE DECK 

t750 SF TURF / HAMMOCK RANCH 

12' x 60' BOCCE COURT WITH RAISED BUMPERS 
ACCESSIBLE HATCHES, D.G. SURROUND AND 
SPECTATOR'S PAVILION 

~--- ARE PLACE, LOW WALL AND SPECIAL PAVNG 
TO CREATE EVE/IIIIG FOCAL POINT At-0 
SEPERATION FROM 80CCE TERRACE 

r---- TUBE STEEL FENCES, ENHANCED PILASTERS AND 
Pr\ lh<"'l'!IB DENSE EVERGREEN PLANTING AT PERIMETERS 

U ';!()' 40 110· 
:i1 u lt · I '= ~O ( 0 11 .!-h:11; :- l 1t •1 I J 

ILLUSTRA TlVE LANDSCAPE PLAN: CLUBHOUSE 

ALDER CREEK APARTMENTS, FOLSOM CA 
December 12, 2019 

Sheet 22 of 24 

Page 237

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Attachment 9 

Preliminary Access and Circulation Plan 
Dated November 23, 2020 

Page 238

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



e 

Project Site Plan 
Page 239

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Attachment 10 

Preliminary Wall, Fence, and Sign Exhibit 
Dated May 8, 2020 

Page 240

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



FENCE & WALL ELEMENTS 

--------~:ll\ftr-/rQ~/11111~.-U.,t",~~ 

Double/ stepped wall 

Tube Steel Perimeter Fence _ _ __, ... 
see Detail C. 

1 TVllE~EL P'IOCETS, 4"0J'I CEN11!:R Z- r.&U. N!h'IEFINISH G~ 
TOP RM TOREMAIN LEVEL,!TEP IA' AT flll.ASTliJl 

~ t FT. P'R&.CABRIC-.TEO ruBE STEEL F!:NCI! COLO..: 
F'OWDER.alATEDSl-tEIMIININII.JJAM$~0A SIMI.AR. 

J, ""°'",t,¥'fVl•~~Q..-.111M.c,,:11119C'l Cl(JOI~ 

4 5fONl! VEN - COl..l.AAELDORADO'VINTAGE 
""'4Cl1"TOMATOIB\JILDINGTRIM 

5. ~:ci=rN~~~,S~Grii,rF~CE 
DIRECTlON, FENCZ ENOS#.ltJ,oo FT. ON CENTEA t.1AA. 

.liii 11uu1,uw:1. : 
... ,I .. I -~~· ~ ' 'I l. 

I ' 

---- ;.~,.. 

1 ~~~~{:~S l'OWOEACO-.TTOMAT~ 

2 ~~~~~~IiI'~~~:.O~ALL CQ_QA 

J c;,\S'T STONl! PEO~ AI... NSETUP-SF'OTUG>fl~ 
TO WASHPROJECTJO. 

~. ~~~~~Wt· JIISETU~-s"OnH~·m! 

a. CORE-TENSTl!EL-f01'1 4' a1C'PL L.AR 
AI.INFORCED CDRNERS r.ABIONMESH 

t ~'?i,sgi,.~ s•.r G,AADE...~ED 

"' > 

Project I.D. Sign Typical Perimeter Fire Gate 
6 ft. landscape dear zone 

~~
-- · .. -. . ' -

!di1 .i -"" 

'NAY 

Community I.D. Monument, see Detail A 

WALL, FENCING AND SIGNAGE PLAN 

ALDER CREEK APARTMENTS, FOLSOM CA 
May 8, 2020 

Sheet 24 of 24 

Community I.D. Monument, see Detail A. 

Cast concrete, fonn board planter walls 
at Club Terrace 

Typical Perimeter Fire Gate 
6 ft . landscape clear zone 

Split-face CMU retaining wall 

Typical Perimeter Fire Gate 
6 ft. landscape clear zone 

Split-face CMU retaining 
wall and perimeter fence 

Dog Park 
48" High vinyl-coated 
chain link fence, 
self-dosing Gate 

,.__ __ Masonry pilasters at 
'-----='- ---......:.....;;= ;;;;...::.. ...... = :,...,._, perimeter fence, change 

lnter1ockin.9 concrete block 
wall & penmeter fence 

~ 
,10· ao· 1so · 

Scn lc: i • -= -rn' (o n :~-1- x :J(;, sh ee l ) 

of direction and 70-100 ft. 
on-center, see Detail B. 

Nud h 

.... .,:..,~. ~ 

Page 241

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Attachment 11 

Preliminary Lighting Plan and Details 
Dated December 11, 2019 

Page 242

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



• . 
~ 

l "'"" 
D ! 

i s 
SI 

52 

53 
; 

.il 

l 

LISHTINe Fl~ SGHEDULE 
MANLFAG~ t:eiG,RJPTION 

I UifALDO~ ....... _ --....... ..,_, ...,_ PIIDUDl':ll-~IMLTII.U.Jltl 

~ .. -........ u,_, ,.,...,_ &alDlBl P':11 ,a.'TPT)II !fWLTN.TAIIC 
~~lll!!tNHUI f"111119~ 

....... Lt'TIOIIA .......... =~G.ll"fflJIMLTN..TAltcl 

~Llllff U'MINIA 
ll'W.S"I 9CSIMLT1¥191f'11 

OFMLED 
=-
.... ,.--·-----.. , .. .., :,_,.......__,_., ... _.., -... _ .. _, ____ _ 

LAMPS VA 

...,_ 

... 

... -

-~---

""'"'1"JN6 ,,.,,.,.,. 
--:.~ 

.... .,. ,_,.~ NlM ,un, f'IINJ• ~,•·--r 'll>ICalllfflONilOfflll. 

.... .,. f'IICHlll!!KITH~Plllill .. 
• l&'--0" l1I !ICII I lln'llllN """'11111.. 

....... ,m,mrMtnlJr&m:IOIIIUNI 
•11'4 1'D5ca I IGTlONC"Offlll. 

- f'IICHlll!!lllll't/11/ffPIMl'INI 
l111cal NfflllN"9fMI. 

I
@§.;§: Ir !=- == -... ......... ----.- --~ - -~·--·-... __ -· -
... ~"!:' .. - - ::;.,,;--•· 

. =--
- = ;e--
-:. ~...;:i.::-

:-E=..-~ - ,--·- --. ----. ----·- --,._ ------ --.. ·-- ---:-::=" - =-

~-::- ·----·-----

~---______ ..::::
~~----------

1 
~ ~T 

.... :J:...,-J 

~ 

0 
a 
,0 

Cl 
0 

S'l'MOOLS LIST 

LI.mi. Plll'Mle, &IIWcZ CIII l'l!NWff IOM!P IN CZILlta, 

uam:te ,-um ... , IBZ!B!D IGlfflll IN crlUNI 

Ltenne ~ Cl:Clll:P, T..- L.&T- INCIII rtJta:p twmLlN 

&Jtlm» ~ ~,..,...._ CCU,N, 

91WIP' U'"'1 .. l'-llffla, ~ a 1»4,1,fN MM CN Cl!ILJNI 
ei:ni.a.- "'IJl'!Ua..lllJU..,.,..._•,.,. __,...,._ - u-
U,lolrlM1'1..ll!UIIE,, ..um:IJOll~llt~ ~~ 

U M!l.111 '1Jlffl.jllt,, JOMIID-OINZ l,..,.._..C.., 

f'llffl.llETM• ' A' m.BFJxn..Tfl'(, a!!.u.ffl•l"J~IOB,IJ! 

~ --
1'1911M.Ue:UCI' 

Q) J,atl!l,cN-

lil ...... 
IT:) ,U.19!Z..._OIIMeHl!'f'" 

.... 

&lalilll'l' ~ Ut ell.l••-... 

CltanTCOCl'JIUllll'lft.aa•~ 

mc,a•"•121111m.. toi.-.•2•12,1n·c., ~l\\~COClll9 
mllf'lefrilllD.MI, IIID'l"~lsa..A'TISI ..... , cml!mle!CJT151 

~ lloOl"-'1151 teole M"r ldf ~"r ~ .. ~tr 'M!!!lr. la!M._ II',_,. ~IIBI, 

AB6~1ATIONS 

... 
f~ ~ -
Doi m11a~l'l.fl\R P!D;'J~,U'lW'l(J-ftl~IMT'ISl'wa-1.P 

MLIIST, e Uetn"l,_ l'LANI l'DII UIC,ATICN NO AIIHnTl~ 

ft! .-..0 N.A,.t c.l,IQ;lt'f ~ 

16 l!AA'Tl!D.,._ 

lf'ill -~K "-Mia t .,._U'WITI-N 

~ OP'l'f'COOQillrfCl'" ~~~ ,. 
ta~ t,I01' IN 15JS'n11GAL m;T'lllM r,, 'M!!!lr. l'Ule t ,Sll'U:ATICN 

'IQ~~•ll'\:wJUlllllt,.,..wieu,oa, 

11ft t'IIM.WN,_f\l'fal!IDe, 

.... -,. 
ffl -..a,ocnai ...... ,,,,., 
" -l,OI -.at.rfflGICl•tor.11:1111 

N!A~. Be"'l'MoL.eCCMIB,w.L a! ~IIUL,e. IN U!lf.' 
cm.a~ 

~ 
CAPITOL 
CITY 
DESIGN INC 
E.lei:vical £naineering Consultants 

17S1C~nS1tee1 
WestSaicraimentoCA!156!11 
!1163750135 
916.375 0n3Fa 
www capcitydesign com 

FOLSOM 
RANCH 
APARTMENTS 

FOLSOM.CA 

....... 
SYMBOLS LIST 
FIXTURE SCHEDULE 

fa bno 2019-101 
d,11:1• \2/11/19 
dCSJB~' TCB 
drai~ JEC 

E1 

Page 243

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



; . 
l 

l 
j 

i 
' l 
J 
1 
~ 

i 

I 
i 
! 
~ 
u 

i 

d 
i ! ~ ~ 

' 
0 

1 • ! 
! I 
• I f 
! .! • ; I 
~ i l • 
.{f' 
i~t 
y~· 

~l 
iji 
tr f •'-'P l.: t.~ 
• .l 

0 

0 

0 

@)e ... 
O • 

0 

0 

, o 

1 0 

r 
-0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

~L 
0 0 0 

1 o " o 
~_J 

l O O O 0 

11:--~ 0 0 0 

0 ~ 
0 0 0 0 

JI ., o ., o 
Cl>~ 

; o o o 0 

0 Q · O O 

0 0 .. 0 O 

SITE PLAN - LIISHTIN6 

_ ., 
00 

0 0 ""'" 
0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 (/ 

@ 
0 0 0 

0 0 

O ., - O e @ 

0 0 0 

0 0 ., ... @ 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

., ., o u® 
0 0 0 1-1 

o o o lf ® 

e @ b. 
! 

C 

I 

• 0 

O ' O O O 0 

o o o o oJ 
0,. .J" -....J, 

0 0 0 ~u- .-~- 0 J_' 

0 O 

0 0 0 0 0 

f! 0 0 0 

0 C O o 0 0 0 0 0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

I. 

~~ 
CAPITOL 
CITY 
DESIGN INC 
Electric.ii Engineerina Coisultilnls 

1751Cebri.mStrcet 
Wcsl Sacra men Lo CA 95691 
9163750135 
St637somfilx 
www.c.apcitydcs:gn.com 

,.....,_ 

FOLSOM 
RANCH 
APARTMENTS 

FOLSOM.CA 

SITE PLAN -
LIGHTING 

job no 2011,-,m 
date 12/11/19 
designl!r TCB 
drafter JEC 

E2 

Page 244

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



l 
t • i 

• 
' 

.... / .... 

... : ........ 
.. ·:. .. " '< • 

.. . ••, ,.. 

... "" \.ai ......... ... ft '~ u .. ~~ • • 

.., :;jf t.,, ,,. ..... ,._ •• \t .... ... 
< .. 'o - · •• .. ... .. .. u, .. - .. .. .. . .. ,, .. .... .... " .. 1111' ' .. " 

... Lo ... h·O• io o~, Q. .... o .. f .,o ,.. • •• ~P. .. , .. .. .. o .. q_., a ., o r, " , 
., 9 \ , •• ,_j (l. :. )r.--_.r__:. ~ -~7~ ~;•: • ... -... M. , ) '. ._, 71;~ , .... M ~ 

M ,i 1 11 ~ ._p ~ ii,, wO• ,2 .. o • O J u ,,-ct ,- iQ_,, -\> , Cl, ~ ~ if 

'4::1 ••) •••• ,.,., .... , . , .... :.y,,,., ,. ,. ... , u .J,,, ,. .. ~ ' ' " 

•• ;,.--, , 4• •• ,. u : : ·: ~ y ~-:-; ~to: ;·. ~r::; ~
0

~. u ~ ~ u .>t ~ .. 
J ~ · ...... 0, .. .;, .. "' . , .. .. , II( .. ··., . : . . ... ~· ... /fl"--"-""'..__..,..,., 
..., .. - -~JI . q_, ~ ..p •• .. ,2 .,o • . i ~ 

.. u ~- ~-o-"., ,. , , , .., " •• u . , .. 

1 U · • b • • ,,l 

• '.R 

u .. .,,q. .. ..... . 

.. :l J:::: 
.. ,, , ... ,. ,. .. P .. 

·~- ·~- ' .: .1. 
... ' "" t • .. .. .... ,~, u .., ,.. ,, ., ,, .... ,. C, ..... '';" .. t<I ... ... 

SITE PLAN - PHOTO~!~ 

.. .. : r:: :: :-: : : ~: . -,. 
. . ,.:: :::;_- Tu" - : : :~: . - . : .. - -

~ . .. .. " 

..... .. "L..____"'" .,Q"" .. 
.... '" .... " .. .... " . Q ., ,. 

.. .: ( ~~~.. . ., " ~ 
. - .. " 

'- t• """" -~ .. 
I" r .. 

•n-,r--,-.-r---ir-r1' 'o J-tr\~.,.,_,. • " . 
OJ ... ~ .... U 1' H 11 u u +o M U Oi , II • • t· 11 +o 01 \, to ~ o• 

.,. ;\,lo, .,."" .. , a.. loo 

•· ... •.ow t .. 

41 II "'O •I 

., ....... - u ., 

.. ..,o--.,, ~ " 
~ •• .... . •~, .. ~ J .. " ~ ./1.,. h u •,O •• ,, •• 

''o-";1'~,:~.' • ·• ~ " /'c t "" .._,} 
'* - er· ~ ••o-· • .. o, •0 1 J ._. ... 

u w H. • • W II .. I • <4 / 1 t,o 14 0 a.P· 

: ~• : I: ~• } ~• o, ',: ~ =~1:, ,: :: 
,_ u ~ ,.:::. 0 -a.,0 • 0 0 I• ~ " 

•• " ., .. .. •· ~·· .. ,. , .. .. .. u 

.. 
•• ';,o .:, 

w .. , . 0-• O .. O"' '. • • ,. Ou..,.~ .. ,o., 0 .,. ,. 

.... h •I-,, W 1' - U ... ti ~ ,:-:-,. ....... :.. .. N .-.. .. ..:. 

., ,, 

~~ 
CAPITOL 
CITY 
DESIGN INC 
Electrical Enginccring Consultilnl5 

1751CebrianSLrect 
WcstSilcr.imcn toC.A95691 
91637S0l35 
91637S0mf.ilC 
wwwc.ipcityclesigncom 

FOLSOM 
RANCH 
APARTMENTS 

FOLSOM CA 

SITE PLAN -
PHOTOMETRIC 

job no 2019-101 
d.ite 12/11/19 
designer TCB 
drafter JEG 

E3 

Page 245

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Attachment 12 

Building Elevations and Floor Plans 
Dated December 6, 2019 

Page 246

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



FRONT ELEVATION 
Scale 118· = I '-0" (on 24X36 sheet] 

CONCEPTUAL BUILDING ELEVATION ALDER CREEK 
CiTY OF FOLSOM, CA I 

BSB 
A.G. Spanos Companies 

Decer:10e:OS, 2019 i MRi7051 6.00 
DcSiG~ 

8S8iJfS'.G:\ co~ 

Page 247

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



l 
I -WROI.IGHTIRONRAl.~G 

tECHANICALGRIL.LELOUVER 

REAR ELEVATION 
Scale: 1 /8" • 1 '·0" (on 24x36 sheet) 

CONCEPTUAL BUILDING ELEVATION ALDER CREEK 
CITY OF FOLSOM, CA I 

BSB 
A.G. Spanos Companie$ 

December 06, 2019 I MR:70516.00 
D ::::_Si G N 

BSB:::J~SiG~ co~ 

Page 248

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



I ~ 

1~==~ 

A.G. Span05, Companies 

EL DORADO WOOD STONE, ROUGH CUT lrl 

EXTERJOR PLASTER #4 

r METAL AWNING 

CLUBHOUSE 
CONCEPTUAL BUILDING ELEVATION 

- EXTERIORPLASTER~1 

FRONT ELEVATION 

I 

_ _ ,..r.o.w. 

LEFT ELEVATION 
Scale: 3/16" .. 1 '-0" (on 24x36 sheet) 

ALDER CREEK 
CITY OF FOLSOM, CA I 

BSB 
December 06, 2019 I MR1705 '! 6.00 

8 :::- St G N 

BSB•:s!Gi\ co~ 

Page 249

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



19'-11' 23'-11" 
25"-11 " 

12'-2" 11'·9" 13'-2" 12'-9' 

~ 

___/ m-
e 

Living • 
l-llJ'Mlf1N 

r 
q 0 ;!I ~ 

N 

"' 

- - ~-------J'_l-25•-11· .. 

GSF: 620 NSF: 571 GSF: 696 NSF: 642 GSF: 788 NSF: 734 

Unit - A 1 - 1 Bedroom Unit - A2 - 1 Bedroom Unit - A3 - 1 Bedroom 

UNIT PLANS 

The o'rawings pre:,enled are 11/uslrallve of character and d~sign m!en.1 only, and are sub1ecl lo changt; based upon final aes,gri considera/10ns 

/1 e applicable codes srructul'al, and MEP design requiremenls, unit plan !floor plan changes, e/G) © 2019 BSB Design, Inc. 

~ 
;!I 

GSF: 872 NSF: 812 

Unit - A4 - 1 Bedroom 

ALDER CREEK 
CITY OF FOLSOM, CA mm 

BSB 
December 06, 2019 I MR170516.00 

DESIGN 

esec:SIGN.COM 

Page 250

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



36'-T 

11·-a· 13•.5• 11·~ 

~ 9 ... .., 
"' "' 

GSF: 1125 NSF: 1064 

Unit • B2 - 2 Bedroom 

UNIT PLANS 

The draw!r,gs presenied ar~ illustrative of ch&rac/er and cksign 1n!en! only. and are svb;ecl lo cMnge based upon fiMI design ~deraltons 

(i e applicable codes s,rocru,01. and MEP design ret;uiremenJs umt p:an /floor plan changes e!c) © 2019 asa Design Inc. 

~ 5' .., 
0 .., 

GSF: 1033 NSF: 964 

Unit - B1 - 2 Bedroom 

ALDER CREEK 
CITY OF FOLSOM, CA 11 

BSB 
December 06, 20191 MR170516.00 

DESIGN 

Page 251

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



~ 
~ 

46'-<t 

11'-5" 1s·-r 19'-0" 

•Li•~ w--l'"~S>-1r 

~ .., 

0 
46'-0" 

GSF: 1416 NSF: 1343 

Unit - C1 - 3 Bedroom 

UNIT PLANS 

T_hE; drawings presented are i/lusUali~ of clu,racter and design in.ten! only. and are svtJjec! /o change based upon /ma/ design consic:h:rat,ons 
(,.e appi,c;ub/e codes Sfnlcflirol. a11dMEPdeStg11requ,remetlls Ullf.pfonlflcorplari changes e/c)~ 2019 8$8 Design Jnc 

12'.()" 15'-6' 12'-6" 

~ ;; 

GSF: 1224 NSF: 1158 

Unit - B3 - 2 Bedroom 
aGoi,.1 ~ 6 

ALDER CREEK 
CITY OF FOLSOM, CA I 

BSB 
December 06, 2019 I MR170516.00 

DESIGN 

BSBDESIGN COM 

Page 252

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



1 

A.B.5--

, ----------7 
I I 
I ~~ I 
I Gardio l I 
I I 
I I I r _____ _J 

I I 
~ - - .J ,... 

40'-8" 

93·.r 

GROUND FLOOR 

-7 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

CLUBHOUSE 
CONCEPTUAL BUILDING FLOOR PLAN 

The drawings p:esen/ed ar9 11/usJ.ra~ve of characier and IJ<ts,gn mien! only anrJ 1Jre sub1ec1 lo change based upon final design r,onsidffi:1/rons 
(1 e applJCab/9 C001rs sc,ur::tu,.crl, and MEP deSJgn reqwN<menls 1.mrt plan /floor plan Cilanges. e!c) © 2019 BSB DGs,gn Inc. 

93·.2· 

10'-0-0.f: 

OUldoorOedt 

Roof below 

SECOND FLOOR 

Scala: 1/B""' 1'-0" (on 24x36 sheet) 

ALDER CREEK 
CITY OF FOLSOM, CA 

BSB 
December 06, 2019 I MR1 70516.00 

DE S IGN 

BSBDESIGN COiill 

Page 253

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



.• ... 
M 

7'-11" 40'-0" 28'-0" 20'-0" 

260'-J" 

24'-0' 26'-0" 36'-0" 46'-0' 

•~---!IL -7._ 7- .,__L...Lcl--.il- ------i_ __ _ - _ __ -- ----l<-'':?""lo-------_- 1._ ____ S ___ _r- ___ .J-- ___ ___r--- - 7_ ___ ..1 7- ___ ..1 c. ___ L ___ _ .f ___ J 

GROUND FLOOR 
Scale: 1/8" . 1'·0~ (on 24x36 sheet) 

CONCEPTUAL BUILDING FLOOR PLAN 

The drawings presenled are 1/!LJstralive of characier and tl~sign mien! only, and are wbJeC/ lo chenge based upon final d~sign c011s1t1era//-Ofls 

(i.e applicable codGs. stn.Jcrural, and MEP design requiremenJs unit plan /floor plan change~. e!c) © 2019 BSB Design, Inc. 

ALDER CREEK 
CITY OF FOLSOM, CA mm 

BSB 
December 06, 2019 I MR170516.00 

DESIGN 

BSBDESIGN.COM 

Page 254

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



r-11 · 

u.---

260'-3" 

40'-0" 28'-0' 20'-0' 24'-0" 24'--0" 26'-0" 

l088Y 

SECOND· FOURTH FLOOR 
Scale: 1/8" - 1'-0'" (on 2.llx36 sheet) 

CONCEPTUAL BUILDING FLOOR PLAN 

The drawm9s pre serried are il/uslra1N1: of char ad er and ck::sign 1n.11Jnr only an() are sub,iecl to change based upon Ima/ desqn considera!Joos 

{,e appl.cablecodes. st,uc/ural. andMEP deSJ911reqwremen1s vnitp/an!floorplonchanges etc)© 2019 8S8 DesJgn, Inc 

36'-0' 46'-0' 

r 

ALDER CREEK 
CITY OF FOLSOM, CA 

I 
8S8 

December 06, 2019 I MR170516.00 
DESIGN 

BSBD~SIGN.CO!lll 

Page 255

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



54'-0' 

t--~~•~-o_•-----.----....,,.2~:aa-:•~~•.,,,ES,------;~---~lll~•.q~----..--~~•~-O" __ -f- rr:.; OF CONCRETE 

I 

----r _ _ ~l-'--',,~I 
A· I I 

II 
II 
II 
II 
II 

I 
I • 
I 9 5'1 I ,i: ~ 

I 
II I 
LI I 

~~ 

' 

I 

I 

I 

' 

I 

l&'-0" ~·-o· rF-Ar£ OF = ----~-~ i' 
" 

l 
I' I 

I o .9 
v~VE I:! !!;l 

I 
I I 

I . . "" L ____ __________ ---- _______ __ _L:;-L .... _________ 
- - - - - - - - - .L-· -

~1" 5TRJPl1'iS 
TT'PIC,AL 

~ z 
. c2 
9 -4: 
• LlJ 
r ...J 

\.) 

6 - Carport --

I I I 
WNGRETE I L _; I 
FOOTIN6 =-----------1 I 

L _ _J 

lo'-0" 

PARKIN<;, SPAGE 

~ 
Sectional Elevation 

I r , 1lt J 

S<ae:1fd'=1'-0' (oo24)J6' shee!) 

... STRIPll-iS 
T'T'PICAL 

7!ie ara,vmg;; pre!>er1led are ;t!uslrall'le oi chofftcie: J()d tles19n m.'en! 011iy em, arc- !.ub;er.; 10 ci':::mge ba.,;ed ui;on fmal des,gn consid~m:'Cif;s 

(1 c aµr,Iicahlf1 cGdf.-s srrur.;ur;.t 0111.J MEP de::;19n :eqwrcn1en/s um; ~fan /;'Joe, plan cl,ar19es. e!c i •/;'. 20 1.<, 8S3 De::.,gn, Im: 

4- Carport 
~ l/4' • f-Q' 

Reference Photo 

CARPORT 

r:;-, CORRUGATED 
~ METAL ROOF 

SW6141 
SOFTER TAN OR APPROVED EQUAL 1-;::;-i CORRUGATED 

t----~--~-,,--- - -,-1 l=J METALROOF 

SW703B 

1,--To_ N_ Y_ TA_u_P=E- O=R- AP_ P_R-O_v_E_o _E-Q_U_AL-.l @] FRAMING 

ALDER CREEK 
CITY OF FOLSOM. CA 

I 
BSB 

December 06, 20191 MR170516.00 
D c S i G N 

Page 256

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



CARPORTNIGNETTES 
ALDER CREEK 

CITY OF FOLSOM. CA 

A.G. Spaoos Companies 
December 06, 2019 l MR170516.00 

BSB~ES!GN.CO~ 

Page 257

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



"'-··F====¢ I-.. •..,=~=._;: T::t _.::;_= ~I: .J..:;: ~= _= L..;: ~= ..,_::; _= _c: L:;: _::c _,:;_= _i::: .1.~ 

~•."4M!llt0:1U ~-----_,J 
r-.T:lool.C.-_._ _r:?-~-~----1---------'-•...I-+,---

GATE HINGE DETAIL 

=:;~~~ -
Ir ~OCQ'I\CE CONC,rn ~LOCK WALL 
SEE STIIUCUIMI.DIIAWN~FOl!ALL 
~ A.'ll!IIIO!O~·· ~ 

WALL SECTION 

SIDE ELEVATION - 2 

·1 ,i : l!H ,Ill, 
12~ 
FRONT ELEVATION -1 
~' C" 

TRASH ENCLOSURE 

A.11.5-•-
The ar,,wmg5 ore~er,leu are i1iuslra1m~ of r:ha,acier and dr!sign 1:~1e,i1 only ,md are :wbJeU :o i:h:;nge based upon final oe.~n c.m1.sick:ra/Jc,r,s 

(1 e ap;;l,culJI~ ccdts s/wctu;,t end !.:ff deSJiJ'' r!qwrf:ri,er;ts uni! plan I fioOI p!an cf1enqe:; e!c; (;1 ?O 19 BSS Dosi~n. Inc 

•• GIii.ii STEEL PIPE COllMNS 
CONCRETE Fl.I.EC £...Ci-t SICE 

1

:,1: - ----
.,, 
1l1 ~ oo,,oc,i~•oo.. 
tEJ 

, , 

' 

, .. 

~ilOCl'lm"' •' o.t.

Pl'lO'JDES'TEEl.l.AT'Cl-twt~All 
I.DCl(;IW.I. EIEARINGf41NGES& 
!IOTTOl,,II.FT .lN01QFI 

-----4------~-
,. .. • . 

I 
• ,I 

<-------"~--~----- , _/ 

~ 
1 

FLOOR PLAN 

A-5.0 
ALDER CREEK 

CITY OF FOLSOM , CA 

December 06, 20 19 I MR170516.00 

11 
BSB 
DESIG N 

BSBO!:S!G!i CO!II. 

Page 258

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Attachment 13 

Color Renderings, dated December 6, 2019 

Page 259

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



A.G. Spanos Companies 

NORTH ENTRY FROM ALDER CREEK PARKWAY 

VIEW OF BUILDING 2, 3 & 4 

SITE VIGNETTES 

'!tit: C/(l"ir/~S. C (:~t,;//!C'U r:,c: .. bsir_:1;M; o/ r,/:;-1,<1::•!:r e~d ,.,a:,!Q"II m!s),Ji 01•iy a/\!. srP /,.J.Jjl ... -'!.! /() d;.:,;,ry~ V~sm1 ilJ,V, !:11.1; (!!:$lflll (:(,f13dc:•~'.!Oll:i 

·1 ~ ,-.poi,C,"lb/~ ~odc,s s!wcrr,;1,J/, ;ma Mf:.P dr:1:.19n !(;~~i·.:'l,t:r.is ,,,:,: ,.::a;: i;ljc! v:::;n cJ1<mr;ci; e-:c; ij ?O 19 SSR Dus,gn ,,,c 

CLUBHOUSE FROM ALDER CREEK PARKWAY 

VIEW OF CLUBHOUSE & BUILDING 2 

ALDER CREEK 
CITY OF FOLSOM, CA I 

BSB 
December 06, 2019 ! MR170516.00 

D ::: S i G N 

BSBO~S:Gtt cc~ 

Page 260

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



VIEW OF SOUTH ENTRY VIEW OF BUILDING 3 & 4 

VIEW OF BUILDING 3, 4 & 5 VIEW OF CLUBHOUSE AND BUILDING 2 & 3 

SITE VIGNETTES ALDER CREEK 
C! 1 Y OF FOLSOM, CA I 

BSB 
A.G. Spanos Companies 

December 06, 20, 9 i MR170516.00 
D C. S r G N 

BSBD~S!Gfl; ,CQ:'f! 

Page 261

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



A.6. Spanos Companies 

CLUBHOUSE 
VIGNETTES 

ALDER CREEK 
CITY OF FOLSOM, CA 

December 06, 2019 j MR170516.00 

KEY MAP 

mm 
BSB 
DES i GN 

858.J!;S!GN co~ 

Page 262

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Attachment 14 

Color and Materials Board 
Dated December 6, 2019 

Page 263

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



~ STUCCO WALL [I] WALL TILLES 

~ PATIO/BALCONY RAILING 

SHADOW WHITE 
DE6281 OR SIMILAR 

g STUCCO WALL ACCENT 

ALLURING LIGHT 
DE5287 OR SIMILAR 

0 STUCCO WALL ACCENT 

MATERIALS & COLOR BOARD 

A.G. Spanos Companies 
Th& drewing,:;. presemec! sre i/iusiralive of characl&r and deslgn mlenr or.iy, '2nd a,~ w!Jjer.J m change based 1Jpon fini:I! di,sign Cf.irn;iOOn:uoM 
(i.e app/1r.;ablf: cooss. s.TlJc!ura /, anc.' MEP des,gn reqi;iremen/s, Ullh p!an I iioor pla11 cnangl!.s., e!c.) © 2019 BSB Dc~sign, Inc. 

FRONT ELEVATION 
Scale: 1,a· "' 1 '•0" (on 24x36 sheel) 

II' STUCCO WALL ACCENT IJJ STUCCO WALL 

ALDER CREEK 
CITY OF FOLSOM, CA I 

BSB 
December 06, 2019 ! MR170516.00 

DESI GN 

asBDESKitt-COM 

Page 264

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Attachment 15 

Building and Parking Summary 
Dated November 18, 2020 

Page 265

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



A.G.--

ls,n INFORMATION 
Tb JAL snt AKtA 
TOTAL UNITS 

BUil.DiNG SUMMARY 

• .... --, ___ 

Clulthouse: • /-4,ZOOrf. 
ToaJPwlllftl:541SJIIICtt 
lntllp8ladGaao:,IS..-,.s 
T•ndlm ,arkl!w: 85 tplCel 

Carpon:&:321l:IPKfl 
Ul1aMlftds..facePartifrsSlss-z1 
Plnlnl lllltlo: 2.0IPH6/unlt 

DENSITY 

LAnmcl$NI ArN wtthaut: Palladlo: +/-Z&,400 If, 

. 
I 

Uncbcl,-ArMwltti.c..nb'alPalladla: +/-40,.soJrf. 

... 

ekydthtldftlbqU!ra:l:llOspacmjlpaunltwtthoutp"l•l 
lkydliflul:lrwPravldad:1801paces 

lkyd,t hl\1nl "' a. Cit liS ~ 
lkyde,.,_lllfrantofBlkeCIM: SOIPKIIS 
blwn.aillq,drtPatl:lf11:4Sspace,. 

PARKING STATISTICS 

Unltlype ·-·-,_ ·--
Toal~:SNcn ........... 
BICYCLE PAIIICING STATISTICS ~-

Unit Type 

~ -..mo!A~ , .... .... 
UNlfMUC 

Ncl.DfUnlb 

No ofUnlts 

,I..,. 
IA) .., 
"' .. , .. ., 

10.75 
2.6S 

24,65 

10 
I 

w , -"' .., 
"'26Sj 

... 

I 

I 
4t 

UNITS 
du/ac 

Al 

4 

-• ... 
?.ml 

""°"' 
'"' u, , ... 
, . 
."" 

lperuntt 
wtthout1o1raii;t =-LOO 

lJnltTVJ>e ...,,.. 
l W/Slu 
tetn.N 
1br/~ 
itirnw 
12'!/!_14 

~i------ 2.;ric. 
l 11tnu 

I ~ .... 

"' 
u 

:rn& 

., ,. .. 

I 

-"'°"' 
" u 

"' 
m 
,u ,_,, 

R11K1'~5pace~ 

. :JC 

"' 

""'""'· ..... 
.. -......,. ,_ 
,z;.., 

<) 

10 

"'" c1.a·J'IC 

,. .. ,.,. 

I 
I 

.. . 
' 
"' 

,. ,. ... 

II . 
• 
"' 

,. ,. 
"' 

., 
• 
"" J7.7.t1i. 

., 
10 

.... 

50 ,. ,... 

""(• = I TCGIPRMCS~Spaces -...,.. -.. 
" m 

"' . 
"' ., 541 

2J)4 

lnelb!CI~ 1n,!'Vlltof 
A,dak!Mi,i 

(17eacti) Blb,Cafe 
eirtarl'\illl TOQ!Pravided~ 

··-
_OJ " 

., I ,~-
NetUnft &.lcony• ..... Unit • .,... '"""-' 

,.,., .. -$Tl 0 .,. n .. , ., ... . " , .. 11 1'I . , .. 
Ill " m .. ... " l,O}I • .. ,.... ,,. 

I.US IU 
LISI ., 1,J.'11 ~ 

,., 
uo .. ...!-' " ., 

1 
A__,..MTll&ta. 

PROJECT SUMMARY 

The drawings prest:nlet..l are 1l/us1ralM: of character and (;'~sign mleni only. amJ are sv!JJecl :o change based upon Imel Qes;gn cons1derat,ons 

r: e applicable codes .sr,ue11iru1 and 1,/EP design m(jwremenl.s. uni: plan I flcor plan cl1an9es e!c) © 2019 BSB D~sign Jnc 

Cl , .... . .. 
... ...,,. 

>.SSti ...,. 

"' 

~tu~ 
Total(NetUnlt) Unit) 

1 

:is.n o ...,,. 
'"""' 

,._ 
li.,1.&0 11."'° .,_.,.. 

"""° 'J I .• ~ ~ 
J1'JOO ~ ...... ,..,,., 

-..~ ... ,. ..... , ....., 

ALDER CREEK 
CITY OF FOLSOM, CA 8S8 

November 18, 2020 I MR170516 00 
DESIGN 

BSBDESIGN CO!II! 

Page 266

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Attachment 16 

Site Photographs 

Page 267

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Page 268

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Page 269

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Page 270

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Page 271

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Page 272

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Attachment 1 7 

Transportation Impact Study 
Dated December 21, 2020 

Page 273

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Alder Creek 
Apartments Final 
Traffic Study 

Prepared for: 
The Spanos Corporation 

December 21, 2020 

RS18-3622 

FEHR,1PEERS 

Page 274

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Table of Contents 

1. Introduction ............................................................................................................................... 1 

Project Description ................................................................................................... ................................................................... 1 

Background ........................... ......................... ........... ..................... .. .............................................................................................. S 

Analysis Methodology ..................................... .......................................................................................................................... 5 

2. Existing Conditions ................................................................................................................... 7 

3. Project Travel Characteristics ................................................................................................. 11 

Trip Generation ........................................................................................................................................................................... 11 

Trip Distribution/ Assignment ................ ....... ..................... ....................... ........................ ............... ........... ............ .. ............. 12 

4. 2024 Baseline No Project Conditions .................................................................................... 15 

5. 2024 Baseline Plus Project Conditions .................................................................................. 22 

6. Project Access Review ............................................................................................................. 27 

7. FPASP Mitigations and Conditions of Approval .................................................................. 32 

8. CEQA Considerations for Analysis of Traffic Impacts .......................................................... 33 

Evaluation Criteria ....................... .......... ...... ........................... ......................... ............................................ ............................... 34 

Local Roadway, Intersections, and Freeway Facilities .............. ..................................................... .............................. .35 

Bicycle/Pedestrian/Transit Facilities ............. ................................................................................................... ................. ... 36 

Evaluation of Proposed Rezoning Impacts ............ ...... ......................................................... .. ............................. ............ 36 

Senate Bill 743 & Assessment of Vehicle Miles Traveled .............................. .. .......................................................... .37 

Appendices 

Appendix A 

Appendix B 

Technical Analysis Report 

Final Mangini Ranch Phase 2 TIS Mitigation Measures 

Page 275

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



List of Figures 

Figure 1. Study Area .......................................... .................................................................................................................................. 2 

Figure 2. Project Site Plan ...... ...................... ................................... ............. ............. ........................................................................ 3 

Figure 3. Folsom Plan Area Approved And Proposed Land Use ....................................... .............................................. ..4 

Figure 4. Existing Roadway Network .......... ...... ........................ .............. .. ................. .. ....... .. ..... .............................. ........... .......... 8 

Figure 5. Existing Peak Hour Traffic Volumes, Lane Configurations, and Traffic Controls .............. ........................ 9 

Figure 6. Project Trip Distribution ..................................... .. .. ..................................... ............................................. .................... 13 

Figure 7. Assumed Land Development - 2024 Baseline Conditions ............................................................................. 16 

Figure 8. Roadway Network - 2024 Baseline Conditions .................................. ...................................... ........................ .. 19 

Figure 9. Peak Hour Traffic Volumes, Lane Configurations, and Traffic Controls - Baseline No Project 
Conditions ................................................................................................................................................................... 20 

Figure 10. Peak Hour Traffic Volumes, Lane Configurations, and Traffic Controls - Project-Only Trips ........ 23 

Figure 11. Peak Hour Traffic Volumes, Lane Configurations, and Traffic Controls - Baseline Plus Project 
Conditions ............................................................................................................................................................. ...... 24 

Figure 12. Project Site Access Recommendations ................ .. ........... ............... .. .. ........... ............. ............ .. .. ..... .. .. .. 29 

List of Tables 

Table 1: Intersection Level of Service Criteria ........................................................................................................................... 6 

Table 2: Intersection Delay and Level of Service - Existing Conditions ........................................... ............................... 7 

Table 3: Freeway Density and Level of Service - Existing Conditions ........................................................................... 10 

Table 4: Project Trip Generation ........... .. ....... ............................ ................................................. ....... .... ...................................... 11 

Table 5: Approved and Proposed Zoning ............................................................................ .................................................... 12 

Table 6: Assumed Land Development - 2024 Baseline Conditions .............. .................................. .............................. 15 

Table 7: Intersection Delay and Level of Service - 2024 Baseline No Project Conditions ............... ..................... 18 

Table 8: Freeway Density and Level of Service - 2024 Baseline No Project Conditions ............................... ........ 21 

Table 9: Intersection Delay and Level of Service - 2024 Baseline Plus Project Conditions .................................. 25 

Table 10: Freeway Density and Level of Service - 2024 Baseline Plus Project Conditions ................................... 26 

Table 11 : Driveway Throat Depth ...... ...... ....................................... ......................................... ............................................. ....... 27 

Page 276

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



/\lcJe1· Creek Apart111e11ts Final T1·affic Study 
Dece111ber 21, 2020 

1. Introduction 
This study analyzes the transportation impacts associated with the proposed Alder Creek Apartments project 

to be located in Folsom, CA This report describes the project's trip generation and distribution characteristics, 

the potential impacts of the project, review of site access and circulation, and discussion of potential 

transportation-related impacts pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA"). This report 

relies, in part, on data contained in the Final Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Transportation Impact Study (TIS) (T. Kear 

Transportation Planning & Management, Inc. 2017) and the Regency at Folsom Ranch Transportation Impact 

Study (T. Kear Transportation Planning & Management, Inc. 2019). 

Project Description 

The Alder Creek Project proposes the construction 265 multi-family dwelling units situated on 10.8 acres 

comprising Lots C and D within Mangini Ranch Phase 2 (also identified as Lots 11 and 12 on the Large Lot 

Vesting Tentative Map, or Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan [FPASP] Parcel #82B-1 and #151 of the FPASP). The 

apartment buildings would be accessed by two driveways, one located on Alder Creek Parkway and the other 

located on Old Ranch Way. Figure 1 displays the location of the proposed project. Figure 2 displays the 

project site plan and driveway configuration on Alder Creek Parkway and Old Ranch Way. 

The FPASP covers approximately 3,510 acres of land south of US Highway SO in the City of Folsom. 

Development is underway in this area, with streets, utilities, and residences being built. Existing Lots C and D 

are zoned Multifamily Low Density and Multifamily High Density, respectively. The project includes a Minor 

Administration Modification (MAM) to support a shift of residential units among FPASP Parcels 151, 82B-1, 

158, 74, and 148, as shown on Figure 3, in order to meet the maximum development intent of the subject 

properties. The project also includes a shift in the land use designation of Parcel 82B-1 from Medium Low 

Density (MLD) to Medium High Density (MHD), with accompanying General Plan and Specific Plan 

amendments. The proposed MAM will not result in any change in the number of overall dwelling units within 

the Folsom Plan Area. Section 3 describes the Project in more detail. 

FEHR1PEERS 

Page 277

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



:I 

0 Study Intersection 

Mangini Ranch Phase 2 

Planned Roadway within Mangini Ranch Phase 2 

0 

• 

• s,., ... ~Piwy 

0 
Mangini Pkwy 

Study Area 

Page 278

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



-- ---~ 

Figure 2 

Project Site Plan 

Page 279

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



... I_ 
I -71 

{- -~- l 

0 

"' 

'l 

Alder 

158 

74 
82-B1~ 

Savannah ParKway 

Mangini Parkway 

148~ 

___ ..,,,.. 
. ---~ ~ _...--.,;.---, .. ______ .,,,. I 

~~ --~-~----------------~ 
~,lf,j$ -"· LegendGeneral Plan land use/ Specific Plan land use) 

_ _. D SF/ SP-SF D cc/ SP-CC 

----------- D SFHD / SP-SFHD D GC / SP-GC 

D MLD / SP-MLD RC/ SP-RC 

I D MMD/ SP-MMD D PQP / SP-PQP 

I D MHD / SP-MHD - p / SP-P -A-p~p~r_o_v_e_d--~ -------------~~---1 • Mu 1sP-Mu • os1 sP-os 

D IND/OP/ SP-IND/OP ~ TOR only parcels 

.,, ...... ..:--r-,,,. ,,.-
---1-1· -------------

Proposed 

- ~~ 
lL 

'l48 ~ 

-, 

Folsom Plan Area Approved and Proposed Land Use 

Page 280

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Alde1· C1eek Apartme11ts Fi11;1I T1·affic Stucly 
Decembe1· 21 2.020 

Background 

The Mangini Ranch Phase 2 TIS analyzed the transportation impacts of 545 dwelling units within Mangini 

Ranch. The Alder Creek project was not included in this unit count, but was included in the study's future land 

use growth assumptions used for the "Existing Plus Planned and Approved Projects" scenario. That study had 

assumed 203 dwelling units for the Alder Creek Apartments, considerably less than the 265 units that are 

currently proposed. Thus, certain elements of the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 TIS can be utilized to support this 

study, but it cannot be relied upon directly because it did not consider the currently proposed number of 

units for the project. 

Since completion of the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 TIS in 2017, project approvals and construction have 

continued to occur in the Folsom Plan Area. Thus, it was necessary to review and utilize the most recent study 

in the area for purposes of consistency of approach and recommendations. 

The Regency at Folsom Ranch TIS (i.e. from 2019) documents existing conditions in the study area and 

analyzes that project's impact on traffic operations at the study intersections and freeway segments with 

assumed absorption of other FPASP land uses over the next five years. As directed by City of Folsom staff 

during a meeting on November 6, 2019, this study uses the Regency at Folsom Ranch TIS as a starting point 

(including documentation of existing traffic operations, analysis methods, and future year scenarios) for 

evaluating the proposed project's impacts. 

Analysis Methodology 

The 2011 FPASP EIR/EIS and all subsequent review of projects within the Specific Plan have utilized level of 

service (LOS) as the primary threshold of significance for traffic impacts. This traffic report is being prepared as 

an Addendum to the FPASP EIR/EIS, therefore, Fehr & Peers analyzed traffic operations using LOS as the 

primary performance measure. 1 Motorized vehicle LOS is a qualitative measure of traffic flow from the 

perspective of motorists and is an indication of the comfort and convenience associated with driving. Typical 

factors that affect motorized vehicle LOS include speed, travel time, traffic interruptions, and freedom to 

maneuver. Empirical LOS criteria and methods of calculation are documented in the Highway Capacity Manual 

(HCM) 6th Edition published by the Transportation Research Board of the National Academies of Science 

(Transportation Research Board, 2016). The HCM defines six levels of service ranging from LOS A 

(representing free-flow vehicular traffic conditions with little to no congestion) to LOS F (oversaturated 

conditions where traffic demand exceeds capacity resulting in long queues and delays). The LOS definitions 

and calculations contained in the HCM are the prevailing measurement standard used throughout the United 

States and are used in this study. Table 1 summarizes intersection level of service criteria for intersections. 

1 The adoption of Guidelines section 15064.3 in December 2018 (requiring analysis of VMT as the measure of 

transpo1iatio11 impacts under CEQA starting on July 1, 2020) does not change the analysis for purposes of an addendum 

to a previously certified EIR. The change in law does not constitute new significant information under Public Resources 

Code 21166 and Guidelines 15162 or otherwise trigger supplemental or subsequent review. Thus, no VMT analysis is 

required or provided in this report 

FEHR,tPEERS 

Page 281

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Alde1· Creek Apa1·trne11ts Fi11al Traffic Study 

December 21. 2020 

Table 1: Intersection Level of Service Criteria 

Average Control Delay (seconds per vehicle) 
Level of -

S . Description Signalized Unsignalized erv1ce 
Intersections Intersections 

A 
Represents free flow. Individual users are virtually 

:,; 10 :,; 10 
unaffected by others in the traffic stream. 

B 
Stable flow, but the presence of other users in the 

> 10 to 20 > 10 to 15 
traffic stream begins to be noticeable. 

Stable flow, but the operation of individual users 
C becomes significantly affected by interactions with > 20 to 35 > 15to25 

others in the traffic stream. 

D Represents high-density, but stable flow. > 35 to 55 > 25 to 35 

E 
Represents operating conditions at or near the 

> 55 to 80 > 35 to 50 
capacity level. 

F Represents forced or breakdown flow. > 80 > 50 

Source: Highway Capacity Manual (lh Edition, Transportation Research Board of the National Academies of Science, 2016. 

The LOS at signalized intersections is based on the average control delay (i.e., delay resulting from initial 

deceleration, queue move-up time, time stopped on an intersection approach, and final acceleration) 

experienced per vehicle traveling through the intersection. The HCfVI 6th Edition methodology for unsignalized 

intersections reports the LOS using the control delay thresholds shown in Table 1. The HCM anticipates the 

motorists expect signalized intersections to carry higher traffic volume that results in greater delay than an 

unsignalized intersection. Unsignalized intersections are associated with more uncertainty as delays are less 

predictable, which can reduce users' delay tolerance. 

As described in the HCfVI 6th Edition, the LOS for side-street stop-controlled intersections is evaluated 

separately for each individual movement. LOS is reported based on the overall intersection delay for 

signalized and all-way stop controlled intersections. LOS is reported based on the control delay experienced 

by the worst-case movement at two-way stop controlled (TWSC) intersections. 

FEHR,,t PEERS 6 

Page 282

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Alde1· Creek Apartme11ts Final Tt-affic Study 
December 21, 2020 

2. Existing Conditions 
This section provides information on traffic operations under Existing Conditions. For CEQA purposes, impacts 

of the proposed project would be compared to those identified in the FPASP EIR/EIS. 

Figure 4 displays the existing (i.e., November 2020) roadway network within the study area. As shown, East 

Bidwell Street consists of one lane in each direction from south of U.S. 50 to White Rock Road. Alder Creek 

Parkway between East Bidwell Street and Westwood Drive consists of two lanes in the eastbound direction 

and one lane in the westbound direction. Alder Creek Parkway between Westwood Drive and Placerville Road 

is one lane in each direction. 

A total of 10 study intersections were chosen for analysis based on coordination between Fehr & Peers and 

City of Folsom staff. As of November 2020, four of the ten study intersections have been constructed and are 

open to traffic. Figure 5 displays the existing AM and PM peak hour traffic volumes, lane configurations, and 

traffic controls at those study intersections, as documented in the Regency at Folsom Ranch TIS. The traffic 

volumes and intersection lane configurations reflect conditions present at the time of that study (i.e., 2019), 

which is the typical timeframe being used in studies to represent a pre-COVID-19 traffic condition. 

Table 2 presents the delay and LOS at the study intersections under Existing Conditions, as documented in the 

Regency at Folsom Ranch TIS. As shown, all study intersections operate at LOS D or better. 

Table 2: Intersection Delay and Level of Service - Existing Conditions 

I ! 

AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour 
Study Intersection Type - --~

1
~-; -r-L~-

5
- -~ 

1. E. Bidwell Street/U.S. 50 Westbound Ramps Signal 19.4 

2. E. Bidwell Street/U.S. 50 Eastbound Ramps Signal 14.8 

3. E. Bidwell Street/Alder Creek Parkway TWSC 16.4 (WBL) 

4. E. Bidwell Street/Old Ranch Way 

5. E. Bidwell Street/Savannah Parkway 

6. E. Bidwell Street/Mangini Parkway TWSC 12.7 (WBL) 

7. Alder Creek Parkway/Westwood Drive 

8. Alder Creek Parkway/Quail Meadow Drive 

9. Old Ranch Way/Westwood Drive 

10. Old Ranch Way/Quail Meadow Drive 

Notes: 

B 

B 

C 

B 

21.6 

29.7 

27.3 (WBL) 

26.9 (WBL) 

C 

C 

D 

D 

1. LOS and delay (sec/veh) results for signalized and all-way stop controlled intersections are reported for the overall intersection. 
2. LOS and delay (sec/veh) results for side-street stop controlled intersections are reported for the worst movement. 

TWSC = Two-way stop-control. 
Source: Regency at Folsom Ranch TIS (T. Kear, 2019). 

FEHR,1 PEERS 

Page 283

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



.. 
Existing Roadway 

Mangini Ranch Phase 2 

Alder Creek Pkwy 

; Project i 

OldRanchWay ~ t0 1 

I 
Mangini Pkwy 

Existing (2020) Roadway Network 

Page 284

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



1.E Bldwell St/US SDWB llainpi 

i~ 
~~ == 1053 (1128) 

~II := 101 (57) 

fl'-
;a fi !,:_i 

iii 
4.Eei,lllollSI/Ul!Rand1Wiy 

0 
\mmmrtwr 

" i I 
"' ManginiPkwy 0 

Intersection Does Not 
Exist Or Not Analyzed 
Under This Scenario 

7.,W1tmt1cl'!.'wy1Wesli,110,1111 l Alder Cmk Pa,lwaylQ..0 MeafowWa1 

Intersection Does Not Intersection Does Not 
Exist Or Not Analyzed Exist Or Not Analyzed 
Under This Scenario Under This Scenario 

0 Study Intersection _JI Turn Lane a Traffic Signal 

Stop Sign Planned Roadway within Mangini Ranch Phase 2 AM (PM) Peak Hour Traffic Volume e 
Mangini Ranch Phase 2 

-

2.£ BIJlw,ll lt/USSO Eltllamps 3.EllldwellSI/Aliler Cmk Pkwy 

E.! ~- • 
~g ii! 1t..... 42 (46) 

J,H ~ 
,,- 4 (3) 

-oe.--~--
~ 

I~ J' 
732(1029)== ~ij ~!~ 87(51)-.. 

~t?, 

i ~~ ! ~ 

5,EBl4w,IIS~hl'kwy 6.EllldwtllSt/Mingln[Pkwy 

;;-

~!~ • 
Intersection Does Not "-41(78) 

!~ r 2,4(4) 

Exist Or Not Analyzed "-.tr 
Under This Scenario ~ff I [~ 

9, Oki Raocll W.y,W.,twm,d Dr 10.0ldllan<bWqJllutl M11dow'/fa, 

Intersection Does Not Intersection Does Not 
Exist Or Not Analyzed Exist Or Not Analyzed 
Under This Scenario Under This Scenario 

F,gure 5 

Peak Hour Traffic Volumes 
and Lane Configurations -

Existing Conditions 

Page 285

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Alder Creek Apartments Final Traffic Study 
Decem bet· 21, 2020 

Table 3 presents the freeway density and LOS at the study freeway segments under Existing Conditions, as 

documented in the Regency at Folsom Ranch study. The existing traffic volumes, LOS, and freeway density 

reflect conditions present at the time of that study (i.e., 2019). 

Table 3: Freeway Density and Level of Service - Existing Conditions 

AM Peak Hour I PM Peak Hour 
Segment Analysis Type ---- -- --- -- - -- - 1 -- --

Density ] LOS Density ' LOS 

1. U.S. 50/E. Bidwell Street EB slip off-ramp Diverge 30.4 D 22.2 C 

2. U.S. 50/E. Bidwell Street EB slip on-ramp Merge 29.9 D 20.5 C 

3. U.S. 50/ E. Bidwell Street WB slip off-ramp Diverge 17.5 B 28.2 D 

4. U.S. 50/E. Bidwell Street WB loop on-ramp Merge 17.3 B 29.7 D 

Source: Regency at Folsom Ranch TIS (T. Kear, 2019) 

FEHR,tPEERS 10 

Page 286

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Alder Creek Apartments Final T1·affic Study 
December· 21, 2020 

3. Project Travel Characteristics 
This section describes the project's expected travel characteristics including the anticipated number of vehicle 

trips, directionality of those trips, and their expected travel routes. 

Trip Generation 

The project's trip generation was calculated using trip rates from the Trip Generation Manual, 10th Edition 

(Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE), 2017). Table 4 displays the project's expected trip generation. As 

shown, the project's 265 dwelling units are expected to generate 89 trips during the AM peak hour and 113 

trips during the PM peak hour. 

Table 4: Project Trip Generation 

Trips 

Land Use (ITE Code) Quantity PM Peak Hour 

Daily In- · -,- ~;-· - ;o~al-
1 

Mid-Rise Multi-Family (221) 265 du 1,443 23 66 89 69 44 113 

Note: The Mid-Rise Apartment Land Use Category within the Trip Generation Manual was selected because the project meets the ITE 
definition of having between 3 and 10 floors, and including at least four units per building. 
Source: Fehr & Peers, 2020. 

Travel Characteristics For Project 

The project seeks a General Plan Amendment, Specific Plan Amendment, and a MAM. Under the MAM, the 

project will shift residential dwelling units among several parcels within the plan area needed to support 

construction of the Alder Creek Apartments as well as a shift of density to an additional parcel to allow for 

higher density development. 

As indicated in Table 5 and Figure 3, the transfer of development rights would involve reducing densities in 

Parcel 158 (-76 units) and Parcel 74 (-75 units), which are located along Alder Creek Parkway west of East 

Bidwell Street. These units are proposed to be shifted to Parcel 82-B 1 ( +62 units) situated along Alder Creek 

Parkway east of East Bidwell Street, and Parcel 148 (+89 units), situated along Mangini Parkway west of 

Savannah Parkway. The land use designations of all parcels remain the same with the exception of Parcel 82-

B 1 which will shift from Medium Low Density (MLD) to Medium High Density (MHD). 

The transfer of units to Parcel 148 would cause a net increase of 29 AM peak hour and 37 PM peak hour trips 

being added to roadways in its immediate vicinity, with corresponding decreases in the vicinity of Parcels 74 

and 158. The shift of dwelling units will not change the FPASP's total off-site trip generation. Thus, the 

evaluation that follows focuses on how this shift in traffic would affect plan area intersections. 

FEHR,1PEERS 11 

Page 287

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Alder Creek Apartments Final Tt-affic Study 

December 21, 2020 

Table 5: Approved and Proposed Zoning 

Existing Parcels Proposed/Resulting Parcels 

Parcel 

151 

82-B1 

158 

74 

148 

Land Use 1 

MHD 

MLD/ MHD 

MU 

MU 

MU 

Total 

Acres 

5.77 

4.96 

11.48 

10.0 

5.02 

37.2 

Units 

145 

58 

150 

132 

61 

546 

Density 

25.1 

11 .7 

13.1 

13.2 

12.2 

Note: 1 Change in land use between existing parcel and proposed/resulting parcel scenario. 
MHD = Multi-Family High Density 
MLD = Multi-Family Low Density 
MU = Mixed-use site. 

Units 

145 

120 

74 

57 

150 

546 

Density 

25.1 

24.2 

6.5 

5.7 

29.9 

Source: Alder Creek Apartments Project Narrative, November 11, 2020 (MacKay & Somps / Spanos Corporation). 

Trip Distribution/ Assignment 

Figure 6 displays the expected distribution of project trips under Baseline Plus Project Conditions (see 

Chapters 3 and 4 for definition of this scenario). The following planned roadway improvements assumed for 

the baseline scenario influence the project's trip distribution including: 

• 

• 
• 
• 

Completion of Westwood Drive between Savanah Parkway and Placerville Road 

Completion of Old Ranch Way from East Bidwell Street to Dragonfly Way 

Completion of Quail Meadow Way between Alder Creek Parkway and Old Ranch Way 

Completion of Savanah Parkway from East Bidwell Street to Placerville Road 

FEHRf PEERS 12 

Page 288

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



35% 

35% 

I ,. 
Mangini Pkwy 

li 

x% 
........... Trip Distribution Percentage 

Project Trip Distribution 

Page 289

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Alder Creek Apartments Final T1·affic Study 

December 21, 2020 

The expected distribution of trips considers existing turning movement patterns for developed residential 

areas south of U.S. 50, locations of complementary land uses (i.e., employment, retail, schools, etc.), and 

relative travel time for competing routes (e.g., U.S. 50 versus White Rock Road to access employment uses in 

Rancho Cordova). Figure 6 indicates that 90 percent of project trips are expected to be distributed to/from the 

north toward U.S. 50. 

The assignment of project trips considers the following important factors: 

a) All turning movements would be permitted at the East Bidwell Street/Alder Creek Parkway and East 

Bidwell Street/Savannah Parkway intersections. At the East Bidwell Street/Old Ranch Way T

intersection, westbound left-turns would be prohibited, while all other movements would be allowed. 

b) The project driveway on Alder Creek Parkway would be restricted to eastbound right-turns and 

northbound right-turns only due to the presence of the median on Alder Creek Parkway, while the 

project driveway on Old Ranch Way would permit all movements. 

c) Based on the available street width, westbound Li-turns would be permitted at the Alder Creek 

Parkway/Westwood Drive intersection. This movement would be made by motorists traveling 

westbound on Alder Creek Parkway toward the project site. 

d) Motorists exiting the Alder Creek Parkway project driveway would not be permitted to perform an 

eastbound U-turn at the Quail Meadow Way or Placerville Road intersections (by virtue of project

related actions described later to prevent these movements from occurring). Instead, motorists 

desiring to access East Bidwell Street would be expected they may exit the apartment complex via its 

southerly driveway directly onto westbound Old Ranch Way. Alternatively, some may also turn right 

from eastbound Alder Creek Parkway to travel southbound on Quail Meadow Way, and then 

westbound on Old Ranch Way. 

fEHRf PEERS 11 

Page 290

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Alder Creek Apartments Final Traffic Study 

December 21, 2020 

4. 2024 Baseline No Project Conditions 
This section provides information on traffic operations under Baseline No Project Conditions. For CEQA 

purposes, impacts of the proposed project would be compared to those identified in the FPASP EIR/EIS. 

Because other development is on-going within the Folsom Plan Area, which will directly affect conditions at 

the time the project were to open, an analysis of the proposed project's impacts under existing conditions 

would be irrelevant. Instead, the Baseline No Project Conditions was developed. It consists of Existing 

Conditions traffic plus traffic from planned and approved projects that are expected to be constructed by the 

time the project is constructed and occupied, roughly corresponding to five years' worth of growth (since 

Existing Conditions represented year 2019). This study specifically relies upon th~ Regency at Folsom Ranch 
TIS's "EPAP 2024 With [Regency] Project" scenario. That scenario assumes the land uses shown in the far-right 

column of Table 6 are developed with their trips assigned to study intersections and freeway segments. 

Figure 7 illustrates the locations of these projects. As shown, over 2,500 dwelling units are assumed to be 

constructed for this scenario, which would generate about 18,000 vehicle trips per day. 

Table 6: Assumed Land Development - 2024 Baseline Conditions 

A d Assumed Land Use for 
Project Approved Land Use Abssum~ 2024 Baseline No 

sorpt1on p . C d" . roJect on 1t1ons 

Russell Ranch ("Phase 1 ") 394 DU 35% 138 DU 

Russell Ranch ("Phase 2 & 3") 681 DU 7% 48 DU 

Broadstone Estates 81 DU 10% 8 DU 

Mangini Ranch Phase 1 833 DU 58% 480 DU 

Mangini Ranch Phase 2 545 DU 35% 191 DU 

Folsom Heights 401 DU 40% 160 DU 

White Rock Springs Ranch and Carr Trust 423 DU 37% 158 DU 

The Enclave 111 DU 100% 111 DU 

Regency at Folsom Ranch Phase 1 800 DU 100% 800 DU 

Regency at Folsom Ranch Phase 2 425 DU 100% 425 DU 

Shops at Folsom Ranch 
27,900 sq. ft. 

100% 
27,900 sq. ft. 

Commercial Commercial 

Source: Regency at Folsom Ranch TIS (T. Kear, 2019) 

FEHRf PEERS 1 S 

Page 291

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



..-_:_:;:..-, .,., 

Baseline Roadway 

Planned Roadway (Not Assumed Under Baseline No Project Conditions) 

Note: 
Refer to Table 5 of traffic study for assumed 
level of absorption of these properties 

Figure 7 

Assumed Land Development Under Baseline No Project Conditions 

Page 292

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Alde1, Creek Apartments Final Traffic Study 
Decernbet, 21, 2020 

Figure 8 displays the roadways assumed to have been constructed or widened under 2024 Baseline 

Conditions. Key improvements include: 

• 

• 

• 
• 

• 

Westerly extension of Mangini Parkway along the northerly boundary of the Regency at Folsom Ranch 

to the planned extension of Oak Avenue Parkway. 

Completion of Oak Avenue Parkway from Mangini Parkway to White Rock Road . 

Easterly extension of Mangini Parkway east of Placerville Road to serve new development. 

Previously described extensions of Alder Creek Parkway, Westwood Drive, Old Ranch Way, Quail 

Meadow Way, and Savannah Parkway. 

Widening of East Bidwell Street to consist of two lanes in each direction from south of U.S. 50 to just 

beyond Alder Creek Parkway. 

Because this study assumes buildout of the Regency at Folsom Ranch project, it was reasonable to also 

assume the mitigation measures recommended for its EPAP plus Project scenario. Those mitigation measures 

(and/or already planned intersection modifications) would result in traffic signals at the East Bidwell 

Street/Alder Creek Parkway and East Bidwell Street/Mangini Parkway intersections. 

Figure 9 presents the 2024 Baseline No Project AM and PM peak hour traffic volumes, lane configurations, and 

traffic control at the study intersections. Based on conversations with City of Folsom staff in November 2020, 

the Alder Creek Parkway/Westwood Drive intersection was assumed to operate with stop-control on the 

northbound and southbound Westwood Drive approaches. While a traffic signal is planned at this 

intersection, it is not expected to be in place by 2024. 

Table 7 presents the average delay and LOS at the study intersections under 2024 Baseline No Project 

Conditions, as documented in the Regency at Folsom Ranch TIS. Note that study intersections adjacent to the 

project site, which were not evaluated in the Regency at Folsom Ranch TIS, were analyzed based on traffic 

forecasts and operations analysis performed by Fehr & Peers. As shown, all intersections would operate at 

LOS D or better during both peak hours under this scenario. 

fEHR,f PEERS 17 

Page 293

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Alder Creek Apartments Final Traffic Study 

December 21, 2020 

Table 7: Intersection Delay and Level of Service - 2024 Baseline No Project Conditions 

I 
: AM Peak Hour j PM Peak Hour 

Study Intersection Type I . 

1 

.

1 

-

Delay : LOS Delay LOS 

1. E. Bidwell Street/U.S. SO Westbound Ramps Signal 19.0 B 21.9 C 

2. E. Bidwell Street/U.S. SO Eastbound Ramps Signal 14.0 B 32.6 C 

3. E. Bidwell Street/Alder Creek Parkway Signal 13.1 B 14.3 B 

4. E. Bidwell Street/Old Ranch Way TWSC 
19.2 

C 
22.1 

C 
(WBR) (WBR) 

5. E. Bidwell Street/Savannah Parkway TWSC 
19.8 

C 
29.2 

D 
(WBL) (WBL) 

6. E. Bidwell Street/Mangini Parkway Signal 24.6 C 25.0 C 

7. Alder Creek Parkway/Westwood Drive TWSC 
11.6 

B 
12.2 

B 
(SBT) (NBL) 

8. Alder Creek Parkway/Quail Meadow Drive TWSC 
10.9 

B 
10.8 

B 
(NBTI (NBTI 

9. Old Ranch Way/Westwood Drive AWSC 7.7 A 7.9 A 

10. Old Ranch Way/Quail Meadow Drive AWSC 7.1 A 7.1 A 

Notes: 
1. LOS and delay (sec/veh) results for signalized and all-way stop controlled intersections are reported for the overall intersection. 
2. LOS and delay (sec/veh) results for side-street stop controlled intersections are reported for the worst movement. 

TWSC = Two-way stop-control. AWSC = All way stop-control. 
Source: Table 18 and Table 22 of the Regency at Falsom Ranch TIS (T. Kear, 2019). 

fEHRf PEERS 18 

Page 294

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Baseline Roadway 

" " Alder Creek Pkwy -u ft ::::::: --Old Ranch Way -
l ft 

l t 

j"-, ... ._ 
1 Project ~t ____... 

L~~-i 
Savannah Pkwy 

l 1 
~ 

~ 
Mang ini Pkwy 

-
--

-/ 

✓ 
/ 

Baseline (2024) Roadway Network 
--------------------------------- ------ --- - ----------

Page 295

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



~.~ .. ~--., 

0 

0 

AINlltu•l'biJ 

0 '0 
Cf""""'W~ • . I CD 

0 

" ] ,. 
Ma~glnlPkwy 

t.:Aldei:O:eekParom~ 

~~~ .._ 10 (10) 
.. o- .._ 1~(H I N-~ 

• + ~ ~l 
4 (14) ..JI ,t • :~g~~:=;;. ~~~ i ~~;; 

Turn Lane 0 Study Intersection 

Mangini Ranch Phase 2 AM (PM) Peak Hour Traffic Volume 
• 
• 

-

I, E BldwdLSl/11550.WB'Rampi 

~i e~ 

~n == 1053 (1128) := 150 (191) 

----
1i--
:=~ 

~ ~~ EM 

4- E BJdw,lf.St/Old Ral\dJWaJ 

in 

ii • 
"-46(28) 

u~ ~~-. ·"··· 
It 
m~ 
gic 

1,9 :o=,<D 

I ~ 
"A]d,r(teef(l'alkw!Y/flu.u l,\eadowWay" 

;~~ 
• + 

10(10) 

4~J~~~~ ~ 

Traffic Signal 

Stop Sign 

5 (5) 
~ 140(57) 
,-- 5 (5) 

., ..... 
t • Ir ~§:@: I ~~~ 

I 

2.EllldwellSIIIIS5081~ 1 E B!t!o«JI 11/l,ltli, Cn,tlc PlwJ 

El ~~ 
:-::..!:::!. __ 

~~ ~~~ "- 247(157) 

J,U u~ ,,,- 28(18) 

l!LIU "" . ... ,n-

It .. ,i11r 
732 (1029)::: 

229(450)--,,, ti ~i~ --~~ !~ i ~ 

s. E 8Wviell ~ l!kWJ- II. E Bidwell Si/Manglflllkwy 

i~ --~--• ~U)~ 

~i~S "- 217 l Ull) :i::e .._45(28) r,..'<j"IJ)T"" 
- 0 (1;)) 

!~ r6(3) J!~ .,_ 11 B(llll) 

- 0 1)1) ... ---,~ O(O) ~11r 
!! 

174(121) ~ 
MlDllll'-

25 ~1(~~ ==;f ~~gE, 
ill;::. 

i ~~ 1ti 
t. Qbl lrandl-Way~p, lO, Old Randi \YaJ/QuaU &!eadow WaJ 

N~ 

~~~ 
• + 

4(10) 
10(35)-+ 

2(5) 

• 

8 
10(10) 

~~ +- 39(19) 5(5) 
J1.-- 42(28) 

16 

J 

7(4) • J,. 
~ ,,_ C'U.ll'........_W.._ 

t • 5(10) 

~i~ 
20 (40) --4 

i!~ • 

Figure 9 

Peak Hour Traffic Volumes 
and Lane Configurations -

Baseline No Project Conditions 

Page 296

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Alde1· Creek Apartments Final Traffic Study 
December 21, 2020 

Table 8 presents the freeway density and LOS at the study freeway segments under 2024 Baseline No Project 

Conditions, as documented in the Regency at Folsom Ranch TIS. 

Table 8: Freeway Density and Level of Service - 2024 Baseline No Project Conditions 

Analysis AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour 
Segment 1 ------- --- -

Type Density I LOS Density LOS 

1. U.S. 50/E. Bidwell Street EB slip off-
Diverge 18.8 B 31.7 D 

ramp 

2. U.S. 50/E. Bidwell Street EB slip on-
Merge 20.0 C 33.7 D 

ramp 

3. U.S. 50/ E. Bidwell Street WB slip off-
Diverge 30.9 D 23.8 C 

ramp 

4. U.S. 50/E. Bidwell Street WB loop on-
Merge 25.0 C 17.0 B 

ramp 

Source: Table 19 of the Regency at Folsom Ranch TIS (T. Kear, 2019). 

FEHR"f PEERS 21 

Page 297

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Alcle1· C1·eek Apartments Fi11al Tr;iffic Study 
December 21, 207.0 

5. 2024 Baseline Plus Project 
Conditions 
Fehr & Peers analyzed potential impacts of the project under the 2024 Baseline Conditions. Project trips were 

assigned to the study roadway network in accordance with the trip generation, distribution, and assignment 

methods described previously. 

Figure 10 displays the traffic volume of project-generated trips during 2024 Baseline AM and PM peak 

conditions, lane configurations, and traffic control at the study intersections and two project driveways. Figure 

11 displays the 2024 Baseline Plus Project AM and PM peak hour traffic volumes, lane configurations, and 

traffic control at the study intersections and two project driveways. 

Table 9 displays the traffic operations at the study intersections during the AM and PM peak hours. As shown, 

all study intersections would operate acceptably at LOS D or better. 

The shift in dwelling units to Parcel 148, which is located adjacent to the Mangini Parkway/Savannah Parkway 

intersection, would add 29 total AM peak hour and 37 total PM peak hour trips to these roadways. If both 

roads were used equally, this would represent about one added vehicle on each street every four minutes. 

The following evaluates how that added traffic could affect key intersections along each corridor: 

• Mangini Parkway/Savannah Parkway- This planned signalized intersection was reported to operate at a 

cumulative LOS C (average delays of 26 seconds per vehicle) during the AM and PM peak hours 

according to Table 3A.15-25 of the 20 7 7 FPASP Draft EIR. Since LOS D is acceptable in Folsom, delays 

up to 55 seconds (i.e., transition between LOS D and E) are considered acceptable. Even if all shifted 

trips passed through this intersection (which would not be the case), operations would remain at an 

acceptable LOS C. 

• Westwood Drive/Savannah Parkway- This intersection was assumed in the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 

Transportation Impact Study (T. Kear, 2017) to operate with all-way stop and LOS B operations (i.e., 

average delay of 10 seconds in AM and 12 seconds in PM peak hour) during the AM and PM peak 

hours. Note that it was not analyzed in the 207 7 FPASP Draft EIR. Even if all shifted trips passed through 

this intersection (which would not be the case), operations would remain at an acceptable LOS B. 

• Westwood Drive/Mangini Parkway- This intersection was assumed in the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 

Transportation Impact Study (T. Kear, 2017) to operate with all-way stop and LOS B operations (i.e., 

average delay of 9 seconds in AM and 10 seconds in PM peak hour) during the AM and PM peak hours. 

Note that it was not analyzed in the 207 7 FPASP Draft EIR. Even if all shifted trips passed through this 

intersection (which would not be the case), operations would remain at an acceptable LOS B. 

FEHR,f PEERS 22 

Page 298

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Q 

0 

'i 
j 

ManglnlPl!wy 

0 Study Intersection 

Mangini Ranch Phase 2 

T . .tllldwdlSt/UfSOWQ Ramlll l.E llidwtTIStlUSSO EB Ramps 

e:! e..£:!. t: 0(0) 

4n J,tt := 3(11) 

... ·- ·- -.. , .. ,. 
t~ ti,. 0 (O)::! 

~~ B (24)-,,, gt': 

i ~~ 
'i" 

5.f Bldwdl St/5,,i,rii!l l'twf U!Mw.JISV'14!nglnl ~ 

§;§: £~§:§, .._O(O) 
00 a.._O (0) oinoo -- 0(0) 

,r-5 (4) J!lt "'- 0(0) !~ ....,.,11'1....., 0(0) 

1~ 
§:§: 
NO 

"' i 
9, O!IRandl Way/Wtlllvood Dr 

• §:§:§: 5(4) 
000 +-52(33) • + 5(4) 

0(0) 

t • 8(23) -❖ 
0(0) 

• e.e.e. 
8 000 

_,, Turn Lane 

AM (PM) Peak Hour Traffic Volume 
• • 

0 (O) J1ttr 
0101,,. 

~!~?=:- e.e.ee 
oc ~-- CJ 

~ 
fO.Old·RalllhV4y/®all MeadowWaJ 

;,; 

~~ 
J. 

' 
0(0) 
0 (0) --4 

Traffic Signal 

Stop Sign 

• 

f 

i• ; O(O) 
....... 0(0) 

·-

UBldw!IISt/Mdet'Crftlil'kwy 4. EllldwellSI/Old Aindl V4Y 

-m • ~~! ..._5(4) £E 
0~ -52(33) 

!!II' r • (O) l!~ --"'"- . 
"tlr t~ !ai €5: 

! 
C; i. --

! 
'7,A14.,(re,k~~Wl)/\'lts1-d Or l AldC\'(rcpP,,jo,,J/MY~Ylr; 

§:§:§: 0(0) ~=! 
..._ 0 (0) 0(0) 

000 "'- 0 (0) + ..._ 1 (3) 

0 + 1 (3) ct Y- 0(0) 

···- " 0 (0) _,, ,~ 0(0) t • 14(43)-

18~1(~~::;.. 0 (OJ-...- ~ee Ir ~:: ~00 

ii J I 

1HJ4« Ct<!IIP.mrq/Pro)<Ct Dn~lY .I J:1. liidlwld!WQ/Ploj«IOll\twiyl 

+-1 (3) 

0(01 .... 
1~("' ti l r 

f 2 
J 

!:I 

I 
~s i 0 (0) 
;i ;;- .,4!-18(12) 

• J. 
OldRandlW= 

4D 8(23) 
O(O) --4 

Figure 10 

Peak Hour Traffic Volumes 
and Lane Configurations -

Project Only Trips 

Page 299

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



;~ 
X 

t< 

1 

0 

I 

.l ~\\1\t'Mt).Wl 

cC ... 

:.A 
z 

~nglnlPkwy_ 

0 Study Intersection 

Mangini Ranch Phase 2 

1.E~Su\JSl4WBRamp, 

~~ e~ 

~n == 1053 (112B) .:= 153 (202) 

~ ·-·-· . 
ti,. 

~ ~I -~ 
, ~~ 

J. E 8idwoi1S~h Pkwy 

h • 
....__45 (28) 

!~ r11 (7) 

--
1~ 
~~ 
~ 

9: llld R:lndi Wl)'f/1.._oood DI 

N~ • ~~; 15 (14) 
+-91 (52) • + 12(8) 

-·- ---
4 (10) • 16 (56) --{o + 2(5) 

1 ~ff • I!'~ 

Turn Lane 

AM (PM) Peak Hour Traffic Volume 
• 
C, 

2, E B/d,rtll_Ml!il4 E8 Runp, 

~~ 
i[ 
J~! ·······-

t~ 
732 (1029)::: 

237 (474)--,. ~i 
~i • ill~ 

4.E BldwdlSI/ManilJn(llkYtY 

~~~--;;~;;-::::.. 217 f l .I)) 
l'-'<tc»..- l= O{Ol 

J!lt ... 1!0[0!5] 
0(01 ·-

0 (O) J1ttr 
174 (121) ::!1,f E§:i5' 0(0)-

25(17) """'>II ON!::,::;.. 

i !LO 

t0, CU Rani), W,y/Qu,,11 M<!/1.w'llq, 

;::-

~~ 
• J. 

5(10) 
20(40) --4 

Traffic Signal 

Stop Sign 

• 

f 

i 
1 5(5) 

~42 (28) 

OldRanchW• 

J. ! BIW St/~~ (mld'lr•y 4, ! ~ I ~ Id it.mm War 

if in • ::::..£:!. __ i! ~~~ ....__ 252 (161) 
L. 98 (61) 

!lit ,r 26 (18) 
H~ 

g.,r--.11.A.- ... --· 
'1 ttr t~ ~I! 8~ --::::..~ 

i<I 
~ 

~ ~,-. 

1 I !! 
J.,Alliflfflf P.111,..-,y/WcliwotidOP 8. Aldl'l'(lf8P.ill.w;iy/CIDI ~oliPWl'J 

~o- ;~~ ~~~ 
.,.__ 10 [10) 5(5) 

.,_ 112( .. 1 + .,l!,-141(60) 

• + •1•1 0, ,r 5(5) 
'I PL ... ,e,:....i.--.-

4(14)-#1 _,!_ • s~~1(~~l ~ + • 77(188) --
68(115)-v- ~;-~ i E;;;; 33 (45) 

J I 
~.-LO :;; 

11,Aldnllffk'°'twll'"'"l<<t Ddvnm 1 12.01dRlndlY/ly/l't,j«l iht,my1 

l;J(16,5,) ....,, 
1s1:.&1 

~ 0(0) 
-188(86) ~ ,,II,- 74(45) 

• J. 
,AIMl,,.._Ji'I'-.... n, • ., ... ch~ 

C, 6(23) r 25(50) --4 

i 
In 

~ 

Figure 11 

Peak Hour Traffic Volumes 
and Lane Configurations -

Baseline Plus Project Conditions 

Page 300

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Aldet· Creek Apartments Final Tt·affic Study 

December 21, 2020 

Table 9: Intersection Delay and Level of Service - 2024 Baseline Plus Project Conditions 

Baseline No Project Baseline Plus Project 
- - - - -

Study Intersection Type AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour - ---~r----i----
Delay LOS Delay LOS Delay LOS Delay LOS 

1. E. Bidwell Street/U.S. 50 
Signal 19.0 B 21 .9 C 19.0 B 22.0 C 

Westbound Ramps 

2. E. Bidwell Street/U.S. 50 
Signal 14.0 B 32.6 C 14.0 B 35.0 C 

Eastbound Ramps 

3. E. Bidwell Street/Alder 
Signal 13.1 B 14.3 B 14.0 B 15.3 B 

Creek Parkway 

4. E. Bidwell Street/Old 
TWSC 

19.2 
C 

22.1 
C 

22.8 
C 

25.4 
D 

Ranch Way (WBR) (WBR) (WBR) (WBR) 

5. E. Bidwell Street/Savannah 
TWSC 

19.8 
C 

29.2 
D 

20.1 
C 

29.9 
D 

Parkway (WBL) (WBL) (WBL) (WBL) 

6. E. Bidwell Street/Mangini 
Signal 24.6 C 25.0 C 24.8 C 25.2 C 

Parkway 

7. Alder Creek 
TWSC 

11.6 
B 

12.2 
B 

11.7 
B 

13.1 
B 

Parkway/Westwood Drive (SBT) (NBL) (SBT) (NBL) 

8. Alder Creek 
10.9 10.8 11 .0 10.9 

Parkway/Quail Meadow TWSC 
(NBT) 

B 
(NBT) 

B 
(NBT) 

B 
(SBT) 

B 
Drive 

9. Old Ranch 
AWSC 7.7 A 7.9 A 8.0 A 8.2 A 

Way/Westwood Drive 

10. Old Ranch Way/Quail 
TWSC 7.1 A 7.1 A 7.1 A 7.1 A 

Meadow Drive 

Notes: 
1, LOS and delay (sec/veh) results for signalized and all -way stop controlled intersections are reported for the overall intersection. 
2. LOS and delay (sec/veh) results for side-street stop controlled intersections are reported for the worst movement 

TWSC = Two-way stop-control. AWSC = All way stop-control. 
Source: Fehr & Peers, 2020 

FEHR1'PEERS 25 

Page 301

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Alder Creek Apartments Final Ti-affic Study 
December 21, 2020 

• East Bidwell Street/Savannah Parkway- This side-street stop-controlled study intersection would be 

unaffected by the addition of shifted trips associated with the development transfer to Parcel 148. This 

is because the proposed unit shift would not contribute any trips to the westbound left-turn moyement, 

which is the worst-case intersection movement and basis of the reported LOS of D. 

• East Bidwell Street/Mangini Parkway- This signalized study intersection is reported to operate at LOS C 

(average delays of 25 seconds per vehicle) in Table 9 under baseline plus the Alder Creek Apartments. 

Since LOS D is acceptable in Folsom, delays up to 55 seconds (i.e., transition between LOS D and E) are 

considered acceptable. Even if all shifted trips associated with the development transfer to Parcel 148 

passed through this intersection (which would not be the case), operations would remain at an 

acceptable LOS C. 

In summary, the proposed shift of dwelling units would not degrade any intersection LOS results to 

unacceptable levels. 

Table 10 presents the AM and PM Peak Hour freeway density and LOS at the study freeway segments under 

2024 Baseline Plus Project Conditions. As shown, all study freeway segments would operate acceptably at LOS 

Dor better. 

Table 10: Freeway Density and Level of Service - 2024 Baseline Plus Project Conditions 

I 

Baseline No Project Baseline Plus Project 
Anal sis ------ ------

Segment T y AM Peak Hour PM Peal< Hour PM Peal< Hour 
ype ~-

Density uensny I LOS Density LOS 

1. U.S. 50/E. Bidwell Street EB slip 
Diverge 18.8 B 31.7 D 18.9 B 31.9 D 

off-ramp 

2. U.S. 50/E. Bidwell Street EB slip 
Merge 20.0 C 33.7 D 20.2 C 33.8 D 

on-ramp 

3. U.S. 50/ E. Bidwell Street WB 
Diverge 30.9 D 23.8 C 30.9 D 23.9 C 

slip off- ramp 

4. U.S. 50/E. Bidwell Street WB 
Merge 25.0 C 17.0 B 25.1 C 17.1 B 

loop on-ramp 

Source: Fehr & Peers, 2020 

fEHR,1PEERS 26 

Page 302

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Alde1· Creek Apartments Final Traffic Study 
Decembe1· 21. 2020 

6. Project Access Review 
This section evaluates project access including driveway spacing, driveway throat depths, internal and external 

circulation, and need for deceleration lanes. 

Driveway Spacing 

Driveway spacing is adequate for both project driveways. The project driveways on Alder Creek Parkway and 

Old Ranch Way are located approximately 350 feet from the nearest western intersections with Westwood 

Drive and 300 feet from the nearest eastern intersection with Quail Meadow Way. This meets City of Folsom's 

Design Standards for driveways on collector streets. 

Driveway Throat Depths 

It is important that the design of the site provide adequate throat depth for vehicular traffic. Without this, 

queueing may extend onto public streets, thereby adversely affecting traffic operations and creating potential 

safety hazards. 

Table 11 presents the proposed driveway throat depths, and evaluations of each. 

Table 11: Driveway Throat Depth 

. . Proposed Throat 
1 

• d . 
Driveway Location Movement 

O 
h Cone us1on/Recommen at1on 

Alder Creek Parkway 
Inbound 

Outbound 

Inbound 

ept 

150 ft 

150 ft 

so ft 

Throat depth is sufficient 

Throat depth is sufficient 

Throat depth is sufficient 

Old Ranch Way 
Outbound so ft 

Gate should be designed with vehicle detection such 
that it remains continuously open if a vehicle is detected 

either upstream or downstream of the gate 

Source: Fehr & Peers, 2020 

The project driveway on Alder Creek Parkway provides sufficient driveway throat depth for inbound and 

outbound vehicles. Additionally, this driveway includes a bypass lane that enables residents to avoid being 

blocked by vehicles using the keypad in the median to enter the site. Lastly, this driveway includes a wide 

throat width, which will allow vehicles who are turned away to perform a U-turn without having to back onto 

Alder Creek Parkway. 

The proiect driveway on Old Ranch Way provides sufficient driveway throat depth for inbound and outbound 

vehicles. Approximately 44 outbound trips would use this driveway during the AM peak hour, which may 

result in a maximum queue of two vehicles in the outbound direction. This queue can be accommodated by 

FEHR,f PEERS 27 

Page 303

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Alde1· Creek Apart1ne11ts Final Ttaffic: Study 
Dece1nbe1· 2 I. 2020 

the proposed driveway design, provided vehicle detection is present to prevent the gate from closing when 

vehicles are present. 

On-Site Circulation 

Fehr & Peers performed a review of on-site circulation, which revealed a well-design parking lot layout. Offset 

drive aisles are minimized, adequate drive aisle widths (25 feet or greater) are provided, and wider widths are 

provided for fire lanes and refuse pick-up. Additionally, pedestrian facilities are plentiful within the site, and 

including connections to adjacent public streets. 

Adjacent Street Circulation 

Under Baseline Plus Project Conditions, the following traffic controls for intersections are assumed to be in 

place near the project site. Table 10 indicated that each of these intersections would operate acceptably 

under this scenario with these traffic controls. 

• 
• 

• 

• 

Alder Creek Parkway/Westwood Drive - Stop control on Westwood Way (North/South) approach 

Alder Creek Parkway/ Quail Meadow Way- Stop control on Quail Meadow Way (North/South) 

approach 

Old Ranch Way/Westwood Drive - All-way stop control 

Old Ranch Way/Quail Meadow Way - All-way stop control 

Along the project frontage, Alder Creek Parkway would have a typical cross-section consisting of a 12-foot 

travel lane and 5-foot bike lane in each direction separated by a 16-wide median. The median would prohibit 

left-turning vehicles from entering the project driveway; however, inbound traffic traveling westbound on 

Alder Creek Parkway may make a U-turn at the Alder Creek Parkway/Westwood Drive intersection and enter 

the project site via the Alder Creek Parkway driveway. The median along Alder Creek Parkway would also 

prohibit left-turning vehicles from exiting the project driveway and travel toward East Bidwell Street. 

Therefore, it is likely that the majority of the outbound traffic will use the Old Ranch Way driveway to exit the 

project site and travel towards East Bidwell Street. A small amount of outbound traffic may exit the Alder 

Creek Parkway Driveway, make a right-turn onto Quail Meadow Way, and make another right-turn onto Old 

Ranch Way. Intersection analysis shows that project-related traffic volume can be accommodated by the 

current roadway design at all study intersections, and there is no need for additional intersection or roadway 

improvement. 

Project residents may desire to exit the Alder Creek Parkway driveway and perform an eastbound U-turn at 

Quail Meadow Way. The eastbound approach at Quail Meadow Way consists of a through lane and a left-turn 

pocket, a raised median, and one lane in the opposite direction (traveling westbound towards East Bidwell 

Street). This design would create 33 feet of distance from the outside edge of the left-turn lane to the face of 

curb, which is far less than what is required to enable U-turns to be performed. Thus, eastbound Li-turns on 

Alder Creek Parkway at Quail Meadow Way will need to be prohibited. "No U-Turn" signs (CA MUTCD R3-4 or 

similar) shall be installed facing the eastbound approach. in the median on the near and far side of the 

intersection. Figure 12 displays the recommended location for the sign installation. 

fEHR,tPEERS 2.R 

Page 304

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



•--

, I 

--.------- -..,._ ·--·---·-·------- ~ · ,__ ______ -! ---+ 1:11.nu.,.'Oli~ '•l'tl 
·----·-·- ,._ - _J --• _ _ J 

0 StopSign 

ALDER CREEK PARKWAY 

Install "No U-Turn" signs 
(CA MUTCD R3-4 or similar) 
facing the eastbound approach, 
in the median on the near and 
far side of the intersection. 

*CONCEPTl/AL 

Fiqure !2 

Site Access Recommendations 

Page 305

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



.Alder Creek Aportrnents Fi11al T1 affic Study 
Decernbe1· 21, 2020 

Another alternative route for outbound traffic to reach East Bidwell Street is to exit the Alder Creek Parkway 

driveway and perform an eastbound U-turn at Placerville Road. Based on discussions with City staff, it not 

desirable to allow such U-turns to be made. Thus. eastbound U-turns on Alder Creek Parkway at Placerville 

Road should be prohibited. "No U-Turn" signs (CA MUTCD R3-4 or similar) shall be installed facing the 

eastbound approach. in the median on the near and far side of the intersection. Figure 12 displays the 

recommended location for the sign installation. 

A third alternative route to access East Bidwell Street would entail travel north via Westwood Drive and 

Placerville Road. This option does not provide convenient access to U.S. 50, and congestion along Placerville 

Drive (near the retail uses located directly east of East Bidwell Street) may deter drivers from using this route. 

Therefore, it is unlikely that project residents will travel north on Placerville Road unless their travel destination 

are the retail uses along this corridor. 

Inbound project trips may use either Alder Creek Parkway or Old Ranch Way to access the project site. Most 

inbound trips will arrive from the north on East Bidwell Street. Of these trips, it is estimated that approximately 

two-thirds will enter the project site via the Alder Creek Parkway driveway, and approximately one-third will 

enter via the Old Ranch Way driveway. Using this estimation, it is projected that approximately 8 vehicles 

during the AM peak hour and 23 vehicles during the PM peak hour will travel eastbound on Old Ranch Way 

and perform an eastbound left-turn to enter the project Driveway. 

A westbound left-turn lane with approximately 180 feet of vehicle storage (i.e., sufficient for seven stacked 

vehicles) was recently constructed on Alder Creek Parkway at Quail Meadows Way. This turn lane would 

accommodate very few trips under the baseline plus project scenario (i.e., less than 10 vehicles per hour as 

shown on Figure 10). Thus, no queuing issues are expected to occur at this turn lane. Along the project 

frontage, Old Ranch Way is a collector street consisting of two 11-foot travel lanes plus on-street parking that 

terminates approximately 600 feet east of the Old Ranch Way/ Quail Meadow Way intersection. East of the 

project driveway, Old Ranch Way would serve approximately 50 single-family residential units and a future 

elementary school (located on south side of Old Ranch Way with anticipated vehicular access either opposite 

Quail Meadows Way or further east). A traffic investigation was performed to determine whether planned 

geometric and anticipated traffic conditions at the Old Ranch Way/Project Driveway intersection would 

warrant construction of a dedicated eastbound left-turn pocket. The following describes the results of that 

evaluation. 

• The American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials' (AASHTO) A Policy on 

Geometric Design of Highways and Streets l1h Edition (2018) provides guidance for when it may be 

appropriate to construct dedicated left-turn lanes on roads. As noted above, 23 vehicles traveling 

eastbound on Old Ranch Way are anticipated to turn left into the project driveway during the weekday 

PM peak hour (i.e., hour of the day where such movement is at its greatest). Table 9-24 of AASHTO's A 

Policy on Geometric Design of Highways and Streets specifies that for an arterial street with this volume 

of left-turning traffic, a left-turn lane may be warranted if the combined major street through volumes 

exceeds 200 vehicles per hour. Based on the adjacent land uses that would be served by Old Ranch 

FEHR1PEERS 30 

Page 306

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Alder C1 eek Apartments Final Traffic Study 
December 21 , 2020 

Way, an estimated 75 vehicles during the PM peak hour are expected. Thus, since this standard would 

not be met for such a driveway on an arterial street, it would certainly also not be met for a collector 

street, in which speeds are lower and the roadway function changes from providing accessibility to local 

site access. 

• Additionally, the cross-section of Old Ranch Way (one travel lane plus a parking lane in each direction) 

is intended for local access based on the types of adjacent land uses and termination of the street 600 

feet to the east. The presence of multiple stop signs on Old Ranch Way at Westwood Drive and Quail 

Meadow Way indicates that the speeds in this area will be low. The provision of a dedicated left-turn 

pocket would be inconsistent with its function and speed. 

• Finally, Old Ranch Way along the project frontage qualifies as a minor collector street according to 

Section 11.1 of the City of Folsom's Design Standards based on its 43-foot right-of-way. Per Section 

12.7 of the City of Folsom's Design Standards, left-turn pockets are not required on minor collector 

streets. 

Thus, for the above reasons, a dedicated left-turn lane is not required on eastbound Old Ranch Way at the 

project driveway. 

Deceleration Lane Requirements 

Section 12.5 of the City of Folsom's Design Standards states that a right-turn deceleration taper shall be 

provided if all of the following conditions are met: 

a) The driveway is located on a major or minor arterial street. 

b) Right-turn ingress volume in the driveway is expected to be between 10 and 50 vehicles during peak 

hour flows on the roadway. 

c) There is ample room and frontage to fit a deceleration lane as determined by the City Engineer. 

d) The design speed of the roadway, as determined by the City Engineer, equals or exceeds 45 mph. 

Construction of Alder Creek Parkway along the project frontage had been completed at the time this traffic 

study was prepared, and a deceleration lane is now constructed to serve the project's driveway. 

Old Ranch Way is not a major or minor arterial street. Thus, the project driveway on Old Ranch Way does not 

require either a deceleration lane or taper. 

FEHR1PEERS 3 1 

Page 307

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



AlcJe1· Creek Apartments Final T1·affic: Study 
Decembe1· 2 1, 2020 

7. FP ASP Mitigations and Conditions 
of Approval 
This chapter describes the mitigations and impact fees to which the Alder Creek project is required to 

contribute. The project is located within the Mangini Ranch Phase 2, which was undertaken pursuant to, and in 

conformity with the FPASP and the Westland/Eagle Specific Plan Amendment (Yv/E SPA) per CEQA section 

151822
. The proposed project would be subject to all mitigations and findings adopted with the FPASP and 

W/E SPA. A list of the applicable Mitigation Measures, as identified on p. 55-63 of the Final Mangini Ranch 

Phase 2 TIS, is included in Appendix B of this report. 

The following describes the status of construction of roadways surrounding the Alder Creek project. 

• Alder Creek Parkway currently exists from East Bidwell Street to Placerville Road and beyond into the 

Russell Ranch development. 

• Westwood Drive between Alder Creek Parkway and Old Ranch Way is being constructed as part of the 

Enclave residential project and will be open to traffic well before the proposed project is completed. 

• Old Ranch Way between East Bidwell Street and Westwood Drive is being constructed as part of the 

Enclave residential project and will be open to traffic well before the proposed project is completed. 

Old Ranch Way east of Westwood Drive is currently under construction as part of the Village 4 & 8 

development plans and will be open to traffic well before the proposed project is completed. 

• Quail Meadow Way is currently under construction with the Village 4 & 8 development plans and will 

be open to traffic well before the proposed project is completed. 

Draft Conditions of Approval for Transportation Improvements are recommended to consist of: 

a) Pay all applicable impact fees. 

b) Post signs (CA MUTCD R3-4 or similar) along Alder Creek Parkway at Quail Meadow Way prohibiting 

eastbound U-turns. 

c) Post signs (CA MUTCD R3 -4 or similar) along Alder Creek Parkway at Placerville Road prohibiting 

eastbound U-turns. 

2 14 CCR 15182 

fEHRf PEERS 32 

Page 308

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



/'llder Creek Apa1t111e11ts Fi11a! fraffic Study 

December 21, 2020 

8. CEQA Considerations for Analysis of 
Traffic Impacts 
As described above, the Alder Creek Project is a modification of the existing approved FPASP. The City 

previously conducted a full review of the environmental impacts associated with the FPASP pursuant to CEQA. 

The FPASP was first evaluated in the 2011 Folsom South of U.S. Highway 50 Specific Plan Final Environmental 

Impact Report/Environmental Impact Statement ("EIR/EIS"). In 2014, the City certified an Initial Study/Mitigated 

Negative Declaration for the South of Highway 50 Backbone Infrastructure Project. In 2015, the City approved 

the Westland/Eagle Specific Plan Amendment to the FPASP and certified an Addendum to the EIR/EIS. In 

2017, the City approved a CEQA exemption for Mangini Ranch Phase 2, which made minor modifications to 

land use boundaries and internal street circulation. 

Where changes are proposed to a previously approved project with a certified EIR, CEQA requires the 

approving agency to determine whether those changes trigger the need for additional environmental 

review. The standards governing supplemental environmental review are provided in Public Resources 

Code section 21166, and CEQA Guidelines sections 15162, 15163, and 15164. 3 A subsequent EIR is not 

required unless one or more of the following events occurs: 

(a) Substantial changes are proposed in the project which will require major 

revisions of the environmental impact report. 

(b) Substantial changes occur with respect to the circumstances under which the 

project is being undertaken which will require major revisions in the environmental 

impact report. 

(c) New information, which was not known and could not have been known at the 

time the environmental impact report was certified as complete, becomes available. 

(Pub. Res. Code, § 21166.) 

At issue here is whether the proposed project (i.e. the shift in dwelling units among parcels in the plan area) 

will result in substantial changes in the Folsom Specific Plan that require a subsequent EIR under CEQA's 

standards. The CEQA Guidelines provide additional clarity and detail on what type of information will trigger 

supplemental review under this category. Section 15162 of the Guidelines explains that supplemental 

environmental review for project changes are required where the changes are "substantial" and "will require 

major revisions of the previous EIR ... due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a 

substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects." Conversely, a CEQA Addendum 

---------
3 The t hird type of supplementa l review under CEQA is ca ll ed a "Supplemental EI R" under Guidelines section 151 63 . The 

sta nd ard s govern ing th is type of document are largely identica l to those govern ing Subsequent El Rs. 

FEHRf PEERS 3{ 

Page 309

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Alde1- Creek Apartments Final Traffic Study 

December 21, 2020 

may be prepared "if some changes or additions are necessary but none of the conditions described in Section 

15162 calling for preparation of a subsequent EIR have occurred." (CEQA Guidelines, §15164(a).) 

For purposes of this study, the traffic analysis has showed that the proposed project will not result in 

substantial changes in the FPASP due to new or significantly more severe traffic impacts than those already 

evaluated in the previous FPASP EIR/EIS. 

Evaluation Criteria 

The FPASP EIR/EIS identifies the following LOS standards: 

"For roadways within the City of Folsom's existing boundaries (north of U.S. 50), LOS C is 

considered the minimum acceptable condition. For roadways within the project boundaries 

(south of U.S. 50), LOS D conditions can be considered acceptable if improvements required 

to meet LOS C exceed the City's "normally accepted maximum" improvements. 

The Folsom 2035 General Plan, adopted in August 2018, continues to use a LOS "D" or better standard for 

local streets and roadways. (Folsom General Plan, p. 3-15.) 

The Transportation Chapter (3A.15) of the FPASP EIR/EIS analyzed the transportation impacts of the project 

under existing and cumulative conditions. An extensive study area was selected including local (Folsom) roads 

and intersections, freeways and interchanges, as well as facilities in other jurisdictions including El Dorado 

County, Sacramento County, and the City of Rancho Cordova. 

The FPASP EIR/EIS applied thresholds of significance for the following facility types: 

• Local roadway facilities 

• Intersections 

• Freeway facilities 

• Bicycle facilities 

• Pedestrian facilities 

• Transit facilities 

According to Pages ES-131 through ES-164 ofthe FPASP EIR/EIS, the land use component of the FPASP would 

cause the following significant transportation impacts: 

• 
• 
• 
• 

3A.15-1: Increases to peak-hour and daily traffic volumes, resulting in unacceptable levels of service . 

3A.15-2: Increased demand for single-occupant automobile travel in the project area . 

3A.15-3: Potential impacts associated with the City's Transportation Impact Fee Program . 

3A.15-4: Increases to peak-hour and daily traffic volumes, resulting in unacceptable levels of service, 

under cumulative (2030) conditions. 

FEHR1PEERS 34 

Page 310

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Alde1· Creek Apartments Final T1·affic Study 
Decelllber 21 , 2020 

Page 3A.15-157 indicates that the FPASP would result in significant impacts to numerous intersections and 

roadways. However, mitigation measures would reduce the majority of impacts to less-than-significant. Under 

cumulative conditions, five specific locations would have impacts that would be considered significant-and

unavoidable. 

According to Page 3A.15-27 of the FPASP EIR/EIS, "Because the proposed specific plan is consistent with the 

City's General Plan, the project is expected to have less-than-significant impacts on pedestrian, bicycle, and 

transit facilities". 

Local Roadway, Intersections, and Freeway Facilities 

As described in the sections above, with the addition of the Alder Creek project, key intersections and freeway 

segments near the project site would operate acceptably at LOS D or better. The proposed Transfer of 

Development Rights associated with the project would not change the total number of vehicle trips generated 

by the FPASP. 

Impact 3.15-4 of the FPASP EIR/EIS discusses the Specific Plan's cumulative traffic impacts. A total of 25 study 

intersections, roadway segments, and freeway facility segments located within the City of Folsom, County of 

Sacramento, County of El Dorado, or under the jurisdiction of Caltrans were found to be significantly 

impacted. Of these 25 identified locations, 23 are located outside the FPASP boundary. This is important 

because the proposed project would not change the total number of trips generated within the Specific Plan 

area. Thus, the proposed project would have no effect on any study intersections, roadway segments, or 

freeway facility segments located outside the plan boundary. 

Two study intersections located within the plan boundary were found to be significantly impacted by the 

Specific Plan. They were: 

• Oak Avenue Parkway/Easton Valley Parkway (now Alder Creek Parkway) 

• Scott Road/Easton Valley Parkway (now East Bidwell Street/Alder Creek Parkway) 

According to pages 3A.1S-101 and 3A.15-102, a feasible mitigation measure was identified for the Oak 

Avenue Parkway/Easton Valley Parkway intersection to reduce its impact to less-than-significant. According to 

page 3A.15-102, impacts at the Scott Road/Easton Valley Parkway intersection (now East Bidwell Street/ Alder 

Creek Parkway) were determined to be less-than-significant because lane configurations on each approach 

would be at their 'normally accepted maximum' levels, and the resulting LOS D condition during the PM peak 

hour would be considered acceptable. The proposed project would not alter either of the conclusions at these 

two impacted intersections. 

As shown in Tables 10 and 11, key intersections along East Bidwell Street and freeway segments along U.S. 50 

would continue to operate acceptably at LOS D or better under 2024 Baseline Plus Alder Creek Project 

conditions. 

FEHR,tPEERS 

Page 311

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Alder C1eek Apartments Final Traffic Study 
December 21 1020 

Bicycle/Pedestrian/Transit Facilities 

The project would not disrupt or preclude construction or use of any planned bicycle, pedestrian, or transit 

facilities within the FPASP. The following facilities would be situated within the project vicinity: 

• 

• 

Class II (on-street with appropriate signing and pavement markings) bike lanes on East Bidwell Street, 

Alder Creek Parkway, and Westwood Drive. 

Sidewalks along public streets and crosswalks at signalized intersections . 

A transit corridor along Alder Creek Parkway that extends from west of East Bidwell Street to Westwood Drive, 

and then south along Westwood Drive to Savannah Parkway. 

Evaluation of Proposed Rezoning Impacts 

This section evaluates whether the proposed rezoning would trigger a subsequent (or supplemental) EIR by 

meeting any of the conditions described in CEQA Section 15162(a). This evaluation is presented in a question

and-answer format below. 

• Will the proiect hove one or more significant effects not discussed in the previous EIR? By virtue of 

generating no additional vehicle trips and not modifying any components of the planned 

transportation network, the project would not cause any new significant transportation effects that 

were not already discussed in the DEIR/DEIS. 

• 

• 

• 

Will the proiect cause significant effects previously examined to be substantially more severe than shown 
in the previous EIR? The FPASP EIR/EIS included four transportation impact statements relating to 

increased travel by single-occupant vehicles, impacts to the City's impact fee program, and 

unacceptable roadway system LOS under both existing and cumulative conditions. Since the 

proposed project would not affect the total number of vehicle trips or transportation impact fees that 

are generated, those impacts would be identical to the previous EIR. With respect to LOS, the 

significant roadway and intersection impacts identified in the FPASP EIR/EIS were not in the 

immediate vicinity of the proposed project. Thus, the project would not change traffic conditions at 

those facilities. To encourage travel by non-auto modes, the FPASP includes a variety of bicycle, 

pedestrian, and transit facilities including several in the immediate vicinity of the Alder Creek Project. 

The Alder Creek Project will not worsen any of the four previously identified significant transportation 

impacts. 

Does the proiect proponent decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative previously found not 
to be feasible that would in fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant 
effects of the proiect? No. 

Does the proiect proponent decline to adopt mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably 
different from those analyzed in the previous EIR that would substantially reduce one or more significant 
effects on the environment? No. 

FEHR,1 PEERS 3(, 

Page 312

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Alcie1- Creek f\purtments Final T1-affic Study 

Decembe1- 2 1, 2020 

Senate Bill 743 &Assessment of Vehicle Miles Traveled 

On September 27, 2013, Governor Jerry Brown signed Senate Bill (SB) 743 (Steinberg) into law and started a 

process to change transportation impact analysis as part of CEQA compliance. SB 743 directed the California 

Office of Planning and Research ("QPR") to revise the CEQA Guidelines to modify the criteria for determining 

the significance of transportation impacts to promote the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions, the 

development of multimodal transportation networks, and a diversity of land uses. Section 15064.3 of the 

CEQA Guidelines, adopted in December 2018, provides that vehicle miles traveled (VMT) is the "most 

appropriate measure of transportation impacts" and mandates analysis of VMT impacts effective July 1, 2020. 

Level of service ("LOS") or other measures of automobile delay, are no longer considered significant 

environmental impacts under CEQA. (Pub. Res. Code, § 21009(b)(2).) 

As provided in CEQA Guidelines Section 15007, "amendments to the guidelines apply prospectively only," and 

CEQA documents must meet the "content requirements in effect when the document was set out for public 

review," and "shall not need to be revised to conform to any new content requirements in guideline 

amendments taking effect before the document is finally approved." (CEQA Guidelines, § 15007(c)). CEQA 

Guideline Section 15064.3 cites to Section 15007. (CEQA Guidelines, § 15064.3(c).) 

The FPASP EIR/EIS was set out for public review in 2010 and certified in 2011, long before the amendment to 

the CEQA Guidelines adding VMT as the measure of transportation impacts. The FPASP EIR/EIS and all 

subsequent review of projects within the Specific Plan have utilized the LOS threshold of significance for traffic 

impacts. As directed by Section 15007, the FPASP EIR/EIS does not need to be revised to conform to the new 

VMT requirements. In addition, the change in law (replacement of the LOS standard with VMn does not 

constitute "new significant information" under CEQA as it does not constitute a new impact caused by the 

changes proposed in the Alder Creek Project. As a result, this Addendum assesses project impacts based on 

LOS, consistent with the FPASP EIR/EIS. 

Nevertheless, the changes proposed in the Alder Creek Project will result in a negligible change in VMT when 

compared to the existing FPASP. As described previously, under the MAM, the project will shift residential 

dwelling units among several parcels within the plan area. The transfer of units would not create additional 

dwelling units or change the FPASP's total off-site trip generation. A small change in VMT would result from 

changes in travel distance within FPASP (e.g., traveling from parcel 148 rather than parcel 82B-1 to the 

boundary of FPASP); however, given the relatively short distances between the parcels where the shift of 

dwelling units will occur and the small number of trips being shifted, the change in net VMT generated would 

be negligible compared to the FPASP total VMT of 612,8004• 

4 Page 3A2-44 of the FPASP EIR/EIS indicates that the FPASP total daily VMT is estimated to be 612,800, 

FEHR,1 PEERS 3 7 

Page 313

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Attachment 18 

Environmental Checklist and Addendum for the Alder 
Creek Apartments Project 

Dated January, 2021 

Page 314

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



-

ASCEN! 
~_..,.,AL . • 
. . 
" . 

Page 315

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



18010133.01 

Alder Creek Apartments 

Environmental Checklist and Addendum 

Prepared for: 

City of Folsom 
50 Natoma Street 
Folsom, CA 95630 

Contact: 
Scott Johnson, Planning Manager 

(916) 461-6206 

Prepared by: 

Ascent Environmental, Inc. 
455 Capitol Mall, Suite 300 

Sacramento, California 95814 
Contact: 

Amanda Olekszulin 
916.444. 7301 

January 2021 

Page 316

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Section Page 

INTRODUCTION ........................................................................................................................................................................ 1-1 
1.1 Background and Action Triggering the Addendum ............................................................................................... 1-1 
1.2 Previous Environmental Analyses ................................................................................................................................. 1-1 
1.3 California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Regarding an Addendum to an 

Environmental Impact Report ............................................................................................................... ........................ 1-2 
1.4 Project Introduction and History .................................................................................................................................. 1-3 

2 PROJECT DESCRIPTION .......................................................................................................................................................... 2-7 
2.1 Project Overview ............................................................................................................................................................... 2-7 
2.2 Project Location ........................ .................................... .. .............................. .................................................................... 2-7 
2.3 Existing Setting ........................................... ....................................................................................................................... 2-7 
2.4 FPASP And Project Objectives ... ...................... ................. ......................................................................................... 2-10 
2.S Summary of Proposed Amendments to the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan ............. .............................. 2-10 
2.6 Project Construction ...................................................................................................................................................... 2-13 
2.7 Required Discretionary Actions ................................................................................................................................. 2-13 

3 ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST FOR SUPPLEMENTAL ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW .................................................. 3-1 
3.1 Explanation of Checklist Evaluation Categories ........... ............................................................. .............................. 3-1 
3.2 Discussion and Mitigation Sections ........................... ................................................. ... ............................................ 3-2 

4 ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST .............................................................................................................................................. 4-3 
4.1 Aesthetics ............................................................................................................................................................................ 4-3 
4.2 Agriculture and Forest Resources ............................................................................................................................... 4-5 
4.3 Air Quality ........................................................................................................................................................................... 4-7 
4.4 Biological Resources ...................................................................................................................................................... 4-18 
4.5 Cultural Resources ........................................................................................................................................................ .4-22 
4.6 Energy ................................................................................................................................................................................. 4-30 
4.7 Geology and Soils ............................................................................................ ............................................ ................ . 4-34 
4.8 Greenhouse Gas Emissions ................................................................ ......... ................................................................ 4-37 
4.9 Hazards and Hazardous Materials .......................................................................................................................... 4-45 
4.10 Hydrology and Water Quality ................................................................................................................................... 4-48 
4.11 Land Use and Planning ......................................................................................... .................................................. ...... 4-51 
4.12 Mineral Resources ................................. ........................................................................................................................ .4-55 
4.13 Noise .................................................................................................................................................................................. .4-56 
4.14 Population and Housing ............................................................................................................................................. .4-62 
4.15 Public Services .................................................................................................................. .............. ................................ 4-64 
4.16 Recreation ........................................................................................................................................................................ .4-67 
4.17 Transportation ................................................................................................................................................................ .4-69 
4.18 Utilities and Service Systems ..................................................... .............................................................. .. .................. 4-78 
4.19 Wildfire ................................................................................................. ............... ... ....... ..................................................... 4-83 
4.20 Mandatory Findings of Significance ............................ .. ......................................................................................... ..4-86 

5 LIST OF PREPARERS AND PERSONS CONSULTED ........................................................................................................... 5-1 
5.1 List of Preparers ...... .......................... ..... .. .. ............................... .............................. ............. ........................................ ...... 5-1 

6 REFERENCES ............................................................................................................................................................................... 6-1 

7 LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS ........................................................................................................................................................ 7-1 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 317

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Table of Contents Ascent Environmental 

Appendices (to be found on a CD on the back cover) 
A Air Quality and Greenhouse Gas Modeling and Assumptions Data 
B Cultural Resources Assessment 
C Geotechnical Engineering Report 
D Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment 
E Environmental Noise Assessment 

F Transportation Impact Study/ Traffic Assumptions 
G Mitigation and Monitoring Reporting Program 

Figures 
Figure 2-1 

Figure 2-2 

Figure 2-3 

Figure 4-1a 

Figure 4-1b 

Tables 
Table2-1 

Table 2-2 

Table 2-3 

Table 2-4 

Table4-1 

Table 4-2 

Table 4-3 

Table 4-4 

Table 4-5 

Table 4-6 

Regional Location ................ ................. .. ....... ....... .. ............ ................... .. ......................................................................... 2-8 

Project Vic inity ........... .............................. ................... ................................... ...................... .................................. ............ 2-9 

Proposed General Plan/Specific Plan Amendment ..................................................... ...... .. ................................ 2-11 

Residential Cancer Risk Contours - Unmitigated ................................................................................................ 4-14 

Residential Cancer Risk Contours - Mitigated ......................................... ...................................................... .... ... 4-15 

Adopted FPASP Land Use Summary for Areas Affected by the Project ............ .. ...................... ................. 2-12 

Proposed FPASP Land Use Summary for Areas Affected by the Project... .................................................... 2-12 

Summary of Proposed Changes to FPASP Land Uses and Projected Population ......... .......................... 2-13 

Entitlements, Approvals and Permits ........................................................................ .. .......... ............. .................... .. 2-13 

Summary of Maximum Daily Construction-Generated Emissions (Unmitigated) .................... .. .... .. ... ....... 4-9 

Noise Compatibility Standards ............ .......... .................................................. .. ......... ....... .. ......... .. ...................... .. .. .4-57 

Noise Level Standards from Stationary Sources .............. .. ........ ........ ..... .. .. ............... ... ....... .. ...... ..... .. ...... ...... ..... 4-57 

Groundborne Vibration Impact Criteria for General Assessment... ............................................................. ..4-58 

Predicted Future Traffic Noise Levels at the Alder Creek Apartments Site ...... ...... ....... ................... .. ...... ..4-60 

City Water Supply and Demand Comparison at Buildout (2050) ................ .... .................. ............................ 4-81 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 318

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



1 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 BACKGROUND AND ACTION TRIGGERING THE ADDENDUM 
The Alder Creek Apartments development proposal (hereafter the "project"), consists of a luxury apartment complex 

proposed on 10.8 acres within the previously approved Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Subdivision project portion of the 
3,500-acre Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan (FPASP) area within the City of Folsom (City). The project requires a 
General Plan Amendment, an amendment to the FPASP to allow for an exchange in land use designations of Multi

Family Low Density and Multi-Family High Density on specific parcels within the FPASP and a minor administrative 
modification for the transfer of unutilized high density residential units to other sites within the FPASP. The proposed 

project would result in an overall increase of 120 multi-family high density units, a reduction of 58 multi-family low 

density units, and a reduction of 62 mixed-use units. Therefore, the project would not increase the total number of 

dwelling units in the FPASP. 

Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act ("CEQA") (Public Resources Code (PRC) § 21000, et seq.), the City 
certified the Final Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Impact Statement (Final EIR/EIS) (State Clearinghouse 

No. 2008092051) for the FPASP in May 2011. The City also adopted a Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Plan 

(MMRP) and Statement of Overriding Considerations. 

As the lead agency under CEQA, the City has prepared this Environmental Checklist/Addendum in accordance with 

CEQA Guidelines section 15164 to evaluate whether the proposed project's effects were adequately examined in the 

previous environmental analysis in the FPASP EIR/EIS or whether any changes trigger supplemental or subsequent 

review under CEQA Guidelines section 15162 or 15163. This Environmental Checklist/Addendum considers whether the 
environmental conditions that exist today have changed such that new or substantially more severe environmental 

impacts would occur compared to that evaluated in the EIR/EIS. As described below, no changes associated with the 

proposed project, and no changes in circumstances, trigger subsequent or supplemental review. 

Federal review and/or approval is not required for the project; and therefore, no NEPA-related document is required. 

1.2 PREVIOUS ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYSES 
The environmental process for the FPASP involved the preparation of the following documents that are relevant to 

the consideration of the proposed amendment to the FPASP for the project. 

• Draft EIR/EIS for the Folsom South of U.S. 50 Specific Plan Project, Volumes 1-111 and Appendices, June 2010; 

• FEIR for the Folsom South of U.S. Highway 50 Specific Plan Project, May 2011; 

• CEQA Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations for the Folsom South of U.S. Highway 50 

Specific Plan Project, May 2011; 

• Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program for the Folsom South of U.S. Highway 50 Specific Plan Project, 

May 2011; 

• Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration for the South of 50 Backbone Infrastructure Project, December 2014; 

• Draft EIR for the Russell Ranch Project, December 2014; 

• Final EIR for the Russell Ranch Project, April 2015; 

• Environmental Checklist and Addendum for the Folsom Heights Tentative Map Project, April 2017; 

• Environmental Checklist and Addendum for the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Amendment for the Westland 
Eagle Project, June 2015; 

• Environmental Checklist and Addendum for the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Amendment for the Hillsborough 

at Easton Area Project, April 2016; and 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 1-1 

Page 319

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Introduction and Project History Ascent Environmental 

• Environmental Checklist and Addendum for the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Amendment for the Toll Brothers 
at Folsom Ranch Master Planned Development, February 2020. 

In addition to the above listed environmental documents, several projects proposed in the FPASP area were 
approved under the adopted FPASP and were determined to be exempt from CEQA. The Mangini Ranch Phase 1 
Tentative Map, approved on June 25, 2015, was consistent with existing plans and zoning and therefore was eligible 

for an exemption from CEQA review under Government Code section 65457 and CEQA Guidelines section 15182. 
Similarly, the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Tentative Map, approved February 13, 2018, was also consistent with existing 

plans and zoning and therefore was eligible for an exemption from CEQA review under Government Code section 
65457 and CEQA Guidelines section 15182. 

1.3 CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT GUIDELINES 
REGARDING AN ADDENDUM TO AN ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
REPORT 

Altered conditions, changes, or additions to the description of a project that occur after certification of an EIR may 

require additional analysis under CEQA. The legal principles that guide decisions regarding whether additional 
environmental documentation is required are provided in the State CEQA Guidelines, which establish three 
mechanisms to address these changes: 1) a subsequent environmental impact report (SEIR), 2) a Supplement to an 

EIR, or 3) an Addendum to an EIR. 

Section 15162 of the State CEQA Guidelines describes the conditions under which a SEIR would be prepared. In 

summary, when an EIR has been certified for a project, no Subsequent EIR shall be prepared for that project unless 

the lead agency determines, on the basis of substantial evidence in light of the whole record, one or more of the 
following: 

1-2 

(1) Substantial changes are proposed in the project which will require major revisions of the previous EIR due to 

the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously 

identified significant effects; 

(2) Substantial changes occur with respect to the circumstances under which the project is undertaken which will 

require major revisions of the previous EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a 

substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant effects; or 

(3) New information of substantial importance, which was not known and could not have been known with the 

exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the previous EIR was certified as complete, shows any of the following: 

(A) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the previous EIR; 

(B) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe than shown in the previous EIR; 

(C) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in fact be feasible, and 

would substantially reduce one or more significant effects of the project, but the project proponents decline 

to adopt the mitigation measures or alternatives; or 

(D) Mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably different from those analyzed in the previous 

EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the environment, but the project 

proponents decline to adopt the mitigation measure or alternative. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 320

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Introduction and Project History 

Section 15163 of the State CEQA Guidelines states that a lead agency may choose to prepare a supplement to an EIR 
rather than a Subsequent EIR if: 

(1) any of the conditions described above for Section 15162 would require the preparation of a SEIR; and 

(2) only minor additions or changes would be necessary to make the previous EIR adequately apply to the project 

in the changed situation. 

Under Section 15164, an addendum is appropriate where a previously certified EIR has been prepared and some 

changes or revisions to the project are proposed, or the circumstances surrounding the project have changed, but 
none of the changes or revisions would result in significant new or substantially more severe environmental impacts, 

consistent with CEQA Section 21166 and State CEQA Guidelines Sections 15162, 15163, 15164, and 15168. 

Based on the criteria above, the City has determined that an addendum is the appropriate document. 

This addendum is intended to evaluate and confirm CEQA compliance for a proposed amendment to the FPASP, 

which would be a change relative to what is described and evaluated in the FPASP Final EIR/EIS. This addendum is 

organized as an environmental checklist and is intended to evaluate all environmental topic areas for any changes in 

circumstances or the project description, as compared to the approved Final EIR/EIS, and determine whether such 

changes were or were not adequately covered in the certified EIR/EIS. This checklist is not the traditional CEQA 

Environmental Checklist, per Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines. As explained below, the purpose of this checklist is 

to evaluate the checklist categories in terms of any "changed condition" (i.e., changed circumstances, project 

changes, or new information of substantial importance) that may result in a different environmental impact 

significance conclusion from the FPASP EIR/EIS. The column titles of the checklist have been modified from the 

Appendix G presentation to help answer the questions to be addressed pursuant to CEQA Section 21166 and CEQA 

Guidelines Section 15162, 15163, 15164 and 15168. 

A comprehensive update to the CEQA Guidelines has been completed since certification of the FPASP Final EIR/EIS. 

The checklist categories follow the updated Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines, which became effective on 

December 28, 2018. Some additional questions have been included for potential impacts related to the FPASP. 

1.4 HISTORY OF DEVELOPMENT AND ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW FOR 
THE FPASP 

The project is located within the FPASP, a development plan for over 3,500 acres of land located south of Highway 

50, north of White Rock Road, east of Prairie City Road, and adjacent to the Sacramento County/El Dorado County 

line in the southwestern portion of the City. 

On June 28, 2011, the Folsom City Council approved (Resolution No. 8863) the FPASP which included development of 

up to 10,210 residential housing units in a range of housing types, styles, and densities along with commercial, 
industrial/office park, and mixed-use land uses, open space, public schools, parks and infrastructure projected to 

occur on the approximate 3,585-acre site (FPASP area). With approval of the FPASP, the City approved general plan 

land use and zoning designations for the entire FPASP area, including the project site. The City and the U.S. Army 

Corps of Engineers (USACE) prepared a joint EIR/EIS for the FPASP that evaluated the environmental impacts 

associated with development of the entire FPASP area based on the land use and zoning designations identified in 

the specific plan. The City was the Lead Agency with respect to preparation of the EIR and USACE was the Lead 

Agency with respect to preparation of the EIS. The approval of the FPASP was followed by these subsequent changes: 

• On December 7, 2012, the City approved an Addendum to the EIR for the FPASP for purposes of analyzing an 

alternative water supply for the project. The revisions to the "Water" component of the FPASP project included: 

(1) leak fixes, (2) implementation of metered rates, (3) exchange of water supplies, and (4) new water conveyance 

facilities. The City concluded that, with implementation of certain mitigation measures from the FPASP El R's 

"Water" sections, the water supply and infrastructure changes would not result in any new significant impacts, 

substantially increase the severity of previously disclosed impacts or involve any of the other conditions related to 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 1-3 

Page 321

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Introduction and Project History Ascent Environmental 

changed circumstances or new information that can require a subsequent or supplemental EIR. The analysis in 
portions of the FPASP El R's "Water" sections that have not been superseded by the Addendum are still 

applicable. Mitigation measures identified in the Revised Proposed Off-Site Water Facility Alternative Addendum 

that are applicable to the Alder Creek Apartments and are required to be implemented by the project have been 
incorporated in the MMRP attached in Appendix G. 

• In August 2014, the Folsom City Council approved an amendment to the FPASP (Resolution No. 9420) relative to 
the alignment and design guidelines for the future Capital Southeast Connector (White Rock Road). 

• On January 27, 2015, the Folsom City Council approved the Folsom South of U.S. Highway 50 Backbone 

Infrastructure Mitigated Negative Declaration (Resolution No. 9505). The proposed project consists of the 

construction of the backbone infrastructure within the Folsom Plan Area. Mitigation measures identified in the 

Folsom South of U.S. Highway 50 Backbone Infrastructure Mitigated Negative Declaration that are applicable to 
the Alder Creek Apartments and are required to be implemented by the project have been incorporated in the 

MMRP attached in Appendix G. 

• On May 12, 2015, the Folsom City Council approved the Russell Ranch Specific Plan Amendment (Resolution No. 9566), 

the Final Environmental Impact Report (Resolution No. 9564) and a General Plan Amendment (Resolution No. 9566) 
for the Russell Ranch Project. The approved specific plan amendment (SPA) reduced the FPASP residential area by 

approximately 17.8 acres and 264 dwelling units and reduced the commercial, office park/industrial and mixed-use 

area by approximately 59.5 acres and 0.65 million square feet of potential building area. 

• On September 22, 2015, the Folsom City Council approved the Westland/Eagle Specific Plan Amendment, an 

Amendment to the Folsom General Plan (Resolution No. 9655) and an Addendum to the Final Environmental 

Impact Report/Environment Impact Statement (Resolution No. 9654) for the Westland/Eagle Project. The 
approved SPA increased the residential dwelling unit count by 889 units and decreased the amount of 
commercial, office park/industrial and mixed-use area by approximately 82.5 acres and 1.4 million square feet of 

potential building area. 

• On May 24, 2016, the Folsom City Council approved the Hillsborough Specific Plan Amendment (Resolution No. 
9763), an Amendment to the Folsom General Plan (Resolution No. 9762), and an Addendum to the Final 

Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Impact Statement (Resolution No. 9761) for the Hillsborough Project. 
The approved SPA includes 394 additional housing units with about 65 additional acres of residential uses, 

approximately 49 fewer acres of public/quasi-public uses, approximately 16 acres less open space, approximately 5 

additional acres of park space, and approximately 4 fewer acres of community commercial land uses. 

• On June 28, 2016, the Folsom City Council approved the Carr Trust Specific Plan Amendment and General Plan 

Amendment (Resolution No. 9789) and an Addendum to the Final Environmental Impact Report/Environmental 

Impact Statement (Resolution No. 9788) for the Carr Trust Project. The approved SPA decreased the residential 

dwelling unit count by 28 units by modifying the land use designation from medium low density residential to 

single family high density residential. 

• On June 28, 2016, the Folsom City Council approved the Folsom Heights Specific Plan Amendment and an 
Amendment to the Folsom General Plan (Resolution No. 9785) and an Addendum to the Final Environmental 

Impact Report/Environmental Impact Statement (Resolution No. 9784) for the Folsom Heights Project. The 

approved SPA did not change the number of dwelling units; however, the residential density was decreased, and 

the amount of general commercial was reduced by 23 acres. 

• On June 28, 2016, the Folsom City Council approved the Broadstone Estates Specific Plan Amendment and an 

Amendment to the Folsom General Plan (Resolution No. 9787) and an Addendum to the Final Environmental 

Impact Report/Environmental Impact Statement (Resolution No. 9786) for the Broadstone Estates Project. The 

approved SPA would eliminate the industrial office space and general commercial land uses (10.5 acres and 13.3 

acres, respectively), would increase the single-family residential land use by approximately 21 acres and 71 

additional dwelling units, and would increase the open space area by 2.7 acres. 

1-4 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 322

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Introduction and Project History 

• On March 10, 2020, the Folsom City Council approved the Toll Brothers Specific Plan Amendment and an Amendment 
to the Folsom General Plan and an Addendum to the Final Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Impact 

Statement (Resolution No. 10400) for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch Master Planned Community. The approved 
SPA allowed for the reallocation of residential and park land use designations within the FPASP area. The SPA did not 

change the number of dwelling units or total park acreage in the FPASP area. 

As mentioned above, several projects proposed in the FPASP area were approved under the adopted FPASP and 

were determined to be exempt from CEQA. The Mangini Ranch Phase 1 Tentative Map, approved on June 25, 2015, 

was consistent with existing plans and zoning and therefore was eligible for an exemption from CEQA review under 

Government Code section 65457 and CEQA Guidelines section 15182. Similarly, the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Tentative 

Map, approved February 13, 2018, was also consistent with existing plans and zoning and therefore was eligible for an 

exemption from CEQA review under Government Code section 65457 and CEQA Guidelines section 15182. 

The EIR/EIS was prepared at the program "first-tier" level of environmental review consistent with the requirements of 

CEQA Sections 15152 and 15168. The program-level analysis considered the broad environmental impacts of the 

overall specific plan. In addition, the EIR/EIS also included a detailed analysis of specific topic areas beyond the 

program level, including: Aesthetics; Cultural Resources; Geology, Soils, Minerals, and Paleontological Resources; 

Hazards and Hazardous Materials; and Land Use Planning and Agricultural Resources. The EIR/EIS acknowledged that 

development of the FPASP area would occur in multiple phases in an undetermined order. As those phases are 

proposed, such as the Alder Creek Apartments application, they would be evaluated to determine whether the 

entitlements/actions proposed fall within the scope of the approved EIR/EIS and incorporate all applicable 

performance standards and mitigation measures identified therein. Should the subsequent development phases not 

be consistent with the approved FPASP, additional environmental review through the streamlining provisions of 

CEQA may be warranted (CEQA Guidelines Section 15162 through 15164). 

The FPASP was updated in 2018 to include all the various approved plan amendments and mapping modifications 

made since the first approval in 2011. As updated, the FPASP provides for additional residential development, up to a 

total of 11,461 housing units. As of October 2020, approximately 739 building permits have been issued and 510 home 

sales have been closed. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 1-5 

Page 323

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Introduction and Project History 

This page intentionally left blank. 

1-6 

Ascent Environmental 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 324

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Project Description 

2 PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

2. 1 PROJECT OVERVIEW 
The applicant submitted an entitlement application which includes a General Plan Amendment, Specific Plan 

Amendment, and a Planned Development Permit for the Alder Creek Apartments project. The project consists of a 265-

unit medium high-density luxury apartment complex located on Parcel 82B-1 and Parcel 151 of the FPASP, totaling 10.8 

acres. Parcel 82B-1 is currently designated as Multi-Family Low Density (MLD); therefore, a General Plan Amendment 
and Specific Plan Amendment would be required to change the land use/zoning category to Multi-Family High Density 

(MHD). Parcel 151 is designated as MHD under the approved FPASP and would not require any changes. 

The project also includes changes to three other parcels in the FPASP to retain the same number of dwelling units 

within the FPASP area. The project would change the number of units allocated to mixed-use parcels in the Town 

Center and in Mangini Ranch. The number of units allocated to Parcel 158 would decrease by 76 units, from 150 units 

to 74 units; the number of units allocated to Parcel 74 would decrease by 75 units, from 132 units to 57 units; and the 
number of units allocated to Parcel 148 would increase by 89 units, from 61 units to 150 units. These changes would 

result in an overall increase of 120 units multi-family high density units and a reduction of 58 multi-family low density 

units and 62 mixed-use units. No increase in unit development or land use acreages for the total FPASP would occur 

with implementation of the project. The proposed changes are described in further detail in Section 2.5, "Summary of 

Proposed Amendments to the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan," below. 

2.2 PROJECT LOCATION 
The project is in the northeastern portion of the FPASP area, which is located within Folsom, south of U.S. 50 and 

north of White Rock Road, between Prairie City Road and the El Dorado County line (Figure 2-1). The project affects a 

total of 32.3 acres, consisting of the 10.8-acre Alder Creek Apartments site and the land use reallocation sites totaling 

26.5 acres. 

The Alder Creek Apartments site is in the Mangini Phase 2 Subdivision project area of the FPASP area. The project 
site is bounded on the north by Alder Creek Parkway, on the east by Quail Meadow Way, on the south by Old Ranch 

Road, and on the west by Westwood Drive. 

The land use reallocations proposed under the project would affect Parcel 158 and Parcel 74, located in the Town 

Center District, and Parcel 148 located at the northwest corner of Mangini Parkway and Placerville Road. The Alder 

Creek Apartments site and the land use reallocation sites are shown in Figure 2-2. 

2.3 EXISTING SETTING 
The project site is currently undeveloped grassland and was previously used for cattle grazing. The topography of the 

site consists of gently rolling hills with slopes varying between O percent and 15 percent and surface elevations 

ranging between about 430 and 450 feet relative to mean sea level. The area directly west of the site, across 

Westwood Drive, is currently being developed to construct single-family residential units, as proposed under the 

FPASP. The FPASP includes the development of residential, public/quasi-public, and park uses to the north, east, and 

south of the site. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 2-7 

Page 325

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Project Description 

SUTTER 
COUNTY 

J - - ........1 

I _J 
__ J __ ------ .. _ 

* Project Location 
_ _ _ Folsom South of U.S. 50 

I: - - I Specific Plan Area Boundary 

O~"'iiiiiiiiiiii
3
~~~

6 
Miles ~ 

ESRI Ocean Base 
18010133.01 GIS 005 
., • ... a 

PLACER COUNTY 

r 
f 

• ' Folsom EL DORADO COUNTY 
_____ \ Lake 

- • --. -./,\ El Dorado 
Hills ~------ -~ 

Project Location 
Folsom 

SACRAMENTO COUNTY 

\ 

\ 

\ ./11' 

Rancho 

--~fffibs:=~"""'~Murieta 

\ 
, ~ ~ 

,r•-·- .t._,..r' 

AMADOR COUNTY 

lone 

--, SAN JOAQUIN 
✓ COUNTY 

Ascent Environmental 

Source: adapted by Ascent Environmental in 2020 

Figure 2-1 

2-8 

Regional Location 

City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 326

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental 

_____ _._ .. ---

Reallocatio11 Sites 

Project Area 

_ _ _ Folsom South of U.S. 50 

l: - - I Specific Plan Area Boundary 

0 2,000 4,000 
Feet 

2019 Goo,Jle Ea r th Imagery 
18010133.01 GIS OOG 

Source: adapted by Ascent Environmental in 2020 

Figure 2-2 Project Vicinity 

City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

.. 

ProJect Description 

2-9 

Page 327

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Project Description Ascent Environmental 

2.4 FPASP AND PROJECT OBJECTIVES 
The FPASP's objectives listed below, as described in the Draft EIR/EIS for the FPASP (City of Folsom 2010:1-7), 
continue to be applicable to the project: 

1. Be consistent with the City's General Plan and implement Sacramento Area Council of Governments Smart 
Growth Principles. 

2. Expand the City's boundaries based on the ultimate boundaries of development that the City can reasonably 
control and service, and do so in a manner that would foster orderly urban development and discourage 
leapfrog development and urban sprawl. 

3. Annex those parcels of land adjacent to the City limit and within the City's Sphere of Influence whose 
development could have significant visual, traffic, public service, and environmental impacts on the City so that 
the City may influence the ultimate development of those parcels. 

4. Provide a large-scale mixed-use and mixed-density residential housing development within the City, south of U.S. SO. 

5. Develop several distinct neighborhoods within the project site, connected by a substantial open space area and 
recreational trail network. 

6. Provide neighborhood- and regional-serving retail areas within the project site. 

7. Provide a mix of housing types within the project site to diversify the City's housing stock. 

8. Provide a combined high school/middle school and the appropriate elementary schools on-site sufficient to meet 
the needs of the project. 

9. Provide the appropriate number and size of on-site community and neighborhood parks sufficient to meet the 
needs of the project. 

10. Generate positive fiscal impacts for the City through development within the project site. 

11. Secure a sufficient and reliable water supply consistent with the requirements of Measure W and objectives of the 
Water Forum Agreement to support planned development within the SPA, which the City estimates to be 5,600 
acre-feet per year. 

12. Construct the necessary water supply delivery and treatment infrastructure to ensure the safe and reliable 
delivery of up to 5,600 acre-feet per year to the FPASP. 

2.5 SUMMARY OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE FOLSOM PLAN 
AREA SPECIFIC PLAN 

The project proposes to change MLD land use locations to allow for the development of a single 10.8-acre MHD site. 
The project would transfer unutilized residential units to other sites in the FPASP designated for mixed-use. The land 
use designation for Parcel 82-B1 would change from MLD to MHD. All other land use designations would be 
preserved; however, the number of allocated units would change. The following sections describe these changes in 
further detail. In addition, proposed changes to land uses in the FPASP are shown in Figure 2-3, below. 

2-10 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 328

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental 

I 
I 
I 
I 

\ 

Project Description 

74 
82-B1~ 

148~ 

~ _;_--~--------------~ 
,/~ LegendGanerel Plan lend use/ Specific Plan land use) ...,.<A'P,.,. 

I 
I 
I 
I 
\ 

_,,.. D SF/SP-SF O cc,sP-cc 

-------~~~'F ----- O sFHD/SP-SFHD OGctsP-Gc 

1
~-----------~ 0 MLD/SP-MLD RC/SP-RC 

.... ----- ~ • MMD/SP-MMD [2;j PQP/SP-PQP 
- P/SP-P 

DostsP-os 

~ TDR only parcels 
APPROVED 

PROPOSED 

Source: Image produced and provided by McKay & Somps in 2020 

74 

I 
I 

Figure 2-3 Proposed General Plan/Specific Plan Amendment 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

82-B1 

Savamah Pai1twav 

148 ~ 

[7 I 
0 3200 ~ 

FEET~ 
1600 

18010133.01 GRX 001 

2-11 

Page 329

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Project Description Ascent Environmental 

2.5.1 Changes to Section 4: Land Use 
The project would result in land use changes to the approved FPASP. The following tables provide detailed 

breakdowns of the land uses on the Alder Creek Apartments site and the remaining reallocation sites as follows: 

• Table 2-1 provides a summary of land uses as identified in the current approved FPASP. 

• Table 2-2 provides a summary of the land uses proposed under the FPASP amendment. 

• Table 2-3 shows the proposed changes in acreage of planned land uses and resulting changes in the number of 
dwelling units and residents that would occur in the entire FPASP area under the FPASP amendment. 

Table 2-1 Adopted FPASP Land Use Summary for Areas Affected by the Project 

Land Use 

Multi-Family Low Density (MLD) 

Multi-Family High Density (MHD) 

Subtotal Alder Creek Apartments Site 

Mixed Use (MU) 

Subtotal Area Outside of Alder Creek 
Apartments Site 

Total Project Area 

Gross Area 
(Acres) %of Site Density Range 

(du/ac) 

Alder Creek Apartments Site 

5.0 13.4% 7 to 12 

5.8 15.5% 20 to 30 

10.8 28.9% --
Area Outside of Alder Creek Apartments 

26.5 71.2% 9 to 30 

26.5 71.2% -
37.2 100% --

Notes: Numbers may not sum exactly because of small rounding errors. 

DU = dwelling units; du/ac = dwelling units per acre 

Target DU1 

58 

145 

203 

343 

343 

546 

Percentage of Projected 
Allocated Units Population2 

10.6% 113 

26.6% 281 

37.2% 394 

62.8% 665 

62.8% 665 

100.0% 1,059 

1 Target dwelling unit allocation for each land use is a planning estimate. Actual total dwelling units for each land use may be higher or lower as 
long as the total for each land use falls within the specified density range and the total residential unit count does not exceed the FPASP area 
maximum of 11,230 dwelling units. 

2 Population calculated using 1.94 persons per multi-family unit. 

Source: MacKay & Somps 2020. Adapted by Ascent Environmental 2020 

Table 2-2 Proposed FPASP Land Use Summary for Areas Affected by the Project 

Gross Area Density Range 
land Use % of Site Target DU1 

(Acres) (du/ac) 

Alder Creek Apartments Site 

Multi-Family High Density (MHD) 10.8 28.9% 20 to 30 

Subtotal Alder Creek Apartments Site 10.8 28.9% --
Area Outside of Alder Creek Apartments 

Mixed Use (MU) 26.5 71.2% 9 to 30 

Subtotal Area Outside of Alder Creek 
26.5 71.2% -Apartments Site 

Total Project Area 37.2 100% --
Notes: Numbers may not sum exactly because of small rounding errors. 

DU = dwelling units; du/ac = dwelling units per acre 

265 

265 

281 

281 

546 

Percentage of 
Allocated Units 

48.5% 

48.5% 

51.5% 

51.5% 

100.0% 

Projected 
Population2 

514 

514 

545 

545 

1,059 

1 Target dwelling unit allocation for each land use is a planning estimate. Actual total dwelling units for each land use may be higher or lower as 

long as the total for each land use falls within the specified density range and the total residential unit count does not exceed the FPASP area 
maximum of 11,230 dwelling units. 

Source: MacKay & Somps 2020. Adapted by Ascent Environmental 2020 

2-12 

City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 330

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Project Description 

Table 2-3 Summary of Proposed Changes to FPASP Land Uses and Projected Population 

Land Use Gross Area (Acres) 

Multi-Family Low Density (MLD) -5.0 

Multi-Family High Density (MHD) +5.0 

Mixed Use (MU) +0.0 

Total Project 0 
Note: Numbers may not sum exactly because of small rounding errors. 

Source: MacKay & Somps 2020. Adapted by Ascent Environmental 2020 

Dwelling Units Prqjected Population 

-58 -113 

+120 +233 

-62 -120 

0 0 

At the Alder Creek Apartments site, the project would change the existing MLD land use designation to MHD, 
thereby decreasing the MLD land use designation by approximately 5 acres, increasing the MHD land use 
designation by approximately 5 acres, and increasing the number of dwelling units by 62 units. To offset this increase 
in units at the Alder Creek Apartments site, reallocation sites located outside of the Alder Creek Apartments site 
would receive a change in allocated units, resulting in a reduction of 62 units on mixed-use parcels. 

2.6 PROJECT CONSTRUCTION 
Although the project includes a General Plan Amendment and Specific Plan Amendment for areas outside of Alder 
Creek Apartments site, these areas are not currently proposed for development. The only construction proposed at 
this time would occur at the 10.8-acre Alder Creek Apartments site. 

Construction of the Alder Creek Apartments site is currently anticipated to occur over the course of twenty-two 
months, beginning in mid-2021. Construction would occur between 7 a.m. and 7 p.m. Monday through Sunday. 
During peak construction, up to 250 construction workers would be on-site. Anticipated construction equipment 

would include scrapers, skid steers, forklifts, generators, backhoes etc. 

Mass grading of the Alder Creek Apartments site was included in the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Subdivision grading 
plans, previously approved by the City. No additional grading is anticipated. 

2.7 REQUIRED DISCRETIONARY ACTIONS 

2. 7.1 Lead Agency 
The City of Folsom is the Lead Agency for this project and is responsible for approving any amendments to the general 
and specific plans. Table 2-4 shows the entitlements, approvals and permits that would be required to develop the 

proposed project. The entitlements identified in the table are under consideration as part of this Addendum. 

Table 2-4 Entitlements, Approvals and Permits 

Entitlement/Approval or Pennit Needed Agency 

Planned Development Permit Folsom City Council 

General Plan (Land Use) Amendment Folsom City Council 

Specific Plan (Rezone) Amendment Folsom City Council 

Minor Administrative Modification Folsom Community Development Director 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 2-13 

Page 331

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Project Description Ascent Environmental 

2.7.2 Responsible Agencies 
In addition to the list of entitlements, approvals and/or permits identified in Table 2-4 above that must be obtained 
from the City, the following approvals, consultations, and/or permits may be required from other agencies before 
physical development of the site either individually or as an element of overall development within the FPASP. 
However, none of the entitlements listed below would be required before consideration of this Addendum. 

FEDERAL ACTIONS/PERMITS 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers: Department of the Army permit under Section 404 of the Clean Water Act (CWA) for 
discharges of dredge or fill material into waters of the U.S. consultation and for impacts on cultural resources 
pursuant to Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act. Consultation for impacts on federally listed species 
pursuant to Section 7 of the Endangered Species Act (ESA). 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency: concurrence with Section 404 CWA permit. 

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service: ESA consultation and issuance of incidental-take authorization for the take of federally 
listed endangered and threatened species. 

STATE ACTIONS/PERMITS 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife, Sacramento Valley--Central Sierra Region: California Endangered Species 
Act (CESA) consultation and issuance of take authorization (if needed) (California Fish and Game Code Section 2081), 
streambed alteration agreement (California Fish and Game Code Section 1602), and protection of raptors (California 
Fish and Game Code Section 3503.5). 

Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board (Region 5): National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) construction stormwater permit (Notice of Intent to proceed under General Construction Permit) for 
disturbance of more than 1 acre; discharge permit for stormwater; general order for dewatering; and Section 401 
CWA certification or waste discharge requirements; Clean Water Act, Section 401 Water Quality Certification; NPDES 
permit coverage for hydrostatic testing of pipeline (coverage expected under General Order for Low Threat 
Discharges to Surface Water). 

California Department of Public Health: approval of an amendment to the City's Public Water System Permit. 

REGIONAL AND LOCAL ACTIONS/PERMITS 
Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District: authority to construct (for devices that emit air 
pollutants), health risk assessment, and Air Quality Management Plan consistency determination. 

2-14 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 332

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



3 ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST FOR 
SUPPLEMENTAL ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

3.1 EXPLANATION OF CHECKLIST EVALUATION CATEGORIES 
The purpose of this checklist is to evaluate the categories in terms of any "changed condition" (i.e., changed 
circumstances, project changes, or new information of substantial importance) that may result in environmental 
impact significance conclusions different from those found in the 2011 EIR. The row titles of the checklist include the 
full range of environmental topics, as presented in Appendix G of the State CEQA Guidelines, as updated December 
28, 2018. The column titles of the checklist have been modified from the Appendix G presentation to help answer the 
questions to be addressed pursuant to CEQA Section 21166 and State CEQA Guidelines Section 15162. A "no" answer 
does not necessarily mean that there are no potential impacts relative to the environmental category, but rather that 
there is no change in the condition or status of the impact because it was previously analyzed and adequately 
addressed with mitigation measures in the EIR/EIS. For instance, the environmental categories might be answered 
with a "no" in the checklist because the impacts associated with the proposed project were adequately addressed in 
the EIR/EIS, and the environmental impact significance conclusions of the EIR/EIS remain applicable. The purpose of 
each column of the checklist is described below. 

3. 1. 1 Where Impact was Analyzed 
This column provides a cross-reference to the pages of the EIR/EIS where information and analysis may be found 
relative to the environmental issue listed under each topic. Unless otherwise specified, all references point to the Draft 
EIR/EIS document. 

3.1.2 Do Proposed Changes Involve New Significant Impacts? 
The significance of the changes proposed to the approved FPASP, as it is described in the certified FPASP EIR/EIS is 
indicated in the columns to the right of the environmental issues. 

3.1.3 Any New Circumstances Involving New or Substantially More 
Severe Significant Impacts? 

Pursuant to Section 15162(a)(2) of the CEQA Guidelines, this column indicates whether there have been changes to 
the project site or the vicinity (circumstances under which the project is undertaken) that have occurred subsequent 
to the prior environmental documents, which would result in the current project having new significant environmental 
impacts that were not considered in the prior environmental documents or having substantial increases in the 
severity of previously identified significant impacts. 

3.1.4 Any New Information Requiring New Analysis or Verification? 
Pursuant to Section 15162(a)(3)(A-D) of the CEQA Guidelines, this column indicates whether new information of 
substantial importance which was not known and could not have been known with the exercise of reasonable 
diligence at the time the previous environmental documents were certified as complete is available, requiring an 
update to the analysis of the previous environmental documents to verify that the environmental conclusions and 
mitigation measures remain valid. If the new information shows that: (A) the project will have one or more significant 
effects not discussed in the prior environmental documents; or (B) that significant effects previously examined will be 
substantially more severe than shown in the prior environmental documents; or (C) that mitigation measures or 
alternatives previously found not to be feasible would in fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 3-1 

Page 333

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist for Supplemental Environmental Review Ascent Environmental 

significant effects or the project, but the project proponents decline to adopt the Mitigation Measure or alternative; 
or (D) that mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably different from those analyzed in the prior 

environmental documents would substantially reduce one or more significant effects on the environment, but the 
project proponents decline to adopt the Mitigation Measure or alternative, the question would be answered 'Yes' 

requiring the preparation of a subsequent EIR or supplement to the EIR. However, if the additional analysis 
completed as part of this Environmental Checklist Review finds that the conclusions of the prior environmental 

documents remain the same and no new significant impacts are identified, or identified significant environmental 

impacts are not found to be substantially more severe, the question would be answered 'No' and no additional EIR 

documentation (supplement to the EIR or subsequent EIR) would be required. 

Notably, where the only basis for preparing a subsequent EIR or a supplement to an EIR is a new significant impact or a 
substantial increase in the severity of a previously identified impact, the need for the new EIR can be avoided if the project 

applicant agrees to one or more mitigation measures that can reduce the significant effect(s) at issue to less than significant 
levels. (See River Valley Preservation Project v. fvfetropolitan Transit Development Board (1995) 37 Cal.App.4th 154, 168.) 

3.1.5 Do Prior Environmental Documents and Mitigation 
Address/Resolve Impacts? 

This column indicates whether the prior environmental documents and adopted CEQA Findings provide mitigation 

measures to address effects in the related impact category. In some cases, the mitigation measures have already 

been implemented. A "yes" response will be provided in either instance. If "NA" is indicated, this Environmental 

Checklist Review concludes that there was no impact, or the impact was less-than-significant and, therefore, no 
mitigation measures are needed. 

3.2 DISCUSSION AND MITIGATION SECTIONS 

3.2.1 Discussion 
A discussion of the elements of the checklist is provided under each environmental category to clarify the answers. 

The discussion provides information about the particular environmental issue, how the project relates to the issue, 

and the status of any mitigation that may be required or that has already been implemented. 

3.2.2 Mitigation Measures 
Applicable mitigation measures from the prior environmental review that would apply to the proposed amendment 
are listed under each environmental category. New mitigation measures are included, if needed. 

3.2.3 Conclusions 
A discussion of the conclusion relating to the need for additional environmental documentation is contained in each section. 

3.2.4 Acronyms Used in Checklist Tables 
Acronyms used in the Environmental Checklist tables and discussions include: 

EIR 

EIS 

FEIR 

MM 
NA 

3-2 

Environmental Impact Report 
Environmental Impact Statement 

Final Environmental Impact Report 

Mitigation Measure 

not applicable 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 334

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental 

4 ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 

4.1 AESTHETICS 

Environmental Issue Area 

1. Aesthetics. Would the Project: 

Where Impact Was 
Analyzed in the 

EIR/EIS. 

a. Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic Setting pp. 3A.1-1 to 
vista? 3A.1-20; 

b. Substantially damage scenic resources, 
including but not limited to, trees, rock 
outcroppings, and historic buildings within a 
state scenic highway? 

c. Substantially degrade the existing visual 
character or quality of the site and its 
surroundings? (Public views are those that 
are experienced from publicly accessible 
vantage points.) If the project is in an 
urbanized area, would the project conflict 
with applicable zoning and other regulations 
governing scenic quality? 

d. Create a new source of substantial light or 
glare which would adversely affect day or 
nighttime views in the area? 

4. 1.1 Discussion 

REGULATORY SETTING 

Impacts 3A.1-1 

Setting p. 3A.1-20; 
Impact 3A.1-2 

Setting pp. 3A.1-1 to 
3A.1-20; 

Impacts 3A.1-3 and 
3A.1-4 

Setting p. 3A.1-22 
Impacts 3A.1-5 and 

3A.1-6 

Do Any New 
Circumstances Involve 
New or Substantially 

More Severe Significant 
Impacts? 

No 

No 

No 

No 

Any New 
Information 

Requiring New 
Analysis or 

Verification? 

No 

No 

No 

No 

Environmental Checklist 

Do Prior Environmental 
Documents Mitigations 

Address/Resolve 
Impacts? 

Yes, but impact 
remains significant and 

unavoidable 

Yes, issue addressed 
but mitigation is still 

not feasible 

Yes, but impact 
remains significant and 

unavoidable 

Yes 

The City has completed a general plan update since certification of the EIR/EIS in 2011. The Folsom City Council 

approved the Folsom 2035 General Plan on August 28, 2018. The following goals and policies of the Folsom 2035 

General Plan are applicable to the project but do not constitute new information of substantial importance under 
CEQA Guidelines section 15162. 

Natural and Cultural Resources Element 
GOAL NCR 2.1 Allow residents to enjoy views of the hills, lakes, river, and habitats that make Folsom such a beautiful 

place to live. 

• NCR 2.1.1 Maintain Scenic Corridors: The City shall protect views along identified scenic corridors. 

• NCR 2.1.2 Complementary Development: Through the planned development permit process, require new 

development to be located and designed to visually complement the natural environment along Folsom Lake, 

the American River, nearby hillsides, and major creek corridors such as Humbug, Willow, Alder, and Hinkle. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-3 

Page 335

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental 

• NCR 2.1.3 Light Pollution Reduction: The City shall minimize obtrusive light by limiting outdoor lighting that is 
misdirected, excessive, or unnecessary, and requiring light for development to be directed downward to 

minimize overspill and glare onto adjacent properties and reduce vertical glare. 

No other substantial change in the environmental and regulatory settings related to aesthetics, described in the 
EIR/EIS Section 3A.1 Aesthetics - Land, has occurred since certification of the EIR/EIS in 2011. 

IMPACT DISCUSSION 
The FPASP EIR/EIS examined the potential impacts to aesthetics due to the development of the FPASP. The project 
would allow for construction of the same total number of units on the same total acreage of the FPASP and would 
only involve a shift in the permitted residential densities between parcels upon which the FPASP already 

contemplated some level of multi-family residential development. The project does not introduce any new or unique 
visual features and would not result in any change in the nature of development analyzed in the FPASP, with each 

affected parcel maintaining a multi-family residential or mixed use designation, uses already analyzed in the FPASP 

EIR/EIS. No new circumstances or project changes have occurred nor has any new information been found requiring 
new analysis or verification. Finally, although maximum permitted densities will shift within the FPASP, the project 

would occur within the same development footprint evaluated in the FPASP EIR/EIS. Accordingly, the project will not 

create any new or substantially more severe impacts to scenic vistas not previously analyzed in the FPASP EIR/EIS. 

MITIGATION MEASURES 
The following mitigation measures were referenced in the EIR/EIS analysis and would continue to remain applicable if 

project was approved. 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.1-4: Screen Construction Staging Areas 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.1-5: Establish and Require Conformance to Lighting Standards and Prepare and Implement a 

Lighting Plan 

The EIR/EIS concluded that alteration of views of the FPASP area from surrounding roadways, as well as views from 
within the FPASP area, as a result of urbanization would result in significant and unavoidable impacts and that no 

additional mitigation measures are available to reduce or eliminate the impacts. This conclusion would not change with 

implementation of the project. 

CONCLUSION 
No substantial changes in circumstances or the project have occurred nor has any new information of substantial 

importance been identified requiring new analysis or verification. Therefore, the conclusions of the EIR/EIS remain 
valid and approval of the project would not result in new or substantially more severe significant impacts to 

aesthetics. 

4-4 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 336

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental 

4.2 AGRICULTURE AND FOREST RESOURCES 

Where Impact Was 
Environmental Issue Area Analyzed in the 

EIR/EIS. 

2. Agriculture and Forestry Resources. Would the project: 

a. 

b. 

C. 

d. 

e. 

Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, 
or Farmland of Statewide Importance 
(Farmland), as shown on the maps prepared 
pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and 
Monitoring Program of the California 
Resources Agency, to non-agricultural use? 

Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural 
use, or a Williamson Act contract? 

Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause 
rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public 
Resources Code section 12220(g)), 
timberland (as defined by Public Resources 
Code section 4526), or timberland zoned 
Timberland Production (as defined by 
Government Code section 51104(g))? 

Result in the loss of forest land or 
conversion of forest land to non-forest 
land? 

Involve other changes in the existing 
environment which, due to their location or 
nature, could result in conversion of 
Farmland, to non-agricultural use or 
conversion of forest land to non-forest use? 

4.2.1 Discussion 

REGULATORY SETTING 

Setting pp. 3A.10-2, 
3A.10-5, 3A.10-6 

No Impact 

Setting pp. 3A.10-2 
to 3A.10-4, 3A.10-6, 

3A.10-7 
Impacts 3A.10-3 and 

3A.10-4 

Not addressed, 
criterion was not 

part of Appendix G 
when EIR/EIS was 

certified 

Not addressed, 
criterion was not 

part of Appendix G 
when EIR/EIS was 

certified 

Not addressed, 
criterion was not 

part of Appendix G 
when EIR/EIS was 

certified 

Any New Circumstances 
Involving New 

Significant Impacts or 
Substantially More 

Severe Impacts? 

No 

No 

No 

No 

No 

Environmental Checklist 

Any New 
Do Prior Environmental 

Information 
Documents Mitigations 

Requiring New 
Address/Resolve 

Analysis or 
Impacts? 

Verification? 

No NA 

No Yes, but impact 
remains significant and 

unavoidable 

No NA 

No NA 

No NA 

The City has completed a general plan update since certification of the EIR/EIS in 2011. The Folsom City Council 

approved the Folsom 2035 General Plan on August 28, 2018. The general plan does not include any policies 
applicable to Agriculture and Forest Resources related to the project. No substantial change in the environmental and 

regulatory settings related to Agriculture and Forest Resources, described in EIR/EIS Section 3A.10 Land Use and 
Agricultural Resources, has occurred since certification of the EIR/EIS in 2011. 

No substantial changes in the environmental and regulatory settings related to Agriculture and Forest Resources has 

occurred since certification of the FPASP EIR/EIS, Section 3A.10 "Land Use and Agricultural Resources - Land." While the 

current application changes the density of residential land uses, it does not change the development footprint. These 

changes do not constitute a change in circumstances regarding agriculture and forest resources. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-5 

Page 337

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental 

IMPACT DISCUSSION 
The project would not involve converting Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance to 
a non-agricultural use. The project does not include any of the land within the FPASP area under Williamson Act 
contract, as referenced in the EIR/EIS, and is not designated for agricultural uses. The site does not contain any forest 
or timberlands. The project would be within the same development footprint from what was analyzed in the FPASP 
EIR/EIS. 

MITIGATION MEASURES 
There were no mitigation measures included in the EIR/EIS for this topic. No additional mitigation measures are required 
for the project for this issue. 

CONCLUSION 
No substantial changes in circumstances or the project have occurred nor has any new information of substantial 
importance been identified requiring new analysis or verification. Therefore, the conclusions of the certified EIR/EIS 
remain valid and implementation of the project would not result in any new significant impacts associated with 
agriculture and forest resources. 

4-6 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 338

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental 

4.3 AIR QUALITY 

Environmental Issue Area 

3. Air Quality. Would the project: 

a. Conflict with or obstruct 
implementation of the applicable air 
quality plan? 

b. 

C. 

Result in a cumulatively considerable 
net increase of any criteria pollutant 
for which the project region is non
attainment under an applicable federal 
or state ambient air quality standard? 

Expose sensitive receptors to 
substantial pollutant concentrations? 

d. Result in other emissions (e.g. those 
leading to odors) adversely affecting a 
substantial number of people? 

4.3.1 Discussion 

REGULATORY SETTING 

Where Impact Was 
Analyzed in the FPASP 

EIR/EIS. 

Setting p. 3A.2-2 to 3A.2-8; 
Impacts 3A.2-1, 
3A.2-2, 3A.2-3 

Setting p. 3A.2-2 to 3A.2-7; 
Cumulative analysis on p. 

4-22 to 4-23 

Setting p. 3A.2-7 to 3A.2-
10 and 3A.2-20 to 3A.2-23; 

Impact 3A.2-4; and 
Cumulative analysis on p. 

4-23 to 4-26 

Setting p. 3A.2-9; 
Impact 3A.2-6 

Any New Circumstances 
Involving New 

Significant Impacts or 
Substantially More 
Severe Impacts? 

No 

No 

No 

No 

Any New 
Information 

Requiring New 
Analysis or 

Verification? 

No 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Environmental Checklist 

Do Prior Environmental 
Documents' 
Mitigations 

Address/Resolve 
Impacts? 

Yes, but impact 
remains significant and 

unavoidable 

Yes, but impact 
remains significant and 

unavoidable 

Yes, mitigation has 
been updated 

Yes 

The City has completed a general plan update since certification of the EIR/EIS in 2011. The Folsom City Council 
approved the Folsom 2035 General Plan on August 28, 2018. The following goals and policies of the Folsom 2035 
General Plan are applicable to the project, but do not constitute new information of substantial importance under 
CEQA Guidelines section 15162. 

Natural and Cultural Resources Element 
GOAL NCR 3.1 Improve the air quality in Folsom by meeting State and Federal standards, minimizing public exposure 
to hazardous air pollutants, reducing particulate matter in the atmosphere, and minimizing odors. 

• NCR 3.1.1 Regional Cooperation: Coordinate with surrounding jurisdictions, the Sacramento Metropolitan Air 
Quality Management District (SMAQMD), California Air Resources Board (CARB), California Department of 
Transportation (Caltrans), and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency toward the development of a consistent 

and effective approach to the regional air pollution problem. 

• NCR 3.1.2 Coordinate on Review of Air Quality Impacts: Coordinate with CARB and SMAQMD to use consistent 
and accurate procedures in the review of projects which may have air quality impacts. Comments on the analysis 
shall be solicited from SMAQMD and CARB. 

• NCR 3.1.3 Reduce Vehicle Miles Traveled: Encourage efforts to reduce the amount of vehicle miles traveled 
(VMT). These efforts could include encouraging mixed-use development promoting a jobs/housing balance, and 
encouraging alternative transportation such as walking, cycling, and public transit. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-7 

Page 339

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental 

• NCR 3.1.4 Maintain Ambient Air Quality Standards: Work with CARB and SMAQMD to meet State and National 
ambient air quality standards in order to protect residents, regardless of age, culture, ethnicity, gender, race, 
socioeconomic status, or geographic location from the health effects of air pollution. 

• NCR 3.1.5 Emission Reduction Threshold for New Development: Require all new development projects that 
exceed SMAQMD's thresholds of significance to incorporate design, construction material, and/or other 

operational features that will result in a minimum of 15 percent reduction in emissions when compared to an 

"unmitigated baseline" project. 

• NCR 3.1.6 Sensitive Uses: Coordinate with SMAQMD in evaluating exposure of sensitive receptors to toxic air 
contaminants and odors and impose appropriate conditions on projects to protect public health and safety so as 
to comply with the requirements of SMAQMD for the exposure of sensitive receptors to toxic air contaminants 
and odors. 

No other substantial change in the environmental and regulatory settings related to Air Quality, described in EIR/EIS 

Sections 3A.2 and 38.2 under Air Quality, has occurred since certification of the EIR in 2011. The attainment status of 

the Sacramento Valley Air Basin continues to be nonattainment with respect to the National Ambient Air Quality 

Standards (NAAQS) for ozone. At the time of the EIR/EIS there was no California Ambient Air Quality Standards 

(CAAQS) for ozone. A CAAQS has since been established for ozone and the Sacramento Valley Air Basin is in 

nonattainment. The Sacramento Valley Air basin gained attainment status with respect to the annual CAAQS for 

particulate matter with an aerodynamic diameter of 2.5 micrometers or less (PM2 sl but continues to experience 

nonattainment with respect to the 24-hour NAAQS for PM2.s. The Sacramento Valley Air basin also gained attainment 

with regard to the CAAQS for particulate matter with an aerodynamic diameter of 10 micrometers or less (PM10) 

(SMAQMD 2017). There has also been no substantial change to SMAQMD's recommendation for evaluating the air 

quality impacts of proposed development projects (SMAQMD 2009). 

IMPACT DISCUSSION 

Short-Term, Construction-Related Emissions of Criteria Air Pollutants and Precursors 

Construction-Generated Mass Emissions 
As stated under Impact 3A.2-1 in the FPASP EIR/EIS, the mass emissions thresholds for oxides of nitrogen (NOx), 
particulate matter with an aerodynamic diameter of 2.5 microns or less (i.e., PM2.s), and PM with an aerodynamic 

diameter of 10 microns or less (i.e., PM10), as established by SMAQMD, were used to determine whether construction

generated emissions would conflict with implementation of SMAQMD's federal and State ozone attainment plans 

and/or contribute substantially or result in an exceedance of the NAAQS and CAAQS for ozone. To analyze construction 

emissions, the EIR/EIS assumed that the FPASP would be constructed at a consistent, linear rate over a 19-year period 

(2011-2030) and all construction phases were assumed to occur simultaneously over the course of a year. The analysis 

determined that maximum daily emissions of NOx generated by construction of the FPASP would exceed SMAQMD's 
mass emission threshold of 85 pounds per day (lb/day). Additionally, it was determined that construction emissions 

would result in or substantially contribute (at a level equal to or greater than 5 percent) to PM10 emissions 

concentrations (e.g., 2.5 µg/m3) and PM2.s concentrations (e.g., 50 µg/m3) that exceed the NAAQS or CAAQS. 

Construction of the Alder Creek Apartments site would be conducted over a period of 22 months, from July 2021 to 

April 2023, and would include site preparation, grading, and building construction. Emissions from construction 

worker commute trips and off-road construction equipment would result in exhaust emissions of NOx, ROG, and PM. 
Short-term construction-related emissions of criteria air pollutants and precursors, including ROG, NOx, carbon 

monoxide (CO), PM,o, and PM2.s were estimated using California Emissions Estimator Model (CalEEMod) Version 
2016.3.2 software, as recommended by SMAQMD. Table 4-1 shows the construction-generated emissions of criteria 
air pollutants and ozone precursors. 

4-8 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 340

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

Table 4-1 Summary of Maximum Daily Construction-Generated Emissions (Unmitigated) 

Year ROG Ob/day) NQ,Ob/day) CO Ob/day) 
Total PMio Total PM2.5 

Ob/day) 

2021 4.3 46 32 20 

2022 2.7 19 25 3.2 

2023 92 17 24 3.1 

SMAQMD Threshold 
None 85 

20 ppm 1-hour standard (23 mg/m3); 01 
of Significance 9 ppm 8-hour standard (10 mg/m3) 

1 If all best available control technologies/best management practices are applied, then 80 pounds per day and 14.6 tons per year. 

2 If all best available control technologies/best management practices are applied, then 82 pounds per day and 15 tons/year. 

Ob/day) 

12 

1.4 

1.3 

02 

Notes: ROG = reactive organic gases; NO,= oxides of nitrogen; CO = carbon monoxide; PM10 = particulate matter with an aerodynamic diameter 
of 10 micrometers or less; PM2 s = particulate matter with an aerodynamic diameter of 2.5 micrometers or less; SMAQMD = Sacramento 
Metropolitan Air Quality Management District; lb/day= pounds per day 

Source: SMAQMD 2009; CalEEMod Version 2016.3.2.; Data compiled by Ascent Environmental, Inc. 2020 

Construction of the Alder Creek Apartments project would result in a similar development area, and the same type of 
construction activity and construction-generated emissions, as previously evaluated in the FPASP EIR/EIS. As shown in 
Table 4-1, project construction at the Alder Creek Apartments site would not result in daily NO, emissions in excess of 

the SMAQMD 85 lb/day threshold. Regarding PM2.s and PM,o, unmitigated emissions would exceed SMAQMD's zero 
lb/day threshold. However, as described in more detail below, construction activities would include SMAQMD's 

enhanced dust control measures and additional mitigation measures to require higher tiered diesel engines. These 
measures, collectively, would represent best available technologies and reduce emissions below what is reported 
above in Table 4-1, which would also be below SMAQMD thresholds of 80 lb/day for PM10 and 82 lb/day for PM2_5. 

Construction-Generated Concentrations of PM10 Emissions 
The FPASP EIR/EIS provides a program-level analysis of construction-generated PM10 emissions under Impact 3A.2-1. 

Dispersion modeling was not performed for the program-level analysis because detailed information about grading 
activities and the locations and occupancy timing of future planned on-site receptors was not known at the time of 
writing the FPASP EIR/EIS. The FPASP EIR/EIS determined it would be likely that more than 15 acres of ground 
disturbance activity would occur in one day and that grading activities would be extensive; thus, construction

generated emissions of criteria air pollutants and precursors could violate or contribute substantially to an existing or 
projected air quality violation. These exceedances would conflict with SMAQMD's air quality planning efforts. 

Implementation of SMAQMD's Basic Construction Emission Control Practices, Enhanced Fugitive PM Dust Control 
Practices for Soil Disturbance Areas, and Enhanced Fugitive PM Dust Control Practices for Unpaved Roads, as 
required by Mitigation Measure 3A.2-1a of the FPASP EIR/EIS, would reduce PM10 concentrations generated during 
construction. Nonetheless, resultant PM10 concentrations could potentially exceed or substantially contribute to the 
CAAQS and NAAQS because the intensity of construction activity and the acreage of ground disturbance that could 
occur at any one point in time could be substantially high and/or take place near existing or future planned sensitive 

receptors (e.g., residents, schools). Therefore, the FPASP EIR/EIS concluded PM10 emissions associated with 
construction would be significant and unavoidable unless the results of a detailed project-level analysis, as required 
by Mitigation Measure 3A.2-1c, support another impact conclusion. Mitigation Measure 3A.2-1c requires a detailed 
project-level analysis, based on dispersion modeling, after project phasing has been determined and tentative maps 
and improvement plans have been prepared. 

In compliance with Mitigation Measure 3A.2-1c, detailed dispersion modeling of construction-generated PM,o 
(fugitive and exhaust) was performed in accordance the SMAQMD CEQA Guide, Chapter 3: Dispersion fvlodeling of 

Construction-Generated Pfv110 Emissions (SMAQMD 2009), to determine PM,o concentrations at nearby sensitive 
receptors resulting from the emissions of heavy-duty construction equipment, diesel generators, trucks operating on 
the Alder Creek Apartments site, and fugitive dust associated with the movement of material and equipment. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-9 

Page 341

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checkl ist Ascent Environmental 

Short-term construction-related mass emissions of PM,o were estimated using CalEEMod, as recommended by 
SMAQMD. See Table 4-1 above for a summary of all emissions. Construction of the Alder Creek Apartments site was 

assumed to begin in July 2021 and conclude in 2023, occurring over approximately 22 months. In accordance with 
SMAQMD guidance, maximum daily emissions of total PM,o were used for this analysis, obtained from the CalEEMod 
outputs. Dispersion modeling was conducted using the California Air Resources Board (CARB)-approved American 

Meteorological Society/Environmental Protection Agency Regulatory Model Improvement Committee modeling 
system (AERMOD) version 19191 (Lakes Environmental version 9.8.3), with a unit emission rate of 1.0 gram per second 

(g/s) for all modeled sources. AERMOD was set to calculate and output the maximum 24-hour concentrations, 
consistent with SMAQMD guidance, for the purpose of comparing PM,0 emissions to the 24-hour CAAQS for PM,o of 

50 micrograms per cubic meter (µg/m3) . Further, SMAQMD considers project-generated emissions of PM10 that are 
equal to or greater than 5 percent of the CAAQS a substantial contribution to the adverse air quality in the region. 

Therefore, construction-related project-generated emissions of PM10 that are equal to or exceed 2.5 µg/m3 would be 
considered significant. 

Based on the dispersion modeling, and implementation of enhanced fugitive PM dust control practices required by 

Mitigation Measure 3A.2-1a of the EIR/EIS, PM10 ground-level concentrations generated from construction of the 

Alder Creek Apartments site were estimated to be 12.7 µg/m3 at off-site locations. For dispersion model and emission 

rate calculation details and assumptions refer to Appendix A. Thus, the project could potentially result in a substantial 

contribution to the existing adverse air quality in the region. However, as previously described in the FPASP EIR/EIS, 

depending on specific construction fleet and daily construction activities, construction-related emissions may be lower 

than estimated here. Nonetheless, the project-generated emission levels would not be substantially different from those 

previously evaluated under the FPASP EIR/EIS and would not result in new or substantially more severe impacts related 

to PM10 emissions. 

long-Term, Operation-Related (Regional) Emissions of Criteria Air Pollutants and Precursor Emissions 
Impact 3A.2-2 of the FPASP EIR/EIS evaluated long-term operation (regional) emissions associated with area sources, 

such as natural gas emissions, landscaping, and applications of architectural coatings, as well as operational vehicle

exhaust emissions. Operation of the FPASP would exceed the SMAQMD-recommended threshold of 65 lb/day for 

ROG and NOx and would conflict with air quality planning efforts for ROG, NOx, PM10, and PM2.s. Mitigation Measure 

3A.2-2 would be required to implement all measures prescribed by the Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Air Quality 

Mitigation Plan to reduce operational air pollutant emissions. However, because the Air Quality Mitigation Plan was 

based on the standard Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) trip generation rates and the EIR/EIS analysis was 
based on a traffic demand forecasting model, the emission reduction achieved through the implementation of 

Mitigation Measure 3A.2-2 were overestimated and would not reduce ROG and NOx emissions to below the 

SMAQMD's significance threshold of 65 lb/day. As a result, the EIR/EIS concluded impacts related to operational

related emissions would be significant and unavoidable. 

In the FPASP EIR/EIS, operational emissions of criteria air pollutants and precursors were evaluated for the entire 

FPASP using the Urban Emissions Model (URBEMIS) 2007 version 9.2.4, which was the widely accepted emissions 

modeling tool at that time. URBEMIS has been superseded by the contemporary air quality modeling tool for use in 
CEQA analysis in California: CalEEMod. SMAQMD started recommending the use of CalEEMod to estimate emissions 

of land use development projects in April 2013. The new model uses robustly documented methods and increases 

accuracy in comparison to URBEMIS (SCAQMD et al. 2011). The new model does not constitute "new information" as 

defined in CEQA Guidelines Section 15162. In addition, a similar model for estimating criteria air pollutant and 

precursor emissions was available at the time of the EIR/EIS. 

Land use changes included under the project would result in a similar land-use intensity as previously evaluated in 

the FPASP EIR/EIS. The following land use types and quantities were adopted under the FPASP for the Alder Creek 

Apartments site: 

• Multi-Family Low Density (MLD): 58 dwelling units 

• Multi-Family High Density (MHD): 145 dwelling units 

4-10 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 342

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

The following land use types and quantities were adopted under the FPASP for the area outside the Alder Creek 
Apartments site: 

• Mixed Use (MU): 343 dwelling units 

The total project area includes 546 dwelling units per the adopted FPASP. 

Land use changes proposed as part of the project would result in the following land uses and densities for the Alder 
Creek Apartments site: 

• Multi-Family High Density (MHD): 265 dwelling units 

Land use changes proposed as part of the project would result in the following land uses and densities for the area 
outside the Alder Creek Apartments site: 

• Mixed Use (MU): 281 dwelling units 

The total project area would include 546 dwelling units per the proposed project. 

The project would result in a no net change in dwelling units, population, or gross FPASP area. 

In addition, several regulations, programs, plans, and policies related to the reduction of criteria air pollutants have 

been adopted since certification of the FPASP EIR/EIS. Namely, the 2019 Title 24 Part 6 Building Energy Efficiency 

Standards were adopted by the California Energy Commission (CEC) on May 9, 2018 and took effect on January 1, 

2020. CEC estimates that the combination of mandatory on-site renewable energy and prescriptively required energy 

efficiency features will result in new residential construction that uses 53 percent less energy than the 2016 standards. 

Compliance with these regulations, among others, would reduce air pollutants generated from operational sources, 

such as natural gas and vehicle-exhaust emissions. Therefore, project-generated ROG and NOx emissions are 

anticipated to be lower than the quantities previously evaluated in the FPASP EIR/EIS. 

The project would be subject to the emission reduction measures outlined in the Folsom Plan Area Specifi'c Plan Air 
Quality Mitigation Plan, as required by Mitigation Measure 3A.2-2 of the FPASP EIR/EIS. Because the project would 

not result in a higher land use intensity and would comply with mitigation measures that would reduce air pollutant 

emissions, this impact would be less than significant. Therefore, no new or substantially more severe air quality 

impacts would occur from criteria air pollutants or precursors as a result of the project. The conclusions of the FPASP 

EIR/EIS remain valid and no further analysis is required. 

Cumulatively Considerable Air Quality Impacts 
Pages 4-22 through 4-29 of the FPASP EIR/EIS evaluated cumulative air quality impacts of the FPASP, which includes 

those attributable to development occurring in the FPASP area under the adopted Specific Plan, i.e., exceedances of 
SMAQMD's significance criteria for NOx and PM10 would likely occur during construction and operational phases. The 

amount of emissions generated during construction and operation of the adopted FPASP would be substantial 

compared with other projects in the region, and would be cumulatively considerable and, therefore, significant. 

Measures 3A.2-1a, 3A.2-1b, and 3A.2-2, would minimize construction- and operation-related emissions, respectively, 

but not to less-than-significant levels. For these reasons, construction and operation occurring as part of the FPASP 

could result in or substantially contribute to a violation of ozone and PM10 air quality standards on a cumulative basis. 

The adopted FPASP would involve substantial development and would result in a cumulatively considerable 
incremental contribution to a significant cumulative long-term operational air quality impact. No additional mitigation 

is recommended. As discussed in (a) above, the project would not result in new or substantially more severe air 

quality impacts. Therefore, the conclusions of the FPASP EIR/EIS remain valid and no further analysis is required. 

The FPASP EIR/EIS also evaluated cumulative air quality impacts associated with localized CO concentrations from traffic 

congestion at buildout of the FPASP. This cumulative impact was found to be less than significant. The project is within 

the scope of this impact analysis, and cumulative air quality impacts for localized CO would also be less than significant. 

The conclusions of the FPASP EIR/EIS remain valid and no further analysis is required. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-11 

Page 343

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checkl ist Ascent Environmenta l 

Toxic Air Contaminant Concentrations 

Temporary, Short-Term Emissions from Construction Equipment 
Emissions of particulate exhaust from diesel-powered engines (DPM) including diesel-powered construction 

equipment were identified as a toxic air contaminant (TAC) by CARB in 1998. Impact 3A.2-4 of the FPASP EIR/EIS 

determined that DPM emissions generated during construction of the land uses on the FPASP site, including the 

project area, could expose nearby residents and schools to levels that exceed applicable standards as some phases of 

the development plan are built out while construction of other phases continues in other portions of the FPASP area. 

This would particularly be the case when some new residents occupy dwelling units while other land uses are still 
under construction and some residents may be exposed to DPM generated by construction activity in all directions at 

varying stages of construction. Because construction activities could expose sensitive receptors to levels of health risk 

that exceed applicable standards, the FPASP EIR/EIS determined this impact to be potentially significant. 

Mitigation Measure 3A.2-4a in the FPASP EIR/EIS requires applicants of all phases to develop a plan that reduces the 

exposure of sensitive receptors, including residents and school children, to construction-generated TACs. Each plan 

shall be developed by the applicant(s) in consultation with SMAQMD and each plan shall be submitted to the City for 
review and approval before the approval of any grading plans. While implementation of Mitigation Measure 3A.2-4a 

would lessen health-related risks associated with the use of off-road diesel-powered equipment during construction 

activity, exposure to construction-generated TAC emissions would not necessarily be reduced to less-than-significant 

levels and, therefore, the potential exposure of receptors to construction-generated TAC emissions was determined 
to be significant and unavoidable. 

A project-specific construction only health risk assessment was conducted to determine TAC exposure to nearby 

existing and planned sensitive receptors. Construction emissions of PM,0 (exhaust) were estimated using CalEEMod 

based on the anticipated construction schedule and the proposed land uses, as well as defaults in CalEEMod. The 

resulting PM,o (exhaust) emissions, assumed to represent DPM, were averaged over the duration of the entire 
construction period to determine the annual average DPM emission rate. 

Dispersion modeling was conducted using AERMOD version 19191 (Lakes Environmental version 9.8.3). To represent 

construction activity that moves throughout the Alder Creek Apartments site, volume sources were drawn at equal 

intervals over the entire anticipated disturbance area and modeling was conducted using a unit emission rate of 1.0 

gram per second (g/s), divided across all sources. This approach enabled the output files to be assigned appropriate 

emission rates to estimate cancer risk levels at each receptor location. The modeling included all standard regulatory 

default options, including the use of rural dispersion parameters and elevated terrain. 

Cancer risk at all receptor locations was calculated using CARB's Hotspots Analysis and Reporting Program Version 

19121 (HARP2). CARB developed HARP2 as a tool to implement risk assessments that incorporates requirements from 
the California Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment (OEHHA) Air Toxics Hot Spot Program Risk 
Assessment Guidelines: Guidance Manual for Preparation of Health Risk Assessments (OEHHA 2015). The cancer risk 

was estimated using the OEHHA derived calculation method for residential receptors and the exposure duration was 

adjusted in accordance with the anticipated construction schedule. The OEHHA derived method uses high-end 

exposure parameters for the top two exposure pathways and mean exposure parameters for the remaining pathways 
for cancer risk estimates. See Appendix A for all risk assessment assumptions/calculations and model output files. 

The analysis determined that construction at the Alder Creek Apartments site could result in levels of health risk that 
exceed applicable SMAQMD thresholds (i.e., above ten chances in a million) at offsite locations surrounding the project 

site, as shown in Figure 4-1a. With incorporation of Mitigation Measure 4.3-1 (i.e., 90 percent of off-road construction 

equipment utilizing Tier 4 engines), maximum risk values were reduced by approximately 84 percent. As shown in Figure 

4-16, mitigated risk levels would continue to exceed SMAQMD thresholds just north of the project site. Although this 

area north of the Alder Creek site is designated for residential uses under the FPASP and the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 

Subdivision project, the area is currently vacant and is not under construction. Construction of the Alder Creek site 

would be completed before occupancy of planned receptor sites north of the Alder Creek Apartments site. As shown 

in Figure 4-1b, health risk levels directly west of the Alder Creek Apartments site currently undergoing construction 

for housing, would not exceed applicable SMAQMD thresholds. Therefore, no existing or future planned receptors 

4-12 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 344

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

would be exposed to risk levels from project construction that would exceed SMAQMD thresholds of 10 chances in 

one million. No new significant or substantially more severe impacts would occur. Therefore, the conclusions of the 
FPASP EIR/EIS remain valid and no further analysis is required. 

Stationary-Source Emissions 
Impact 3A.2-4 of the FPASP EIR/EIS determined that any stationary sources of TACs developed under the FPASP or in 
close proximity to the FPASP planning area (e.g., dry cleaning operations, gasoline-dispensing facilities, and diesel

fueled backup generators, and restaurants using charbroilers) would be subject to the permitting requirements of 
SMAQMD and, therefore, operation of any stationary sources would not result in the exposure of sensitive receptors 

to TACs at levels exceeding SMAQMD's significance threshold. Therefore, this direct impact is considered less than 
significant. This would also be true for the project and, thus, the conclusions of the FPASP EIR/EIS remain valid and no 

further analysis is required. 

Emissions from On-Site Operational Mobile Sources 
The FPASP EIR/EIS determined that implementation of the above measures that are part of Mitigation Measure 3A.2-

4b would lessen health-related risks associated with on-site mobile-source TACs, including truck activity at land uses 
proposed in the FPASP. Further, the project would include residential land uses which do not generate high level of 
truck traffic, and therefore, no new or substantially more severe impacts would occur. 

Land Use Compatibility with High-Volume Arterial Roadways 
As part of the cumulative impact analysis in Section 4.1.7 of the FPASP EIR/EIS, health risk exposure levels from traffic 

on nearby high-volume arterial roadways to new residential land uses proposed under the FPASP were examined. 
The FPASP EIR/EIS analyzed this impact because relatively high volumes of diesel-powered trucks associated with 

nearby sand and gravel quarries would travel on arterial roadways that pass by the proposed residential land uses 

and DPM emitted by this traffic could expose nearby residents to relatively high levels of health risk. The analysis 

found that risk exposure levels could potentially be high enough to warrant a site-specific HRA for some of the 

roadway segments that pass by the FPASP area, including the segments of Prairie City Road north of White Rock 
Road, White Rock Road between Prairie City Road and Scott Road, White Rock Road east of Scott Road, and Oak 

Avenue north of White Rock Road, as shown in Table 4-4 of the FPASP EIR/EIS. 

The project is not located near the roadway segments identified for risk of high exposure levels. In addition, emissions 

of DPM from trucks are lower than 2010 levels because of more stringent vehicle emissions standards, improvements 

in vehicle emissions technology, and statewide efforts to replace older diesel engines with new or retrofitted, cleaner 

engines. Therefore, the level of health risk exposure to residential land uses on the project site would be less than 

those evaluated in the FPASP EIR/EIS. This impact determination is consistent with the analysis in the FPASP EIR/EIS, 

which determined that levels of health risk exposure would decrease over time. As shown in Table 4-4 of the FPASP 
EIR/EIS, the exposure levels would decrease along all studied roadway segments from 2010 to 2030. The conclusions 
of the FPASP EIR/EIS remain valid and no further analysis is required. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-13 

Page 345

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist 

Chances in a Million 

.& Point of Maximum Impact 

c=i1s< 

c=i10-1s 

c=i 5-10 

c=i 0-5 

i::;,: .1 Project Site 

0 500 1,000 
Feet 

ESRI World Imagery 
18010133.01 GIS 004 

'4,(cfer Creek Pkwy 

Source: adapted by Ascent Environmental in 2020 

Ascent Environmental 

81 chances ln a million 

,-.A... 
I l I • 
'-·- ·-J 

Figure 4-1a Residential Cancer Risk Contours - Unmitigated 

4-14 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 346

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental 

Chances in a Million 

A Point of Maximum Impact 

C:=::J 15< 
C:=::J 10-15 

c:::==J 5 - 1 0 

C:=::J O - 5 

(:=•":J Project Site 

0 1,000 
~~-~~~~Feet 

500 

ESRI World Imagery 
18010133.01 GIS 003 

Source: adapted by Ascent Environmental in 2020 

13 chan~es,in a rilillien 

I" ......... ..... 
I • • I I • • I "--•-·-· 

Figure 4-1b Residential Cancer Risk Contours - Mitigated 

City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Environmental Checklist 

4-15 

Page 347

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental 

Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to Construction-Generated Emissions of Naturally Occurring Asbestos 
Impact 3A.2·5 in the FPASP EIR/EIS examined whether construction-related ground disturbance activities (i.e., grading, 

rock blasting) could generate fugitive PM,o dust that contains naturally occurring asbestos (NOA). Based on a report by 
the California Geologic Survey, portions of the FPASP area, including portions of the project area, include areas that are 

moderately likely to contain NOA (California Geologic Survey 2006). The analysis explains that the serpentine soils may 

be disturbed during site grading and rock blasting activities, potentially exposing residents of the nearby residential 

neighborhoods in El Dorado County or neighborhoods that have already been developed in the FPASP to asbestos 

during project construction. Without appropriate controls, sensitive receptors near construction sites could be exposed 

to localized high levels of re-entrained fugitive PM,o dust, potentially including NOA. As a result, this direct impact would 

be considered potentially significant. Implementation of Mitigation Measure 3A.2-5 would reduce impacts associated 

with generation of fugitive dust that potentially contains NOA by requiring site-specific investigations and, where the 

presence of NOA is determined, implementation of a dust control plan that is approved by SMAQMD that would reduce 

impacts related to construction in serpentinite soils. Implementation of these measures would reduce the potentially 

significant impact associated with exposure to NOA during construction to a less-than-significant level. The potential for 

sensitive receptors to be exposed to NOA under the project is not substantially greater than determined in the FPASP 

EIR/EIS. Therefore, no new or substantially more severe air quality impacts would occur from NOA exposure as a result 

of the project. The conclusions of the FPASP EIR/EIS remain valid and no further analysis is required. 

Other Emissions (Odors) from Short-Term Use of Construction Equipment 
Impact 3A.2-6 of the FPASP EIR/EIS explains that construction activities associated with the development of on-site 

land uses could result in odorous emissions from diesel exhaust generated by construction equipment. The FPASP 

EIR/EIS required implementation of exhaust reduction measures listed in Mitigation Measure 3A.2-1a to reduce the 

level of exposure. However, it was nonetheless determined that this impact would be significant and unavoidable. 

The Alder Creek Apartments site would not require much grading activity compared to other areas within the FPASP 

because it is not as hilly as the east side of the FPASP area and would not occur for an extended period of time, thus 

odorous emissions generated during the construction at the Alder Creek Apartments site would not expose a 

substantial number of people to objectionable odors beyond what was evaluated in the FPASP EIR/EIS. No new or 

substantially more severe odor impacts from on-site sources would occur as a result of the project. The conclusions 

of the FPASP EIR/EIS remain valid and no further analysis is required. 

MITIGATION MEASURES 
The following mitigation measures were referenced in the FPASP EIR/EIS analysis and would continue to remain 
applicable if the project were approved. 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.2-1a: Implement Measures to Control Air Pollutant Emissions Generated by Construction of 
On-Site Elements 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.2-1d: Implement SMAQMD's Basic Construction Emission Control Practices during 
Construction of all Off-site Elements located in Sacramento County. 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.2-2: Implement All Measures Prescribed by the Air Quality Mitigation Plan to Reduce 

Operational Air Pollutant Emissions 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.2-4b: Implement Measures to Reduce Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to Operational 

Emissions of Toxic Air Contaminants 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.2-5: Implement a Site Investigation to Determine the Presence of NOA and, if necessary, 

Prepare and Implement an Asbestos Dust Control Plan 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.2-6: Implement Measures to Control Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to Operational 
Odorous Emissions 

4-16 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 348

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

In addition to the mitigation measures in the FPASP EIR/EIS (listed above), the following project-specific measure 

enhances the mitigation program outlined in the FPASP EIR/EIS. This refinement is consistent with the mitigation 
program outlined in the FPASP EIR/EIS. 

Mitigation Measure 4.3-1: Implement Exhaust Emissions Reduction Measures 
The project shall be required to use a construction fleet mix utilizing 90 percent EPA certified Tier 4 engines, which will 

substantially mitigate diesel exhaust (i.e., PM10) emissions. The use of Tier 4 engines can reduce diesel generated PM10 
emissions by up to 90 percent over Tier 1 engines. 

CONCLUSION 
As required by many of the air quality mitigation measures adopted as part of the FPASP, this report provides 

additional project-level air quality analysis. While the project-specific analyses provide additional detail for the project 

site, the project would not result in new or substantially more severe significant impacts to air quality. The conclusions 

of the FPASP EIR/EIS remain valid and no additional analysis is required. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-17 

Page 349

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental 

4.4 BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES 
Any New Circumstances Any New 

Do Prior Environmental 
Where Impact Was 

Involving New Information 
Documents Mitigations 

Environmental Issue Area 
Analyzed in the EIR/EIS. 

Significant Impacts or Requiring New 
Address/Resolve 

Substantially More Analysis or 
Severe Impacts? Verification? 

Impacts? 

4. Biological Resources. Would the project: 

a. Have a substantial adverse effect, either Setting pp. 3A.3-7 to No Yes Yes, mitigation has 
directly or through habitat modifications, on 3A.3-21 been updated but 
any species identified as a candidate, Impacts 3A.3-2 impact remains 
sensitive, or special status species in local or and 3A.3-3 significant and 
regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by unavoidable 
the California Department of Fish and 
Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 

b. Have a substantial adverse effect on any Setting pp. 3A.3-18 to No No Yes, but impact 
riparian habitat or other sensitive natural 3A.3-26; remains significant and 
community identified in local or regional Impact 3A.3-4 unavoidable 
plans, policies, and regulations or by the 
California Department of Fish and Game or 
US Fish and Wildlife Service? 

C. Have a substantial adverse effect on state or Setting pp. 3A.3-5 to No No Yes, but impact 
federally protected wetlands (including, but 3A.3-7, 3A.3-18 to 3A.3- remains significant and 
not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, 21; unavoidable 
etc.) through direct removal, filling, Impact 3A.3-1 
hydrological interruption, or other means? 

d. Interfere substantially with the movement of Setting p. 3A.3-7 No No NA 
any native resident or migratory fish and Impact 3A.3-6 
wildlife species or with established native 
resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or 
impede the use of native wildlife nursery 
sites? 

e. Conflict with any local policies or ordinances Setting pp. 3A.3-23 to No No Yes, but impact 
protecting biological resources, such as a 3A.3-26 remains significant and 
tree preservation policy or ordinance. Impact 3A.3-5 unavoidable 

f. Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Impact 3A.3-7 No Yes NA 
Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural 
Community Conservation Plan, or other 
approved local, regional, or state habitat 
conservation plan? 

g. Have the potential to cause a commercial Setting p. 3A.3-17 No No NA 
and/or recreational fishery to drop below No Impact 
self-sustaining levels? 

4.4.1 Discussion 

REGULATORY SETTING 
The City completed a general plan update since certification of the EIR/EIS in 2011. The Folsom City Council approved 

the Folsom 2035 General Plan on August 28, 2018. The following goals and policies of the Folsom 2035 General Plan 

are applicable to the project, but do not constitute new information of substantial importance under CEQA 
Guidelines section 15162. 

4-18 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 350

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

Natural and Cultural Resources Element 
GOAL NCR 1.1 Protect and enhance Folsom's natural resources for current and future residents. 

• NCR 1.1.1 Habitat Preservation: Support State and Federal policies for preservation and enhancement of riparian 
and wetland habitats by incorporating, as applicable, standards published by the California Department of Fish 
and Wildlife and the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service into site-specific development proposals. 

• NCR 1.1.2 Preserve Natural Resources: Require that a qualified biologist conduct a vegetative/wildlife field survey 
and analysis prior to consideration of development applications for projects located in sensitive habitat areas and 
potential habitats for sensitive wildlife and floral species. 

• NCR 1.1.3 Wetland Preservation: Require developers to prepare a wetland mitigation and monitoring plan that 
describes the habitats present within the proposed project site and establishes a plan for the long-term 
monitoring and mitigation of sensitive habitats. 

• NCR 1.1.4 Native and Drought Tolerant Vegetation: Encourage new developments to plant native vegetation, 
including that which is important to Native American lifeways and values, and drought tolerant species and 
prohibit the use of invasive plants. 

• NCR 1.1.5 New Open Space: Continue to acquire strategically-located open space areas for passive and active 
recreational uses when such parcels of open space value become available and feasible funding sources are 
identified to sustain the ongoing maintenance expenses. 

• NCR 1.1.6 Consolidate Parcels: Encourage landowners to consolidate identified habitats, open space, and park 
lands between separately-owned development projects and individually-owned properties, when feasible. 

• NCR 1.1.7 Fugitive Light: Encourage measures to limit fugitive light from outdoor sources, including street lighting. 

• NCR 1.1.8 Planting in New Development: Require the planting of street trees, parking lot canopy trees, screening 
trees, and other amenity trees and landscaping in all new development, consistent with City landscaping 
development guidelines, to minimize the heat island effect. Planting strips must be large enough to 
accommodate a large tree canopy and allow for healthy root growth. 

• NCR 1.1.9 Public Awareness: Encourage and support development projects and programs that enhance public 
appreciation and awareness of the natural environment. 

Tree Preservation Ordinance 
On January 28, 2020, the City Council unanimously passed Ordinance No. 1299 repealing and replacing the City's 
previous Tree Preservation Ordinance as set forth in Chapter 12.16 of the Folsom Municipal Code. The Ordinance 
outlines tree work standards and a tree protection and mitigation plan. The Ordinance also expands the definition of 
heritage tree to include all trees with a diameter at breast height of 30 inches or more (with exceptions for invasive 
species. 

IMPACT DISCUSSION 
Since the adoption of the FPASP and certification of the EIR/EIS, and consistent with the mitigation adopted in the 
FPASP, a Biological Opinion for the FPASP was issued by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service on April 2, 2014 (81420-
2010-F-0620-1) and California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) entered into a streambed alteration 
agreement with the FPASP applicants (Master Stream bed Alteration Agreement [Notification No. 1600-2012-0198-R2)) 
(USFWS 2014). These documents contain guidance on how to treat special-status species and provide conditions for 
the FPASP and associated projects. 

The FPASP EIR/EIS evaluated the impact of the FPASP on 11 special-status plant and 19 special-status animal species 
which had the potential to occur within the FPA (pages 3A.3-9 to 3A.3-17 of the FPASP EIR/EIS). One special-status 
plant species, Brandegee's clarkia (Clarkia biloba ssp. brandegeae) was downgraded from a California rare plant rank 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-19 

Page 351

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental 

of 1B.1 to 4B.2 since certification of the FPASP EIR/EIS in 2011, because the species was discovered to be more 
common than originally thought (CNPS 2020). 

One special-status wildlife species, tricolored blackbird (Agelaius tricolor) has been listed as threatened under the 

California Endangered Species Act since certification of the FPASP EIR/EIR in 2011 (CNDDB 2020). The FPASP EIR/EIS 
evaluated impacts to the tricolored blackbird, considered a species of concern at the time of the EIR/EIS, and adopted 

Mitigation Measure 3A.3-2c to reduce impacts to this species to less than significant. The project would not result in 
any new significant impacts or substantially more severe impacts to the tricolored blackbird. Mitigation Measure 

3A.3-2c has been updated to include a statement requiring the applicant to consult with CDFW to determine whether 
an incidental take permit for impacts to tricolored blackbird would be required. This updated version is presented 

below and remains consistent with Mitigation Measure 3A.3-2c in the EIR/EIS. 

There have been no changes to the status of any other species evaluated in the FPASP EIR/EIS and there are no 
additional occurrences of special-status species within the FPA since certification of the FPASP EIR/EIS. The project 

would not result in any new significant impacts or substantially more severe impacts to species identified as 
candidate, sensitive, or special-status species. 

The FPASP EIR/EIS evaluated the impact of the FPASP on sensitive communities including riparian and oak woodland 

habitat within the context of the Folsom Municipal Code (pages 3A.3-72 to 3A.3-93 of the FPASP EIR/EIS) as well as 

federally protected wetlands (page 3A.3-28 to 3A.3-50). The project site does not include any riparian or oak 

woodland habitat. In addition, no individual trees have been identified on the project site. Therefore, the project 

would not result in any new significant impacts or substantially more severe impacts to these sensitive habitats and 

would not conflict with local tree protection codes or ordinances. 

The FPASP EIR/EIS evaluated the impact of the FPASP on native and resident migratory corridors and nursery sites on 

pages 3A.3-88 to 3A.3-93 and determined that there would be no impact. Since certification of the FPASP EIR/EIS, 

there have been no changes in habitat or migration patterns; and the proposed changes to the FPASP would not 
constitute a new significant impact or substantially more severe impact to migratory corridors or nursery sites. 

The FPASP EIR/EIS evaluated the impact of the FPASP on the South Sacramento Habitat Conservation Plan (SSHCP) 

and determined that the FPASP would not have an impact because the SSHCP was not adopted (as of 2011) and that 

the SPA is not within the SSHCP plan area (pages 3A.3-93 to 3A.3-94 of the FPASP EIR/EIS). The SSHCP has since 

been adopted; however, the FPASP area is still not included within the SSHCP plan area. Therefore, there would be no 

new significant impact or substantially more severe impact. 

The FPASP EIR/EIS did not evaluate the impact of the FPASP on the persistence of commercial and recreational 

fisheries in the Biological Resources - Land section. The issue was evaluated for the Zone 4 "Water" study area (pages 
3B.3-16 to 3B.3-21 of the FPASP EIR/EIS). However, the project is not located within the Zone 4 "Water" study area 

and the project would not result in any new significant impacts or substantially more severe impacts on fisheries. 

MITIGATION MEASURES 
The following mitigation measures were referenced in the EIR/EIS and would continue to remain applicable if the project 

were approved. FPASP EIR/EIS Mitigation Measures 3A.3-1b, 3A.3-2e, 3A.3-2f, 3A.3-2g, 3A.3-2h, 3A.3-3, 3A.3-4a, and 

3A.3-5 have previously been completed or are not applicable to the project, as identified in the California Environmental 

Quality Act Biological Resources Mitigation Measure Compliance Report prepared for the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 

Subdivision (ECORP 2017). 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.3-1a: Design Stormwater Drainage Plans and Erosion and Sediment Control Plans to Avoid 

and Minimize Erosion and Runoff to All Wetlands and Other Waters That Are to Remain in the SPA and Use Low 

Impact Development (LID) Features 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.3-2a: Avoid Direct Loss of Swainson's Hawk and Other Raptor Nests 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.3-2b: Prepare and Implement a Swainson's Hawk Mitigation Plan 

4-20 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 352

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.3-2d: Avoid and Minimize Impacts to Special-Status Bat Roosts 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.3-4b: Conduct Surveys to Identify and Map Valley Needlegrass Grassland; Implement 
Avoidance and Minimization Measures or Compensatory Mitigation 

To be consistent with requirements for wildlife species listed under the California Endangered Species Act, the 

following FPASP EIR/EIS mitigation measure has been updated. 

Mitigation Measure 3A.3-2c: Avoid and Minimize Impacts to Tricolored Blackbird Nesting Colonies 
To avoid and minimize impacts to tricolored blackbird, the project applicant(s) of all project phases shall conduct a 

preconstruction survey for any project activity that would occur during the tricolored blackbird's nesting season (March 

1-August 31). The preconstruction survey shall be conducted by a qualified biologist before any activity occurring within 
500 feet of suitable nesting habitat, including freshwater marsh and areas of riparian scrub vegetation. The survey shall 

be conducted within 14 days before project activity begins. 

If no tricolored blackbird colony is present, no further mitigation is required. If a colony is found, the project applicant 

shall consult with CDFW to determine whether impacts to the colony would occur as a result of project implementation, 
and to establish and appropriate buffer around the colony to reduce the likelihood of disturbance. No project activity 

shall commence within the buffer area until a qualified biologist, in consultation with CDFW, confirms that the colony is 

no longer active. Buffer size is anticipated to range from 100 to 500 feet, depending on the nature of the project activity, 
the extent of existing disturbance in the area, and other relevant circumstances. If CDFW determines that project activity 

could result in adverse effects to the colony, and project activities cannot be avoided during the nesting season when 

the colony is active, an incidental take permit for impacts to tricolored blackbird pursuant to California Fish and Game 

Code Section 2081 would be required. The applicant shall implement measures required under the permit, if required, 

which may include compensatory mitigation for impacts to a tricolored blackbird. 

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries (i.e., U.S. 50 interchange 

improvements) must be coordinated by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase with the affected 
oversight agency(ies) (i.e., Caltrans). 

CONCLUSION 
Mitigation Measure 3A.3-2c was updated to reflect a change in status of tricolored blackbird under the California 

Endangered Species Act; however, this mitigation measure is consistent with the requirements in the mitigation 

adopted for the FPASP. The project would not result in new or substantially more severe significant impacts to 

biological resources. The mitigation measures and overall conclusions of the FPASP EIR/EIS remain valid and no 
additional analysis is required. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-21 

Page 353

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist 

4.5 CULTURAL RESOURCES 

Environmental Issue Area 
Where Impact Was 

Analyzed in the 
EIR/EIS. 

5. Cultural Resources. Would the project: 

a. Cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of a historical resource 
pursuant to §15064.5? 

b. Cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of an archaeological resource 
pursuant to §15064.5? 

Setting pp. 3B.5-1 to 
3B.5-3 

Impact 3A.5-1 

Setting pp. 3B.5-1 to 
3B.5-3 

Impacts 3A.5-1 and 
3A.5-2 

c. Disturb any human remains, including those Setting p. 3A.5-13 to 
interred outside of formal cemeteries? 3A.5-15 

4.5.1 Discussion 

REGULATORY SETTING 

State 

Senate Bill 18 

Impact 3A.5-3 

Any New Circumstances 
Involving New Significant 
Impacts or Substantially 
More Severe Impacts? 

No 

No 

No 

Any New 
Information 

Requiring New 
Analysis or 

Verification? 

No 

No 

No 

Ascent Environmental 

Do Prior Environmental 
Documents Mitigations 

Address/Resolve 
Impacts? 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Senate Bill (SB) 18 was signed into law in September 2004 and became effective in March 2005. SB 18 (Burton, 

Chapter 905, Statutes of 2004) requires city and county governments to consult with California Native American 
tribes early in the planning process with the intent of protecting traditional tribal cultural places. The purpose of 
involving tribes at the early stage of planning efforts is to allow consideration of tribal cultural places in the context of 
broad local land use policy before project-level land use decisions are made by a local government. As such, SB 18 
applies to the adoption or substantial amendment of general or specific plans. The process by which consultation 
must occur in these cases was published by the Governor's Office of Planning and Research through its Tribal 
Consultation Guidelines: Supplement to General Plan Guidelines (OPR 2005). 

Because the project is seeking an SPA to the FPASP, the City was required to initiate consultation with California 
Native American tribes under SB 18. On February 25, 2020, ECORP, on behalf of the City, requested an SB 18 contact 
list from the California Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC). On March 3, 2020, the NAHC responded with 
contact information for representatives of the following tribes: 

• Buena Vista Rancheria of Me-Wuk Indians 

• Colfax-Todds Valley Consolidated Tribe 

• lone Band of Miwok Indians 

• Nashville Enterprise Miwok-Maidu Nishinam Tribe 

• Shingle Springs Band of Miwok Indians 

• Tsi Akim Maidu 

• United Auburn Indian Community of the Auburn Rancheria 

• Wilton Rancheria 

4-22 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 354

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

In accordance with Government Code 65352.3(a)(2), the City sent project notifications to each of the contacts on 
March 6, 2020 and afforded them 90 days to respond and request consultation. The 90-day response window closed 
on June 4, 2020. The City received responses from two tribes, as summarized below. None of the other tribes 
responded. 

Wilton Rancheria 

• A response from Wilton Rancheria on March 13, 2020 requesting to consult on the project under SB 18. The City 
responded to Wilton Rancheria on March 16, 2020 acknowledging their request to consult and to formally initiate 
consultation by inviting them to a teleconference on March 31. Wilton Rancheria representatives failed to attend 
the teleconference, but on April 14, 2020, contacted the City to request information, which the City provided 
immediately. The tribe has not engaged the City any further on this project. 

Shingle Sgrings Band of Miwok Indians 

• On May 4, 2020, the City received a letter from Shingle Springs Rancheria dated April 30, 2020 asking to consult 
and receive copies of reports. The City responded the same day, provided the requested information, and 
offered a teleconference meeting on May 13. Shingle Springs representatives failed to attend the teleconference 
and did not request to reschedule. The tribe has not engaged the City any further on this project. 

On April 16, 2020, and in accordance with Government Code §65352(a)(11), the City mailed the 45-day referral notices 
to the tribes. No tribes provided comment within that timeframe. The City will mail specific details of the public 
hearing at least 10 days in advance, in accordance with Government Code §65092. 

In summary, the City has assumed and concluded consultation responsibilities in accordance with the Tribal 

Consultation Guidelines: Supplement to General Plan Guidelines (November 14, 2005) published by the Governor's 
Office of Planning and Research. The details of tribal consultation for SB 18 are documented in a separate confidential 
tribal consultation record by the City. 

Assembly Bill 52 
Assembly Bill (AB) 52 (Chapter 532, Statutes of 2014) established a formal consultation process for California Native 
American tribes as part of CEQA and equates significant impacts on tribal cultural resources with significant 
environmental impacts (Public Resources Code [PRC] Section 21084.2). AB 52 consultation requirements went into 
effect on July 1, 2015 for all projects that had not already published a Notice of Intent to Adopt a Negative 
Declaration or Mitigated Negative Declaration or published a Notice of Preparation of an Environmental Impact 
Report prior to that date (Section 11 [cl). Specifically, AB 52 requires that "prior to the release of a negative 
declaration, mitigated negative declaration, or environmental impact report for a project, the lead agency shall begin 
consultation" (21808.3.1 [al), and that "the lead agency may certify an environmental impact report or adopt a 

mitigated negative declaration for a project with a significant impact on an identified tribal cultural resource only if" 
consultation is formally concluded (21082.3[d]). 

However, in the case of the current project, the lead agency has prepared this addendum to a previously certified EIR, 
in accordance with Section 15164 of the CEQA Guidelines. An addendum was determined to be the most appropriate 

document because none of the conditions described in Section 15162, calling for preparation of a subsequent EIR, 
have occurred. The addendum addresses minor technical changes or additions and confirms that the project is 
consistent with what was previously analyzed under the certified EIR. As such, the addendum will not result in an 
additional certification; therefore, the AB 52 procedures specified in PRC Sections 21080.3. 1(d) and 21080.3.2 do not 
apply and no tribal consultation under AB 52 is required. 

City of Folsom 2035 General Plan 
The City completed a general plan update since certification of the EIR/EIS in 2011. The Folsom City Council approved 
the Folsom 2035 General Plan on August 28, 2018. The following goals and policies of the Folsom 2035 General Plan 
are applicable to the project but do not constitute new information of substantial importance under CEQA Guidelines 
section 15162. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-23 

Page 355

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental 

Natural and Cultural Resources Element 
GOAL NCR 5.1 Encourage the preservation, restoration, and maintenance of cultural resources, including building and 
sites, to enrich our sense of place and our appreciation of the city's history. 

• NCR 5.1.2 Cultural Resources Inventory: Maintain an inventory of prehistoric and historic resources, including 
structures and sites. 

• NCR 5.1.3 Nominate Additional Cultural Resources: Nominate additional buildings and sites to the City of Folsom 
Cultural Resources Inventory of locally significant cultural resources. 

• NCR 5.1.4 Applicable Laws and Regulations: Ensure compliance with City, State, and Federal historic preservation 
laws, regulations, and codes to protect and assist in the preservation of historic and archeological resources, as 
listed in the City of Folsom Historic Preservation Master Plan, including the use of the California Historical 
Building Code as applicable, including, but not limited to, Senate Bill 18, Assembly Bill 52, Appendix G to the 
CEQA Guidelines, and, where applicable, Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act. 

FPASP Programmatic Agreement 
Since the adoption of the FPASP and certification of the EIR/EIS, and consistent with the mitigation adopted in the 

FPASP, the FPASP applicants entered into a programmatic agreement (PA) with U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 
(USACE) to fulfill the requirements in Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act. The PA was amended in 
2013 and the project is subject to the requirements of the First Amended Programmatic Agreement (FAPA) to meet 
obligations under all applicable state and federal requirements that were in place at the time of its execution. The 
execution of the PA (and subsequent amendments) was a requirement of the programmatic EIR/EIS to comply with 
both federal and state laws, including CEQA, and allowed for a phased approach for the identification and 
determination of impacts to cultural resources. 

The FAPA provides the framework for compliance and requires that each individual development, including the 
project, must comply with specific terms that include, but are not limited to, development of a project-specific Area 
of Potential Effects (APE), a geoarchaeological investigation, an updated records search, good-faith identification 
efforts including pedestrian surveys, evaluation of significance of resources, a finding of effect, and the resolution of 
adverse effects to significant cultural resources. Furthermore, the FAPA requires that all work done in compliance with 
the FAPA be carried out in accordance with the overall research design and cultural resources management plan, 
initially titled the Preliminary Historic Properties Synthesis (PHPS) that has been prepared for the FPASP. The PHPS 
was renamed the Historic Property Management Plan (HPMP) in conjunction with the execution of the FAPA in 2013. 

ECO RP prepared a report summarizing the project-specific information for the project on historic and cultural 
resources and, in that report, provided refined mitigation measures specific to the project, see Appendix B (ECORP 
2020). A summary of that information is presented below. 

IMPACT DISCUSSION 

Impacts on Historical Resources 
Impacts under the approved FPASP to historical resources within the FPASP area are described in Impact 3A.5-1. 

Impacts were determined to be potentially significant because the FPASP would develop in areas containing known 
historic resources. Mitigation Measures 3A.5-1a and 3A.5-1b were recommended and required the applicants to enter 
into a PA with USACE for the comprehensive evaluation of resources within the FPASP as well as an inventory and 
evaluation of cultural resources and methods to avoid or minimize damage to resources. As described in the 

mitigation, the PA would establish an area of potential effects and provide a framework for data gathering so that the 
applicant, City, and USACE would have a more thorough understanding of the resources present in the area and how 
best to address these resources, once projects were proposed within the FPASP. Although implementation of 

Mitigation Measures 3A.5-1a and 3A.5-1b in the EIR/EIS would reduce the impact to known prehistoric and historic
era cultural resources, the EIR/EIS concluded that the impact would remain potentially significant and unavoidable 
because some of the affected resources would not be within the City's jurisdiction. 

4-24 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 356

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

As described above, the applicant has already entered a PA with USACE and has conducted a subsequent review of 
historic resources pertaining to the project area. That review determined that the Alder Creek site includes one 
cultural resource; however, the site is not eligible and is therefore is not considered a Historical Resource under 
CEQA. Five cultural resources were identified at the land use reallocation sites located outside of the Alder Creek site. 
Only two of the five cultural resources were determined to be eligible and are considered as historical resources 
under CEQA. However, because the land use reallocation sites located outside of the Alder Creek site would only 
receive surplus density from the Alder Creek site, would not be developed as part of the project, and would be 
subject to their own future discretionary approvals, impacts to historical resources located within the land use 

reallocation sites would not occur as a result of the project. 

The project does not change the nature, type, or severity of impacts to historical resources and impacts associated 
with the project are consistent, if not less than, what was contemplated by the EIR/EIS. Because of the extensive work 
on historic resources since the EIR/EIS was certified, the mitigation measures from the EIR/EIS addressing historic 
resources were refined to more specifically address the project area. With the implementation of these modified 
mitigation measures (listed below), implementation of the project would result in less-than-significant impacts to 
historic resources. No new significant impacts or substantially more severe impacts would occur. Therefore, the 

findings of the certified EIR/EIS remain valid and no further analysis is required. 

Impacts on Archeological Resources 
The EIR/EIS analyzed potential destruction or damage to known (Impact 3A.5-1) or unknown (Impact 3A.5-2) 
archeological resources and concluded that there was would be potentially significant impacts because of the 
potential destruction and removal of these resources. The EIR/EIS recommended Mitigation Measures 3A.5-1a, 3A.5-
1b, and 3A.5-2, which would reduce the impact to archaeological resources by requiring a programmatic agreement, 
an inventory and evaluation of cultural resources and methods to avoid or minimize damage to resources, 
construction personnel education, and, if determined necessary, on-site monitoring during construction activities. 
However, the EIR/EIS concluded that this impact would remain potentially significant and unavoidable because some 
of the affected resources would not be within the City's jurisdiction and the City would not have control over their 
protection and preservation, because there always exists a potential for unknown archaeological sites to become 
uncovered during construction, and because not all resources would be avoided under the approved FPASP. 

As described previously, the applicant entered into a PA and subsequent review of cultural resources. As described 
above, the applicant made changes to the project design to avoid impacts to known resources. While these are not 
sufficient to reduce the potentially significant impact to a less-than-significant level without mitigation, the 
information gathered through the extensive surveys, Native American consultation, and reviews of records were used 
to refine the mitigation measures from the EIR/EIS. With the implementation of these modified mitigation measures 
shown below (3A.5-1a, 3A.5-1b, and 3A.5-2), the impact would be reduced to less than significant. No new significant 

impacts or substantially more severe impacts would occur. Therefore, the findings of the certified EIR/EIS remain valid 
and no further analysis is required . 

Impacts on Human Remains 
The EIR/EIS analyzed potential destruction or damage to human remains in Impact 3A.5-3 and concluded that 
although there are no known or documented human burials or remains in the project area, the impact was 

potentially significant because ground-disturbing activities may inadvertently disinter or destroy previously 
unidentified interred human remains. The EIR/EIS recommended Mitigation Measure 3A.5-3, which would reduce the 
potential impact to a less-than-significant level because it would require the applicant to halt ground-disturbing 
activities if remains are uncovered and follow the requirements of the California Health and Safety Code. 

Mitigation Measure 3A.5-3 has been updated to include a statement requiring the applicant to submit to the City 

proof of compliance and this updated version is presented below and remains consistent with Mitigation Measure 
3A.5-3 in the EIR/EIS. No new information regarding human remains has been identified requiring new analysis or 
verification. No new significant impacts or substantially more severe impacts would occur. Therefore, the findings of 

the certified EIR/EIS remain valid and no further analysis is required. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-25 

Page 357

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental 

MITIGATION MEASURES 
To be consistent with the more specific requirements found in the Historic Property Treatment Plan (HPTP) and FAPA, 
the following FPASP EIR/EIS mitigation measures have been refined. 

Mitigation Measure 3A.5-1a: Comply with the Programmatic Agreement 
The PA for the project is incorporated by reference. The PA provides a management framework for identifying historic 

properties, determining adverse effects, and resolving those adverse effects as required under Section 106 of the 

National Historic Preservation Act. This document is incorporated by reference. The PA is available for public inspection 

and review at the California Office of Historic Preservation 1725 23rd Street Sacramento, CA 95816. 

Mitigation Measure 3A.5-1b: Perform an Inventory and Evaluation of Cultural Resources for the California Register of 
Historic Places, Minimize or Avoid Damage or Destruction, and Perform Treatment Where Damage or Destruction 
Cannot be Avoided 

Management of cultural resources eligible for or listed on the CRHR under CEQA mirrors management steps required 

under Section 106. These steps may be combined with deliverables and management steps performed for Section 106 

provided that management documents prepared for the PA also clearly reference the California Register of Historical 

Resources (CRHR) listing criteria and significance thresholds that apply under CEQA. Before ground disturbing work for 

each individual development phase or off-site element, the applicable oversight agency (City of Folsom, El Dorado 

County, Sacramento County, or Caltrans), or the project applicant(s) of all project phases, with applicable oversight 
agency, shall perform the following actions: 

• Retain the services of a qualified archaeologist to perform an inventory of cultural resources within each individual 

development phase or off-site element subject to approval under CEQA. Identified resources shall be evaluated for 

listing on the CRHR. The inventory report shall also identify locations that are sensitive for undiscovered cultural 
resources based upon the location of known resources, geomorphology, and topography. The inventory report 

shall specify the location of monitoring of ground-disturbing work in these areas by a qualified archaeologist and 

monitoring in the vicinity of identified resources that may be damaged by construction, if appropriate. 

• The identification of any sensitive locations subject to monitoring during construction of each individual 

development phase shall be performed in concert with monitoring activities performed under the PA to minimize 
the potential for conflicting requirements. 

• For each resource that is determined eligible for the CRHR, the applicable agency or the applicant(s) for any 

particular discretionary development (under the agency's direction) shall obtain the services of a qualified 

archaeologist who shall determine if implementation of the individual project development would result in damage 

or destruction of "significant" (under CEQA) cultural resources. These findings shall be reviewed by the applicable 

agency for consistency with the significance thresholds and treatment measures provided in this EIR/EIS. 

• Where possible, the project shall be configured or redesigned to avoid impacts on eligible or listed resources. 

Alternatively, these resources may be preserved in place if possible, as suggested under California Public Resources 
Code Section 21083.2. Avoidance of historic properties is required under certain circumstances under the Public 

Resource Code and 36 CFR Part 800. 

• Where impacts cannot be avoided, the applicable agency or the applicant(s) of all project phases (under the 

applicable agency's direction) shall prepare and implement treatment measures that are determined to be 

necessary by a qualified archaeologist. These measures may consist of data recovery excavations for resources that 

are eligible for listing because of the data they contain (which may contribute to research). Alternatively, for 

historical architectural, engineered, or landscape features, treatment measures may consist of a preparation of 

interpretive, narrative, or photographic documentation. These measures shall be reviewed by the applicable 

oversight agency for consistency with the significance thresholds and standards provided in this EIR/EIS. 

4-25 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 358

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

• To support the evaluation and treatment required under this Mitigation Measure, the archaeologist retained by 
either the applicable oversight agency or the applicant(s) of all project phases shall prepare an appropriate 

prehistoric and historic context that identifies relevant prehistoric, ethnographic, and historic themes and research 
questions against which to determine the significance of identified resources and appropriate treatment. 

• These steps and documents may be combined with the phasing of management and documents prepared 

pursuant to the FAPA to minimize the potential for inconsistency and duplicative management efforts. 

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries shall be coordinated by the 

applicant(s) of each applicable project phase with the affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento 

Counties, or Caltrans). 

Mitigation Measure 3AS-2: Conduct Construction Personnel Education, Conduct On-Site Monitoring If Required, Stop Work 
if Cultural Resources are Discovered, Assess the Significance of the Find, and Perform Treatment or Avoidance as Required 
To reduce potential impacts to previously undiscovered cultural resources, the applicant(s) of all project phases shall do 
the following: 

• Before the start of ground-disturbing activities, the applicant(s) of all project phases shall retain a qualified 

archaeologist to conduct training for construction workers as necessary based upon the sensitivity of the project 

APE, to educate them about the possibility of encountering buried cultural resources and inform them of the proper 

procedures should cultural resources be encountered. 

• As a result of the work conducted for Mitigation Measures 3A.5-1a and 3A.5-1b, if the archaeologist determines that 

any portion of the SPA or the off-site elements should be monitored for potential discovery of as-yet-unknown 

cultural resources, the applicant(s) of all project phases shall implement such monitoring in the locations specified 

by the archaeologist. USACE should review and approve any recommendations by archaeologists with respect to 

monitoring. 

• Should any cultural resources, such as structural features, unusual amounts of bone or shell, artifacts, or 

architectural remains be encountered during any construction activities, work shall be suspended in the vicinity of 

the find and the appropriate oversight agency(ies) (identified below) shall be notified immediately. The appropriate 
oversight agency(ies) shall retain a qualified archaeologist who shall conduct a field investigation of the specific site 

and shall assess the significance of the find by evaluating the resource for eligibility for listing on the CRHR and the 

NRHP. If the resource is eligible for listing on the CRHR or NRHP and it would be subject to disturbance or 

destruction, the actions required in Mitigation Measures 3A.5-1a and 3A.5-1b shall be implemented. The oversight 

agency shall be responsible for approval of recommended mitigation if it is determined to be feasible in light of the 

approved land uses and shall implement the approved mitigation before resuming construction activities at the 

archaeological site. 

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be coordinated by 

the applicant(s) of each applicable project phase with the affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or 

Sacramento Counties, or Caltrans). 

The applicant, in coordination with USACE, shall ensure that an archaeological sensitivity training program is 

developed and implemented during a pre-construction meeting for construction supervisors. The sensitivity training 
program shall provide information about notification procedures when potential archaeological material is 

discovered, procedures for coordination between construction personnel and monitoring personnel, and information 

about other treatment or issues that may arise if cultural resources (including human remains) are discovered during 

project construction. This protocol shall be communicated to all new construction personnel during orientation and 

on a poster that is placed in a visible location inside the construction job trailer. The phone number of the USACE 

cultural resources staff member shall also be included. 

The on-site sensitivity training shall be carried out each time a new contractor will begin work in the APE and at the 

beginning of each construction season by each contractor. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-27 

Page 359

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental 

In the event that unanticipated discoveries of additional historic properties, defined in 36 CFR 800.16 (1), are made during 

the construction of the project, the USACE shall ensure that they will be protected by implementing the following 
measures: 

• The Construction Manager, or archaeological monitor, if given the authority to halt construction activities, shall 
ensure that work in that area is immediately halted within a 100-foot radius of the unanticipated discovery until 

the find is examined by a person meeting the professional qualifications standards specified in Section 2.2 of 
Attachment G of the HPMP. The Construction Manager, or archaeological monitor, if present, shall notify the 

USACE within 24 hours of the discovery. 

• The USACE shall notify the State Historic Preservation Officer (SHPO) within one working day of an unanticipated 
discovery and may initiate interim treatment measures in accordance with this HPTP. Once the USACE makes a 
formal determination of eligibility for the resource, the USACE will notify the SHPO within 48 hours of the 

determination and afford the SHPO an opportunity to comment on appropriate treatment. The SHPO shall 

respond within 72 hours of the request to consult. Failure of the SHPO to respond within 72 hours shall not 

prohibit the USACE from implementing the treatment measures. 

The applicants shall be required to submit to the City proof of compliance in the form of a completed training roster 

and copy of training materials. 

Mitigation Measure 3A.5-3: Suspend Ground-Disturbing Activities if Human Remains are Encountered and Comply 
with California Health and Safety Code Procedures 
In accordance with the California Health and Safety Code, if human remains are uncovered during ground-disturbing 

activities, including those associated with off-site elements, the applicant(s) of all project phases shall immediately halt all 

ground-disturbing activities in the area of the find and notify the Sacramento County Coroner and a professional 

archaeologist skilled in osteological analysis to determine the nature of the remains. The coroner is required to examine 

all discoveries of human remains within 48 hours of receiving notice of a discovery on private or public lands (California 

Health and Safety Code Section 7050.S[b]). If the coroner determines that the remains are those of a Native American, 

he or she must contact the NAHC by phone within 24 hours of making that determination (California Health and Safety 
Code Section 7050[c]). 

After the coroner's findings are complete, the applicant(s), an archaeologist, and the NAHC-designated Most Likely 

Descendant shall determine the ultimate treatment and disposition of the remains and take appropriate steps to ensure 
that additional human interments are not disturbed. The responsibilities for acting on notification of a discovery of 

Native American human remains are identified in Section 5097.9 of the California Public Resources Code. 

Upon the discovery of Native American remains, the procedures above regarding involvement of the applicable county 

coroner, notification of the NAHC, and identification of an Most Likely Descendant shall be followed. The applicant(s) of 

all project phases shall ensure that the immediate vicinity (according to generally accepted cultural or archaeological 
standards and practices) is not damaged or disturbed by further development activity until consultation with the Most 

Likely Descendant has taken place. The Most Likely Descendant shall have 48 hours after being granted access to the 
site to inspect the site and make recommendations. A range of possible treatments for the remains may be discussed: 

nondestructive removal and analysis, preservation in place, relinquishment of the remains and associated items to the 
descendants, or other culturally appropriate treatment. As suggested by AB 2641 (Chapter 863, Statutes of 2006), the 

concerned parties may extend discussions beyond the initial 48 hours to allow for the discovery of additional remains. 

AB 2641(e) includes a list of site protection measures and states that the applicant(s) shall comply with one or more of 

the following requirements: 

• record the site with the NAHC or the appropriate Information Center, 

• use an open-space or conservation zoning designation or easement, or 

• record a reinternment document with the county. 

4-28 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 360

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

The applicant(s) or its authorized representative of all project phases shall rebury the Native American human remains 

and associated grave goods with appropriate dignity on the property in a location not subject to further subsurface 
disturbance if the NAHC is unable to identify an Most Likely Descendant or if the Most Likely Descendant fails to make a 
recommendation within 48 hours after being granted access to the site. The applicant(s) or its authorized representative 

may also reinter the remains in a location not subject to further disturbance if it rejects the recommendation of the Most 
Likely Descendant and mediation by the NAHC fails to provide measures acceptable to the landowner. Ground 

disturbance in the zone of suspended activity shall not recommence without authorization from the archaeologist. 

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's jurisdictional boundaries must be coordinated by the 

applicant(s) of each applicable project phase with the affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento 

Counties, or Caltrans). 

The applicants shall be required to submit to the City proof of compliance in the form of a completed training roster 

and copy of training materials. 

CONCLUSION 
While consultation with regulatory agencies regarding cultural resources mitigation has been on-going and resulted 

in the development of refined mitigation program for the project, this mitigation program is consistent with the 
activities recommended in the mitigation adopted for the FPASP. No new significant or substantially more severe 

cultural resources impacts would occur with the project. Therefore, the findings of the certified EIR/EIS remain valid 

and no further analysis is required. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-29 

Page 361

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist 

4.6 ENERGY 

Environmental Issue Area 

6. Energy. Would the project: 

a. Result in potentially significant 
environmental impact due to wasteful, 
inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of 
energy resources, during project 
construction or operation? 

b. Conflict with or obstruct a state or local 
plan for renewable energy or energy 
efficiency? 

4.6.1 Discussion 

Where Impact Was 
Analyzed in the 

EIR/EIS. 

Setting pp. 3A.16-5 to 
3A.16-6, 3A.16-8 
Impact 3A.16-12 

Setting 3A.16-5 to 
3A.16-6, 3A.16-8 

No Impact 

Any New Circumstances 
Involving New Significant 
Impacts or Substantially 
More Severe Impacts? 

No 

No 

Any New 
Information 

Requiring New 
Analysis or 

Verification? 

No 

No 

Ascent Environmental 

Do Prior Environmental 
Documents Mitigations 

Address/Resolve 
Impacts? 

Yes 

Yes 

A comprehensive update to the CEQA Guidelines has been completed since certification of the FPASP Final 
EIR/EIS. Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines, which became effective on December 28, 2018, was revised to include 
Energy as a category of analysis. At the time of the EIR/EIS, energy was included in Appendix F of the CEQA 
Guidelines and increased energy demand was addressed under Utilities and Service Systems in the EIR/EIS. This 
analysis has been added, in response to the 2018 update to the CEQA Guidelines. However, as energy was 
previously addressed in the EIR/EIS, this analysis does not constitute new information of substantial importance 
under CEQA Guidelines section 15162. 

REGULATORY SETTING 
A variety of state and local laws and policies have been adopted since certification of the FPASP EIR/EIS. Key 
regulations and conservation planning issues applicable to the project are discussed below, but these changes in law 
do not constitute new information of substantial importance under CEQA Guidelines section 15162. 

State 

Senate Bill X1 -2 of 2011 and Senate Bill 350 of 2015 
SB X1-2 of 2011 requires all California utilities to generate 33 percent of their electricity from renewables by 2020. SB 
X1-2 sets a three-stage compliance period requiring all California utilities, including independently-owned utilities, 

energy service providers, and community choice aggregators, to generate 20 percent of their electricity from 
renewables by December 31, 2013; 25 percent by December 31, 2016; and 33 percent by December 31, 2020. SB X1-2 
also requires the renewable electricity standard to be met increasingly with renewable energy that is supplied to the 
California grid from sources within, or directly proximate to, California. SB X1-2 mandates that renewables from these 

sources make up at least 50 percent of the total renewable energy for the 2011-2013 compliance period, at least 65 
percent for the 2014-2016 compliance period, and at least 75 percent for 2016 and beyond. In October 2015, SB 350 

was signed into law, which requires retail sellers and publicly-owned utilities to procure 50 percent of their electricity 
from renewable resources by 2030. 

California Building Efficiency Standards (Title 24, Part 6) 
The 2019 Title 24 Part 6 Building Energy Efficiency Standards were adopted by the CEC on May 9, 2018 and took 
effect on January 1, 2020. The standards are designed to move to the State closer to its zero net energy goals for new 
residential development. It does so by requiring all new residences to install enough renewable energy to offset all 

4-30 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 362

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

the site electricity needs of each residential unit (CCR, Title 24, Part 6, Section 150.1(c)14). CEC estimates that the 
combination of mandatory on-site renewable energy and prescriptively-required energy efficiency features will result 
in new residential construction that uses 53 percent less energy than the 2016 standards. Nonresidential buildings are 
anticipated to reduce energy consumption by 30 percent compared to the 2016 standards primarily through 
prescriptive requirements for high-efficacy lighting (CEC 2018). The building efficiency standards are enforced 
through the local plan check and building permit process. Local government agencies may adopt and enforce 
additional energy standards for new buildings as reasonably necessary in response to local climatologic, geologic, or 
topographic conditions, provided that these standards are demonstrated to be cost effective and exceed the energy 
performance required by Title 24 Part 6. 

Local 
The City completed a general plan update since certification of the EIR/EIS in 2011. The Folsom City Council approved 
the Folsom 2035 General Plan on August 28, 2018. The following goals and policies of the Folsom 2035 General Plan 
are applicable to the project. 

Land Use Element 
GOAL LU 1.1 Retain and enhance Folsom's quality of life, unique identity, and sense of community while continuing to 
grow and change. 

• LU 1.1.13 Sustainable Building Practices: Promote and, where appropriate, require sustainable building practices 
that incorporate a "whole system" approach to designing and constructing buildings that consume less energy, 
water and other resources; facilitate natural ventilation; use daylight effectively; and, are healthy, safe, 
comfortable, and durable. 

• LU 1.1.14 Promote Resiliency: Continue to collaborate with nonprofit organizations, neighborhoods groups, and 
other community organizations, as well as upstream, neighboring, and regional groups to effectively partner on 
and promote the issues relating to air quality, renewable energy systems, sustainable land use, adaptation, and 
the reduction of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions. 

GOAL LU 6.1 Allow for a variety of housing types and mix of uses that provide choices for Folsom residents, create 
complete and livable neighborhoods, and encourage walking and biking. 

• LU 6.1.3 Efficiency Through Density: Support an overall increase in average residential densities in identified urban 
centers and mixed-use districts. Encourage new housing types to shift from lower-density, large-lot 
developments to higher-density, small-lot and multifamily developments, as a means to increase energy 
efficiency, conserve water, reduce waste, as well as increase access to services and amenities (e.g., open space) 
through an emphasis of mixed uses in these higher-density developments. 

• LU 9.1.10 Renewable and Alternative Energy Generation Systems: Require the use of solar, wind, or other on-site 
renewable energy generation systems as part of the design of new planned developments. 

Mobility Element 
GOAL M 4.1 Ensure a safe and efficient network of streets for cars and trucks, as well as provide an adequate supply 
of vehicle parking. 

• M 4.1.8 Energy Efficiency: Use the most energy-efficient light fixtures and technology for all traffic signals, street 
lights, roads, intersections, and bicycle and pedestrian signals. 

Natural and Cultural Resources Element 
GOAL NCR 3.2 Improve the sustainability of the community through continued local efforts to reduce GHG emissions. 

• NCR 3.2.3 Greenhouse Gas Reduction in New Development: Reduce greenhouse gas emissions from new 
development by encouraging development that lowers vehicle miles traveled (VMT), and discouraging auto
dependent sprawl and dependence on the private automobile; promoting development that is compact, mixed
use, pedestrian friendly, and transit oriented; promoting energy-efficient building design and site planning; 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-31 

Page 363

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental 

improving the jobs/housing ratio; and other methods of reducing emissions while maintaining the balance of 
housing types Folsom is known for. 

Public Facilities and Services Element 
GOAL PFS 8.1 Provide for the energy and telecommunications needs of Folsom and decrease dependence on 

nonrenewable energy sources through energy conservation, efficiency, and renewable resource strategies now and in 
the future. 

• PFS 8.1.3 Renewable Energy: Promote efforts to increase the use of renewable energy resources such as wind, 
solar, hydropower, and biomass both in the community and in City operations, where feasible. 

• PFS 8.1.3 Regional Energy Conservation: Partner with neighboring jurisdictions and local energy utilities (e.g., 
SMUD and PG&E) to develop, maintain, and implement energy conservation programs. 

• PFS 8.1.5 PACE Program: Assist in implementing the Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) financing programs 

to provide residential and commercial property owners with energy efficiency and renewable energy financing 
opportunities. 

• PFS 8.1.6 Energy-Efficient Lighting: Reduce the energy required to light Folsom's parks and public facilities by 
employing energy-efficient lighting technology. 

IMPACT DISCUSSION 
As described in Impact 3A.16-12 of the FPASP EIR/EIS, the FPASP would increase the consumption of energy. 
However, the FPASP would need to comply with Building Energy Efficiency Standards included in Title 24 of the 

California Code of Regulations and implement an Air Quality Management Plan. This impact (Impact 3A.16-12) was 
determined to be less than significant and no mitigation was required. 

The project would not result in an increase in unit development, land use acreage, vehicle miles traveled, or construction 

equipment for the FPASP area. Although energy consumption associated with electricity use would differ slightly 

between MHD, MLD, and MU land uses, the total number of units of MHD, MLD, and MU in the FPASP would not 

change; therefore, no substantial change in energy consumption would occur. In addition, multi-family residential units 

typically have higher energy efficiency standards, and thus have less energy consumption than mixed use developments. 
The project would comply with Title 24 requirements, which were updated in 2019 and include renewable energy and 
energy efficiency requirements to reduce energy consumption in new residences by 53 percent. 

Relevant plans that pertain to the efficient use of energy include the State 2008 Energy Action Plan Update, which 

focuses on energy efficiency; demand response; renewable energy; the supply and reliability of electricity, natural gas, 

and transportation fuels; and achieving GHG reduction targets (CEC and CPUC 2008). The FPASP would comply with 

the Building Energy Efficiency Standards included in Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations, which would align 

with the State 2008 Energy Action Plan Update. 

The project would not result in substantial land use changes or an increase in population from the approved FPASP. The 

project would comply with general plan policies related to renewable energy or energy efficiency and Title 24 Building 

Energy Efficiency Standards. The project would not conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for renewable energy or 

energy efficiency. Therefore, no new significant impacts or substantially more severe impacts would occur. The 

findings of the certified EIR/EIS remain valid and no further analysis is required. 

MITIGATION MEASURES 
No mitigation measures are required for the project for this issue. 

4-32 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 364

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

CONCLUSION 
This report updates the regulatory setting addressing energy and provides additional project-level energy analysis in 
accordance with the updated Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines, which became effective on December 28, 2018. 

While the updated information and the project-specific analyses provide additional detail for the project site, this 

analysis is based on the standards in effect at the time of the EIR/EIS. At the time of the EIR/EIS, energy was included 

in Appendix F of the CEQA Guidelines and increased energy demand was addressed under Utilities and Service 
Systems in the EIR/EIS. Therefore, this report would not constitute new information of substantial importance under 
CEQA Guidelines section 15162. The proposed amendment to the FPASP would not result in new or substantially 

more severe significant impacts to energy. Therefore, no additional analysis is required. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-33 

Page 365

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental 

4.7 GEOLOGY AND SOILS 
Any New Circumstances Any New 

Do Prior Environmental 
Where Impact Was Involving New Information 

Documents Mitigations 
Environmental Issue Area Analyzed in the Significant Impacts or Requiring New 

Address/Resolve 
EIR/EIS. Substantially More Analysis or 

Impacts? 
Severe Impacts? Verification? 

7. Geology and Soils. Would the project 

a. Directly or indirectly cause potential Setting pp. 3A.7-3 to No No Yes 
substantial adverse effects, including the 3A.7-5, 3A.7-18, 3A.7-
risk of loss, injury, or death involving: 19 
i. Rupture of a known earthquake fault, Impacts 3A.7-1, 3A.7-2 

as delineated on the most recent 
Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning 
Map issued by the State Geologist for 
the area or based on other substantial 
evidence of a known fault? (Refer to 
California Geological Survey Special 
Publication 42.) 

ii. Strong seismic ground shaking? 
iii. Seismic-related ground failure, 

including liquefaction? 
iv. Landslides? 

b. Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss Setting pp. 3A.7-5 to No No Yes 
of topsoil? 3A.7-6 

Impact 3A.7-3 

C. Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is Setting p. 3A.7-6 No No Yes 
unstable, or that would become unstable as Impacts 3A.7-4, 3A.7-S 
a result of the project, and potentially result 
in on-or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, 
subsidence, liquefaction, or collapse? 

d. Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Setting p. 3A.7-11 No No Yes 
Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building Code Impact 3A.7-6 
(1994, as updated), creating substantial 
direct or indirect risks to life or property? 

e. Have soils incapable of adequately Setting p. 3A.7-11 No No NA 
supporting the use of septic tanks or Impact 3A.7-7 
alternative wastewater disposal systems 
where sewers are not available for the 
disposal of wastewater? 

f. Directly or indirectly destroy a unique Setting pp. 3A.7-13 to No No Yes 
paleontological resource or site or unique 3A.7-17 
geologic feature? Impact 3A.7-10 

4. 7.1 Discussion 

REGULATORY SETTING 
The City has completed a general plan update since certification of the EIR/EIS in 2011. The Folsom City Council 
approved the Folsom 2035 General Plan on August 28, 2018. The following goals and policies of the Folsom 2035 

General Plan are applicable to the project, but do not constitute new information of substantial importance under 

CEQA Guidelines section 15162. 

4-34 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 366

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

Safety and Noise Element 
GOAL SN 2.1 Reduce risks and minimize impacts to the community from earthquakes and geologic hazards. 

• SN 2.1.1 Requirements: Develop, maintain, and implement land use planning, building construction, and retrofitting 

requirements consistent with State standards to reduce risk associated with geologic and seismic hazards. 

• SN 2.1.2 Roads, Bridges, and Utility Lines: Ensure that the design and engineering of new roads, bridges, and 

utility lines can withstand movement or ground failure associated with the seismic risk in Folsom consistent with 

State standards. 

• SN 2.1.4 Dredge Tailings: Require new development on dredge tailings to conform to the guidelines and 
regulations of the California Geological Survey. 

No other changes in regulatory settings related to geology and soils have occurred since the certification of the 
FPASP EIR/EIS. The regional and local settings remain the same as stated Section 3A.7. 

IMPACT DISCUSSION 
The project would involve development of the same areas examined in the FPASP EIR/EIS. A project-specific 

geotechnical report was completed in February 2018 by Wallace Kuhl & Associates (see Appendix C) and concluded that 
soils located at the Alder Creek Apartments site would be capable of supporting multi-family residential development at 

the project site. As noted in the FPASP EIR/EIS, the risks of seismic-related ground shaking, seismic-related ground 

failure, liquefaction, and landslides are low at the project site and the site is not located within or near an Alquist-Priolo 
Earthquake Fault Zone. In addition, the risks of substantial soil erosion, unstable soil or geologic units, and soil 

expansion are low and would further be reduced through recommendations outlined in the geotechnical analysis 

(Wallace Kuhl & Associates 2018). The findings of the geotechnical analysis are consistent with what was previously 

analyzed in the FPASP EIR/EIS. The project's shift in residential densities on areas already contemplated for multi
family residential and mixed use development in the FPASP will not result in any new or substantially more severe 
impacts to geological or soil conditions. 

In addition, because the development of the project would result in a similar footprint for ground disturbance as the 

approved FPASP, the impact conclusions pertaining to paleontological resources remain unchanged. The project site 

is underlain by Jurassic-aged Salt Springs Slate, Gopher Ridge Volcanic, and Copper Hill Volcanic formations (see 

Exhibit 3A.7-1 of the EIR/EIS) and would not contain vertebrate fossils or fossil plant assemblages, as described in 

Impact 3A.7-10 of the Draft EIR/EIS. The mitigation measures provided in the FPASP EIR/EIS would apply to the 

proposed project and no new or different mitigation would be required. 

MITIGATION MEASURES 
The following mitigation measures were referenced in the EIR/EIS analysis and would continue to remain applicable if 
the project were approved. 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.7-1a: Prepare Site-Specific Geotechnical Report per CBC Requirements and Implement 

Appropriate Recommendations 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.7-1b: Monitor Earthwork during Earthmoving Activities 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.7-3: Prepare and Implement the Appropriate Grading and Erosion Control Plan 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.7-5: Divert Seasonal Water Flows Away from Building Foundations 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.7-10: Conduct Construction Personnel Education, Stop Work if Archeological or 

Paleontological Resources Are Discovered, Assess the Significance of the Find, and Prepare and Implement a 
Recovery Plan as Required 

The EIR/EIS concluded that mitigation measures were adequate to reduce the risk regarding geology and soils to a less
than-significant level. 

City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-35 

Page 367

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental 

CONCLUSION 
No substantial changes in circumstances or the project have occurred nor has any new information of substantial 
importance been identified requiring new analysis or verification. Therefore, the conclusions of the EIR/EIS remain 
valid and approval of the project would not result in new or substantially more severe significant impacts to geology 
and soils. 

4-36 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 368

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental 

4.8 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS 

Environmental Issue Area 
Where Impact Was 

Analyzed in the 
EIR/EIS. 

8. Greenhouse Gas Emissions. Would the project: 

a. Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either 
directly or indirectly, that may have a 
significant impact on the environment? 

b. Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or 
regulation adopted for the purpose of 
reducing the emissions of greenhouse 
gases? 

4.8.1 Discussion 

Environmental 
Setting p. 3A.4-1 to 
3A.4-4; Regulatory 
Setting p. 3A.4-4 to 
3A.4-9 and updated 

below; 
Impact 3A.4-1 and 

Impact 3A.4-2. 

Same as above. 

Any New Circumstances 
Involving New 

Significant Impacts or 
Substantially More 
Severe Impacts? 

No 

No 

Any New 
Information 

Requiring New 
Analysis or 

Verification? 

No 

No 

Environmental Checklist 

Do Prior Environmental 
Documents' 
Mitigations 

Address/Resolve 
Impacts? 

Yes 

Yes 

Section 3A.4 of the FPASP EIR/EIS evaluated the FPASP's potential climate change impacts, including impacts 
associated with greenhouse gases (GHGs). While new information about the science of climate change has become 

available and the relationship between GHG emissions and land use planning has become better understood, 
impacts associated with GHGs were known at the time of the FPASP EIR/EIS and new information concerning GHGs 

does not constitute new significant information under Guidelines section 15162. Federal, state, and local laws and 

policies that have been adopted since certification of the FPASP EIR/EIS are discussed below. 

REGULATORY SETTING 
GHG emissions and responses to global climate change are regulated by a variety of federal, state, and local laws and 

policies. Key regulatory and conservation planning issues applicable to the project are discussed below. 

Federal 
In Massachusetts et al. v. Environmental Protection Agency et al., 549 U.S. 497 (2007), the Supreme Court of the United 

States ruled that carbon dioxide (CO2) is an air pollutant as defined under the federal Clean Air Act and that the U.S. 

Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) has the authority to regulate GHG emissions. 

In 2010, EPA started to address GHG emissions from stationary sources through its New Source Review permitting 

program, including operating permits for "major sources" issued under Title V of the federal Clean Air Act. 

EPA unveiled the Clean Power Plan was on August 3, 2015. The purpose of the plan was to reduce CO2 emissions from 

electrical power generation by 32 percent relative to 2005 levels within 25 years. EPA is proposing to repeal the Clean 

Power Plan because of a change to the legal interpretation of Section 111(d) of the Clean Air Act, on which the Clean 

Power Plan was based. The comment period on the proposed repeal closed April 26, 2018. A final ruling by EPA has 

not yet been issued. 

In October 2012, EPA and the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA), part of the U.S. Department of 

Transportation (DOT), issued final rules to further reduce GHG emissions and improve corporate average fuel 
economy (CAFE) standards for light-duty vehicles for model years 2017 and beyond (77 Federal Register [FR] 62624). 

These rules would increase fuel economy to the equivalent of 54.5 miles per gallon, limiting vehicle emissions to 163 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-37 

Page 369

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental 

grams of CO2 per mile for the fleet of cars and light-duty trucks by model year 2025 r,7 FR 62630). However, on April 

2, 2018, the EPA administrator announced a final determination that the current CAFE standards are not appropriate 
and should be revised. On August 2, 2018, DOT and EPA proposed the Safer Affordable Fuel-Efficient Vehicles Rule 
(SAFE Rule), which would amend existing CAFE and tailpipe CO2 emissions standards for passenger cars and light 

trucks and establish new standards covering model years 2021 through 2026. The proposal retains the model year 
2020 standards for both programs through model year 2026 (NHTSA 2018). 

Part One of the Federal SAFE Rule went into effect on November 26, 2019, revoking California's existing CAA waiver 

to establish more stringent standards related to GHGs (84 FR 51310). Part Two of the SAFE Rule is forthcoming from 

EPA and is expected to clarify and confirm the proposed amendments to CAFE and tailpipe CO2 standards. 

State 

AB 32 Climate Change Scoping Plan and Update 
In December 2008, CARB adopted its Climate Change Scoping Plan, which contains the main strategies California will 

implement to achieve reduction of approximately 118 million metric tons (MMT) of COrequivalent (CO2e) emissions, 
or approximately 21.7 percent from the state's projected 2020 emission level of 545 MMT of CO2e under a business

as-usual scenario (this is a reduction of 47 MMT CO2e, or almost 10 percent, from 2008 emissions). CARB's original 

2020 projection was 596 MMT CO2e, but this revised 2020 projection considers the economic downturn that occurred 

in 2008 (CARB 2011). The Scoping Plan reapproved by CARB in August 2011 includes the Final Supplement to the 

Scoping Plan Functional Equivalent Document, which further examined various alternatives to Scoping Plan measures. 

The Scoping Plan also includes (ARB-recommended GHG reductions for each emissions sector of the state's GHG 

inventory. CARB estimates the largest reductions in GHG emissions to be achieved will be by implementing the 

following measures and standards (CARB 2011): 

• improved emissions standards for light-duty vehicles (estimated reductions of 26.1 MMT CO2e), 

• the Low-Carbon Fuel Standard (15.0 MMT CO2e), 

• energy efficiency measures in buildings and appliances (11.9 MMT CO2e), 

• a renewable portfolio and electricity standards for electricity production (23.4 MMT CO2e), and 

• the Cap-and-Trade Regulation for certain types of stationary emission sources (e.g., power plants). 

In May 2014, CARB released and has since adopted the First Update to the Climate Change Scoping Plan to identify 

the next steps in reaching AB 32 goals and evaluate the progress that has been made between 2000 and 2012 (CARB 

2014:4 and 5). According to the update, California is on track to meet the near-term 2020 GHG limit and is well 
positioned to maintain and continue reductions beyond 2020 (CARB 2014:ES-2). The update also reports the trends in 

GHG emissions from various emission sectors. 

The update summarizes sector-specific actions needed to stay on the path toward the 2050 target. While the update 
acknowledges certain reduction targets by others (such as in the Copenhagen Accord), it stops short of 

recommending a specific target for California, instead acknowledging that mid-term targets need to be set 

"consistent with the level of reduction needed [by 2050] in the developed world to stabilize warming at 2°C (3.6°F) 

[above pre-industrial levels]." 

After releasing multiple versions of proposed updates in 2017, CARS adopted the final version titled California's 2017 

Climate Change Scoping Plan (2017 Scoping Plan) in December (CARB 2017). The 2017 Scoping Plan indicates that 

California is on track to achieve the 2020 statewide GHG target mandated by AB 32 of 2006 (CARB 2017:9). It also lays 

out the framework for achieving the mandate of SB 32 of 2016 to reduce statewide GHG emissions to at least 40 

percent below 1990 levels by the end of 2030 (CARB 2017). The 2017 Scoping Plan identifies the GHG reductions 

needed by each emissions sector. 

The 2017 Scoping Plan also identifies how GHGs associated with proposed projects could be evaluated under CEQA 

(CARB 2017:101-102). Specifically, it states that achieving "no net increase" in GHG emissions is an appropriate overall 

objective of projects evaluated under CEQA if conformity with an applicable local GHG reduction plan cannot be 

4-38 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 370

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

demonstrated. CARB recognizes that it may not be appropriate or feasible for every development project to mitigate 
its GHG emissions to zero and that an increase in GHG emissions due to a project may not necessarily imply a 
substantial contribution to the cumulatively significant environmental impact of climate change. 

Executive Order B-30-15 
On April 20, 2015, Executive Order (EO) B-30-15 was signed into law and established a California GHG reduction 
target of 40 percent below 1990 levels by 2030. The Governor's EO aligns California's GHG reduction targets with 
those of leading international governments such as the 28-nation European Union, which adopted the same target in 
October 2014. California is on track to meet or exceed the target of reducing GHG emissions to 1990 levels by 2020, 
as established in the California Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006 (AB 32, discussed above). California's new 
emission reduction target of 40 percent below 1990 levels by 2030 sets the next interim step in the State's continuing 
efforts to pursue the long-term target expressed under EO S-3-05 to reach the goal of reducing emissions 80 percent 
below 1990 levels by 2050. This is in line with the scientifically established levels needed in the U.S. to limit global 
warming below 2 degrees Celsius, the warming threshold at which major climate disruptions are projected, such as 
super droughts and rising sea levels. 

Senate Bill 32 and Assembly Bill 197 of 2016 
In August 2016, SB 32 and AB 197 were signed into law and serve to extend California's GHG reduction programs 
beyond 2020. SB 32 amended the Health and Safety Code to include Section 38566, which contains language to 
authorize CARB to achieve a statewide GHG emission reduction of at least 40 percent below 1990 levels by no later 
than December 31, 2030. SB 32 codified the targets established by EO B-30-15 for 2030, which set the next interim 
step in the State's continued efforts to pursue the long-term target expressed in EOs S-3-05 and B-30-15 of 80 
percent below 1990 emissions levels by 2050. 

Senate Bill X1 -2 of 2011 and Senate Bill 350 of 2015 
SB X1-2 of 2011 requires all California utilities to generate 33 percent of their electricity from renewables by 2020. SB 
X1-2 sets a three-stage compliance period requiring all California utilities, including independently-owned utilities, 
energy service providers, and community choice aggregators, to generate 20 percent of their electricity from 
renewables by December 31, 2013; 25 percent by December 31, 2016; and 33 percent by December 31, 2020. SB X1-2 
also requires the renewable electricity standard to be met increasingly with renewable energy that is supplied to the 
California grid from sources within, or directly proximate to, California. SB X1-2 mandates that renewables from these 
sources make up at least 50 percent of the total renewable energy for the 2011-2013 compliance period, at least 65 
percent for the 2014-2016 compliance period, and at least 75 percent for 2016 and beyond. In October 2015, SB 350 
was signed into law, which requires retail sellers and publicly-owned utilities to procure 50 percent of their electricity 
from renewable resources by 2030. 

Legislation Associated with Electricity Generation 
The state has passed legislation requiring the increasing use of renewables to produce electricity for consumers. 
California utilities are required to generate 33 percent of their electricity from renewables by 2020 (SB X1-2 of 2011); 
52 percent by 2027 (California Renewables Portfolio Standard Program [SB 100 of 2018]); 60 percent by 2030 (also SB 
100 of 2018); and 100 percent by 2045 (also SB 100 of 2018). 

California Building Efficiency Standards (Title 24, Part 6) 
The 2019 Title 24 Part 6 Building Energy Efficiency Standards were adopted by the CEC on May 9, 2018 and will take 

effect on January 1, 2020. The standards are designed to move to the State closer to its zero net energy goals for new 
residential development. It does so by requiring all new residences to install enough renewable energy to offset all 
the site electricity needs of each residential unit (CCR, Title 24, Part 6, Section 150.1(c)14). CEC estimates that the 
combination of mandatory on-site renewable energy and prescriptively-required energy efficiency features will result 
in new residential construction that uses 53 percent less energy than the 2016 standards. Nonresidential buildings are 
anticipated to reduce energy consumption by 30 percent compared to the 2016 standards primarily through 
prescriptive requirements for high-efficacy lighting (CEC 2018). The building efficiency standards are enforced 
through the local plan check and building permit process. Local government agencies may adopt and enforce 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-39 

Page 371

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental 

additional energy standards for new buildings as reasonably necessary in response to local climatologic, geologic, or 
topographic conditions, provided that these standards are demonstrated to be cost effective and exceed the energy 
performance required by Title 24 Part 6. 

Senate Bill 743 of 2013 
SB 743 changes the way that public agencies evaluate the transportation impacts of projects under CEQA. The proposed 

revisions to the State CEQA Guidelines would establish new criteria for determining the significance of a project's 

transportation impacts that will more appropriately balance the needs of congestion management with statewide goals 

related to infill development, promotion of public health through active transportation, and reduction of GHGs. 

As detailed in SB 743, the Governor's Office of Planning and Research (QPR) was tasked with developing potential 
metrics to measure transportation impacts and replace the use of delay and level of service (LOS). 

In November 2017, QPR released its proposed changes to the CEQA Guidelines, including the addition of Section 

15064.3 that would implement SB 743 (OPR 2017a:77-90a). In support of these changes, OPR also published its 

Technical Advisory on Evaluating Transportation Impacts in CEQA, which recommends that the transportation impact 
of a project be based on whether it would generate a level of VMT per capita (or VMT per employee) that is 15 

percent lower than existing development in the region (QPR 2017b:12-13). OP R's technical advisory explains that this 

criterion is consistent with Section 21099 of the California Public Resources Code, which states that the criteria for 

determining significance must "promote the reduction in greenhouse gas emissions" (QPR 2017b:18). It is also 

consistent with the statewide per capita VMT reduction target developed by the California Department of 

Transportation (Caltrans) in its Strategic Management Plan, which calls for a 15 percent reduction in per capita VMT, 

compared to 2010 levels, by 2020 (Caltrans 2015:11). Additionally, the California Air Pollution Control Officers 

Association determined that a 15 percent reduction in VMT is typically achievable for projects (CAPCOA 2010:55) and 

the call for local governments to set communitywide GHG reduction targets of 15 percent below then-current levels 
by 2020 in CARB's First Update to the Climate Change Scoping Plan (CARB 2014:113). 

Section 15064.3 was added to CEQA in December 2018, requiring that transportation impacts no longer consider 

congestion but instead focus on the impacts of VMT. Agencies have until July 1, 2020 to implement these changes 

but can also choose to implement these changes immediately. 

Low Carbon Fuel Standard 
In January 2007, Executive Order S-01-07 established a Low Carbon Fuel Standard (LCFS). The EO calls for a statewide 

goal to be established to reduce the carbon intensity of California's transportation fuels by at least 10 percent by 

2020, and that a LCFS for transportation fuels be established for California. The LCFS applies to all refiners, blenders, 

producers, or importers ("Providers") of transportation fuels in California, including fuels used by off-road 

construction equipment (Wade, pers. comm. 2017). The LCFS is measured on the total fuel cycle and may be met 
through market-based methods (e.g., providers exceeding the performance required by an LCFS receive credits that 

may be applied to future obligations or traded to Providers not meeting LCFS). 

In June 2007, CARB adopted the LCFS as a Discrete Early Action item under AB 32 pursuant to Health and Safety 

Code Section 38560.5, and in April 2009, CARB approved the new rules and carbon intensity reference values with 

new regulatory requirements taking effect in January 2011. The standards require providers of transportation fuels to 

report on the mix of fuels they provide and demonstrate they meet the LCFS intensity standards annually. This is 

accomplished by ensuring that the number of "credits" earned by providing fuels with a lower carbon intensity than 
the established baseline (or obtained from another party) is equal to or greater than the "deficits" earned from selling 

higher intensity fuels. 

After some disputes in the courts, CARB re-adopted the LCFS regulation in September 2015, and the LCFS went into 
effect on January 1, 2016. 

Executive Order B-48-18: Zero-Emission Vehicles 
In January 2018, Executive Order B-48-18 was signed into law and requires all State entities to work with the private 
sector to have at least 5 million zero-emission vehicles (ZEVs) on the road by 2030, as well as install 200 hydrogen 

4-40 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 372

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

fueling stations and 250,000 electric vehicle charging stations by 2025. It specifies that 10,000 of the electric vehicle 

charging stations should be direct current fast chargers. This order also requires all State entities to continue to 
partner with local and regional governments to streamline the installation of ZEV infrastructure. The Governor's Office 

of Business and Economic Development is required to publish a Plug-in Charging Station Design Guidebook and 

update the 2015 Hydrogen Station Permitting Guidebook (Eckerle and Jones 2015) to aid in these efforts. All State 
entities are required to participate in updating the 2016 Zero-Emissions Vehicle Action Plan (Governor's lnteragency 

Working Group on Zero-Emission Vehicles 2016) to help expand private investment in ZEV infrastructure with a focus 
on serving low-income and disadvantaged communities. Additionally, all State entities are to support and 

recommend policies and actions to expand ZEV infrastructure at residential land uses, through the Low Carbon Fuel 
Standard Program, and recommend how to ensure affordability and accessibility for all drivers. 

Executive Order N-79-20: New Zero Emission Vehicle Standards 

On September 23, 2020, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-79-20 setting new statewide goals for phasing 
out gasoline-powered cars and trucks in California. Under the Order, 100% of in-state sales of new passenger cars 

and trucks are to be zero-emission by 2035; 100% of in-state sales of medium- and heavy-duty trucks and buses are 

to be zero-emission by 2045, but only where feasible; and 100% of off-road vehicles and equipment sales are to be 
zero-emission by 2035 where feasible. The Order also directed several state agencies to undertake actions to further 
these goals in a variety of ways. 

Local 

Folsom 2035 General Plan 
Since certification of the EIR/EIS in 2011, the City has adopted the Folsom 2035 General Plan. The general plan 

includes policies applicable to the project, specifically related to greenhouse gas reduction, as described below. These 

policies are included in the City's Greenhouse Gas Emissions Reduction Strategy included in Appendix A of the 
Folsom 2035 General Plan. 

GOAL NCR 3.2 Improve the sustainability of the community through continued local efforts to reduce GHG emissions. 

• NCR 3.2.1 Community Greenhouse Gas Reductions: Reduce community GHG emissions by 15 percent below 2005 
baseline levels by 2020, and further reduce community emissions by: 

• 40 percent below the 2020 target by 2030; 

• 51 percent below the 2020 target by 2040; and, 

• 80 percent below the 2020 target by 2050. 

• NCR 3.2.3 Greenhouse Gas Reduction in New Development: Reduce greenhouse gas emissions from new 

development by encouraging development that lowers VMT, and discouraging auto-dependent sprawl and 

dependence on the private automobile; promoting development that is compact, mixed-use, pedestrian friendly, and 
transit oriented; promoting energy-efficient building design and site planning; improving the jobs/housing ratio; and 

other methods of reducing emissions while maintaining the balance of housing types Folsom is known for. 

• NCR 3.2.6 Coordination with SMAQMD: Coordinate with SMAQMD to ensure projects incorporate feasible 
mitigation measures to reduce GHG emissions and air pollution from both construction and operations, if not 

already provided for through project design. 

• NCR 3.2.7 Preference for Reduced-Emission Equipment: Require contractors to use reduced-emission equipment 
for City construction projects and contracts for services. 

• NCR 3.2.8 GHG Analysis Streamlining for Projects Consistent with the General Plan: Projects subject to 

environmental review under CEQA may be eligible for tiering and streamlining the analysis of GHG emissions, 

provided they are consistent with the GHG reduction measures included in the General Plan and EIR. The City 

may review such projects to determine whether the following criteria are met: 

• Proposed project is consistent with the General Plan land use designation for the project site; 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-41 

Page 373

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental 

• Proposed project incorporates all applicable GHG reduction measures (documented in the Climate Change 
Technical Appendix to the General Plan EIR) as enforceable mitigation measures in the CEQA document 

prepared for the project; and, 

• Proposed project clearly demonstrates the method, timing and process for which the project will comply with 

applicable GHG reduction measures and/or conditions of approval, (e.g., using a CAP/GHG reduction 

measures consistency checklist, mitigation monitoring and reporting plan, or other mechanism for 

monitoring and enforcement as appropriate). 

IMPACT DISCUSSION 

Construction-Generated Greenhouse Gas Emissions 
Construction-related GHG emissions were analyzed under Impact 3A.4-1 of the FPASP EIR/EIS. Modeling was 

conducted using the Urban Emissions Model and estimated that approximately 50,456 MT CO2e would be generated 

by construction activity during the multiple-decade buildout period of the FPASP, including the project site. Because 
of the intensity and duration of construction activities associated with all development under the FPASP, including the 

project site, and presuming that this level of construction-generated GHG emissions would be substantial compared 
to other construction projects in the region and in the state, the analysis determined that construction-generated 

GHG emission levels would have a substantial contribution to GHGs that cause climate change. Therefore, the 

analysis concluded, GHG emissions associated with construction under the FPASP would result in a cumulatively 

considerable incremental contribution to this significant and unavoidable cumulative impact. 

SMAQMD did not have a recommended threshold for evaluating construction-related GHGs at the time of the FPASP 

EIR/EIS was prepared. Since that time, however, SMAQMD has developed a mass emission threshold of 1,100 MT 

CO2e/year for determining whether construction-generated GHG emissions are significant (SMAQMD 2009:6-9). 
Based on 50,456 MT CO2e provided in the FPASP EIR/EIS for construction of the entire FPASP, GHG emissions 

generated by construction of the FPASP (including the project) would exceed SMAQMD's threshold. The new 

threshold does not constitute "new information" as defined in CEQA Guidelines Section 15162 and information 

concerning impacts attributable to GHGs was known at the time the FPASP EIR/EIS was prepared. 

The types of emissions-generating construction activity would generally be the same under the project as evaluated 

in the FPASP EIR/EIS, as well as the quantity of land that would be developed and the intensity and pace of 
construction. The project would result in more dwelling units and higher land use density at the Alder Creek 

Apartments site than the adopted specific plan. The increases would be offset by a reduction in dwelling units in 

other parts of the FPASP outside the Alder Creek Apartments site. Overall, development within the Alder Creek 

Apartments site under the amended plan would be similar in area, size, and intensity to what was approved under 
the FPASP. For these reasons it is not anticipated that the project would result in any new circumstances involving 

new significant impacts or substantially more severe impacts pertaining to construction-related GHG emissions than 
were identified in the FPASP EIR/EIS. 

Implementation of Mitigation Measure 3A.2-1a, which focuses on reducing construction-generated emissions of criteria 
air pollutants and precursors, would also result in reductions in construction-generated GHGs. Furthermore, Mitigation 

Measure 3A.4-1 requires implementation of additional measures to minimize construction-generated GHG emissions. 
These mitigation measures would generally result in the same reductions in GHG emissions under the project as the 

adopted FPASP. Therefore, the conclusions of the EIR/EIS remain valid and no additional analysis is required. 

Operational Greenhouse Gas Emissions 
GHG emissions and associated climate change impacts of the approved FPASP were evaluated in Section 3A.4 of the 

2010 FPASP EIR/EIS. The methods of analysis for GHG estimation have evolved since the FPASP EIR/EIS was prepared. 

Since that time, the Urban Emissions model (URBEMIS) that was used in the FPASP EIR/EIS analysis was replaced with 

CalEEMod. CalEEMod is now the widely-recognized modeling tool by air districts in California for estimating GHG 

emissions for development projects, including SMAQMD (SMAQMD 2009:6-8). Also, SMAQMD now recommends a 

specific threshold of significance for evaluating GHG emissions from land use development projects, as discussed 

4-42 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 374

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

above. The replacement of URBEMIS with CalEEMod, as well as the new threshold and guidance recommended by 
SMAQMD, do not constitute "new information" as defined in CEQA Guidelines Section 15162, and information 
concerning impacts from GHGs was known at the time the FPASP EIR/EIS was prepared and modeling methodologies 
similar to what is now used were available to estimate emissions. 

Impact 3A.4-2 of the FPASP EIR/EIS determined that although future regulations would likely reduce project
generated GHGs, the quantity and effectiveness of such GHG reductions was uncertain and reduction measures 
promulgated under AB 32 may not be sufficient to achieve CARB's recommended 30 percent reduction from 
business-as-usual emissions levels projected for 2020 or the CO2e per service population per year (CO2e/SP/year) 
goals of 4.36 CO2e/SP/year for development before 2020 and 3.68 CO2e/SP/year for development before 2030. 
Implementation of Mitigation Measures 3A.4-2a and 3A.4-2b requires the implementation of all feasible GHG 

reduction measures known at the time of the EIR/EIS. However, the EIR/EIS concluded that the attainment of the 
applicable GHG reduction goal was still uncertain, and therefore, impacts related to GHG reductions would be 
significant and unavoidable. 

Land use changes included under the project would result in a similar land-use intensity as previously evaluated in 
the FPASP EIR/EIS. The following land use types and quantities were adopted under the FPASP for the Alder Creek 
Apartments site: 

• Multi-Family Low Density (MLD): 58 dwelling units 

• Multi-Family High Density (MHD): 145 dwelling units 

The following land use types and quantities were adopted under the FPASP for the area outside the Alder Creek 
Apartments site: 

• Mixed Use (MU): 346 dwelling units 

• Total Project area: 546 dwelling units 

Land use changes proposed as part of the project would result in the following land uses and densities for the Alder 
Creek Apartments site: 

• Multi-Family High Density (MHD): 265 dwelling units 

Land use changes proposed as part of the project would result in the following land uses and densities for the area 
outside the Alder Creek Apartments site: 

• Mixed Use (MU): 281 dwelling units 

• Total Project area: 546 dwelling units 

The project would result in an increase of 120 multi-family high-density units, and a decrease of 58 multi-family 
medium density units at the Alder Creek Apartments site. This reduction of 58 medium density dwelling units and 
increase of 120 high density dwelling units would be offset through development density transfers to areas outside 
the Alder Creek Apartments site. With the proposed development density transfers, the project would result in a no 

net change in dwelling units, population, or gross FPASP area. 

In compliance with Mitigation Measure 3A.4-2a of the EIR/EIS, long-term operational emissions of GHGs were 

calculated using CalEEMod Version 2016.3.2 software, as recommended by SMAQMD. Adjustments were also made 
to the SMUD GHG intensity factors based on the SB 100 California Renewables Portfolio Standard (RPS) program. As 
construction of the project would be completed by 2024, the SB 100 target of 44 percent of total retail electricity 
sales in California deriving from eligible renewable energy resources was used to adjust the GHG intensity factors. 
Additionally, considering the CEC's 2019 Building Energy Efficiency Standards (California Code of Regulations Title 24, 
Part 6), newly built multi-family homes will use about 7 percent less energy due to energy efficiency measures 
compared to those built under the 2016 standard, which will also result in reduced GHG emissions. Finally, the 2019 
standards require the use of low-flow indoor water fixtures in all new residential housing and that 100 percent of 
electricity consumption demands will be met by on-site solar photovoltaic systems. Compliance with all 2019 energy 
standard requirements was assumed when adjusting parameters in the CalEEMod model. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-43 

Page 375

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental 

In the final analysis after adjustments, operational GHG emissions were calculated to be 1,510 MT-CO2e/year for the 
Alder Creek Apartments site. The project would not result in a higher land use intensity, an increase in unit development, 
land use acreage, vehicle miles traveled, or construction equipment for the FPASP area. Although energy consumption 
and GHG emissions associated with electricity use would differ between MHD, MLD, and MU land uses, the total 
number of units of MHD, MLD, and MU in the FPASP would not change; therefore, energy consumption and associated 
GHG emissions would not increase over what was previously evaluated. Additionally, as discussed above, the project 
would comply with Title 24 requirements, which were updated in 2019 and include renewable energy and energy 
efficiency requirements, and thus would result in lesser impacts than those assumed under the FPASP EIR/EIS. Further, 
the project does not change the land use type (i.e., residential) from what was previously evaluated, and therefore, 
vehicle-related emissions would not be anticipated to increase. For these reasons, it is determined that the project 
would not result in more severe impacts with respect to its contribution of GHG emissions or result in an increase in 
GHG emissions per service population in comparison to emissions quantified for the FPASP. Operation of the Alder 
Creek Apartments site would not result in any new circumstances involving new significant impacts or substantially more 
severe impacts related to GHG emissions than were identified in the FPASP EIR/EIS. 

The analysis under Impact 3A.4-2 of the FPASP EIR/EIS determined that the FPASP would result in the loss of blue oak 
woodland and individual oak trees, which are a form of carbon storage and sequester carbon from the atmosphere. 
Therefore, the applicant still must fulfill the requirements of Mitigation Measure 3A.4-2b in the FPASP EIR/EIS. 
Mitigation Measure 3A.4-2b requires the applicant to participate in and implement an urban and community forestry 
program and/or off-site tree program to off-set loss in carbon sequestration associated with any removal of onsite 
trees. The conclusions of the EIR/EIS remain valid and approval of the project would not result in new or substantially 
more severe significant impacts. 

Consistency with an Applicable Greenhouse Gas Emissions Reduction Plan 
As discussed in (a), above, the types and amount of GHG-generating construction activity, as well as the reductions 
resulting from required mitigation, would generally be the same under the project as the approved FPASP for the 
Alder Creek Apartments site. The project would not result in any new circumstances involving new significant impacts 
or substantially more severe impacts pertaining to construction-generated GHG emissions then were identified in the 
FPASP EIR/EIS. 

As discussed in (a), above, the project would have no net change in dwelling units, would not result in increased land 
use intensity, would not change FPASP total daily traffic, and would comply with more stringent regulations related to 
GHG reductions than previously evaluated in the FPASP EIR/EIS. Therefore, operational GHG emissions under the 
project would not conflict with GHG reduction targets or conflict with the AB 32 Scoping Plan beyond impacts 

previously evaluated in the FPASP EIR/EIS. Therefore, the conclusions of the EIR/EIS remain valid and approval of the 
project would not result in new or substantially more severe significant impacts. 

MITIGATION MEASURES 
The following mitigation measures were referenced in the EIR/EIS analysis and would continue to remain applicable if 

the project were approved. 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.4-1: Implement Additional Measures to Control Construction-Generated GHG Emissions 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.4-2a: Implement Additional Measures to Reduce Operational GHG Emissions 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.4-2b: Participate in and Implement an Urban and Community Forestry Program and/or 
Off-Site Tree Program to Off-Set Loss of On-Site Trees 

CONCLUSION 
This report updates the environmental setting addressing GHG's and provides additional project-level GHG analysis. 
While the updated information and the project-specific analyses provide additional detail for the project site, the 
proposed amendment to the FPASP would not result in new or substantially more severe significant impacts to 
greenhouse gases. Additionally, there are no substantial changes in circumstances or new information of substantial 
importance related to GHGs. Therefore, the conclusions of the EIR/EIS remain valid. 

4-44 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 376

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

4.9 HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 
Any New Circumstances Any New 

Do Prior Environmental 
Where Impact Was 

Involving New Information 
Documents Mitigations 

Environmental Issue Area 
Analyzed in the EIR 

Significant Impacts or Requiring New 
Address/Resolve 

Substantially More Analysis or 
Impacts? 

Severe Impacts? Verification? 

9. Hazards and Hazardous Materials. Would the project: 

a. Create a significant hazard to the public or Setting pp. 3A.8-11, No No NA 
the environment through the routine 3A.8-12 
transport, use, or disposal of hazardous Impact 3A.8-1 
materials? 

b. Create a significant hazard to the public or Setting p. 3A.8-13 No No Yes 
the environment through reasonably Impact 3A.8-2 
foreseeable upset and/or accident 
conditions involving the release of 
hazardous materials into the environment? 

c. Emit hazardous emissions or handle Setting p. 3A.8-13 No No Yes 
hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, Impact 3A.8-2 
substances, or waste within one-quarter 
mile of an existing or proposed school? 

d. Be located on a site which is included on a Setting p. 3A.8-2 to No No Yes 
list of hazardous materials sites compiled 3A.8-9 
pursuant to Government Code Section Impact 3A.8-3 
65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a 
significant hazard to the public or the 
environment? 

e. For a project located within an airport land Setting p. 3A.8-18 No No NA 
use plan or, where such a plan has not been No Impact 
adopted, within two miles of a public airport 
or public use airport, would the project 
result in a safety hazard or excessive noise 
for people residing or working in the 
project area? 

f. Impair implementation of or physically Setting p. 3A.8-14 No No NA 
interfere with an adopted emergency Impact 3A.8-4 
response plan or emergency evacuation 
plan? 

g. Expose people or structures, either directly Setting pp. 3A.8-18, No No NA 
or indirectly, to a significant risk of loss, 3A.8-19 
injury or death involving wildland fires? No Impact 

h. Create a significant hazard to the public Setting pp.3A.8-13, No No Yes 
through use of explosive materials in 3A.8-14 
grading or earth-moving activities? Impact 3A.8-5 

i. Expose project residents to excessive Setting pp. 3A.8-7, No No Yes 
electrical or magnetic fields? 3A.8-11, 3A.8-12, 3A.8-

13, 3A.8-15 
Impact 3A.8-6 

j. Create public health hazards from increased Setting pp. 3A.8-10, No No Yes 
exposure to mosquitoes by providing 3A.8-15 
substantial new habitat for mosquitoes or Impact 3A.8-7 
other vectors? 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-45 

Page 377

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental 

4. 9.1 Discussion 

REGULATORY SETTING 
The City has completed a general plan update since certification of the EIR/EIS in 2011. The Folsom City Council 
approved the Folsom 2035 General Plan on August 28, 2018. The following goals and policies of the Folsom 2035 
General Plan are applicable to the project, but do not constitute new information of substantial importance under 
CEQA Guidelines section 15162. 

Safety and Noise Element 
GOAL SN 1.1 Maintain an effective response to emergencies, provide support and aid in a crisis and repair and rebuild 
after a crisis. 

• SN 1.1.1 Emergency Operations Plan: Develop, maintain, and implement an Emergency Operations Plan that 
addresses life and safety protection, medical care, incident stabilization, property conservation, evacuation, 
escape routes (including back-up escape routes), mutual aid agreements, temporary housing, and 
communications. 

• SN 1.1.3 Cooperation: Coordinate with emergency response agencies, school districts, utilities, relevant nonprofits, 
and business interests to ensure a coordinated response to and recovery from a disaster. 

• SN 1.1.4 Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan: Maintain on-going hazard assessment as part of the Sacramento County 
Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan within the city. 

GOAL SN 2.1 Reduce risks and minimize impacts to the community from earthquakes and geologic hazards. 

• SN 2.1.3 Asbestos: Require new development projects in areas containing naturally-occurring asbestos to 
mitigate the hazards associated with asbestos consistent with State Law. 

GOAL SN 5.1 Protect the health and welfare of the residents of Folsom through the management and regulation of 
hazardous materials in a manner that focuses on preventing problems. 

• SN 5.1.1 Hazardous Materials Management System: Coordinate with industry, community groups, and 
government agencies to maintain and implement an effective, workable, and fair hazardous materials 
management system. 

• SN 5.1.3 Workplace Safety: Encourage the effective implementation of workplace safety regulations and assure 
that hazardous material information is available to users and employees. 

• SN 5.1.4 Transport of Hazardous Materials: Strive to protect residents and sensitive facilities from avoidable 
incidents in the transportation of hazardous materials in the county. 

No other changes in the environmental and regulatory settings related to hazards and hazardous materials, 
described in EIR/EIS Section 3A.8 Hazards and Hazardous Materials - Land, have occurred since certification of the 

EIR/EIS in 2011. The EIR/EIS included three criteria that are not included in the current Appendix G of the CEQA 
guidelines, these criteria are addressed below. 

IMPACT DISCUSSION 
A project-specific Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) was prepared in 2017 by Wallace Kuhl & Associates, 
see Appendix D. The ESA prepared by Wallace Kuhl & Associates used the Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment 
prepared for the FPASP EIR/EIS as well as other records and interviews to confirm the lack of hazards on the project 
site. The ESA concluded that no identified hazards existing on the project site (Wallace Kuhl & Associates 2017). The 
types of activities occurring on the site related to hazardous materials would be the same as those analyzed in the 
FPASP EIR/EIS and the same land area would be developed. The FPASP EIR/EIS explains how the project would be 

4-46 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 378

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

required by law to implement and comply with existing hazardous material regulations. This project would not 
change that requirement. 

The nearest airport, Sacramento Mather Airport, is located approximately seven miles southwest of the FPASP. 
Therefore, impacts related to airport or private airfield safety were not discussed in the EIR/EIS. No new airports have 

been developed near the project area. Implementation of the project would not conflict with any adopted emergency 
response or evacuation plans. As described on page 3A.8-18 of the EIR/EIS, the FPASP was not located in an area with 

significant risk related to wildland fires and no detailed analysis related to this topic was evaluated. No changes to the 

location of the project have occurred and no changes to the risks from wildfires has occurred since approval of the 
FPASP. In addition, no changes related to electrical transmission lines or mosquito-borne health hazards have 

occurred and the project would comply with all applicable mitigation measures. 

Nothing about the project would alter the analysis of hazards and hazardous materials in the FPASP EIR/EIS. No new 

or substantially more severe hazardous materials impacts would occur. 

MITIGATION MEASURES 
The following mitigation measures were referenced in the EIR/EIS analysis and would continue to remain applicable if 

the project was approved. 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.8-5: Prepare and Implement a Blasting Safety Plan in Consultation with a Qualified Blaster 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.8-6: Prudent Avoidance and Notification of EMF Exposure 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.8-7: Prepare and Implement a Vector Control Plan in Consultation with the Sacramento-Yolo 
Mosquito and Vector Control District 

CONCLUSION 
No substantial changes in circumstances or the project related to hazards and hazardous materials have occurred nor 

has any new information of substantial importance been identified requiring new analysis or verification. Therefore, 

the conclusions of the EIR/EIS remain valid and approval of the project would not result in new or substantially more 

severe significant impacts. No additional analysis is required. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-47 

Page 379

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental 

4.10 HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY 
Any New Circumstances Any New 

Do Prior Environmental 
Where Impact Was Involving New Information 

Documents Mitigations 
Environmental Issue Area Analyzed in the Significant Impacts or Requiring New 

Address/Resolve 
EIR/EIS. Substantially More Analysis or 

Impacts? 
Severe Impacts? Verification? 

10. Hydrology and Water Quality. Would the Project 

a. Violate any water quality standards or waste Setting pp. A.9-10 to No No Yes 
discharge requirements or otherwise 3A.9-23 
substantially degrade surface or Impacts 3A.9-1 and 
groundwater quality? 3A.9-3 

b. Substantially decrease groundwater Setting pp. 3A.9-5 to No No NA 
supplies or interfere substantially with 3A.9-6 
groundwater recharge such that the project Impact 3A.9-6 
may impede sustainable groundwater 
management of the basin? 

C. Substantially alter the existing drainage Setting pp. 3A.9-1 to No No Yes 
pattern of the site or area, including through 3A.9-5 
the alteration of the course of a stream or Impacts 3A.9-1, 
river or through the addition of impervious 3A.9-2, 3A.9-3 and 
surfaces, in a manner which would: 3A.9-5 

Result in substantial erosion or siltation 
on- or off-site; 

ii. Substantially increase the rate or 
amount of surface runoff in a manner 
which would result in fiooding on- or 
off-site; 

iii. Create or contribute runoff water which 
would exceed the capacity of existing 
or planned storm water drainage 
systems or provide substantial 
additional sources of polluted runoff; or 

iv. impede or redirect fiood flows? 

d. In flood hazard, tsunami, or seiche zones, Setting pp. 3A.7-5 No No Yes 
risk release of pollutants due to project and 3A.9-20 
inundation? Impact 3A.9-4 

e. Conflict with or obstruct implementation of Setting pp. 3A.9-5 to No No Yes 
a water quality control plan or sustainable 3A.9-9 
groundwater management plan? Impacts 3A.9-1, 3A.9-3 

and 3A.9-6 

4.10.1 Discussion 

REGULATORY SETTING 
The City has completed a general plan update since certification of the EIR/EIS in 2011. The Folsom City Council 

approved the Folsom 2035 General Plan on August 28, 2018. The following goals and policies of the Folsom 2035 

General Plan are applicable to the project, but do not constitute new information of substantial importance under 

CEQA Guidelines section 15162. 

4-48 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 380

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

Natural and Cultural Resources Element 
GOAL NCR 4.1 Preserve and protect water quality in the city's natural water bodies, drainage systems, and groundwater basin. 

• NCR 4.1.1 Water Quality: Ensure the quality of drinking water meets City, State, and Federal standards. 

• NCR 4.1.2 Community Education: Consistent with requirements of stormwater quality permits, educate community 
members on the importance of water quality and the role streams and watersheds play in ensuring water quality. 

• NCR 4.1.3 Protection: Ensure the protection of riparian corridors, buffer zones, wetlands, and undeveloped open 

space areas to help protect water quality. 

• NCR 4.1.5 New Development: Require new development to protect natural drainage systems through site design, 

runoff reduction measures, and on-site water treatment (e.g., bioswales). 

• NCR 4.1.6 Low-Impact Development Require new development to protect the quality of water resources and 
natural drainage systems through site design, source controls, runoff reduction measures, BMPs, and Low-Impact 

Development (LID). 

Public Facilities and Services Element 
GOAL PFS 3.1 Maintain the City's water system to meet the needs of existing and future development while improving 
water system efficiency. 

• PFS 3.1.6 Water Quality: Ensure the provision of healthy, safe water for all users in Folsom through facilities, 
policies, programs, and regulations. 

GOAL PFS 5.1 Ensure adequate flood control and stormwater drainage. 

• PFS 5.1.1 Maintain Adequate Storm Drainage: Develop and maintain an adequate storm drainage system. 

• PFS 5.1.3 Urban Runoff: Strive to reduce the amount of urban runoff and seek to capture and treat runoff before 
it enters streams, lakes, and rivers, applicable only to new development. 

• PFS 5.1.4 Green Stormwater Infrastructure: Encourage "green infrastructure" design and LID techniques for 

stormwater facilities (i.e., using vegetation and soil to manage stormwater) to preserve and create open space 

and improve runoff water quality. 

Safety and Noise Element 
GOAL SN 3.1 Minimize the risk of flooding hazards to people, property, and the environment, 

• SN 3.1.1 200-Year Floodway: Regulate new development or construction within the 200-year floodway to assure 

that the water flows upstream and downstream from the new development or construction will not be altered 
from existing levels. 

• SN 3.1.4 Flood Control Costs: Minimize new development in the 200-year floodway to reduce the long-term 

public costs of building and maintaining flood control improvements, as required by FEMA and State law. 

• SN 3.1.5 Agency Coordination: Coordinate with local, regional, State, and Federal agencies with responsibility for 

flood management to minimize flood hazards and improve safety. 

No substantial change in the environmental and regulatory settings related to hydrology and water quality, described in 

EIR/EIS Section 3A.9 Hydrology and Water Quality- Land, has occurred since certification of the EIR/EIS in 2011. 

IMPACT DISCUSSION 
The EIR/EIS addressed water quality impacts related to the approved FPASP in Section 3A.9, Hydrology and Water 

Quality. As described in Impacts 3A.9-1 and 3A.9-3, the FPASP could result in significant impacts to water quality 

because of soil disturbance during construction and alteration of water flows over the site. Implementation of 

Mitigation Measures 3A.9-1 and 3A.9-3 would reduce the impacts to a less-than-significant level by requiring a project

specific stormwater water quality maintenance plan and water quality maintenance plan. The project would continue to 
comply with mitigation requirements outlined in the adopted mitigation for the FPASP to reduce potential water quality 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-49 

Page 381

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental 

impacts from grading and construction activities. No new significant impacts or substantially more severe impacts would 

occur. Therefore, the findings of the certified EIR/EIS remain valid and no further analysis is required. 

The EIR/EIS addressed the FPASP's effect on groundwater recharge in Impact 3A.9-6. As described in this impact, the 
FPASP area experiences poor natural groundwater recharge and implementation of the FPASP would introduce new 
impervious surfaces. Most substantial recharge would occur along active stream channels. Impact 3A.9-6 concluded 
that the impact on groundwater recharge would be less-than-significant because those areas within the FPASP that 
are most conducive to groundwater recharge (e.g., the Alder Creek stream and tributary corridors) would generally 
be maintained in open space and as retention basins. Furthermore, no new wells would be established for domestic 
use, and increased seasonal groundwater recharge from landscape irrigation activities would occur. The project 
would not substantially change development patterns and the area of impermeable surfaces from that approved in 
the FPASP. Therefore, no new significant impacts or substantially more severe impacts would occur. The findings of 
the certified EIR/EIS remain valid and no further analysis is required. 

As discussed in Impact 3A.9-1, 3A.9-2, and 3A.9-3 of the FPASP EIR/EIS, development of the FPASP could alter 
existing drainage patterns and increase surface runoff thereby resulting in the potential for soil erosion, 
sedimentation, flooding, and runoff pollution. Implementation of Mitigation Measures 3A.9-1, 3A.9-2, and 3A.9-3 
would require a project-specific storm water pollution prevention plan, final drainage plan, and water quality 
maintenance plan to reduce impacts related to drainage to a less-than-significant level. The project would not result in 
substantial changes to the drainage patterns beyond those anticipated in the FPASP. The project would comply with 
Mitigation Measures 3A.9-1, 3A.9-2 and 3A.9-3. Therefore, there would be no new significant impacts or substantially 
more severe impacts. The findings of the certified EIR/EIS remain valid and no further analysis is required. 

The FPASP including the project site is not located in an area prone to seiches, tsunamis, or mudfiows. However, as 
described in Impact 3A.9-4, there is some potentially significant risk of flooding because of the failure of a dam 
upstream of the FPASP. Mitigation Measure 3A.9-4 would reduce this risk to a less-than-significant level by requiring the 
applicant to inspect and evaluate existing dams within and upstream of the project site and make improvements if 
necessary. This mitigation would continue to apply to the project. Therefore, no new significant impacts or substantially 
more severe impacts would occur. The findings of the certified EIR/EIS remain valid and no further analysis is required. 

As described in Impact 3A.9-6, development of the FPASP would result in an increase in impervious surfaces. 
Development under the project would include the same land use types and similar intensities as previously evaluated 
under the FPASP. Therefore, no new significant impacts or substantially more severe impacts would occur. The 
findings of the certified EIR/EIS remain valid and no further analysis is required. 

MITIGATION MEASURES 
The following mitigation measures were referenced in the EIR/EIS analysis and would continue to remain applicable if 
project were approved. 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.9-1: Acquire Appropriate Regulatory Permits and Prepare and Implement SWPPP and BMPs 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.9-2: Prepare and Submit Final Drainage Plans and Implement Requirements Contained in 

Those Plans 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.9-3: Develop and Implement a BMP and Water Quality Maintenance Plan 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.9-4: Inspect and Evaluate Existing Dams Within and Upstream of the Project Site and 

Make Improvements if Necessary 

CONCLUSION 
No substantial changes in circumstances or the project have occurred nor has any new information of substantial 

importance been found requiring new analysis or verification. Therefore, the conclusions of the EIR/EIS remain valid and 

approval of the proposed amendment to the FPASP would not result in new or substantially more severe significant 

impacts to hydrology and water quality. 

4-50 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 382

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

4.11 LAND USE AND PLANNING 

Environmental Issue Area 
Where Impact Was 

Analyzed in the 
EIR/EIS. 

Any New 
Circumstances Involving 
New Significant Impacts 
or Substantially More 

Severe Impacts? 

Any New 
Information 

Requiring New 
Analysis or 

Verification? 

Do Prior Environmental 
Documents Mitigations 

Address/Resolve 
Impacts? 

11. Land Use and Planning. Would the project: 

a. Physically divide an established community? Setting p. 3A.10-1 

b. Create a significant environmental impact 
due to a conflict with any land use plan, 
policy, or regulation adopted for the 
purpose of avoiding or mitigating an 
environmental effect? 

4.11. 1 Discussion 

REGULATORY SETTING 

No Impact 

Setting pp. 3A.10-4 to 
3A.10-28 

Impacts 3A.10-1 and 
3A.10-2 

No No NA 

No No NA 

The City has completed a general plan update since certification of the EIR/EIS in 2011. The Folsom City Council 

approved the Folsom 2035 General Plan on August 28, 2018. The following goals and policies of the Folsom 2035 

General Plan are applicable to the project, but do not constitute new information of substantial importance under 

CEQA Guidelines section 15162. 

Land Use Element 
GOAL LU 1.1 Retain and enhance Folsom's quality of life, unique identity, and sense of community while continuing to 

grow and change. 

• LU 1.1.2 Land Use Cooperation: Coordinate with Sacramento, Placer, and El Dorado Counties, as well as the SACOG 
and Sacramento Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo), on land use decisions that may impact Folsom. 

• LU 1.1.6 Compact Development Patterns: Encourage compact development patterns that support walking, 
bicycling, transit usage, and more efficient use of land. 

• LU 1.1.7 Concentrated Development: Allow project applicants to concentrate the proposed development on a 

portion of the site through the clustering of buildings to encourage the preservation of open spaces, cultural 

resources, and natural features of the landscape. 

• LU 1.1.8 Preserve Natural Assets: Maintain the existing natural vegetation, landscape features, open space, and 

viewsheds in the design of new developments. 

• LU 1.1.13 Sustainable Building Practices: Promote and, where appropriate, require sustainable building practices 

that incorporate a "whole system" approach to designing and constructing buildings that consume less energy, 

water and other resources; facilitate natural ventilation; use daylight effectively; and are healthy, safe, 

comfortable, and durable. 

• LU 1.1.15 SACOG Blueprint Principles: Strive to adhere to the Sacramento Regional Blueprint Growth Principles 

(see Appendix B of the Folsom 2035 General Plan). 

• LU 1.1.16 Community Engagement in the Planning Process: Engage the community in the planning process. 

Ensure the public has access to accurate and timely information and has convenient and meaningful ways to 

contribute ideas. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-51 

Page 383

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental 

GOAL LU 2.1 Develop and support thriving urban centers that serve as community gathering places. 

• LU 2.1.3 South of 50 Town Center: Encourage the establishment of a town center south of Highway SO that serves 
as a community gathering place. The town center should be easily accessible by all modes of transportation and 
have a fine-grained mix of uses, including retail, service, residential, public, entertainment, and recreation uses 
that creates a walkable environment. 

GOAL LU 3.1 Encourage mixed-use development projects that create vibrant, walkable districts. 

• LU 3.1.1 Mixed-Use Nodes: Encourage mixed-use development in nodes located at major intersections that 
include housing, open space, and offices. This development pattern should reflect best practices in mixed-use 
development, in contrast to strip retail developments along corridors. 

• LU 3.1.2 Districts and Corridors: Encourage development of diverse mixed-use districts and corridors that address 
different community needs and market sectors, provide a variety of housing opportunities, and create distinct 
and unique areas of the city. 

• LU 3.1.3 Mixed-Use Design: Encourage mixed-use developments to limit the number of access driveways, 
minimize building setbacks, and require active edges on ground floor spaces adjacent to sidewalks. 

• LU 3.1.4 Compatibility with Adjoining Uses: Encourage development and redevelopment of higher-density mixed
use development within districts and along corridors to be compatible with adjacent land uses, particularly 
residential uses. 

GOAL LU 6.1 Allow for a variety of housing types and mix of uses that provide choices for Folsom residents, create 
complete and livable neighborhoods, and encourage walking and biking. 

• LU 6.1.1 Complete Neighborhoods: Encourage the establishment of "complete neighborhoods" that integrate 
schools, childcare centers, parks, shopping and employment centers, and other amenities. 

• LU 6.1.3 Efficiency Through Density: Support an overall increase in average residential densities in identified urban 
centers and mixed-use districts. Encourage new housing types to shift from lower-density, large-lot 
developments to higher-density, small-lot and multifamily developments, as a means to increase energy 
efficiency, conserve water, reduce waste, as well as increase access to services and amenities (e.g., open space) 
through an emphasis of mixed uses in these higher-density developments. 

• LU 6.1.4 Open Space in Residential Developments: Require open space in each residential development except 
the following: developments located within a Specific Plan Area that has already dedicated open space, on 
multifamily parcels of less than 10 acres and, or parcels of less than 20 acres for single family uses surrounded by 
existing development. Open space includes parklands, common areas, landscaped areas, paths and trails, and 

plazas. Open space does not include areas devoted to vehicle parking, streets, and landscaped streetscapes. To 
achieve the open space guidelines, a developer may be allowed to group the homes at smaller lot sizes around 
shared open space features, as long as the average gross density does not increase. 

• LU 6.1.5 Off-Street Parking: Require sufficient off-street parking for residents be included in the design of all 
residential projects. Off-street parking for guests shall be included in the design of all multifamily projects. The 
City shall allow for reduced parking requirements for high-density residential and mixed-use developments near 
transit stations. 

• LU 6.1.6 Senior and Convalescent Housing: Encourage the development of independent living, assisted living, and 
convalescent housing facilities that provide health care for seniors. Proposed facilities shall be evaluated based 

on the location and impacts on services and neighboring properties, and not on a density basis. Independent 
living facilities should be located in walkable environments to improve the health and access of residents. 

• LU 6.1.7 Residential Densities in Area Plans and Specific Plans: Allow residential densities within an area plan or 
specific plan to vary, provided that the overall dwelling unit buildout within the plan area shall not exceed that 
authorized by the General Plan. 

4-52 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 384

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

GOAL LU 7.1 Provide for a commercial base of the city to encourage a strong tax base, more jobs within the city, a 
greater variety of goods and services, and businesses compatible with Folsom's quality of life. 

• LU 7.1.3 Commercial Expansion: Support the expansion of Folsom's commercial sector to meet the needs of 
Folsom residents, employees, and visitors. 

• LU 7.1.4 •strip• Commercial Uses: Prohibit new "strip" center development patterns along arterial streets. Strip 
centers are characterized by low-density commercial frontage with parking in front of the building and multiple 
access driveways. 

• LU 7.1.5 Open Space: Require all commercial development and commercial portions of mixed-use development 
to contain at least 10 percent of land area in natural, improved, or functional open space, exclusive of roadways 
and parking lots. Developments in mixed-use designations in the FPASP shall provide at least five percent of land 
area in natural, improved, or functional open space, exclusive of roadways and parking lots. 

• LU 7.1.6 Regional Commercial Centers: Require regional commercial centers to be located close and accessible to 
U.S. Highway 50, preferably near an interchange. 

• LU 7.1.7 Hotels: Encourage the development of hotels and related convention facilities within commercial and 
mixed-use districts, with an emphasis on high-quality development 

GOAL LU 8.1 Encourage, facilitate, and support the location of office, creative industry, technology, and industrial uses 
and retention of existing industry in appropriate locations. 

• LU 8.1.1 Industrial Expansion: Promote and assist in the maintenance and expansion of Folsom's employment 
sector in areas where services are readily available, including: adequate water, wastewater, and storm drainage 
facilities as well as easy access to multiple modes of transportation. 

• LU 8.1.2 Small-Scale Industrial: Ensure the Zoning Ordinance allows opportunities for small-scale industrial and 
service commercial uses (e.g., auto repair) while considering impacts on nearby residential neighborhoods. 

• LU 8.1.3 Clusters: Encourage complementary businesses and businesses from the same industry to locate in 
Folsom. These business clusters will benefit from shared resources, a pool of skilled employees, secondary 
support industries, and concentrated marketing efforts. 

• LU 8.1.4 Adjacent Uses and Access: Discourage industrial development in locations where access conflicts with 
neighboring land uses. 

• LU 8.1.5 Transit: Encourage new employment uses to locate where they can be easily served by public transit. 
Transit centers should be incorporated into the project, when appropriate. 

• LU 8.1.6 Internal Circulation: Require industrial/office parks be designed with internal circulation and incorporate 
buffering and landscaped setbacks to minimize potential adverse impacts on adjacent land uses. 

GOAL LU 9.1 Encourage community design that results in a distinctive, high-quality built environment with a character 
that creates memorable places and enriches the quality of life of Folsom's residents. 

• LU 9.1.4 Gateways: Continue to establish key gateways to Folsom through landscape design, appropriately-scaled 
signage, building form, and historic themes to create a unique sense of place. 

• LU 9.1.5 Pedestrian-Friendly Entrances: Encourage automobile-oriented business districts to provide clear and 
legible entry features, connected by pedestrian-friendly walkways. 

• LU 9.1.6 Community Beautification: Encourage the landscaping of public rights-of-way and planting of street 
trees to beautify Folsom consistent with water-wise policies. 

• LU 9.1.7 District Identity: Encourage efforts to establish and promote district identities (e.g., urban centers, East 
Bidwell Street) through the use of signage, wayfinding signage, streetscape and building design standards, 
advertising, and site-specific historic themes. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-53 

Page 385

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental 

• LU 9.1.8 Cool Paving: Identify opportunities to use cool paving materials and consider the use of permeable 
pavement for streets and trails, where feasible. 

• LU 9.1.9 Passive Solar Access: Ensure, to the extent feasible, that sites, subdivisions, landscaping, and buildings are 

configured and designed to maximize passive solar access. 

• LU 9.1.10 Renewable and Alternative Energy Generation Systems: Require the use of solar, wind, or other on-site 

renewable energy generation systems as part of the design of new planned developments. 

No other substantial change in the environmental and regulatory settings related to land use and planning, described 

in EIR/EIS Section 3A.10 under Land Use and Agricultural Resources and Section 3A.3 under Biological Resources, has 

occurred since certification of the EIR/EIS in 2011. 

IMPACT DISCUSSION 
As discussed in the EIR/EIS on page 3A.10-29, the FPASP is located in an area which consists of livestock grazing lands 
and would not divide an existing community. No changes in development at the site have occurred since approval of 
the FPASP. No new significant impacts or substantially more severe impacts would occur. Therefore, the findings of 
the certified EIR/EIS remain valid and no further analysis is required. 

Impacts 3A.10-1 and 3A.10-2 in the EIR/EIS address consistency of the then-proposed FPASP with Sacramento LAFCo 
Guidelines and the SACOG Sacramento Region Blueprint. The LAFCo Guidelines were relevant because the FPASP 
area was required to be annexed into the City. Since the adoption of the FPASP, the area was annexed into the City 
and this impact discussion is no longer relevant. 

As discussed on page 3A.10-39 of the Draft EIR/EIS, the FPASP was found to be consistent with the SACOG Sacramento 
Region Preferred Blueprint Scenario. As stated in Impact 3A.10-2, the FPASP provides fewer dwelling units than what is 
identified in the Blueprint. The project would not result in a change in housing units for the entire FPASP area. The project 
would continue to be consistent with the smart growth principles within the SACOG Sacramento Region Blueprint. 

This project includes an amendment to the adopted FPASP to allow for density transfers within the plan area. The 
project would allow for construction of the same total number of units on the same total acreage of the FPASP and 
would only involve a shift in the permitted residential densities between parcels upon which the FPASP already 
contemplated some level of multi-family residential development. The project would remain consistent with the 
community vision, design framework, and planning principles. The changes to the land uses and backbone infrastructure 
would be evaluated and, if approved, the FPASP will be amended to include the changes. The environmental effects of 
which are evaluated throughout this document (refer to Sections 4.1 through 4.10 and Section 4.12 through 4.19). 
Because the project includes amending the FPASP, and the project remains consistent with other applicable plans and 
policies, impacts would be less than significant. No new significant impacts or substantially more severe impacts would 
occur. Therefore, the findings of the certified EIR/EIS remain valid and no further analysis is required. 

In addition, the FPASP EIR/EIS determined that the FPASP would not have an impact on the SSHCP because the 
SSHCP was not adopted (as of 2011) and that the SPA is not within the SSHCP plan area (pages 3A.3-93 to 3A.3-94 of 
the FPASP EIR/EIS). The SSHCP has since been adopted; however, the FPASP area is still not included within the 

SSHCP plan area. Therefore, there would be no new significant impact or substantially more severe impact. 

MITIGATION MEASURES 
There were no mitigation measures included in the EIR/EIS for this topic. No additional mitigation measures are required 
for the project for this issue. 

CONCLUSION 
No substantial changes in circumstances or the project have occurred nor has any new information of substantial 
importance been identified requiring new analysis or verification. Therefore, the conclusions of the EIR/EIS remain valid and 
approval of the project would not result in new or substantially more severe significant impacts to land use and planning. 

4-54 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 386

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental 

4.12 MINERAL RESOURCES 

Environmental Issue Area 
Where Impact Was 

Analyzed in the 
EIR/EIS. 

12. Mineral Resources. Would the Project: 

a. Result in the loss of availability of a known Setting pp. 3A.7-12 
mineral resource that would be of value to and 3A.7-13 

b. 

the region and the residents of the state? 

Result in the loss of availability of a locally
important mineral resource recovery site 
delineated on a local general plan, specific 
plan or other land use plan? 

4.12. 1 Discussion 

REGULATORY SETTING 

Impacts 3A.7-8, 3A.7-9 

Setting pp. 3A.7-12 
and 3A.7-13 

Impacts 3A.7-8, 3A.7-9 

Any New Circumstances 
Involving New 

Significant Impacts or 
Substantially More 
Severe Impacts? 

No 

No 

Any New 
Information 

Requiring New 
Analysis or 

Verification? 

No 

No 

Environmental Checklist 

Do Prior Environmental 
Documents Mitigations 

Address/Resolve 
Impacts? 

Yes 

NA 

The City has completed a general plan update since certification of the EIR/EIS in 2011. The Folsom City Council 
approved the Folsom 2035 General Plan on August 28, 2018. There are no goals and policies in the Folsom 2035 
General Plan related to mineral resources. No change in the environmental and regulatory settings related to mineral 
resources, described in EIR/EIS Section 3A.7, Geology, Soils, Minerals, and Paleontological Resources has occurred 
since certification of the El R in 2011. 

IMPACT DISCUSSION 
As described in Impacts 3A.7-8 and 3A.7-9, the FPASP area contains mineral resource zones for construction 

aggregate and kaolin clay. While the EIR/EIS found that the possible loss of the construction aggregate would be a 
less-than-significant impact, the possible loss of kaolin clay was determined to be potentially significant because it is 
unknown whether there could be an economically valuable deposit of kaolin clay that would be lost with 
development of the FPASP. While Mitigation Measure 3A.7-9 was included to determine if economically valuable 
mineral resources are present, they would still be lost because of development in areas of the FPASP with potential 
kaolin clay deposits. The impact was concluded to remain potentially significant and unavoidable. Here, the project 

site is not located in the area with potential kaolin clay resources. Therefore, the project would have no impact on 
kaolin clay resources and impacts on construction aggregate would remain less than significant. Therefore, there are 
no new significant impacts or substantially more severe impacts and the findings of the certified EIR/EIS remain valid 
and no further analysis is required. 

MITIGATION MEASURES 
None required for the project. 

CONCLUSION 
No substantial changes in circumstances or the project have occurred nor has any new information of substantial 
importance been identified requiring new analysis or verification. Therefore, the conclusions of the EIR/EIS remain 
valid and approval of the project would not result in new or substantially more severe significant impacts to mineral 
resources. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-55 

Page 387

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist 

4.13 NOISE 

Environmental Issue Area 

13. Noise. Would the project result in: 

a. 

b. 

C. 

Generation of a substantial temporary or 
permanent increase in ambient noise levels 
in the vicinity of the project in excess of 
standards established in the local general 
plan or noise ordinance, or applicable 
standards of other agencies? 

Generation of excessive groundborne 
vibration or groundborne noise levels? 

For a project located within the vicinity of a 
private airstrip or an airport land use plan or 
where such a plan has not been adopted, 
within two miles of a public airport or public 
use airport, would the project expose 
people residing or working in the project 
area to excessive noise levels? 

4. 13.1 Discussion 

REGULATORY SETTING 

Any New Circumstances 
Where Impact Was lnvoMng New or 

Analyzed in the Substantially More 
DEIR/DEIS. Severe Significant 

Setting p. 3A.11-5 
to 3A.11-17 

Impacts 3A.11-4, 
3A.11-5, 

and 3A.11-7 

Setting p. 3A.11-4 
Impact 3A.11-3 

Setting pp. 3A.11-5, 
3A.11-10, 3A.11-11 
Impact 3A.11-6 

overflight 

Impacts? 

No 

No 

No 

Any Substantially 
Important New 

Information Requiring 
New Analysis or 

Verification? 

Yes 

No 

No 

Ascent Environmental 

Do Prior Environmental 
Documents' 
Mitigations 

Address/Resolve 
Impacts? 

Yes, mitigation has 
been updated 

NA 

NA 

The City has completed a general plan update since certification of the EIR/EIS in 2011. The Folsom City Council 
approved the Folsom 2035 General Plan on August 28, 2018. The following goals and policies of the Folsom 2035 
General Plan are applicable to the project, but do not constitute new information of substantial importance under 
CEQA Guidelines section 15162. 

Safety and Noise Element 
GOAL SN 6.1 Protect the citizens of Folsom from the harmful effects of exposure to excessive noise and to protect the 
economic base of Folsom by preventing the encroachment of incompatible land uses within areas affected by 
existing noise-producing uses. 

• SN 6.1.1 Noise Mitigation Strategies: Develop, maintain, and implement strategies to abate and avoid excessive 
noise exposure in the city by requiring that effective noise mitigation measures be incorporated into the design 
of new noise-generating and new noise-sensitive land uses. 

• SN 6.1.2 Noise Mitigation Measures: Require effective noise mitigation for new development of residential or 
other noise sensitive land uses to reduce noise levels as follows: 

1. For noise due to traffic on public roadways, railroad line operations, and aircraft: achieve compliance with the 
performance standards within Table SN-1 [presented as Table 4-2 in this document]. 

2. For non-transportation-related noise sources: achieve compliance with the performance standards contained 
within Table SN-2 [presented as Table 4-3 in this document]. 

3. If compliance with the adopted standards and policies of the Safety and Noise Element will not be achieved even 
with feasible mitigation measures, a statement of overriding considerations for the project must be provided. 

City of Folsom 
4-56 Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 388

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

Table 4-2 Noise Compatibility Standards 

Exterior Noise Level Standard for Outdoor Interior Noise Level Standard 
Land Use 

Activity Areas a ldn/CNEL, dB WCNEL,dB L.,q,dBb 

Residential (Low Density Residential, Duplex, fiOC 45 N/A 
Mobile Homes) 

Residential (Multi-Family) 65d 45 N/A 

Transient Lodging (Motels/Hotels) 65d 45 N/A 

Mixed-Use Developments 70 45 N/A 

Schools, Libraries, Churches, Hospitals, Nursing 70 45 N/A 
Homes, Museums 

Theaters, Auditoriums 70 N/A 35 

Playgrounds, Neighborhood Parks 70 N/A N/A 

Golf Courses, Riding Stables, Water Recreation, 75 N/A N/A 
Cemeteries 

Office Buildings, Business Commercial and 70 N/A 45 

Professional 

Industrial, Manufacturing, and Utilities 75 N/A 45 

Notes: Where a proposed use is not specifically listed on this table, the use shall comply with the noise exposure standards for the nearest similar 
use as determined by the Community Development Department. 

CNEL = community noise equivalent level; Ldn = day-night average noise level; Leq = equivalent continuous sound level; dB = decibels 

' Outdoor activity areas for residential developments are considered to be the back yard patios or decks of single-family residential units, and the 
patios or common areas where people generally congregate for multi-family development. Outdoor activity areas for nonresidential 

developments are considered to be those common areas where people generally congregate, including outdoor seating areas. Where the 
location of outdoor activity areas is unknown, the exterior noise standard shall be applied to the property line of the receiving land use. 

b As determined for a typical worst-case hour during periods of use. 

' · Where it is not possible to reduce noise in outdoor activity areas to 60 dB, Ldn/CNEL or less using a practical application of the best-available 
noise reduction measures, an exterior level of up to 65 dB, Ldn/CNEL may be allowed provided that available exterior noise level reduction 
measures have been implemented and interior noise levels are in compliance with this table. 

d Where it is not possible to reduce noise in outdoor activity areas to 65 dB, Ldn/CNEL or less using a practical application of the best-available 
noise reduction measures, an exterior level of up to 70 dB, Ldn/CNEL may be allowed provided that available exterior noise level reduction 

measures have been implemented and interior noise levels are in compliance with this table. 

Source: City of Folsom 2018:9-11 

Table 4-3 Noise Level Standards from Stationary Sources 

Noise Level Descriptor Daytime (7:00 a.m to 10:00 p.m.) 

Hourly Leq, dB 55 

Maximum level, dB 70 

Notes: Noise levels area measured at the property line of the noise-sensitive use. 

Leq = equivalent continuous sound level; dB = decibels 

Source: City of Folsom 2018:9-12 

Nighttime (10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m.) 

45 

65 

• SN 6.1.3 Acoustical Analysis: Require an Acoustical Analysis prior to approval of proposed development of 
residential or other noise-sensitive land uses in a noise-impacted area. 

• SN 6.1.4 Noise and Project Review: Develop, maintain, and implement procedures to ensure that requirements 
imposed pursuant to the findings of an acoustical analysis are implemented as part of the project review and 
building permit processes. The appropriate time for requiring an acoustical analysis would be as early in the 
project review process as possible so that noise mitigation may be an integral part of the project design. 

City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-57 

Page 389

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental 

• SN 6.1.5 Automobile Noise: Encourage the enforcement of the existing section of the California Vehicle Code 
relating to adequate vehicle mufflers and modified exhaust systems. 

• SN 6.1.6 Aircraft Noise: Strive to reduce noise from aircraft travel over Folsom. 

• SN 6.1.7 Noise Barriers: If noise barriers are required to achieve the noise level standards contained within this 
Element, the City shall encourage the use of these standards: 

1. Noise barriers exceeding six feet in height relative to the roadway should incorporate an earth berm so that 
the total height of the solid portion of the barrier (such as masonry or concrete) does not exceed six feet. 

2. The total height of a noise barrier above roadway elevation should normally be limited to 12 feet. 

3. The noise barriers should be designed so that their appearance is consistent with other noise barriers in the 
project vicinity. 

• SN 6.1.8 Vibration Standards: Require construction projects and new development anticipated to generate a 
significant amount of vibration to ensure acceptable interior vibration levels at nearby noise-sensitive uses based 
on Federal Transit Administration criteria as shown in Table SN-3 [presented as Table 4-4 in this document] 
Groundborne Vibration Impact Criteria for General Assessment. 

Table 4-4 Groundborne Vibration Impact Criteria for General Assessment 

Land Use Category 
Frequent Events a 

Category 1: Buildings where vibration 65 
would interfere with interior operations d 

Category 2: Residences and buildings 72 
where people normally sleep 

Category 3: Institutional land uses with 75 
primarily daytime uses 

Notes: Vibration levels are measured in or near the vibration-sensitive use. 

VdB = vibration decibels 

Impact Levels (VdB) 

Occasional Events b 

65 

75 

78 

' ' "Frequent Events" is defined as more than 70 vibration events of the same source per day. 

b. "Occasional Events" is defined as between 30 and 70 vibration events of the same source per day. 

' · "Infrequent Events" is defined as fewer than 30 vibration events of the same source per day. 

Infrequent Events c 

65 

BO 

83 

d. This criterion limit is based on levels that are acceptable for most moderately-sensitive equipment such as optical microscopes. Vibration

sensitive manufacturing or research will require detailed evaluation to define the acceptable vibration levels. 

Source: FTA 2006; City of Folsom 2018:9-13 

No other change in the environmental and regulatory settings related to noise and vibration, described in FPASP 
EIR/EIS Sections 3A.11 Noise - Land, has occurred since certification of the EIR in 2011. No new noise sources have 
been introduced near the planning area since the FPASP EIR/EIS was prepared. 

IMPACT DISCUSSION 

Generation of a Substantial Short-Term Increase in Ambient Noise Levels in the Project Vicinity 
The FPASP EIR/EIS provides a program-level analysis of short-term exposure of sensitive receptors to increased 
equipment noise from construction under Impact 3A.11-1. Based on the modeling conducted for the FPASP EIR/EIS, 
construction noise levels could exceed 55 decibels (dB) Leq within 850 feet of an activity center (e.g., the acoustical 
center of areas where construction activities are focused). During nighttime hours, the modeling also estimated 
construction noise levels could exceed 50 and 45 dB Leq within 1,300, and 2,000 feet of the activity centers, 
respectively. Implementation of Mitigation Measure 3A.11-1 would reduce noise levels generated from construction 

4-58 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 390

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

activities; however, the construction of off-site elements in El Dorado Hills would fall under the jurisdiction of El 

Dorado County. Because the timing and implementation of off-site elements could not be controlled by the City or 

the applicant, impacts would be significant and unavoidable. 

Construction activities under the project would require similar types and numbers of equipment operating at similar 

levels of intensity as already contemplated in the FPASP EIR/EIS. The Enclaves residential development located 

directly west of the Alder Creek Apartments site is currently under construction and will likely be occupied during 
project construction. The City's Noise Control Ordinance exempts noise sources associated with construction, 

provided such activities do not take place before 7 a.m. or after 6 p.m. on any day except Saturday or Sunday, or 

before 8 a.m. or after 5 p.m. on Saturday or Sunday (City of Folsom Municipal Code Section 8.42.060). Although, 
noise associated with project construction would largely be exempt, construction activities would occur Monday 
through Sunday from 7 a.m. to 7 p.m., and therefore, would not always be considered exempt. Noise sources 

associated with construction of the project would comply with EIR/EIS Mitigation Measure 3A.11-1 and noise-sensitive 

receptors would not be exposed to construction noise levels that are new or substantially more severe than would 

occur from under the approved FPASP. Accordingly, the conclusions of the FPASP EIR/EIS remain valid and no further 
analysis is required. 

Impact 3A.11-2 of the FPASP EIR/EIS explained that construction of the FPASP would result in additional vehicle trips on 

the local roadway network from worker commutes and transportation of equipment and materials to construction sites. 

This analysis determined that additional construction-related vehicles trips would not result in noise level increases 

greater than 3 dB community noise equivalent level (CNEL) and, therefore, the FPASP EIR/EIS concluded that the short

term increase traffic noise levels due to construction-generated vehicle trips would be a less-than-significant impact. 

The number of additional vehicle trips associated with construction activity under the project is not anticipated to be 

substantially more severe than already analyzed in the FPASP EIR/EIS because the same types of land uses would be 

developed under the project as contemplated in the EIR/EIS. Thus, this impact would be within the scope of the impact 
already evaluated in the FPASP EIR/EIS and would also be less than significant. The conclusions of the FPASP EIR/EIS 

remain valid and no further analysis is required. 

Generation of a Substantial Long-Term Increase in Ambient Noise Levels in the Project Vicinity 
Long-term exposure of sensitive receptors to increased traffic noise levels from operation of the FPASP were 

analyzed under Impact 3A.11-4 of the FPASP EIR/EIS. Traffic noise level modeling estimates showed that buildout of 

the FPASP would result in net increases in CNELs along affected roadway segments in comparison to existing no 
project conditions that range from 6.7 to 10 dB. Traffic noise level increases along many roadway segments were 

considered substantial because they exceed 3 dB CNEL where existing or projected future traffic noise levels range 

between 60 and 65 dB CNEL, or 1.5 dB CNEL where existing or projected future traffic noise levels are greater than 65 

dB Ldn/CNEL. Mitigation Measure 3A.11-4 of the FPASP EIR/EIS required individual project applicants to ensure that 

specific Sound Transmission Class (STC) ratings are achieved by all noise-sensitive buildings built in the FPASP. 

Mitigation Measure 3A.11 -4 also requires project applicants to conduct a site-specific analysis to determine predicted 

roadway noise impacts attributable to the project in accordance with adopted City noise standards and implement 
measures to reduce these impacts. Because the feasibility and effectiveness of mitigation was uncertain at the time 

the FPASP EIR/EIS was certified, the EIR/EIS concluded this impact to be significant and unavoidable. 

In compliance with EIR/EIS Mitigation Measure 3A.11-4, a site-specific analysis was conducted by J.C. Brennan & 
Associates in 2018 to determine future traffic noise levels at the Alder Creek Apartments site (see Appendix E). Based 

on future traffic volumes, future residences at the Alder Creek Apartments site would be exposed to exterior noise 

levels up to 61 dB Ldn as shown in Table 4-5 below. The anticipated traffic noise levels would comply with the City's 

exterior noise level standard of 65 dB Ldn for multi-family residential uses. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-59 

Page 391

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental 

Table 4-5 Predicted Future Traffic Noise Levels at the Alder Creek Apartments Site 

Roadway Location and Distance from Roadway Centerline Predicted Exterior Traffic Noise Level, Ldn (dB) 

Alder Creek Parkway Building #5 @ 65-feet 61 
Clubhouse/ Pool @120-feet 57 

Westwood Drive Building #5 @ 100-feet 58 
Building #4@ 300-feet 51 
Building #3 @ 100-feet 58 

Notes: Ld, = day-night average noise level; dB = decibels 

Source: Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Subdivision Transportation Impact Study, 2017; J.C. Brennan & Associates, Inc. 2018. 

Standard construction practices consistent with the uniform building code typically provide an exterior-to-interior 

noise level reduction of approximately 25 dBA when air conditioning is included for each unit, which allows residents 
to close windows for the required acoustical isolation. 

Based upon the assumptions of a typical exterior to interior noise level reduction, the project site will comply with an 

interior noise level standard of 45 dB Ldn. This assumes that air conditioning is provided to allow occupants to close 

windows and doors for the appropriate acoustical isolation. The project would not result in a substantial change in 

long-term noise levels. Therefore, no new or substantially more severe impacts would occur. The findings of the 
certified EIR/EIS remain valid and no further analysis is required. 

Impact 3A.11-5 in the FPASP EIR/EIS discussed the potential impacts of long-term exposure of sensitive receptors, 
both existing and future, to increased stationary-source noise levels from project operation. The FPASP EIR/EIS 

required implementation of Mitigation Measure 3A.11-5 to reduce noise from project-generated stationary sources to 
less-than-significant levels. The project would not result in a substantial change in land uses or development densities 

in the FPASP and no new significant impacts or substantially more severe impacts would occur. Therefore, the findings 
of the certified EIR/EIS remain valid and no further analysis is required. 

Short-Term Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to Potential Groundborne Noise and Vibration 
from Project Construction 
Impacts from potential construction-related short-term groundborne noise and vibration on sensitive receptors were 

analyzed under Impact 3A.11-3 of the FPASP EIR/EIS. The FPASP EIR/EIS identified bulldozing and blasting activities as 

the source of maximum groundborne noise and vibration levels that would result from the construction of the FPASP. 
According to the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), levels associated with the use of a large bulldozer and blasting 

are 0.089 and 1.13 in/sec peak particle velocity (PPV) (87 and 109 vibration decibels [VdB]) at 25 feet, respectively, as 

shown in Table 3A.11-17 in the FPASP EIR/EIS. The FPASP EIR/EIS adopted Caltrans-recommended vibration exposure 

thresholds of 0.2 in/sec PPV for the protection of normal residential buildings and 0.08 in/sec PPV for the protection of 

old or historically significant structures (Caltrans 2004:17). In addition, with respect to prevention of human disturbance, 

bulldozing and blasting could exceed the FT A-recommended level of 78 VdB within 50 and 275 feet, respectively. 

The analysis determined that, although bulldozing activities would not exceed the Caltrans-recommended thresholds 

for residential buildings, any blasting performed within 80 feet of a receptor could exceed the vibration threshold. 

Implementation of Mitigation Measure 3A.11-3 would reduce impacts related to groundborne vibration and 

ground borne noise; however, some off-site elements are not under the jurisdiction of the City. Therefore, direct 
impacts would be significant and unavoidable. 

Construction of the land uses in the project would require similar types of equipment and activities of similar intensity 

as evaluated under Impact 3A.11-3 in the FPASP EIR/EIS. The project-specific geotechnical investigation found that 
blasters may be required for construction of the Alder Creek Apartments site. The closest sensitive receptors to the 

Alder Creek Apartments site are multi-family homes located directly west of the site, across Westwood Drive. The 

project would implement Mitigation Measure 3A.11-3. No new or substantially more severe impacts would occur from 

construction-generated ground borne vibration or ground borne noise as a result of the project. The conclusions of 

the FPASP EIR/EIS remain valid and no further analysis is required. 

4-60 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 392

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

Noise Impacts Associated with Airports 
As stated in the FPASP EIR/EIS the FPASP area is not located within two miles of a public, public-use, or private 
airport. The Mather Airport Master Plan has been updated since the time the FPASP EIR/EIS was prepared. However, 

the existence of Mather Airport and expectations that it would host increasing levels of aircraft activity were known at 
the time the FPASP EIR/EIS was written. As a result, The level of expected growth in operations at Mather Airport is 

not considered a new circumstance involving new or substantially more severe impacts than existed at the time 

FPASP EIR/EIS was written. In addition, no new private airstrips have been developed within the FPASP area since 

preparation of the FPASP EIR/EIS and there are no new circumstances or new information requiring new analysis or 

verification. Therefore, the conclusions of the FPASP EIR/EIS remain valid and no further analysis is required. 

MITIGATION MEASURES 
The following mitigation measures were referenced in the FPASP EIR/EIS analysis and would continue to remain 
applicable if the project were approved. 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.11-1: Implement Noise-Reducing Construction Practices, Prepare and Implement a Noise 

Control Plan, and Monitor and Record Construction Noise near Sensitive Receptors 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.11-3: Implement Measure to Prevent Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to Groundborne Noise 
or Vibration from Project Generated Construction Activities 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.11-5: Implement Measures to Reduce Noise from Project-Generated Stationary Sources 

In addition to the mitigation measures in the EIR/EIS (listed above), the project-specific noise study provided the 

following refinement to the mitigation program that would be required for the project (J.C. Brennan & Associates 2018). 

These refinements are consistent with the mitigation program outlined in the FPASP EIR/EIS. 

Mitigation Measure 4.13-1 Interior Traffic Noise Reduct,ion Measures. 
Before building occupancy, the project applicant shall ensure the following construction design features have been 
implemented. 

• Air conditioning shall be provided to allow occupants to close windows and doors for the appropriate acoustical 
isolation. 

CONCLUSION 
While the updated information and the project-specific analyses provide additional detail for the project site and 

refined mitigation measures for the project have been recommended, this information is consistent with the activities 

recommended in the mitigation adopted for the FPASP. No new significant or substantially more severe noise 

impacts would occur with the project. In some cases, based on the refined mitigation program, the noise impacts 

associated with the project would be reduced compared to the impacts described in the EIR/EIS. Therefore, the 

findings of the certified EIR/EIS remain valid and no further analysis is required . 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-61 

Page 393

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist 

4.14 POPULATION AND HOUSING 

Environmental Issue Area 
Where Impact Was 

Analyzed in the 
EIR/EIS. 

14. Population and Housing. Would the Project: 

a. 

b. 

Induce substantial unplanned population 
growth in an area, either directly (for example, 
by proposing new homes and businesses) or 
indirectly (for example, through extension of 
roads or other infrastructure)? 

Displace substantial numbers of existing 
people or housing, necessitating the 
construction of replacement housing 
elsewhere? 

4.14.1 Discussion 

REGULATORY SETTING 

Setting pp. 3A.13-1 to 
3A.13-6 

Impacts 3A.13-1, 3A.13-
2 

Impact 3A.13-3 

Any New 
Circumstances Involving 
New Significant Impacts 
or Substantially More 

Severe Impacts? 

No 

No 

Any New 
Information 

Requiring New 
Analysis or 

Verification? 

No 

No 

Ascent Environmental 

Do Prior 
Environmental 

Documents 
Mitigations 

Address/Resolve 
Impacts? 

NA 

NA 

The City has completed a general plan update since certification of the EIR/EIS in 2011. The Folsom City Council 
approved the Folsom 2035 General Plan on August 28, 2018. The following goals and pol icies of the Folsom 2035 
General Plan are applicable to the project, but do not constitute new information of substantial importance under 
CEQA Guidelines section 15162. 

Land Use Element 
GOAL LU 6.1 Allow for a variety of housing types and mix of uses that provide choices for Folsom residents, create 
complete and livable neighborhoods, and encourage walking and biking. 

• LU 6.1.1 Complete Neighborhoods: Encourage the establishment of "complete neighborhoods" that integrate 
schools, childcare centers, parks, shopping and employment centers, and other amenities. 

• LU 6.1.8 Home-Based Businesses: With issuance of a home occupation permit, allow home offices and home
based businesses that are compatible with the character of the residential unit and do not significantly impact the 
neighborhood. 

Housing Element 
GOAL H-1: Adequate Land Supply for Housing. To provide an adequate supply of suitable sites for the development of 
a range of housing types to meet the housing needs of all segments of the population. 

• Policy H-1.3 The City shall encourage home builders to develop their projects on multi-family-designated land at 
the high end of the applicable density range. 

GOAL H-3: Facilitating Affordable Housing. To facilitate affordable housing opportunities to serve the needs of people 
who live and work in the community. 

• Policy H-3.1 The City shall encourage residential projects affordable to a mix of household incomes and disperse 
affordable housing projects throughout the city to achieve a balance of housing in all neighborhoods and 
communities. 

4-62 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 394

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

• Policy H-3.3 The City shall continue to make density bonuses available to affordable and senior housing projects, 
consistent with State law and Chapter 17.102 of the Folsom Municipal Code. 

• Policy H-3.4 Where appropriate, the City shall use development agreements to assist housing developers in 
complying with City affordable housing goals. 

• Policy H-3.5 The City shall make incentives available to property owners with existing development agreements 
to encourage the development of affordable housing. 

GOAL H-5: Housing Opportunities for Special Needs Groups To provide a range of housing services for Folsom 
residents with special needs, including seniors, persons with disabilities, single parents, large families, the homeless, 
and residents with extremely low incomes. 

• Policy H-5.1 The City shall strive to ensure adequate and affordable housing for seniors. 

• Policy H-5.2 The City shall encourage housing for seniors and persons with disabilities to be located near public 
transportation, shopping, medical, and other essential services and facilities. 

No other change in the regulatory settings related to population and housing, described in EIR/EIS Section 3A.13 
under Population, Employment and Housing, has occurred since certification of the EIR in 2011. As described in the 

project description, there would be no net change in the number of dwelling units for the FPASP. 

IMPACT DISCUSSION 
As described in the EIR/EIS under Impacts 3A.13-1 and 3A.13-2, the FPASP would directly induce population growth 
through construction of new homes and businesses over the buildout period. Because population growth is not 
considered in and of itself to be a significant environmental impact, this was concluded to be a less-than-significant 
impact. The project would result in 62 additional dwelling units at the Alder Creek Apartments site than previously 

approved under the FPASP. A decrease in housing densities in other sites located in the FPASP area would offset this 
reduction and there would be no net change in developed acres or number of housing units contemplated in the 
FPASP. Although the project would replace multi-family low density housing with multi-family high density housing 
thereby increasing the population at the Alder Creek Apartment sites, density transfers to other sites within the FPASP 
area would result in no net change to population within the FPASP area. No new significant impacts or substantially 
more severe impacts would occur. Therefore, the findings of the certified EIR/EIS remain valid and no further analysis 

is required. 

As described in Impact 3A.13-3, the FPASP would result in the removal of a single housing unit. This was determined 

to be a less-than-significant impact. No changes to this condition would occur with implementation of the project 
and no new significant impacts or substantially more severe impacts would occur. Therefore, the findings of the 
certified EIR/EIS remain valid and no further analysis is required. 

MITIGATION MEASURES 
No mitigation measures were needed for the certified EIR/EIS regarding population and housing. No additional 
mitigation measures are required for the project for this issue. 

CONCLUSION 
No substantial changes in circumstances or the project have occurred nor has any new information of substantial 
importance been identified requiring new analysis or verification. Therefore, the conclusions of the EIR/EIS remain 
valid and approval of the project would not result in new or substantially more severe significant impacts to 

population and housing. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-63 

Page 395

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checkl ist 

4.15 PUBLIC SERVICES 

Environmental Issue Area 

15. Public Services. 

Where Impact Was 
Analyzed in the 

EIR/EIS. 

Any New Circumstances 
Involving New 

Significant Impacts or 
Substantially More 
Severe Impacts? 

Any New 
Information 

Requiring New 
Analysis or 

Verification? 

Ascent Environmental 

Do Prior 
Environmental 

Documents 
Mitigations 

Address/Resolve 
Impacts? 

a. Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of new or physically altered 
governmental facilities, need for new or physically altered governmental facilities, the construction of which could cause significant 
environmental impacts, to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other performance objectives for any public services: 

Fire protection? 

ii. Police protection? 

iii. Schools? 

iv. Parks? 

4. 15. 1 Discussion 

REGULATORY SETTING 

Setting pp. 3A.14-1 to 
3A.14-2 

Impacts 3A.14-1, 
3A.14-2, 3A.14-3 

Setting pp. 3A.14-2 to 
3A.14-3 

Impact 3A.14-4 

Setting pp. 3A.14-3 to 
3A.14-5 

Impacts 3A.14-5, 
3A.14-6 

No No Yes 

No No NA 

No No Yes 

See below in Section 4.15, Recreation 

The City has completed a general plan update since certification of the EIR/EIS in 2011. The Folsom City Council 
approved the Folsom 2035 General Plan on August 28, 2018. The following goals and pol icies of the Folsom 2035 

General Plan are applicable to the project, but do not constitute new information of substantial importance under 

CEQA Guidelines section 15162. 

Safety Element 
GOAL SN 1.1 Maintain an effective response to emergencies, provide support and aid in a crises, and repair and 

rebuild after a crisis. 

• SN 1.1.1 Emergency Operations Plan: Develop, maintain, and implement an Emergency Operations Plan that 

addresses life and safety protection, medical care, incident stabilization, property conseNation, evacuation, escape 

routes (including back-up escape routes), mutual aid agreements, temporary housing, and communications. 

GOAL SN 3.1 Minimize the risk of flooding hazards to people, property, and the environment. 

• SN 3.1.3 Public Facilities: Require that new critical facilities (e.g., hospitals, emergency command centers, 

communication facilities, fire stations, police stations) are located outside of 100- and 200-year floodplains, or 

where such location is not feasible; design the facilities to mitigate potential flood risk to ensure functional 
operation during a flood event. 

Public Facilities and Services 
GOAL PFS 2.1 Provide for the educational and literacy needs of Folsom residents. 

4-64 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 396

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

• PFS 2.1.2 School Capacity and Development: If a new development will not contain a school site, the City shall 
require applicants of new development to show that a school site has been dedicated, a school site will be 
dedicated, or a school already exists with capacity to serve the project. 

• PFS 2.1.3 Adequate Financing: Coordinate with school districts that serve the city in an effort to ensure adequate 
financing for new school facilities, including assistance in the collection of school district development fees from 
new development. 

• PFS 2.1.5 Library: Strive to keep library programs and materials relevant, easy to access, and provided in a safe 
and enjoyable environment. 

GOAL PFS 6.1 Maintain a high level of police service as new development occurs to protect residents, visitors, and property. 

• PFS 6.1.1 Adequate Facilities: Strive to provide law enforcement facilities, equipment and vehicles, and services to 
adequately meet the needs of existing and future development. 

• PFS 6.1.2 Police Response Standards: Strive to maintain the minimum feasible response times for police calls. The 
goal for Priority 1 (life threatening) and Priority 2 (crime in progress/just occurred) calls shall be five minutes or 
less for 90 percent of the calls given the resources available. 

• PFS 6.1.7 Development Review: Continue to include the Police Department in the review of development 
proposals to ensure that projects adequately address crime and safety, and promote the implementation of 
Crime Prevention through Environmental Design principles. 

GOAL PFS 7.1 Prevent loss of life, injury, and property due to wild land and structural fires, while ensuring an adequate 
level of fire protection service is maintained for all. 

• PFS 7.1.1 Adequate Facilities and Services: Strive to provide fire department facilities, equipment and vehicles, and 
services to adequately meet the needs of existing and future development. 

• PFS 7.1.2 Fire Response Standards: Maintain adequate fire suppression response capabilities in all areas of the city 
consistent with the Fire Service Delivery Plan. 

• PFS 7.1.4 Optimal Siting: Require that new fire stations are strategically located to ensure optimal response time 
and physical barriers are considered in the siting of new stations. 

• PFS 7.1.5 Fire Flow Requirements: Ensure that adequate water fire-flow capability is provided throughout the city 
that conforms to the fire flow requirements of the California Fire Code. 

• PFS 7.1.6 Inspections: Ensure the continued compliance of structures with City and State fire and life safety 
regulations by conducting periodic inspections. 

• PFS 7.1.7 Built-In Fire Suppression: Minimize dependence on fire department staff and equipment and improve 
fire safety by requiring installation of built-in fire suppression equipment in all new buildings in accordance with 
the California Fire Code. 

• PFS 7.1.8 New Development: Require that new development provides all necessary water service, fire hydrants, 
and roads consistent with Fire Department standards. 

• PFS 7.1.9 Fire Access Design and Building Materials: Ensure that fire equipment access is integrated into the 
design of new developments, as well as the use of fire-resistant landscaping and building materials. 

No other change in the environmental and regulatory settings related to public services, described in EIR/EIS Sections 
3A.14 under Public Services, has occurred since certification of the EIR/EIS in 2011. 

IMPACT DISCUSSION 
Impacts 3A.14-1, 3A.14-2, and 3A.14-3 address how the construction of the FPASP would affect emergency response 
services and create increased demand for fire protection and for fire flow. The EIR/EIS found that there would be a 
significant impact on emergency response. Implementation of Mitigation Measure 3A.14-1 and Mitigation Measure 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-65 

Page 397

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental 

3A.14-2 would require traffic control plans during construction and would require that incorporate fire code 
requirements be incorporated into all plans and submitted for approval to the fire department. The project would not 

substantially change development densities from those approved in the FPASP and would not result in a larger 
service area than previously evaluated in the FPASP EIR/EIS. Further, the project would continue to comply with 
mitigation requirements outlined in the mitigation measures adopted for the FPASP. No new significant impacts or 

substantially more severe impacts would occur as a result of the project. Therefore, the findings of the certified 
EIR/EIS remain valid and no further analysis is required. 

As described in Impact 3A.14-4, applicants would be required to fund and construct sufficient police facilities and 

personnel to serve the planned development. Per the City Municipal Code Chapter 3, Title 3.80, "Capital 
Improvement New Construction Fee." Development within the FPASP is responsible to fund the full cost of additional 

facilities and equipment necessary as a result of project development through payment of the City's capital 

improvement new construction fees. The impact was determined to be less than significant, and no mitigation was 

required. The project would not substantially change development densities from those approved in the FPASP and 

would not result in a larger service area than previously evaluated in the FPASP EIR/EIS. Further, the project would be 

subject to the same funding requirements for police services. No new significant impacts or substantially more severe 

impacts would occur. Therefore, the findings of the certified EIR/EIS remain valid and no further analysis is required. 

As discussed in Impacts 3A.14-5 and 3A.14-6, the applicants would be required to pay school impact fees and would 
fund all costs associated with school facilities. Because of this, the EIR/EIS concluded that the FPASP's impact to schools 

would be less than significant and no mitigation is required. The project would be subject to the same school impact 

fees and funding requirements for school services. No new significant impacts or substantially more severe impacts 

would occur. Therefore, the findings of the certified EIR/EIS remain valid and no further analysis is required. 

MITIGATION MEASURES 
The following mitigation measures were referenced in the EIR/EIS analysis and would continue to remain applicable if 

the project was approved. 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.14-1: Prepare and Implement a Construction Traffic Control Plan 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.14-2: Incorporate California Fire Code; City of Folsom Fire Code Requirements; and EDHFD 
Requirements, if Necessary, into Project Design and Submit Project Design to the City of Folsom Fire Department 

for Review and Approval 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.14-3: Incorporate Fire Flow Requirements into Project Designs 

CONCLUSION 
No substantial changes in circumstances or the project have occurred nor has any new information of substantial 

importance been found requiring new analysis or verification. Therefore, the conclusions of the EIR/EIS remain valid 
and approval of the project would not result in new or substantially more severe significant impacts to public services. 

4-65 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 398

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

4.16 RECREATION 

Environmental Issue Area 
Where Impact Was 

Analyzed in the 
EIR/EIS. 

Any New 
Circumstances 
Involving New 

Significant Impacts or 
Substantially More 
Severe Impacts? 

Any New Information 
Requiring New 

Analysis or 
Verification? 

Do Prior 
Environmental 

Documents 
Mitigations 

Address/Resolve 
Impacts? 

16. Recreation. 

a. Would the project increase the use of 
existing neighborhood and regional parks 
or other recreational facilities such that 
substantial physical deterioration of the 
facility would occur or be accelerated? 

b. Does the project include recreational 
facilities or require the construction or 
expansion of recreational facilities which 
might have an adverse physical effect on 
the environment? 

4. 16.1 Discussion 

REGULATORY SETTING 

Setting pp. 3A.12-1 to 
3A.12-11 

Impacts 3A.12-1, 
3A.12-2 

Setting pp. 3A.12-1 to 
3A.12-11 

Impact 3A.12-1 

No 

No 

No NA 

No NA 

The City has completed a general plan update since certification of the EIR/EIS in 2011. The Folsom City Council 

approved the Folsom 2035 General Plan on August 28, 2018. The following goals and policies of the Folsom 2035 

General Plan are applicable to the project, but do not constitute new information of substantial importance under 

CEQA Guidelines section 15162. 

Parks and Recreation Element 
GOAL PR 1.1 Develop and maintain quality parks that support the diverse needs of the community. 

• PR 1.1.2 Complete System: Develop and maintain a robust system of parks, recreation facilities, and open space 

areas throughout Folsom that provide opportunities for both passive and active recreation. 

• PR 1.1.3 Park Design: Develop well-designed parks that enrich and delight park users through innovative and 

context appropriate design. 

• PR 1.1.4 Park Acreage Service Level Goal: Strive to develop and maintain a minimum of five acres of 

neighborhood and community parks and other recreational facilities/sites per 1,000 population. 

• PR 1.1.5 Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan Consistency: Require parks and recreation facilities be consistent with 
Folsom's Bikeway Master Plan and Pedestrian Master Plan and connect to the bikeway system whenever possible. 

• PR 1.1.6 Late-Night Park Use: Develop and maintain parks with night-use capability. 

• PR 1.1.7 Universal Access: Require new parks and open spaces be easily accessible to the public, including 

providing disabled access. 

• PR 1.1.8 Shade and Hydration: Ensure water fountains, trees, pavilions, arbors, and canopies are provided in 
Folsom's parks and playgrounds, as well as along bike paths, trails, and other active transportation corridors, 

where appropriate and feasible, to provide important safeguards on hot days. 

• PR 1.1.10 Appropriate Land for Parks: Land accepted for parks shall not be constrained by drainage, slopes, easements, 

regulated species/habitats, dense natural vegetation, and/or structures that limit the full recreational use. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-67 

Page 399

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental 

• PR 1.1.11 Parkland Acreage: Do not accept easements and designated open space/natural areas as parkland 
acreage. These areas may be used for parkland; but shall not be credited as parkland under the parkland 
dedication ordinance. 

• PR 1.1.12 Neighborhood Parks: Strive to ensure all neighborhoods, new and established, have parks that serve as 
community focal points. 

• PR 1.1.13 Community Gardens: Encourage community gardens consistent with the Parks and Recreation Master Plan. 

• PR 1.1.14 Parkways: Encourage the development of parkways and greenbelts to connect the citywide parks system. 

No other change in the regulatory settings related to recreation, described in EIR/EIS Section 3A.12 under Parks and 

Recreation, has occurred since certification of the EIR/EIS in 2011. 

IMPACT DISCUSSION 
The EIR/EIS addresses impacts associated with parks and recreation under Impacts 3A.12-1 and 3A.12-2 and 

determined that the FPASP would meet the City's requirement of 5 acres of parkland per 1,000 residents. The EIR/EIS 

concluded that the impact to existing parks and facilities would be less than significant and no mitigation was 

required. Although the project would increase population at the Alder Creek Apartments site, density transfers 

included in the project would result in no net increase in population in the FPASP area. In addition, the project would 

provide on-site recreational facilities (i.e. pool and clubhouse) and would not result in any changes to public park and 

recreation areas. The proposed project would not result in new significant impacts or substantially more severe 

impacts, the findings of the certified EIR/EIS remain valid and no further analysis is required. 

MITIGATION MEASURES 
No mitigation measures were identified in the certified EIR/EIS regarding recreation, nor are any additional mitigation 

measures required the project. 

CONCLUSION 
No substantial changes in circumstances or the project have occurred nor has any new information of substantial 

importance been identified requiring new analysis or verification. Therefore, the conclusions of the EIR/EIS remain 

valid and approval of project would not result in new or substantially more severe significant impacts to recreation. 

4-68 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 400

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental 

4.17 TRANSPORTATION 

Environmental Issue Area 
Where Impact Was Analyzed 

in the EIR/EIS. 

17. Transportation/Traffic. Would the project: 

a. Conflict with a program, plan, 
ordinance or policy addressing the 
circulation system, including transit, 
roadway, bicycle and pedestrian 
facilities? 

b. Would the project conflict or be 
inconsistent with CEQA Guidelines 
section 15064.3, subdivision (b)? 

c. Substantially increase hazards due 
to a geometric design feature (e.g., 
sharp curves or dangerous 
intersections) or incompatible uses 
(e.g., farm equipment)? 

d. Result in inadequate emergency 

Setting pp. 3A.15-1 to 3A.15-
24 
Page 3A.15-27; Impacts 3A.15-
2, 

Not addressed 

Not addressed 

Discussed under 4.14, Public 
access? Services 

4.17 .1 Discussion 

Any New Circumstances 
Involving New 

Significant Impacts or 
Substantially More 

Severe Impacts? 

No 

No 

No 

No 

Any New 
Information 

Requiring New 
Analysis or 

Verification? 

No 

No 

No 

No 

Environmental Checklist 

Do Prior Environmental 
Documents Mitigations 

Address/Resolve 
Impacts? 

Yes 

NA 

Yes 

Yes 

The EIR/EIS, certified in 2011, used automobile delay or level of service (LOS) as the primary metric to evaluate the 

project's CEQA transportation impacts, consistent with industry standards and the City General Plan goals and 

policies at the time. 

On September 27, 2013, Governor Jerry Brown signed Senate Bill (SB) 743 (Steinberg) into law and started a process 

to change transportation impact analysis as part of CEQA compliance. SB 743 directed the California Office of 
Planning and Research ("OPR") to revise the CEQA Guidelines to modify the criteria for determining the significance 

of transportation impacts to promote the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions, the development of multi modal 
transportation networks, and a diversity of land uses. Section 15064.3 of the CEQA Guidelines, adopted in December 

2018, provides that vehicle miles traveled (VMT) is the "most appropriate measure of transportation impacts" and 

mandates analysis of VMT impacts effective July 1, 2020. LOS, or other measures of automobile delay, are no longer 

considered significant environmental impacts under CEQA. (Pub. Res. Code, § 21009(b)(2).) 

As provided in CEQA Guidelines Section 15007, "amendments to the guidelines apply prospectively only," and CEQA 

documents must meet the "content requirements in effect when the document was set out for public review," and 

"shall not need to be revised to conform to any new content requirements in guideline amendments taking effect 
before the document is finally approved." (CEQA Guidelines, § 15007(c)). 

The FPASP EIR/EIS was set out for public review in 2010 and certified in 2011, long before the amendment to the 

CEQA Guidelines adding VMT as the measure of transportation impacts. In addition, information was known about 
the impact of VMT on the environment at the time the 2011 FPASP FEIR was prepared; and thus, it could have been 

evaluated in the transportation chapter of the EIR/EIS at that time. The FPASP EIR/EIS and all subsequent review of 

projects within the Specific Plan have utilized the LOS threshold of significance for traffic impacts. As directed by 

Section 15007, the FPASP EIR/EIS does not need to be revised to conform to the new VMT requirements. In addition, 

the change in law (replacement of the LOS standard with VMT) does not constitute new significant information under 

CEQA (PRC 21166 or CEQA Guidelines 15162) as it does not constitute a new impact caused by the changes proposed 
in the ro·ect. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-69 

Page 401

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental 

The project will shift residential dwelling units among several parcels within the plan area. The transfer of units would 
not create additional dwelling units or change the FPASP's total off-site trip generation. A small change in VMT would 
result from changes in travel distance within FPASP (e.g., traveling from parcel 148 rather than parcel 82B-1 to the 
boundary of FPASP); however, given the relatively short distances between the parcels where the shift of dwelling 
units will occur and the small number of trips being shifted, the change in net VMT generated would be negligible 
compared to the FPASP total VMT of 612,8001. 

For these reasons, this section provides the environmental and regulatory setting related to VMT, as well as new 

analysis of the VMT generated by the project. LOS may be reviewed by the City as part of development review and 
mitigation measures identified in the EIR/EIS related to LOS may be required by the City as a condition of approval. 
However, because LOS is no longer considered an appropriate metric for analyzing transportation impacts on the 
environment, analysis and mitigation measures related to LOS are not included in this discussion. 

REGULATORY SETTING 

Senate Bill 743 
As described above, SB 743, passed in 2013, required OPR to develop new CEQA guidelines that address 
transportation metrics under CEQA. As stated in the legislation, upon adoption of the new guidelines, "automobile 
delay, as described solely by level of service or similar measures of vehicular capacity or traffic congestion shall not be 
considered a significant impact on the environment pursuant to this division, except in locations specifically identified 
in the guidelines, if any." The updated CEQA Guidelines were adopted on December 28, 2018; and according to the 
new CEQA Guidelines (Section 15064.3), VMT replaces congestion as the metric for determining transportation 
impacts. The guidelines state that "[b]eginning July 1, 2020, the provisions of this section shall apply statewide." 

City of Folsom 2035 General Plan 
The City has completed a general plan update since certification of the FPASP EIR/EIS in 2011. The Folsom City 
Council approved the Folsom 2035 General Plan on August 28, 2018. The following goals and policies of the Folsom 

2035 General Plan are applicable to the project, but do not constitute new information of substantial importance 
under CEQA Guidelines 15162. As discussed above, LOS is no longer considered an appropriate metric for analyzing 
transportation impacts on the environment; however, LOS may be considered in the City decision making process. Thus, 
LOS-based policies are included below. 

Mobility Element 
GOAL M 1.1 Provide a comprehensive, integrated, and connected network of transportation facilities and services for 
all modes of travel that also incorporates emerging transportation technologies and services to increase 
transportation system efficiency. 

• M 1.1.1 Complete Streets: Develop its streets to serve the needs of all users, including bicyclists, public transit 
users, children, seniors, persons with disabilities, pedestrians, motorists, and movers of commercial goods. 

• M 1.1.2 Adequate Rights-of-Way: Ensure that all new roadway projects and major reconstruction projects provide 
appropriate and adequate rights-of-way for all users including bicyclists, pedestrians, transit riders, and motorists, 
except where pedestrians and bicyclists are prohibited by law from using a given facility. Dedication and 

improvements of full rights-of-way shall follow City design standards by roadway classification except in existing 
developed areas where the City determines that such improvements are either infeasible or undesirable. Other 
deviations from these standards shall be permitted upon a determination that safe and adequate access and 
circulation are preserved by such deviations. 

• M 1.1.3 Accessibility: Strive to ensure that all streets are safe and accessible to people with limited mobility and other 
disabilities. New and reconstructed facilities shall meet the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act. 

1 Page 3A.2-44 of the FPASP EIR/EIS indicates that the FPASP total daily VMT is estimated to be 612,800. 

4-70 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 402

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

• M 1.1.5 Connected Neighborhoods: Require the continuation of the street network between adjacent 
development projects to promote walkability and allow easier access for emergency vehicles. 

• M 1.1.6 lntermodal Connections: Provide connections between modes, including bicycle and pedestrian 
connections to transit stops, buses that can accommodate bicycles, and park-and-ride lots. 

• M 1.1.7 Transportation System Management: Require a transportation system management (TSM) program that 
applies to existing as well as future development and will ensure the assumed reduction in peak hour vehicle trips. 

• M 1.1.8 Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) Master Plan: Prepare and adopt an ITS Master Plan to prioritize 
the deployment of technology designed to maximize the efficiency of the City's traffic signal systems. Require 

that all development projects incorporate ITS infrastructure where feasible and consistent with the City's adopted 
ITS Master Plan. 

• M 1.1.9 Transportation Demand Management: Develop a citywide Transportation Demand Management 
Program, which provides a menu of strategies and programs for developers and employers to reduce single
occupant vehicle travel in the city. 

• M 1.1.10 Facilities for Emerging Technologies: Assist in the provision of support facilities such as advanced fueling 
stations (e.g., electric and hydrogen) for emerging technologies. 

GOAL M 2.1 Maintain and expand facilities and programs that encourage people to walk and bike in safety and 
comfort, and support the lifestyle and amenities that Folsom residents value. 

• M 2.1.1 Pedestrian Master Plan: Maintain and implement a pedestrian master plan that guides the development 
of a network that links residential developments with employment centers, public open spaces, parks, schools, 
shopping districts, and other major destinations. 

• M 2.1.2 New Sidewalks: Sidewalks shall be built along all new arterial, collector, and local roads when ultimate 
street improvements are installed. 

• M 2.1.3 Pedestrian and Bicycle Linkages in New Development: Require developers to provide a system of 
sidewalks, trails, and bikeways that link all land uses, provide accessibility to parks and schools, and connect to all 
existing or planned external street and trail facilities. 

• M 2.1.5 Bikeway Master Plan: Maintain and implement a bikeway master plan that guides the development of a 
network that links residential developments with employment centers, public open spaces, parks, schools, 
shopping districts, and other major destinations. 

• M 2.1.6 Bicycle Facility Classifications: Maintain the following classification of bicycle facilities consisting of the following: 

1. Class I bikeways: separated bicycle paths. These will be the preferred bikeway, whenever feasible. 

2. Class II bikeways: bike lanes. These will be required in areas where on-street parking is likely to occur and in 

all collector and arterial streets where feasible. Such areas would be in the vicinity of apartment complexes 
and condominium complexes. 

3. Class Ill bikeways: bike routes. These will be required in low-traffic areas where it is safe for bicycles to share 
the lane with autos and a class 1 or class 2 facility is not feasible. 

4. Class IV bikeways: bicycle-only paths, or "cycle tracks." These are a version of separated bicycle paths that are 
designed for and limited to bicycle use only, and include a separation between bikeway and through traffic 

lanes. These will only be installed in special cases where right-of-way is constricted, or there is other 
significant need to provide a separate facility for bicycle use. 

• M 2.1.7 Design Guidelines: Maintain design guidelines for bicycle facilities that result in the construction of bicycle 
improvements that are attractive, functional, and accessible. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-71 

Page 403

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental 

• M 2.1.8 Road Repair: Consider the impact to bicycle routes when conducting any major repair, alteration, or 
construction of roads. Alternate routes or other accommodations should be provided as well as any upgrades to 
City-owned pedestrian facilities to comply with the current standards of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). 

• M 2.1.10 Bicycle Parking: Require adequate short- and long-term bicycle parking for all land uses, except for 
single family and single family high density residential uses. 

• M 2.1.12 Trail Network: Develop a continuous, interconnected system of trails and bikeways. 

• M 2.1.14 Intersections: Ensure new intersections are designed to safely accommodate pedestrians and bicyclists, 
along with all other transportation modes. 

• M 2.1.16 Safe Routes to School: Encourage the construction of facilities and provision of programs that ensure 
Folsom children can walk or bike to school safely through coordination with school administration and parent 
organizations and participation in State and Federal grant programs. 

• M 2.1.17 Pedestrian and Bicycle Overpasses: Pursue the development of pedestrian and bicycle overpasses in 
areas with limited connectivity, particularly to connect development north and south of Highway 50. 

• M 2.1.18 Public Involvement: Encourage the public to participate in the planning, design, implementation, and 
maintenance of pedestrian and bicycle facilities and programs. 

GOAL M 3.1 Support and maintain a comprehensive, safe, and integrated transit system that responds to the needs of 
all residents and allow frequent and convenient travel throughout the city and region. 

• M 3.1.1 Access to Public Transit: Strive to ensure that all residents have access to safe and convenient public 
transit options. 

• M 3.1.2 Transit for Elderly and Persons with Disabilities: Continue to provide accessible, on-demand transit for the 
elderly and persons with disabilities. 

• M 3.1.6 MHi-Busw Transit Corridors: Require sufficient right-of-way for designated Hi-Bus transit corridors that 
connect to light rail stations, including the planned facility on Easton Valley Parkway, south of Highway SO. The 
City shall also evaluate the feasibility of Hi-Bus transit in designated "study corridors" and shall give priority to 
transit uses within the available right-of-way in those study corridors. The City shall coordinate with Regional 
Transit to provide services in the Hi-Bus corridors. 

• M 3.1.7 Transit to Key Locations: Provide Folsom Stage Line transit stops and associated amenities at key 
destinations in Folsom. 

GOAL M 4.1 Ensure a safe and efficient network of streets for cars and trucks, as well as provide an adequate supply 
of vehicle parking. 

• M 4.1.1 Road Network Hierarchy: Establish a hierarchy of roads consisting of the following: 

4-72 

1. Freeways or limited access highways. Such roads shall be grade separated at each intersection with another 
road. The major purpose of such roads is to route traffic around Folsom, with as few interruptions to the 

surface street system as possible. Highway 50 currently meets the definition of a freeway. 

2. Expressways. Allow for moderate- to high-speed travel within the city. The purpose of an expressway is to 
carry cross-town traffic from other communities or between neighborhoods within the city. An expressway 
may contain some grade-separated intersections, but this type of road would mainly be a surface street. 
Expressways should be located to allow for controlled intersections spaced at one-half mile intervals or more. 

Only arterial and collector roads should intersect with an expressway. 

3. Arterial roads (or major streets). Serve to connect neighborhoods within the city and the city with 
surrounding communities. Movement of people and goods, also known as "mobility," rather than access to 
adjacent land uses, is the primary function of an arterial street. Arterials would normally define the 
boundaries of neighborhoods, not provide internal access to a neighborhood. The city has two types: 1) 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 404

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

"major arterials," which are typically divided four or six-lane roadways, and 2) "minor arterials," which are 

typically undivided four-lane roadways. 

4. Collector (or secondary) roads. Serve to route traffic from local streets within a residential neighborhood or a 

commercial area to an arterial road. Collector streets would not normally serve as "through" roads for more 
than one area, but would typically carry higher traffic volumes than local streets. The City has two types: 1) 

"major collectors," which are typically two-lane roadways with center turn lanes, and 2) "minor collectors," 
which are typically two-lane roadways without center turn lanes. 

5. Local (or tertiary) roads. Serve a portion of a neighborhood only and, together with other local roads in a 

neighborhood, route traffic to a collector street. 

• M 4.1.2 Roadway Maintenance: Maintain roadways according to industry standards to provide for the safe travel for all 

users, including pedestrians, bicyclists, drivers, and transit vehicles. The City shall implement a pavement management 
plan that considers warmer temperatures, heat waves, and urban heat island effects in material selection, and 

emphasize preventative maintenance to reduce costs associated with frequent road surface replacement. 

• M 4.1.3 Level of Service: Strive to achieve at least a traffic Level of Service "D" (or better) for local streets and 

roadways throughout the City. In designing transportation improvements, the City will prioritize use of smart 
technologies and innovative solutions that maximize efficiencies and safety while minimizing the physical 

footprint. During the course of Plan buildout, it may occur that temporarily higher Levels of Service result where 

roadway improvements have not been adequately phased as development proceeds. However, this situation will 

be minimized based on annual traffic studies and monitoring programs. Staff will report to the City Council at 

regular intervals via the Capital Improvement Program process for the Council to prioritize projects integral to 

achieving Level of Service Dor better. 

• M 4.1.4 Capital Southeast Connector: Support the planning and construction of the Capital Southeast Connector. 

• M 4.1.5 Interchange Improvements: Coordinate with Caltrans in planning for and funding freeway interchange 

improvements and additional interchanges along Highway SO. 

• M 4.1.10 Traffic Calming: Continue to implement traffic calming measures in residential neighborhoods, as 

appropriate and in ways that accommodate emergency access vehicles. 

IMPACT DISCUSSION 

Conflict with a Program, Plan, Ordinance or Policy Addressing the Circulation System 
The Folsom 2035 General Plan identifies several policies addressing the City's circulation system, including but not 

limited to complete streets, pedestrian and bicycle linkages, safe routes to school, and public transit access. 

The EIR/EIS concluded that the FPASP would be consistent with the General Plan by incorporating bikeways and lanes 

and would have less-than-significant impacts on bicycle, pedestrian, and transit facilities. Impact 3A.15-2 of the EIR/EIS 

determined the project would increase the demand for single-occupancy vehicles; and thus, required implementation of 

Mitigation Measure 3A.15-2a, which implements the development of bicycle and pedestrian facilities, including bicycle 

parking to reduce demand of single-occupancy vehicles. 

The project would include pedestrian and bicycle facilities, such as internal pathways, sidewalks and crosswalks on 

adjacent roadways, and bicycle parking. The project site is adjacent to a transit corridor along Alder Creek Parkway that 

extends from west of East Bidwell Street to Westwood Drive, and then south along Westwood Drive to Savannah 

Parkway. The project would not disrupt or preclude construction or use of any planned bicycle, pedestrian, or transit 
facilities within the FPASP. As such, the project would be consistent with the FPASP, the Folsom 2035 General Plan, and 

the Bikeway Master Plan. 

The project would not result in any substantial changes to the circulation system. Therefore, no new significant 

impacts or substantially more severe impacts would occur. The findings of the certified EIR/EIS remain valid and no 

further analysis is required. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-73 

Page 405

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental 

Consistency with CEQA Guidelines Section 15064. 3, Subdivision (b) 
The analysis within this section is based on the analysis and findings of the Alder Creek Apartments Final Traffic Study 

(Traffic Study) prepared by Fehr & Peers in December 2020 (see Appendix F). The project would reallocate residential 
dwelling units among several parcels within the plan area. This reallocation of units would result in no net increase in 
total dwelling units in the FPASP and would not change the FPASP total off-site trip generation. A small change in 
VMT would result from changes in travel distance within FPASP (e.g., traveling from parcel 148 rather than parcel 
82B-1 to the boundary of FPASP); however, given the relatively short distances between the parcels where the shift of 

dwelling units would occur and the small number of trips being shifted, the change in net VMT generated would be 
negligible compared to the FPASP total daily VMT of 612,800 analyzed in the EIR/EIS (Fehr & Peers, 2020). 

In addition, Impact 3A.15-2 of the FPASP EIR/EIS identified significant impacts related to increased demand for single
occupant automobile travel. Implementation of Mitigation Measures 3A.15-2a, 3A.15-2b, and 3A.15-2c requires the 
provision of options for alternative transportation modes, participation in the City's Transportation System 

Management Fee Program, and participation in the 50 Corridor Transportation Management Association. 
Implementation of these mitigation measures would reduce significant impacts. The project would implement 
Mitigation Measures 3A.15-2a, 3A.15-2b, and 3A.15-2c. The project is located along a planned transit corridor that, 
upon build out of the FPASP, would provide express bus transit service connecting to the existing light rail network. 
The project would provide compact residential development to support the planned transit network. Internal 
pathways, sidewalks and crosswalks on adjacent roadways, and bicycle parking would further support non-automobile 
trips. In summary, the project would not result in a substantial increase in VMT and would implement measures to 
reduce single-occupant automobile travel. Therefore, no new significant impacts or substantially more severe impacts 
would occur. The findings of the certified EIR/EIS remain valid and no further analysis is required. 

Hazards Related to a Geometric Design Feature or Incompatible Uses 
The FPASP EIR/EIS did not identify any geometric design features or incompatible uses that would substantially increase 
hazards. The project would not result in any substantial changes to roadway design and would not introduce 
incompatible uses. The Traffic Study identified mitigation to include signage prohibiting eastbound Li-turns along Alder 
Creek Parkway at Placerville Road and Quail Meadow Way. This requirement is included in Mitigation Measure 4.17-1 
below. Therefore, no new significant impacts or substantially more severe impacts would occur. The findings of the 

certified EIR/EIS remain valid and no further analysis is required. 

Emergency Access 
As described in Impact 3A.14-1 of the FPASP EIR/EIS, nearby roadways in the vicinity of the FPASP area and off-site 
areas, such as White Rock Road, Prairie City Road, and U.S. 50, would likely be affected intermittently during 
construction activities. Implementation of Mitigation Measure 3A.14-1 would be required to reduce significant 

impacts associated with decreased emergency response times during construction. In addition, Impact 3A.8-4 of 
the EIR/EIS determined City-required permits would ensure sufficient street width, circulation, and access for fire 
and emergency response units. No changes to these circumstances have occurred . No new significant impacts or 
substantially more severe impacts would occur. Therefore, the findings of the certified EIR/EIS remain valid and no 

further analysis is required. 

MITIGATION MEASURES 
The following mitigation measures were referenced in the EIR/EIS analysis and would continue to remain applicable if 
the project were approved. This analysis is based on the standards in effect at the time of the EIR/EIS, which considered 
impacts to LOS. Therefore, mitigation measures related to LOS are included and applicable to the project. 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.14-1: Prepare and Implement a Construction Traffic Control Plan 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-1a: The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of Improvements to the 
Folsom Boulevard/Blue Ravine Road Intersection (Intersection 1) 

4-74 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 406

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-1b: The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of Improvements at the 

Sibley Street/Blue Ravine Road Intersection (Intersection 2) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-1c: The Applicant Shall Fund and Construct Improvements to the Scott Road (West)/White 

Rock Road Intersection (Intersection 28) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-1e: Fund and Construct Improvements to the Hillside Drive/Easton Valley Parkway 

Intersection (Intersection 41) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-1f: Fund and Construct Improvements to the Oak Avenue Parkway/Middle Road 

Intersection (Intersection 44) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-1h: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts to the Hazel 

Avenue/Folsom Boulevard Intersection (Sacramento County Intersection 2) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-1i: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the Grant 

Line Road/White Rock Road Intersection and to White Rock Road widening between the Rancho Cordova City limit 

to Prairie City Road (Sacramento County Intersection 3) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-1j: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Hazel Avenue 

between Madison Avenue and Curragh Downs Drive (Roadway Segment 10) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-11: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the White 

Rock Road/Windfield Way Intersection (El Dorado County Intersection 3) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-1o: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound 

US 50 as an alternative to improvements at the Folsom Boulevard/US 50 Eastbound Ramps Intersection (Caltrans 

Intersection 4) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-1p: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the Grant 

Line Road/ State Route 16 Intersection (Caltrans Intersection 12) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-1q: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound 

U.S. SO between Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard (Freeway Segment 1) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-1r: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound 

U.S. 50 between Hazel Avenue and Folsom Boulevard (Freeway Segment 3) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-1s: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound 

U.S. 50 between Folsom Boulevard and Prairie City Road (Freeway Segment 4) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-1u: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Westbound 

U.S. 50 between Prairie City Road and Folsom Boulevard (Freeway Segment 16) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-1v: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Westbound 

U.S. 50 between Hazel Avenue and Sunrise Boulevard (Freeway Segment 18) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-1w: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50 

Eastbound / Folsom Boulevard Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 4) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-1x: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50 

Eastbound / Prairie City Road Diverge (Freeway Diverge 5) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-1y: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50 

Eastbound / Prairie City Road Direct Merge (Freeway Merge 6) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-1z: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50 

Eastbound/ Prairie City Road Flyover On-Ramp to Oak Avenue Parkway Off-Ramp Weave (Freeway Weave 8) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-1aa: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50 

Eastbound / Oak Avenue Parkway Loop Merge (Freeway Merge 9) 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-75 

Page 407

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.1S-1dd: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. SO 

Westbound / Empire Ranch Road Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 23) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.1S-1ee: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. SO 

Westbound / Oak Avenue Parkway Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 29) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.1S-1ff: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. SO 

Westbound / Prairie City Road Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 32) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.1S-1gg: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. SO 

Westbound / Prairie City Road Direct Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 33) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.1S-1hh: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. SO 

Eastbound / Folsom Boulevard Diverge (Freeway Diverge 34) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.1S-1ii: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. SO 

Westbound / Hazel Avenue Direct Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 38) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.1S-2a: Develop Commercial Support Services and Mixed-use Development Concurrent with 

Housing Development, and Develop and Provide Options for Alternative Transportation Modes 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.1S-2b: Participate in the City's Transportation System Management Fee Program 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.1S-2c: Participate with the SO Corridor Transportation Management Association 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.1S-3: Pay Full Cost of Identified Improvements that Are Not Funded by the City's Fee 

Program 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-4a: The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of Improvements to the 

Sibley Street/Blue Ravine Road Intersection (Folsom Intersection 2) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.1S-4b: The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of Improvements to the 

Oak Avenue Parkway/East Bidwell Street Intersection (Folsom Intersection 6) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-4c: The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of Improvements to the 

East Bidwell Street/Nesmith Court Intersection (Folsom Intersection 7) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.1S-4d: The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of Improvements to the 

East Bidwell Street/Iron Point Road Intersection (Folsom Intersection 21) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-4e: The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of Improvements to the 

Serpa Way/ Iron Point Road Intersection (Folsom Intersection 23) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-4f: The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of Improvements to the 

Empire Ranch Road/ Iron Point Road Intersection (Folsom Intersection 24) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.1S-4g: The Applicant Shall Fund and Construct Improvements to the Oak Avenue Parkway/ 

Easton Valley Parkway Intersection (Folsom Intersection 33) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-4i: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the Grant 

Line Road/White Rock Road Intersection (Sacramento County Intersection 3) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-4j: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Grant Line 

Road between White Rock Road and Kiefer Boulevard (Sacramento County Roadway Segments 5-7) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.1S-4k: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Grant Line 

Road between Kiefer Boulevard and Jackson Highway (Sacramento County Roadway Segment 8) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.1S-4I: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Hazel Avenue 

between Curragh Downs Drive and U.S. 50 Westbound Ramps (Sacramento County Roadway Segment s 12-13) 

4-76 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 408

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-4m: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on White Rock 

Road between Grant Line Road and Prairie City Road (Sacramento County Roadway Segment 22) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-4n: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on White Rock 

Road between Empire Ranch Road and Carson Crossing Road (Sacramento County Roadway Segment 28) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.1S-4o: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the White 

Rock Road/ Carson Crossing Road Intersection (El Dorado County 1) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-4p: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the Hazel 

Avenue/U.S. SO Westbound Ramps Intersection (Caltrans Intersection 1) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-4q: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound 

U.S. 50 between Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard (Freeway Segment 1) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-4r: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound 

U.S. 50 between Rancho Cordova Parkway and Hazel Avenue (Freeway Segment 3) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.1S-4s: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound 

U.S. 50 between Folsom Boulevard and Prairie City Road (Freeway Segment 5) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-4t: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Eastbound 

U.S. SO between Prairie City Road and Oak Avenue Parkway (Freeway Segment 6) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.1S-4u: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the U.S. SO 

Eastbound / Prairie City Road Slip Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 6) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.1S-4v: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the U.S. 50 

Eastbound/ Prairie City Road Flyover On Ramp to Oak Avenue Parkway Off Ramp Weave (Freeway Weave 7) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-4w: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50 

Eastbound / Oak Avenue Parkway Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 8) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-4x: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50 

Westbound / Empire Ranch Road Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 27) 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.15-4y: Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50 

Westbound / Prairie City Road Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 35) 

In addition to the mitigation measures in the EIR/EIS (listed above), the project-specific traffic study provided the 

following refinement to the mitigation program that would be required for the project (Fehr & Peers 2020). These 

refinements are consistent with the mitigation program outlined in the FPASP EIR/EIS. 

Mitigation Measure 4.17-1 Signage Prohibiting U-Tums on Alder Creek Parkway. 
Concurrent with construction of circulation improvements, the project applicant shall ensure the following have been 

implemented. 

• Post "No U-Turn" signs (CA MUTCD R3-4 or similar) along Alder Creek Parkway at Quail Meadow Way, facing the 

eastbound approach, in the median on the near and far side of the intersection, prohibiting eastbound U-turns. 

• Post "No U-Turn" signs (CA MUTCD R3-4 or similar) along Alder Creek Parkway at Placerville Road, facing the 

eastbound approach, in the median on the near and far side of the intersection, prohibiting eastbound U-turns. 

CONCLUSION 
The updated transportation impact analysis is consistent with the analysis prepared for the certified EIR/EIS. The 

conclusions of the EIR/EIS remain valid and approval of the project would not result in new or substantially more 

severe significant impacts related to transportation. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-77 

Page 409

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checkl ist Ascent Environmental 

4.18 UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS 

Environmental Issue Area 
Where Impact Was 

Analyzed in the 
EIR/EIS. 

18. Utilities and Service Systems. Would the Project: 

a. Require or result in the relocation or 
construction of new or expanded water, 
wastewater treatment or storm water 
drainage, electric power, natural gas, or 
telecommunications facil ities, the 
construction or relocation of which could 
cause significant environmental effects? 

b. 

C. 

d. 

Have sufficient water supplies available to 
serve the project and reasonably 
foreseeable future development during 
normal, dry and multiple dry years? 

Result in a determination by the wastewater 
treatment provider which serves or may 
serve the project that it has adequate 
capacity to serve the project's projected 
demand in addition to the provider's 
existing commitments? 

Generate solid waste in excess of State or 
local standards, or in excess of the capacity 
of local infrastructure, or otherwise impair 
the attainment of solid waste reduction 
goals? 

e. Comply with federal, state, and local 
statutes and regulations related to solid 
waste? 

4.18.1 Discussion 

REGULATORY SETTING 

Setting pp. 3A.16-1 to 
3A.16-3; 3A.18-1 to 
3A.18-6; 3A.16-5 to 

3A.16-7; and p. 4-68 
Impacts 3A.16-1, 3A.16-

2, 3A.18-2, 3A.16-3, 
3A.16-4, 3A.16-5, 
3A.16-8, 3A.16-9, 
3A.16-10, 3A.16-11 

Setting pp. 3A.18-1 to 
3A.18-6 

Impact 3A.18-1 

Setting pp. 3A.16-1 to 
3A.16-3 

Impacts 3A.16-2, 
3A.16-3, 3A.16-4, 

3A.16-5 

Setting pp. 3A.1 6-3 to 
3A.16-4 

Impacts 3A.16-6, 
3A.16-7 

Setting p. 3A.16-4 
Impacts 3A.16-6, 

3A.16-7 

Any New 
Circumstances Involving 
New Significant Impacts 
or Substantially More 

Severe Impacts? 

No 

No 

No 

No 

No 

Any New 
Information 

Requiring New 
Analysis or 

Verification? 

No 

No 

No 

No 

No 

Do Prior Environmental 
Documents Mitigations 

Address/Resolve 
Impacts? 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

NA 

NA 

The City has completed a general plan update since certification of the EIR/EIS in 2011. The Folsom City Council 
approved the Folsom 2035 General Plan on August 28, 2018. The following goals and policies of the Folsom 2035 
General Plan are applicable to the project, but do not constitute new information of substantial importance under 
CEQA Guidelines section 15162. 

Public Facilities and Services Element 
GOAL PFS 3.1 Maintain the City's water system to meet the needs of existing and future development while improving 
water system efficiency. 

• PFS 3.1.3 Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance: Continue to require water efficient landscaping consistent with 
the Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance. 

4-78 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 410

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

• PFS 3.1.4 New Technologies: Support efforts to encourage the use of new technologies to meet the goals in the 
Urban Water Management Plan and Water Master Plan. 

• PFS 3.1.6 Water Quality: Ensure the provision of healthy, safe water for all users in Folsom through facilities, 
policies, programs, and regulations. 

• PFS 3.1.7 Water Supply: Provide an adequate supply of water for all users in Folsom now and in the future. 

• PFS 3.1.8 Water Resources: Require water resources be developed in coordination with local flood management, 
water conservation, and groundwater agencies. 

• PFS 3.1.10 Water Conservation Standards: Achieve a 20 percent reduction in per-capita water use by 2020 
consistent with the State's 20x2020 Water Conservation Plan, Senate Bill SB X7-7 2009, and the City of Folsom 
Urban Water Management Plan. 

• PFS 3.1.11 Resilient System: Ensure a resilient water storage and distribution system that can rapidly recover to 
provide water in the event of a disaster. 

• PFS 3.1.12 Non-Potable Water: Endeavor to provide non-potable water by ensuring new development south of 
Highway 50 is served by a non-potable water distribution system and seek sources of non-potable water for 
landscaping and other appropriate uses citywide. 

GOAL PFS 4.1 Maintain an adequate wastewater system to meet the needs of the community. 

• PFS 4.1.1 Wastewater System: Ensure the local wastewater network is built and maintained to provide cost
effective wastewater service. 

• PFS 4.1.2 Regional Cooperation: Coordinate with the Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District and 
Sacramento Area Sanitation District to ensure the efficient and environmentally-sound treatment of Folsom's 
wastewater. 

GOAL 5.1 Ensure adequate flood control and stormwater drainage. 

• PFS 5.1.1 Maintain Adequate Storm Drainage: Develop and maintain an adequate storm drainage system. 

• PFS 5.1.3 Urban Runoff: Strive to reduce the amount of urban runoff and seek to capture and treat runoff before 
it enters streams, lakes, and rivers, applicable only to new development. 

• PFS 5.1.4 Green Stormwater Infrastructure: Encourage "green infrastructure" design and LID techniques for 
stormwater facilities (i.e., using vegetation and soil to manage stormwater) to preserve and create open space 
and improve runoff water quality. 

GOAL PFS 8.1 Provide for the energy and telecommunications needs of Folsom and decrease dependence on 
nonrenewable energy sources through energy conservation, efficiency, and renewable resource strategies now and in 
the future. 

• PFS 8.1.1 Provision of Utilities: Coordinate with public, quasi-public, and private utility providers to ensure 
adequate service to City residents. 

• PFS 8.1.2 Telecommunication Technologies: Support the implementation of new telecommunication technologies 
(e.g., fiber optic broadband internet) to attract new businesses and serve residential customers. 

• PFS 8.1.3 Renewable Energy: Promote efforts to increase the use of renewable energy resources such as wind, 
solar, hydropower, and biomass both in the community and in City operations, where feasible. 

GOAL PFS 9.1 Reduce the amount of waste entering regional landfills through an effective waste management 
program. 

• PFS 9.1.2 Waste Reduction: Support efforts to reduce the amount of waste disposed of in landfills through 
reusing, reducing, and recycling solid waste; and using conversion technology if appropriate. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-79 

Page 411

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental 

• PFS 9.1.3 Recycling Target: Support efforts to achieve a citywide disposal rate of 1.5 pounds per person per day, 

exceeding statewide target of 2.7 pounds per person per day by 2035. 

• PFS 9.1.4 Composting: Provide green waste collection and offer compost education to divert organic material 

from local landfills. 

No other substantial change in the environmental and regulatory settings related to utilities and service systems as 
described in EIR/EIS Section 3A.16 under Utilities and Service Systems has occurred since certification of the EIR in 2011. 

IMPACT DISCUSSION 

Water Facilities 
The EIR/EIS addressed water facilities under Impact 3A.18-2, and determined that at the time of the EIR/EIS, the 

FPASP site was not served by a public water system and sufficient off-site water conveyance and treatment facilities 

necessary to serve the development. In addition, the City and Sacramento County Water Agency had not entered 

into a binding agreement for use of Freeport Regional Water Authority's diversion facilities. The EIR/EIS concluded 

that this is a direct, potentially significant impact. Implementation of Mitigation Measure 3A.18-2a and 3A.18-2b 
would require adequate off-site conveyance and treatment facilities be secured before the issuance of building 

permits and would reduce impacts to less than significant. The project is located within the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 

Subdivision, which included infrastructure improvements, consistent with the FPASP. In addition, the project would 

not result in a substantial change to the land uses and densities approved under the FPASP. No new significant 

impacts or substantially more severe impacts would occur. Therefore, the findings of the certified EIR/EIS remain valid 

and no further analysis is required. 

Wastewater Facilities 
The EIR/EIS addressed wastewater facilities under Impacts 3A.16-1, 3A.16-2, 3A.16-3, 3A.16-4, and 3A.16-5, determined 

that at the time of the EIR/EIS, the FPASP site was not served by a municipal wastewater collection system and both 
on-site and off-site wastewater collection and conveyance infrastructure necessary to serve the development. The 

EIR/EIS analyzed the potential demand on facilities for the Sacramento Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant, 

Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District, El Dorado Irrigation District, and El Dorado Hills Wastewater 

Treatment Plant. The EIR/EIS concluded that the impacts to these facilities could be potentially significant. The project 

would not be within the El Dorado Irrigation District or El Dorado Hills Wastewater Treatment Plant service area and 

would result in no net change in dwelling units or population in the FPASP. Therefore, there would be no impacts 

beyond those previously evaluated in the FPASP EIR/EIS. With the implementation of Mitigation Measures 3A.16-1 
and 3A.16-3, the impacts would be reduced to less than significant for all impacts except for the potentially significant 

and unavoidable impacts related to environmental effects associated with improvements to treatment plant facilities. 

These conclusions are the same as that presented in the EIR/EIS. No new significant impacts or substantially more 

severe impacts would occur. Therefore, the findings of the certified EIR/EIS remain valid and no further analysis is 
required. 

Stormwater Facilities 
The approved FPASP would require new storm water drainage facilities. These were included in the approved FPASP 

and the potential significant environmental effects were analyzed throughout the EIR/EIS. The project is located 

within the Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Subdivision, which included infrastructure improvements, consistent with the 

FPASP. In addition, the project would include the same land use types as the approved FPASP and would result in no 

net change in density and population for the FPASP area. Therefore, no new off-site infrastructure or changes to the 

approved backbone infrastructure would be required . Because there are no new significant impacts or substantially 

more severe impacts, the findings of the certified EIR/EIS remain valid and no further analysis is required. 

Electric Power, Natural Gas, and Telecommunications Facilities 
Impacts 3A.16-8, 3A.16-9, 3A.16-10, 3A.16-11 of the EIR/EIS analyzed the demand for utilities and services not already 

covered in other discussions. The EIR/EIS found that the impacts to electricity service, natural gas, telecommunications 

4-80 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 412

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

service, and cable television and communications service would be less than significant and no mitigation measures 

were required. The project would not result in substantial land use changes that would substantially change estimated 
demands for these services. Therefore, no new significant impacts or substantially more severe impacts would occur. The 

findings of the certified EIR/EIS remain valid and no further analysis is required. 

Water Supply 
As analyzed in the EIR/EIS under Impact 3A.18-1, the proposed water supply would be adequate to meet the 

projected water demand by the FPASP in both normal and critically dry years. However, the EIR/EIS concluded that 

the impact to water supplies was potentially significant because of the possibility that the water infrastructure to 

accommodate the FPASP may not be developed or coordinated fully with the development of houses and other 

water using land types. To reduce this potential impact to less than significant, Mitigation Measure 3A.18-1 required 

all applicants to submit proof of surface water supply availability. With implementation of this mitigation measure, the 

impact would be reduced to a less-than-significant level. 

In November 2012, the City considered and adopted an addendum to the FPASP EIR/EIS that assessed the 

environmental impacts of changing the approved water supply for the FPASP to the Revised Proposed Off-Site Water 

Facility Alternative, which would use water obtained through the City's conservation activities and exchange of 
supplies with the City's east area. The addendum concluded that water supplies under the Off-Site Water Facility 

Alternative would be more secure than the originally considered water supply plan, and landowners in the FPASP 

would be required to implement the previously adopted mitigation measures, which require submittal of proof of 

surface water supply availability and adequate water service infrastructure before approval of new development 

(Water Addendum, pp. 3-18 to 3-19.) Thus, with these mitigation measures in place, it is reasonable to conclude that 

development in the FPASP, including this project, would not outpace the City's available water supplies. As discussed 

in Response to Comment 7-15 of the Russell Ranch Final EIR (City of Folsom 2015:3-33), the City has reviewed its 

water supply extensively to ensure that "the City will meet its diversion in 'dry' and 'extremely dry' conditions" (City of 
Folsom 2015:3-40). The City "has considered and analyzed in its most recent Urban Water Management Plan 

(adopted June 14, 2011) the effects of implementing conservation measures in increasingly stricter stages that are 

designed to reduce water use City-wide" (City of Folsom 2015:3-41). 

The City's 2015 Urban Water Management Plan (adopted June 14, 2016) determined the City would have sufficient 

water supplies during normal, single dry, and multiple dry years through build out of the City, as shown in Table 4-6. 

Build out is anticipated to occur around 2050, dependent on a number of factors and market conditions, and would 

include build out of the entire FPASP development (City of Folsom 2016:2-3). 

Table 4-6 City Water Supply and Demand Comparison at Buildout (2050) 

(acre-feet/year) Normal Single-Dry Multi-Dry1 Multi-Dry2 Multi-Dry3 

Supply 38,790 37,040 37,040 36,500 34,750 

Demand 31,852 32,808 32,808 28,667 25,482 

Difference 6,938 4,232 4,232 7,833 9,269 

Source: City of Folsom 2015 Urban Water Management Plan, June 2016, Table 7-4. 

The project would not substantially change land use types or densities and would have no net increase in housing 
units. The project would not exceed water demands estimated in the Folsom Specific Plan Area SB 610 Water 

Assessment prepared for the FPASP. Further, sufficient water supplies are available to meet the project's long-term 

water demands. Finally, the project would continue to comply with mitigation recommended in the FPASP. Therefore, 

no new significant impacts or substantially more severe impacts would occur. The findings of the certified EIR/EIS 

remain valid and no further analysis is required. 

Wastewater Treatment Capacity 
Under Impacts 3A.16-2, 3A.16-3, 3A.16-4, and 3A.16-5, the EIR/EIS analyzed the potential demand on wastewater 

facilities for the Sacramento Regional Wastewater Treatment Plant, Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District, El 

Dorado Irrigation District, and El Dorado Hills Wastewater Treatment Plant. The project would not substantially change 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-81 

Page 413

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checkl ist Ascent Environmental 

land use types or densities from the approved FPASP, would have no net increase in housing units, and would not be 
within the El Dorado Irrigation District or El Dorado Hills Wastewater Treatment Plant service area. Therefore, the 
project would not increase wastewater treatment demand beyond the approved FPASP. The project would continue 
to be required to comply with Mitigation Measures 3A.18-2a, 3A.18-2b, and 3A.16-3 in the FPASP which address 

ensuring adequate wastewater treatment capacity. With implementation of these mitigation measures, the potential for 
inadequate capacity to serve the project would be reduced to a less-than-significant level because the applicant would 

be required to coordinate with service providers to ensure adequate capacity is available and submit the proof of 

adequate capacity to the City before the City would issue building permits. Because no new significant impacts or 

substantially more severe impacts would occur, the findings of the certified EIR/EIS remain valid and no further 

analysis is required . 

Solid Waste 
Impact 3A.16-6 of the Draft EIR/EIS analyzed short-term generation of solid waste during project construction while 

Impact 3A.16-7 analyzed increased long-term generation of solid waste. The EIR/EIS found that the estimated waste 

generated both short- and long-term by the project could be accommodated within the existing landfills. The project 

would not substantially change land use types or densities and would have no net increase in housing units. 
Therefore, the project would not generate solid waste above the previously evaluated FPASP. No new significant 

impacts or substantially more severe impacts would occur. Therefore, the findings of the certified EIR/EIS remain valid 

and no further analysis is required. 

In Impacts 3A.16-6 and 3A.16-7, the EIR/EIS describes how the FPASP would comply with statutes and regulations 

related to solid waste. These impacts (Impact 3A.16-6 and 3A.16-7) were determined to be less than significant and no 

mitigation measures were required. The project would continue to comply with these statues and regulations. In 

addition, Policy PFS 9.1.2 Waste Reduction, Policy PFS 9.1.3 Recycling Target, and Policy PFS 9.1.4 Composting 

identified in the Folsom 2035 General Plan would further solid waste reduction efforts. Because there are no new 

significant impacts or substantially more severe impacts, the findings of the certified EIR/EIS remain valid and no 

further analysis is required. 

MITIGATION MEASURES 
The following mitigation measures were referenced in the EIR/EIS analysis and would continue to remain applicable if 

the project was approved. 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.16-1: Submit Proof of Adequate On- and Off-Site Wastewater Conveyance Facilities and 

Implement On- and Off-Site Infrastructure Service Systems or Ensure That Adequate Financing Is Secured. 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.16-3: Demonstrate Adequate SRWTP Wastewater Treatment Capacity. 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.18-1: Submit Proof of Surface Water Supply Availability. 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.18-2a: Submit Proof of Adequate Off-Site Water Conveyance Facilities and Implement Off

Site Infrastructure Service System or Ensure That Adequate Financing Is Secured. 

• Mitigation Measure 3A.18-2b: Demonstrate Adequate Off-Site Water Treatment Capacity (if the Off-Site Water 

Treatment Plant Option is Selected). 

CONCLUSION 
No substantial changes in circumstances or the project have occurred nor has any new information of substantial 

importance been identified requiring new analysis or verification. Therefore, the conclusions of the EIR/EIS remain 

valid and approval of project would not result in new or substantially more severe significant impacts to utilities and 

services systems. 

4-82 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 414

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

4.19 WILDFIRE 

Environmental Issue Area 
Where Impact Was 

Analyzed in the 
EIR/EIS. 

Any New Circumstances 
Involving New 

Significant Impacts or 
Substantially More 
Severe Impacts? 

Any New 
Information 

Requiring New 
Analysis or 

Verification? 

Do Prior 
Environmental 

Documents 
Mitigations 

Address/Resolve 
Impacts? 

19. Wildfire. If located in or near state responsibility areas or lands classified as very high fire hazard severity zones, would 
the project 

a. Substantially impair an adopted emergency 
response plan or emergency evacuation 
plan? 

b. Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other 
factors, exacerbate wildfire risks, and 
thereby expose project occupants to, 
pollutant concentrations from a wildfire or 
the uncontrolled spread of a wildfire? 

c. Require the installation or maintenance of 
associated infrastructure (such as roads, fuel 
breaks, emergency water sources, power 
lines or other utilities) that may exacerbate 
fire risk or that may result in temporary or 
ongoing impacts to the environment? 

4. 19. 1 Discussion 

Setting p. 3A.8-14 
Impact 3A.8-4 

Setting p. 3A.8-18 
through 3A.8-19 

No impact 

Setting p. 3A.8-18 
through 3A.8-19 

No impact 

No No NA 

No No NA 

No No NA 

A comprehensive update to the CEQA Guidelines has been completed since certification of the FPASP Final EIR/EIS. 

Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines, which became effective on December 28, 2018, was revised to include Wildfire 

as a category of analysis. At the time of the EIR/EIS, fire was addressed under Hazards and Hazardous Materials of 

Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines. This analysis has been added, in response to the 2018 update to the CEQA 

Guidelines. However, as fire risk was previously addressed in the EIR/EIS this analysis does not constitute new 

information of substantial importance under CEQA Guidelines section 15162. 

REGULATORY SETTING 
The City has completed a general plan update since certification of the EIR/EIS in 2011. The Folsom City Council 

approved the Folsom 2035 General Plan on August 28, 2018. The following goals and policies of the Folsom 2035 

General Plan are applicable to the project, but do not constitute new information of substantial importance under 
CEQA Guidelines section 15162. 

Safety Element 
GOAL SN 1.1 Maintain an effective response to emergencies, provide support and aid in a crisis, and repair and 

rebuild after a crisis. 

• SN 1.1.1 Emergency Operations Plan: Develop, maintain, and implement an Emergency Operations Plan that 

addresses life and safety protection, medical care, incident stabilization, property conservation, evacuation, 

escape routes (including back-up escape routes), mutual aid agreements, temporary housing, and 

communications. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-83 

Page 415

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental 

Public Facilities and Services Element 
GOAL PFS 7.1 Prevent loss of life, injury, and property due to wild land and structural fires, while ensuring an adequate 
level of fire protection service is maintained for all. 

• PFS 7.1.1 Adequate Facilities and Services: Strive to provide fire department facilities, equipment and vehicles, and 
services to adequately meet the needs of existing and future development. 

• PFS 7.1.2 Fire Response Standards: Maintain adequate fire suppression response capabilities in all areas of the city 
consistent with the Fire Service Delivery Plan. 

• PFS 7.1.4 Optimal Siting: Require that new fire stations are strategically located to ensure optimal response time 
and physical barriers are considered in the siting of new stations. 

• PFS 7.1.5 Fire Flow Requirements: Ensure that adequate water fire-flow capability is provided throughout the city 
that conforms to the fire flow requirements of the California Fire Code. 

• PFS 7.1.6 Inspections: Ensure the continued compliance of structures with City and State fire and life safety 
regulations by conducting periodic inspections. 

• PFS 7.1.7 Built-In Fire Suppression: Minimize dependence on fire department staff and equipment and improve 
fire safety by requiring installation of built-in fire suppression equipment in all new buildings in accordance with 
the California Fire Code. 

• PFS 7.1.8 New Development: Require that new development provides all necessary water service, fire hydrants, 
and roads consistent with Fire Department standards. 

• PFS 7.1.9 Fire Access Design and Building Materials: Ensure that fire equipment access is integrated into the 
design of new developments, as well as the use of fire-resistant landscaping and building materials. 

IMPACT DISCUSSION 
As described in Impact 3A.8-4 of the EIR/EIS, development under the FPASP would require permits from the City and 
review from the City Fire Department to ensure that proposed developments provide sufficient hydrant locations, 
street width, circulation, and access for fire and emergency response units to access FPASP developments. 
Implementation of the FPASP would not conflict with any adopted emergency response or evacuation plans and the 
impact was determined to be less than significant and no mitigation was required. No changes to these 

circumstances outlined in the EIR/EIS have occurred. No new significant impacts or substantially more severe impacts 
would occur. 

Section 3A.8, "Hazards and Hazardous Materials" of the EIR/EIS states the FPASP area is located within a state 

responsibility area designated as a moderate fire hazard severity zone. The EIR/EIS concludes that the FPASP area is 
not near an area of high or extremely high fire hazard severity, as identified by CAL FIRE. The EIR/EIS also states that 
should future surveys identify a portion or portions of the SPA in a very high fire hazard severity zone, the Wildland
Urban Interface building code regulations would be imposed in accordance with State law (see pp. 3A.8-18 - 3A.8-19 
of the EIR/EIS). 

Since the adoption of the Final EIR/EIS, the City prepared a Community Wildfire Protection Plan in April 2013 and the 
Sacramento County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update (Annex C City of Folsom) was drafted in December 2016. 
The City's Community Wildfire Protection Plan identifies the area south of U.S. 50, including the FPASP area, as a local 

responsibility area with some, but not all, of the land designated within a mutual dispatch area requiring CAL FIRE 
response in the event of a major fire event. The FPASP area, including the project site, is identified as an area of high 
to very high fire threat (City of Folsom 2013:13-14; County of Sacramento 2016). The Community Wildfire Protection 

Plan includes fuel reduction strategies and describes the importance of fire-resistant building materials, overhanging 
structures, structural openings, fuel hazards, and fire equipment access (City of Folsom 2013). 

4-84 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 416

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Environmental Checklist 

The project is located on low rolling hills with minimal slope and does not include the hillside area or any steep 
slopes. Prevailing wind is generally from the southwest driven by marine breezes flowing through the Sacramento 
Valley from the Carquinez Strait. The project would not result in an increase in slope or prevailing wind that may 
exacerbate wildfire risks. The project would comply with Wildland-Urban Interface building code regulations when 
applicable as discussed in the EIR/EIS. The project would also comply with general plan policies identified in the 
Folsom 2035 General Plan including fire flow requirements, access requirements, and fire-resistant landscaping and 
building materials. The FPASP includes Policy 10.55 which requires open space areas adjacent to buildings and 
development parcels to maintain a fuel modification and vegetation management area to provide the minimum fuel 
modification fire break as required by State and local laws and ordinances. 

The FPASP, including the project, is located directly adjacent to the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District. The District 
has also adopted a Community Wildfire Protection Plan that assess the risk of wildfire impacts and provides 
recommendations to reduce risk. The District's Community Wildfire Protection Plan includes strategies and action 

items to reduce the risk of destructive fires, increase community resiliency, and coordinate wildfire planning and 
mitigation (Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District 2014). Efforts conducted by the Sacramento Metropolitan Fire 
District through the Community Wildfire Protection Plan would further reduce the risk of wildfire and wildfire 
spreading within the region, thereby, reducing the potential of wildfire impacts at the project site. 

The project would comply with Wildland-Urban Interface building code regulations, California Fire Code, Folsom 
2035 General Plan Polices and FPASP Polices and impacts would be less than significant. In addition, the project 
would not require installation of infrastructure beyond what was anticipated under the FPASP EIR/EIS and project 

infrastructure would be reviewed by the City Fire Department to ensure compliance with the California Fire Code and 
access requirements. Power lines and natural gas lines within the FPASP area are serviced and maintained by SMUD 
and PG&E, respectively. Both SMUD and PG&E have prepared wildfire mitigation plans to identify wildfire prevention 
strategies such as infrastructure inspections and maintenance, vegetation management, and workforce training 
(SMUD 2019; PG&E 2019). The project would not exacerbate fire risk beyond what was previously anticipated under 
the FPASP. Because wildfire risk was known or could have been known at the time the EIR/EIS was certified and no 
new significant impacts or substantially more severe impacts would occur as a result of the project, the findings of the 
certified EIR/EIS remain valid and no further analysis is required. 

MITIGATION MEASURES 
No mitigation measures were needed for the certified EIR/EIS regarding wildfire. No additional mitigation measures are 
required for the project for this issue. 

CONCLUSION 
This report updates the regulatory setting addressing wildfire and provides additional project-level wildfire analysis in 
accordance with the updated Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines, which became effective on December 28, 2018. 
While the updated information and the project-specific analyses provide additional detail for the project site, this 
analysis is based on the standards in effect at the time of the EIR/EIS. At the time of the EIR/EIS, fire was addressed 
under Hazards and Hazardous Materials of Appendix G of the CEQA Guidelines. Therefore, this analysis would not 
constitute new information of substantial importance under CEQA Guidelines section 15162. The proposed 

amendment to the FPASP would not result in new or substantially more severe significant impacts to wildfire. 
Therefore, no additional analysis is required. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 4-85 

Page 417

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Environmental Checklist Ascent Environmental 

4.20 MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE 

Any New Circumstances Any New 
Do Prior 

Environmental 
Where Impact Was Involving New Information 

Documents 
Environmental Issue Area Analyzed in the Significant Impacts or Requiring New 

Mitigations 
EIR/EIS. Substantially More Analysis or 

Severe Impacts? Verification? 
Address/Resolve 

Impacts? 

20. Mandatory Findings of 
Significance. 

a. Does the project have the potential to Chapter 3, Affected No Yes, discussed Yes 
substantially degrade the quality of the Environment, throughout 
environment, substantially reduce the Environmental environmental 
habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a Consequences, and checklist 
fish or wildlife population to drop below Mitigation Measures 
self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate 
a plant or animal community, substantially 
reduce the number or restrict the range of 
an endangered, rare or threatened species 
or eliminate important examples of the 
major periods of California history or 
prehistory? 

b. Does the project have impacts that are Setting pp. 4-1 to 4- No No Yes 
individually limited, but cumulatively 20 
considerable? ("Cumulatively considerable" Impacts pp. 4-20 to 4-
means that the incremental effects of a 64 
project are considerable when view in 
connection with the effects of past projects, 
the effects of other current projects, and 
the effects of probable future projects)? 

C. Does the project have environmental effects Chapter 3, Affected No Yes, discussed Yes 
which will cause substantial adverse effects Environment, throughout 
on human beings, either directly or Environmental environmental 
indirectly? Consequences, and checklist 

Mitigation Measures 

CONCLUSION 
All approved mitigation in the EIR/EIS or contained in this document would continue to be implemented with the 
proposed project. Therefore, no new significant impacts would occur with implementation of the project. 

4-86 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 418

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



5 LIST OF PREPARERS AND PERSONS CONSUL TED 

5.1 LIST OF PREPARERS 

Ascent Environmental 
Amanda Olekszulin .............................. ............. ............. .......... ................................ ............................... ................... ....... Principal-in-Charge 

Kim Untermoser .................................................. ....... .... ................................. ........ .............. .... Project Manager/Environmental Planner 

Dimitri Antoniou ..................... .. ..... .. ............. ...... ...... .............................. ............................................... Senior AQ/Energy/GHG Reviewer 

Christopher Lovett .......................................................................................................................... Air Quality/Climate Change Specialist 

Zachary Miller ................................................................................................................................. Senior Traffic/Transportation Reviewer 

Allison Fuller .................................................................................................................................. .. .......................................................... Biologist 

Phi Ngo .................................................. .................. ................... ...... ... ..... ............................................. .. ........ .... ... ............ GIS Analyst/Graphics 

Brian Perry ................ ....... ...... ....... .............................................................................................................................................................. Graphics 

Gayiety Lane ..................... ...................................... ......................................................................................... ........ .. .................. .......... Publishing 

Michele Mattei ...................................................................................................................................................................................... Publishing 

Fehr & Peers 
John Gard ................................................................................................................................................................................................... Principal 

Albee Wei .......... ............................................................... ......................................... ........................ ............................. Transportation Planner 

ECORP 
Lisa Westwood ....................................................................... .. ..................................... ...................................................... Cultural Resources 

J.C. Brennan & Associates, Inc. 
Jim Brennan ..................................................................................................................................................................................................... Noise 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 5-1 

Page 419

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



List of Preparers and Persons Consulted 

This page intentionally left blank. 

5-2 

Ascent Environmental 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 420

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



6 REFERENCES 

Chapter 1, Introduction 
No references were used in this section. 

Chapter 2, Project Description 
City of Folsom. 2010 (June). Draft Environmental Impact Report/Draft Environmental Impact Statement Folsom South of 

U.S. SO Specific Plan Project. SCH #2008092051. Sacramento County, CA. Prepared by AECOM and RMC 

Water and Environment. 

Chapter 3, Environmental Checklist for Supplemental Environmental Review 
No references were used in this section. 

Chapter 4, Environmental Checklist 

Section 4. 1, Aesthetics 
No references were used in this section. 

Section 4.2, Agriculture and Forest Resources 
No references were used in this section. 

Section 4.3, Air Quality 
California Geologic Survey. 2006. Relative Likelihood for the Presence of Naturally Occurring Asbestos in Eastern 

Sacramento County, California. (Cited as "Higgins and Clinkenbeard 2006" in the FPASP EIR/EIS). Available: 

https://www.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/Documents/SR_192_East_Sac_County.pdf. Accessed July 31, 2019. 

OEHHA. See Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment. 

Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment. 2015 (February). Air Toxics Hot Spots Program Risk Assessment 

Guidelines Guidance Manual for Preparation of Health Risk Assessments. 

SCAQMD. See South Coast Air Quality Management District. 

South Coast Air Quality Management District, Bay Area Air Quality Management District, Sacramento Metropolitan 

Air Quality Management District, San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District, Santa Barbara County Air 

Pollution Control District, and San Luis Obispo Air Pollution Control District. 2011 (July). CalEEMod Technical 

Paper, Methodology Reasoning and Policy Development of the California Emission Estimator Model. 

Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District. 2009 (December). Guide to Air Quality Assessment in 

Sacramento County. Available: http://www.airquality.org/Residents/CEQA-Land-Use-Planning/CEQA

Guidance-Tools. Accessed August 8, 2019. Revised September 2010, April 2011, May 2011, April 2013, June 
2013, July 2013, August 2013, October 2013, June 2014, November 2014, May 2015, June 2015, December 

2015, February 2016, March 2016, May 2016, June 2016, August 2016, September 2016, December 2016, May 

2017, April 2018, May 2018, September 2018, and April 2019. 

--. 2017. Air Quality Pollutants and Standards. Available: http://www.airquality.org/Air-Quality-Health/Air-

Quality-Pollutants-and-Standards. Accessed May 21, 2019. 

SMAQMD. See Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District. 

Section 4.4, Biological Resources 
California Natural Diversity Database. 2020. Results of electronic records search. Sacramento: California Department 

of Fish and Wildlife, Biogeographic Data Branch. Accessed February 25, 2020. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 6-1 

Page 421

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



References Ascent Environmental 

California Native Plant Society, Rare Plant Program. 2020. Inventory of Rare and Endangered Plants of California 
(online edition, v8-03 0.39). Available: http://www.rareplants.cnps.org. Accessed February 25, 2020. 

CBDDB. See California Natural Diversity Database. 

CNPS. See California Native Plant Society. 

ECORP. See ECORP Consulting, Inc. 

ECO RP Consulting, Inc. 2017 (September 26). California Environmental Quality Act Biological Resources Mitigation 

Measure Compliance Report for the Mangini Ranch - Phase 2 Development. Sacramento County, CA. 

U.S. Department of the Interior, Fish and Wildlife Service. 2014. Formal Consultation on the Proposed Folsom Plan Area 

Specific Plan Project (Corps # SPK-2007-02759), Sacramento County, California. USFWS Reference# 81420-

2010-F-0620-1. April 2, 2014. 

USFWS. See U.S. Department of the Interior, Fish and Wildlife Service. 

Section 4.5, Cultural Resources 
ECORP. See ECORP Consulting, Inc. 

ECORP Consulting, Inc. 2020 (March 24). Cultural Resources Assessment to Support an Amendment to the Folsom Plan 

Area Specific Plan for the Alder Creek Apartments Project. Rocklin, CA. 

Governor's Office of Planning and Research. 2005 (November 14). Tribal Consultation Guidelines Supplement to 

General Plan Guidelines. Mather, CA. 

QPR. See Governor's Office of Planning and Research. 

Section 4.6, Energy 
California Energy Commission. 2018 (March). 2079 Building Energy Efficiency Standards Fact Sheet. Available: 

https://ww2.energy.ca.gov/title24/2019standards/documents/2018_Title_24_2019_Building_Standards_FAQ.pd 

f. Accessed August 8, 2019. 

California Energy Commission and California Public Utilities Commission. 2008 (February). 2008 Update Energy Action 

Plan. Available: 

https://www.cpuc.ca.gov/uploadedFiles/CPU(_Public_Website/Content/Utilities_and_lndustries/Energy_

_Electricity_and_Natura1_Gas/2008%20Energy%20Action%20Plan%20Update.pdf. Accessed August 4, 2019. 

CEC. See California Energy Commission. 

CEC and CPUC. See California Energy Commission and California Public Utilities Commission. 

Section 4.7, Geology and Soils 
Wallace Kuhl & Associates. 2018 (February 8). Geotechnical Engineering Report for Folsom Ranch Apartments. 

Prepared for A.G. Spanos. Stockton, CA. 

Section 4.8, Greenhouse Gas Emissions 
California Energy Commission. 2018 (March). 2019 Building Energy Efficiency Standards. Frequently Asked Questions. 

Available: https://www.energy.ca.gov/sites/default/files/2020-

03/Title_24_2019_Building_Standards_FAQada.pdf. Accessed April 3, 2020. 

California Department of Transportation. 2015. Strategic Management Plan 2015-2020. Available: 

http://www.dot.ca.gov/perf/library/pdf/Ca1trans_Strategic_Mgmt_Plan_033015.pdf. Accessed August 25, 2017. 

California Air Pollution Control Officers Association. 2010 (August). Quantifying Greenhouse Gas Mitigation Measures. 

6-2 

Ava i I able: http://www.ca pcoa .org/wp-co ntent/u p loa ds/2010/11/CAPC OA-Qu a ntifi cation -Re po rt-9-14-
F i na I. pdf. Accessed August 25, 2017. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 422

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental References 

California Air Resource Board. 2011. Status of Scoping Plan Recommended Measures. Available: 

https://ww3.arb.ca.gov/cc/scopingplan/status_of_scoping_plan_measures.pdf. Accessed August 8, 2019. 

--. 2014 (May). First Update to the Climate Change Scoping Plan. Available: http://www.arb.ca.gov/ 

cc/scopingplan/document/updatedscopingplan2013.htm. Accessed April 9, 2015. 

--. 2017 (January 20). The 2077 Climate Change Scoping Plan Update. The Proposed Strategy for Achieving 

California's 2030 Greenhouse Gas Target. 

Caltrans. See California Department of Transportation. 

CAPCOA. See California Air Pollution Control Officers Association. 

CARB. See California Air Resource Board. 

Eckerle, Tyson and Taylor Jones. 2015 (November). Zero-Emission Vehicles in California: Hydrogen Station Permitting 

Guide. California Governor's Office of Business and Economic Development. Available: 

http://businessportal.ca.gov/Portals/0/Files/Hydrogen%20Permitting%20Guidebook%20FINAL%20-

%202.0.pdf?ver=2016-11-14-170829-243 

National Highway Traffic Safety Administration. 2018. Factsheet on Safer Affordable Fuel-Efficient (SAFE) Vehicles Rule 

for Model Years 2021-2026 Passenger Cars and Light Trucks (SAFE Vehicles Rule). Available: 

https://www.nhtsa.gov/sites/nhtsa.dot.gov /fi les/docu ments/fact_sheet_ -_safe_one-

pager _fi na l_clea n_080218_ v1.pdf. Accessed March 30, 2020. 

NHTSA. See National Highway Traffic Safety Administration. 

Governor's Office of Planning and Research. 2017a (November). Proposed Updates to the CEQA Guidelines. Available: 

http://opr.ca.gov/docs/20171127._Comprehensive_CEQA_Guidelines_Package_Nov_2017.pdf. Accessed: 
December 20, 2017. 

--. 2017b (November 27). Technical Advisory on Evaluating Transportation Impacts in CEQA. Available: 

http://www.opr.ca.gov/docs/20171127 _ Transportation_Analysis_ TA_Nov_2017.pdf. Accessed December 19, 2017. 

OPR. See Governor's Office of Planning and Research. 

Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District. 2009 (December). Guide to Air Quality Assessment in 

Sacramento County. Available: http://www.airquality.org/Residents/CEQA-Land-Use-Planning/CEQA

Guidance-Tools. Accessed August 8, 2019. Revised September 2010, April 2011, May 2011, April 2013, June 

2013, July 2013, August 2013, October 2013, June 2014, November 2014, May 2015, June 2015, December 
2015, February 2016, March 2016, May 2016, June 2016, August 2016, September 2016, December 2016, May 

2017, April 2018, May 2018, September 2018, and April 2019. 

Wade, Samuel. Branch Chief, Transportation Fuels Branch, Industrial Strategies Division, California Air Resources 

Board. Sacramento, CA. June 30, 2017-e-mail to Austin Kerr of Ascent Environmental regarding whether the 

Low-Carbon Fuel Standard applies to fuels used by off-road construction equipment. 

Section 4.9, Hazards and Hazardous Materials 
Wallace Kuhl & Associates. 2017 (December 28). Phase I Environmental Site Assessment for Folsom Ranch Property. 

Prepared for The Spanos Corporation. Stockton, CA. 

Section 4.10, Hydrology and Water Quality 
No references were used in this section. 

Section 4.11, Land Use and Planning 
No references were used in this section. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 6-3 

Page 423

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



References 

Section 4.12, Mineral Resources 
No references were used in this section. 

Section 4. 13, Noise 

Ascent Environmental 

California Department of Transportation. 2004. California Department of Transportation. Transportation- and 

Construction-Induced Vibration Guidance Manual. Sacramento, CA: Noise, Vibration, and Hazardous Waste 
Management Office. 

Caltrans. See California Department of Transportation. 

City of Folsom. 2018. City of Folsom General Plan 2035. Folsom, CA. Adopted August 28, 2018. 

Federal Transit Administration. 2006 (May). Transit Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment. Washington, DC. Prepared 

by: Harris Miller & Hanson Inc., Burlington, MA. 

FTA. See Federal Transit Administration. 

Governor's lnteragency Working Group on Zero-Emission Vehicles. 2016 (October). 2016 ZEV Action Plan. An 

Updated Roadmap toward 1.5 Million Zero-Emission Vehicles on California Roadways by 2025. Available: 

https://www.ca.gov/archive/gov39/wp-content/u ploads/2018/01/2016_ZEV _Action_Plan-1.pdf. Accessed April 
3, 2020. 

J.C. Brennan & Associates, Inc. 2018 (February 13). Environmental Noise Assessment. Prepared for A.G. Spanos 
Companies. Auburn, CA. 

Section 4.14, Population and Housing 
No references were used in this section. 

Section 4.15, Public Services 
No references were used in this section. 

Section 4.16, Recreation 
No references were used in this section. 

Section 4.17, Transportation/Traffic 
Fehr & Peers. 2020 (December 21). Alder Creek Apartments Final Traffic Study. Folsom, CA. 

Section 4.18, Utilities and Service Systems 
City of Folsom. 2015. Russell Ranch Project Final Environmental Impact Report. SCH# 2014062018. Prepared by Raney. 

Sacramento, CA. 

--. 2016 (June 14). 2075 Urban Water Management Plan. Prepared by Tully & Young Comprehensive Water 
Planning. Folsom, CA. 

Section 4.19, Wildfire 
City of Folsom. 2013 (April). Community Wildfire Protection Plan. Folsom, CA. 

County of Sacramento. 2016 (December). Sacramento County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update Annex C City of 

Folsom. Sacramento, CA. 

Pacific Gas & Electric Company. 2019 (February 6). Amended 2019 Wildfire Safety Plan. Available at 

https://www.pge.com/pge_global/common/pdfs/safety/emergency-preparedness/natural
disaster/wildfires/Wildfire-Safety-Plan.pdf. Accessed August 1, 2019. 

PG&E. See Pacific Gas & Electric Company. 

6-4 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 424

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental 

Sacramento Metropolitan Fire District. 2014 (June). Community Wildfire Protection Plan. Prepared By: Ascent 

Environmental, Inc., lnterra Group, Wildland Res. Mgt. Sacramento, CA. 

Sacramento Municipal Utility District. 2019. Wildfire Mitigation Plan. Sacramento, CA. 

SMUD. See Sacramento Municipal Utility District. 

Section 4.20, Mandatory Findings of Significance 
No references were used in this section. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

References 

6-5 

Page 425

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



References 

This page intentionally left blank. 

6-6 

Ascent Environmental 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 426

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



µg/m3 

AB 

AERMOD 

APE 

ATCM 

BMP 

CAAQS 

CalEEMod 

Cal Recycle 

Caltrans 

CARB 

CDFW 

CEC 

CEQA 

CESA 

City 

CNEL 

co 
C02e 

C02e/SP/year 
CRHR 

CWA 

dB 
DPM 

EMF 

EO 

EPA 

EPAP 

ESA 

FAPA 

Final EIR/EIS 

FPASP 

FTA 

g/s 
GHG 

HPMP 

HPTP 

HVAC 

ITE 

City of Folsom 

7 LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS 

micrograms per cubic meter 

Assembly Bill 

Agency Regulatory Model Improvement Committee modeling system 

Area of Potential Effects 

air toxic control measure 

best management practice 

California Ambient Air Quality Standard 

California Emissions Estimator Model 

California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery 

California Department of Transportation 

California Air Resources Board 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife 

California Energy Commission 

California Environmental Quality Act 

California Endangered Species Act 

City of Folsom 

community noise equivalent level 
carbon monoxide 

CO2-equivalent 

C02e per service population per year 

California Register of Historical Resources 
Clean Water Act 

decibel 
diesel-powered engines 

electromagnetic field 

Executive Order 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

existing plus planned and approved projects 

Endangered Species Act 

First Amended Programmatic Agreement 

Final Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Impact Statement 

Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan 

Federal Transit Administration 

gram per second 

greenhouse gas 

Historic Property Management Plan 

Historic Property Treatment Plan 

heating, ventilation, and air conditioning 

Institute of Transportation Engineers 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 7-1 

Page 427

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



List of Abbreviations 

kV 

LAFCo 

lb/day 
LCFS 

Ldn 

Leq 

LID 
LOS 

MLD 
MMD 

MMT 

NAAQS 

NAHC 

NHTSA 

NOA 

NOx 
NPDES 

OEHHA 

OPR 

PA 

PCE 

PG&E 

PHPS 

PM10 

PM2.s 
PPV 

PRC 

RPS 

SB 

SEIR 

SENL 

SFHD 

SHPO 
SMAQMD 

SMUD 

SPA 

SWPPP 

TAC 

TCE 

TIS 

TRU 

7-2 

kilovolt 

Local Agency Formation Commission 

pounds per day 

Low Carbon Fuel Standard 
day-night average noise level 

equivalent continuous sound level 
Low-Impact Development 
level of service 

multi-family low density 

multi-family medium density 
million metric tons 

National Ambient Air Quality Standards 

Native American Heritage Commission 

National Highway Traffic Safety Administration 

naturally occurring asbestos 
oxides of nitrogen 

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 

California Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment 

Governor's Office of Planning and Research 

programmatic agreement 

tetrachloroethene 

Pacific Gas and Electric Company 
Preliminary Historic Properties Synthesis 

Ascent Environmental 

particulate matter with an aerodynamic diameter of 10 micrometers or less 

particulate matter with an aerodynamic diameter of 2.5 micrometers or less 

peak particle velocity 

Public Resources Code 

Renewables Portfolio Standard 

Senate Bill 

subsequent environmental impact report 

single-event noise levels 

single-family, high-density 

State Historic Preservation Officer 

Sacramento Metropolitan Air Quality Management District 

Sacramento Municipal Utility District 

specific plan amendment 

storm water pollution prevention plan 

toxic air contaminant 

trichloroethene 

transportation impact study 

transport refrigeration unit 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 428

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental 

TSM 

U.S. SO 
URBEMIS 
USACE 

VdB 
VMT 

ZEV 

City of Folsom 

transportation system management 

U.S. Highway SO 
Urban Emissions model 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 

vibration decibels 
vehicle miles traveled 

zero-emission vehicles 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

List of Abbreviations 

7-3 

Page 429

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Attachment 19 

Mitigation Monitoring and Report Program for the Alder 
Creek Apartments Project 

Dated January, 2021 

Page 430

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 

INTRODUCTION 
In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) (Section 15000 et seq., Title 14, California Code of 
Regulations), the City of Folsom (City) prepared an environmental checklist and addendum to the Folsom Plan Area 
Specific Plan (FPASP) Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Impact Statement (EIR/EIS) for the Alder Creek 
Apartments Project. While the checklist confirmed that the project would not have new or substantially more 
significant impacts, the previously-certified environmental documents had significant impacts for which mitigation 
measures were required. 

CEQA and the State CEQA Guidelines (PRC Section 21081.6 and State CEQA Guidelines Sections 15091[d] and 15097) 

require public agencies "to adopt a reporting and monitoring program for changes to the project which it has 
adopted or made a condition of project approval to mitigate or avoid significant effects on the environment." A 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) is required for the project because the environmental 
checklist and addendum identifies potential significant adverse impacts related to the project implementation, and 
mitigation measures have been identified to reduce those impacts. Adoption of the MMRP would occur along with 
approval of the project. 

PURPOSE OF MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM 
This MMRP has been prepared to ensure that all required mitigation measures are implemented and completed in a 
satisfactory manner prior to implementation of the proposed ordinance. The attached table has been prepared to 
assist the responsible parties in implementing the mitigation measures. The table identifies the mitigation measures, 
monitoring responsibility, mitigation timing, and provides space to confirm implementation of the mitigation 
measures. The numbering of mitigation measures follows the numbering sequence found in the FPASP EIR/EIS 
and/or Addendum. 

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
Unless otherwise specified herein, the City is responsible for taking all actions necessary to implement the mitigation 
measures under its jurisdiction according to the specifications provided for each measure and for demonstrating that 
the action has been successfully completed. The City, at its discretion, may delegate implementation responsibility or 
portions thereof to a licensed contractor or other designated agent. Section 21081.6 of the Public Resources Code, 
requires the lead agency to identify the "custodian of documents and other material" which constitutes the "record of 
proceedings" upon which the action on the project was based. The Folsom City Manager, or designee, is the 
custodian of such documents for the project. 

Inquiries should be directed to: 

Steve Banks, Senior Planner 
(916) 355-7385 
sbanks@folsom.ca.us 

The location of this information is: 

City of Folsom, Community Development Department 
50 Natoma Street 
Folsom, CA 95630 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 431

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program Ascent Environmental 

The City is responsible for overall administration of the MMRP and for verifying that City staff members and/or the 
construction contractor have completed the necessary actions for each measure (i.e., appropriate amendments to the 
proposed ordinance). The City may designate a project manager to oversee implementation of the MMRP. Duties of 
the project manager include the following: 

• ensure routine inspections of the construction site are conducted by appropriate City staff; check plans, reports, 
and other documents required by the MMRP; and conduct report activities; 

• serve as a liaison between the City and the contractor or project applicant regarding mitigation monitoring 
issues; 

• complete forms and maintain reports and other records and documents generated for the MMRP; and 

• coordinate and ensure that corrective actions or enforcement measures are taken, if necessary. 

The responsible party for implementation of each item will identify the staff members responsible for coordinating 
with the City on the MMRP. 

REPORTING 
The City shall or may require the developer to, prepare a monitoring report upon completion of the project 
describing the compliance of the activity with the required mitigation measures. Information regarding inspections 
and other requirements shall be compiled and explained in the report. The report shall be designed to simply and 
clearly identify whether mitigation measures have been adequately implemented. At a minimum, each report shall 
identify the mitigation measures or conditions to be monitored for implementation, whether compliance with the 
mitigation measures or conditions has occurred, the procedures used to assess compliance, and whether further 
action is required. The report shall be presented to the City Council. 

MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM TABLE 
The categories identified in the attached MMRP table are described below. 

• Mitigation Number - This column provides the identification number of the adopted mitigation measure as well 
as the source for the mitigation measure; FPASP EIR/EIS or Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental 
Checklist and Addendum (Addendum). 

• Mitigation Measure - This column provides the verbatim text of the adopted mitigation measure 

• Implementation Responsibility- This column identifies the party responsible for implementing the mitigation 
measure. 

• Timing - This column identifies the time frame in which the mitigation will be implemented. 

• Monitoring Agency- This column identifies the party responsible for enforcing compliance with the requirements 
of the mitigation measure. 

• Verification - This column is to be dated and signed by the person (either project manager or his/her designee) 
responsible for verifying compliance with the requirements of the mitigation measure. 

2 
City of Folsom 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 432

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental 

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Number Mltlga1fon Measures 
Source 

Aesthetics 

3A.1-4 Screen Construction Staging Areas. The project applicant(s) for any 
(FPASP particular discretionary development application shall locate staging and 
EIR/EIS) material storage areas as far away from sensitive biological resources and 

sensitive land uses (e.g., res idential areas, schools, parks) as feasible. Staging 
and material storage areas shall be approved by the appropriate agency 
(identified below) before the approval of grading plans for all project phases 
and shall be screened from adjacent occupied land uses in earlier 
development phases to the maximum extent practicable. Screens may 
include, but are not limited to, the use of such visual barriers such as berms 
or fences. The screen design shall be approved by the appropriate agency 
to further reduce visual effects to the extent possible. 

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's 
jurisdictional boundaries shall be developed by the project applicant(s) of 
each applicable project phase in consultation with the affected oversight 
agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties, and Caltrans) to 
reduce to the extent feasible the visual effects of construction activities on 
adjacent project land uses that have already been developed. 

3A1-5 Establish and Require Conformance to Lighting Standards and Prepare and 
(FPASP Implement a Lighting Plan. 
EIR/EIS) To reduce impacts associated with light and glare, the City shall: 

• Establish standards for on-site outdoor lighting to reduce high-
intensity nighttime lighting and glare as part of the Folsom Specific 
Plan design guidelines/standards. Consideration shall be given to 
design features, namely directional shielding for street lighting, parking 
lot lighting, and other substantial light sources, that would reduce 
effects of nighttime lighting. In addition, consideration shall be given to 
the use of automatic shutoffs or motion sensors for lighting features to 
further reduce excess nighttime light. 

• Use shielded or screened public lighting fixtures to prevent the light 
from shining off of the surface intended to be illuminated. 

To reduce impacts associated with light and glare, the project applicant(s) of 
all project phases shall: 

• Shield or screen lighting fixtures to direct the light downward and 
prevent light spill on adjacent properties 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Proj ect Environmental Review 

Implementation 
Responsibility 

Project applicant 

Project applicant 

Timing 

Before approval of 
grading plans and 
during construction for 
all project phases 

Before approval of 
building permits. 

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Monitoring 
Agsq 

City of Folsom 
Neighborhood 
Services 
Department and 
City of Folsom 
Community 
Development 
Department. 

City of Folsom 
Neighborhood 
Services 
Department and 
City of Folsom 
Community 
Development 
Department 

Verification 

Page 433

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measures 
<Source). 

• Flood and area lighting needed for construction activities, nighttime 
sporting activities, and/or security shall be screened or aimed no 
higher than 45 degrees above straight down (half-way between 
straight down and straight to the side) when the source is visible from 
any off-site residential property or public roadway. 

• For public lighting in residential neighborhoods, prohibit the use of 
light fixtures that are of unusually high intensity or brightness (e.g., 
harsh mercury vapor, low-pressure sodium, or fluorescent bulbs) or 
that blink or flash, 

• Use appropriate building materials (such as low-glare glass, low-glare 
building glaze or finish, neutral, earth-toned colored paint and roofing 
materials), shielded or screened lighting, and appropriate signage in 
the office/commercial areas to prevent light and glare from adversely 
affecting motorists on nearby roadways. 

• Design exterior on-site lighting as an integral part of the building and 
landscape design in the Folsom Specific Plan area. Lighting fixtures 
shall be architecturally consistent with the overall site design, 

• Lighting of off-site facilities within the City of Folsom shall be consistent 
with the City's General Plan standards. 

• Lighting of the off-site detention basin shall be consistent with 
Sacramento County General Plan standards 

• Lighting of the two local roadway connections from Folsom Heights 
off-site into El Dorado Hills shall be consistent with El Dorado County 
General Plan standards. 

A lighting plan for all on- and off-site elements within the each agency's 
jurisdictional boundaries (specified below) shall be submitted to the relevant 
jurisdictional agency for review and approval, which shall include the above 
elements. The lighting plan may be submitted concurrently with other 
improvement plans, and shall be submitted before the installation of any 
lighting or the approval of building permits for each phase. The project 
applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application shall 
implement the approved lighting plan. 

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's 
jurisdictional boundaries must be coordinated by the project applicant(s) of 
each applicable project phase with the affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., El 
Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties). 

4 

Implementation 
Timing 

Responsibility 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring 
Verification 

Agency 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 434

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental 

M"rtigadon 
Number 
($ourte) 

Air Quality 

3A.2-1a 
(FPASP 
EIR/EIS) 

City of Folsom 

Mitigation Measures 

Implement Measures to Control Air Pollutant Emissions Generated by 
Construction of On-Site Elements.To reduce short-term construction 
emissions, the project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary 
development application shall require their contractors to implement 
SMAQMD's list of Basic Construction Emission Control Practices, Enhanced 
Fugitive PM Dust Control Practices, and Enhanced Exhaust Control Practices 
Oist below) in effect at the time individual portions of the site undergo 
construction. In addition to SMAQMD-recommended measures, 
construction operations shall comply with all applicable SMAQMD rules and 
regulations. 

Basic Construction Emission Control Practices 

• Water all exposed surfaces two times daily. Exposed surfaces include, 
but are not limited to soil piles, graded areas, unpaved parking areas, 
staging areas, and access roads_ 

• Cover or maintain at least two feet of free board space on haul trucks 
transporting soil, sand, or other loose material on the site. Any haul 
trucks that would be traveling along freeways or major roadways 
should be covered. 

• Use wet power vacuum street sweepers to remove any visible trackout 
mud or dirt onto adjacent public roads at least once a day. Use of dry 
power sweeping is prohibited. 

• Limit vehicle speeds on unpaved roads to 1S miles per hour (mph). 

• All roadways, driveways, sidewalks, parking lots to be paved should be 
completed as soon as possible. In addition, building pads should be 
laid as soon as possible after grading unless seeding or soil binders are 
used. 

• Minimize idling time either by shutting equipment off when not in use 
or reducing the time of idling to S minutes (as required by the state 
airborne toxics control measure [Title 13, Section 248S of the California 
Code of Regulations]). Provide clear signage that posts this 
requirement for workers at the entrances to the site, 

• Maintain all construction equipment in proper working condition 
according to manufacturer's specifications, The equipment must be 
checked by a certified mechanic and determine to be running in 
proper condition before it is operated. 

Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Implementation 
Responsibility 

Project applicant 

Timing 

Before the approval of 
all grading plans by the 
City and throughout 
project construction, 
where applicable, for all 
project phases. 

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Monitoring 
~ 

City of Folsom 
Community 
Development 
Department 

Venflcation 

Page 435

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitlgalion 
Number Mitigation Measures 
(Soun:e) 

Enhanced Fugitive PM Dust Control Practices - Soil Disturbance Areas 

• Water exposed soil with adequate frequency for continued moist soil. 
However, do not overwater to the extent that sediment fiows off the 
site. 

• Suspend excavation, grading, and/or demolition activity when wind 
speeds exceed 20 mph. 

• Plant vegetative ground cover (fast-germinating native grass seed) in 
disturbed areas as soon as possible. Water appropriately until 
vegetation is established. 

Enhanced Fugitive PM Dust Control Practices - Unpaved Roads 

• Install wheel washers for all exiting trucks, or wash off all trucks and 
equipment leaving the site, 

• Treat site accesses to a distance of 100 feet from the paved road with a 
6 to 12-inch layer of wood chips, mulch, or gravel to reduce generation 
of road dust and road dust carryout onto public roads. 

• Post a publicly visible sign with the telephone number and person to 
contact at the construction site regarding dust complaints. This person 
shall respond and take corrective action within 48 hours. The phone 
number of SMAQMD and the City contact person shall also be posted 
to ensure compliance, 

Enhanced Exhaust Control Practices 

• The project shall provide a plan, for approval by the City of Folsom 
Community Development Department and SMAQMD, demonstrating 
that the heavy-duty (SO horsepower [hp] or more) off-road vehicles to 
be used in the construction project including owned, leased, and 
subcontractor vehicles, will achieve a project wide fleet-average 20% 
NOX reduction and 45% particulate reduction compared to the most 
current California Air Resources Board (ARB) fleet average that exists at 
the time of construction. Acceptable options for reducing emissions 
may include use of late-model engines, low-emission diesel products, 
alternative fuels, engine retrofit technology, after-treatment products, 
and/or other options as they become available.. The project applicant(s) 
of each project phase or its representative shall submit to the City of 
Folsom Community Development Department and SMAQMD a 
comprehensive inventory of all off-road construction equipment, equal 
to or greater than 50 hp, that would be used an aqqregate of 40 or more 

6 

Implementation 
Timing Responsibllil}' 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring Verification 
NJer,cy 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 436

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Implementation Monitoring Number Mitigation Measures liming Verification 

&urce) Responslb!lily Agency 

hours during any portion of the construction project, The inventory shall 
include the horsepower rating, engine production year, and projected 
hours of use for each piece of equipment. The inventory shall be updated 
and submitted monthly throughout the duration of the project, except 
that an inventory shall not be required for any 30-day period in which no 
construction activity occurs. At least 48 hours prior to the use of heavy-
duty off-road equipment, the project representative shall provide 
SMAQMD with the anticipated construction timeline including start date, 
and name and phone number of the project manager and on-site 
foreman SMAQMD's Construction Mitigation Calculator can be used to 
identify an equipment fieet that achieves this reduction (SMAQMD 
2007a). The project shall ensure that emissions from all off-road diesel 
powered equipment used on the SPA do not exceed 40% opacity for 
more than three minutes in any one hour. Any equipment found to 
exceed 40 percent opacity (or Ringelmann 2.0) shall be repaired 
immediately, and the City and SMAQMD shall be notified within 48 hours 
of identification of noncompliant equipment. A visual survey of all in-
operation equipment shall be made at least weekly, and a monthly 
summary of the visual survey results shall be submitted throughout the 
duration of the project, except that the monthly summary shall not be 
required for any 30-day period in which no construction activity occurs. 
The monthly summary shall include the quantity and type of vehicles 
surveyed as well as the dates of each survey. SMAQMD staff and/or 
other officials may conduct periodic site inspections to determine 
compliance. Nothing in this mitigation measure shall supersede other 
SMAQMD or state rules or regulations. 

• If at the time of construction, SMAQMD has adopted a regulation or 
new guidance applicable to construction emissions, compliance with 
the regulation or new guidance may completely or partially replace this 
mitigation if it is equal to or more effective than the mitigation 
contained herein, and if SMAQMD so permits. 

3A.2-2 Implement All Measures Prescribed by the Air Quality Mitigation Plan to Project applicant Before issuance of City of Folsom 
(FPASP Reduce Operational Air Pollutant Emissions. To reduce operational emissions, subdivision maps or Community 
EIR/EIS) the project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development improvement plans. Development 

application shall implement all measures prescribed in the SMAQMD- Department 
approved Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan Air Quality Mitigation Plan (AQMP) 
[Torrence Planning 2008), a copy of which is included in Appendix C2. The 
AQMP is intended to imorove mobilitv, reduce vehicle miles traveled, and 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 7 

Page 437

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measures 
/Source) 

improve air quality as required by AB 32 and SB 375. The AQMP includes, 
among others, measures designed to provide bicycle parking at commercial 
land uses, an integrated pedestrian/bicycle path network, transit stops with 
shelters, a prohibition against the use the wood-burning fireplaces, energy star 
roofing materials, electric lawnmowers provided to homeowners at no charge, 
and on-site transportation alternatives to passenger vehicles Oncluding light 
rail) that provide connectivity with other local and regional alternative 
transportation networks. 

3A.2-4b Implement Measures to Reduce Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to 
(FPASP Operational Emissions ofToxic Air Contaminants. The following measures 
EIR/EIS) shall be implemented to reduce exposure of sensitive receptors to Toxic Air 

Contaminants. 

• Proposed commercial and industrial land uses that have the potential 
to emit TACs or host TAC-generating activity (e.g., loading docks) shall 
be located away from existing and proposed on-site sensitive receptors 
such that they do not expose sensitive receptors to TAC emissions that 
exceed an incremental increase of 10 in 1 million for the cancer risk 
and/or a noncarcinogenic Hazard Index of 1.0. 

• The multi-family residences planned across from the off-site 
corporation yard near the southwest corner of the SPA shall be set 
back as far as possible from the boundary of the corporation yard 
and/or relocated to another area. 

• Where necessary to reduce exposure of sensitive receptors to an 
incremental increase of 10 in 1 million for the cancer risk and/or a 
noncarcinogenic Hazard Index of 1.0, proposed commercial and 
industrial land uses that would host diesel trucks shall incorporate idle 
reduction strategies that reduce the main propulsion engine idling time 
through alternative technologies such as, ldleAire, electrification of 
truck parking, and alternative energy sources for TRUs, to allow diesel 
engines to be completely turned off. 

• Signs shall be posted in at all loading docks and truck loading areas 
which indicate that diesel-powered delivery trucks must be shut off 
when not in use for longer than 5 minutes on the premises in order to 
reduce idling emissions, This measure is consistent with the ATCM to 
Limit Diesel-Fueled Commercial Motor Vehicle Idling, which was 
approved by the California Office of Administrative Law in January 
2005, 

Implementation 
Responsibility 

Project applicant 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring 
Timing Verification 

AJjency 

Before the approval of City of Folsom 
all grading plans by the Community 
SMAQMD and Development 
throughout project Department 
construction, where 
applicable, for all 
project phases. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 438

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Implementation Monitoring 

Number Mitigation Measures Timing Verification 
l'vurce) Responsibility ~ 

• Implement the fallowing additional guidelines, which are 
recommended in ARB's Land Use Handbook: A Community Health 
Perspective (ARB 2005) and are considered ta be advisory and not 
regulatory: 

• Sensitive receptors, such as residential units and daycare centers, shall 
not be located in the same building as dry-cleaning operations that 
use perchlaroethylene. Dry-cleaning operations that use 
perchlaroethylene shall not be located within 300 feet of any sensitive 
receptor. A setback of 500 feet shall be provided far operations with 
two or mare machines. 

• Large gasoline stations (defined as facilities with a throughput of 3.6 
million gallons per year or greater) and sensitive land uses shall not be 
sited within 300 feet of each other Small gasoline-dispensing facilities 
(less than 3.6 million gallons of throughput per year) and sensitive 
land uses shall not be sited within 50 feet of each other, 

3A.2-5 Implement A Site Investigation to Determine the Presence of NOA and, if Project applicant Before the approval of City of Folsom 
(FPASP necessary, Prepare and Implement an Asbestos Dust Control Plan. A site all grading plans by the Community 
EIR/EIS) investigation shall be performed to determine whether and where NOA is City and throughout Development 

present in the sail and rack an the SPA The site investigation shall include project construction, Department 
the collection of sail and rack samples by a qualified geologist. If the site where applicable, far all 
investigation determines that NOA is present an the SPA then the project project phases. 
applicant shall prepare an Asbestos Dust Control Plan far approval by 
SMAQMD as required in Title 17, Section 93105 of the California Cade of 
Regulations, "Asbestos Airborne Toxic Control Measure far Construction, 
Grading, Quarrying, and Surface Mining Operations.' The Asbestos Dust 
Control Plan shall specify measures, such as periodic watering ta reduce 
airborne dust and ceasing construction during high winds. Measures in the 
Asbestos Dust Control Plan may include but shall not be limited ta dust 
control measures required by Mitigation Measure 3A.2-1a, The project 
applicant shall submit the plan ta the Folsom Community Development 
Department far review and SMAQMD far review and approval before 
construction of the first project phase. SMAQMD approval of the plan must 
be received before any asbestos-containing rock (serpentinite) can be 
disturbed. Upon approval of the Asbestos Dust Control Plan by SMAQMD, 
the applicant shall ensure that construction contractors implement the terms 
of the plan throughout the construction period. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 439

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measures 
fSource) 

3A.2-6 Implement Measures to Control Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to 
(FPASP Operational Odorous Emissions. The project applicant(s) for any particular 
EIR/EIS) discretionary development application shall implement the following 

measures: 

• The odor-producing potential of land uses shall be considered when 
the exact type of facility that would occupy areas zoned for 
commercial, industrial, or mixed-use land uses is determined. Facilities 
that have the potential to emit objectionable odors shall be located as 
far away as feasible from existing and proposed sensitive receptors. 

• The multi-family residences planned across from the off-site 
corporation yard near the southwest corner of the SPA shall be set 
back as far as possible from the boundary of the corporation yard 
and/or relocated to another area. [This measure is also required by 
Mitigation Measure 3A.2-4b to limit exposure to TAC emissions.) 

• Before the approval of building permits, odor control devices shall be 
identified to mitigate the exposure of receptors to objectionable odors 
if a potential odor-producing source is to occupy an area zoned for 
commercial, industrial, or mixed-use land uses. The identified odor 
control devices shall be installed before the issuance of certificates of 
occupancy for the potentially odor-producing use. The odor producing 
potential of a source and control devices shall be determined in 
coordination with SMAQMD and based on the number of complaints 
associated with existing sources of the same nature, 

• The deeds to all properties located within the plan area that are within 
one mile of an on- or off-site area zoned or used for agricultural use 
(including livestock grazing) shall be accompanied by a written 
disclosure from the transferor, in a form approved by the City of 
Folsom, advising any transferee of the potential adverse odor impacts 
from surrounding agricultural operations, which disclosure shall direct 
the transferee to contact the County of Sacramento concerning any 
such property within the County zoned for agricultural uses within one 
mile of the subject property being transferred, 

• Truck loading docks and delivery areas shall be located as far away as 
feasible from existing and proposed sensitive receptors. 

• Signs shall be posted at all loading docks and truck loading areas 
which indicate that diesel-powered delivery trucks must be shut off 
when not in use for longer than 5 minutes on the premises in order to 

10 

Implementation 
Responsibility 

Project applicant 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring 
llmlng Verification 

Agency 

Before the approval of City of Folsom 
building permits by the Community 
City and throughout Development 
project construction, Department 
where applicable, for all 
project phases. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 440

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Implementation Monitoring 

Number Mitigation Measures liming Verification 
/Source} Responsibility Agency 

reduce idling emissions. This measure is consistent with the ATCM to 
Limit Diesel-Fueled Commercial Motor Vehicle Idling, which was 
approved by California's Office of Administrative Law in January 2005. 
(This measure is also required by Mitigation Measure 3A 2-4b to limit 
TAC emissions) 

• Proposed commercial and industrial land uses that have the potential 
to host diesel trucks shall incorporate idle reduction strategies that 
reduce the main propulsion engine idling time through alternative 
technologies such as, ldleAire, electrification of truck parking, and 
alternative energy sources for TRUs, to allow diesel engines to be 
completely turned off. (This measure is also required by Mitigation 
Measure 3A 2-4b to limit TAC emissions.) 

4.3-1 Implement Exhaust Emissions Reduction Measures Project applicant Before the approval of City of Folsom 
(Addendum) The project shall be required to use a construction fleet mix utilizing 90 all grading plans by the Community 

percent EPA certified Tier 4 engines, which will substantially mitigate diesel City and throughout Development 

exhaust (i .e., PM10) emissions. The use of Tier 4 engines can reduce diesel project construction, Department 

generated PM10 emissions by up to 90 percent over Tier 1 engines. where applicable, for all 
project phases. 

Biological Resources 

3A.3-1a Design Stormwater Drainage Plans and Erosion and Sediment Control Plans Project applicant Before approval of City of Folsom 
(FPASP to Avoid and Minimize Erosion and Runoff to All Wetlands and Other improvement and Public Works 
EIR/EIS) Waters That Are to Remain on the SPA and Use Low Impact Development drainage plans, and on Department 

Features. an ongoing basis 

To minimize indirect effects on water quality and wetland hydrology, the throughout and after 

project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application project construction, as 

shall include stormwater drainage plans and erosion and sediment control required for all project 

plans in their improvement plans and shall submit these plans to the City phases 

Public Works Department for review and approval. For off-site elements 
within Sacramento County or El Dorado County jurisdiction (e.g. off-site 
detention basin and off-site roadway connections to El Dorado Hills), plans 
shall be submitted to the appropriate county planning department. Before 
approval of these improvement plans, the project applicant(s) for any 
particular discretionary development application shall obtain a NPDES MS4 
Municipal Stormwater Permit and Grading Permit, comply with the City's 
Grading Ordinance and County drainage and stormwater quality standards, 
and commit to implementing all measures in their drainage plans and 
erosion and sediment control plans to avoid and minimize erosion and 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 11 

Page 441

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measures 
l'Soorcel 

runoff into Alder Creek and all wetlands and other waters that would remain 
on-site. Detailed information about stormwater runoff standards and 
relevant City and County regulation is provided in Chapter 3A.9, "Hydrology 
and Water Quality." 

The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development 
entitlement shall implement stormwater quality treatment controls 
consistent with the Stormwater Quality Design Manual for Sacramento and 
South Placer Regions in effect at the time the application is submitted, 
Appropriate runoff controls such as berms, storm gates, off-stream 
detention basins, overflow collection areas, filtration systems, and sediment 
traps shall be implemented to control siltation and the potential discharge 
of pollutants. Development plans shall incorporate Low Impact 
Development (LID) features, such as pervious strips, permeable pavements, 
bioretention ponds, vegetated swales, disconnected rain gutter downspouts, 
and rain gardens, where appropriate. Use of LID features is recommended 
by the EPA to minimize impacts on water quality, hydrology, and stream 
geomorphology and is specified as a method for protecting water quality in 
the proposed specific plan. In addition, free spanning bridge systems shall 
be used for all roadway crossings over wetlands and other waters that are 
retained in the on-site open space. These bridge systems would maintain 
the natural and restored channels of creeks, including the associated 
wetlands, and would be designed with sufficient span width and depth to 
provide for wildlife movement along the creek corridors even during high-
flow or flood events, as specified in the 404 permit. 

In addition to compliance with City ordinances, the project applicant(s) for 
any particular discretionary development application shall prepare a 
Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP), and implement Best 
Management Practices (BMPs) that comply with the General Construction 
Stormwater Permit from the Central Valley RWQCB, to reduce water quality 
effects during construction. Detailed information about the SWPPP and 
BMPs are provided in Chapter 3A.9, "Hydrology and Water Quality." 

Each project development shall result in no net change to peak flows into 
Alder Creek and associated tributaries, or to Buffalo Creek, Carson Creek, 
and Coyote Creek The project applicant(s) shall establish a baseline of 
conditions for drainage on-site. The baseline-flow conditions shall be 
established for 2-, 5-, and 100-year storm events. These baseline conditions 
shall be used to develop monitoring standards for the stormwater system 
on the SPA. The baseline conditions, monitorinq standards, and a 

12 

Implementation liming 
Responsibility 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring 
Verification 

Agency 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 442

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Implementation Monitoring 

Number Mitigation Measures Timing Verification 
&alri;e) 

Responsibilify Agency 

monitoring program shall be submitted to USACE and the City for their 
approval. Water quality and detention basins shall be designed and 
constructed to ensure that the performance standards, which are described 
in Chapter 3A.9, "Hydrology and Water Quality," are met and shall be 
designed as off-stream detention basins. Discharge sites into Alder Creek 
and associated tributaries, as well as tributaries to Carson Creek, Coyote 
Creek, and Buffalo Creek, shall be monitored to ensure that pre-project 
conditions are being met. Corrective measures shall be implemented as 
necessary. The mitigation measures will be satisfied when the monitoring 
standards are met for 5 consecutive years without undertaking corrective 
measures to meet the performance standard. 

See FEIR/FEIS Appendix 5 showing that the detention basin in the northeast 
corner of the SPA has been moved off stream_ 

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's 
jurisdictional boundaries must be coordinated by the project applicant(s) of 
each applicable project phase in consultation with the affected oversight 
agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado County for the roadway connections, Sacramento 
County for the detention basin west of Prairie City Road, and Caltrans for 
the U 5. 50 interchange improvements) such that the performance standards 
described in Chapter 3A.9, "Hydrology and Water Quality," are met. 

3A.3-2a Avoid Direct Loss of Swainson's Hawk and Other Raptor Nests, To mitigate Project applicant Before the approval of California 
(FPASP impacts on Swainson's hawk and other raptors (including burrowing owl), grading and Department of 
EIR/EIS) the project applicant(s) of all project phases shall retain a qualified biologist improvement plans, Fish and Game 

to conduct preconstruction surveys and to identify active nests on and before any and City of 
within 0.5 mile of the SPA and active burrows on the SPA. The surveys shall grounddisturbing Folsom 
be conducted before the approval of grading and/or improvement plans (as activities, and during Community 
applicable) and no less than 14 days and no more than 30 days before the project construction as Development 
beginning of construction for all project phases. To the extent feasible, applicable for all Department. 
guidelines provided in Recommended Timing and Methodology for project phases 
Swainson's Hawk Nesting Surveys in the Central Valley (Swainson's Hawk 
Technical Advisory Committee 2000) shall be followed for surveys for 
Swainson's hawk. If no nests are found, no further mitigation is required. 

If active nests are found, impacts on nesting Swainson's hawks and other 
raptors shall be avoided by establishing appropriate buffers around the 
nests. No project activity shall commence within the buffer area until the 
young have fledged, the nest is no longer active, or until a qualified 
biologist has determined in consultation with DFG that reducing the buffer 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 13 

Page 443

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measures 
fSource) 

would not result in nest abandonment. DFG guidelines recommend 
implementation of 0.25- or 0.5-mile-wide buffers, but the size of the buffer 
may be adjusted if a qualified biologist and the City, in consultation with 
DFG, determine that such an adjustment would not be likely to adversely 
affect the nest. Monitoring of the nest by a qualified biologist during and 
after construction activities will be required if the activity has potential to 
adversely affect the nest, 

If active burrows are found, a mitigation plan shall be submitted to the City 
for review and approval before any ground-disturbing activities. 

The City shall consult with DFG. The mitigation plan may consist of 
installation of one-way doors on all burrows to allow owls to exit, but not 
reenter, and construction of artificial burrows within the project vicinity, as 
needed; however, burrow owl exclusions may only be used if a qualified 
biologist verifies that the burrow does not contain eggs or dependent 
young. If active burrows contain eggs and/or young, no construction shall 
occur within SO feet of the burrow until young have fledged. Once it is 
confirmed that there are no owls inside burrows, these burrows may be 
collapsed. 

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's 
jurisdictional boundaries must be developed by the project applicant(s) of 
each applicable project phase in consultation with the affected oversight 
agency(ies) (i.e., El Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties, or Caltrans), such 
that the performance criteria set forth in DFG's guidelines are determined to 
be met. 

3A.3-2b Prepare and Implement a Swainson's Hawk Mitigation Plan. 
(FPASP To mitigate for the loss of Swainson's hawk foraging habitat, the project 
EIR/EIS) applicant(s) of all project phases shall prepare and implement a Swainson's 

hawk mitigation plan including, but not limited to the requirements described 
below. 

Before the approval of grading and improvement plans or before any 
ground-disturbing activities, whichever occurs first, the project applicant(s) 
shall preserve, to the satisfaction of the City or Sacramento County, as 
appropriate depending on agency jurisdiction, suitable Swainson's hawk 
foraging habitat to ensure 1:1 mitigation of habitat value for Swainson's 
hawk foraging habitat lost as a result of the project, as determined by the 
City, or Sacramento County, after consultation with DFG and a qualified 
biologist. 

14 

Implementation 
Responsibility 

Project applicant 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring 
Timing Verification 

Agency 

Before the approval of City of Folsom 
grading, improvement, Community 
or construction plans Development 
and before any Department 
grounddisturbing 
activity in any project 
development phase 
that would affect 
Swainson's hawk 
foraging habitat. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 444

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Implementation Monitoring Number Mitigation Measures liming Verification 

!Source) Responsibility Agerv::y 

The 1:1 habitat value shall be based on Swainson's hawk nesting distribution 
and an assessment of habitat quality, availability, and use within the City's 
planning area, or Sacramento County jurisdiction. The mitigation ratio shall 
be consistent with the 1994 DFG Swainson's Hawk Guidelines included in the 
Staff Report Regarding Mitigation for Impacts to Swainson's Hawks (Buteo 
swainsoni) in the Central Valley of California, which call for the following 
mitigation ratios for loss of foraging habitat in these categories: 1:1 if within 1 
mile of an active nest site, 0.75:1 if over 1 mile but less than 5 miles, and 0.5:1 
if over 5 miles but less than 10 miles from an active nest site. Such mitigation 
shall be accomplished through credit purchase from an established 
mitigation bank approved to sell Swainson's hawk foraging habitat credits to 
mitigate losses in the SPA, if available, or through the transfer of fee title or 
perpetual conservation easement, The mitigation land shall be located 
within the known foraging area and within Sacramento County, The City, or 
Sacramento County if outside City jurisdiction, after consultation with DFG, 
will determine the appropriateness of the mitigation land, 

Before approval of such proposed mitigation, the City, or Sacramento 
County for the off-site detention basin, shall consult with DFG regarding the 
appropriateness of the mitigation. If mitigation is accomplished through 
conservation easement, then such an easement shall ensure the continued 
management of the land to maintain Swainson's hawk foraging values, 
including but not limited to ongoing agricultural uses and the maintenance 
of all existing water rights associated with the land_ The conservation 
easement shall be recordable and shall prohibit any activity that 
substantially impairs or diminishes the land's capacity as suitable 5wainson's 
hawk habitat. 

The project applicant(s) shall transfer said Swainson's hawk mitigation land, 
through either conservation easement or fee title, to a third party, nonprofit 
conservation organization (Conservation Operator), with the City and DFG 
named as third-party beneficiaries. The Conservation Operator shall be a 
qualified conservation easement land manager that manages land as its 
primary function. Additionally, the Conservation Operator shall be a tax-
exempt nonprofit conservation organization that meets the criteria of Civil 
Code Section 815.3(a) and shall be selected or approved by the City or 
County, after consultation with DFG. The City, or County, after consultation 
with DFG and the Conservation Operator, shall approve the content and 
form of the conservation easement. The City, or County, DFG, and the 
Conservation Operator shall each have the power to enforce the terms of 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 15 

Page 445

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measures 
/Sourool 

the conservation easement. The Conservation Operator shall monitor the 
easement in perpetuity to assure compliance with the terms or the 
easement. 

The project applicant(s), after consultation with the City, or County of 
jurisdiction, DFG, and the Conservation Operator, shall establish an 
endowment or some other financial mechanism that is sufficient to fund in 
perpetuity the operation, maintenance, management, and enforcement of 
the conservation easement If an endowment is used, either the endowment 
funds shall be submitted to the City for impacts on lands within the City's 
jurisdiction or Sacramento County for the off-site detention basin to be 
distributed to an appropriate third-party nonprofit conservation agency, or 
they shall be submitted directly to the third-party nonprofit conservation 
agency in exchange for an agreement to manage and maintain the lands in 
perpetuity. The Conservation Operator shall not sell, lease, or transfer any 
interest of any conservation easement or mitigation land it acquires without 
prior written approval of the City and DFG. Mitigation lands established or 
acquired for impacts incurred at the off-site detention basin shall require 
approval from Sacramento County prior to sale or transfer of mitigation 
lands or conservation easement 

If the Conservation Operator ceases to exist, the duty to hold, administer, 
manage, maintain, and enforce the interest shall be transferred to another 
entity acceptable to the City and DFG, or Sacramento County and DFG 
depending on jurisdiction of the affected habitat. The City Planning 
Department shall ensure that mitigation habitat established for impacts on 
habitat within the City's planning area is properly established and is 
functioning as habitat by reviewing regular monitoring reports prepared by 
the Conservation Operator of the mitigation site(s). Monitoring of the 
mitigation site(s) shall continue for the first 10 years after establishment of 
the easement and shall be funded through the endowment or other 
appropriate funding mechanism, established by the project applicant(s)_ 
Sacramento County shall review the monitoring reports for impacts on 
habitat at the off-site detention basin. 

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside or the City of Folsom's 
jurisdictional boundaries must be coordinated by the project applicant(s) of 
each applicable project phase with the affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., 
Sacramento County and Caltrans). 

16 

Implementation 
liming 

Responsibllity 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring 
Verification 

Agency 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 446

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Implementation Monitoring 

Number Mitigation Measures 1irring Veriflcatlon 
/Source) Responstbility lvJeooJ 

3A.3-2c Avoid and Minimize Impacts to Tricolored Blackbird Nesting Colonies. To Project applicant Before the approval of City of Folsom 
(FPASP avoid and minimize impacts to tricolored blackbird, the project applicant(s) any ground-disturbing Community 
EIR/EIS- of all project phases shall conduct a preconstruction survey for any project activity within 500 feet Development 
revised in activity that would occur during the tricolored blackbird's nesting season of suitable nesting Department 
Addendum] (March 1-August 31). The preconstruction survey shall be conducted by a habitat as applicable for 

qualified biologist before any activity occurring within 500 feet of suitable all project phases. 
nesting habitat, including freshwater marsh and areas of riparian scrub 
vegetation. The survey shall be conducted within 14 days before project 
activity begins. 

If no tricolored blackbird colony is present, no further mitigation is required. 
If a colony is found, the project applicant shall consult with CDFW to 
determine whether impacts to the colony would occur as a result of project 
implementation, and to establish and appropriate buffer around the colony 
to reduce the likelihood of disturbance. No project activity shall commence 
within the buffer area until a qualified biologist, in consultation with CDFW, 
confirms that the colony is no longer active. Buffer size is anticipated to 
range from 100 to 500 feet, depending on the nature of the project activity, 
the extent of existing disturbance in the area, and other relevant 
circumstances. If CDFW determines that project activity could result in 
adverse effects to the colony, and project activities cannot be avoided 
during the nesting season when the colony is active, an incidental take 
permit for impacts to tricolored blackbird pursuant to California Fish and 
Game Code Section 20B1 would be required. The applicant shall implement 
measures required under the permit, if required, which may include 
compensatory mitigation for impacts to a tricolored blackbird. 

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's 
jurisdictional boundaries (Le., U,S_ SO interchange improvements) must be 
coordinated by the project applicant(s) of each applicable project phase with 
the affected oversight agency(ies) (Le., Caltrans). 

3A.3-2d Avoid and Minimize Impacts to Special-Status Bat Roosts. The project Project applicant Before the approval of City of Folsom 
(FPASP applicant of all project phases containing potential bat roosting habitat shall removal or fill of the Community 
EIR/EIS) retain a qualified biologist to conduct surveys for roosting bats. Surveys shall mine shaft in the SPA, Development 

be conducted in the fall to determine if the mine shaft is used as a Department 
hibernaculum and in spring and/or summer to determine if it is used as a 
maternity or day roost. Surveys shall consist of evening emergence surveys 
to note the presence or absence of bats and could consist of visual surveys 
at the time of emergence If evidence of bat use is observed, the number 
and species of bats using the roost shall be determined. Bat detectors may 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 17 

Page 447

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measures 
/Source) 

be used to supplement survey efforts. If no bat roosts are found, then no 
further study shall be required. 

If roosts of pallid bat or Townsend's big-eared bats are determined to be 
present and must be removed, the bats shall be excluded from the roosting 
site. A mitigation program addressing compensation, exclusion methods, 
and roost removal procedures shall be developed in consultation with DFG 
before implementation. Exclusion methods may include use of one-way 
doors at roost entrances (bats may leave but not reenter), or sealing roost 
entrances when the site can be confirmed to contain no bats. Exclusion 
efforts may be restricted during periods of sensitive activity (e.g., during 
hibernation or while females in maternity colonies are nursing young). The 
loss of each roost (if any) will be replaced in consultation with DFG and may 
include construction and installation of bat boxes suitable to the bat species 
and colony size excluded from the original roosting site. Roost replacement 
will be implemented before bats are excluded from the original roost sites 
Once the replacement roosts are constructed and it is confirmed that bats 
are not present in the original roost site, the mine shaft may be removed. 

3A.3-4b Conduct Surveys to Identify and Map Valley Needlegrass Grassland; 
(FPASP Implement Avoidance and Minimization Measures or Compensatory 
EIR/EIS) Mitigation. The project applicant(s) of all project phases shall retain a 

qualified botanist to conduct preconstruction surveys to determine if valley 
needlegrass grassland is present on the SPA. This could be done 
concurrently with any special-status plant surveys conducted on site as 
special-status plant surveys are floristic in nature, i.e. require that all species 
encountered be identified, and require preparation of a plant community 
map. If valley needlegrass grassland is not found on the SPA, the botanist 
shall document the findings in a letter report to the City of Folsom, and no 
further mitigation shall be required. Valley needlegrass grassland was not 
found in any of the off-site project elements. 

If valley needlegrass grassland is found on the SPA, the location and extent 
of the community shall be mapped and the acreage of this community type, 
if any, that would be removed by project implementation shall be calculated. 
The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development 
application affecting valley needlegrass grassland shall consult with DFG and 
the City of Folsom to determine appropriate mitigation for removal of valley 
needlegrass grassland resulting from project implementation. Mitigation 
measures shall include one or more of the following components sufficient 
to achieve no net loss of valley needlegrass grassland acreage: 

1B 

Implementation 
Responsibility 

Project applicant 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring liming Verification 
Agency 

Before approval of California 
grading or Department of 
improvement plans or Fish and Game, 
any grounddisturbing and City of 
activities, including Folsom 
grubbing or clearing, Community 
for any project phase. Development 

Department 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 448

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Implementation Monitoring 

Number Mitigation Measures liming Verification 
/Source) Responsibility AgeooJ 

establishment of valley needlegrass grassland within project's open space 
areas currently characterized by annual grassland, establishment of valley 
needlegrass grassland off-site, or preservation and enhancement of existing 
valley needlegrass grassland either on or off the SPA The applicant(s) shall 
compensate for any loss of valley needlegrass grassland resulting from 
project implementation at a minimum 1:1 replacement ratio, 

Cultural and Tribal Cultural Resources 

3A.5-1a Comply with the Programmatic Agreement Project applicant During all construction City of Folsom 
(Addendum) The PA for the project is incorporated by reference. The PA provides a phases Community 

management framework for identifying historic properties, determining Development 

adverse effects, and resolving those adverse effects as required under Department; 

Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act. This document is U.S. Army Core 

incorporated by reference. The PA is available for public inspection and of Engineers; 

review at the California Office of Historic Preservation 172S 23rd Street 
Sacramento, CA 95816. 

3A.5-1b Perfonm an Inventory and Evaluation of Cultural Resources for the California Project applicant Before approval of City of Folsom 
(Addendum) Register of Historic Places, Minimize or Avoid Damage or Destruction, and Perfonm grading or Community 

Treatment Where Damage or Destruction Cannot be Avoided. improvement plans or Development 

Management of cultural resources eligible for or listed on the CRHR under any grounddisturbing Department 

CEQA mirrors management steps required under Section 106. These steps may activities, including 

be combined with deliverables and management steps performed for Section grubbing or clearing, 

106 provided that management documents prepared for the PA also clearly for any project phase. 

reference the California Register of Historical Resources (CRHR) listing criteria 
and significance thresholds that apply under CEQA. Prior to ground disturbing 
work for each individual development phase or off-site element, the applicable 
oversight agency (City of Folsom, El Dorado County, Sacramento County, or 
Caltrans), or the project applicant(s) of all project phases, with applicable 
oversight agency, shall perform the following actions: 

• Retain the services of a qualified archaeologist to perform an inventory 
of cultural resources within each individual development phase or off-
site element subject to approval under CEQA. Identified resources shall 
be evaluated for listing on the CRHR. The inventory report shall also 
identify locations that are sensitive for undiscovered cultural resources 
based upon the location of known resources, geomorphology, and 
topography. The inventory report shall specify the location of 
monitorina of around-disturbing work in these areas bv a qualified 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 19 

Page 449

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measures 
/C:no1roel 

archaeologist and monitoring in the vicinity of identified resources that 
may be damaged by construction, if appropriate. 

• The identification of any sensitive locations subject to monitoring 
during construction of each individual development phase shall be 
performed in concert with monitoring activities performed under the 
PA to minimize the potential for conflicting requirements. 

• For each resource that is determined eligible for the CRHR, the 
applicable agency or the applicant(s) for any particular discretionary 
development (under the agency's direction) shall obtain the services of 
a qualified archaeologist who shall determine if implementation of the 
individual project development would result in damage or destruction 
of "significant" (under CEQA) cultural resources. These findings shall be 
reviewed by the applicable agency for consistency with the significance 
thresholds and treatment measures provided in this EIR/EIS. 

• Where possible, the project shall be configured or redesigned to avoid 
impacts on eligible or listed resources. Alternatively, these resources 
may be preserved in place if possible, as suggested under California 
Public Resources Code Section 21083,2. Avoidance of historic 
properties is required under certain circumstances under the Public 
Resource Code and 36 CFR Part 800. 

• Where impacts cannot be avoided, the applicable agency or the 
applicant(s) of all project phases (under the applicable agency's 
direction) shall prepare and implement treatment measures that are 
determined to be necessary by a qualified archaeologist. These 
measures may consist of data recovery excavations for resources that 
are eligible for listing because of the data they contain (which may 
contribute to research). Alternatively, for historical architectural, 
engineered, or landscape features, treatment measures may consist of 
a preparation of interpretive, narrative, or photographic 
documentation. These measures shall be reviewed by the applicable 
oversight agency for consistency with the significance thresholds and 
standards provided in this EIR/EIS. 

• To support the evaluation and treatment required under this Mitigation 
Measure, the archaeologist retained by either the applicable oversight 
agency or the applicant(s) of all project phases shall prepare an 
appropriate prehistoric and historic context that identifies relevant 
prehistoric, ethnooraohic. and historic themes and research questions 

20 

Implementation llming 
Responsibility 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring 
Verification 

hjerq 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 450

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Implementation Monitoring 

Number Mitigation Measures lirring Verification 
/Source) Responsibifity Agency 

against which ta determine the significance of identified resources and 
appropriate treatment. 

• These steps and documents may be combined with the phasing of 
management and documents prepared pursuant ta the FAPA ta 
minimize the potential far inconsistency and duplicative management 
efforts_ 

Mitigation far the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's 
jurisdictional boundaries shall be coordinated by the applicant(s) of each 
applicable project phase with the affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., El 
Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties, or Cal trans). 

3A.5-2 Conduct Construction Personnel Education, Conduct On-Site Monitoring If Project applicant Before approval of City of Folsom 
(Addendum) Required, Stop Work if Cultural Resources are Discovered, Assess the grading or Community 

Significance of the Find, and Perform Treatment or Avoidance as Required. improvement plans or Development 

To reduce potential impacts ta previously undiscovered cultural resources, any grounddisturbing Department; 

the applicant(s) of all project phases shall do the fallowing: activities, including U-5. Army Core 

• Before the start of ground-disturbing activities, the applicant(s) of all 
grubbing or clearing, of Engineers 

project phases shall retain a qualified archaeologist to conduct training 
far any project phase. 

far construction workers as necessary based upon the sensitivity of the 
project APE, ta educate them about the possibility of encountering 
buried cultural resources and inform them of the proper procedures 
should cultural resources be encountered. 

• As a result of the work conducted for Mitigation Measures 3A.5-1a and 
3AS-1b, if the archaeologist determines that any portion afthe SPA or 
the off-site elements should be monitored far potential discovery of 
as-yet-unknown cultural resources, the applicant(s) of all project 
phases shall implement such monitoring in the locations specified by 
the archaeologist. USACE should review and approve any 
recommendations by archaeologists with respect to monitoring. 

• Should any cultural resources, such as structural features, unusual 
amounts of bane or shell, artifacts, or architectural remains be 
encountered during any construction activities, work shall be 
suspended in the vicinity of the find and the appropriate oversight 
agency(ies) (identified below) shall be notified immediately. The 
appropriate oversight agency(ies) shall retain a qualified archaeologist 
who shall conduct a field investigation of the specific site and shall 
assess the significance of the find by evaluating the resource far 
eliqibilitv far listinq an the CRHR and the NRHP. If the resource is 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 21 

Page 451

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measures 
ISN.1m>l 

eligible for listing on the CRHR or NRHP and it would be subject to 
disturbance or destruction, the actions required in Mitigation Measures 
3A 5-1a and 3A.5-1b shall be implemented. The oversight agency shall 
be responsible for approval of recommended mitigation if it is 
determined to be feasible in light of the approved land uses and shall 
implement the approved mitigation before resuming construction 
activities at the archaeological site. 

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's 
jurisdictional boundaries must be coordinated by the applicant(s) of each 
applicable project phase with the affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., El 
Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties, or Caltrans), 

The applicant, in coordination with USACE, shall ensure that an 
archaeological sensitivity training program is developed and implemented 
during a pre-construction meeting for construction supervisors. The 
sensitivity training program shall provide information about notification 
procedures when potential archaeological material is discovered, 
procedures for coordination between construction personnel and 
monitoring personnel, and information about other treatment or issues that 
may arise if cultural resources (including human remains) are discovered 
during project construction. This protocol shall be communicated to all new 
construction personnel during orientation and on a poster that is placed in a 
visible location inside the construction job trailer. The phone number of the 
USACE cultural resources staff member shall also be included. 

The on-site sensitivity training shall be carried out each time a new 
contractor will begin work in the APE and at the beginning of each 
construction season by each contractor. 

In the event that unanticipated discoveries of additional historic properties, 
defined in 36 CFR 800.16 (I), are made during the construction of the project, 
the USACE shall ensure that they will be protected by implementing the 
following measures: 

• The Construction Manager, or archaeological monitor, if given the 
authority to halt construction activities, shall ensure that work in that 
area is immediately halted within a 100-foot radius of the unanticipated 
discovery until the find is examined by a person meeting the 
professional qualifications standards specified in Section 2 2 of 
Attachment G of the HPMP. The Construction Manaaer, or 

22 

Implementation 
Timing Responsibility 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring Verification 
Agency 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 452

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Implementation Monitoring Number Mitigation Measures liming Verification 

ISou,m) Responsibility Agency 

archaeological monitor, if present, shall notify the USACE within 24 
hours of the discovery. 

• The USACE shall notify the State Historic Preservation Officer (SHPO) 
within one working day of an unanticipated discovery and may initiate 
interim treatment measures in accordance with this HPTP. Once the 
USACE makes a formal determination of eligibility for the resource, the 
USACE will notify the SHPO within 48 hours of the determination and 
afford the SHPO an opportunity to comment on appropriate 
treatment The SHPO shall respond within 72 hours of the request to 
consult. Failure of the SHPO to respond within 72 hours shall not 
prohibit the USACE from implementing the treatment measures. 

The applicants shall be required to submit to the City proof of compliance in 
the form of a completed training roster and copy of training materials. 

3A5-3 Suspend Ground-Disturbing Activities if Human Remains are Encountered and Project applicant During all Sacramento 
(Mdendum) Comply with California Health and Safety Code Procedures. grounddisturbing County Coroner; 

In accordance with the California Health and Safety Code, if human remains activities, for any Native American 

are uncovered during ground-disturbing activities, including those project phase. Heritage 

associated with off-site elements, the applicant(s) of all project phases shall Commission; 

immediately halt all ground-disturbing activities in the area of the find and City of Folsom 

notify the Sacramento County Coroner and a professional archaeologist Community 

skilled in osteological analysis to determine the nature of the remains. The Development 

coroner is required to examine all discoveries of human remains within 48 Department 

hours of receiving notice of a discovery on private or public lands (California 
Health and Safety Code Section 7050.S[b)). If the coroner determines that 
the remains are those of a Native American, he or she must contact the 
NAHC by phone within 24 hours of making that determination (California 
Health and Safety Code Section 7050[c)). 

After the coroner's findings are complete, the applicant(s), an archaeologist, 
and the NAHC-designated Most Likely Descendant shall determine the 
ultimate treatment and disposition of the remains and take appropriate 
steps to ensure that additional human interments are not disturbed. The 
responsibilities for acting on notification of a discovery of Native American 
human remains are identified in Section 5097 9 of the California Public 
Resources Code. 

Upon the discovery of Native American remains, the procedures above 
regarding involvement of the applicable county coroner, notification of the 
NAHC. and identification of an Most Likely Descendant shall be followed. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 23 

Page 453

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

M'ltigation 
Number M'ltigation Measures 
/<;nurcel 

The applicant(s) of all project phases shall ensure that the immediate vicinity 
(according to generally accepted cultural or archaeological standards and 
practices) is not damaged or disturbed by further development activity until 
consultation with the Most Likely Descendant has taken place. The Most 
Likely Descendant shall have 48 hours after being granted access to the site 
to inspect the site and make recommendations. A range of possible 
treatments for the remains may be discussed: nondestructive removal and 
analysis, preservation in place, relinquishment of the remains and associated 
items to the descendants, or other culturally appropriate treatment. As 
suggested by AB 2641 (Chapter 863, Statutes of 2006), the concerned 
parties may extend discussions beyond the initial 48 hours to allow for the 
discovery of additional remains. AB 2641(e) includes a list of site protection 
measures and states that the applicant(s) shall comply with one or more of 
the following requirements: 

• record the site with the NAHC or the appropriate Information Center, 

• use an open-space or conservation zoning designation or easement, or 

• record a reinternment document with the county. 

The applicant(s) or its authorized representative of all project phases shall 
rebury the Native American human remains and associated grave goods 
with appropriate dignity on the property in a location not subject to further 
subsurface disturbance if the NAHC is unable to identify an Most Likely 
Descendant or if the Most Likely Descendant fails to make a 
recommendation within 48 hours after being granted access to the site. The 
applicant(s) or its authorized representative may also reinter the remains in a 
location not subject to further disturbance if it rejects the recommendation 
of the Most Likely Descendant and mediation by the NAHC fails to provide 
measures acceptable to the landowner, Ground disturbance in the zone of 
suspended activity shall not recommence without authorization from the 
archaeologist. 

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's 
jurisdictional boundaries must be coordinated by the applicant(s) of each 
applicable project phase with the affected oversight agency(ies) (Le., El 
Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties, or Caltrans). 

The applicants shall be required to submit to the City proof of compliance in 
the form of a completed training roster and copy of training materials. 

24 

Implementation 
Timing 

Responsibility 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring 
Verification 

Agency 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 454

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental 

Mitigation 
Number 
(Source) 

Mitigation Me~res 

Geology and Soils 

3A.7-1a Prepare Site-Specific Geotechnical Report per CBC Requirements and 
(FPASP Implement Appropriate Recommendations, Before building permits are 
EIR/EIS) issued and construction activities begin any project development phase, the 

project applicant(s) of each project phase shall hire a licensed geotechnical 
engineer to prepare a final geotechnical subsurface investigation report for 
the on- and off-site facilities, which shall be submitted for review and 
approval to the appropriate City or county department (identified below). 
The final geotechnical engineering report shall address and make 
recommendations on the following: 

• site preparation; 

• soil bearing capacity; 

• appropriate sources and types of fill; 

• potential need for soil amendments; 

• road, pavement, and parking areas; 

• structural foundations, including retaining-wall design; 

• grading practices; 

• soil corrosion of concrete and steel; 

• erosion/winterization; 

• seismic ground shaking; 

• liquefaction; and 

• expansive/unstable soils. 

In addition to the recommendations for the conditions listed above, the 
geotechnical investigation shall include subsurface testing of soil and 
groundwater conditions, and shall determine appropriate foundation 
designs that are consistent with the version of the CBC that is applicable at 
the time building and grading permits are applied for. All recommendations 
contained in the final geotechnical engineering report shall be implemented 
by the project applicant(s) of each project phase Special recommendations 
contained in the geotechnical engineering report shall be noted on the 
grading plans and implemented as appropriate before construction begins. 
Design and construction of all new project development shall be in 
accordance with the CBC. The project applicant(s) shall provide for 
engineering inspection and certification that earthwork has been performed 
in conformity with recommendations contained in the geotechnical report. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Tlmlng Verification 

Project applicant Before issuance of City of Folsom 
building permits and Community 
ground-disturbing Development 
activities. Department 

25 

Page 455

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measures 
(Source} 

3A.7-1b Monitor Earthwork during Earthmoving Activities. All earthwork shall be 
(FPASP monitored by a qualified geotechnical or soils engineer retained by the 
EIR/EIS) project applicant(s) of each project phase. The geotechnical or soils 

engineer shall provide oversight during all excavation, placement of fill, and 
disposal of materials removed from and deposited on both on- and off-site 
construction areas. 

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's 
jurisdictional boundaries must be coordinated by the project applicant(s) of 
each applicable project phase with the affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., El 
Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties, or Caltrans). 

3A.7-3 Prepare and Implement the Appropriate Grading and Erosion Control Plan. 
(FPASP Before grading permits are issued, the project applicant(s) of each project 
EIR/EIS) phase that would be located within the City of Folsom shall retain a 

California Registered Civil Engineer to prepare a grading and erosion control 
plan. The grading and erosion control plan shall be submitted to the City 
Public Works Department before issuance of grading permits for all new 
development. The plan shall be consistent with the City's Grading 
Ordinance, the City's Hillside Development Guidelines, and the state's 
NPDES permit, and shall include the site-specific grading associated with 
development for all project phases. 

For the two off-site roadways into El Dorado Hills, the project applicant(s) of 
that phase shall retain a California Registered Civil Engineer to prepare a 
grading and erosion control plan. The grading and erosion control plan shall 
be submitted to the El Dorado County Public Works Department and the El 
Dorado Hills Community Service District before issuance of grading permits 
for roadway construction in El Dorado Hills. The plan shall be consistent with 
El Dorado County's Grading, Erosion, and Sediment Control Ordinance and 
the state's NPDES permit, and shall include the site-specific grading 
associated with roadway development. 

For the off-site detention basin west of Prairie City Road, the project 
applicant(s) of that phase shall retain a California Registered Civil Engineer 
to prepare a grading and erosion control plan. The grading and erosion 
control plan shall be submitted to the Sacramento County Public Works 
Department before issuance of a grading permit. The plan shall be 
consistent with Sacramento County's Grading, Erosion, and Sediment 
Control Ordinance and the state's NPDES permit, and shall include the site-
specific grading associated with construction of the detention basin. 

26 

Implementation 
Responstbl11ty 

Project applicant 

Project applicant 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring llming Verification A!Jertcy 

Before issuance of City of Folsom 
building permits and Community 
ground-disturbing Development 
activities_ Department 

Before the start of City of Folsom 
construction activities. Community 

Development 
Department 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 456

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Implementation Monitoring Number Mitigation Measures llmlng Verification 

/Source) Responsibility f>qerq 

The plans referenced above shall include the location, implementation 
schedule, and maintenance schedule of all erosion and sediment control 
measures, a description of measures designed to control dust and stabilize 
the construction-site road and entrance, and a description of the location 
and methods of storage and disposal of construction materials. Erosion and 
sediment control measures could include the use of detention basins, 
berms, swales, wattles, and silt fencing, and covering or watering of 
stockpiled soils to reduce wind erosion. Stabilization on steep slopes could 
include construction of retaining walls and reseeding with vegetation after 
construction. Stabilization of construction entrances to minimize trackout 
(control dust) is commonly achieved by installing filter fabric and crushed 
rock to a depth of approximately 1 foot. The project applicant(s) shall ensure 
that the construction contractor is responsible for securing a source of 
transportation and deposition of excavated materials. 

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's 
jurisdictional boundaries must be coordinated by the project applicant(s) of 
each applicable project phase with the affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., El 
Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties). 

Implementation of Mitigation Measure 3A 9-1 (discussed in Section 3A.9, 
"Hydrology and Water Quality- Land') would also help reduce erosion-
related impacts. 

3A.7-5 Divert Seasonal Water Flows Away from Building Foundations. The project Project applicant Before and during City of Folsom 
(FPASP applicant(s) of all project phases shall either install subdrains (which typically earthmoving activities. Community 
EIR/EIS) consist of perforated pipe and gravel, surrounded by nonwoven geotextile Development 

fabric), or take such other actions as recommended by the geotechnical or Department 
civil engineer for the project that would serve to divert seasonal flows 
caused by surface infiltration, water seepage, and perched water during the 
winter months away from building foundations. 

3A.7-10 Conduct Construction Personnel Education, Stop Work if Paleontological Project applicant During earthmoving City of Folsom 
(FPASP Resources are Discovered, Assess the Significance of the Find, and Prepare activities in the lone Community 
EIR/EIS) and Implement a Recovery Plan as Required. and Mehrten Development 

To minimize potential adverse impacts on previously unknown potentially Formations. Department 

unique, scientifically important paleontological resources, the project 
applicant(s) of all project phases where construction would occur in the lone 
and Mehrten Formations shall do the following: 

• Before the start of any earthmoving activities for any project phase in 
the lone or Mehrten Formations, the project applicant(s) shall retain a 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 27 

Page 457

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measures 
/;oufte) 

qualified paleontologist or archaeologist to train all construction 
personnel involved with earthmoving activities, including the site 
superintendent, regarding the possibility of encountering fossils, the 
appearance and types of fossils likely to be seen during construction, 
and proper notification procedures should fossils be encountered. 

• If paleontological resources are discovered during earthmoving 
activities, the construction crew shall immediately cease work in the 
vicinity of the find and notify the appropriate lead agency (identified 
below). The project applicant(s) shall retain a qualified paleontologist to 
evaluate the resource and prepare a recovery plan in accordance with 
Society of Vertebrate Paleontology guidelines (1996). The recovery plan 
may include, but is not limited to, a field survey, construction 
monitoring, sampling and data recovery procedures, museum storage 
coordination for any specimen recovered, and a report of findings, 
Recommendations in the recovery plan that are determined by the 
lead agency to be necessary and feasible shall be implemented before 
construction activities can resume at the site where the paleontological 
resources were discovered. 

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's 
jurisdictional boundaries must be coordinated by the project applicant(s) of 
each applicable project phase with the affected oversight agency(ies) (i e., 
Sacramento County). 

Greenhouse Gas Em1ss1ons and Climate Change 

3A.4-1 Implement Additional Measures to Control Construction-Generated GHG 
(FPASP Emissions. 
EIR/EIS) To further reduce construction-generated GHG emissions, the project 

applicant(s) any particular discretionary development application shall 
implement all feasible measures for reducing GHG emissions associated with 
construction that are recommended by SMAQMD at the time individual 
portions of the site undergo construction. Such measures may reduce GHG 
exhaust emissions from the use of on-site equipment, worker commute 
trips, and truck trips carrying materials and equipment to and from the SPA, 
as well as GHG emissions embodied in the materials selected for 
construction (e.g., concrete). Other measures may pertain to the materials 
used in construction. Prior to releasing each request for bid to contractors 
for the construction of each discretionary development entitlement, the 
project applicant(s) shall obtain the most current list of GHG reduction 

28 

Implementation 
Responsibilify 

Project applicant 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring 
Timing Verification 

Ageocy 

Before approval of City of Folsom 
small-lot final maps and Community 
building permits for all Development 
discretionary Department 
development project, 
including all on- and 
off-site elements and 
implementation 
throughout project 
construction. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 458

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Implementation Monitoring Number Mitigation Measures Timing Verification 

/Snurce} Responsibility Agerq 

measures that are recommended by SMAQMD and stipulate that these 
measures be implemented in the respective request for bid as well as the 
subsequent construction contract with the selected primary contractor, The 
project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application 
may submit to the City and SMAQMD a report that substantiates why 
specific measures are considered infeasible for construction of that 
particular development phase and/or at that point in time. The report, 
including the substantiation for not implementing particular GHG reduction 
measures, shall be approved by the City, in consultation with SMAQMD 
prior to the release of a request for bid by the project applicant(s) for 
seeking a primary contractor to manage the construction of each 
development project. By requiring that the list of feasible measures be 
established prior to the selection of a primary contractor, this measure 
requires that the ability of a contractor to effectively implement the selected 
GHG reduction measures be inherent to the selection process. 

SMAQMD's recommended measures for reducing construction-related GHG 
emissions at the time of writing this EIR/EIS are listed below and the project 
applicant(s) shall, at a minimum, be required to implement the following: 

• Improve fuel efficiency from construction equipment: 

• reduce unnecessary idling (modify work practices, install auxiliary 
power for driver comfort); 

• perform equipment maintenance (inspections, detect failures early, 
corrections); 

• train equipment operators in proper use of equipment; 

• use the proper size of equipment for the job; and 

• use equipment with new technologies (repowered engines, electric 
drive trains). 

• Use alternative fuels for electricity generators and welders at 
construction sites such as propane or solar, or use electrical power, 

• Use an ARB-approved low-carbon fuel, such as biodiesel or renewable 
diesel for construction equipment, (Emissions of oxides of nitrogen 
[NOx] emissions from the use of low carbon fuel must be reviewed and 
increases mitigated.) Additional information about low carbon fuels is 
available from ARB's Low Carbon Fuel Standard Program (ARB 2009b), 

• Encourage and provide carpools, shuttle vans, transit passes and/or 
secure bicycle parking for construction worker commutes. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 29 

Page 459

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measures 
/Source) 

• Reduce electricity use in the construction office by using compact 
fluorescent bulbs, powering off computers every day, and replacing 
heating and cooling units with more efficient ones 

• Recycle or salvage non-hazardous construction and demolition debris 
(goal of at least 75% by weight). 

• Use locally sourced or recycled materials for construction materials 
(goal of at least 20% based on costs for building materials, and based 
on volume for roadway, parking lot, sidewalk and curb materials), 

• Minimize the amount of concrete used for paved surfaces or use a low 
carbon concrete option. 

• Produce concrete on-site if determined to be less emissive than 
transporting ready mix, 

• Use EPA-certified SmartWay trucks for deliveries and equipment 
transport. Additional information about the SmartWay Transport 
Partnership Program is available from ARB's Heavy-Duty Vehicle 
Greenhouse Gas Measure (ARB 2009c) and EPA (EPA 2009). 

• Develop a plan in consultation with SMAQMD to efficiently use water 
for adequate dust control. This may consist of the use of nonpotable 
water from a local source, 

In addition to SMAQMD-recommended measures, construction activity shall 
comply with all applicable rules and regulations established by SMAQMD and 
ARB. 

3A.4-2b Participate in and Implement an Urban and Community Forestry Program 
(FPASP and/or Off-Site Tree Program to Off-Set Loss of On-Site Trees. The trees on 
EIR/EIS) the project site contain sequestered carbon and would continue to provide 

future carbon sequestration during their growing life. For all harvestable 
trees that are subject to removal, the project applicant(s) for any particular 
discretionary development application shall participate in and provide 
necessary funding for urban and community forestry program (such as 

the UrbanWood program managed by the Urban Forest Ecosystems 
Institute [Urban Forest Ecosystems Institute 20091) to ensure that wood with 
an equivalent carbon sequestration value to that of all harvestable removed 
trees is harvested for an end-use that would retain its carbon sequestration 
(e.g., furniture building, cabinet making). For all nonharvestable trees that 
are subject to removal, the project applicant(s) shall develop and fund an 
off-site tree oroaram that includes a level of tree_olantina that, at a 

30 

Implementation 
Responsibility 

Project applicant 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring 
llmlng Verification l>IJency 

Before approval of final City of Folsom 
maps and/or building Community 
permits for all project Development 
phases requiring Department 
discretionary approval, 
including all on- and 
off-site elements. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 460

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Implementation Monitoring Number Millgaticn Measures liming Verification 

""'•reel 
Responsibility Agency 

minimum, increases carbon sequestration by an amount equivalent ta what 
would have been sequestered by the blue oak woodland during its lifetime. 
This program shall be funded by the project applicant(s) of each 
development phase and reviewed far comment by an independent Certified 
Arborist unaffiliated with the project applicant(s) and shall be coordinated 
with the requirements of Mitigation Measure 3.3-5, as stated in Section 3A 3, 
"Biological Resources - Land.' Final approval of the program shall be 
provided by the City. Components of the program may include, but not be 
limited to, providing urban tree canopy in the City of Folsom, or 
reforestation in suitable areas outside the City. Reforestation in natural 
habitat areas outside the City of Folsom would simultaneously mitigate the 
loss of oak woodland habitat while planting trees within the urban forest 
canopy would not. The California Urban Forestry Greenhouse Gas Reporting 
Protocol shall be used ta assess this mitigation program (CCAR 200B). All 
unused vegetation and tree material shall be mulched for use in landscaping 
an the project site, shipped ta the nearest composting facility, or shipped ta 
a landfill that is equipped with a methane collection system, or combusted 
in a biomass power plant. Tree and vegetative material should not be 
burned an- or off-site unless used as fuel in a biomass power plant. 

Hazards and Hazardous Materials 

3A.8-S Prepare and Implement a Blasting Safety Plan in Consultation with a Project applicant and At the submission of City of Folsom 
(FPASP Qualified Blaster Ta reduce the potential for accidental injury or death project contractor tentative map Fire Department 
EIR/EIS) related ta blasting, contractors whose work in the SPA will include blasting applications. 

shall prepare and implement a blasting safety plan. This plan shall be 
created in coordination with a qualified blaster, as defined by the 
Construction Safety and Health Outreach Program, Subpart U, Section 
1926,901, and distributed ta all appropriate members of construction teams. 
The plan shall apply ta project applicant(s) of all project phases in which 
blasting would be employed. The plan shall include, but is not limited ta: 

• storage locations that meet ATF standards contained in 27 CFR Part 55; 

• safety requirements for workers (e.g., daily safety meetings, personal 
protective equipment); 

• an accident management plan that considers misfires (i.e. explosive 
fails to detonate), unexpected ignition, and flyrock; and 

• measures ta protect surrounding property (e.g., netting, 
announcement of dates of expected blasting, barricades, and audible 
and visual warnings). 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 31 

Page 461

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measures 
~,reel 

Upon completion of a blasting safety plan, the project applicant(s) shall 
secure any required permits from the City of Folsom Fire Department and 
the El Dorado County Sheriff's Department for blasting activities in 
Sacramento County and El Dorado County, respectively. 

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's 
jurisdictional boundaries must be coordinated by the project applicant(s) of 
each applicable project phase with the affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., El 
Dorado County). 

3A.8-6 Prudent Avoidance and Notification of EMF Exposure. Potential purchasers 
(FPASP of residential properties near the transmission lines shall be made aware of 
EIR/EIS) the controversy surrounding EMF exposure. The California Department of 

Real Estate shall be requested to insert an appropriate notification into the 
applicant's final Subdivision Public Report application, which shall be 
provided to purchasers of properties within 100 feet from the 100-115kV 
power line, or within 150 feet from the 220-230 kV power line . The 
notification would include a discussion of the scientific studies and 
conclusions reached to date, acknowledge that the notification distance is 
not based on specific biological evidence, but rather, the distance where 
background levels may increase, and provide that, given some uncertainty in 
the data, this notification is merely provided to allow purchasers to make an 
informed decision. 

3A.8-7 Prepare and Implement a Vector Control Plan in Consultation with the 
(FPASP Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control District. To ensure that 
EIR/EIS) operation and design of the stormwater system, including multiple planned 

detention basins, is consistent with the recommendations of the Sacramento-
Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control District regarding mosquito control, the 
project applicant(s) of all project phases shall prepare and implement a Vector 
Control Plan, This plan shall be prepared in coordination with the Sacramento-
Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control District and shall be submitted to the City 
for approval before issuance of the grading permit for the detention basins 
under the City's jurisdiction. For the off-site detention basin, the plan shall be 
submitted to Sacramento County for approval before issuance of the grading 
permit for the off-site detention basin. The plan shall incorporate specific 
measures deemed sufficient by the City to minimize public health risks from 
mosquitoes, and as contained within the Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and 
Vector Control District BMP Manual (Sacramento-Yolo Mosquito and Vector 

32 

lmplementllion 
Responsibility 

Project applicant 

Project applicant 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring 
Timing Verification 

Agency 

At the submission of City of Folsom 
tentative map Community 
applications. Development 

Department 

Before issuance of City of Folsom 
grading permits for the Community 
project water features. Development 

Department 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 462

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Implementation Monitoring Number Mitigation Measures liming Verification 

ISourre) Responsibility lvJercy 

Control District 2008). The plan shall include, but is not limited ta, the fallowing 
components: 

• Description of the project. 

• Description of detention basins and all water features and facilities that 
would control an-site water levels. 

• Goals of the plan. 

• Description of the water management elements and features that 
would be implemented, including: 

• BMPs that would implemented on-site; 

• public education and awareness; 

• sanitary methods used (e.g., disposal of garbage); . mosquito control methods used (e.g., fluctuating water levels, 
biological agents, pesticides, larvacides, circulating water); and 

• starmwater management (consistent with Stormwater Management 
Plan). 

• Long-term maintenance of the detention basins and all related facilities 
(e.g., specific ongoing enforceable conditions or maintenance by a 
hameawner's association). 

To reduce the potential far mosquitoes to reproduce in the detention 
basins, the project applicant(s) shall coordinate with the Sacramento-Yolo 
Mosquito and Vector Control District ta identify and implement BMPs based 
an their potential effectiveness far SPA conditions Potential BMPs could 
include, but are not limited to, the fallowing: 

• build shoreline perimeters as steep and uniform as practicable ta 
discourage dense plant growth; 

• perform routine maintenance ta reduce emergent plant densities ta 
facilitate the ability of mosquito predators (i.e., fish) ta move 
throughout vegetated area; 

• design distribution piping and containment basins with adequate 
slopes to drain fully and prevent standing water. The design slope 
should take into consideration buildup of sediment between 
maintenance periods. Compaction during grading may also be needed 
to avoid slumping and settling; 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 33 

Page 463

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

M"lllgation 
Number Mitigation Measures 
ISoorce) 

• coordinate cleaning of catch basins, drop inlets, or storm drains with 
mosquito treatment operations; 

• enforce the prompt removal of silt screens installed during 
construction when no longer needed to protect water quality; 

• if the sump, vault, or basin is sealed against mosquitoes, with the 
exception of the inlet and outlet. submerge the inlet and outlet 
completely to reduce the available surface area of water for mosquito 
egg-laying (female mosquitoes can fly through pipes); and 

• design structures with the appropriate pumping, piping, valves, or 
other necessary equipment to allow for easy dewatering of the unit if 
necessary (Sacramento Yolo Mosquito and Vector Control District 
2008). 

The project applicant(s) of the project phase containing the off-site 
detention basin shall coordinate mitigation for the off-site with the affected 
oversight agency (i e., Sacramento County), 

Hydrology and Water Quality 

3A.9·1 Acquire Appropriate Regulatory Pennits and Prepare and Implement SWPPP 
(FPASP and BMPs. Prior to the issuance of grading permits, the project applicant(s) of 
EIR/EIS) all projects disturbing one or more acres (including phased construction of 

smaller areas which are part of a larger project) shall obtain coverage under 
the SWRCB's NPDES stormwater permit for general construction activity 
(Order 2009-0009-DWQ), including preparation and submittal of a project-
specific SWPPP at the time the NOi is filed. The project applicant(s) shall also 
prepare and submit any other necessary erosion and sediment control and 
engineering plans and specifications for pollution prevention and control to 
Sacramento County, City of Folsom, El Dorado County (for the off-site 
roadways into El Dorado Hills under the Proposed Project Alternative). The 
SWPPP and other appropriate plans shall identify and specify: 

• the use of an effective combination of robust erosion and sediment 
control BMPs and construction techniques accepted by the local 
jurisdictions for use in the project area at the time of construction, that 
shall reduce the potential for runoff and the release, mobilization, and 
exposure of pollutants, including legacy sources of mercury from 
project-related construction sites. These may include but would not be 
limited to temporary erosion control and soil stabilization measures, 

34 

Implementation 
Responsib~ity 

Project applicant 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring 
liming Verification 

Agency 

Submittal of the State City of Folsom 
Construction General Community 
Permit NOi and SWPPP Development 
(where applicable) and Department 
development and 
submittal of any other 
locally required plans 
and specifications 
before the issuance of 
grading permits for all 
on-site project phases 
and off-site elements 
and implementation 
throughout project 
construction. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 464

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mtigatlon Implementation Monitoring 
Number Mitigation Measures Tll!'lng Veriflca11on 
/Soorce) Responsibility 11/.,Jency 

sedimentation ponds, inlet protection, perforated riser pipes, check 
dams, and silt fences 

• the implementation of approved local plans, non-stormwater 
management controls, permanent post-construction BMPs, and 
inspection and maintenance responsibilities; 

• the pollutants that are likely to be used during construction that could 
be present in stormwater drainage and nonstormwater discharges, 
including fuels, lubricants, and other types of materials used for 
equipment operation; 

• spill prevention and contingency measures, including measures to 
prevent or clean up spills of hazardous waste and of hazardous 
materials used for equipment operation, and emergency procedures 
for responding to spills; 

• personnel training requirements and procedures that shall be used to 
ensure that workers are aware of permit requirements and proper 
installation methods for BMPs specified in the SWPPP; and 

• the appropriate personnel responsible for supervisory duties related to 
implementation of the SWPPP. 

• Where applicable, BMPs identified in the SWPPP shall be in place 
throughout all site work and construction/demolition activities and 
shall be used in all subsequent site development activities. BMPs may 
include, but are not limited to, such measures as those listed below. 

• Implementing temporary erosion and sediment control measures in 
disturbed areas to minimize discharge of sediment into nearby 
drainage conveyances, in compliance with state and local standards in 
effect at the lime of construction. These measures may include si lt 
fences, staked straw bales or wattles, sediment/silt basins and traps, 
geofabric, sandbag dikes, and temporary vegetation. 

• Establishing permanent vegetative cover to reduce erosion in areas 
disturbed by construction by slowing runoff velocities, trapping 
sediment, and enhancing filtration and transpiration. 

• Using drainage swales, ditches, and earth dikes to control erosion and 
runoff by conveying surface runoff down sloping land, intercepting and 
diverting runoff to a watercourse or channel, preventing sheet flow 
over sloced surfaces, creventina runoff accumulation at the base of a 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 35 

Page 465

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measures 
ISource) 

grade, and avoiding flood damage along roadways and facility 
infrastructure. 

A copy of the approved SWPPP shall be maintained and available at all 
times on the construction site. 

For those areas that would be disturbed as part of the U.S. 50 interchange 
improvements, Caltrans shall coordinate with the development and 
implementation of the overall project SWPPP, or develop and implement its 
own SWPPP specific to the interchange improvements, to ensure that water 
quality degradation would be avoided or minimized to the maximum extent 
practicable. 

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's 
jurisdictional boundaries must be coordinated by the project applicant(s) of 
each applicable project phase with the affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., El 
Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties, or Caltrans). 

3A.9-2 Prepare and Submit Final Drainage Plans and Implement Requirements 
(FPASP Contained in Those Plans. 
EIR/EIS) Before the approval of grading plans and building permits, the project 

applicant(s) of all project phases shall submit final drainage plans to the City, 
and to El Dorado County for the off-site roadway connections into El 
Dorado Hills, demonstrating that off-site upstream runoff would be 
appropriately conveyed through the SPA, and that project-related on-site 
runoff would be appropriately contained in detention basins or managed 
with through other improvements (e.g., source controls, biotechnical stream 
stabil ization) to reduce flooding and hydromodfication impacts. 

The plans shall include, but not be limited to, the following items: 

• an accurate calculation of pre-project and post-project runoff 
scenarios, obtained using appropriate engineering methods, that 
accurately evaluates potential changes to runoff, including increased 
surface runoff; 

• runoff calculations for the 10-year and 100-year (0.01 AEP) storm events 
(and other, smaller storm events as required) shall be performed and 
the trunk drainage pipeline sizes confirmed based on alignments and 
detention facility locations finalized in the design phase; 

• a description of the proposed maintenance program for the on-site 
drainage system; 

• project-specific standards for installing drainage systems; 

36 

Implementation 
ResponsiblUty 

Project applicant 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring 
liming Verification 

~ 

Before approval of City of Folsom 
grading plans and Public Works 
building permits of all Department 
project phases. 

Ci ty of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 466

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Implementation Monitoring Number Mitigation Measures Tlming Verification 

(wm,,\ Responsiblllfy Agency 

• City and El Dorado County flood control design requirements and 
measures designed to comply with them; 

Implementation of stormwater management BMPs that avoid increases in 
the erosive force of flows beyond a specific range of conditions needed to 
limit hydromodification and maintain current stream geomorphology, These 
BMPs will be designed and constructed in accordance with the forthcoming 
SSQP Hydromodification Management Plan (to be adopted by the RWQCB) 
and may include, but are not limited to, the following: 

• use of Low Impact Development (LID) techniques to limit increases in 
stormwater runoff at the point of origination (these may include, but 
are not limited to: surface swales; replacement of conventional 
impervious surfaces with pervious surfaces [e.g., porous pavement]; 
impervious surfaces disconnection; and trees planted to intercept 
stormwater); 

• enlarged detention basins to minimize fiow changes and changes to 
fiow duration characteristics; 

• bioengineered stream stabilization to minimize bank erosion, utilizing 
vegetative and rock stabilization, and inset floodplain restoration 
features that provide for enhancement of riparian habitat and 
maintenance of natural hydrologic and channel to floodplain 
interactions; 

• minimize slope differences between any stormwater or detention 
facility outfall channel with the existing receiving channel gradient to 
reduce flow velocity; and 

• minimize to the extent possible detention basin, bridge embankment, 
and other encroachments into the channel and noodplain corridor, and 
utilize open bottom box culverts to allow sediment passage on smaller 
drainage courses. 

The final drainage plan shall demonstrate to the satisfaction of the City of 
Folsom Community Development and Public Works Departments and El 
Dorado County Department of Transportation that 100-year (0.01 AEP) flood 
flows would be appropriately channeled and contained, such that the risk to 
people or damage to structures within or down gradient of the SPA would 
not occur, and that hydromodification would not be increased from pre-
development levels such that existing stream geomorphology would be 
changed (the range of conditions should be calculated for each receiving 
water if feasible, or a conservative estimate should be used, e.a. , an Eo of 1 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 37 

Page 467

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measures 
/Source) 

± 10% or other as approved by the Sacramento Stormwater Quality 
Partnership and/or City of Folsom Public Works Department). 

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's 
jurisdictional boundaries must be coordinated by the project applicant(s) of 
each applicable project phase with El Dorado County. 

3A.9-3 Develop and Implement a BMP and Water Quality Maintenance Plan. Before 
(FPASP approval of the grading permits for any development project requiring a 
EIR/EIS) subdivision map, a detailed BMP and water quality maintenance plan shall 

be prepared by a qualified engineer retained by the project applicant(s) the 
development project. Drafts of the plan shall be submitted to the City of 
Folsom and El Dorado County for the off-site roadway connections into El 
Dorado Hills, for review and approval concurrently with development of 
tentative subdivision maps for all project phases. The plan shall finalize the 
water quality improvements and further detail the structural and 
nonstructural BMPs proposed for the project. The plan shall include the 
elements described below. 

• A quantitative hydrologic and water quality analysis of proposed 
conditions incorporating the proposed drainage design features. 

• Predevelopment and postdevelopment calculations demonstrating that 
the proposed water quality BMPs meet or exceed requirements 
established by the City of Folsom and including details regarding the 
size, geometry, and functional timing of storage and release pursuant 
to the '"Stormwater Quality Design Manual for Sacramento and South 
Placer Regions" ([SSQP 2007b] per NPDES Permit No. CAS082597 WDR 
Order No. RS-2008-0142, page 46) and El Dorado County's NPDES 
SWMP (County of El Dorado 2004). 

• Source control programs to control water quality pollutants on the 
SPA, which may include but are limited to recycling, street sweeping, 
storm drain cleaning, household hazardous waste collection, waste 
minimization, prevention of spills and illegal dumping, and effective 
management of public trash collection areas. 

• A pond management component for the proposed basins that shall 
include management and maintenance requirements for the design 
features and BMPs, and responsible parties for maintenance and 
funding, 

38 

Implementation 
Responsibirrty 

Project applicant 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring 
liming Verificalfon kJency 

Prepare plans before City of Folsom 
the issuance of grading Community 
permits for all project Development 
phases and off-site Department and 
elements and Public Works 
implementation Department 
throughout project 
construction, 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 468

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Implementation Monitoring Number Mitigation Measures Tlming Verification 

&.un:el Responsibility /l.gerq 

• LID control measures shall be integrated into the BMP and water 
quality maintenance plan_ These may include, but are not limited to: . surface swales; . replacement of conventional impervious surfaces with pervious 
surfaces (e_g", porous pavement); . impervious surfaces disconnection; and . trees planted to intercept stormwater, 

New stormwater facilities shall be placed along the natural drainage courses 
within the SPA to the extent practicable so as to mimic the natural drainage 
patterns. The reduction in runoff as a result of the LID configurations shall 
be quantified based on the runoff reduction credit system methodology 
described in 'Stormwater Quality Design Manual for the Sacramento and 
South Placer Regions, Chapter 5 and Appendix D4" (SSQP 2007b) and 
proposed detention basins and other water quality BMPs shall be sized to 
handle these runoff volumes, 

For those areas that would be disturbed as part of the U.S. SO interchange 
improvements, it is anticipated that Caltrans would coordinate with the 
development and implementation of the overall project SWPPP, or develop 
and implement its own SWPPP specific to the interchange improvements, to 
ensure that water quality degradation would be avoided or minimized to the 
maximum extent practicable, 

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's 
jurisdictional boundaries must be coordinated by the project applicant(s) of 
each applicable project phase with El Dorado County and Caltrans. 

3A.9-4 Inspect and Evaluate Existing Dams Within and Upstream of the Project Site Project applicant Prior to submittal to the City of Folsom 
(FPASP and Make Improvements if Necessary. Prior to submittal to the City of City of tentative maps Public Works 
EIR/EIS) tentative maps or improvement plans the project applicant(s) of all project or improvement plans. Department 

phases shall perform conduct studies to determine the extent of inundation 
in the case of dam failure. If the studies determine potential exposure of 
people or structures to a significant risk of flooding as a result of the failure 
of a dam, the applicants(s) shall implement of any feasible 
recommendations provided in that study, potentially through drainage 
improvements, subject to the approval of the City of Folsom Public Works 
Department. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 39 

Page 469

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Milfgatlon 
Number 
Source 

Mitigation Measures 

Noise and Vibration 

3A.11-1 Implement Noise-Reducing Construction Practices, Prepare and Implement 
(FPASP a Noise Control Plan, and Monitor and Record Construction Noise near 
EIR/EIS) Sensitive Receptors. To reduce impacts associated with noise generated 

during project related construction activities, the project applicant(s) and 
their primary contractors for engineering design and construction of all 
project phases shall ensure that the following requirements are 
implemented at each work site in any year of project construction to avoid 
and minimize construction noise effects on sensitive receptors. The project 
applicant(s) and primary construction contractor(s) shall employ noise-
reducing construction practices. Measures that shall be used to limit noise 
shall include the measures listed below: 

• Noise-generating construction operations shall be limited to the hours 
between 7 a.m. and 7 p.m. Monday through Friday, and between 8 
a.m. and 6 p.m, on Saturdays and Sundays, 

• All construction equipment and equipment staging areas shall be 
located as far as possible from nearby noise-sensitive land uses. 

• All construction equipment shall be properly maintained and equipped 
with noise-reduction intake and exhaust mufflers and engine shrouds, 
in accordance with manufacturers' recommendations. Equipment 
engine shrouds shall be closed during equipment operation. 

• All motorized construction equipment shall be shut down when not in 
use to prevent idling. 

• Individual operations and techniques shall be replaced with quieter 
procedures (e.g., using welding instead of riveting, mixing concrete 
offsite instead of on-site). 

• Noise-reducing enclosures shall be used around stationary noise-
generating equipment (e.g., compressors and generators) as planned 
phases are built out and future noise sensitive receptors are located 
within close proximity to future construction activities. 

• Written notification of construction activities shall be provided to all 
noise-sensitive receptors located within 850 feet of construction 
activities Notification shall include anticipated dates and hours during 
which construction activities are anticipated to occur and contact 
information, including a daytime telephone number, for the project 
representative to be contacted in the event that noise levels are 

40 

Implementation 
Responsibility 

Project applicant 

llming 

Before and during 
construction activities 
on the SPA and within 
El Dorado Hills . 

Monitoring 
lvJerq 

City of Folsom 
Community 
Development 
Department 

Ascent Environmental 

Verlficatlon 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 470

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Implementation Monitoring Number Mitigation Measures liming Verification 

{Source) Responsibility Aqerrcy 

deemed excessive. Recommendations to assist noise-sensitive land 
uses in reducing interior noise levels (e.g ., closing windows and doors) 
shall also be included in the notification. 

• To the extent feasible, acoustic barriers (e,g,, lead curtains, sound 
barriers) shall be constructed to reduce construction-generated noise 
levels at affected noise-sensitive land uses. The barriers shall be 
designed to obstruct the line of sight between the noise-sensitive land 
use and on-site construction equipment. When installed properly, 
acoustic barriers can reduce construction noise levels by approximately 
8-10 dB (EPA 1971). 

• When future noise sensitive uses are within close proximity to 
prolonged construction noise, noise-attenuating buffers such as 
structures, truck trailers, or soil piles shall be located between noise 
sources and future residences to shield sensitive receptors from 
construction noise. 

• The primary contractor shall prepare and implement a construction 
noise management plan. This plan shall identify specific measures to 
ensure compliance with the noise control measures specified above, 
The noise control plan shall be submitted to the City of Folsom before 
any noise-generating construction activity begins. Construction shall 
not commence until the construction noise management plan is 
approved by the City of Folsom, Mitigation for the two off-site roadway 
connections into El Dorado County must be coordinated by the project 
applicant(s) of the applicable project phase with El Dorado County, 
since the roadway extensions are outside of the City of Folsom's 
jurisdictional boundaries. 

3A.11-3 Implement Measures to Prevent Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to Project applicant Before and during City of Folsom 
(FPASP Groundborne Noise or Vibration from Project Generated Construction bulldozing and blasting Community 
EIR/EIS) Activities. activities on the SPA Development 

• To the extent feasible, blasting activities shall not be conducted within and within El Dorado Department 

275 feet of existing or future sensitive receptors. Hills and the County of 

To the extent feasible, bulldozing activities shall not be conducted 
Sacramento 

• 
within 50 feet of existing or future sensitive receptors. 

• All blasting shall be performed by a blast contractor and blasting 
personnel licensed to operate in the State of California. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 41 

Page 471

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measures 
""'•reel 

• A blasting plan, including estimates of vibration levels at the residence 
closest to the blast, shall be submitted to the enforcement agency for 
review and approval prior to the commencement of the first blast. 

• Each blast shall be monitored and documented for groundbourne 
noise and vibration levels at the nearest sensitive land use and 
associated recorded submitted to the enforcement agency. 

3A.11-5 Implement Measures to Reduce Noise from Project-Generated Stationary 
(FPASP Sources. 
EIR/EIS) The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development project 

shall implement the following measures to reduce the effect of noise levels 
generated by on-site stationary noise sources that would be located within 
600 feet of any noise-sensitive receptor: 

• Routine testing and preventive maintenance of emergency electrical 
generators shall be conducted during the less sensitive daytime hours 
(i.e., 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.). All electrical generators shall be equipped 
with noise control (e.g, muffler) devices in accordance with 
manufacturers' specifications. 

• External mechanical equipment associated with buildings shall 
incorporate features designed to reduce noise emissions below the 
stationary noise source criteria. These features may include, but are not 
limited to, locating generators within equipment rooms or enclosures 
that incorporate noise-reduction features, such as acoustical louvers, 
and exhaust and intake silencers. Equipment enclosures shall be 
oriented so that major openings (i.e, intake louvers, exhaust) are 
directed away from nearby noise-sensitive receptors. 

• Parking lots shall be located and designed so that noise emissions do 
not exceed the stationary noise source criteria established in this 
analysis (i.e., 50 dB for 30 minutes in every hour during the daytime [7 
a.m. to 10 p.m.] and less than 45 dB for 30 minutes of every hour 
during the night time [10 p.m. to 7 a.m,]). Reduction of parking lot 
noise can be achieved by locating parking lots as far away as feasible 
from noise sensitive land uses, or using buildings and topographic 
features to provide acoustic shielding for noise-sensitive land uses. 

• Loading docks shall be located and designed so that noise emissions 
do not exceed the stationary noise source criteria established in this 
analysis (i.e., 50 dB for 30 minutes in every hour during the daytime (7 
a.m. to 10 o.m.] and less than 45 dB for 30 minutes of every hour 

42 

Implementation 
Responsibility 

Project applicant 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring liming Verification 
Agency 

Before submittal of City of Folsom 
improvement plans for Community 
each project phase, and Development 
during project Department 
operations for testing 
of emergency 
generators. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 472

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation Implementation Monitoring Number Mitigation Measures llming Venfication 
/Source) 

Responsibility Aqerv::y 

during the night time [10 p.m. to 7 a.m.]). Reduction of loading dock 
noise can be achieved by locating loading docks as far away as 
possible from noise sensitive land uses, constructing noise barriers 
between loading docks and noise-sensitive land uses, or using 
buildings and topographic features to provide acoustic shielding for 
noise-sensitive land uses 

4.13-1 Interior Traffic Noise Reduction Measures Project applicant Prior to building City of Folsom 
(Addendum) Prior to building occupancy, the project applicant shall ensure the following occupancy Community 

construction design features have been implemented. Development 

• Air conditioning shall be provided to allow occupants to close windows 
Department 

and doors for the appropriate acoustical isolation, 

Public Services 

3A.14-1 Prepare and Implement a Construction Traffic Control Plan. The project Project applicant Before the approval of City of Folsom 
(FPASP applicant(s) of all project phases shall prepare and implement traffic control all relevant plans Public Works 
EIR/EIS) plans for construction activities that may affect road rights-of-way. The and/or permits and Department 

traffic control plans must follow any applicable standards of the agency during construction of 
responsible for the affected roadway and must be approved and signed by all project phases 
a professional engineer, Measures typically used in traffic control plans 
include advertising of planned lane closures, warning signage, a flag person 
to direct traffic flows when needed, and methods to ensure continued 
access by emergency vehicles. During project construction, access to 
existing land uses shall be maintained at all times, with detours used as 
necessary during road closures. Traffic control plans shall be submitted to 
the appropriate City or County department or the California Department of 
Transportation (Caltrans) for review and approval before the approval of all 
project plans or permits, for all project phases where implementation may 
cause impacts on traffic. 

Mitigation for the off-site elements outside of the City of Folsom's 
jurisdictional boundaries must be coordinated by the project applicant(s) of 
each applicable project phase with the affected oversight agency(ies) (i.e., El 
Dorado and/or Sacramento Counties and Caltrans). 

3A.14-2 Incorporate California Fire Code; City of Folsom Fire Code Requirements; Project applicant Before issuance of City of Folsom 
(FPASP and EDHFD Requirements, if Necessary, into Project Design and Submit building permits and Fire Department, 
EIR/EIS) Project Design to the City of Folsom Fire Department for Review and issuance of occupancy City of Folsom 

Anoroval. To reduce impacts related to the provision of new fire services, permits or final Community 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 43 

Page 473

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measures 
/Source) 

the project applicant(s) of all project phases shall do the following, as 
described below. 

1. Incorporate into project designs fire flow requirements based on the 
California Fire Code, Folsom Fire Code (City of Folsom Municipal Code Title 
8, Chapter 8 36), and other applicable requirements based on the City of 
Folsom Fire Department fire prevention standards 

Improvement plans showing the incorporation automatic sprin kler systems, 
the availability of adequate fire flow, and the locations of hydrants shall be 
submitted to the City of Folsom Fire Department for review and approval. In 
addition, approved plans showing access design shall be provided to the 
City of Folsom Fire Department as described by Zoning Code Section 
17.S7 080 ("Vehicular Access Requirements'). These plans sha ll describe 
access-road length, dimensions, and finished surfaces for firefighting 
equipment. The installation of security gates across a fire apparatus access 
road shall be approved by the City of Folsom Fire Department The design 
and operation of gates and barricades shall be in accordance with the 
Sacramento County Emergency Access Gates and Barriers Standard, as 
required by the City of Folsom Fire Code. 

2. Submit a Fire Systems New Buildings, Additions, and Alterations 
Document Submittal List to the City of Folsom Community Development 
Department Building Division for review and approval before the issuance of 
building permits. 

In addition to the above measures, the project applicant(s) of all project 
phases shall incorporate the provisions described below for the portion of 
the SPA within the EDHFD service area, if it is determined through City/El 
Dorado County negotiations that EDHFD would serve the 178-acre portion 
of the SPA. 

3. Incorporate into project designs applicable requirements based on the 
EDHFD fire prevention standards, For commercial development, 
improvement plans showing roadways, land splits, buildings, fire sprinkler 
systems, fire alarm systems, and other commercial building improvements 
shall be submitted to the EDHFD for review and approval. For residential 
development, improvement plans showing property lines and adjacent 
streets or roads; total acreage or square footage of the parcel; the footprint 
of all structures; driveway plan views describing width, length, turnouts, 
turnarounds, radiuses, and surfaces; and driveway profile views showinq the 

44 

Implementation 
Timing 

Responsibirrty 

inspections for all 
project phases, 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring 
Verification 

Agerq 

Development 
Department 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 474

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Implementation Monitoring 

Number Mldgatlon Measures Timing Verification 
/Source) Responsiblrrty Agency 

percent grade from the access road to the structure and vertical clearance 
shall be submitted to the EDHFD for review and approval. 

4. Submit a Fire Prevention Plan Checklist to the EDHFD for review and 
approval before the issuance of building permits. In addition, residential 
development requiring automation fire sprinklers shall submit sprinkler 
design sheet(s) and hydraulic calculations from a California State Licensed 
C-16 Contractor. 

The City shall not authorize the occupancy of any structures until the project 
applicant(s) have obtained a Certificate of Occupancy from the City of 
Folsom Community Development Department verifying that all fire 
prevention items have been addressed on-site to the satisfaction of the City 
of Folsom Fire Department and/or the EDHFD for the 178-acre area of the 
SPA within the EDHFD service area. 

3A.14-3 Incorporate Fire Flow Requirements into Project Designs. The project Project applicant Before issuance of City of Folsom 
(FPASP applicant(s) of all project phases shall incorporate into their project designs building permits and Fire Department, 
EIR/EIS) fire flow requirements based on the California Fire Code, Folsom Fire Code, issuance of occupancy City of Folsom 

and/or EDHFD for those areas of the SPA within the EDHFD service area and permits or final Community 
shall verify to City of Folsom Fire Department that adequate water flow is inspections for all Development 

available, prior to approval of improvement plans and issuance of project phases. Department 

occupancy permits or final inspections for all project phases. 

Traffic and Transportation 

3A.15-1a The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of Project applicant; City A phasing analysis shall City of Folsom 
(FPASP Improvements to the Folsom Boulevard/Blue Ravine Road Intersection of Folsom Public be performed prior to Public Works 
EIR/EIS) 0ntersection 1). To ensure that the Folsom Boulevard/Blue Ravine Road Works Department approval of the fi rst Department 

intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the eastbound approach must subdivision map to 
be reconfigured to consist of two left-turn lanes, one through lane, and one determine when the 
right-turn lane. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvement should be 
improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate implemented and when 
and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the fair share funding 
Folsom Boulevard/Blue Ravine Road intersection (Intersection 1). should be paid. 

3A.1S-1b The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of Project applicant; City A phasing analysis shall City of Folsom 

(FPASP Improvements at the Sibley Street/Blue Ravine Road Intersection of Folsom Public be performed priorto Public Works 

EIR/EIS) 0ntersection 2), To ensure that the Sibley Street/Blue Ravine Road Works Department approval of the first Department 
intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound approach must subdivision map to 
be reconfigured to consist of two left-turn lanes, two through lanes, and one determine when the 
riaht-turn lane. The aoolicant shall oav its orooortionate share of fundina of improvement should be 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 45 

Page 475

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measures 
ISoorce) 

improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate 
and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the 
Sibley Street/Blue Ravine Road intersection (Intersection 2). 

3A.15-1c The Applicant Shall Fund and Construct Improvements to the Scott Road 
(FPASP (West)/White Rock Road Intersection (Intersection 28). To ensure that the 
EIR/EIS) Scott Road (West)/White Rock Road intersection operates at an acceptable 

LOS, a traffic signal must be installed. 

3A.15-1e Fund and Construct Improvements to the Hillside Drive/Easton Valley 

(FPASP Parkway Intersection 

EIR/EIS) 0ntersection 41). To ensure that the Hillside Drive/Easton Valley Parkway 
intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the eastbound approach must 
be reconfigured to consist of one dedicated left tum lane and two through 
lanes, and the westbound approach must be reconfigured to consist of two 
through lanes and one dedicated right-tum lane. The applicant shall fund 
and construct these improvements. 

3A.15-1f Fund and Construct Improvements to the Oak Avenue Parkway/Middle 

(FPASP Road Intersection 

EIR/EIS} Ontersection 44). To ensure that the Oak Avenue Parkway/Middle Road 
intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, control all movements with a 
stop sign. The applicant shall fund and construct these improvements. 

3A.15-1h Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts to the 

(FPASP Hazel Avenue/Folsom Boulevard Intersection (Sacramento County 

EIR/EIS) Intersection 2). To ensure that the Hazel Avenue/Folsom Boulevard 
intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, this intersection must be grade 
separated including 'Jug handle" ramps. No at grade improvement is 
feasible. Grade separating and extended (south) Hazel Avenue with 
improvements to the U.S. SO/Hazel Avenue interchange is a mitigation 
measure for the approved Easton-Glenbrough Specific Plan development 
project. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of 
improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a 
program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to the Hazel 
Avenue/Folsom Boulevard intersection (Sacramento County Intersection 2), 

46 

lmplerrentation 
ResponsibHity 

Project applicant; City 
of Folsom Public 
Works Department 

Project applicant City 
of Folsom Public 
Works Department 

Project applicant; City 
of Folsom Public 
Works Department 

Project applicant; 
Sacramento County 
Public Works 
Department and 
Caltrans 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring 
llmlng Vet1ficatfon 

NJerv::i 
implemented and when 
fair share funding 
should be paid , 

A phasing analysis shall City of Folsom 
be performed prior to Public Works 
approval of the first Department 
subdivision map to 
determine when the 
improvement should be 
implemented. 

A phasing analysis shal l City of Folsom 
be performed prior to Public Works 
approval of the first Department 
subdivision map to 
determine when the 
improvement should be 
implemented, 

A phasing analysis shall City of Folsom 
be performed prior to Public Works 
approval of the first Department 
subdivision map to 
determine when the 
improvement should be 
implemented. 

A phasing analysis shall Sacramento 
be performed prior to County Public 
approval of the first Works 
subdivision map to Department and 
determine when the Caltrans 
improvement should be 
implemented. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 476

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation Implementation Monitoring 
Number Mitigation Measures 

Responsiburty 
TIiiing Agency Velification 

/Source) 
3A.15-1i Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the Project applicant; Before project build Sacramento 
(FPASP Grant Line Road/White Rock Road Intersection and to White Rock Road Sacramento County out. Design of the County Public 
EIR/EIS) widening between the Rancho Cordova City limit to Prairie City Road Public Works White Rock Road Works 

(Sacramento County Intersection 3). Improvements must be made to ensure Department widening to four lanes, Department 
that the Grant Line Road/White Rock Road intersection operates at an from Grant Line Road 
acceptable LOS. The currently County proposed White Rock Road widening to Prairie City Road, 
project will widen and realign White Rock Road from the Rancho Cordova with Intersection 
City limit to the El Dorado County line (this analysis assumes that the improvements has 
Proposed Project and build alternatives will widen White Rock Road to five begun, and because 
lanes from Prairie City road to the El Dorado County Line). This widening this widening project is 
includes improvements to the Grant Line Road intersection and realigning environmentally cleared 
White Rock Road to be the through movement. The improvements include and fully funded, it's 
two eastbound through lanes, one eastbound right turn lane, two construction is 
northbound left turn lanes, two northbound right turn lanes, two westbound expected to be 
left turn lanes and two westbound through lanes. This improvement also complete before the 
includes the signalization of the White Rock Road and Grant Line Road first phase of the 
intersection, With implementation of this improvement, the intersection Proposed Project or 
would operate at an acceptable LOS A. The applicant shall pay its alternative is built. 
proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency responsible 
for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to 
reduce the impacts to the Grant Line Road/White Rock Road intersection 
(Sacramento County Intersection 3). 

3A.15-1j Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Sacramento County Before project build Sacramento 
(FPASP Hazel Avenue between Madison Avenue and Curragh Downs Drive Public Works out, Construction of County Public 
EIR/EIS) (Roadway Segment 10). To ensure that Hazel Avenue operates at an Department phase two of the Hazel Works 

acceptable LOS between Curragh Downs Drive and Gold Country Boulevard, Avenue widening, from Department 
Hazel Avenue must be widened to six lanes. This improvement is part of the Madison Avenue to 
County adopted Hazel Avenue widening project Curragh Downs Drive, 

is expected to be 
completed by year 
2013, before the first 
phase of the Proposed 
Project or alternative is 
complete. The applicant 
shall pay its 
proportionate share of 
funding of 
improvements to the 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 47 

Page 477

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measures 
&,urce) 

3A.15-1I Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the 
(FPASP White Rock Road/Windfield Way Intersection (El Dorado County Intersection 
EIR/EIS) 3). To ensure that the White Rock Road/Windfield Way intersection operates 

at an acceptable LOS, the intersection must be signalized and separate 
northbound left and right turn lanes must be striped. The applicant shall pay 
its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency 
responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that 
agency to reduce the impacts to the White Rock Road/Windfield Way 
intersection (El Dorado County Intersection 3). 

3A.15-1o Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on 
(FPASP Eastbound U.S. SO as an alternative to improvements at the Folsom 
EIR/EIS) Boulevard/U.S. 50 Eastbound Ramps Intersection (Caltrans Intersection 4). 

Congestion on eastbound U.S. SO is causing vehicles to use Folsom 
Boulevard as an alternate parallel route until they reach U.S. SO, where they 
must get back on the freeway due to the lack of a parallel route. It is 
preferred to alleviate the congestion on U.S. SO than to upgrade the 
intersection at the end of this reliever route. The applicant shall pay its 
proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency responsible 
for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to 
reduce the impacts to the Folsom Boulevard/U.S. SO Eastbound Ramps 
intersection (Caltrans Intersection 4). To ensure that the Folsom 
Boulevard/U.S. SO eastbound ramps intersection operates at an acceptable 
LOS, auxiliary lanes should be added to eastbound U.S. SO from Hazel 
Avenue to east of Folsom Boulevard. This was recommended in the T raffle 
Operations Analysis Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary Lane Project. 

48 

Implementation 
Responsibility 

Project applicant; El 
Dorado County 
Department of 
Transportation 

Project applicant; City 
of Folsom Public 
Works Department 
and Sacramento 
County Department of 
Transportation 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring 
Tuning Verification 

/l{Jency 

agency responsible for 
improvements, based 
on a program 
established by that 
agency to reduce the 
impacts to Hazel 
Avenue between 
Madison Avenue and 
Curragh Downs Drive 
(Sacramento County 
Roadway Segment 10). 

Before project build El Dorado 
out. A phasing analysis County 
should be performed Department of 
prior to approval of the Transportation 
first subdivision map to 
determine during which 
project phase the 
improvement should be 
built. 

Before project build City of Folsom 
out. A phasing analysis Public Works 
should be performed Department and 
prior to approval of the Sacramento 
first subdivision map to County 
determine during which Department of 
project phase the Transportation 
improvement should be 
built. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 478

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Implementation Monitoring 

Number Mitigation Measures Timing Verification 
{Soorcel Responsibility Agerq 

3A.15-1p Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the Project applicant; Before project build Sacramento 
(FPASP Grant Line Road/ State Route 16 Intersection (Caltrans Intersection 12). To Sacramento County out. A phasing analysis County 
EIR/EIS) ensure that the Grant Line Road/State Route 16 intersection operates at an Department of should be performed Department of 

acceptable LOS, the northbound and southbound approaches must be Transportation and the prior to approval of the Transportation 
reconfigured to consist of one left-turn lane and one shared through/right- City of Rancho first subdivision map to and the City of 
turn lane. Protected left-turn signal phasing must be provided on the Cordova Department determine during which Rancho Cordova 
northbound and southbound approaches, Improvements to the Grant Line of Public Works project phase the Department of 
Road/State Route 16 intersection are contained within the County improvement should be Public Works 
Development Fee Program, and are scheduled for Measure A funding, built. 

Improvements to this intersection must be implemented by Caltrans, 
Sacramento County, and the City of Rancho Cordova. 

The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements 
to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a program 
established by that agency to reduce the impacts to the Grant Line 
Road/State Route 16 intersection (Caltrans Intersection 12). 

3A.15-1q Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Caltrans Before project build Caltrans 
(FPASP Eastbound U.S. SO between Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard (Freeway out. Construction of the 
EIR/EIS) Segment 1). To ensure that Eastbound U S, SO operates at an acceptable LOS Sacramento SO Bus-

between Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard, a bus-carpool (HOV) lane Carpool Lane and 
must be constructed. This improvement is currently planned as part of the Community 
Sacramento SO Bus-Carpool Lane and Community Enhancements Project, The Enhancements Project 
applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the is expected to be 
agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that completed by year 
agency to reduce the impacts to Eastbound U.S SO between Zinfandel Drive 2013, before the first 
and Sunrise Boulevard (Freeway Segment 1). phase of the Proposed 

Project or alternative is 
complete, Construction 
of the Sacramento 50 
Bus-Carpool Lane and 
Community 
Enhancements Project 
has started since the 
writing of the Draft 
EIS/EIR. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 49 

Page 479

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measures 
/Source) 

3A.15-1r Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on 
(FPASP Eastbound U.S. SO between Hazel Avenue and Folsom Boulevard (Freeway 
EIR/EIS) Segment 3). To ensure that Eastbound U.S. SO operates at an acceptable 

LOS between Hazel Avenue and Folsom Boulevard, an auxiliary lane must be 
constructed. This improvement was recommended in the Traffic Operations 
Analysis Report for the U.S. SO Auxiliary Lane Project. This improvement is 
included in the proposed SO Corridor Mobility Fee Program. 

The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements 
to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a program 
established by that agency to reduce the impacts to Eastbound U S, SO 
between Hazel Avenue and Folsom Boulevard (Freeway Segment 3)_ 

3A.15-1s Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on 
(FPASP Eastbound U.S. 50 between Folsom Boulevard and Prairie City Road 
EIR/EIS) (Freeway Segment 4). To ensure that Eastbound U.S. SO operates at an 

acceptable LOS between Folsom Boulevard and Prairie City Road, an 
auxiliary lane must be constructed. This improvement was recommended in 
the Traffic Operations Analysis Report for the U.S. SO Auxiliary Lane Project. 
This improvement is included in the proposed SO Corridor Mobility Fee 
Program. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of 
improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate 
and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to 
Eastbound U.S. 50 between Folsom Boulevard and Prairie City Road 
(Freeway Segment 4). 

3A.15-1u Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on 
(FPASP Westbound U.S. 50 between Prairie City Road and Folsom Boulevard 
EIR/EIS) (Freeway Segment 16). To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an 

acceptable LOS between Prairie City Road and Folsom Boulevard, an 
auxiliary lane must be constructed. This improvement was recommended in 
the T raffle Operations Analysis Report for the U.S. 50 Auxiliary Lane Project. 
This improvement is included in the proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee 
Program. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of 
improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate 
and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to 
Westbound U.S. SO between Prairie City Road and Folsom Boulevard 
(Freeway Segment 16). 

so 

Implementation 
Responsibility 

Project applicant; City 
of Folsom Public 
Works Department 
and Sacramento 
County Department of 
Transportation 

Project applicant; City 
of Folsom Public 
Works Department 
and Sacramento 
County Department of 
Transportation 

Project applicant; City 
of Folsom Public 
Works Department 
and Sacramento 
County Department of 
Transportation 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring liming Verification 
Agency 

Before project build City of Folsom 
out. A phasing analysis Public Works 
should be performed to Department and 
determine during which Sacramento 
project phase the County 
improvement should be Department of 
built. Transportation 

Before project build City of Folsom 
out. A phasing analysis Public Works 
should be performed Department and 
prior to approval of the Sacramento 
first subdivision map to County 
determine during which Department of 
project phase the Transportation 
improvement should be 
built, 

Before project build City of Folsom 
out. A phasing analysis Public Works 
should be performed Department and 
prior to approval of the Sacramento 
first subdivision map to County 
determine during which Department of 
project phase the Transportation 
improvement should be 
built. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 480

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mltigalion 
Implementation Monitoring 

Number Mitigation Measures llming Verification 
/Source) Responsibility Agerq 

3A.15-1v Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Project applicant; City Before project build City of Rancho 
(FPASP Westbound U.S. 50 between Hazel Avenue and Sunrise Boulevard (Freeway of Rancho Cardova out. A phasing analysis Cordova 
EIR/EIS) Segment 18). Ta ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable Department of Public should be performed Department of 

LOS between Hazel Avenue and Sunrise Boulevard, an auxiliary lane must be Works and prior to approval of the Public Works 
constructed. This improvement was recommended in the Traffic Operations Sacramento County first subdivision map ta and Sacramento 
Analysis Report far the U.S. SO Auxiliary Lane Project, and included in the Department of determine during which County 
proposed Rancho Cardova Parkway interchange project. T ranspartatian project phase the Department of 

Improvements ta this freeway segment must be implemented by Cal trans. improvement should be Transportation 

The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements built. 

ta the agency responsible far improvements, based an a program 
established by that agency ta reduce the impacts to Westbound U.S. 50 
between Hazel Avenue and Sunrise Boulevard (Freeway Segment 18). 

3A.15-1w Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Project applicant; City Before project build City of Folsom 
(FPASP U.S. SO Eastbound/Folsom Boulevard Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 4). To of Folsom Public out. A phasing analysis Public Works 
EIR/EIS) ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Folsom Works Department should be performed Department and 

Boulevard merge, an auxiliary lane from the Folsom Boulevard merge to the and Sacramento prior to approval of the Sacramento 
Prairie City Road diverge must be constructed. This improvement was County Department of first subdivision map to County 
recommended in the Traffic Operations Analysis Report far the U.S. 50 Transportation determine during which Department of 
Auxiliary Lane Project. This improvement is included in the proposed 50 project phase the Transportation 
Corridor Mobility Fee Program. The applicant shall pay its proportionate improvement should be 
share of funding of improvements to the agency responsible for built. 
improvements, based on a program established by that agency to reduce 
the impacts to the U.S. SO Eastbound/Folsom Boulevard Ramp Merge 
(Freeway Merge 4). 

3A.15-1x Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Project applicant; City Before project build City of Folsom 
(FPASP U.S. SO Eastbound/Prairie City Road Diverge (Freeway Diverge 5). To ensure of Folsom Public out. A phasing analysis Public Works 
EIR/EIS) that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Prairie City Works Department should be performed Department and 

Road off-ramp diverge, an auxiliary lane from the Folsom Boulevard merge and Sacramento prior ta approval of the Sacramento 
must be constructed. This improvement was recommended in the Traffic County Department of first subdivision map to County 
Operations Analysis Report far the U.S. 50 Auxiliary Lane Project. This Transportation determine during which Department of 
auxiliary lane improvement is included in the proposed 50 Corridor Mobility project phase the Transportation 
Fee Program The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvement should be 
improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate built. 
and reliable mechanism paid far by applicant, ta reduce the impacts to the 
U.S. 50 Eastbound/Prairie City Road diverge (Freeway Diverge 5). 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 51 

Page 481

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measures 
ISoorce) 

3A.15-1y Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on 
(FPASP U.S. 50 Eastbound/Prairie City Road Direct Merge (Freeway Merge 6). To 
EIR/EIS) ensure that Eastbound US. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Prairie 

City Road onramp direct merge, an auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell Street -
Scott Road diverge must be constructed. This auxiliary lane improvement is 
included in the proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee Program. The applicant 
shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be 
determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism 
paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the U,S, SO Eastbound/Prairie 
City Road direct merge (Freeway Merge 6). 

3A.15-1z Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on 
(FPASP U.S. 50 Eastbound/Prairie City Road Flyover On-Ramp to Oak Avenue 
EIR/EIS) Parkway Off-Ramp Weave (Freeway Weave 8). To ensure that Eastbound 

U,5 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Prairie City Road flyover on-
ramp to Oak Avenue Parkway off-ramp weave, an improvement acceptable 
to Cal trans should be implemented to eliminate the unacceptable weaving 
conditions. Such an improvement may involve a "braided ramp". 

The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, 
as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable 
mechanism paid for by applicant. to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 
Eastbound / Prairie City Road flyover on-ramp to Oak Avenue Parkway off-
ramp weave (Freeway Weave 8) 

3A.15-1aa Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on 
(FPASP U.S. 50 Eastbound/Oak Avenue Parkway Loop Merge (Freeway Merge 9). To 
EIR/EIS) ensure that Eastbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Oak 

Avenue Parkway loop merge, an auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell Street -
Scott Road diverge must be constructed. This auxiliary lane improvement is 
included in the proposed SO Corridor Mobility Fee Program. The applicant 
shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be 
determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism 
paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the U.S. SO Eastbound/ Oak 
Avenue Parkway loop merge (Freeway Merge 9). 

3A.15-1dd Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. SO 
(FPASP Westbound/Empire Ranch Road Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 23). To 
EIR/EIS) ensure that Westbound U,S, SO operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound 

Empire Ranch Road loop on ramp should start the westbound auxiliary lane that 
ends at the East Bidwell Street- Scott Road off ramp. The slip on ramp from 

52 

Implementation 
Respons1bility 

Project applicant; City 
of Folsom Public 
Works Department 

Project applicant; City 
of Folsom Public 
Works Department 

Project applicant; City 
of Folsom Public 
Works Department 

Project applicant; City 
of Folsom Public 
Works Department 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring 
Timing Verification 

~ 

Before project build City of Folsom 
out. A phasing analysis Public Works 
should be performed Department 
prior to approval of the 
first subdivision map to 
determine during which 
project phase the 
improvement should be 
buil t. 

Before project build City of Folsom 
out. A phasing analysis Public Works 
should be performed Department 
prior to approval of the 
first subdivision map to 
determine during which 
project phase the 
improvement should be 
built. 

Before project build City of Folsom 
out. A phasing analysis Public Works 
should be performed Department 
prior to approval of the 
first subdivision map to 
determine during which 
project phase the 
improvement should be 
built. 

Before project build City of Folsom 
out. A phasing analysis Public Works 
should be performed Department 
prior to approval of the 
first subdivision map to 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 482

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Implementation Monitoring 

Number Mitigation Measures TIiling Verification 
ISou!ceJ 

Responsibility Agency 

southbound Empire Ranch Road would merge into this extended auxiliary lane, determine during which 
Improvements to this freeway segment must be implemented by Caltrans. The project phase the 
applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may improvement should be 
be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism built. 
paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the US 50 Westbound/Empire 
Ranch Road loop ramp merge (Freeway Merge 23). 

3A.15•1ee Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 50 Project applicant; City Before project build City of Folsom 
(FPASP Westbound/Oak Avenue Parkway Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 29). To of Folsom Public out. A phasing analysis Public Works 
EIR/EIS) ensure that Westbound U.S. SO operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound Works Department should be performed Department 

Oak Avenue Parkway loop on ramp should start the westbound auxiliary lane prior to approval of the 
that ends at the Prairie City Road off ramp. The slip on ramp from southbound first subdivision map to 
Oak Avenue Parkway would merge into this extended auxiliary lane. determine during which 
Improvements to this freeway segment must be implemented by Caltrans. The project phase the 
applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may improvement should be 
be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism built. 
paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound/Oak 
Avenue Parkway loop ramp merge (Freeway Merge 29). 

3A.1S·1ff Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Project applicant; City Before project build City of Folsom 
(FPASP U.S. SO Westbound/Prairie City Road Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge of Folsom Public out. A phasing analysis Public Works 
EIR/EIS) 32). To ensure that Westbound U.S. SO operates at an acceptable LOS at the Works Department should be performed Department and 

Prairie City Road loop ramp merge, an auxiliary lane to the Folsom and Sacramento prior to approval of the Sacramento 
Boulevard off ramp diverge must be constructed, This auxiliary lane County Department of first subdivision map to County 
improvement is included in the proposed SO Corridor Mobility Fee Program. Transportation determine during which Department of 
The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, project phase the Transportation 
as may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable improvement should be 
mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 built 
Westbound/Prairie City Road Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 32). 

3A.1S-1gg Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. Project applicant; City Before project build City of Folsom 
(FPASP 50 Westbound/Prairie City Road Direct Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 33). To of Folsom Public out. A phasing analysis Public Works 
EIR/EIS) ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Prairie Works Department should be performed Department and 

City Road direct ramp merge, an auxiliary lane to the Folsom Boulevard off and Sacramento prior to approval of the Sacramento 
ramp diverge must be constructed. This auxiliary lane improvement is County Department of first subdivision map to County 
included in the proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee Program. The applicant Transportation determine during which Department of 
shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be project phase the Transportation 
determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism improvement should be 
paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 built. 
Westbound/Prairie City Road direct ramp merge (Freeway Merge 33). 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 53 

Page 483

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Number M"rtigation Measures 
!Source) 

3A.15-1hh Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on U.S. 
(FPASP 50 Eastbound/Folsom Boulevard Diverge (Freeway Diverge 34). To ensure that 
EIR/EIS) Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the Folsom Boulevard 

Diverge, an auxiliary lane from the Prairie City Road loop ramp merge must be 
constructed . Improvements to this freeway segment must be implemented by 
Caltrans. This auxiliary lane improvement is included in the proposed 50 
Corridor Mobility Fee Program. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share 
of funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other 
appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the 
impacts to the U.S. 50 Eastbound / Folsom Boulevard diverge (Freeway 
Diverge 34). 

3A.15-1ii Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on 
(FPASP U.S. SO Westbound/Hazel Avenue Direct Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 38). 
EIR/EIS) To ensure that Westbound U.S. 50 operates at an acceptable LOS at the 

Hazel Avenue direct ramp merge, an auxiliary lane to the Sunrise Boulevard 
off ramp diverge must be constructed. This auxiliary lane improvement is 
included in the proposed 50 Corridor Mobility Fee Program. The applicant 
shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency 
responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that 
agency to reduce the impacts to the U.S. 50 Westbound/Hazel Avenue 
direct ramp merge (Freeway Merge 38). 

3A.15-2a Develop Commercial Support Services and Mixed-use Development 
(FPASP Concurrent with Housing Development, and Develop and Provide Options 
EIR/EIS) for Alternative Transportation Modes. The project applicant(s) for any 

particular discretionary development application including commercial or 
mixed-use development along with residential uses shall develop 
commercial and mixed-use development concurrent with housing 
development, to the extent feasible in light of market realities and other 
considerations, to internalize vehicle trips. Pedestrian and bicycle facilities 
shall be implemented to the satisfaction of the City Public Works 
Department. To further minimize impacts from the increased demand on 
area roadways and intersections, the project applicant(s) for any particular 
discretionary development application involving schools or commercial 
centers shall develop and implement safe and secure bicycle parking to 
promote alternative transportation uses and reduce the volume of single-
occupancy vehicles using area roadways and intersections. The project 
applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development application shall 
participate in capital improvements and operatinQ funds for transit service 

54 

Implementation 
Responsibility 

Project applicant; City 
of Folsom Public 
Works Department 
and Sacramento 
County Department of 
Transportation 

Project applicant; 
Sacramento County 
Department of 
Transportation and 
City of Rancho 
Cordova Department 
of Public Works 

Project applicant; City 
of Folsom; Regional 
Transit 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring 
liming Verification 

Agency 

Before project build City of Folsom 
out. A phasing analysis Public Works 
should be performed Department and 
prior to approval of the Sacramento 
first subdivision map to County 
determine during which Department of 
project phase the Transportation 
improvement should be 
buil t. 

Before project build Sacramento 
out. A phasing analysis County 
should be performed Department of 
prior to approval of the Transportation 
first subdivision map to and City of 
determine during which Rancho Cordova 
project phase the Department of 
improvement should be Public Works 
built. 

Before approval of City of Folsom 
improvement plans for Public Works 
all project phases any Department 
particular discretionary 
development 
application that 
includes residential and 
commercial or mixed-
use development, As a 
condition of project 
approval and/or as a 
condition of the 
development 
agreement for all 
project phases. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 484

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Implementation Monitoring 

Number Mitigation Measures liming Verification 
/Sourml Responsibility Agency 

to increase the percent of travel by transit. The project's fair-share 
participation and the associated timing of the improvements and service 
shall be identified in the project conditions of approval and/or the project's 
development agreement. Improvements and service shall be coordinated, as 
necessary, with Folsom Stage Lines and Sacramento RT. 

3A.15-2b Participate in the City's Transportation System Management Fee Program. Project applicant; City Concurrent with City of Folsom 
(FPASP The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development of Folsom construction for all Public Works 
EIR/EIS) application shall pay an appropriate amount into the City's existing project phases, Department 

Transportation System Management Fee Program to reduce the number of 
single-occupant automobile travel on area roadways and intersections. 

3A.15-2c Participate with the 50 Corridor Transportation Management Association. Project applicant; 50 Concurrent with City of Folsom 
(FPASP The project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary development Corridor construction for all Public Works 
EIR/EIS) application shall join and participate with the 50 Corridor Transportation Transportation project phases. Department 

Management Association to reduce the number of single-occupant Management 
automobile travel on area roadways and intersections. Association 

3A.15-3 Pay Full Cost of Identified Improvements that Are Not Funded by the City's Project applicant; City As a condition of City of Folsom 
(FPASP Fee Program. In accordance with Measure W, the project applicant(s) for any of Folsom project approval and/or Public Works 
EIR/EIS) particular discretionary development application shall provide fair-share as a condition of the Department 

contributions to the City's transportation impact fee program to fully fund development 
improvements only required because of the Specific Plan. agreement for all 

project phases. 

3A.15-4a The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of Project applicant; City Before project build City of Folsom 
(FPASP Improvements to the Sibley Street/Blue Ravine Road Intersection (Folsom of Folsom Public out. A phasing analysis Public Works 
EIR/EIS) Intersection 2). To ensure that the Sibley StreeVBlue Ravine Road intersection Works Department should be performed Department 

operates at a LOS D with less than the Cumulative No Project delay, the prior to approval of the 
northbound approach must be reconfigured to consist of two left-turn lane, first subdivision map to 
two through lanes, and one dedicated right-turn lane, The applicant shall pay determine during which 
its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be determined by project phase the 
a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by improvement should be 
applicant, to reduce the impacts to the Sibley StreeVBlue Ravine Road built. 
intersection (Folsom Intersection 2), 

3A.15-4b The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of Project applicant; City Before project build City of Folsom 
(FPASP Improvements to the Oak Avenue Parkway/East Bidwell Street Intersection of Folsom Public out A phasing analysis Public Works 
EIR/EIS) (Folsom Intersection 6). To ensure that the Oak Avenue Parkway/East Bidwell Works Department should be performed Department 

Street intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the eastbound (East prior to approval of the 
Bidwell Street) approach must be reconfigured to consist of two left-turn first subdivision map to 
lanes, four throuah lanes and a riaht-turn lane, and the westbound (East determine during which 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 55 

Page 485

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measures 
/Source) 

Bidwell Street) approach must be reconfigured to consist of two left turn 
lanes, four through lanes, and a right-turn lane. It is against the City of 
Folsom policy to have eight lane roads because of the impacts to non 
motorized traffic and adjacent development; therefore, this improvement is 
infeasible 

3A.15-4c The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of 
(FPASP Improvements to the East Bidwell Street/College Street lnter5ection (Folsom 
EIR/EIS) Intersection 7). To ensure that the East Bidwell Street/College Street 

intersection operates at acceptable LOS C or better, the westbound 
approach must be reconfigured to consist of one left-tum lane, one left-
through lane, and two dedicated right-turn lanes. The applicant shall pay its 
proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be determined by 
a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by 
applicant, to reduce the impacts to the East Bidwell Street/Nesmith Court 
intersection (Folsom Intersection 7). 

3A.15-4d The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of 
(FPASP Improvements to the East Bidwell Street/Iron Point Road Intersection 
EIR/EIS) (Folsom Intersection 21). To ensure that the East Bidwell Street /Iron Point 

Road intersection operates at an acceptable LOS, the northbound approach 
must be reconfigured to consist of two left-turn lanes, four through lanes 
and a right-turn lane, and the southbound approach must be reconfigured 
to consist of two left-turn lanes, four through lanes and a right-turn lane. It 
is against the City of Folsom policy to have eight lane roads because of the 
impacts to non motorized traffic and adjacent development; therefore, this 
improvement is infeasible, 

3A.15-4e The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of 
(FPASP Improvements to the Serpa Way/ Iron Point Road Intersection (Folsom 
EIR/EIS) Intersection 23). To improve LOS at the Serpa Way/ Iron Point Road 

intersection, the northbound approaches must be restriped to consist of one 
left-turn lane, one shared left-through lanes, and one right-turn lane. The 
applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as 
may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable 
mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the Serpa 
Way/Iron Point Road Intersection (Folsom Intersection 23). 

S6 

lmplementatton 
Responsiblllty 

Project applicant; City 
of Folsom Public 
Works Department 

Project applicant; City 
of Folsom Public 
Works Department 

Project applicant; City 
of Folsom Public 
Works Department 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring 
liming 

~ 
Verification 

project phase the 
improvement should be 
built. 

Before project build City of Folsom 
out. A phasing analysis Public Works 
should be performed Department 
prior to approval of the 
first subdivision map to 
determine during which 
project phase the 
improvement should be 
built. 

Before project build City of Folsom 
out. A phasing analysis Public Works 
should be performed Department 
prior to approval of the 
first subdivision map to 
determine during which 
project phase the 
improvement should be 
built. 

Before project build City of Folsom 
out. A phasing analysis Public Works 
should be performed Department 
prior to approval of the 
first subdivision map to 
determine during which 
project phase the 
improvement should be 
built. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 486

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Implementation Monitoring 

Number Mitigation Measures Timing Verification 
/SoutD!l 

Responsibility Agency 

3A.15-4f The Applicant Shall Pay a Fair Share to Fund the Construction of Project applicant; City Before project build City of Folsom 
{FPASP Improvements to the Empire Ranch Road/Iron Point Road Intersection of Folsom Public out. A phasing analysis Public Works 
EIR/EIS) {Folsom Intersection 24). To ensure that the Empire Ranch Road/ Iron Point Works Department should be performed Department 

Road intersection operates at a LOS Dor better, all of the following prior to approval of the 
improvements are required: The eastbound approach must be reconfigured first subdivision map to 
to consist of one left-turn lane, two through lanes, and a right-turn lane, The determine during which 
westbound approach must be reconfigured to consist of two left-turn lanes, project phase the 
one through lane, and a through-right lane. The northbound approach must improvement should be 
be reconfigured to consist of two left-turn lanes, three through lanes, and a built. 
right-turn lane. The southbound approach must be reconfigured to consist 
of two left-turn lanes, three through lanes, and a right-turn lane. The 
applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as 
may be determined by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable 
mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts to the Empire 
Ranch Road/ Iron Point Road Intersection Before project build out. A 
phasing analysis should be performed prior to approval of the first 
subdivision map to determine during which project phase the improvement 
should be built. (Folsom Intersection 24). 

3A.15-4g The Applicant Shall Fund and Construct Improvements to the Oak Avenue Project applicant; City Before project build City of Folsom 
{FPASP Parkway/lEaston Valley Parkway Intersection {Folsom Intersection 33). To of Folsom Public out. A phasing analysis Public Works 
EIR/EIS) ensure that the Oak Avenue Parkway/Easton Valley Parkway intersection Works Department should be performed Department 

operates at an acceptable LOS the southbound approach must be prior to approval of the 
reconfigured to consist of two left-turn lanes, two through lanes, and two first subdivision map to 
right-turn lanes. The applicant shall fund and construct these improvements. determine during which 

project phase the 
improvement should be 
buil t. 

3A.15-4i Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the Sacramento County Before project build Sacramento 
{FPASP Grant Line Road/White Rock Road Intersection {Sacramento County Department of out. A phasing analysis County 
EIR/EIS) Intersection 3). To ensure that the Grant Line Road/White Rock Road Transportation. should be performed Department of 

intersection operates at an acceptable LOS E or better this intersection prior to approval of the Transportation. 
should be replaced by some type of grade separated intersection or first subdivision map to 
interchange. Improvements to this intersection are identified in the determine during which 
Sacramento County's Proposed General Plan. Implementation of these project phase the 
improvements would assist in reducing traffic impacts on this intersection by improvement should be 
providing acceptable operation. Intersection improvements must be built. 
implemented by Sacramento County. The applicant shall pay its 
proportionate share of fundinq of improvements to the aqency responsible 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 57 

Page 487

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measures 
(SolJrce) 

for improvements, based on a program established by that agency to 
reduce the impacts to the Grant Line Road/White Rock Road Intersection 
(Sacramento County Intersection 3), 

3A.15-4j Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on 
(FPASP Grant Line Road between White Rock Road and Kiefer Boulevard 
EIR/EIS) (Sacramento County Roadway Segments 5-7). To improve operation on 

Grant Line Road between White Rock Road and Kiefer Boulevard, this 
roadway segment must be widened to six lanes. This improvement is 
proposed in the Sacramento County and the City of Rancho Cordova 
General Plans; however, it is not in the 2035 MTP. Improvements to this 
roadway segment must be implemented by Sacramento County and the 
City of Rancho Cordova. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of 
funding of improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, 
based on a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to 
Grant Line Road between White Rock Road and Kiefer Boulevard 
(Sacramento County Roadway Segments 5-7) The identified improvement 
would more than offset the impacts specifically related to the Folsom South 
of U.S. 50 project on this roadway segment. 

3A.15-4k Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on 
(FPASP Grant Line Road between Kiefer Boulevard and Jackson Highway 
EIR/EIS) (Sacramento County Roadway Segment 8). To improve operation on Grant 

Line Road between Kiefer Boulevard Jackson Highway, this roadway 
segment could be widened to six lanes. This improvement is proposed in 
the Sacramento County and the City of Rancho Cordova General Plans; 
however, it is not in the 2035 MTP. Improvements to this roadway segment 
must be implemented by Sacramento County and the City of Rancho 
Cordova. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of 
improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a 
program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to Grant Line 
Road between Kiefer Boulevard and Jackson Highway (Sacramento County 
Roadway Segment 8). The identified improvement would more than offset 
the impacts specifically related to the Folsom South of U.S. 50 project on this 
roadway segment. 

3A15-41 Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on 
(FPASP Hazel Avenue between Curragh Downs Drive and U.S. 50 Westbound 
EIR/EIS) Ramps (Sacramento County Roadway Segments 12-13). To improve 

operation on Hazel Avenue between Curragh Downs Drive and the U.S. 50 
westbound ramps, this roadway seament could be widened to eiaht lanes. 

58 

Implementation 
Responsibility 

Sacramento County 
Department of 
Transportation. 

Sacramento County 
Department of 
Transportation. 

Sacramento County 
Department of 
Transportation. 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring 
Timing 

Agency 
Verification 

Before project build Sacramento 
out A phasing analysis County 
should be performed Department of 
priorto approval a/the Transportation. 
first subdivision map to 
determine during which 
project phase the 
improvement should be 
built. 

Before project build Sacramento 
out. A phasing analysis County 
should be performed Department of 
prior to approval of the Transportation. 
first subdivision map to 
determine during which 
project phase the 
improvement should be 
built. 

Before project build Sacramento 
out. A phasing analysis County 
should be performed Department of 
prior to approval of the Transportation 
first subdivision map to 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 488

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Implementation Monltor1ng Number Mitigation Measures llming Verification 

.!Sou.reel Responsibility Agerq 

This improvement is inconsistent with Sacramento County's general plan determine during which 
because the county's policy requires a maximum roadway cross section of project phase the 
six lanes. Analysis shown later indicates that improvements at the impacted improvement should be 
intersection in this segment can be mitigated (see Mitigation Measure built. 
3A 15-4q), Improvements to impacted intersections on this segment will 
improve operations on this roadway segment and, therefore; mitigate this 
segment impact, The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding 
of improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a 
program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to Hazel Avenue 
between Curragh Downs Drive and U.S. 50 Westbound Ramps (Sacramento 
County Roadway Segments 12-13). 

3A.15-4m Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Sacramento County Before project build Sacramento 
(FPASP White Rock Road between Grant Line Road and Prairie City Road Department of out. A phasing analysis County 
EIR/EIS) (Sacramento County Roadway Segment 22). To improve operation on White Transportation, should be performed Department of 

Rock Road between Grant Line Road and Prairie City Road, this roadway prior to approval of the Transportation. 
segment must be widened to six lanes. This improvement is included in the first subdivision map to 
2035 MTP but is not included in the Sacramento County General Plan. determine during which 
Improvements to this roadway segment must be implemented by project phase the 
Sacramento County. The identified improvement would more than offset the improvement should be 
impacts specifically related to the Folsom South of U.S. SO project on this built. 
roadway segment. However, because of other development in the region 
that would substantially increase traffic levels, this roadway segment would 
continue to operate at an unacceptable LOS F even with the capacity 
improvements identified to mitigate Folsom South of U.S. SO impacts. The 
applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to 
the agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established 
by that agency to reduce the impacts to White Rock Road between Grant 
Line Road and Prairie City Road (Sacramento County Roadway Segment 22). 

3A.15-4n Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Sacramento County Before project build Sacramento 
(FPASP White Rock Road between Empire Ranch Road and Carson Crossing Road Department of out A phasing analysis County 
EIR/EIS) (Sacramento County Roadway Segment 28). To improve operation on White Transportation. should be performed Department of 

Rock Road between Empire Ranch Road and Carson Crossing Road, this prior to approval of the Transportation. 
roadway segment must be widened to six lanes. Improvements to this first subdivision map to 
roadway segment must be implemented by Sacramento County. The applicant determine during which 
shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to the agency project phase the 
responsible for improvements, based on a program established by that agency improvement should be 
to reduce the impacts to White Rock Road between Empire Ranch Road and built. 
Carson Crossing Road (Sacramento County Roadway Segment 28). 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 59 

Page 489

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measures 
/Source) 

3A.15-4o Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the 
(FPASP White Rock Road/Carson Crossing Road Intersection (El Dorado County 1). 
EIR/EIS) To ensure that the White Rock Road/Carson Crossing Road intersection 

operates at an acceptable LOS, the eastbound right turn lane must be 
converted into a separate free right turn lane, or double right. 
Improvements to this intersection must be implemented by El Dorado 
County. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of 
improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, based on a 
program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to the White 
Rock Road/Carson Crossing Road Intersection (El Dorado County 1). 

3A.15-4p Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the 
(FPASP Hazel Avenue/U.S. 50 Westbound Ramps Intersection (Caltrans Intersection 
EIR/EIS) 1). To ensure that the Hazel Avenue/U.S. SO westbound ramps intersection 

operates at an acceptable LOS, the westbound approach must be 
reconfigured to consist of one dedicated left turn lane, one shared left 
through lane and three dedicated right-turn lanes, Improvements to this 
intersection must be implemented by Caltrans and Sacramento County. The 
applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to 
the agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established 
by that agency to reduce the impacts to the Hazel Avenue/U.S, SO 
Westbound Ramps Intersection (Caltrans Intersection 1). 

3A.15-4q Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on 
(FPASP Eastbound US SO between Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard (Freeway 
EIR/EIS) Segment 1). To ensure that Eastbound US SO operates at an acceptable LOS 

between Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard, an additional eastbound 
lane could be constructed. This improvement is not consistent with the 
Concept Facility in Caltrans State Route 50 Corridor System Management 
Plan; therefore, it is not likely to be implemented by Caltrans by 2030, 
Construction of the Capitol South East Connector, including widening White 
Rock Road and Grant Line Road to six lanes with limited access, could divert 
some traffic from U S SO and partially mitigate the project's impact. The 
applicant shall pay its proportionate share of funding of improvements to 
the agency responsible for improvements, based on a program established 
by that agency to reduce the impacts to Eastbound U.S. SO between 
Zinfandel Drive and Sunrise Boulevard (Freeway Segment 1). 

60 

Implementation 
Responsibility 

Sacramento County 
Department of 
Transportation. 

Sacramento County 
Department of 
Transportation. 

Sacramento County 
Department of 
Transportation, 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring 
Timing Vet1ficatlon 

'9r'Cf 

Before project build Sacramento 
out. A phasing analysis County 
should be performed Department of 
prior to approval of the Transportation. 
first subdivision map to 
determine during which 
project phase the 
improvement should be 
built 

Before project build Sacramento 
out. A phasing analysis County 
should be performed Department of 
prior to approval of the Transportation. 
first subdivision map to 
determine during which 
project phase the 
improvement should be 
built 

Before project build Sacramento 
out A phasing analysis County 
should be performed Department of 
prior to approval of the Transportation. 
first subdivision map to 
determine during which 
project phase the 
improvement should be 
built. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 490

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Implementation Monitoring 

Number Mitigation Measures llming Verification 
&li,rcel Responsibility NJe!lC'J 

3A.15-4r Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Sacramento County Before project build Sacramento 
(FPASP Eastbound US 50 between Rancho Cordova Parkway and Hazel Avenue Department of out. A phasing analysis County 
EIR/EIS) (Freeway Segment 3). To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an Transportation. should be performed Department of 

acceptable LOS between Rancho Cordova Parkway and Hazel Avenue, an prior to approval of the Transportation. 
additional eastbound lane could be constructed. This improvement is not first subdivision map to 
consistent with the Concept Facility in Caltrans State Route 50 Corridor determine during which 
System Management Plan; therefore, it is not likely to be implemented by project phase the 
Caltrans by 2030. Construction of the Capitol South East Connector, improvement should be 
including widening White Rock Road and Grant Line Road to six lanes with built. 
limited access, could divert some traffic off of U.S. 50 and partially mitigate 
the project's impact. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of 
funding of improvements to the agency responsible for improvements, 
based on a program established by that agency to reduce the impacts to 
Eastbound U.S. 50 between Rancho Cordova Parkway and Hazel Avenue 
(Freeway Segment 3). 

3A.15-4s Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Sacramento County Before project build Sacramento 
(FPASP Eastbound US 50 between Folsom Boulevard and Prairie City Road (Freeway Department of out. A phasing analysis County 
EIR/EIS) Segment 5). To ensure that Eastbound US SO operates at an acceptable LOS Transportation. should be performed Department of 

between Folsom Boulevard and Prairie City Road, the eastbound auxiliary prior to approval of the Transportation. 
lane should be converted to a mixed flow lane that extends to and drops at first subdivision map to 
the Oak Avenue Parkway off ramp (see mitigation measure 3A.1 5-4t). determine during which 
Improvements to this freeway segment must be implemented by Caltrans, project phase the 
This improvement is not consistent with the Concept Facility in Caltrans improvement should be 
State Route SO Corridor System Management Plan; therefore, it is not likely built. 
to be implemented by Caltrans by 2030. Construction of the Capitol South 
East Connector, including widening White Rock Road and Grant Line Road 
to six lanes with limited access, could divert some traffic off of U 5, SO and 
partially mitigate the project's impact. The applicant shall pay its 
proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be determined by 
a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by 
applicant, to reduce the impacts to Eastbound U.S. SO between Folsom 
Boulevard and Prairie City Road (Freeway Segment 5). 

3A.15-4t Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Sacramento County Before project build Sacramento 
(FPASP Eastbound US SO between Prairie City Road and Oak Avenue Parkway Department of out, A phasing analysis County 
EIR/EIS) (Freeway Segment 6). To ensure that Eastbound US SO operates at an Transportation. should be performed Department of 

acceptable LOS between Prairie City Road and Oak Avenue Parkway, the prior to approval of the Transportation. 
northbound Prairie City Road slip on ramp should merge with the first subdivision map to 
eastbound auxiliarv lane that extends to and drops at the Oak Avenue determine durinQ which 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 61 

Page 491

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measures 
5oorcel 

Parkway off ramp (see Mitigation Measures 3A.15-4u, v and w), and the 
southbound Prairie City Road flyover on ramp should be braided over the 
Oak Avenue Parkway off ramp and start an extended full auxiliary lane to 
the East Bidwell Street- Scott Road off ramp, Improvements to this freeway 
segment must be implemented by Caltrans. The applicant shall pay its 
proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be determined by 
a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by 
applicant, to reduce the impacts to Eastbound U.S SO between Prairie City 
Road and Oak Avenue Parkway (Freeway Segment 6). 

3A.15-4u Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the 
(FPASP U.S. SO Eastbound/ Prairie City Road Slip Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 6). 
EIR/EIS) To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at an acceptable LOS, the 

northbound Prairie City Road slip on ramp should start the eastbound 
auxiliary lane that extends to and drops at the Oak Avenue Parkway off 
ramp (see mitigation measure 3A.15-4u, w and x), and the southbound 
Prairie City Road Hyover on ramp should be braided over the Oak Avenue 
Parkway off ramp and start an extended full auxiliary lane to the East Bidwell 
Street - Scott Road off ramp. Improvements to this freeway segment must 
be implemented by Caltrans. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share 
of funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or 
other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce 
the impacts to the U.S. 50 Eastbound / Prairie City Road slip ramp merge 
(Freeway Merge 6). 

3A.15-4v Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on the U.S. 
(FPASP 50 Eastbound/ Prairie City Road Flyover On Ramp to Oak Avenue Parkway Off 
EIR/EIS) Ramp We;r.ie (Freeway Weave 7). To ensure that Eastbound US 50 operates at 

an acceptable LOS, the northbound Prairie City Road slip on ramp should start 
the eastbound auxiliary lane that extends to and drops at the Oak Avenue 
Parkway off ramp (see mitigation measure 3A.15-4u, v and x), and the 
southbound Prairie City Road flyover on ramp should be braided over the Oak 
Avenue Parkway off ramp and start an extended full auxiliary lane to the East 
Bidwell Street - Scott Road off ramp. Improvements to this freeway segment 
must be implemented by Caltrans. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share 
of funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other 
appropriate and rel iable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the impacts 
to the U.S. SO Eastbound / Prairie Crty Road Flyover On Ramp to Oak Avenue 
Parkway Off Ramp Weave (Freeway Weave 7). 

62 

Implementation 
Responsibility 

Sacramento County 
Department of 
Transportation. 

Sacramento County 
Department of 
Transportation. 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring llming Verification 
~ 

project phase the 
improvement should be 
built. 

Before project build Sacramento 
out. A phasing analysis County 
should be performed Department of 
prior to approval of the Transportation. 
first subdivision map to 
determine during which 
project phase the 
improvement should be 
built. 

Before project build Sacramento 
out. A phasing analysis County 
should be performed Department of 
prior to approval of the Transportation. 
first subdivision map to 
determine during which 
project phase the 
improvement should be 
built 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 492

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mltfgadon 
Implementation Monitoring Number Mitigation Measures Timng Veffflcation 

(Source) Responsibility AJJency 

3A.15-4w Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Sacramento County Before project build Sacramento 
(FPASP U.S. 50 Eastbound / Oak Avenue Parkway Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Department of out. A phasing analysis County 
EIR/EIS) Merge 8). To ensure that Eastbound US SO operates at an acceptable LOS, Transportation. should be performed Department of 

the southbound Oak Avenue Parkway loop on ramp should merge with the prior to approval of the Transportation. 
eastbound auxiliary lane that starts at the southbound Prairie City Road first subdivision map to 
braided flyover on ramp and ends at the East Bidwell Street - Scott Road off determine during which 
ramp (see mitigation measure 3A.1S-4u, v and w). Improvements to this project phase the 
freeway segment must be implemented by Caltrans. The applicant shall pay improvement should be 
its proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be determined built. 
by a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by 
applicant, to reduce the impacts to U.S. SO Eastbound / Oak Avenue 
Parkway Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge 8). 

3A.15-4x Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Sacramento County Before project build Sacramento 
(FPASP U.S. 50 Westbound / Empire Ranch Road Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Department of out. A phasing analysis County 
EIR/EIS) Merge 27). To ensure that Westbound US SO operates at an acceptable LOS, Transportation. should be performed Department of 

the northbound Empire Ranch Road loop on ramp should start the prior to approval of the Transportation. 
westbound auxiliary lane that ends at the East Bidwell Street - Scott Road first subdivision map to 
off ramp. The slip on ramp from southbound Empire Ranch Road slip ramp determine during which 
would merge into this extended auxiliary lane, Improvements to this freeway project phase the 
segment must be implemented by Caltrans. The applicant shall pay its improvement should be 
proportionate share of funding of improvements, as may be determined by built. 
a nexus study or other appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by 
applicant, to reduce the impacts to the U.S. SO Westbound / Empire Ranch 
Road loop ramp merge (Freeway Merge 27). 

3A.15-4y Participate in Fair Share Funding of Improvements to Reduce Impacts on Sacramento County Before project build Sacramento 
(FPASP U.S. 50 Westbound/ Prairie City Road Loop Ramp Merge (Freeway Merge Department of out. A phasing analysis County 
EIR/EIS) 35). To ensure that Westbound US 50 operates at an acceptable LOS, the Transportation should be performed Department of 

northbound Prairie City Road loop on ramp should start the westbound prior to approval of the Transportation. 
auxiliary lane that continues beyond the Folsom Boulevard off ramp. The slip first subdivision map to 
on ramp from southbound Prairie City Road slip ramp would merge into this determine during which 
extended auxiliary lane. Improvements to this freeway segment must be project phase the 
implemented by Caltrans. The applicant shall pay its proportionate share of improvement should be 
funding of improvements, as may be determined by a nexus study or other built. 
appropriate and reliable mechanism paid for by applicant, to reduce the 
impacts to the U.S. SO Westbound / Prairie City Road Loop Ramp Merge 
(Freeway Merge 35). 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 63 

Page 493

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measures 
1<:nt1rcel 

4.17-1 Signage Prohibiting U-Turns on Alder Creek Parkway. Prior to building 
(Addendum) occupancy, the project applicant shall ensure the following have been 

implemented. 

• Post "No U-Turn" signs (CA MUTCD R3-4 or similar) along Alder Creek 
Parkway at Quail Meadow Way, facing the eastbound approach, in the 
median on the near and far side of the intersection, prohibiting 
eastbound U-turns. 

• Post "No U-Turn" signs (CA MUTCD R3-4 or similar) along Alder Creek 
Parkway at Placerville Road, facing the eastbound approach, in the 
median on the near and far side of the intersection, prohibiting 
eastbound LI-turns. 

.. 
Utilities and Service Systems 

3A.16-1 Submit Proof of Adequate On- and Off-Site Wastewater Conveyance 
(FPASP Facilities and Implement On- and Off-Site Infrastructure Service Systems or 
EIR/EIS) Ensure That Adequate Financing Is Secured. Before the approval of the final 

map and issuance of building permits for all project phases, the project 
applicant(s) of all project phases shall submit proof to the City of Folsom 
that an adequate wastewater conveyance system either has been 
constructed or is ensured through payment of the City's facil ities 
augmentation fee as described under the Folsom Municipal Code Title 3, 
Chapter 3.40, "Facilities Augmentation Fee - Folsom South Area Facilities 
Plan; or other sureties to the City's satisfaction. Both on-site wastewater 
conveyance infrastructure and off-site force main sufficient to provide 
adequate service to the project shall be in place for the amount of 
development identified in the tentative map before approval of the final 
map and issuance of building permits for all project phases, or their 
financing shall be ensured to the satisfaction of the City. 

3A.16-3 Demonstrate Adequate SRWTP Wastewater Treatment Capacity. The project 
(FPASP applicant(s) of all project phases shall demonstrate adequate capacity at the 
EIR/EIS) SRWTP for new wastewater flows generated by the project This shall involve 

preparing a tentative map-level study and paying connection and capacity 
fees as identified by SRCSD. Approval of the final map and issuance of 
building permits for al l project phases shall not be granted until the City 
verifies adequate SRWTP capacity is available for the amount of 
development identified in the tentative map. 

64 

lmplemenlalion 
Responsibility 

Project applicant 

Project applicant 

Project applicant 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring 
Timing Verification 

l,qerq 

Concurrent with City of Folsom 
construction of Community 
circulation Development 
improvements. Department 

Before approval of final City of Folsom 
maps and issuance of Community 
building permits for any Development 
project phases. Department and 

City of Folsom 
Public Works 
Department 

Before approval of final City of Folsom 
maps and issuance of Community 
building permits for any Development 
project phases. Department and 

City of Folsom 
Public Works 
Department 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 494

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

M'rtlgatlon 
Implementation Monitoring Number Mltigallon Measures 11ming Verification 

rsn.,rceJ ResponsibHity Agency 

3A.18-1 Submit Proof of Surface Water Supply Availability. a, Prior to approval of any Project applicant Before approval of final City of Folsom 
(FPASP small-lot tentative subdivision map subject to Government Code Section maps and issuance of Community 
EIR/EIS) 66473.7 (SB 221), the City shall comply with that statute. Prior to approval of building permits for any Development 

any small-lot tentative subdivision map for a proposed residential project project phases. Department and 
not subject to that statute, the City need not comply with Section 66473.7, City of Folsom 
or formally consult with any public water system that would provide water to Public Works 
the affected area; nevertheless, the City shall make a factual showing or Department 
impose conditions similar to those required by Section 66473 7 to ensure an 
adequate water supply for development authorized by the map. b. Prior to 
recordation of each final subdivision map, or prior to City approval of any 
similar project-specific discretionary approval or entitlement required for 
nonresidential uses, the project applicant(s) of that project phase or activity 
shall demonstrate the availability of a reliable and sufficient water supply 
from a public water system for the amount of development that would be 
authorized by the final subdivision map or project-specific discretionary 
nonresidential approval or entitlement Such a demonstration shall consist 
of information showing that both existing sources are available or needed 
supplies and improvements will be in place prior to occupancy. 

3A.18-2a Submit Proof of Adequate Off-Site Water Conveyance Facilities and Project applicant Before approval of final City of Folsom 
(FPASP Implement Off-Site Infrastructure Service System or Ensure That Adequate maps and issuance of Community 
EIR/EIS) Financing Is Secured. Before the approval of the final subdivision map and building permits for any Development 

issuance of building permits for all project phases, the project applicant(s) of project phases. Department and 
any particular discretionary development application shall submit proof to City of Folsom 
the City of Folsom that an adequate off-site water conveyance system either Public Works 
has been constructed or is ensured or other sureties to the City's Department 
satisfaction The off-site water conveyance infrastructure sufficient to 
provide adequate service to the project shall be in place for the amount of 
development identified in the tentative map before approval of the final 
subdivision map and issuance of building permits for all project phases, or 
their financing shall be ensured to the satisfaction of the City. A certificate of 
occupancy shall not be issued for any building within the SPA until the water 
conveyance infrastructure sufficient to serve such building has been 
constructed and is in place_ 

3A.18-2b Demonstrate Adequate Off-Site Water Treatment Capacity Of the Off-Site Project applicant Before approval of final City of Folsom 
(FPASP Water Treatment Plant Option is Selected). If an off-site water treatment maps and issuance of Community 
EIR/EIS) plant (WTP) alternative is selected (as opposed to the on-site WTP building permits for any Development 

alternative), the project applicant(s) for any particular discretionary project phases. Department and 
develooment acolication shall demonstrate adequate capacity at the off-site City of Folsom 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 65 

Page 495

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measures 
!Source) 

WTP. This shall involve preparing a tentative map-level study and paying 
connection and capacity fees as determined by the City. Approval of the 
final project map shall not be granted until the City verifies adequate water 
treatment capacity either is available or is certain to be available when 
needed for the amount of development identified in the tentative map 
before approval of the final map and issuance of building permits for all 
project phases. A certificate of occupancy shall not be issued for any 
building within the SPA until the water treatment capacity sufficient to serve 
such building has been constructed and is in place. 

.. 
Add1nonal Measures 

Cumulative Implement East Sacramento Regional Aggregate Mining Truck Management 
Mitigation Plan or Other Measures to Reduce Exposure of Sensitive Recepto~ to 
Measure Operational Emissions of Toxic Air Contaminants from Quarry Truck Traffic. 
AIR-Hand The City of Folsom is a participant in the development of an East 

(FPASP Sacramento Regional Aggregate Mining Truck Management Plan (TMP), a 

EIR/EIS) cooperative effort led by the County of Sacramento, with the input of the 
City of Folsom, the City of Rancho Cordova and other interested parties, 
including representatives of quarry project applicants. When the County 
Board of Supervisors approved entitlements for the Teichert quarry project 
in November 2010, it also adopted conditions of approval and a 
development agreement that requires Teichert's participation in, and fair 
share funding of, a TMP to implement roadway capacity and safety 
improvements required to improve the compatibility of truck traffic from the 
quarries with the future urban development in the Folsom Specific Plan area 
and other jurisdictions that will be affected by quarry truck traffic. The 
development agreement adopted by the County for the Teichert project 
imposes limits on the amounts of annual aggregate sales from Teichert's 
facility until a TMP is adopted, The City of Folsom does not have direct 
jurisdiction over the Teichert, DeSilva Gates, or Walltown quarry project 
applicants as these projects are located within the unincorporated portion of 
the County. The County, as the agency with the primary authority over the 
quarries, has indicated that it intends to prepare an environmental analysis 
in accordance with CEQA prior to adoption of a TMP. The City's authority to 
control the activities of the quarry trucks includes restrictions or other 
actions, such as the approval and implementation of specialized road 
improvements to accommodate quarry truck traffic, that would be 
applicable within the City's jurisdictional boundaries. For the foregoing 
reasons, the Citv of Folsom considers itself a "responsible aoencv" (as that 

66 

Implementation 
Responsibility 

Quarry project 
applicant(s) and the 
City of Folsom. 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring 
liming Verification 

Agency 

Public Works 
Department 

Prior to approval of first City of Folsom 
tentative map or Community 
discretionary approval Development 
within SPA that would Department 
place sensitive 
receptors along 
roadways that quarry 
trucks would 
reasonably use to 
access U.S Highway SO 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 496

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Implementation Monitoring Number Mitigation Measures Timing Verification 

l'in<,rcel Responsibility illJericy 

term is defined at State CEQA Guidelines, CCR Section 15381), in that it has 
some discretionary power over some elements of a future TMP, if such TMP 
calls for improvements or other activities on roadways within the jurisdiction 
of the City, In a responsible agency role, the City would follow the process 
specified in the CEQA Guidelines for consideration and approval of the 
environmental analysis prepared by the County for a TMP after such 
documentation is prepared and adopted by the County. (State CEQA 
Guidelines, CCR Section 1 S096.) 

Because no final project description for a TMP has been developed as of the 
completion of this FEIR/FEIS, the City would have to speculate as to those 
portions of a TMP that might be proposed for implementation within its 
jurisdiction, or the impacts that could arise from the implementation of as-
yet uncertain components. Accordingly, formulation of the precise means of 
mitigating the potential cumulative air quality impacts pursuant to the TMP 
is not currently feasible or practical However, as the preferred, feasible, and 
intended mitigation strategy to address the cumulative impacts of quarry 
truck traffic through the SPA, the City shall implement, or cause to be 
implemented those portions of the TMP (as described above) that are within 
its authority to control. In implementing the TMP, the City shall ensure that 
the TMP or traffic measures imposed by the City within the SPA reduce the 
risk of cancer to sensitive receptors along routes within the SPA from toxic 
air contaminant emissions to no more than 296 in one million (SMAQMD 
2009. March. Recommended Protocol for Evaluating the Location of 
Sensitive Land Uses Adjacent to Major Roadways, Version 2.2:7), or such 
different threshold of significance mandated by SMAQMD or ARB at the 
time, if any. With this mitigation, the cumulative air quality impacts from 
truck toxic air contaminants would be less than significant. 

As an alternative (or in addition) to implementing the TMP within the SPA, 
the following measures could (and should) be voluntarily implemented by 
the quarry project applicant(s) (Teichert, DeSilva Gates, and Granite 
[Walltown]) to help ensure exposure of sensitive receptors to TACs 
generated by quarry truck traffic to the 296-in-one-million threshold of 
significance identified above. The City encourages implementation of the 
following measures: 

• The quarry project applicant(s) should meet with the City of Folsom to 
discuss mitigation strategies, implementation, and cost. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 67 

Page 497

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Number Mrtigation Measures 
&,urcel 

• A site-specific, project-level screening analysis and/or Health Risk 
Assessment (HRA) should be conducted by the City of Folsom and 
funded by the truck applicant(s) for all proposed sensitive receptors (e.g., 
residences, schools) in the SPA that would be located along the sides of 
roadway segments that are identified in Table 4-4 as being potentially 
significant under any of the analyzed scenarios. Each project-level 
analysis shall be performed according to the standards set forth by 
SMAQMD for the purpose of disclosure to the public and decision 
makers. The project-level analysis shall account for the location of the 
receptors relative to the roadway, their distance from the roadway, the 
projected future traffic volume for the year 2030 (including the 
proportion of diesel trucks), and emission rates representative of the 
vehicle fleet for the year when the sensitive land uses would first become 
operational and/or occupied. If the incremental increase in cancer risk 
determined by in the HRA exceeds 296 in one million (or a different 
threshold of significance recommended by SMAQMD or ARB at the time, 
if any), then project design mitigation should be employed, which may 
include the following: 

• Increase the setback distance between the roadway and affected 
receptor. If this mitigation measure is determined by the City of 
Folsom to be necessary, based on the results of the HRA, the quarry 
truck applicant(s) should pay the Folsom South of U.S. 50 Specific Plan 
project applicant(s) and the City of Folsom a fee that shall serve as 
compensation for lost development profit and lost City tax revenues, 
all as determined by the parties. Said mitigation fee shall be 
determined in consultation with the quarry project applicant(s), the 
Folsom South of U.S. 50 Specific Plan project applicant(s), and the City 
of Folsom. No quarry trucks shall be allowed to pass on any roadway 
segment immediately adjacent to or within the SPA until said 
mitigation fees are paid . 

• Implement tiered tree planting of fine-needle species, such as 
redwood, along the near side of the roadway segments and, if 
feasible, along the roadway 500 feet in both directions of the initial 
planting (e.g., 500 feet north and south of a roadway that runs east-
west) to enhance the dispersion and filtration of mobile-source TACs 
associated with the adjacent roadway, These trees should be planted 
at a density such that a solid visual buffer is achieved after the trees 
reach maturitv. which breaks the line of siaht between U.S. SO and the 

68 

Implementation 
Timing 

Responsibility 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring Verification 
NJer'rcy 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 498

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Implementation Monitoring Number Mitigation Measures llming Verification 

ISourcel Responslblllty AIJency 
proposed homes. These trees should be planted before occupation of 
any affected sensitive land uses. This measure encourages the 
planting of these trees in advance of the construction of potentially 
affected receptors to allow the trees to become established and 
progress toward maturity. The life of these trees should be maintained 
through the duration of the quarry projects_ The planting, cost, and 
ongoing maintenance of these trees should be funded by the quarry 
project applicant(s). . To improve the indoor air quality at affected receptors, implement the 
following measures before the occupancy of the affected residences 
and schools: . equip all affected residences and school buildings developed in the 
SPA with High Efficiency Particle Arresting (HEPA) filter systems at all 
mechanical air intake points to the interior rooms; . use the heating, ventilation, and air conditioning (HVAC) systems to 
maintain all residential units under positive pressure at all times; . locate air intake systems for HVAC as far away from roadway air 
pollution sources as possible; and . develop and implement an ongoing education and maintenance plan 
about the filtration systems associated with HVAC for residences and 
schools, 

To the extent this indoor air quality mitigation would not already be 
implemented as part of the Folsom South of U.S. SO Specific Plan project 
development, this mitigation should be paid for by the quarry project 
applicant(s) before any quarry trucks are allowed to pass on any roadway 
that is within 400 feet of any residence or school within the SPA. 

Cumulative Implement East Sacramento Regional Aggregate Mining Truck Management Quarry project Prior to approval of first City of Folsom 
Mitigation Plan or Other Measures to Reduce Exposure of Sensitive Receptors to applicant(s) and the tentative map or Community 
Measure Operational Noise from Quarry Truck Traffic. The City of Folsom is a City of Folsom. discretionary approval Development 
NOISE-1- participant in the development of an East Sacramento Regional Aggregate within SPA that would Department 
Land Mining Truck Management Plan (TMP), a cooperative effort led by the place sensitive 

(FPASP County of Sacramento, with the input of the City of Folsom, the City of receptors along 

EIR/EIS) Rancho Cordova and other interested parties, including representatives of roadways that quarry 
quarry project applicants. When the County Board of Supervisors approved trucks would 
entitlements for the Teichert quarry project in November 2010, it also reasonably use to 
adopted conditions of approval and a development agreement that requires access U.S. SO. 
Teichert's participation in, and fair share fundinq of, a TMP to implement 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 69 

Page 499

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measures 
/t;nun:e) 

roadway capacity and safety improvements required to improve the 
compatibility of truck traffic from the quarries with the future urban 
development in the SPA and other jurisdictions that will be affected by 
quarry truck traffic. The development agreement adopted by the County for 
the Teichert project imposes limits on the amounts of annual aggregate 
sales from Teichert's facility until a TMP is adopted. The City of Folsom does 
not have direct jurisdiction over the Teichert, DeSilva Gates, or Walltown 
quarry project applicants as these projects are located within the 
unincorporated portion of the County. The County, as the agency with the 
primary authority over the quarries, has indicated that it intends to prepare 
an environmental analysis in accordance with CEQA prior to adoption of a 
TMP. The City's authority to control the activities of the quarry trucks 
includes restrictions or other actions, such as the approval and 
implementation of specialized road improvements to accommodate quarry 
truck traffic, that would be applicable within the City's jurisdictional 
boundaries. For the foregoing reasons, the City of Folsom considers itself a 
"responsible agency" (as that term is defined at State CEQA Guidelines, CCR 
Section 15381), in that it has some discretionary power over some elements 
of a future TMP, if such TMP calls for improvements or other activities on 
roadways within the jurisdiction of the City In a responsible agency role, the 
City would follow the process specified in the CEQA Guidelines for 
consideration and approval of the environmental analysis prepared by the 
County for a TMP after such documentation is prepared and adopted by the 
County (State CEQA Guidelines, CCR Section 15096.) 

Because no final project description for a TMP has been developed as of the 
completion of this FEIR/FEIS, the City would have to speculate as to those 
portions of a TMP that might be proposed for implementation within its 
jurisdiction, or the impacts that could arise from the of as yet uncertain 
components. Accordingly, formulation of the precise means of mitigating 
the potential cumulative noise impacts pursuant to the TMP is not currently 
feasible or practical. However, as the preferred, feasible, and intended 
mitigation strategy to address the cumulative impacts of quarry truck traffic 
through the SPA, the City shall implement, or cause to be implemented 
those portions of the TMP (as described above) that are within its authority 
to control. In implementing the TMP, the City shall ensure that the TMP or 
traffic measures imposed by the City within the SPA reduce the traffic noise 
exposure to sensitive receptors along routes within the SPA so as to ensure 
that sensitive receptors are not exposed to interior noise levels in excess of 

70 

Implementation 
Timing Responsibility 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring 
Verification 

Agency 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 500

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Implementation Monitoring Number Mitigation Measures Timing Verification 

CSourtel Responsibility Agerq 

45 dBA, or increases in interior noise levels of 3 dBA or more, whichever is 
more restrictive. With this mitigation, the cumulative noise impacts from 
truck traffic would be less than significant. 

As an alternative (or in addition) to implementing the TMP within the SPA, 
the following measures could (and should) be voluntarily implemented by 
the quarry project applicant(s) (Teichert, DeSilva Gates, and Granite 
[Walltown]) to help ensure interior noise levels for sensitive receptors to 
noise generated by quarry truck traffic would not exceed 45 dBA or increase 
of 3 dBA over existing conditions, as identified above. The City encourages 
implementation of the following measures: 

• The quarry project applicant(s) should meet with the City of Folsom to 
discuss mitigation strategies, implementation, and cost. 

• A site-specific, project-level screening analysis should be conducted by 
the City of Folsom and funded by the quarry truck applicant(s) for all 
proposed sensitive receptors (e.g., residences, schools) in the SPA that 
would be located along the sides of roadway segments that are 
identified in Table 4-B as being potentially significant under any of the 
analyzed scenarios. The analysis should be conducted using an 
approved three dimensional traffic noise modeling program (i.e., TNM 
or SoundPlan). Each project-level analysis should be performed 
according to the standards set forth by the City of Folsom for the 
purpose of disclosure to the public and decision makers. The project-
level analysis should account for the location of the receptors relative 
to the roadway, their distance from the roadway, and the projected 
future traffic volume for the year 2030 (including the percentage of 
heavy trucks). If the incremental increase in traffic noise levels are 
determined to exceed the threshold of significance recommended by 
the City of Folsom, then design mitigation should be employed, which 
may include the following: 

• Model the benefits of soundwalls (berm/wall combination) along the 
quarry truck hauling roadways and affected receptors not to exceed a 
total height of eight feet (two-foot berm and six-foot concrete mason 
wall). If this mitigation measure is determined by the City of Folsom to 
be inadequate, additional three dimensional traffic noise modeling 
should be conducted with the inclusion of rubberized asphalt at the 
expense of the quarry truck applicant(s). No quarry trucks should be 
allowed to pass on any roadway seqment immediately adjacent to or 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 71 

Page 501

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measures 
(Source) 

within the SPA until said mitigation has been agreed upon by the City 
of Folsom and fees for construction of said mitigation are paid by the 
quarry truck applicant(s). 

• Implement the installation of rubberized asphalt (quiet pavement) on 
roadway segments adjacent to sensitive receptors that carry quarry 
trucks if soundwalls do not provide adequate reduction of traffic noise 
levels. The inclusion of rubberized asphalt would provide an additional 
3 to 5 dB of traffic noise reduction. The cost of construction using 
rubberized asphalt should be borne by the quarry truck applicant(s) 
Said mitigation fee should be determined in consultation with the 
quarry project applicant(s), the Folsom South of U.W. 50 Specific Plan 
project applicant(s), and the City of Folsom, No quarry trucks should be 
allowed to pass on any roadway segment immediately adjacent to or 
within the SPA until said mitigation fees are paid. 

• To improve the indoor noise levels at affected receptors, implement 
the following measures before the occupancy of the affected 
residences and schools: 

• Conduct an interior noise analysis once detailed construction plans of 
residences adjacent to affected roadways are available to determine 
the required window package at second and third floor receptors to 
achieve the interior noise level standard of 45 dB Ldn without quarry 
trucks. 

• Determine the interior quarry truck traffic noise level increases at 
second and third floor receptors adjacent to affected roadways 
compared to no quarry truck conditions. Window package upgrades 
are expected to be necessary due to the traffic noise level increases 
caused by quarry trucks along affected roadways. Quarry truck 
applicant(s) should pay for the cost of window package upgrades 
(increased sound transmission class rated windows) required to 
achieve the interior noise level standard of 45 dB Ldn with the 
inclusion of quarry truck traffic, 

To the extent this noise mitigation would not already be implemented 
as part of the Folsom South of U.W. 50 Specific Plan project 
development, this mitigation should be paid for by the quarry project 
applicant(s) before any quarry trucks are allowed to pass on any 
roadway that is within 400 feet of any residence or school within the 
SPA. 

72 

Implementation liming 
Responsibility 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring 
Verification 

Agency 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 502

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Implementation Monitoring 

Number Mitigation Measures 
Responsibility 

Tlmlng 
~ 

Verification 
ISource) 

N/A Coordinate and Fund the Backbone Infrastructure and Off-Site Water Facility Project applicant Before approval of final City of Folsom 
Alternative. The project applicant shall participate in the FPASP owners' maps and issuance of Community 
group and shall fund and contribute their fair share to the backbone building permits for any Development 
infrastructure and off-site water facility alternative improvements. The project phase, the Department and 
project applicant shall coordinate with owners' group to implement the project applicant shall City of Folsom 
following measures detailed in the Folsom South of U.S. Highway 50 demonstrate to the Public Works 
Backbone Infrastructure Mitigated Negative Declaration (December 2014): City's satisfaction the Department 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure 1-1: Design above ground pump fair share contribution 

station and storage tank facilities to reduce visual impacts. towards 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure 1-2: Develop and implement a 
implementation of 
Backbone Infrastructure 

landscaping plan for pump station and storage tank faci lit ies to reduce 
and Off-Site Water 

visual impacts. 
Facility improvements 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure 111-1: Prepare and Implement NOX and associated required 
Reduction Plan mitigation as identified 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure 111-2: Pay Off-site Mitigation Fee to in the Folsom South of 
SMAQMD to off-set NOX Emissions Generated by Construction. U.S. Highway 50 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure 111 -4: Implement A Site Backbone Infrastructure 

Investigation to Determine the Presence of NOA and, if necessary, Mitigated Negative 

Prepare and Implement an Asbestos Dust Control Plan. Declaration (December 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-1: Conduct Special-Status Plant 
2014) or the Revised 

Surveys; Implement Avoidance and Mitigation Measures or 
Proposed Off-Site Water 
Facility Alternative 

Compensatory Mitigation 
Addendum to the 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-2: Implement Conditions of the FPASP EIR/ EIS 
Biologica l Opinion (BO) for Federally Listed Vernal Pool Invertebrates. (approved December 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-3: Implement Conditions of the 2012); as applicable. 
Biological Opinion for Impacts on Valley Elderberry Longhorn Beetle. 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-4: Western Spadefoot Toad 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-S: Western Pond Turtle 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-6(a): Swainson's Hawk Nesting 
Habitat 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-6(b): Swainson's Hawk Foraging 
Habitat 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-7: Tricolored Blackbird 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-8: Nesting Raptors 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 73 

Page 503

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation 
Number Mitigation Measures 
(Source\ 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-9: Nesting Special Status Birds 
and Migratory Birds 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-10: Special-Status Bats 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-12: Implement Section 1602 
Master Streambed Alteration Agreement 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-13: Conduct Surveys to Identify 
and Map Valley Needlegrass Grassland; Implement Avoidance and 
Minimization Measures or Compensatory Mitigation, if necessary 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-14: Secure Amended Clean 
Water Act Section 404 Permit and Section 401 Permit and Implement 
All Permit Conditions; Ensure No Net Loss of Functions of Wetlands, 
Other Waters of the U.S., and Waters of the State 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-15: Conduct Tree Survey, 
Prepare and Implement an Oak Woodland Mitigation Plan, Replace 
Native Oak Trees Removed, and Implement Measures to Avoid and 
Minimize Indirect Impacts on Oak Trees and Oak Woodland Habitat 
Retained On-Site, 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IV-11: American Badger 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure V-1: Comply with the applicable 
procedures in the FAPA and implementation of applicable historic 
property treatment plans 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure V-2: Conduct Construction 
Personnel Education, Conduct On-Site Monitoring if Required, Stop 
Work if Cultural Resources are Discovered, Assess the Significance of 
the Find, and Perform Treatment or Avoidance as Required. 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure V-3: Suspend Ground-Disturbing 
Activities if Human Remains are Encountered and Comply with 
California Health and Safety Code Procedures. 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure Vl -1: Prepare Site-Specific 
Geotechnical Report per CBC Requirements and Implement 
Appropriate Recommendations. 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure Vl-3: Monitor Earthwork during 
Earthmoving Activities. 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure VI-S(a): Prepare and Implement 
the Appropriate Grading and Erosion Control Plan, 

74 

Implementation 
llming 

Responsibility 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring 
Verification 

~ 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 504

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mitigation Implementation Monitoring Number Mitigation Measures llrring Verification 
/Source) 

Responsibility ~ 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure VI-S(b): Prepare and Implement 
the appropriate Grading and Erosion Control Plan for the detention 
basin West of Prairie City Road. 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure IX-1: Acquire Appropriate 
Regulatory Permits and Prepare and Implement SWPPP and BMPs. 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure VII· 1: Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure XVI· 1: Prepare and Implement a 
Construction Traffic Control Plan. 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure 111-3: North of U.S. Highway 50 
Water Improvements 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure V-4 North of U.S. Highway SO 
Water Improvements 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure Vl-2 North of U.S. Highway 50 
Water Improvements 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure Vl-4 North of U.S. Highway SO 
Water Improvements 

• Backbone MND Mitigation Measure Xll-1 North of U.S. Highway SO 
Water Improvements 

In addition, the project applicant shall coordinate with owners' group to 
implement the following measures detailed in the Revised Proposed Oft-Site 
Water Facility Alternative Addendum to the FPASP EIR/EIS (approved 
December 11, 2012): 

• 3B 1-2a: Enhance Exterior Appearance of Structural Facilities. 

• 3B.1-2b: Prepare Landscaping Plan. 

• 3B.1-3a: Conformance to Construction Lighting Standards. 

• 3B.1-3b: Prepare and Submit a Lighting Master Plan. 

• 3B.2-1a: Develop and Implement a Construction NOX Reduction Plan. 

• 3B.2-1c: Implement Fugitive Dust Control Measures and a Particulate 
Matter Monitoring Program during Construction. 

• 3B.2-3a: Cite Pump Siting Buffers Away from Sensitive Receptors. 

• 3B.2-3b: Conduct Project-Level DPM Screening and Implement 
Measures to Reduce Annual DPM to Acceptable Concentrations. 

• 3B.4-1a: Implement GHG Reduction Measures during Construction. 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 75 

Page 505

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

Mllfgation 
Number Mllfgatfon Measures 
~,rce) 

• 3B.4-1b Prepare and Implement an Off-site Water Facilities Climate 
Action Plan. 

• 3A.5-1a: Comply with the Programmatic Agreement. 

• 3A.5-1b: Perform an Inventory and Evaluation of Cultural Resources for 
the California Register of Historic Places, Minimize or Avoid Damage or 
Destruction, and Perform Treatment Where Damage or Destruction 
Cannot be Avoided. 

• 3A5-2: Conduct Construction Personnel Education, Conduct On-Site 
Monitoring if Required, Stop Work if Cultural Resources are 
Discovered, Assess the Significance of the Find, and Perform Treatment 
or Avoidance as Required. 

• 3A.5-3: Suspend Ground-Disturbing Activities if Human Remains are 
Encountered and Comply with California Health and Safety Code 
Procedures. 

• 3B.7-1a: Prepare Geotechnical Report(s) for the Revised Proposed Off-
site Water Facilities and Implement Required Measures. 

• 3B 7-1b: Incorporate Pipeline Failure Contingency Measures Into Final 
Pipeline Design. 

• 3B.7-4: Implement Corrosion Protection Measures. 

• 3B.7-5: Conduct Construction Personnel Education, Stop Work if 
Paleontological Resources are Discovered, Assess the Significance of 
the Find, and Prepare and Implement a Recovery Plan as Required, 

• 3B.8-1a: Transport, Store, and Handle Construction-Related Hazardous 
Materials in Compliance with Relevant Regulations and Guidelines 

• 3B.8-1b: Prepare and Implement a Hazardous Materials Management 
Plan. 

• 3B.8-Sa: Conduct Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment for Selecied 
Alignment. 

• 3B.8-Sb: Develop and Implement a Remediation Plan. 

• 3B.8-7a: Keep Construction Area Clear of Combustible Materials. 

• 3B.8-7b: Provide Accessible Fire Suppression Equipment. 

• 3B,9-1a: Acquire Appropriate Regulatory Permits and Prepare and 
Implement SWPPP and BMPs. 

76 

Implementation 
liming Resp011Slbility 

Ascent Environmental 

Monitoring 
Verification 

fvJency 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 

Page 506

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Ascent Environmental Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 

t.ttigatlon 
Implementation Monitoring Number Mitigation Measures 
Responslbmty Turing Agency Verification 

/Source} 

• 3B.9-1b: Properly Dispose of Hydrostatic Test Water and Construction 
Dewatering in Accordance with the Central Valley Regional Water 
Quality Control Board. 

• 3B,9-3a: Prepare and Implement Drainage Plan(s) for Structural 
Facilities. 

• 3B 9-3b: Ensure the Provision of Sufficient Outlet Protection and On-
site Containment. 

• 3B.11-1a: Limit Construction Hours. 

• 3B.11-lb: Minimize Noise from Construction Equipment and Staging. 

• 3B.11-1c: Maximize the Use of Noise Barriers. 

• 3B.11-ld: Prohibit Non-Essential Noise Sources During Construction. 

• 3B.11-le: Monitor Construction Noise and Provide a Mechanism for 
Filing Noise Complaints. 

• 3B.11-3: Implement Operational Noise Minimization Measures, 

• 3B.12-1: Provide for Continued Recreational Access as Identified in 
Mitigation Measure 3.14-la. 

• 3B.15-la: Prepare Traffic Control Plan, 

• 3B.1 5-lb: Assess Pre-Off-site Water Facilities Roadway Conditions. 

• 3B.16-3a: Minimize Utility Conflicts by Implementing an Underground 
Services Alert. 

• 3B.1 6-3b: Coordinate with Utility Providers and Implement Appropriate 
Installation Methods to Minimize Potential Util ity Service Disruptions. 

• 3B.17-1a: Implement Construction Dewatering Best Management 
Practices. 

• 3B.17-1b: Implement a Dewatering Discharge Monitoring Program. 

• 3A.1B-1: Submit Proof of Surface Water Supply Availability. 

• 3A 18-2a: Submit Proof of Adequate Off-Site Water Conveyance 
Facilities and Implement Off-Site Infrastructure Service System or 
Ensure That Adequate Financing Is Secured, 

City of Folsom 
Alder Creek Apartments Project Environmental Review 77 

Page 507

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Attachment 20 

Summary of Amendments to the Folsom Plan Area 
Specific Plan, 2011-2020 

Page 508

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Summary of Amendments to the 
Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan, 2011-2020 

The FPASP, approved in 2011, is a development plan for over 3,500 acres of previously 
undeveloped land located south of Highway 50, north of White Rock Road, east of Prairie 
City Road, and adjacent to the Sacramento County/El Dorado County line in the 
southeastern portion of the City. 

The FPASP in its current form includes 11,461 residential units at various densities on 
approximately 1,622 acres; 320 acres designated for commercial and industrial use; +/-
275 acres designated for public/quasi-public uses, elementary/middle school/high 
schools, and community/neighborhood parks; and +/-1, 109 acres for open-space areas. 

Since FPASP adoption in 2011, the City Council has approved 7 amendments to the 
Specific Plan with land use and density refinements as summarized below. 

• In August 2014, the Folsom City Council approved an amendment to the FPASP 
(Resolution No. 9420) relative to the alignment and design guidelines for the future 
Capital Southeast Connector (White Rock Road). 

• On May 12, 2015, the Folsom City Council approved the Russell Ranch Specific Plan 
Amendment (Resolution No. 9566), the Final Environmental Impact Report 
(Resolution No. 9564) and a General Plan Amendment (Resolution No. 9566) for the 
Russell Ranch Project. The approved specific plan amendment (SPA) reduced the 
Plan Area residential area by approximately 17 .8 acres and 264 dwelling units and 
reduced the commercial, office park/industrial and mixed-use area by approximately 
59.5 acres and 0.65 million square feet of potential building area. 

• On September 22, 2015, the Folsom City Council approved the Westland/Eagle 
Specific Plan Amendment, an Amendment to the Folsom General Plan (Resolution 
No. 9655) and an Addendum to the Final Environmental Impact Report/Environment 
Impact Statement (Resolution No. 9654) for the Westland/Eagle project. The 
approved SPA increased the residential dwelling unit count by 889 units and 
decreased the amount of commercial, office park/industrial and mixed-use area by 
approximately 82.5 acres and 1.4 million square feet of potential building area. 

• On May 24. 2016, the Folsom City Council approved the Hillsborough Specific Plan 
Amendment (Resolution No. 9763), an Amendment to the Folsom General Plan 
(Resolution No. 9762), and an Addendum to the Final Environmental Impact 
Report/Environmental Impact Statement (Resolution No. 9761) for the Hillsborough 
Project. The approved SPA includes 394 additional housing units with about 65 
additional acres of residential uses, approximately 49 fewer acres of public/quasi
public uses, approximately 16 acres less open space, approximately 5 additional 
acres of park space, and approximately 4 fewer acres of community commercial land 

Page 509

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



uses. 

• On June 28, 2016, the Folsom City Council approved the Carr Trust Specific Plan 
Amendment and General Plan Amendment (Resolution No. 9789) and an Addendum 
to the Final Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Impact Statement 
(Resolution No. 9788) for the Carr Trust Project. The approved SPA decreased the 
residential dwelling unit count by 28 units by modifying the land use designation from 
medium low density residential to single-family high density residential. 

• On June 28, 2016, the Folsom City Council approved the Folsom Heights Specific 
Plan Amendment and an Amendment to the Folsom General Plan (Resolution No. 
9785) and an Addendum to the Final Environmental Impact Report/Environmental 
Impact Statement (Resolution No. 9784) for the Folsom Heights Project. The 
approved SPA did not change the number of dwelling units; however, the residential 
density was decreased, and the amount of general commercial was reduced by 23 
acres. 

• On June 28, 2016, the Folsom City Council approved the Broadstone Estates Specific 
Plan Amendment and an Amendment to the Folsom General Plan (Resolution No. 
9787) and an Addendum to the Final Environmental Impact Report/Environmental 
Impact Statement (Resolution No. 9786) for the Broadstone Estates Project. The 
approved SPA eliminated the industrial office and general commercial land uses (10.5 
acres and 13.3 acres, respectively), increased the single-family residential land use 
by approximately 21 acres and 71 additional dwelling units, and increased the open 
space area by 2. 7 acres. 

• On March 10, 2020, the Folsom City Council approved the Toll Brothers at Folsom 
Ranch Specific Plan Amendment and an Amendment to the Folsom General Plan 
(Resolution No. 10400) and an Addendum to the Final Environmental Impact 
Report/Environmental Impact Statement for the Toll Brothers at Folsom Ranch 
project Project. The approved SPA changed the land use designations for several 
planning sub-areas of the Specific Plan, generally to reduce the total number of 
residential units which would be built within the proposed Toll Brothers project and 
eliminated medium density development; changed the locations of planned uses in 
the Toll Brothers project; and moved some planned residential development (single
family and multi family) and planned public parks to other parts of the FPASP. The 
proposed amendment also changed the alignments of several internal roadways and 
trails, and the location and arrangement of open space and park areas. 

Page 510

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Attachment 21 

Folsom Ranch Central District Design Guidelines 

Page 511

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



FOLSOM RANCH, CENTRAL DISTRICT 

DESIGN GUIDELINES 
Addendum 

December I 2017 
Page 512

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



D SIG G IDELIN 

MULTI-FAMILY 

2 

Page 513

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



PURPOSE AND OBJECTIVE 

The intent of the Folsom Ranch Multi-Family guidelines is to establish parameters which apply to all multi-family 
land use categories, including Multi-Family Low Density (MLD), Multi-Family Medium Density (MMD) and 
Multi-Family High Density (MHD). The guidelines are intended to encourage creativity in solutions to specific 
design opportunities. 

ARCHITECTURAL PRINCIPLES 

The following principles have been identified to achieve the common goal of ensuring a high-quality and 
aesthetically cohesive environment throughout the Folsom Ranch Community. 

• Designs incorporating building types, orientation with site improvements, and circulation in a manner to 
cohesively blend into its existing and planned surroundings. 

• Designs highlighting community features for enhanced appearance, safety, convenience, and social 
interaction through circulation connectivity and siting of open space. 

• Designs supporting a high-quality of life with appropriate usable private and common areas. 

• Designs embodying high-quality design elements and project identity through variation in massing, 
articulation, heights, materials, styles, and creativity. 

3 

Page 514

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



BUILDING TYPES AND DENSITIES 

There are several recognized multifamily building types that range from attached or detached townhouse 
developments to stacked flats / townhouses with a podium garage. Each building type has specific traits and is 
looked at separately within these guidelines. 

DETACHED TOWNHOUSES 

Detached townhouses are units typically situated in a 
row separated by private open space between units. 
Units generally are more uniform in appearance than 
small lot detached homes and might include three
story units 

FEATURES: 

• Building design focus on individual unit 
identity and architectural interest 

• Typical built density: 8-12 units per acre 

• Front-loaded with the front door and garage 
facing the street or rear-loaded with garage 
facing the rear of the property or a private 
street 

• Side yards may provide usable private open 
space and the site may include additional 
common open space 

ATTACHED TOWNHOUSES 

Attached townhouses are units typically situated in a 
row of at least three or more units where there is no 
separation between units. Buildings of two attached 
units are duplexes, twins, or duets. These can be 
designed as either front- or rear-loaded. 

FEATURES: 

• Typical built density: between 14-25 units per 
acre 

• Generally uniform massing with 
individualized separate unit entrances 

• Front-loaded with the front door and garage 
facing the street, or "rear-loaded" with the 
garage facing the "rear" of the property, or 
private street 

• Greater efficiency in layout without side yards 
provides for greater density opportunities and 
larger common open space than private spaces 

• Private open space for each unit is provided by 
a front patio or balcony 

• Building design focus on overall building 
appearance and massing 

• Units organized around "public" spaces and 
sites around common space amenities. 

5 

Page 515

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



STACKED FLATS WITH SURFACE 
PARKING 

Stacked Flats are units arranged on a single level of a 
building and surrounded by units either above or 
below each unit. 

FEATURES: 

• Typical built density: 20-30+ units per acre 

• Typically, 2-4 stories of single-level units 
stacked on top of each other 

• Individual unit access can be from either 
common interior corridor or by discrete 
exterior entrances 

• The design focus is on the whole building, less 
on individual units 

• Common open space is typically provided in 
open areas of courtyards or common ground 
area 

• Private open space is typically provided in the 
form of balconies 

TOWNHOUSES/ STACKED FLATS ABOVE 
PODIUM PARKING 

Townhouses or stacked flats are units built over a 
submerged or partially submerged parking garage or 
"podium," rather than with individual garages. 

FEATURES: 

• Typically, 3-4 stories or more in height above 
a parking podium (garage) 

• Typical built density of 30-60 units per acre 

• The design focus is on the entire building, not 
individual units 

• May or may not have additional surface 
parking 

• Urban in appearance due to height, mass, and 
scale 

• Common open space is typically provided, 
including private space balconies 

6 

Page 516

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



SITE PLANNING 

A multi-family residential development should unify the styles and character of the surrounding community. The 
location of these areas should be in walking distance to parks, commercial centers, and public facilities. 

• Residential developments should provide a variety 
of architectural styles complementary to each 
other to provide a diverse neighborhood 
atmosphere. 

• Building orientation and site layout to address 
pnvacy concerns. 

• A variety of one, two, and three-bedroom dwelling 
units should be provided to encourage a 
variety of product types. Units should be 
mixed throughout the development. 

• Units should front streets and common areas to 
increase visibility of public streets, parks, and 
open spaces within the neighborhood. 

• The design should consider compatibility with the 
surrounding neighborhood by mimicking 
existing architectural styles, massing, colors, 
and rhythm. 

• Acoustical and noise attenuation issues should be 
considered during the design process. 

7 

Page 517

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



SMALL AND MEDIUM SITES 

• Privacy: 

o Use building orientation and site layout to address privacy concerns 

o Buildings should be of a scale and have massing that is sensitive to adjacent properties 

• Open Space: 

o Buildings should define the edges of and face onto the common open space 

o Location should be clearly and easily accessible 

o Common open space should be consolidated in one location to allow for high usability and 
sustainability 

o Private spaces should be provided at side and rear yards 

• Circulation: 

o Guest parking may be difficult to provide on small sites with limited space; however, it should occur at 
the rear of the site 

o Shared vehicle and pedestrian circulation areas should utilize pavers for pedestrian ways traversing 
parking areas or alongside of vehicular circulation 

RECOMMENDED - Builditlgs that (oce open spaces define the 
edges of the open space. 

8 

Page 518

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



LARGE SITES 

• Connectivity: 

• Streets, auto courts, paseos and pedestrian ways 
should not only connect internally but also to 
adjacent streets in neighboring developments 

• Pedestrian and bike paths should be used where 
street connections to adjacent neighborhoods 
are challenged 

• Use paseos and pedestrian paths for internal 
connections. 

• Hierarchy of Streets: 

• Clear distinction in scale, landscape treatment, 
and orientation between public/private streets, 
auto courts and pedestrian paseos 

• Auto courts should be designed to act as 
secondary circulation to reduce service 
functions and garage access from public and 
private streets 

• Guest parking should be located throughout site 

• Building Frontage and Orientation: 

• Units should face streets, open spaces and 
internal private streets wherever possible 

• Building fronts should include porches and door 
facing streets 

• Open space: 

• Large open space should be the fundamental 
organizing element of the site plan 

• Common open space should be centralized and 
directly accessible to units. It should be linked 
to adjacent parks and paseos and paths where 
possible 

9 

Page 519

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



CIRCULATION BETWEEN NEIGHBORHOODS 

• Connect to surrounding neighborhoods with streets 

• Develop an overall connected network of streets and auto courts on larger sites 

• Anticipate future connections to adjacent parcels to provide for future opportunities 

• Include adequate emergency vehicle access 

• Connect neighborhoods with pedestrian and bicycle connections, especially where street connections are 
challenged due to site constraints 

• A void dead end street stubs 

10 

Page 520

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



ENTRY DRIVES 

• Easily identifiable and aesthetically pleasing entrances designed to complement the style of the project 
should be provided. 

• The principal vehicular access into a multi -family housing project should be through an entry drive rather 
than a parking drive. Colored, textured, and/or permeable paving treatments at entry drives are 
encouraged. 

• Driveway entries should align with existing or planned median openings and adjacent driveways. 

• The number of site access points should be minimized. 

CARS, BIKES AND PEOPLE 

• Connect the overall network of private streets, auto courts, and pedestrian walkways on larger sites. 

• Traffic calming techniques should be used throughout development sites. 

• Use color, texture, and landscape to reinforce purpose of the facility. 

• Private streets and access ways should be used to allow design flexibility and enhancement of vehicular and 
pedestrian facilities. 

• The principal vehicular access into a project should be through an entry drive rather than a drive for parking 

• Pedestrian and bike paths shall be used to connection nearby neighborhoods, schools, parks, commercial 
projects, and bicycle parking areas should be provided 

11 

Page 521

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



OPEN SPACE 

• Aggregate common open space to make a large 
usable area that serves as the central focus 

• Open space areas shall be well landscaped to create 
a visually appealing high quality open space 
with emphasis on privacy and green space 

• Common open space should be well defined by 
streets and buildings 

• Common open space should be centralized and 
directly accessible to units. It should link 
adjacent parks, paseos and paths 

• Small development sites may prioritize private 

spaces over common spaces 

• Define edges of open space with units, buildings, 
and walkways. Streets can also serve this 
function, but buildings are recommended 
wherever possible 

• Large and medium sites should have one central 
open space and other small diverse open space 

• Common open space should be designed to provide 
for both active and passive uses, not merely 
decorative space. 

12 

Page 522

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



PEDESTRIAN ACCESS AND PASEOS 

• Paseos should serve as the front or "face" of units when a front door on a street is not feasible 

• Paseos should be well-lit for pedestrians without adding glare to adjacent residences. 

• Connect paseos to form internal walkway networks within developments. 

GUEST PARKING 

• Parking requires adequate maneuvering areas for 
vehicle turnarounds. 

• Connect units to parking areas via walkways. 

• Guest parking may be located on private streets, in 
parallel or perpendicular (90 degree) parking 
spaces. 

• On deep narrow sites, guest parking should be 
located at the rear of the site. 

• Vehicular turnaround space may occur within the 
setback if an adequate landscape buffer 
between paved area and property line is 
maintained. 

• In larger developments, guest parking should be 
located in parallel, perpendicular, or angled 
spaces along private streets or dispersed 
within auto courts. 

• Provide sufficient and convenient guest parking 
appropriately dispersed on site. 

Landscape 
Buffer at 
Parking 

Guest 
Parking 

13 

Page 523

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



PARKING AREA SCREENING 

• Screening should be provided at the edge of all parking areas 

• A landscaping buffer should be provided between parking areas and public rights-of-way 

• A 36-inch to 42-inch high berm, headlight hedge, or masonry wall should be used to screen any parking at 
the street periphery. Breaks should be provided to allow pedestrian circulation. A combination of walls, 
berms, and landscape material is highly recommended. 

• Both sides of all perimeter walls or fences should be architecturally treated. Walls should be finished and 
designed to complement the surrounding development. Long expanses of fence or wall surfaces should be 
offset and architecturally designed to prevent monotony. 

BUILDING ORIENTATION RELATED TO PUBLIC SPACES 

• Orient buildings to face public/private streets and open space. 

• Include building entrances as primary building features opening to common open space or streets. 

• Use comer treatment and architectural detailing on narrow small sites where it is not possible for front 
facades of buildings to face a street. 

• Locate private uses and private space along private streets, side yards, and rear of properties where possible 

• Design upper floors of 3-story and taller buildings to avoid over-dominating the size of the open spaces, 
streets or alleys 

• Building fronts provide definitive edges to common open space, public and private streets, and paseos. 

• Building entrance features such as porches, stoops, front walkways, windows and front doors provide a 
public "face" and orientation to a building; these features on the public street side of the building provide a 
building face on the street. 

• Comer or end unit architectural treatment can include wrap- around porches and facade detailing in order for 
a building to face the public street, paseo, or open space. 

• Address numbers that are identifiable for each unit where buildings face the street, paseo, or open space 
provide an orientation feature to the public space or street 

14 

Page 524

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



ARCHITECTURAL GUIDELINES FOR MULTI-FAMILY 

The following styles can be used within Folsom Ranch, Central District: 

• Spanish Colonial • Early California Ranch 

• Monterey • American Traditional 

• Western Farmhouse • Agrarian Contemporary 

• Craftsman 

Additional architectural styles compatible with the intent of these guidelines may be added when it can be 
demonstrated to the Architectural Review Committee that they are regionally appropriate. 

15 

Page 525

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



MASSING 

• To create variety in the streetscape, roof forms shall vary within a block of buildings. 

• Large projects should be broken up into groups of structures of various heights. 

• Buildings designs should include a combination of the following techniques: 

• Where appropriate, the upper stories of multi-family buildings should be stepped back to reduce the scale of 
facades that face the street, courtyards, or open space areas 

• Structures with greater height should include additional setbacks and steps within the massing to create a 
transition in heights from adjacent properties and avoid dominating the character of the neighborhood. 

• Vertical elements such as towers may be used to accent horizontal massing and provide visual interest 

• Building scale should be reduced through the proper use of window patterns, structural bays, roof overhangs, 
wall materials, awnings, fixtures, and other details. 

• Architectural details and materials on lower walls that relate to human scale. Arches, trellises, or awnings 
should be utilized 

ROOF LINES AND MATERIALS 

• A variety of roof planes and accent details increase 
the visual quality and character of a building. 

• Varied roof pitches, porches, and overhangs provide 
visual interest and increase the architectural 
character of the dwelling unit. 

reflective glare and visual impacts. 

• Major roofs shall be designed in a straightforward 
way, to cover and highlight the primary 
masses of the buildings. 

• Gambrel and Mansard style roofs are not permitted. 
• Use of a variety of roof tiles and colors consistent 

with the architectural style is encouraged. 

• Roofing colors shall be earth tones to minimize 
• Flat roofs are permitted within context of 

architectural style. 

16 

Page 526

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Gara e and Accesso 

• The architectural style and character of garages and parking structures will be consistent with the house. 

• Garage doors are preferred to be perpendicular to the street or located at the rear of the lot. 

• Garage doors should be recessed into, rather than flush with, the exterior wall. 

• Detached garages and accessory structures should be designed as an integral part of the architecture of the 
project and should be similar in materials, color, and detail to the principal structures of a development. 

• Detached garages, carports, and accessory structures should incorporate roof slopes and materials similar to 
the principal structures of a development 

• Carport columns shall include architectural features and be a minimum of 24 inches wide at the base. The 
architectural treatment shall extend vertically for a minimum of 36 inches. 

Lighting 

• All lighting selections shall meet the dark sky recommendations 

• Light fixtures should be designed or selected to be architecturally compatible with the main structure or 
theme of the development. 

• Up lighting of building elements and trees should use the lowest wattage possible to minimize impacts to 
the night sky. Light sources for wall washing and tree lighting should be hidden. 

• Where landscaping is lit, low-voltage lighting should be used whenever possible to conserve energy. 
Energy efficient lamps and ballasts, controlled by photoelectric methods or timers, should be incorporated. 

• Walkways and paseos should be lit to ensure safe night time conditions. 

• Light poles should be designed with downward facing fixtures to eliminate light spill. 

• The height of a light pole should be appropriate in scale for the building or the complex and the 
surrounding area. 

17 

Page 527

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Attachment 21 

Planning Commission Staff Report 
Dated February 3, 2021 

Page 528

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Attachment 22 

City Council PowerPoint Presentation 

Page 529

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



.: •·• a, 

!F''.OL§D)1 

Alder Creek Apartments 
~~¾ General Plan Amendment, Specific Plan 

Amendment, Planned Development 
Permit, and Minor Administrative 

Modification 

Page 530

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



• 11,461 DU 

.. • Xl,965 Population 
• 6.8 dulac Average Denltty 

Project Site 

• 2.8m GSF Commercial 

\ 
\ 

\ 
~ 

, ___ ,..... _ 
_,..,NMll.211 
_____ , __ 
...,_...,,t.2015 
1Z1.a. ..... 1111ta.T.
_____ ,, __ 
-...C ~20S 
llldu~/ l'Jca, 
-lA.-ll'A 
-~21l•6 __ .,,.,...,.. ... 
~ 20! 
l95o,lolill _...,..,,. 
~ •• I 

a c:.rr.-w_, __ 
,._.,,.~ 201 
21411-

_.....,._ 
----2'. 20•• ."°1 ... .....,,no.,., ... 

_ ._ .. ,. 
__ 21_20,, 

... __ 1-__ 

~-21.20'6 ~,:,., _ ,911) -
Tllo ....... ,_....., 
_....__U016 
'11dlllillll ............ ~,-
~,lipf11, 21111 .,.,_ -~-~.,.,, , 1,20ir 
#J'l.,_~ 15.lll .. TOIII 
_____ 2, __ 

:..-l'-,,3. 21111 
"'5-. ..... , eo, .. , ... --~M-laT----•J.:ll)ll 

:•a.'loW 

Page 531

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



:i• ,0 

JF CD L § :0 Tu:I 

PROJECTSI E 

Page 532

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



: ..... o, 

• Alder Creek Apartment Community 
• 265-Unit Market-Rate Apartment Community 
• 10.8-Acre Site at SE Comer of Alder Creek Parkway and East Bidwell Street 
• Located within Mangini Ranch Phase 2 Subdivision 

• General Plan Amendment 
• Change Land Use Designation for 5-Acre Portion of Site (MLD to MHD) 

• Specific Plan Amendment 
• Change Land Use Designation for 5-Acre Portion of Site (MLD to MHD) 

• Planned Development Permit 
• Established Project Specific Development Standards 
• Evaluate Site Design 
• Consider Architecture and Design 
• Establish Signage Standards 

Page 533

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



C.!TY OF 

FOLSOM 

• Minor Administrative Modification (MAM) 
• Transfer of Development Rights 

• Move 62 Allocated Dwelling Units to Project Site from Other Parcels in Folsom Plan Area 
• Relocate Allocated Dwelling Units Among Three Other Parcels in Folsom Plan Area 

Page 534

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



C'7" 01-

• General Plan and Specific Plan Amendments and Consistency 
• Planned Development Permit 

• Development Standards 
• Architecture/Design 
• Signage Standards 

• Traffic/ Access/Circulation 
• Parking 
• Noise Impacts 
• Walls/Fencing 
• Existing and Proposed Landscaping 
• Minor Administrative Modification 
• Conformance with General Plan and Specific Plan 

-- •- •• -. I - • 

• - - - - - . : ~~- I - - ... • . - .. ~ 
Page 535

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



General Plan/Specific Plan 
Amendments 
• General Plan Amendment 

• Change General Plan Land Use Designation for 5-Acre Portion of Site 
• Existing General Plan Land Use Designation (MLD) 
• Proposed General Plan Land Use Designation (MHD) 
• With Amendment, Entire Project Site will have MHD Land Use Designation 

• Specific Plan Amendment 
• Change Specific Plan Land Use Designation for 5-Acre Portion of Site 

• Existing Specific Plan Land Use Designation (SP-MLD-PD) 
• Proposed Specific Plan Land Use Designation (SP-MHD-PD) 
• With Amendment, Entire Project Site will have SP-MHD-PD Land Use Designation 

• Analysis 
• Multi-Family Apartments are Permitted Land Use 
• Proposed Density (24.5-Units Per Acre) Consistent with Density Range 

: - ~r 

• Community Benefits (Housing Supply, Housing Type, Economic Benefits) 

Page 536

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



• Conformance with Development Standards 
,. -,-. ,, "' Development Standards Table 

I '· Alder Creek Apartments ;.<. 

Lot Lot Front Yard Rear Yard Side Yard Building 
Area Width Setback Setback Setbacks Height 

SP-MHD-PD 0.5-acres NA 10 feet 15 feet 10 feet 50 feet 

Proposed 10.8-acres NA 14 feet to 15 feet plus 10 feet plus 48 feet 
Project 37 feet 

• Project Conforms with All Specific Plan Development Standards 
• Site Design Review 
• Building Architecture and Design 
• Establishment of Sign Standards for Identification Signs 

Page 537

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Page 538

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



• Traffic Impact Analysis (December-2020) 
• Ten Study Intersections 
• Two Different Scenarios (Baseline No Project/Baseline Plus Project-2024) 
• Project-Related Impacts 

• 1,443 Daily Vehicle Trips 
• 89 AM/113 PM Peak Hour Trips 

• Study Determined No Significant Impacts (Level of Service) 
• Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT)(Effective July 1, 2020) 

• Based on CEQA Guidelines, Project Exempt from VMT Standard 
• Net Change in VMT Still Analyzed, Change in VMT Determined to be Negligible 

• Access and Circulation Evaluation 
• Driveway Spacing 
• Driveway Throat Depth 
• On-Site Circulation 
• Adjacent Street Circulation 
• Deceleration Lane Requirements 

Page 539

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



JF ([)) JL§0 ~a Vl\".l.l 

Page 540

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Legend 

... ,lrnele,Sldewal ------= l-1ar f..thwvy -----Cro•--

~. 'J -~ 
Page 541

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



• Proposed Architecture/Design 
• Five Four-Story Apartment Buildings and Two-Story Clubhouse 

• Contemporary Agrarian Design Concept 
• Rectangular Shaped Buildings 
• Design Details (Staggered Elements, Deep Recesses, Balconies) 
• Rustic Color Scheme (Extensive Use of Brown and Tan Colors) 

• Folsom Ranch Central District Design Guidelines 
• Buildings Designed to Cohesively Blend with Existing/Planned Developments 
• Incorporate Design Features that Enhance Social Interaction and Connectivity 
• Design Supporting High Quality of Life, Private Amenities 
• Provide High Quality Design Elements 
• Incorporate Variation in Massing, Articulation, Height, Materials, and Styles 

- '-_ - ----= - - - -

- - - - -
Page 542

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



.:"'"',: 

FF{,'fl: :t:W, TIL'N 

- ~=---= _J - -

Page 543

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



I • :1~·~ "~ , ~ ! .. , . .. ~ ~ •• , • • (', ... .. . 

L 
.. , .. C"' ·11 .... . I ... . ,,. 

L -- ~•,'' rl. • ,11 ,i , , • t'I . u ' . ' ,. . - - t 
- ~ - - ..... 1) ,._ In' .. 

- i::::::lll-.; -
~ . - . . 

VE.W OF aJl:.ZlM Z J & 4 

Page 544

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



~ STUCCO WALL m WALL TIL.1.ES 

0 PATIO/BALCONY RAILING 

SHAOOW WHITE 
DE6281 OR SIMILAR 

0 STUCCO WALL.ACCENT 

ALLURJNQ LIGHT 
OES287 OR SIMILAR 

[!] STOCCO WALL ACCENT 

MATERIALS & COLOR BOARD 

~-- ·---.,-~--i<-• ... ----,... ,........_~___,_,___.. ... ,_,..,_.....,_,o aonase~ -.c. 

BREAD PUDDING 
DE6159 OR SIMILAR 

lF' ({J) JL § COM 

~ STUCCO WAJ..J.. ACCENT IT] STUCCO WALL 

ALDER CREEK 
CITY OF FOLSOM. CA 

Oec:ambotr OIi. 20111 t MR170,1'1.00 

Page 545

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



..J 

Legend 
-

11
- FP'...s? Paece! Nl.1'1lbe; 

~ ---- -- (Set' Tabl6<13 ~"'°"' dE!ail.j 

Dwelling Unit Allocation 
Folsom Plan Area Specific Plan 

- .- - _-

- - - - - - -= 
Page 546

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



• Environmental Checklist and Addendum to the 2011 Folsom Plan 
Area Specific Plan Environmental Impact Report/Environmental 
Impact Statement (FPASP EIR/EIS) Prepared for Proposed Project 

• Concluded that No Changes in Circumstances Would Result in New 
or Substantially More Significant Environmental Impacts Compared 
to Analysis Presented in the FPASP EIR/EIS 

• Conclusions of the Certified Final EIR/EIS Remain Valid 

• Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (Condition No. 43) 

Page 547

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



• Evaluated Project at its February 3, 2021 Meeting 
• No Members of Public Spoke at Meeting 
• Commission Debated Limited Issues 

• Site Design 
• Pedestrian Circulation 
• Renewable Energy Features 
• Bicycle Parking 
• Environmental Review Procedures 
• Transfer of Development Rights 
• Inclusionary Housing Requirements 

• Commission Voted to Recommend Approval of Project (7-0-0-0) 

Page 548

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



-- - -_JI 
-~- --

Page 549

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



Staff Recommendation 

,, ..... .,..,_ 

.,.... ._ . ....;,.. 

}t .- .. 

Staff Recommends 
City Council Approval of the 

Alder Creek Apartments 
Project Entitlements 

O·"'• er 

FOLSOM 

Page 550

02/23/2021 Item No.9.



It""tll,FttlF!.

Folsom City Council
Staff Re ort

RECOMMENDATION

Staff is requesting that the Mayor, with the consent of the City Council, appoint two business
seat representatives to the Historic District Commission for the terms ending as identified:

A. Representative from a Historic District business outside the Sutter Street Subarea;

term ending December 2022

B. Representative who owns a business within the Sutter Street subarea; term ending
December 2021

BACKGROUND / ISSUE

The terms of all atlarge appointments to City of Folsom commissions and committees
(except three of the at-large appointments to the Historic District Commission) expire in
December of even numbered years. Councilmember Rosario Rodriguez previously served
as the representative who owns a business within the Sutter Street subarea; with her election
to the Folsom City Council inNovember 2020, an appointment needs to be made to fill the
remainder of that term.

MEETING DATE: 212312021

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

SUBJECT: Appointment of At-Large Members to the Folsom Historic
District Commission

F'ROM: City Clerk's Department

I

Page 551

02/23/2021 Item No.10.



POLICY

Folsom Municipal Code Section 17.52.020 establishes the Historic District Commission as a

seven member commission appointed by the Mayor with the consent of the City Council.
Specific seat requirements are set forth as:

A. One representative who is actively involved with historic preservation;
B. One representative who is a resident of the historic district;
C. One representative who owns a business within the Sutter Street subarea;
D. Two planning commissioners;
E. One representative from a historic district business outside the Sutter Street subarea;

F. One architect, landscape architect, or other design professional with expertise in
historic preservation.

Folsom Municipal Code Section 17.52.040 provides that members of the Historic District
Commission are appointed to serve two years.

ANALYSIS

The following two seats on the Historic District Commission are currently vacant:

o One representative who owns a business within the Sutter Street subarea
o One representative from a historic district business outside the Sutter Street subarea

The vacancy was advertised in the Folsom Telegraph, on the city's webpage and on social
media. The city has received three applications, which are now presented for the City
Council's consideration and appointment.

A. Representative from a Historic District business outside the Sutter Street Subarea;

term ending December 2022
1. Applicant: John Felts

B. Representative who owns a business within the Sutter Street subarea; term ending
December 2021

1. Mark Dascallos
2. John Voelz

The applicants are eligible for these seats based upon their businesses and the business
location.

2
Page 552

02/23/2021 Item No.10.



ATTACHMENTS

1. Applications:
Mark Dascallos
John Felts
John Voelz

2. Curent HDC Membership

Respectfully submitted,

Christa Freemantle, CMC
City Clerk

J
Page 553

02/23/2021 Item No.10.



m
i-, r ,-lj ':1,i !rT"it.t, r_._.,.._- - *'*. i _-., l .i .. l_r".,,--'l :i:il I'Ir ..: ,. .'*;.'.:'.:..-

ri-'_ lij:: r'

,/
J

(i)\)
ll-

-,-', ;

Folsom Commission and Committee

APPLICATION

Thank you for your interest in serving on a Folsom commission or
committee

Before You Begin:
e Please read this form and instructions carefully.
. Complete all pages and sign the application.
. Applications remain active for six months after submittal.

Return completed applications to:
City Clerk's Department, Folsom City Hall, 50 Natoma Street, Folsom, CA 9563o

Applicant Information: (All information is required)

dA-_* k* -pa-:,a-.G-tLo g
Qtq6t,t-< c.3* nsaz o

/c'r,+,.2- d2a-9tt5'u{ eo, 7rS -Co(,/.r {'{"
Currently Serving on a Commission/Committee? If yes, please
specify: Fd 1(,a,4 ,ln",1tr/<- /a-r lrt.-/

+-€St * /o-Qa4 '

FHt)4

Folsom Residency / Registered Voter Verification: Commission and Committee members must be
residents and registered voters of Folsom.

Registered to vote? Indic ut"@l No Select One

Financial Disclosure / Ethics Training:

Name:

Residence Address:

Email:

Phone:

Employer and Occupation:

Truth and

Signature:

I understand that commission and committee members must file statements disclosing
financial information.

I understand that commission and committee members must complete ethics and
harassment training.

Indicate Yes / No:

Select One
Indicate Yes / No:

Select One

I information contained on this form is true and accurate:

Date: ?-'(K-2-6'zlt LQ-.

Important Public Records Information: The city may receive requests from the public to review documents such as
this form and the city is obligated to release these public records, including all information contained on the form.

Updated October zor8
Page L of4

Page 554

02/23/2021 Item No.10.



FOLSOM COMMISSION AND COMMITIEE APPLICATION

L(A,^,,L D^* - *-\to s'Applicant Name

Choice of Commission or Committee:
(If you are interested in multiple commissions, please rank them numerically according to your preference)

.2 Arts and. Cultural Commission

Historic District Commission*

Landscaping and Lighting District Advisory Committee*

Library Commission

Parks and Recreation Commission

Planning Commission

Traffic Safety Committee*

Utility Commission

Other:
*Application Supplement Required:
Supplemental information is required for the Historic District Commission, Landscape and Lighting District Advisory
Committee, and the Traffic Safety Committee. These boards have special qualification requirements for certain seats.

Historic District Commission:
Please identify which seat you qualify for:

representative who is actively involved with historic preservation;
representative who is a resident of the Historic District
representative who owns a business within the Sutter Street Subarea

Planning Commissioners
representative from a Historic District business outside the Sutter Street Subarea

architect, landscape architect, or other design professional with expertise in historic preservation

Landscaping and Lighting District Advisory Committee:
Please advise which L&L District you live in:

District of residence

/

e

Traffi c Safety Committee :

Please identifu which seat you qualify for:

representatives representing a wide cross section of interests
representative who has demonstrated an interest in or a concern for pedestrian and bicycle safety

Continue to nextpage

Page 2 of 4

Page 555

02/23/2021 Item No.10.



FOLSOM COMMISSION AND COMMITTEE APPLICATION

Applicant Name: V[\,^, L 'bo*-.^-l\oq
Informational Questions: (you must answer all four questions, for all commissions or committees you are applying
for):

r. Why do you want to serye on this commission or committee:

\ oe^tr-r- c+_ bu"rra=5S e>*l* u \{<s 1-+. ltr-er- Z'DLp(

\V,.*-r.-lp. --'-t\-.-'ok'.-o(l^r'+Lo(o+''*{3t'*c'<-

6,^1 D-(e- . J41 €4-* o pt qQ €g] D'4" 5 o.-{-d,( uJt^-S

fu-.-porIo,-4 b"-c-<-Lr5p 
( t^c^-- t*Lo'{ *(4

"1 
**- r | <- D rs-l* '-i- { lJ-> €u -l*' r'a ' ( '(z-+ t

( C._t"[ [_\ dr+.<,- ?1,= 
Ces*<,Lt]s,rc,^-( +,---,--.-^:a<

\r .r-t Vrr-X /c--t--\ t*'--L ), Qo+<r"*-* ft 
ctr*'^-4 uJ"--

\r^r\r'. L*- -\L- G-qr'*t A^; t o'---f 4G*- -a--L\ t) \L*

\*o- rc-. f,-'1r-,: c+{"T= 
'-t ?l::*-(t{\aao{-

VUt". L, ,*-\
u ^-[) Il"-S =tt

3" , -- .,) .- 2 " I.- '-+ Yt.'-

"_{
\n^- ,*d r-Kr< d-

i*
hJ

q,

z. What do you think is(are) the top issue(s) facing this commission or committee:

4 1

.-+ |

h<-,-t d, J

,J*. /' oo"*4u (

7-,*p Ll cl t {c,--

€o,-\ d-

Pn.{---k
t(Ln u q

{,-

J..,(
tz^{
tJu

hl
e€J* 0r- st"*1" d

,^-.*\ L Al""*l'u(
4u 1

1-

Ae{rc,
c.-- L'-

O*qn u!,0.--.,

C.".-r-..<- U lL

.-[5 a2l**L'-v{g ' (

L- |.-^t--' b)'-{.u ._'''^- \(-t't.

+i ,--+L Vtql'*{-€5:'
.-

Ai ile r ->4

,-t ckC"*\ s
dorrtirrrr. to next

/r.d^,-{- LI,u-tt?
\

a1

s o/--l+

Page 3 of4

page

Page 556

02/23/2021 Item No.10.



FO COMMITTEE APPLICATION

l-( a c.-"^-\bvs'

S. Briefly describe how your experiences qualify you to serve on the commission or committee:

/\,t.a '#"-QL- Grc^-e

.{-(*- *",-.- \*- Loq.- p L^^^^, * \ C-o,,;.:u";tlt t u p( b- "- L

I r.r tI^/- Yo's )l b'4. t 1r r.,ot v ( (t<'I'-ot'*S {tc

Lrtcr,€s \o)",-K Goo- \*- t't\ 1 b'u - uvc't uL

=tL".gt- i- 56,-s (r..4. t-uctt( il-r" t"-+ I't'-Qu(e-&lotol&-('

('U.--- bz-'a-'- a*- $o<twt<--65 OdMe-t- 1-' Wco*{ d+

$rr- oJ-.r f[ l.'iq-z' ? b,.-\ \lc' \ *'* h'-tr | 't-J' ck^'" s
\/-J ^-.."t- ,rr', +- 1u"-u---& -t- €r.-r-L *tc*
a-hco, *- cL WL

*,ctfin"n "*f*#l;;J"1k, r,""*ff":) 
t 

'..-'

t\S'

.^'(*- {"'--a

*QProu.-\

( r,o, {t

L) L*- '-(

=LA-lo- Lg

p tr - 
",r(

L.*.-4.,[\.;*" €t+ o€ &

c WY "&e-t\t1

Ft.-, un*fu "'- ( S
\€;t

Drz
\u,.,*Auur\\Llt

\

=tLr<
I

6^

\ Oo-,t^ \t- tu 6*',,(
P\+,

4'u f,-

END OFAPPLICATION FORM

Return completed applications to:
City Clerk's Department, Folsom City Hall, 5o Natoma Street, Folsom, CA gS6go

Page 4 of 4

t\

}\J

Page 557

02/23/2021 Item No.10.



W
::-l;l-,r-l,'j 

1-;1 ;'t: i1!,i'i:,':, li!t'T
:E JI{'?{t r-,rE:i,i-} FV

Folsom Comnrission and Committee

APPLICATION

Tha:rk you for your interest fu. serving on a Folsoro commission or
committee

$'$LS(}pr.
t atl.3trr! It la?ill

BeforeYouBeginl
. Please reatl tlis form a:rd insEuctions carefirJly.
. Complete allpages andsigntfie application'
r Applicatiels lsanin active for six months after submittal.

R€mrn completed applications to:
City ClerlCs Deparhent, Folsom City HdI, 5o Natoma SUeet Folsom, CA gS53o

AppHcant Information: (AlI information is required)

John FeltsNane:

ResidenceAddress:

F.-ail:

Phone:

Enployer and Occupation: E55 Technologies, lnc (Owner) Tech Consulting

Cr:rrently Sewing on a Commission/Committee? If yes, please

specifi:
No

f,'olson Rceidency / Registerea Voler Verincation: Cornmission and Committee members must be

resiclents arrd registered voters of Folsom.

Registered to vote? Indicate Yes / No Yes

Financ.ial Disdosure / Ethics f1'rining:

I understaad that commission and committee menbers must file statements disclosing
fnanc,ial idormation,

I understand tlat conrmisSion and committee mernbers must complete ethics and
harassment treining.

Ttsuttr the containecl otrthis formis tue aail accurate:

Sigpatue: Date: 1211512020

city

IadicateYes /Nol

Yes EI
InclicateYes /Nor
Yes E]

sudr as

Updatecl OctoberzorS

is obligatedto release

Page 1 of4

Page 558

02/23/2021 Item No.10.



FOLSOM COMMISSION A"ND COMMITTEE APPIJCATION

AppiicantName: John Felts

CXeoice ef Qsrnyniasion or Comlrittee:
(If you are interestecl in multiple couimissions, please.rankthem numerically according to your prefe.reurce)

Arts and Chltural Comnrission

Historic Disbict Commission*

Landscaping aad Liglting Disbict Aclvisory Committee*

Library Cornmission

Parks and Recreation Commission

Planning Cornmissiou

Ttaf fi c S afety Committee*

Utility Commission

Otler:
*Application Supplernent Requireil:
Supplemental information is required. for the Historic District Cornmi.ssion, Landscape and Lightiug DishictAdvisory
Committeg and the Traffi.c Safety Committee. These boarcls have special qualiEcation requirenents for certain seats.

Historic District Co'-'nissiou
Pleaee ialentiry which seat you qualify for:

representative who is actively involvecl wittr bistoric presewation;

representativewho is aresid.ent of the HistoricDietrict
representativewho owns a business withn the Suttel Street Subarea

Plannin g Com.urissioners

representative from a Historic Dishict business outside tle Sutter Skeet Subarea

arihitecg landscape arctritect, or other clesip. professional with expertise in historic preservation

Lanelscapins and Lightfurg DtsFict Advisory Committee:
Please ailvise which LScL District you live in:

Diskictof residence:

x

Trafrc S afety Commlttee:
Please iclentify which seat you quffi for:

representatlves representing a wide cross section of interests
represebtative vrho has demonsbated an jnterest jn or a concern for pedestian and bicycle safety

Conti.uueto nextpage

Page2 of.4

Page 559

02/23/2021 Item No.10.



FOI,SOM COMMISSION AND COMMITTEE APPLICATTON

AppiicantName: John Felts
Infornational Questionsr (you must answer all four questions, for all eommissions or committees you are applying
for):

r. Why do you want to serve on this commisslsn ol committee:

I am a resident of the historic district and own a business with the address of 509 Figueroa St. I

care about what happens in my neighborhood and want to make sure it is an area where people
can thrive at their business. I know most of the other business owners in the district and want to
make sure that the district remains a viable place to operate.

s. Whatdo youthinkis(are) thetop issue(s) facingthis commission or committee:

Cunently I think keeping storefronts fullwith operating businesses is important. I also feel that
keeping the "hometown" feel of the Historic Dtstrict is crucial to the success of all of the
businesses. I feel that maintainlng the momentum that has been created in the distrlct over the
past 2-3 years ls absolutely necessary to malntain the value that has been built here.

Contirrueto nextpage

Page 3 of4

Page 560

02/23/2021 Item No.10.



FOISOM COMMISSION AND COMMITTEE APPLICATION

ApplicantName: John Felts

g, Brieflyclescribehowyour etperiences qudif youto serve onthe commission ot cornmittee:

l've been a business ownerfor over 15 years the last 14 of which I have tived in the district. I

have been a member of the FHDA lor 2 years and I am familiar with atl of the business and many
of the residents in the district.

+. Whi& commission or committee neetings haveyou attended?

I have been to several FHDA Meetings with mywife Amberwho also owns a local photography

business. I have attended and particlpated in several community organizatiohs as well including
HFRA.

UND OFAPPUCATIONFORM

Retunil completed applications to I

City CIerICs Departuent, Folsom Clty Hall, 5o Natoma Sbeet Folsom, C.A gS6So

Page 4 of 4

Page 561

02/23/2021 Item No.10.



,/N
Folsom Commission and Committee

APPLICATION

'llranl you for lrrur ittlercsl in st'nitrg, ott a t'tllsotn ronltntstirtn or

Bcfrrre You Ecgin:
. Please read this fonu and instructions carcfully.
r Complete all pages and sign thc upplicution"
. ,\pplicctions remain active for six months ufft'r subntittal.

Rcturn completed applications to:
City Clerk's flepartment, Folsom (:ity Hall,5o Natonru Strcet, liolsom, CA g56:io

Applicanr lnformation: (All information is required)

Name: John Voelz

Re.sidenceAddress: 

Emal: 

Owner: Reset

r'r}nlrDtttr'r'

Phone:

Employcr and Occupation:

Currently Serving on a Commission/Committee? If yes, please
speci[':

Folsorn Residency/ Regiatcrcd VotcrVcrifieation: Commission and (bmmittee memberc must be
rcsidcnts and reg,istered roters of Folsom.

Rtgistrred lo vole'/ lndicate Yes / No YeS E

Financial Disclorure / Ethics Training:

No

I undcrslantl lhat trlrnmission and eonrnrittee mcmbers must file slatelnenls disclosing
fi nanr:ial tnfornration.

I ,unrh.mt;rnd lhirl cornmission nnrl conrmiltrt'mcnrbers must complctc ethics and
harar'stnl nl training.

lndiclr[.]'ts )io:

Yes
lndtc:tt* \ t'ri r*o:

Yes

tr
EI

'l nrlh rrnrt Arcrrmryl I lrrlth lbll lhr.rifirrmilltrru rrril{innl on lhrr firrnr ts lrur';rnrl ilrnlritt(,:

\':rr,,r,rrr. ,, ;-/2';-i 
' 
-tl:.:::;j-r,i"'-'y ir,*, January 8,2021

i'

I lrl.rtrrl Iklrlr t .Jrr!t
lt.r1;r' I nl4

Page 562

02/23/2021 Item No.10.



FOI.SOM COMMISSION AND COMMITTEE APPLICATION

Applicant Name: John Voelz

Choioe of CommisEion or Committcc:
(If)'ou are interesed in multiple commissions, please rank them numerically according to your prcfercnce)

Arts and Cultural Commission

Historic Disnict Commission'

randscaping and Lighting Distdet Advisory Committecr

LibraryCommission

Parks and Reseation Commission

PlanningConmission

Traff c Safety Committee*

UtilityCommission

Othen

'Applicrtion Supplenrcnt Rcqufucd:
Supplemental information is required for the Historic District Comeissiou, Iandscape and Ligbting Disrict Advisory
Committee, and the Tnffic Safety Committee. These boards have special qualification requirements for certain seats.

Hictoric Dislri ct Comrniesion:
Please identify which seat you qualify for:

repreccntative who is actively involved with historic prpsenration;

representative who is a resident of the Historic District
representative who owns a business within the Sutter Street Subarea

PlannngCrlmmissioners
representative from a Historic District business outside the Sutter Sfeet Subarea

architcct, landscapc architec{, or other desigrr professional with enpertise in historic presenration

lxldltaplnjrnd Llrbting Dirtrict Advboty Commlttce:
Plearc atlvire which l&1, District you livc in:

Diglric't u{ nxkh:ncc:

1

'f nfrle $rfcty (lommi tlcc:
Plmt*idantily which $fill you qunlify frrr;

E
rr2re.u:ntalivui reprcmnling a widc trost sestion of intcrcqLs
rqlrcrcnlalivt who hur rft,monrlrated ln intcru.sl in or o conccrn fcrr pcdcslriun and bicyclc snfug'

Conllnuc to ncxt p[gc

Page 2 of 4

Page 563

02/23/2021 Item No.10.



F()I.SOM COMMISSION AT.ID COMMI1TEE APPUCATION

.{pplicant Nnme: John Voelz
Informrdond (lucctionc: (you must answer all four questions, for all commissions or committees you are app$ng
for):

t, Why do you want to serve ou tlis commission or committee:

First, our business is here in the Disfict The maior reason we have our business located in the
Historic District is because of the the story it tells and the vibe that is created there. Hesefs
oommiUnent to a quasi-Victorian artistic space would not have fanslated the same in any other
area of fie dty.

Se@nd, our family is connecled to the District My wife and I have lived nearly half of our maried
years in the Folsom area. We've ouvned three homes here. The Hisbric Distsict has always
played a huge part in our Folsom life. When wn dated as teenagers, we would come to the
Dislrict I used to play music in the median on Sutter Street when I was in my 20s and 30s--often
tinres right out in front ol the buildirlg that I currently own a business in. Our chlldren's memories
ars full of Historic District restaurants and outings. We always dreamed of living in the District
and purctrased a home here 5+ years ago. Protecting what lVe known for the last 30+ years is
important to me,

Third, I belleve I have someilring to offer as an innovator. I have a penchant lor problem solving
aN gerwraling ideas. I dont want to just occupy spaoe in the Historic District, I wantto give back
lo hq and have her be the best possible version of herself.

z. Wt.gll dtt yrtu ttrink ir(are) the top irsuc(r) faeing this eommission or committc.e: I

Tha historic and cultr,lral character ol the City's Historic District are challenged aesthetically,
funcUonally, and in rcaard lo ita personalily and vibe. Thls is true ol any Historic District that lives
anct eseks to thrive through change and progress. ln order to thrive and not be caught off-guard
by changog, a Hiatoric District musl hay€ a futurisl mindset--to get ahead of changes and lead
through them,

We need to bettar talllho beautilutslory ol the Distdct and atlrac{ more people to her.

Pailing continEo to be an iesuo lor the Dlstrict lor busin$s ownsrs and homeowners
alikc--eryecrally homeownars fust removed lrom Sutlet Street ofl of Figueroa.

COVIO has obviously prosonlod problems lor allol us. The City and the District have been very
honient and tloxible to help businosges succoad, Moving lorward, tho Dislrlct needs to be
proac-lrvo in revisiUng corditional usc permils, eignage, and conalglent deslgn.

Educaling or recducaUng merchants on llfe in the dlslrlcl--lhe do's and don'ts and rules ol the
road, Sorne mercianls may nol know whal's expec{ed and some disregard those expectations.

('onllnuc 1., ncxt pr$c

l'.rgc .l of 4

Page 564

02/23/2021 Item No.10.



FOI,SOM COMMI$SION AI{D COMMITTEE APPUCATION

ApplicantName: {ghn Voelz

3. Brie0y dcscribe how lour eqerienoes qudt$ you to serve on the commission or comnittee:

I am both a Historlc Disfrict homeowner and business owner and believe lcan intelligenty add to
the oonversalion because I am stee@ in the lib of the Dlstrict ever slngle day.

Over the y€ars, l've rolunbered lor evenB, played concerts in he ampithsatre, played music in
restaurants. The District is in my blood.

I have a SGyear history as a paslor ln localchurches where lVe lead teams through solving
issues, managing and promoting good interpersonalommunicalion, and spearheadlng the future
lnnovations of organizations while preserving the things that are sacred.

4. Whlcb commirsion or committec mectingl have yonr attended?

l'm a regular partlcipant ln Hisilotlc District merchant meetings. I've also attended special
meedngs wlth igsues regarding parking and development. Recently, lstarted attending Folsom
Hisiorlc Dirtrlct Assoclation Board meetings.

rilt) or APPIJC,A'n0N roRM

Ralurn comptclcd rppllortlonr tor
()ty (ln*'r llc;nrtrnent, Polnrm Clty llrlt,5tr Noloma lltrccl, Polrrm, ()t g669o

Pagr,4 of 4

Page 565

02/23/2021 Item No.10.



Historic District Gommission Membership
Effective 0211112021

Commissioner Term Ending Representing

Kathleen Cole - Vice Chair 12121

Daron Bracht - Chair 12/21

Kevin Duewel 12/22

DanielWest 12/22

Mickey Ankhelyi 12t22

pending 12/22

pending 12t21

Historic District Resident

Historic Preservation

Planning Commission Representative

Planning Commission Representative

Architect

Business Rep Outside Sutter Street

Subarea

Business Owner Within Sutter Street

Subarea

Page 566

02/23/2021 Item No.10.



ffi
Folsom City Council

Staff

BACKGROUND

Folsom Municipal Code Chapter 16.56 establishes the Landscaping and Lighting District
Advisory Committee (L&L Committee) and defines the Committee's purpose as helping to
enhance the line of communication between City staff and elected/appointed city bodies and

making recommendations to the Landscaping and Lighting District Manager and to the

Community Development and Public Works Director concerning the maintenance and

associated costs to maintain and improve landscaping and lighting districts. The Committee
is comprised of one person from each landscaping and lighting district. The members shall
be registered voters and residents or owners within their respective landscaping and lighting
district and serve for a period offour years.

POLICY

Folsom Municipal Code Section 16.56.030(8) states that the mayor shall appoint each of the
members, subject to the approval of the City Council.

ANALYSIS

The L&L Committee continues to have vacancies for certain districts, and staff maintains an

open recruitment for these vacancies. Two applications have recently been received for two
ofthese vacant seats:

Dina Collins for the Folsom Heights/California Hills district
Bhavik Vyas for the Broadstone district

1

MEETING DATE: 21231202t

AGENDA SECTION: New Business

SUBJECT: Appointment of At-Large Members to the Folsom Landscaping
and Lighting District Advisory Committee

FROM: City Clerk's Department

Page 567

02/23/2021 Item No.11.



Staff has confirmed that both applicants live within the identified districts and are therefore
eligible to be appointed.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Applications received from the following individuals:
Dina Collins for the Folsom Heights/California Hills district
Bhavik Vyas for the Broadstone district

2. Current L&L Committee Membership

RECOMMENDATION / CITY COUNCIL ACTION

Staff requests that the Mayor consider appointing one representative to each district (with
approval from the City Council) to the Landscaping and Lighting District Advisory for the
terms ending in December 2022.

Respectfully submitted,

Christa Freemantle, CMC
City Clerk

2
Page 568

02/23/2021 Item No.11.



ATTACHMENT 1

Page 569

02/23/2021 Item No.11.



Folsom Commission and Committee

APPLICATION

Ttrank you for your interest in serving on a Folsom commission or
committee

Bdore You Begin:
. Please read this form and insEuctions carefully.
. Complete allpages and sign the application.
. Applications remain active fs six months after submittal

Retun completed applications to:
City Clerk's Departnnent, Folsom Ciry Han,5io Natoma Street, Folsom, C"4, gS6ao

Applicant Inforrnation: (All information is required)

Narnq Dina D. Collins

Residence Address;

F'.-aiL

Phone:

F,mployer and Occupation: Cornerstone lnsurance Services, lnc. CEO/Benefits Broker

Currently Serving on a Commission/Committee? If y"C please
specify: No

Folson Residency/ Registered Voter Verifrcation: Commission and Oommittee members must be
residents and registered voters of Folsom.

Registered to vote? Indicate Yes/ No Yes ?

Financial Disclosure / Ethics Training:

I understand t}at commission and committee members must file statements disclosing
financial information

I understand tlat commission and committee members must complete ethics and
harassment training.

Inilicate Yes/ No:

Yes
Indicate Ye6/ No:

Yes E

Ti'uth and Accuragn I certiff tlxat tlrc infonnation contained on this form is true and accurate:

Signature: Date 111412021

Important Public Records Inforrrration: The city may receive requests fiom the public to review documents such as

this form and the city is obligated to release these public recordg including all information contained on the fonn

Upilated October 2018
Page L of 4

Page 570

02/23/2021 Item No.11.



.I'.ULSUM UUMMTSSIUN AND UOMMI'I'I'.!;T' AfYLTUAI IUN

Applicant Name: Dina D. Collins

Choice of Corrmission or Cornmittee:
(If you are interested in multiple commissionq please rank them numerically according to your prcference)

Arts aud Culhml Commission

Historic District Commission*

X Landscaping and Lighting District Aclvisory Committee*

Library Commission

Parks and Recreation Commission '

PlanningCommission i 'i

Traffic Sfety Committee*
i.

UtilityCommission : - , .r',

Other: I " t'

;ffi1y#ffffH1ffifft[tfffi*the Historic Distict comriission" Landscape ancl Lighting District Advisdry
Committeg and the Tnffrc SafetyCommittee. These boards have spegial qualification reguirements for certain seats.

Ilistoric District Cemrni ssisns
Please identifu which seat you qmlifr for:

representative who is actively involved with historic preservation;

representative who is a resident of the Historic District
'representative who ovrrns a business witliin the Sutter Sti'eet Subarea

PlanniDg Commissioners
rq>resentative from a Historic District business outside the Sutter Street Subarea

architect, lanclscape architect, or other dobr professional with expertise in historic preservauon

Landscaping and Lighting fristrict Advisory Committee:
Please advise which I&L District.you live in:

District ofresidence, CA Hills / Folsom Heights

Tlaffic Snfety Cornrrnittee:
Please identifr which seat you qualiff for

representatives representing a wide cros.s section of interests
rqrresentative who has demonstrated an interest in or a concern for pedestrian and bicycle safety

Continue to next page

Page 2 of 4

Page 571

02/23/2021 Item No.11.



FOLSOM COMMISSION AI.ID COMMII|TEE APPLICATION

ApplicantName: Dina D. Collins
Inforrnational Questions: (you must answer all four questiong fo all commissions or committees you arc applying
for)

t. WbV do you want to s€rve on this commission or committee:

My children are grown now so I have more time to give back b this wonderful community. I'd like
to play in active roll in making sure our neighborhood continues to be maintained in a cost
efiective manner.

z. What do yor think is(are) tle top issue(s) facing this commission or committee:

Top issues would be resolution speed when a maintenance issue arises, keeping our
neighborhood desirable and cost containment.

Continueto next llage

Page 3 of4

Page 572

02/23/2021 Item No.11.



FOLSOM COMMISSION AI.ID COMMITTEE APPLICATION

Dina D. CollinsApplicantName:

3. Briefly describe how yoru experiences qrulifu you to sef,ve on the commission or committee

I have no previous experience serving on a city commission nor committee. I am, however, a..
member and bqad member of Folsom Lake Rotary. I am also acti'vdy involved at my cfqrch. ,As
such, I am familiar with working with others/a tealm, in order to get'objectives completed. ,

4 Which commission or committee meetings bave you attentled?

None

.r.l

END OFAPPLICATIONFORM

Re,tuinr completed applications to:
City Clerk's Departrnenl Folsom City Hall, So Natoma Streeb Folsom, C.A, 9563o

., 1

Page 4 of 4

Page 573

02/23/2021 Item No.11.



Folsom Commission and Committee

APPLICATION

Thank you for your interest in serving on a Folsom commission or
committee

Before You Begin:
. Please read this form and instructions carefully.
r Complete all pages and sign the application.
. Applications remain active for six months after submittal

Retum completed applications to:
City Clerk's Department, Folsom City Hall, 50 Natoma Street, Folsom, CA 9563o

Applicant lrforrnatioru (All information is required)

Name: BHAVIK N VYAS

Residence Address:

EmaiI:

Phone:

Employer and Occupation: FRANCHISE TAX BOARD & BUDGET ADMINISTRATION ANALYSIS

Currently Serving on a Commission/Committee? If yes, please

specifu:
NO

Folsom Residency/ Registered Voter Veriffcatiou Commission and Committee members must be
resid.ents and registered voters of Folsorn

Registered to vote? Indicate Yes/ No Yes

Financial Disclosure / Ethics Training:

I understand that commission and committee members must file statements disclosing
financial information.

I understand tlat commission and committee members must complete ethics and
harassment training.

Indicate Yes/ No:

Yes

Indicate Yes/ No:

Yes

Ti'uth and Accuracy: I certify that tlre information contained on this form is true and accurate:

Signature: E/arrt6 lL@ Date: 01 121 12021

/
Important Public Record.s Inforrnation: The city may receive requests from the public to review documents such as

tliyform and the city is obligatd to release these public records, including all information contained on the form

Updatecl October zorS
Page 1 of4

Page 574

02/23/2021 Item No.11.



FOLSOM COMMISSION AND COMMITTEE APPLICATION

ApplicantName: BHAVIK N \ATAS

Choice of Commission or Committee:
(tf you are interested in multiple commissions, please rank tlrem numerically according to your preference)

4 Arc anil Cultural Commission

5 Historic District Commission*

Landscaping and Lighting District Advisory Committee"

Library Commission

Par}s anil Recreation Commission

Planning Commission

lYaffic Safety Committee*

utility commir.ioo HEALTH & WELNESS COMMISSION

Other: 6
*Application Supplement Required:
Supplemental information is required for the Historic District Cornmission, T4ndscape and Lighting District Aclvisory
Committee, and the Traffic Safety Committee These boards have special qualification requirements for certain seats.

Historic District Commission:
Please identiff whiclr seat you qr:alifr fon

representative who is actively involved with historic presewation;

representative who is a resident of the Historic District
representativewho owns abusiness within the Sutter Street Subarea

Planning Commissioners

representative fmm a Historic Dstrict business outsid.e the Sutter Street Subarea

architec! landscape architec! or other ilesign professional with er?ertise in historic preservation

Iandscaping and Lighting District Advisory Committee:
Please advise which I&L Districtyou live in:

Districtofresidencq BROADSTONE

1

I

2

3

7

,9

Tfaffic Safety Comrnittee:
Please iclentifu which seat you qualifr fon

representatives representing a wide cross section of interests
representative who has demonstrated an interest in or a concern for pedestrian and bicycle safety

Continue to nextlnge

Page 2 of 4

Page 575

02/23/2021 Item No.11.



FOLSOM COMMISSION AI.ID COMMITTEE APPLICATION

ApplicantName: BHAVIK N VYAS

fnformational Questions: (you must answer all four questions, for all commissions ot committees you are applying
for):

r. Why do you want to serve on this commission or committee:

GIVING BACK TO THE COMMUNIry & SHARING MY UNIQUE RESOURCES HAS ALWAYS
BEEN THE DRIVING FORCE BEHIND THIS EFFORTS OF COMPLETING THIS APPLICATION.
Here's are few of the vital reasons for my willingness to serve on this commission/board.
> I've been serving the GSS Gujarati Samaj of greater Sacrament (www.gujsac.org) 501{C}3 for

last 15+ years consecutively in various leadership capacity as an executive committee member
> I have been serving as a board of directors for the recreational league Folsom Youth Basketball

Association (FYBA) a 501{C}3 organization promoting health & friendly sports in the community
> As a proactive volunteer with Employee Assistance Program (EAP) at Franchise Tax Board

(FTB), I have been serving as a Wellness Ghampion to promote health & wellness at work
> As a part of the Volunteer lncome Tax Assistance (VITA) member, I have helped numerous tax

payers file their income tax returns for IRS and State consecutively for the last 12+ years
> As a certified trainer & wellness coach, I've been training & teaching YOGA, meditation, and

breathing techniques for the last 15+ years in the community to improve health free of cost
> As a certified trainer with I(AIZEN & SixSigma, I've a unique capability to improve productivity

and creativity in almost every programs I've been involved with even as a volunteer
> I possess tremendous leadership skills, and the ability to inspire folks achieve desired goals

set by the program sponsors and higher authorities per the shared vision. I'm a team player.
> Contributing & participating with a servant leadership attitude, no expectations, and selflesly

makes me one of the most competent candidate for this opportunity to serve our community.
> My zeal, enthusiasm, and sincere dedication surely will help me exceed your expectations

from me as a memher of the team and an active resoonsible citizen of Folsom citv.
z. What do you think is(are) the top issue(s) facing this commission or committee: 

I

Honestly, I do not have any idea about the on-going issues with this committee or commission.
Though, as a competent analyst, I have the necessary skills & ability to not only find out the
issues and problems we might face but also to figure out the most appropriate and cost efficient
solution to the issues when opportunity arises.. Thank you!

Continueto nextpage

Page 3 of4

Page 576

02/23/2021 Item No.11.



FOLSOM COMMISSION AND COMMITTEE APPLICATION

Applicant Name: BHAVIK N VYAS

g. Briefly describe how your experiences qualiff you to serve on the commission or committee:

Below are some of my top qualities, traits, and skills & abilities that I've acquired and developed
during the last 2 decades of my professional work experience, volunteer opportunities, and the
various community services and programs I've been involved so far,.
* Effective Communication Skills
* Time Management & lnterpersonal Skills
* Organization Skills with strong commitment to provide quality services
* Capable of planning, directing, and delegation skills for small or large projects managing teams
* Analytical & Technical skills to mitigate issues and find effective solutions within budget
* Financial Management & Budget planning and resource allocation skills
* Natural tendency and ability to connect & collaborate with people of diverse group
" Self-Motivated, positive attitude, and tremendous learning skills
* S_M-A_R_T Goal Setting promoter, speaker, and trainer
" Honest, sincere, hard working, dedicated, and professional by speech and actions

Thank you & looking forward to serve your team in the near future!

4. Which commission or committee meetings have you attended?

DURING THE YEAR 2A17 and2018,l HAVE ATTENDED FEW MEETINGS WITH Mr. YK
CHALAMCHERLA FOR THE PARKS & RECREATION COMMISSION.

END OFAPPLICATION FORM

Return completed applications to:
CityClerk's Department, Folsom CityHall, 5o Natoma Street, Folsom, CA 9563o

Page 4 of 4

Page 577

02/23/2021 Item No.11.



ATTACHMENT 2

Page 578

02/23/2021 Item No.11.



Landscaping and Lighting District Advisory Committee
Membership
Effective as of O2lltl202l

Group 1

Committee Member L&L District Representing Term Ending

Vacont

Vqcant

Jaime Mills

Vacont

Joshua Baker

Vacant

Vacant

Shari Shively

Larry Shannon

Joe Marceau

Tim O'Leary

Vscsnt

Briggs Ranch 12/22

Broadstone 12/22

Broadstone Unit 3 12/22

Cobble Ridge 12/22

Cobble Hills Ridge lllReflections 12t22

Folsom Heights/California Hills 12/22

Hannaford Cross 12t22

Lake Natoma Shores (The Preserves) 12/22

Los Cerros 12/22

Natoma Station 12/22

Prairie Oaks 12t22

Silverbrook 12/22

Page 579

02/23/2021 Item No.11.



Group 2

Committee Member L&L District Representing Term Ending

Allen Brown

David Weizer

Patty Soulsby

Vacant

Vqcont

Kathy Kennedy

Vacont

Vacont

lan Cornell

Vacant

American River Canyon North 12/24

American River Canyon #2 12/24

Blue Ravine Oaks 12t24

Natoma Valley 12/24

Sierra Estates 12/24

Steeplechase 12t24

The Residences at American River Canyon 12/24

Willow Creek East 12/24

Willow Creek South 12/24

Willow Springs 12/24

Page 580

02/23/2021 Item No.11.


	Top
	02/23/2021 Item No.1.	County of Sacramento Alternatives to 911 for Mental Health and Quality of Life/Pilot Call Center and Mental Health Response Team Proposal
	02-23 STAFF REPORT PRESENTATION OF COUNTY ALTERNATIVES TO 911 FOR MENTAL HEALTH

	02/23/2021 Item No.2.	Approval of January 26, 2021 Special and Regular Meeting Minutes
	02-23 STAFF REPORT JANUARY 26 2021 MINUTES

	02/23/2021 Item No.3.	Approval of the February 9, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes
	02-23 STAFF REPORT MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 9, 2021

	02/23/2021 Item No.4.	Resolution No. 10589 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to add Two Senior Environmental Specialists Positions to the Solid Waste Recycling Division and Appropriation of Funds
	02-23 STAFF REPORT RES 10589 TWO SENIOR ENVIRONMENTAL SPECIALISTS POSITIONS

	02/23/2021 Item No.5.	Resolution No. 10590 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the Second Amendment to the Joint Powers Agreement between the City of Elk Grove, City of Folsom, City of Rancho Cordova, City of Sacramento, and the County of Sacramento Creating the Sacramento Central Groundwater Authority
	02-23 STAFF REPORT RES 10590 AMENDED JPA SAC CENTRAL GROUNDWATER AUTHORITY

	02/23/2021 Item No.6.	Resolution No. 10591 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Amended and Restated Master Interagency Agreement Between Sacramento Regional County Sanitation District and Its Contributing Agencies
	02-23 STAFF REPORT RES 10591 AMENDED-RESTATED MASTER INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT

	02/23/2021 Item No.7.	Resolution No. 10594 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Contract with Madsen Roofing & Waterproofing, Inc. for the Folsom Community Center Roof Repair Project
	02-23 STAFF REPORT RES 10594 COMMUNITY CENTER ROOF REPAIR

	02/23/2021 Item No.8.	Resolution No. 10595 - A Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with Western Truck Parts and Equipment Company LLC to Purchase One Solid Waste Collection Vehicle
	02-23 STAFF REPORT RES 10595 PURCHASE SOLID WASTE COLLECTION VEHICLE

	02/23/2021 Item No.9.	Alder Creek Apartments – Southeast Corner of Alder Creek Parkway and Westwood Drive in the Folsom Plan Area (PN 18-222)
	02-23 STAFF REPORT RES 10596 ALDER CREEK SUBDIVISION

	02/23/2021 Item No.10.	Appointment of At-Large Members to the Folsom Historic District Commission
	02-23 R STAFF REPORT APPOINTMENTS OF HDC AT-LARGE MEMBERS

	02/23/2021 Item No.11.	Appointment of At Large Members to the Landscaping and Lighting District Advisory Committee
	02-23 R STAFF REPORT APPOITMENTS OF L AND L AT-LARGE MEMBERS

	Bottom

